
 

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format, please call Governance Services on (01432) 260635 or e-
mail ruth.goldwater@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Cabinet 
 

 

Date: Thursday 15 October 2015 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Place: Council Chamber, The Shire Hall, St Peter's Square, 
Hereford, HR1 2HX 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Governance Services 
Tel: (01432) 260635 
Email: ruth.goldwater@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 



 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Cabinet 
Membership  
  

Chairman Councillor AW Johnson 
Vice-Chairman Councillor PM Morgan 
   
 Councillor H Bramer  
 Councillor JG Lester  
 Councillor GJ Powell  
 Councillor PD Price  
 Councillor P Rone  

 
Non Voting   

 
 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  15 OCTOBER 2015 
 

 

AGENDA  
 Pages 
PUBLICINFORMATIONFIREINFO OCT 14 
 

 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 

Notice has been served in accordance with Part 3, Section 9 (Publicity in 
connection with key decisions) of The Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2012. 
 
Item 
No 

Title Portfolio 
Responsibility 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

28 Day Notice 
Given 

4 Adoption of the 
Herefordshire local 
plan -  core strategy 
2011-2031 

Infrastructure General 17 September 
2015 

6 Adult and community 
learning plan 2015-
2018 

Young People, 
Children’s and 
Wellbeing 

General 28 August 
2015 

7 Planned capital 
programme for 
schools 2015/16 

Young People, 
Children’s and 
Wellbeing 

General 5 August 2015 

 
 

 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on the 
Agenda. 
 

 

3. MINUTES 
 

7 - 12 

 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 11 September 2015. 
 

 

4. ADOPTION OF THE HEREFORDSHIRE LOCAL PLAN -  CORE 
STRATEGY 2011-2031 
 

13 - 180 

 To recommend to Council that the Herefordshire local plan core strategy 
2011-2031 (“the core strategy”) be adopted. 
 

 

5. LOCAL ACCOUNT 2014/15 
 

181 - 208 

 To approve publication of the Local Account of Adult Social Care and 
Support 2014/15 
 

 

6. ADULT AND COMMUNITY LEARNING PLAN 2015-18 
 

209 - 256 

 To approve the adult and community learning plan 2015/18 
 

 

7. PLANNED CAPITAL PROGRAMME FOR SCHOOLS 2015/16 
 

257 - 266 

 To approve the proposed expenditure of capital grants for school building 
and maintenance work allocated to the council for the year 2015/16 
 

 

8. FUTURE DELIVERY ARRANGEMENTS FOR WEST MERCIA YOUTH 
OFFENDING SERVICE (WMYOS) 

267 - 282 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  15 OCTOBER 2015 
 

 

 

 To secure approval for proposed new delivery arrangements for West Mercia 
Youth Offending Service (WMYOS). 
 

 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 

to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

 

Public Transport Links 
 
• The Shire Hall is a few minutes walking distance from both bus stations located in the 

town centre of Hereford. 

5



RECORDING OF THIS MEETING 
 

Please note that filming, photography and recording of this meeting is permitted provided that 
it does not disrupt the business of the meeting. 
 
Members of the public are advised that if you do not wish to be filmed or photographed you 
should let the governance services team know before the meeting starts so that anyone who 
intends filming or photographing the meeting can be made aware. 
The reporting of meetings is subject to the law and it is the responsibility of those doing the 
reporting to ensure that they comply. 
 

 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 
In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the nearest available fire exit 
and make your way to the Fire Assembly Point in the Shire Hall car park. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to collect coats or other 
personal belongings. 

The Chairman or an attendee at the meeting must take the signing in sheet so it can be 
checked when everyone is at the assembly point. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

6



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Cabinet held at Shire Hall, St Peter's 
Square, Hereford, HR1 2HX on Friday 11 September 2015 at 2.00 
pm 
  

Present: Councillor AW Johnson (Chairman) 
Councillor PM Morgan (Vice Chairman) 

   
 Councillors: H Bramer, JG Lester, GJ Powell, PD Price and P Rone 
 
  
In attendance: Councillors JM Bartlett, WLS Bowen, JA Hyde, RI Matthews, AJW Powers, 

Mr A Neill, Mrs J Davidson, G Hughes, Robinson, Samuels, EPJ Harvey, 
D Summers and EJ Swinglehurst 

  
Officers: Mr A Neill, Mrs A Brookes, Mrs J Davidson, Mr G Hughes, Mr P Robinson, Mr 

M Samuels 
 

91. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
Apologies were received from Councillor TM James. 
 

92. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

93. MINUTES   
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That subject to Councillor FM Norman being recorded as “in attendance” rather 
than as a Cabinet Member, the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 July 2015 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
The Leader welcomed the new director for Adults and Wellbeing, Martin Samuels. 
 
It was agreed that the health and safety policy (agenda item 94), would be moved 
to the last item on the agenda for today’s meeting.  
 

94. YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN   
 
The Youth Justice Plan was presented by West Mercia Youth Offending Service (YOS). 
This was an annual plan determined by the Youth Justice Board, and which linked to 
other plans in the county. The plan reported positively for last year and the current year, 
with 11% fewer young people entering the system and a reduction in youth custody.  
 
The plan used a national tool which measured performance in real time, month by month 
and there was closer integration in Herefordshire with regard to Families First and looked 
after children and links to the Children and Young People’s Plan. There was a clear plan 
for further progress in 2015/16. 
 
In answer to a query from the Cabinet Member for Economy and Corporate Services 
regarding a review of the YOS, it was clarified that the review has led to a 
recommendation that the Police and Crime Commissioner hosts the service. In his role 
as chair of the Community Safety Partnership, the Member also asked if issues 

AGENDA ITEM 3

7



 

regarding tracking of data were resolved.  It was confirmed that data was now being 
tracked monthly.   Further clarification showed that with regard to a reduction in the 
numbers of young people reoffending, whilst the cohort was smaller, there were more 
young people with complex needs who were at greater risk, although reoffending rates 
were reducing.  It was confirmed that regional figures were provided in the plan so that a 
profile for the county could be seen.  
 
It was also noted that the report contained abbreviations which had dual meaning, such 
as FTE meaning both full time equivalent and first time entrants.  
 
The group leader of Herefordshire Independents welcomed the reduction in figures and 
asked about the 37% of children who are in care. It was explained that looked after 
children have more complex needs and mechanisms were in place to gather feedback 
from these children about how the service could be improved. It was noted that children 
and young people who engaged with the YOS were less likely to offend; however, more 
was being done to improve this service as offending was still occurring. 
 
The group leader of It’s Our County welcomed improvements in the service but observed 
that the county had the highest first time entrant (FTE) figure in the region only partly due 
to the detection rate. He noted that Herefordshire was a demographically smaller partner 
but had the highest statistic on FTEs and sought assurance that there were sufficient 
resources to reduce FTEs. It was clarified that the county did have a higher detection 
rate and that there was comparatively less use of community resolution and therefore 
the FTE rate was higher than in other areas.  
  
The service was consulting with young people about provision and there was good 
progress and use of resources despite a further in-year reduction in resources.  
 
The director for children’s wellbeing explained that there was a relatively higher 
proportion of looked after children entering the county due to the availability of 
accommodation. Since residential children’s homes tended to have higher callout rates 
to police, there was more work required on restorative justice and direct work with 
homes. She added that it was the responsibility of corporate parents to decide whether 
to criminalise a looked after child and this was a particular issue for Herefordshire. As 
regards resources, there was recent consultation on a 6% in-year reduction to the grant 
from the Youth Justice Board to the YOS; it was not considered that this would adversely 
affect a continued downward trend in figures.   
 
In answer to a question from the Green group leader regarding the service’s 
effectiveness at preventing reoffending, it was clarified that each person was assessed 
with regard to either transition into probation or retention in the YOS and there was a 
member of staff looking at new ways of working.  
 
The leader of the Green group made a further observation regarding satisfaction levels 
in service provision for those involved in drug use and those experiencing upsetting 
thoughts, which meant that one person in four was not getting the right help.  It was 
confirmed that the YOS was engaged in the new contract for drug and alcohol services. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Youth Justice Plan be recommended to Council for approval. 
 
 

95. CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S PLAN   
 
The Children and Young People’s Plan was introduced by the Cabinet Member for 
Young People and Children’s Wellbeing. The plan provided a clear vision for 

8



 

Herefordshire to ensure that young people had the best start to life. It also minimised the 
impact on services as people grow older, therefore good for the county as a whole, and 
reminded councillors of their responsibilities as corporate parents. A child friendly 
version was being developed. Acknowledgement was given to all who developed the 
plan.  
 
The assistant director, education and commissioning, explained the plan’s key points: 
 
• relationship to the health and wellbeing strategy and specific targets, recognising 

the work with partners to identify priorities including resources and savings; 
• working with troubled families, with a focus on early help and targeting direct 

services and supporting 600 families which would-draw in finance;  
• targets to reduce first time entrants (FTEs) and reoffending; 
• improving performance in such issues as breast-feeding, immunisations, health 

visitors and school nurses;   
• mental health linked to adults’ services to redesign services; 
• improving safeguarding and recognising pressures on placements;  
• focus on adolescent services and those not in employment, education or training 

(NEETs) and their contribution to the economy;  
• recognition of recent legislation regarding changing care plans to develop single 

pathways for disabled children moving into adulthood.  
 
In response to a comment from the group leader for Herefordshire Independents 
regarding risk management and the statistics provided regarding mental health, it was 
confirmed that the plan was intended to be clear about responsibilities and resources 
and the partnership provided a vehicle to identify risks. I 
 
It was recognised that people needed access to the right mental health support at both 
at national and local level and that developments in mental health services needed to be 
seen as it was expected that the number of people identified with mental health issues 
would grow. It was also recognised that emotional health needs could be addressed as a 
wider issue on the basis that supporting those needs in earlier years made people more 
resilient as adults.  
 
The chair of the general overview and scrutiny committee commented on the plan’s 
reference to safeguarding and questioned the level progress made in this area, for 
example with the Multi-agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH). The director for children’s 
wellbeing clarified that they key issue was to retain focus on safeguarding and practice 
improvements and to develop the MASH further to cover all age-groups with further input 
from police and other partners.  
 
In response to a further question regarding children coming into the county, it was 
explained that the issue of advance notification had improved and better arrangements 
were in place, although there remained issues where children were placed in an 
emergency and so systems had to catch up with their situation.  
 
The leader of It’s Our County (IOC) welcomed the preventive approach and asked how 
the plan linked to the public health agenda and budget. It was confirmed that the plan 
was produced with input from the public health team and that there was a member of 
that team focused on children and families.  
 
In answer to his further question regarding the development of healthy child services and 
the family nurse partnership, it was clarified that service developments would allow for 
better local planning within the national framework.   
 
The Cabinet Member for young people and children’s wellbeing acknowledged a further 
comment from the IOC group leader regarding community engagement and the potential 

9



 

role of parish councils and the third sector. He commented that, in order to avoid 
duplication, it was important to recognise that the plan belonged to the county rather 
than the council. He added that parish and town councils played an important role in 
ensuring services were provided.  
 
The leader of the Green group asked about financial implications associated with funding 
the work with troubled families.  In response, reference was made to the outcome that 
partners were to identify 600 families and that work with them would continue and as 
there was no reliance on funding, there was no associated risk.  The approach taken 
centred on multi-agency work with families with particular problems such as offending 
and truancy. There was a new scheme to fund volunteers to work with families in order 
to draw communities in and identify areas where communities can help and this was 
seen as a sustainable way of meeting high level and infinite needs against finite funds.     
 
The chair of the health and social care overview and scrutiny committee observed that 
the plan referred to free school meals provision being linked to a child’s development, 
although it is now the case that meals are provided to all children. It was clarified that 
this criterion still existed for the purposes of data collation.  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the children’s and young people’s plan be recommended to Council for 
approval. 
 

96. CAPITAL SUPPORT FOR THE FEDERATION OF AYLESTONE BUSINESS AND 
ENTERPRISE COLLEGE (ABEC), BROADLANDS PRIMARY SCHOOL AND 
CHILDREN'S CENTRE   
 
The assistant director, education and commissioning, presented the report and reminded 
cabinet of an earlier report that was presented on 13 November 2014. The report related 
to two separate schools and early years provision which faced significant capital spend 
requirements and surplus places if they remained in situ. The scheme moves provision 
to one site with revised costs. This would provide high quality provision and a new 
primary school, and represented a forerunner for other projects in the school capital 
investment strategy.  
 
The chair of the general overview and scrutiny committee commented on apparent 
mismeasurement and miscalculation connected with the scheme and asked for 
explanation.  The head of educational development explained that the projected costs 
were investigated and were greater once more detailed work took place on the scheme, 
although it still represented best value for the council.  
 
The Cabinet Member for young people and children’s wellbeing emphasised the 
importance of moving forward with the scheme to consolidate assets, and pointed out 
the significantly higher cost of building from new. It was important to now look at what 
had been achieved with the scheme and how this would influence how future projects 
would develop within the strategy.   
 
The chair of the general overview and scrutiny committee commended the report. 
 
The group leader of It’s Our County (IOC) expressed concern regarding the process 
followed for getting the scheme to this stage and that contract design and management 
of this scheme highlighted the value in doing this well.  
 
The Leader commented on the need to ensure all facts and best deals were gathered 
and there were other previous contracts which highlighted this.  
 

10



 

The Cabinet member for economy and corporate services commented on the process 
followed for developing this scheme given the limited capital funds for schools.   
 
The group leader of Herefordshire Independents welcomed the scheme and observed 
that it created an environment which supported children to make an easier transition 
from primary to secondary education. In answer to his enquiry regarding the future of the 
vacated site, it was clarified that it would be included in capital estates.  
 
Commenting on the identification of risk, the director for children’s wellbeing reminded 
cabinet of the element of risk associated with large scale projects, which had been 
identified and reported at the outset and of the benefits and outcomes that this scheme 
would bring for schools and for children.   
 
The Leader commented on the value of learning from all schemes.   
 
RESOLVED  
 
That  
 
(a) the impact of the reduced estimated value of the land which will reduce the 

anticipated contribution to corporate resources, as set out at paragraph 9 
of the report be noted; and 

(b) it be recommended to Council that an additional £250k of funding be 
approved to relocate Broadlands primary school onto the Aylestone 
Business and Enterprise College (ABEC) site. 

 
97. HEALTH AND SAFETY POLICY   

 
The Cabinet member for economy and corporate services introduced the health and 
safety policy and strategy which was a statutory requirement and had been refreshed 
and updated. The management structure and lines of responsibility had been updated 
and included in the corporate risk register.  
 
It was noted that from January to April 2015, incidents under the Reporting of injuries, 
Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations (RIDDOR) had reduced by 50%. 
 
Cabinet members were asked to note that the health and safety management board 
included three council members and views were sought on membership to be forwarded 
to the cabinet member for economy and corporate services.  
 
RESOLVED  
 
That the updated health and safety policy and strategy for its implementation be 
approved. 
 
There followed a short statement before the close of the meeting from the Cabinet 
member for economy and corporate to announce that in interest of public and staff safety 
it was decided to temporarily close Hereford library and museum with effect from today.  
 
Questions on this matter would be dealt with following the close of the Cabinet meeting.      
 
 

The meeting ended at 3.17 pm CHAIRMAN 

11



12



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Andrew Ashcroft, assistant director – economic, environment & cultural services on  

Tel (01432) 383098 

 

 

Meeting: 
 

Cabinet 
 

Meeting date: 15 October 2015 

Title of report: Adoption of the Herefordshire local plan -  
core strategy 2011-2031 

Report by: Assistant director – economic, environment & 
cultural services 

 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is a key decision because it is likely to be significant in terms of its effect on 
communities living or working in an area comprising one or more wards in the county. 

Notice has been served in accordance with Part 3, Section 10 (General Exception) of the 
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 
Regulations 2012.   

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To recommend to Council that the Herefordshire local plan core strategy 2011-2031 (“the 
core strategy”) be adopted.  

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:  
(a) the local plan inspector’s report (at appendix1) be noted;  
(b) the Herefordshire local plan core strategy 2011-2031 (at 

https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/planning-
policy/core-strategy ), incorporating the recommended main modifications (at 
appendix 2) and the schedules of minor modifications (at appendix 3) be 
recommended to Council for adoption; and 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4

13



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Andrew Ashcroft, assistant director – economic, environment & cultural services on  

Tel (01432) 383098 

 

Alternative options 

1 There is an alternative option not to recommend to council to adopt the core strategy.  
However there would be little if any merit in doing so given that the inspector has 
concluded that it is sound and that there have been no relevant changes in the 
county. Not adopting the core strategy would result in the council having to rely on the 
current policies in the Unitary Development Plan (2007) (UDP), and the National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) in deciding planning applications. In this case, 
the general policy of the NPPF, that planning permission should be granted if relevant 
policies are out-of-date, would apply. In addition, there would also be little, if any, 
improvement in the council’s five year land supply and, without the core strategy in 
place, the council would be unable to provide certainty for investors, co-ordinate the 
delivery of infrastructure, and would be hampered in efforts to seek funding to support 
infrastructure and growth. This would harm the council’s ability to deliver on its 
strategic objectives by delaying the delivery of new homes, holding back economic 
growth, and stalling regeneration. 

2 In addition, given the requirements for consultation and examination which would 
need to be met to progress any amended core strategy, there would be considerable 
delay before the risks outlined in paragraph 1 above could be mitigated.  

3 Cabinet could decide to defer this decision or recommend to council that the decision 
be deferred but this is not recommended for the reasons set out above. 

4 There is not an option to adopt the core strategy with only some of the proposed main 
modifications that came out of the examination process.  By definition the core 
strategy is now considered to be sound on the basis of its full content. If the main 
modifications were not included the core strategy would not be sound and it could not 
be recommended for adoption. 

5 The schedule of minor modifications does not affect the basis of the core strategy and 
as such an alternative could be to recommend adoption without the schedule of minor 
modifications. However as this schedule aids the clarity of the document and ensures 
the plan is up to date this option is not recommended. 

6 Authority for making further minor modifications could be delegated to the relevant 
cabinet member or to cabinet; as the modifications covered by this delegation do not 
affect the basis of the core strategy, and in exercising such delegated authority the 
officer is required to consult with the relevant cabinet member. The proposed 
delegation provides the most efficient way of maintaining a clear and consistent set of 
development plan documentation. 

Reasons for recommendations 

7 The existing adopted unitary development plan (2007) (“UDP”) is now significantly out 
of date and has only limited weight within the context of the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2012 (NPPF). 

(c) it be recommended to Council that delegated authority be given to the  
programme director growth to make any further minor modifications, (e.g. 
typographical) to ensure consistency with other development plan 
documentation  

 

14



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Andrew Ashcroft, assistant director – economic, environment & cultural services on  

Tel (01432) 383098 

 

8 The preparation of the core strategy has been a long and exhaustive process and the 
inspector has concluded that it meets the test of soundness. 

Key considerations 

9 The core strategy (https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/planning-and-building-
control/planning-policy/core-strategy) has been in preparation since 2008.  It has 
been developed in accordance with national planning policy guidance, including 
undergoing seven stages of consultation.  Following approval by Council in July 2013, 
it was submitted for examination in September 2014 and detailed hearings were held 
on specific aspects of it in February 2015. 

10 The core strategy covers the period from 2011–2031.  It proposes a comprehensive 
series of proposals and allocations within the county.  In doing so it balances 
environmental issues with economic and social needs and ensures that development 
will be sustainable.  Whilst the examination process has refined the core strategy, its  
key strategic proposals set out below remain unaffected: 

• Provision of a minimum of 16,500 new dwellings in the county; 
• For Hereford an overall target of 6,500 new dwellings including the proposed 

urban extensions at Holmer, Lower Bullingham and Three Elms; 
• Provision of a relief road to the west of Hereford; 
• Development of 148 hectares of employment land across the county including 

employment hubs focussed in Hereford and the market towns; 
• The development of 4,700 new homes across the county’s market towns 

incorporating the provision of key items of infrastructure;  
• Accommodation of 5,300 new dwellings in rural areas throughout the plan 

period as supported by neighbourhood plans. 
 
10 The inspector’s report is attached at appendix 1. It was received on 29 September 

2015 and published on the council’s website as required.  It concludes that, with the 
inclusion of the series of proposed main modifications (at appendix 2), the core 
Strategy meets the test of soundness.  The inspector’s main modifications include 
changes to some key aspects of the core strategy including: 

 
• Removal of waste and minerals policies and the future preparation of a waste 

and minerals plan; 
• Introduction of a replacement policy addressing the relationship between 

infrastructure, delivery and monitoring;  
• Changes to wind power developments and housing standards policies to 

reflect recent changes in national policy; 
• Changes to reflect retail and affordable housing thresholds; 
• Changes to clarify the roles of neighbourhood plans and other development 

plan documents. 
 
11 In addition to the main modifications there is also a series of minor modifications (at 

appendix 3) proposed which clarify aspects of the plan but do not change the 
approach of the plan’s policies.  Minor modifications are a matter for the council, 
rather than the inspector, to propose, and this is reflected in the inspector’s report 
(paragraphs 4 and 100).  Most of the minor modifications were published alongside 
the main modifications in March 2015.  In addition, other minor modifications arose in 
response to comments made during the consultation upon the main modifications.   
 

15



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Andrew Ashcroft, assistant director – economic, environment & cultural services on  

Tel (01432) 383098 

 

 
 
 
12 The existing UDP was adopted in 2007.  The provisions in the Localism Act 2011, the 

NPPF and more recently the release of the Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014) 
make it important that an up-to-date local plan is in place as soon as possible so that 
the council has greater control over development.  With an up-to-date plan the council 
will have a clear strategy for future growth within the county.  As such it will not be 
heavily reliant on the NPPF in determining planning applications.  A number of other 
elements of the local plan are also scheduled to be prepared to complement strategic 
policies of the core strategy including the Hereford area plan, the minerals and waste 
local plan, the travellers’ development plan document and the community 
infrastructure levy.  Following adoption of the core strategy an updated local 
development scheme outlining the timetable for the preparation of these documents 
will be produced. 

 
13 As with all strategies, once adopted the local plan will be periodically reviewed to 

ensure it remains compliant with planning policy guidance, national legislative 
changes and responsive to local need. 

 

Community impact 

14 The principal aim of the core strategy is to set out the visions and objectives for the 
county and to establish a policy framework necessary to deliver the vision to 2031.  
This will ensure that there are sufficient homes provided for all members of the 
community, provide employment opportunities and growth, sufficient retail provision, 
improved infrastructure and the wider protection of the environment.  The NPPF sets 
out the challenge that local planning authorities promote sustainable development.  In 
her report it is clear that the Inspector concludes that this ambition has been 
achieved. 

Equality duty 

15 In order to fulfil the requirements of Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, an equality 
impact assessment (at appendix 4) has been completed. The assessment confirms 
that there is no potential for discrimination and that all appropriate opportunities have 
been undertaken to advance equality and foster good relations.  

Financial implications 

16 Costs associated with adoption will involve ensuring the necessary notifications are 
undertaken and making the core strategy and other documents required by the local 
plan regulations are available for inspection.  Funding for these tasks is in place in 
existing budgets and/or reserves. 

Legal implications 

17 Once adopted the core strategy will form part of the statutory development plan for 
the area and be used as such for the purpose of determining planning applications in 
the county. Its preparation has involved ensuring compliance with statutory 
procedural requirements including: duty to cooperate, sustainability appraisal and 
habitats regulations assessment being undertaken at key stages during the 

16



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Andrew Ashcroft, assistant director – economic, environment & cultural services on  

Tel (01432) 383098 

 

preparation of the plan, and consultation statements summarising how the council 
has engaged with communities and other stakeholders during the process. 

 

18 The options open to the council at this stage in the process are set out in the said 
2004 Act (notably sections 23 and 27) and the Town and Country Planning (Local) 
(England) Regulations 2012/767 (as amended). Namely where the inspector 
recommends that it is adopted, as here, with modifications (“the main modifications”) 
the council may adopt the document (a) with the main modifications, or (b) with the 
main modifications and additional modifications (i.e. minor modifications) if they 
(taken together) do not materially affect the policies as recommended by the 
Inspector. 

 
19 If the council rejects one or more of the inspector’s recommended modifications it 

cannot then proceed to adopt the core strategy. If the recommendation in this report 
is approved the core strategy must be formally adopted, by resolution, of full Council, 
and subsequently, an ‘adoption statement’ would need to be published in the local 
press advertising the availability of the inspector’s report and the adopted core 
strategy. 

 
20 Adoption of the core strategy by the council will trigger a six week period from its 

adoption, within which any person aggrieved by the core strategy may make an 
application to the High Court under section 113 of the said 2004 Act on limited 
grounds, namely that either: (a) the document is not within the appropriate power; or 
(b) a procedural requirement has not been complied with. The adoption of the core 
strategy can only be challenged therefore on the above legal grounds and not simply 
because of a lack of agreement with the inspector’s recommendations. 
 

21 Through the public examination process, the inspector has confirmed that the core 
strategy has met the legal compliance and soundness requirements. 

Risk management 

22 Any delay in adopting the core strategy will result in developers continuing to submit 
planning applications outside the context of an up-to-date and overarching strategy.  
In particular this could undermine the delivery of the strategic urban extensions 
proposed in the core strategy. 

23 The adoption of the core strategy will generate the provision of a five year housing 
land supply.  There would be a significant risk to the strategic management of 
development in the county if a five year supply of housing land were not in place. 

24 If the core strategy is not agreed momentum may be lost with regards to achievement 
of the council’s ambitions for growth in the county. 

25 There are no significant risks associated with adoption of the core strategy. 

26 Conversely, there are significant risks associated with a decision not to adopt.  We 
would not have a plan to meet our housing need.  It would be very unlikely that the 
council could continue to maintain a five year supply of land for housing (plus buffer), 
as required by paragraph 47 of the NPPF.  This in turn would also increase the risk of 
speculative applications in less favoured locations which may be difficult to resist.  It 
would undermine the ability of the council to secure inward investment and economic 
growth.  Without the certainty provided by an adopted core strategy we weaken our 

17



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Andrew Ashcroft, assistant director – economic, environment & cultural services on  

Tel (01432) 383098 

 

competitive advantage to secure the investment needed to maintain the viability of 
our communities.  It would leave those communities wishing to prepare a 
neighbourhood development plan in a ‘strategic policy vacuum’, making it much more 
difficult to proceed because there are no up to date strategic policies within which to 
set their own vision and policies. 

Consultees 

27 During the period of preparing the core strategy there have been seven periods of 
consultation as follows: 

 
Ø Identifying the issues, May 2007; 
Ø Key issues consultation, September – October 2007; 
Ø Developing options, June – August 2008; 
Ø Place shaping, January – March 2010; 
Ø Preferred options, July – November 2010; 
Ø Revised preferred option, October – November 2011; 
Ø Herefordshire local plan – core strategy (draft), March – April 2013. 

 
28 The nature of the process has involved extensive engagement with countywide local 

people, interest groups and statutory agencies through the seven rounds of 
consultation. 

 
29 The pre-submission version of the document was published in May 2014. The 

publication of the core strategy was advertised and those individuals and 
organisations that had shown interest during the preparation of the core strategy were 
invited to comment.  In addition, there were specific periods of consultation between 
March and May and again in July-August 2015 on the proposed main modifications to 
the core strategy that were generated as a result of the examination hearings and 
recent changes to national planning policy.  
Details of the consultations undertaken are available at               
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/media/7923636/reg_22_statement_complete.pdf.
  

Appendices 

Appendix 1 - Report on the examination of the Herefordshire local plan core strategy 2011-
2031, 29 September 2015 

Appendix 2 - Herefordshire local plan core strategy main modifications, September 2015 

Appendix 3 - Herefordshire local plan core strategy minor modifications, October 2015  

Appendix 4 - Equality impact assessment 2015 

Background papers 

None. 
 

18



Report to Herefordshire Council

by Christine Thorby MRTPI IHBC

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Date 29 September 2015

PLANNING AND COMPULSORY PURCHASE ACT 2004 (AS AMENDED)

SECTION 20

REPORT ON THE EXAMINATION OF THE

THE HEREFORDSHIRE LOCAL PLAN

CORE STRATEGY 2011 - 2031

Document submitted for examination on 23 September 2014

Examination hearings held between 10 February and 25 February 2015

File Ref: PINS/W1850/429/3

APPENDIX 1

19



2

Abbreviations Used in this Report

AA
CS

Appropriate Assessment
Submission Core Strategy May 2014

DCLG Department of Communities and Local Government
DPD Development Plan Document
DtC Duty to Co-operate
HC
HRR

Herefordshire Council
Hereford Relief Road

HMA Housing Market Area
LDS Local Development Scheme
MM
NMP
NP
NPPF

Main Modification
Nutrient Management Plan
Neighbourhood Plan
National Planning Policy framework

OAN
PPG

Objectively Assessed Need
Planning Practice Guidance

SA Sustainability Appraisal
SCI Statement of Community Involvement
SCS Sustainable Community Strategy
SHLAA Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment
SHMA Strategic Housing Market Assessment
UEA
SUE

Urban Expansion Area
Sustainable Urban Extension

WMS Written Ministerial Statement

20



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

3

Non-Technical Summary

This report concludes that the Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy 2011- 2031
Plan provides an appropriate basis for the planning of the District, providing a 
number of modifications are made to the plan.  Herefordshire Council has 
specifically requested me to recommend any modifications necessary to enable 
the plan to be adopted.  

All of the modifications to address this were proposed by the Council but where 
necessary I have amended detailed wording and I have recommended their 
inclusion after considering the representations from other parties on these issues.  

The Main Modifications can be summarised as follows:

 Removal of waste and minerals policies and associated explanatory text
and add information about the preparation of a waste and minerals plan;

 Replacement policy and new appendices addressing the relationship 
between critical infrastructure, delivery and monitoring;

 Revised housing trajectory to provide more detail and up-to-date figures to 
assist with monitoring;

 Modifications to numerous policies to ensure that they are not 
restrictive/prescriptive or to provide clarity/flexibility;

 Changes to wind power development and housing standards policies to 
reflect recent written ministerial statements from the Secretary of State for 
Communities and Local Government;

 Changes to retail and affordable housing thresholds;
 Modifications to clarify the roles of neighbourhood plans and other 

development plan documents;
 Changes to numerous policies to update the wording to be consistent with 

national policy contained in the National Planning Policy Framework.

21



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

4

Introduction 
1. This report contains my assessment of the Herefordshire Local Plan Core 

Strategy 2011- 2031 (CS) in terms of Section 20(5) of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended). It considers first whether the
Plan’s preparation has complied with the duty to co-operate, in recognition
that there is no scope to remedy any failure in this regard. It considers 
whether the Plan is sound and whether it is compliant with the legal 
requirements. The National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 182)
makes clear that to be sound, a Local Plan should be positively prepared; 
justified; effective and consistent with national policy. 

2. The starting point for the examination is the assumption that the local 
authority has submitted what it considers to be a sound plan.  The basis for 
my examination is the submitted, Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy 2011 
– 2031, pre-submission publication May 2014 which is the same as the 
document published for consultation in May 2014.

3. My report deals with the main modifications that are needed to make the Plan
sound and legally compliant and they are identified in bold in the report (MM).
In accordance with section 20(7C) of the 2004 Act the Council requested that I 
should make any modifications needed to rectify matters that make the Plan 
unsound/not legally compliant and thus incapable of being adopted.  These 
main modifications are set out in the Appendix.

4. The Main Modifications that are necessary for soundness all relate to matters 
that were discussed at the Examination hearings.  Following these discussions,
the Council prepared a schedule of proposed main modifications and carried 
out sustainability appraisal where necessary and this schedule has been 
subject to public consultation for six weeks. I have taken account of the 
consultation responses in coming to my conclusions in this report and in this 
light I have made amendments and some additions to the detailed wording of 
the main modifications. None of these amendments significantly alters the 
content of the modifications as published for consultation such that they 
undermine the participatory processes and sustainability appraisal that has 
been undertaken. Where necessary I have highlighted these amendments in 
the report. Other modifications arising after the consultation on the Main 
Modifications are minor and are a matter for the Council.

22



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

5

Assessment of Soundness 
5. The following is a list of background documents which accompanied the CS 

that are relevant to the plan as a whole.

6. The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) [A6] was adopted by the 
Council in March 2007. It sets out a framework which identifies how and when 
the Council will consult in the preparation of future planning documents 
including the CS.  The preparation of the CS has followed the consultation 
principles established in the SCI. In addition, the Statement of Consultation 
[A11] brings together and summarises the consultation process undertaken by 
the Council on the CS from 2007 up to the publication of the final publication 
document in September 2014. 

7. Some representors expressed concern about consultation; however, the 
preparation of the CS has followed the consultation principles established in 
the SCI.  There were also concerns about the submission of statements of 
common ground and other documents received during the hearing sessions.  
However, these related to matters already under consideration and the 
statements of common ground were very helpful as part of the on-going 
consideration of soundness of the plan.  I am satisfied that the preparation of 
the CS has followed the consultation principles established in the SCI. 

8. The CS has been subject to Sustainability Assessment (SA)[A4] throughout its 
preparation up to the time of the Hearing. In addition the Main Modifications 
were subject to a further Addendum SA. The Council’s evidence base 
demonstrates that different options and alternatives have been addressed at 
all of the relevant stages.  The SA identifies the process, including the final 
submission SA (and the subsequent addendum April 2015 relating to the main 
modifications).   At each stage of its development the emerging CS policies 
were assessed against SA objectives, and consideration was given as to 
whether and how the policies would further the objectives. The SA was subject 
to consultation in the same way as the CS. There is nothing to suggest that 
the SA was undertaken other than in accordance with the Regulations. The 
conclusion of the SA, up to and including the Main Modifications, is that the CS 
is robust in terms of its sustainability. Its policies provide certainty and clarity. 
Taking all of the above matters together, the CS has been subject to an 
adequate Sustainability Appraisal.

9. Similar conclusions apply in respect of the work carried out on the Council’s
behalf in relation to the Habitats Regulations Assessment/Appropriate 
Assessment (HRA/AA) [A5] and Addendum for the Main Modifications, given 
that necessary amendments were made to draft stages of the plan, prior to 
the submission version. Taking into account the advice from relevant 
consultees, notably Natural England and the Environment Agency, I consider 
that the plan has been subject to a legally compliant and adequate HRA.

10. On 1 December 2014 an assistant Inspector, Elizabeth Ord LLB(Hons), LLM,
MA, DipTUS, was appointed to examine the CS waste and minerals (MW) 
policies. The assistant Inspector wrote to the Council on 25 January 2015 
advising them of her concerns about the MW policies and associated text. 
These related to a lack of evidence that strategic issues such as cross 
boundary movements, meeting needs and shared sites had been co-ordinated 

23



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

6

with surrounding Councils;  a lack of strategic information about targets, 
standards, capacity and overall scale of development in the CS; an aging 
evidence base which did not take account of current national policy; the lack 
of a clear vision, objective and spatial strategy for MW, and finally, that the
strategy for the supply of minerals and the provision of waste management 
facilities was inadequate. 

11. To remedy the numerous weaknesses of the MW section would require 
significant amendments to the evidence base, the MW policies and related 
text, and result in very different document to that which has been submitted
with a considerable time delay.  In order for the submission plan to be sound 
MM01 is proposed, deleting the waste and minerals policies, the supporting 
text and any reference to the policies throughout the plan.  Herefordshire 
Council set out updates to the LDS [IN7] which includes a timescale for the 
delivery of a separate Minerals and Waste Local Plan to be submitted for 
examination in 2016. 

Assessment of Duty to Co-operate 
12. Section s20(5)(c) of the  2004 Act requires that I consider whether the Council  

complied with any duty imposed on them by section 33A  of the 2004 Act  in 
relation to the Plan’s preparation.

13. The Council has prepared a ‘Duty to Co-operate Statement’ [A12] which 
summarises how the Council has co-operated with other Local Planning 
Authorities (LPAs) and with the additional bodies prescribed in Regulation 4 of 
the 2012 Regulations. 

14. The sections on minerals and waste are brief, with limited evidence of cross 
boundary co-operation and I have addressed this in paragraphs 10 and 11 of 
my report. For the remaining policies, the Council has worked well with all the 
neighbouring authorities during the preparation of the CS. The level of 
involvement with the different authorities has varied according to the issues 
raised. Details of a range of meetings, discussions and other means of 
communication are set out in detail in DtC document [A12]. As an outcome, it 
is clear that there are no strategic cross boundary issues that need to be 
resolved.  It is clear that there has been positive and constructive engagement
with surrounding authorities.

15. In relation to the relevant Regulation 4 bodies, all relevant bodies have been 
engaged - some in more detail than others, dependant on the extent of their 
involvement in the Plan’s infrastructure proposals. Again, details of the means 
of engagement are set out in document A12. The Council has engaged 
constructively, actively and on an on-going basis. Taking the plan as a whole, 
I conclude that the CS complies with the legal DtC in the Act.

Main Issues

16. Taking account of all the representations, written evidence and the discussions 
that took place at the examination hearings I have identified eleven main 
issues upon which the soundness of the Plan depends. 

24



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

7

Issue 1 – Whether the overall spatial strategy is soundly based and does it 
present a clear spatial vision for the county, appropriate to the needs of 
the area, consistent with national policies?

17. The spatial vision (chapter 3) seeks sustainable development based on 
fostering a high quality of life for those who live and work in Herefordshire 
whilst protecting the distinct areas of character within the county.  The
strategy seeks to achieve this by ensuring an appropriate balance between 
improving the quality of life, gaining economic prosperity for all and the 
protection of the county’s environmental assets.  At the highest level, this is a 
clear and appropriate vision. 

18. A series of vision statements and twelve objectives support the spatial vision.  
They are focussed around the role of sustainable development as set out in 
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).  They put forward social, 
economic and environmental aims, identifying the relevant CS policies under 
each strand aimed to deliver a sustainable outcome for the plan.  MM04 is 
proposed adding a new objective relating to the importance of land based 
industries and agriculture to the economic prosperity of the county.  This is 
important as it clarifies and supports the objectives of policies SS5, RA6 and 
E1. Policy SS1 sets out the presumption in favour of sustainable development.

19. The spatial strategy builds upon the existing settlement pattern with most new 
housing and employment directed towards the city of Hereford, the largest 
settlement in the county where many of the major services and facilities are 
located.  Leominster, the county’s second main market town, will also be the    
focus of large scale strategic housing development in recognition of its 
economic importance and good public transport links.  Development in the 
smaller, most sustainable, market towns, reflects their roles, needs, 
opportunities and development constraints and will assist in meeting the aims 
of the plan.  Herefordshire is a mainly rural county and in recognition of the 
dispersed settlement pattern almost a third of the all housing is directed 
through small scale development towards villages in rural areas.  The Council’s 
studies [C30, C31, C32] indicates that this is a reasonable approach, as it will 
help to sustain and develop rural services and communities, and meet 
identified local need.  The infrastructure required to support growth 
throughout the county has been considered in the Infrastructure Delivery Plan
[C29] and this is addressed in more detail later in this report.  

20. One of the key strategic provisions of the CS is to locate new housing for 
Hereford and the market towns on large green field UEAs (Urban Expansion 
Area) and strategic sites recognising that the SHLAA and other studies [B20g, 
C25a and C30] show there is insufficient capacity on brownfield land to meet 
needs. Although large strategic sites can take some time to deliver the 
quantity of housing sought, this is a long term approach for the plan period, 
which has been carefully considered throughout preparation of the Plan, 
looking at the SHLAA, other options and all reasonable alternatives, and 
following appropriate consultation. The large scale sites offer long term co-
ordinated growth, where social and transport infrastructure meeting the needs 
of the new residents can be delivered in a comprehensive manner.  The same 
conclusions would not apply to a more dispersed pattern of new housing 
growth incorporating smaller schemes across the county. The Council has 
demonstrated through the SHLAA, SA and consideration of other sites put

25



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

8

forward following consultation of the Draft CS/preferred options stages of the 
plan, that the location of the strategic sites has been carefully considered over 
a long period of time, in line with national policy and guidance.  Other sites put 
forward were less sustainable, were of greater landscape sensitivity, had 
greater infrastructure demands or were not preferred by locals, and those in 
the plan are, therefore, the best options for the county.      

21. The impacts and the benefits of the approach have been addressed in the 
evidence and I am satisfied that the CS represents a reasonable and 
pragmatic spatial strategy for Herefordshire over the next 20 years in order to 
achieve the sustainable growth objectives of the plan.

Is there sufficient information in the plan to guide development and does the 
plan leave critical decisions to other documents?

22. Larger, strategic sites - UEAs and sustainable urban extensions (SUEs) - are 
identified by broad locations in the plan with no site boundary and they are 
not precise allocations.  Whilst I was initially concerned that there was 
insufficient detail to identify and bring forward sites, it became clear during 
the examination that there was considerable owner/developer interest in the 
strategic sites and the Housing Land Supply position statement (March 2014)
showed that many had progressed to a pre-application stage.  In addition, 
each of the sites has a specific policy related to it, identifying the approximate 
quantum of the various uses, with more details to be provided, if necessary, 
by a masterplan.  The CS policies retain a degree of flexibility whilst giving 
sufficient detail at this strategic stage to assist in bringing forward the key 
sites.  As the anticipated development will come forward throughout the plan 
period including the middle/late period, I am satisfied that the plan gives 
sufficient certainty and clarity at this stage to facilitate development. 

23. While the strategic sites are identified, the location of the remaining smaller 
scale sites for houses and employment for the market towns and rural villages 
will mostly be established through neighbourhood plans (NP).  In this respect 
the Council have made good progress, and the Neighbourhood Planning 
Update [PS47] showed that four of the five market towns and between 65 –
75% of the rural villages identified for growth in the process of producing their 
own plans at the time of the hearing.  The trajectory shows that some of these 
plans could be at the submission stage by April 2016.  The CS identifies where 
Development Plan Documents (DPDs) will be prepared by the Council for areas 
not covered by NPs. MM02 adds a necessary commitment and monitoring 
timescale to bring forward sites in the rural area in a Rural Area Site Allocation 
Development Plan Document where there is no NP forthcoming.

24. MM02 also sets out that all of the policies in the Plan are strategic in that they 
contribute to the strategic aims of the CS.  While representors were concerned 
that this would reduce flexibility for NPs, I agree that each of the policies in 
the Plan delivers one of the strategic priorities in the NPPF.  There is no 
evidence to demonstrate that any of the policies are unrelated to these, or 
that NPs would be unduly restricted in their remit. MM02 is necessary in the 
interests of clarity and to assist in the NP process, consistent with the aim of 
NPPF paragraph 16 that NPs should support the strategic development needs 
of the plan.

26



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

9

25. Overall, the spatial strategy is consistent with national policy and guidance 
and is based on a sound and thorough analysis of the current situation in the 
county, as demonstrated in the comprehensive and detailed evidence base.

Issue 2 – Whether the approach to the provision of housing is positively 
prepared, is appropriate to the needs of the area is soundly based and 
consistent, with national policy?

Objectively assessed needs for housing and the housing target

26. Herefordshire is a relatively self-contained county and there is a consensus 
that the county boundary broadly represents a single strategic market housing 
area.  There is no evidence of unmet need from other local authorities and I 
am satisfied that evidence set out in the West Midlands Strategic Housing 
Market Area 2009 (SHMA), the Herefordshire Local Housing Market 
Assessment 2013 (HLMA) [C26] demonstrates this. Although the SHMA dates 
from 2009, the evidence has been reviewed in both the HLMA and the 
Council’s Local Housing Requirements Study (LHRS) 2014 [J3].

27. Policy SS2 seeks the delivery of a minimum of 16,500 homes in Herefordshire 
in the plan period which equates to 825 dwellings per annum (dpa).  The 
Council’s evidence base for housing provision is set out in the LHMA. The 
update uses the standard methodology for determining housing need set out 
in Planning Practice Guidance (PPG).

28. The 2014 study arrives at an Objectively Assessed Need (OAN) for 
Herefordshire of between 15,400 and 16,200 (770 – 810 dpa) homes over the 
plan period. The lower end of 15,400 is based on the Office of National 
Statistics (ONS) 2012-based Sub-National Population Projections. The official
2008-based projections indicate household growth of 714 homes per annum; 
whilst the 2011-based interim projections indicate a need for 801 homes per 
annum.  Looking at projected growth and household formation rate trends, the 
2014 LHRS concludes that a part return to the 2008 projection would be 
appropriate, leading to a figure of around 735 households per year.

29. The LHRS takes into account long term migration trends, market signals, 
household formation rates, rate of development and demand, commuting 
rates and includes an allowance for vacant and second homes (informed by 
the 2011 census). Some small upward adjustments are made to the figures in 
the light of these factors, but generally, they have a limited impact on the 
range set out in the DCLG projected figures. 

30. The LHRS looks at a range of economic growth projections including studies 
showing some 7,500 to around 9,000 new jobs are forecast using Experion 
and Oxford economics trend data (sensitivity tested with the higher spring 
2014 figures) and this indicates that a higher level of housing might be 
necessary to support growth in employment [J3, section 3].  A range of 
scenarios have been modelled with a prediction of some 721 – 775 dpa to be 
necessary to meet housing need associated with economic growth. The 
economic policies of the plan have been considered with a focus on improving 
and promoting employment and an uplift to 16,200 homes which is higher 
than the modelled figures would appear sufficient to meet housing associated
with economic growth. Representors suggest a cautious approach to the 

27



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

10

figure in the light of the Marches Local Enterprise Plan’s higher predicted 
growth.  

31. The Marches Local Enterprise Partnership’s Strategic Economic Plan
(LHRS)[J3] identifies a higher number of potential jobs in the LEP area,
pointing to areas such as the service sector, tourism and leisure where there 
are opportunities for growth. However, it covers three LPAs and the Plan does 
not make clear how the jobs could be split within the Local Authorities covered 
by the Marches LEP, including how many are thought to be needed in 
Herefordshire. Whilst I am satisfied that the Council’s estimate is reasonable 
and justified, the final housing figure of 16,500 (825 dpa) has included an 
upward adjustment to cope with potentially greater employment growth 
should this arise.     

Affordable housing 

32. The LHMA considers the levels of need and supply of affordable housing. This 
takes account of information on housing costs and earnings, as well as the 
numbers of households and flows onto the housing register.  A total affordable 
housing need for 3,457 homes is identified across Herefordshire over the 
2012-17 period.  This is equivalent to 691 dpa.  The LHRS realistically 
indicates that having regard to the demographic and employment led 
projections, previous rates for the provision of affordable housing and the 
viability of new development in Herefordshire, building affordable homes at 
rate of 691dpa is highly unlikely to be achieved.    

33. If the current need is distributed over the plan period to 2031, the annual 
housing need would fall to 369 homes per annum (2012-2031). Although it 
increases the time over which the affordable housing need would be met it is a 
more realistic assumption of what could be achieved.  The study makes further 
adjustments to take into account concealed households and household 
formation rates (to see if they recover in the longer term).  An adjustment is 
made to improve affordability (responding to market signals), and the LHRS
reasonably concludes that the top end of 16,200 (810dpa) would help to meet 
the affordable housing need over the plan period.

34. However, a further upward adjustment is proposed to take into account the 
possibility of a greater economic uplift than forecast and this would help to
increase the supply of affordable housing.  The LHRS demonstrates that an 
overall figure of 16,500 (an uplift of between 2 – 7%) would boost the supply 
of housing and is a robust figure for the housing target.

35. During the course of the examination DCLG released the 2012-based 
household projections (published in February 2015). The projections indicate 
a more modest growth in households; the projections equating to household 
need of 14,200 homes (710 dpa) over the 2011-31 plan period.  As the figures 
post-date the 2014 LHRS, the Council re-assessed the 2012 projections 
against all previous assumptions.  They concluded that the latest household 
projections were not so dissimilar as to warrant a change to the OAN or net 
final housing figure.  I am satisfied that retaining the housing target of 16,500 
would be appropriate, and the target figure would be realistic and sufficient to 
provide for housing needs in Herefordshire.

28



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

11

36. In addition, to assist with the provision of affordable housing and boost the 
supply of housing for Hereford, the market towns and the rural areas within 
the CS are subject to MMs expressing them as a minimum.  Settlement 
boundaries are to be defined in the NPs and DPDs for Hereford and Bromyard 
and the CS takes a positive approach to encourage housing development.   

37. Policy H1 sets thresholds and targets for affordable housing for new 
development. The policy identifies a range of 25-40% of affordable housing 
varying between different areas in the county taking into account the housing 
needs of the different market areas and the viability of development.  This is 
justified by the LHMA, the Rural Area Issues Paper and the whole plan viability 
assessment.  The percentages sought for the strategic sites reflect the levels 
set out in policy H1.

38. A new national threshold for affordable housing was introduced in a written 
ministerial statement (WMS) in November 2014. MM042 modified the 
submission plan policy H1 threshold to that of the WMS setting a new 
threshold of sites of more than 10 dwellings which have a maximum floor 
space of more than 1000 square metres. However, following a judgment in
the High Court on 31 July 2015 (West Berkshire District Council and Reading 
Borough Council v Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 
[2015] EWHC 2222 (Admin) the High Court issued a Declaration Order on
4 August 2015 confirming that for various reasons the policies in the WMS 
must not be treated as a material consideration.  

39. While the WMS thresholds no longer carry weight, the examination of the CS 
was based on the modified policy.  The modified threshold formed the basis of 
supplementary evidence considering viability (Herefordshire viability testing 
supplementary report Feb 2015) the effect on the provision of affordable 
housing throughout the county and was consulted upon. The policy, as 
modified would be effective and bring forward affordable housing, although 
less so in the rural areas than the submission policy.  However, as the 
submission policy was not tested during the examination I find MM042
necessary to ensure that the Plan has a viable and sound affordable housing 
policy.   If the Council wish to return to the submission policy they have the 
option of carrying out an early Plan review for policy H1.

40. There has been low housing growth in Herefordshire since at least 2008 as set 
out in the LHRS [J3] and the percentage of affordable housing identified in 
policy H1 is the result of balancing affordable housing against other strategic  
aims of the plan, including the development of large sites and associated 
social and transport infrastructure.  In the circumstances, the approach to 
affordable housing is the reasonable and realistic and will bring forward much 
needed affordable housing.  

Mix and range of houses (other than affordable housing)

41. Policy H3 would bring forward the type and range of housing to meet local 
needs, providing a flexible and responsive approach.  This is supported by a
number of documents. MM044 adds necessary details to the policy explaining 
how it would be applied to make it effective.  The NPs and Development Plan 
Documents for Hereford, Bromyard and the Rural Areas would also have
appropriate policies to address the issues of type and mix of new homes for 

29



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

12

specific areas.  MM06 adds a reference to the explanatory text for policy SS2 
explaining how individual or group self-build projects would be supported to 
comply with national guidance. MM03 adds clarity on Community Right to 
Build.

Traveller sites

42. At the time of the examination there were 34 Gypsy and Traveller sites with a
total of 114 pitches, four tolerated sites with 21 pitches [PS55a]. The 
submission CS does not identify five years’ worth of sites for travellers against 
locally set targets. However, alongside the CS the Council is preparing a
Traveller’s Sites Development Plan Document [PS4b] which they commit to 
producing quickly.  The LDS (2015) [PS5] shows adoption in 2016 to ensure 
that it would not lag far behind the CS.  The issues and options version and SA 
[PS4c] has been out to consultation and the Council are in the process of 
identifying land.  They provided evidence of cross boundary co-operation on 
the document [PS40] and an up-to-date and comprehensive draft Traveller 
and Showperson Accommodation Assessment was completed in February 2015 
[PS55a/b], as part of the evidence base for the Traveller Sites DPD.  This 
showed that from 2014 to the end of the plan period some 33 traveller 
pitches, 8 showperson plots and 3 transit pitches would be needed. This has 
yet to be examined, but a five year land supply for traveller sites would be 
identified in the document as well as deliverable sites for the next 15 years.

43. To ensure that the Council can meet the needs of travellers until the DPD is 
adopted, policy H4 for travellers’ sites is modified by MM045.  The 
modification deletes all restrictive or prescriptive wording and introduces a 
supportive policy.  The MM makes clear that planning applications do not have 
to provide evidence of need.  The MM introduces criteria which seek to ensure 
that sites are appropriate for travellers by enabling mixed uses and promoting
sites with good access to facilities.  The MM is necessary to make the policy 
effective and sound.  Policies H4 and Policy H2 enable small sites to be used 
specifically for affordable traveller’s accommodation, to be considered as rural 
exceptions in small rural communities.

44. The Council had made reasonable progress with the DPD at the time of the 
hearing, and policy H4 is flexible and positively worded.  Nevertheless, the
Council must make the submission and adoption of a Travellers’ Site DPD a 
key priority in order to plan effectively for the needs of the travelling 
community and meet the requirements of National Planning Policy for Traveller 
Sites and comply with the Public Sector Equality Duty. Although the lack of 
sites within the CS is not ideal, holding up the CS at this stage for completion 
of the DPD would delay major development coming forward on the strategic 
sites, and, because the Travellers’ Sites DPD is identified to come forward 
soon the Council’s approach would be reasonable.

45. Overall, the approach to the provision of housing is consistent with national 
policy and guidance, is based on a sound and thorough analysis of the current 
situation in the county, as demonstrated in the comprehensive and detailed 
evidence base.

30



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

13

Issue 3 - Whether the approach towards the supply and delivery of 
housing land is positively prepared, effective and consistent with national 
policy?

Housing land supply targets and the five year housing land supply

46. The spatial/development strategy rightly seeks to steer the majority of 
development to the key settlements and strategic sites which would provide 
access to jobs, services and public transport.  The distribution of new housing 
and development proposed is appropriate, given the economies of 
scale/concentration of new infrastructure that is likely to assist delivery, 
particularly of the strategic sites.  In recognition of the longer lead in times for 
the SUEs/UEAs and larger strategic sites, which could provide around a third 
of the housing, it is clear that more homes will be delivered in the middle and 
late stages of the plan. The CS indicative trajectory for expected completions 
shows a greater proportion of homes being delivered later on in the plan 
period. To address this, the Council considered various options in the Revised 
Preferred Option Background Paper [B6b].  The CS proposes a stepped 
housing target (reflecting the expected delivery rates) of 600 dpa for the first 
five years of the plan (2011-2016), 850 dpa for years 6-10 (2016-2021), 900 
dpa for years 11-15 (2021-2026) and 950 dpa for years 16-20 (2026-2031) as 
a means of addressing this in relation to delivery targets.  I consider that a 
stepped target would be a likely and not unexpected consequence of this 
approach.

47. In addition, figures show that the market has been depressed with a shortfall 
of over 900 dwellings as of April 2014 identified in the Housing Land Supply 
document of October 2014 [PS1a].  Although there has been significant 
increase in the land supply position during 2014 – 2015 and increase in 
housing, delivery would take some time to achieve. The target figures do not 
seek to constrain development which should come forward as soon as 
possible, but I accept that the stepped target would be realistic and a sound 
basis for monitoring and assessing land supply (including the five year housing 
land supply) throughout the plan period.  In accordance with paragraph 47 of 
the NPPF to boost the supply of housing, a buffer of 20% would be appropriate
for Herefordshire as there was a consensus that under delivery had been 
persistent from at least 2008 set out in the LHRS and housing position papers 
[PS1a and b]. To make clear the approach to the 5 year housing land supply, 
I have added wording to this effect to MM07.

48. During the examination the Council updated its position on the five year 
housing supply with the Update to Herefordshire Local Plan – Core Strategy 
Five Year Housing Land Supply, March 2015 [PH1]. The five year supply date 
was taken to be April 2014 (a reasonable date as the hearings took place in 
February 2015) – 31 March 2019.  The stepped targets for these years were 
added together.  The shortfall was added to the stepped target figure.  
Applying the 20% buffer (to the target plus the shortfall), a five year housing 
land supply could be demonstrated, albeit it with less than 5.5 years supply
(see figure below). In this calculation the shortfall is spread over the five year 
housing period.

31



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

14

Extract from the Council’s Housing Land Supply Position Statement March 2015:
This figure shows that with an indicative trajectory target and the shortfall being 
addressed over the forthcoming five years there would be a five year supply of housing 
land in the county:
A Core Strategy 2011 – 2031 16500
B Core Strategy requirement 1800 Using indicative trajectories: 1/4/2011 – 1/4/2014 600 dpa
C Homes Completed (net) 873 Net reduction includes demolitions and conversions 1/4/2011 –
31/3/2014
D Requirement for next five years 4000 using trajectories 15/16 – 600 pa (1yr) 16/17 – 19/20 
– 850 pa (4yrs)
E Plus Residual Shortfall 927 (over next five years as per PPG)
F Plus 20% buffer 985 added after shortfall
G Total Requirement 5912
H Annualised requirement 1182
I Total Deliverable dwellings 6201
J Housing Supply 5.24yrs

49. The Council’s preferred option is to spread the shortfall over the plan period
which would, in addition to a stepped target, add a further delay to the 
provision of homes and would not be a proactive approach. Therefore, I
conclude that for the CS to be positively prepared and for the five year 
housing land supply to be effective, the shortfall should be spread across the 
five year period. This approach would be consistent with the advice in the 
PPG.

50. Details of deliverable sites are contained with the Update to Herefordshire 
Local Plan – Core Strategy Five Year Housing Land Supply [PH1] March 2015 
document. Their assessment complies with advice in the PPG about whether 
sites are deliverable. The sites include the CS strategic housing sites where 
they can make a contribution, sites with planning permission or a resolution to 
grant planning permission, assessment of NP sites (based on the SHLAA, 
emerging NP allocations and an assessment of deliverability), previously 
allocated sites where they are considered deliverable, past housing 
completions and a windfall allowance.  The windfall allowance is justified by a 
figures from past monitoring reports [B21a-f] showing a consistent level of 
windfalls throughout the county over many years.  The HLS provides 
information about the UEAs and SUEs, including ownership and progress 
towards submitting a planning application, and there is convincing information 
that these sites could start to deliver housing within the 5 year period. 

51. The five year housing land supply (PH1) is marginal but realistic and to 
maintain this position the Council will have to closely monitor the sites shown 
on the indicative trajectory to deliver housing within the five year period, with 
appropriate action taken if the supply appears at risk.  The way this will be 
undertaken to be effective is addressed in the paragraphs below. 

Delivery

52. The  reliance on larger sites coming forward later in the plan period is not 
without risk, particularly of delay in timing and the consequential failure to 
deliver the number of houses within the plan period. In this respect, one of 
the main concerns with the submitted Plan was the relationship between the 
supply and delivery of the strategic sites, critical infrastructure and/or the 

32



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

15

impact on the environment. The CS identified three significant areas of risk: 
the proposed Hereford Relief Road (HRR); water infrastructure and the effect 
on the River Wye Special Area of Conservation (SAC).

53. Hereford Relief Road. The plan identifies a new strategic road, the Hereford 
Relief Road, to be built to the west of the city to ensure there is capacity and 
mitigate the effect of transport on the town centre and the A49 trunk road 
which runs through Hereford, from the three Hereford UEAs (HD3, HD4 and 
HD5) and the Hereford City centre development (HD1 and HD2). There is 
support for the approach from Highways England and it is likely that funding 
towards the HRR would come forward through developer contributions where 
appropriate, and the HRR may be delivered during the plan period.

54. However, the HRR is not identified in the Council’s Local Transport Plan [C46a]
as planned infrastructure, the funding is not secure and it is not part of 
Highways England (HE) Road Investment Strategy for 2015 – 2020
(Statement of Common Ground between the Council and HE). The route has 
not been modelled or identified in detail and there is a high degree of 
uncertainty about whether the HRR is viable and can be achieved within the 
plan period.  A key consideration for soundness of the plan is, therefore, 
whether the substantial growth identified for Hereford is deliverable.  

55. Water Infrastructure. D r Cymru Welsh Water (DCWW), statutory undertakers 
providing water and sewerage infrastructure, make clear that the existing 
infrastructure would not be sufficient to cope with the identified growth across 
the county.  However, over the plan period DCWW indicate that their 
investment programmes, in combination with improvements 
funded/undertaken by developers could provide the required infrastructure.
The whole plan viability study 2014 satisfactorily addresses the implications 
for housing development identified in the Plan and the role of the developer;
nevertheless, a co-ordinated approach with DCWW is required as set out in the 
Statement of Common Ground and other studies [C50a, PS57 and PS59]and
this could affect the timing and the deliverability of sites.

56. River Wye SAC. The River Wye SAC is vulnerable to phosphate loading which 
could come from an increased flow of sewage into the rivers from a growth in 
housing in Leominster and the rural areas and from the location and 
construction of the HRR (place shaping policies LO1, LO2, RA1, RA2, RA6 and
HD3). A Nutrient Management Plan November 2014 (NMP) [C51] has been 
produced by Natural England and the Environment Agency who have worked 
with the Council during preparation of the CS to manage planned growth and
the effect on the SAC. The HRA May 2014 (updated in September 2014) [A5] 
concluded that an appropriate assessment (AA) was necessary and this was 
undertaken as part of the 2014 HRA.  This concluded that having regard to 
mitigation measures required by CS place shaping and general policies,
delivered in-combination with the measures set out in the NMP that there 
would not be an adverse effect on the integrity of the SAC from the plan as a 
whole.

57. The AA[A5] conclusions on the SAC are based on delivery rates set out in the 
trajectory for the achievement of the total housing target, and the related 
water cycle study, including water infrastructure improvements. At this stage 
the evidence shows that there would be no adverse effect; however, the level 

33



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

16

of phosphates could be influenced throughout the plan period by a wide range 
of factors other than the Planned CS development.  Although the NMP is an 
on-going programme addressing changes, the NPs and local area DPDs would 
require separate HRA’s as would any planning applications for the Hereford 
Relief Road and development coming forward in Leominster and the rural 
areas. The financial implications for mitigation have been satisfactorily
assessed in the whole plan viability study; nevertheless a co-ordinated 
approach with DCWW, EA and NE is required and this could affect the timing 
and the deliverability of sites.

58. The submission Plan policy SS3 sought to deal with the identified risks to the 
delivery of housing; however, the policy was worded in a negative way which 
would prevent or delay development if the critical infrastructure/mitigation 
measures were not in place. In addition, intervention strategies to address 
any delay were unclear and there was a lack of a site specific indicative 
trajectory, or targets and dates to monitor the delivery of development.  The
policy was unsound as it introduced a significant level of uncertainty about
when and if the required housing could be delivered.

59. In order to ensure that the approach to supply, delivery and monitoring is 
sound taking into account the aforementioned factors MM07 and MM065 (in 
part) introduces a combination of measures enabled by a new policy to 
effectively monitor progress and take action necessary to ensure the delivery 
of the housing target.  

60. Firstly, it introduces an appendix (5) to the Plan with a table identifying the 
necessary infrastructure, including links to the NMP, for each strategic site,
and the date by which it is required. It identifies by number the amount of 
housing that can go ahead before the infrastructure becomes critical; it sets 
out a programme and key progressions points for the critical infrastructure so 
that progress can be monitored and it identifies what action will be taken if the
delivery of infrastructure fails to progress as expected. Secondly, MM07 and
MM065 introduce a revised, comprehensive trajectory (appendix 4) identifying 
all of the strategic sites, housing projected to come forward through NPs and 
local DPDs, and windfalls, against delivery for each year sufficient to meet the 
housing target of 16,500.  Finally, a re-worded policy SS3 makes a 
commitment to annual monitoring against the revised housing trajectory, 
including the production of a policy monitoring document.  It links a 
commitment to take action if critical infrastructure does not come forward as 
expected and it identifies measures to be undertaken if the housing falls below 
the projected target in any one year including identifying further land.  

61. I am satisfied that this is a positive and flexible approach and the MMs are
necessary to ensure that development can go ahead where it meets the plan 
policies, that there is always a forward looking monitoring process to identify 
problems with the critical infrastructure programme long in advance of any 
difficulties arising and appropriate action can be taken to ensure targets are 
met.   

62. Overall, the approach to the supply and delivery of housing is consistent with 
national policy and guidance, is based on a sound and thorough analysis of the 
current situation in the county, as demonstrated in the comprehensive and 
detailed evidence base.

34



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

17

Issue 4 - Whether the approach to movement and transport is positively 
prepared, justified, effective and consistent with national policy?

63. SS4 – movement and Transport, is a positively worded policy reflecting the 
NPPF aim of promoting sustainable transport and facilitating sustainable 
development.  It sits alongside and supports the wider CS approach to 
directing most development in the county to Hereford and the market towns to 
reduce unsustainable travel patterns.  The policy identifies major transport 
infrastructure sought during the life of the plan as identified in a range of 
transport studies [C43a  C47b].  The Edgar Street Grid Link Road is at an 
advanced stage and will support development of Hereford city centre.  The 
HRR is mentioned, but I have dealt with the uncertainty of its delivery in the 
previous section of this report.  Notwithstanding this, inclusion of the HRR in 
the policy would not be unsound as it remains a valid aim of the Council to 
bring this forward when possible as a means of improving the local transport 
network.  Other infrastructure projects including the Leominster Relief road 
and park and choose/ride schemes would come forward as part of the 
development criteria of the UEAs/SUEs.  MM08 clarifies the wording of the 
policy, identifies the role of NPs, adds that contributions must meet the 
statutory tests and sets out partner organisations involved in implementation 
of the policy in order for the policy to be effective.

64. General policy MT1 – traffic management, highway safety and promoting 
active travel, sets out criteria, based on a range of supporting documents, to 
ensure that the effect of traffic on the network and highway safety is 
minimised and mitigated where necessary.  MM049 adds a reference to the 
use of travel plans to encourage active travel behaviour and clarifies some of 
the wording to make the policy effective.  

65. Overall, the approach to the transport and movement has been positively 
prepared and is consistent with national policy and guidance.

Issue 5 - Whether the approach to employment is positively prepared,
justified, effective and consistent with national policy?

66. The submitted Core Strategy policy SS5 seeks to provide 148 hectares (ha) of 
employment over the plan period at an average of 7.4ha per annum with a 
continuous supply of 37ha over a five year period.  This was based on the 
Employment Land Study (ELS) 2012 [C6a] which updated the earlier 
Employment Land Provision Background Paper Revised version March 2009 
considering options based upon labour demand projections and past trends.  

67. There is no direct link between job numbers and employment in the CS.  
However, the HLRS makes clear that adjustments made to the past trend 
figures together with the aforementioned employment growth would ensure
that the CS target of 148ha would be sufficient to meet employment needs
during the plan period.

68. The Annual Land Monitoring Report 2014 [PS6] shows that some 61.5ha is 
available from recent planning permissions, with new strategic sites within or 
adjacent to Hereford, Leominster, Ledbury and Ross-on-Wye providing a

35



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

18

further 50ha. The new employment sites have been subject to the Economic 
Land Viability Assessment and whole plan viability test [C8] and there are no 
physical constraints that would prevent the sites coming forward. The ELS 
shows that with continuing investment at Rotherwas, a large business park to 
the southeast of Hereford (designated as Enterprise Zone), sufficient land 
would be available to achieve the overall target.  The Plan commits to a 
regular 3 – 5 year review of the ELS and identification of further land through 
either a Plan review or a further DPD if necessary. MM010 is necessary to 
make the policy effective as it links monitoring and review of the employment 
provision in policy SS5 to a new appendix (6), which provides the details and 
timescales for delivery.

69. Although there is some uncertainty about employment land coming forward 
toward the end of the plan period, the ELS shows that there is a good range 
and quantity of employment land in the county mostly focussed on the 
existing urban areas, particularly Hereford and there are a number of larger 
rural employment sites outside of existing settlements where further 
employment land could be focussed.

70. The type of employment use is not limited in the CS for the strategic sites 
(unless there is a site specific reason for doing so) nor are densities or plot 
ratios specified, in order to provide flexibility, choice and a locally responsive 
approach. Moreover, both the ELS and the HLRS predict that service sector 
jobs and agricultural diversity will represent the greatest increase and these 
would not necessarily be on identified employment land.  In this regard MM09
adds a sentence to the explanatory paragraphs for policy SS5 recognising and 
supporting small business. The SA of the Pre-Submission Publication (May 
2014) [A4] indicates that Policy SS5 (Employment Provision) is likely to have a 
significant positive effect on employment, skills and the sustainable economy 
by supporting the provision of an appropriate quantum of employment land.

71. Policy SS5 is supported by general policies E1, E2, E3 and E4 which set out the 
way in which the Council will consider planning applications for new 
employment provision, criteria for when the loss of employment land may be 
acceptable, matters to be considered for homeworking and the promotion of 
tourism. MM050 and MM051 are necessary to remove figures and 
information from the explanatory text which are out of date and introduce 
changes to wording of the policy E2 to clarify the Council’s approach.  MM052
removes overly prescriptive text to policy E4 to ensure it is flexible. The MMs 
are necessary to make the policies effective and consistent with the NPPF. 

72. Overall, the approach to the provision of employment is based on a sound and 
thorough analysis of the situation in the county, as demonstrated in the 
comprehensive evidence base and it is consistent with national policy and 
guidance.

Issue 6 - Whether the approach towards Town Centres and retail is 
justified, effective and consistent with national policy?

73. The CS identifies Hereford as a Sub Regional Shopping Centre, and the five 
towns in the county as Market Towns. Below this there are Local Shopping 
Centres and Neighbourhood Shopping Centres. The Town Centres Update 
Study 2012 [C41] indicates that the hierarchy of centres continues to reflect

36



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

19

their role and function in the county. The study identifies relatively modest 
need for retail space in the Market Towns which would not warrant strategic 
locations, and which could be accommodated within existing retail areas.

74. In Hereford the study demonstrates that because of the new shopping centre 
and regeneration programme in the city centre, additional retail floor space is 
unlikely to be needed until towards the end of the Plan period.  The Hereford 
Area Plan DPD (HAP) will enable proposals to be advanced and sites to be 
identified to meet long term retail needs. There would be a need to provide 
appropriate local convenience facilities to serve the needs of the UEAs and this 
would be achieved through the place shaping policies for the strategic sites.
Although the Plan encourages leisure and other town centre uses there is no 
identified need for sites to be allocated within the plan period.  

75. General policies E5 and E6 provide the framework for determining proposals 
for town centres for all town centre uses. The CS aim is for Hereford and the 
Market Towns to be the focus for retail developments. In this respect, studies 
show that relatively small scale out of town development has affected the 
market towns [representor 149], and MM053 reduces the threshold for the 
requirement for any retail, leisure or office development outside of the town 
centre (and not in accordance with the Plan) to provide an impact assessment.
The modifications are carried through to the place shaping policies and other
policies where thresholds are referred to throughout the CS. Although the 
threshold is significantly below that suggested in the NPPF, it is necessary to 
better reflect local circumstances, encourage a more sustainable approach in 
terms of transport and assists overarching aim of policy E6 for development to 
contribute and enhance the vitality and viability of town centres.

76. The submission Plan contained town centre maps which were unclear in terms 
of both their evidence base and appearance.  In order for the retail policies to 
be effective MM015, MM022, MM024, MM027, MM030 and MM035 are 
necessary for soundness of approach, deleting the town centre maps for 
Hereford, Bromyard, Kington, Ledbury, Leominster and Ross-on-Wye.  The 
MMs indicate that the town centre boundaries will be established in the HAP, 
Bromyard DPD and NPs where a robust evidence base will be established.  In 
the meantime the Unitary Development Plan maps (with the exception of 
Hereford) are clear and reasonable.  However, in Hereford there have been 
significant changes within the town centre with large new shopping centre 
forming part of a wider regeneration scheme.  The HAP is programmed in the 
Local Development Scheme [A7] to come forward in winter 2016/17 where the
new town centre boundary will be established. There is a master-plan for the 
regeneration area, with clearly defined boundaries and I see no conflict or 
difficulty with implementation of the employment policies arising from this 
approach.  MM013 is necessary to make clear that the HAP will define the 
town centre boundary.

77. Overall, the approach to the provision of retail is consistent with national 
policy and guidance, is based on a sound and thorough analysis of the current 
situation in the county, as demonstrated in the comprehensive and detailed 
evidence base.

37



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

20

Issue 7 - Whether the approach towards the natural and built environment 
is justified, effective and consistent with national policy?

78. Overarching policy SS6 seeks development to conserve and enhance both the 
natural and built environment.  It lists a wide range of environmental 
components to be considered in the planning process to achieve the policy 
aim.   This is justified by a comprehensive evidence base, including heritage, 
townscape, landscape, biodiversity, geo-diversity and green infrastructure
studies.  MM011 makes the policy sound  by adding additional wording to 
clarify the components, explain the role of NPs, DPDs (in areas without NPs), 
and SPDs, in identifying local features, areas and sites defining local 
distinctiveness.  Importantly MM011 removes an inaccurate and misleading 
sentence relating to mitigation.  The modification also introduces additional 
wording to the supporting paragraph providing necessary information on the
role of Natural England’s conservation objectives for the SACs, Management 
Plans for the AONBs and SPDs and is necessary to make the policy sound.

79. General policies LD1, LD2, LD3 and LD4 support policy SS6.  These relate to 
landscape and townscape, biodiversity and geo-diversity, green infrastructure,
the historic environment and heritage assets respectively.  They set out in 
more detail how the environmental components in Policy SS6 would be 
considered in the planning process.  Although the overarching aims of the 
submission Plan policies are sound, their wording incorrectly reflected policy 
documents that preceded the NPPF.  In order to make the policies sound 
MM054, MM055, MMO56 and MM057 update the wording to ensure that 
the policy considerations reflect the NPPF rather than superseded documents.
MM05 to overarching housing policy SS2 updates the policy in a similar way 
ensuring the reference to character and beauty of the countryside reflects 
national policy. 

80. Policy SS7 addresses climate change. The supporting text recognises that this 
is a complex issue where government legislation may change and the 
measures identified would constantly be reviewed.  The policy does not make 
reference to standards but sets out broad principles such as seeking 
development to be focussed in sustainable locations.  It seeks pro-active 
strategies to be put forward to mitigate and adapt to climate change.  MM012
makes the policy sound by changing wording to better reflect the NPPF,
including removing unnecessary and over-prescriptive detail. 

81. SD1 relates to sustainable design and energy efficiency setting out a range of 
general principles that developments are required to consider. MM058
removes unnecessarily prescriptive measures and simplifies text to ensure the 
policy is consistent with the provisions of the NPPF. The modification also 
alters explanatory paragraph to reflect the changes and is necessary to make 
the policy sound.

82. In a written ministerial statement (WMS) on 18 June 2015, the Secretary of 
State for Communities and Local Government set out new considerations to be 
applied to proposed wind energy development.  The submitted CS policy SD2 
was not consistent with the WMS in its promotion of wind energy 
development. MM067 imposes a separate paragraph in the policy, replicating 

38



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

21

the WMS criteria for consideration of wind energy development.   It adds a 
paragraph to the explanatory text indicating that the Council will consider 
whether to identify suitable areas for wind energy through future development 
plan documents.  MM067 is necessary to ensure that the policy is consistent 
with national guidance in enabling local residents to have a greater say in 
future development. MM059 removes prescriptive tests relating to targets 
for renewable and low carbon energy which is necessary to introduce a 
flexible, more site specific approach. The modifications would make the policy 
sound. MM060 clarifies and defines the sequential test in an extra paragraph 
to make the policy and its requirements clear.  

83. In a WMS on 25th March 2015, the Secretary of State for Communities and 
Local Government set out new arrangements for the consideration of Housing 
Standards in the planning system.  New additional optional Building 
Regulations on water and access and on space standards are described which 
can complement existing, mandatory Building Regulations.  MM066 deletes
reference to residential development meeting Code for Sustainable Homes 
(Code) level 5 for water efficiency (seeking 80 litres per person per day) which 
was withdrawn by the WMS. However, the Council has worked closely with 
 !"#$%&'()%*"% #+,"%-./#01 2(13#$%,31%4#1%4#56(#7.*(2#8"39!#81 "(#:!)#
support the approach of water efficiency standards to assist the management 
of nutrients in the River Wye SAC.  Although the national optional standard 
(110 litres, per person, per day) introduced by the WMS is not as challenging
a requirement as Code level 5, there is evidence in the Water Cycle Studies 
[C50a and PS57] that it would contribute towards the management of 
nutrients. MM066 replaces the requirement for Code level 5 with the national 
technical standard.  There would be no significant implication for the NMP.  It 
would have a lower impact on viability and would not affect delivery of new 
housing sought by the Plan. MM066 is necessary to ensure consistency with 
national policy by helping bring forward new homes whilst protecting the 
environment.

84. Overall, these policies would conserve and enhance the natural and built 
environment consistent with national policy and guidance.  They are based on 
a sound and thorough analysis of the current situation in the county, as 
demonstrated in the comprehensive and detailed evidence base.

Issue 8 - Whether general policies SC1, OS1, OS2, SD4 and OS3 are
justified, effective and consistent with national policy?

85. Policy SC1 relates to social and community facilities.  MM046 makes the 
policy sound by removing unnecessarily prescriptive text and adding a 
sentence relating to developer contributions to ensure that they can only be 
sought where they meet the relevant policy tests. The modification adds to the 
explanatory text to clarify the marketing criteria set out in the policy, ensuring 
that the policy would be effective. OS3 relates to loss of open space setting 
out principles that will be taken into account in development.  This is a clear 
and positively worded policy which is sound and no modifications are 
proposed.

86. Policies OS1 and OS2 relate to the requirement for open space, sports and 
recreation facilities.  MM047 removes prescriptive standards from policy OS1 
and makes associated changes to the explanatory text, reducing burdens and 

39



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

22

making the policy more flexible and site specific. MM048 removes out of date 
policy references from Policy OS2 and adds text to make the policy more 
flexible.  MM047 and MM048 are necessary to ensure consistency with the 
NPPF aim of a flexible and positively prepared Plan.

87. SD4 relates to wastewater and river water quality and is soundly based on a 
wide range of aforementioned studies and assessments including the Strategic 
Flood Risk Assessment addendum (Feb 2015)[PS58] the HRA [A5],
Statements of Common Ground between DCWW and the Council and the 
EA/NE and the Council, and the NMP [C51].  This is a positively worded and 
clear policy, identifying what information developers should provide and 
setting out measures that may be appropriate.  No modifications are 
necessary to this policy to make it sound.

Issue 9 - Whether the place shaping policies for Hereford, the market 
towns of Bromyard, Ledbury, Leominster, Kington and Ross-on-Wye is
effective and justified and consistent with national policy?

       Hereford place shaping policies

88. Hereford is the main service and economic centre, with the highest population 
in the county. The majority of new housing proposed for the county (6,500 
dwellings) would be accommodated in Hereford during the plan period with 
some 800 dwellings in the city centre (HD2), and some 2,500 dwellings in 
three urban expansion areas to the north, west and south of the city (HD4,
HD5 and HD6). Around 15 hectares of employment land would be provided at 
the western and southern UEAs. The location and quantity of development was 
arrived at following consideration of a range of options and studies, for both 
Hereford and the county as a whole. 

89. The Council is preparing the Hereford Area Plan DPD (HAP) expected in the 
LDS to be adopted in 2016/17, which together with neighbourhood plans
(where necessary) provide for the remaining housing and set out more 
detailed policies for the city centre. The SHLAA [C25a] shows that there is 
capacity within the city for the remaining dwellings.  The aforementioned 
MM014 deleted a reference to neighbourhood plans assisting in this process.
However, if there are changes to the Hereford settlement boundary in the HAP 
(which the Council advises is possible) it may cover some of the NP areas.  
Therefore, it is sensible to keep the reference to NP as this adds flexibility and 
I intend to amend the MM accordingly.  

90. Within the city centre the Eign Gate and Edgar Street regeneration project is 
underway with the creation of a large shopping area and urban village.  
MM015 adds to policy HD2 that “the majority” of the 800 new dwellings would 
be within the urban village, adding flexibility for the housing to be provided 
elsewhere in the city centre where there is capacity.  The modification deletes 
unnecessarily prescriptive text from the policy, provides greater clarity in both 
the policy and the explanatory text to make the policy sound. 

91. The CS recognises that the scale of development proposed in Hereford would 
place further demand on the city’s constrained transport network. However, 
the submission Plan policy HD3 relating to movement failed to emphasise the 
importance of achieving and promoting sustainable transport to help address 

40



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

23

demand.  MM016 adds text to the Hereford movement section to ensure that 
the focus of the policy, in line with the NPPF, is to facilitate sustainable 
transport.  The modification deletes over prescriptive wording relating to 
contributions which could be in conflict with the policy tests for planning 
obligations and clarifies that funding would be sought by a variety of 
mechanisms as appropriate.   The aforementioned Hereford Relief Road is 
identified as important infrastructure for Hereford.  MM016 deals with the 
uncertainty of delivery linking the policy to SS3 which deals with the 
relationship between critical infrastructure and delivery making the policy 
sound.

92. HD4, HD5 and HD6 identify broad locations for the UEAs, the location and size 
derived at from information in the SHLAA and following several SAs [A4, B13 –
B16c] of other alternatives and options as the plan progressed.  The policies
for the UEAs are criteria based setting out what development would be 
expected for each UEA, including access and infrastructure. MM017, MM018
and MM019 amend the wording of the policies HD4, HD5 and HD6 
respectively to ensure consistent terminology is used, add the word 
“minimum” to the housing targets, remove duplication, incorporate a link to 
policy SS3 relating to general infrastructure and monitoring. The MMs are 
necessary to make the policies effective and sound. No modifications were 
proposed to HD7 relating to employment provision in Hereford.  HD7, together 
with the aforementioned employment policies, would promote and encourage 
employment provision in Hereford.   

93. The whole plan viability test assessed the policies and their requirements and 
found them to be viable, and I conclude that the place shaping policies for 
Hereford are sound.  

Leominster place shaping policies

94. Leominster is the main centre in the north of the county with good transport 
links and the least constraints of the market towns.  MM028 updates the 
information in policy LO1 (the general policy identifying housing and 
employment targets for Leominster) and ensures terminology is consistent 
with the rest of the Plan.  The modification makes clear that the Leominster NP 
will identify the dwellings numbers not sought in the UEA. MM031 explains
the role of the Nutrient Management Plan, in line with policy SS3.   

95. A range of options for the location and quantity of housing was considered in 
the SA and earlier iterations [A4 and B13 – B16c] which justify the 
identification of a broad location for a large UEA (policy LO2) to the south west 
of the town to provide around 1,500 homes. The site is suitable and in a 
sustainable location [A4]. LO2 sets criteria for the development of the UEA
and MM028 and MM029 add the word “minimum” to the housing targets in 
policies LO1 and LO2, and alters the retail threshold to be consistent with 
other Plan policies and this makes the policy effective. MM030 adjusts retail 
floor space levels to be consistent with other policies in the CS to clarify the 
policy approach set out in LO2.

96. The whole plan viability test assessed the policies and their requirements and 
found them to be viable, and I conclude that the place shaping policies for 
Leominster are sound.  

41



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

24

Bromyard, Ledbury and Ross-on-Wye place shaping policies.

97. Bromyard, Ledbury and Ross-on-Wye are market towns of significance in the 
county.  The SA and aforementioned SA options and alternatives show that the 
quantity of housing and employment would be proportionate, having regard to 
the size of the towns and their environmental constraints.  The Plan identifies 
a Strategic Urban Extension (SUE) for each market town in a location which 
has been assessed in SA against all other reasonable options.  The whole plan 
viability test shows that the development requirements for the relevant SUEs
(policies BY2, LD2 and RW2) are achievable.  

98. MM020, MM021, MM025, MM026, MM032 and MM033 update the 
information in policies BY1 and BY2 for Bromyard, LD1 and LD2 for Ledbury
and RW1 and RW2 for Ross–on-Wye (and where necessary the associated 
text) to be consistent with the NPPF, add the word “minimum” to the housing 
target, and clarify the criteria for the SUEs to make the policies sound.

99. MM020 makes clear that Bromyard Town Council has decided not to produce a 
NP and that the Council will produce the Bromyard Development Plan (BPD) to 
identify sites for the remaining employment and housing sites not set out in 
the SUE. The LDS update (Feb 2015) [IN7] gives a timescale for Bromyard 
Development Plan for adoption in Winter 2016.  MM034 clarifies policy RW1 
ensuring that the monitoring of employment land in Ross-on-Wye would be 
linked with policy SS5 making it effective.

100.MM025 and MM032 make clear that Ledbury and Ross–on-Wye will produce a 
NP to identify sites for housing/employment land, not addressed in the SUE
policies.  For Ledbury SUE/UEA, the submission plan policy LD2 tied down the 
primary and secondary vehicular access to two specific roads.  This was too 
prescriptive given the early transport studies for the site.  MM025 deletes the 
primary and secondary references and I am satisfied that this would make the 
policy sound in that it would be more flexible and effective.  Further minor 
changes to the wording of the policy in terms of access suggested by the 
Council following responses to the main modifications would not be necessary 
for soundness and it would be up to the Council to impose them if they wish.

101.The whole plan viability test shows that the development requirements for the 
relevant SUEs (policies BY2, LD2 and RW2) are achievable and I conclude that 
the place shaping policies for Bromyard, Ledbury and Ross-on-Wye are sound.  

Kington place shaping policies

102.Kington is the smallest of the market towns with significant environmental and 
locational constraints [A4].  The quantity of housing would be proportionate 
but given the constraints there may be a need to reassess the SHLAA for 
Kington to ensure that its target of around 200 homes in the plan period could 
be achieved. MM023 clarifies policy KG1 identifying a NP as the means of 
allocating the land.  It updates the information in the policy and adds clarity to 
the criteria.  As Kington is an area where water infrastructure improvements 
are critical to delivery, MM023 adds information about the monitoring process
linking this to policy SS3.  The modifications make the place shaping policy for 

42



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

25

Kington sound.

103.Overall, the place shaping policies for Hereford, the market towns of 
Bromyard, Ledbury, Leominster, Kington and Ross-on-Wye are effective and 
justified and they would achieve sustainable development.

Issue 10 –Whether the approach to the rural areas is positively prepared, 
is appropriate to the needs of the area, is soundly based and consistent 
with national policy?

104.A key element of the spatial strategy is the allocation of some 5,300 homes to 
the rural area.  I have already concluded that strategic approach to the rural 
area relating to the quantity of housing is robust, and the SHLAA and Rural 
Housing Background Report 2013 [C30] shows that there is capacity within 
the villages and hamlets to achieve this. The rural area is diverse and the 
Rural Background Paper and the LHRS and the LHMA, provide robust evidence 
for the seven different market areas identified in the rural areas across the 
county and the approximate number of houses required based upon common 
housing market conditions.

105.However, each rural area has differing needs and requirements, and all sit 
within a rural landscape which must be recognised and respected.  Therefore,
a flexible and responsive approach is necessary to bring about the level of 
development sought by the Plan.   I had significant concerns about whether 
submission Plan policies RA1 which set out the general approach to the 
housing market areas (HMA) and policy RA2 which set out the approach to 
how the villages would achieve this. They were very prescriptive, and the 
approach to quantities for the housing market areas and villages was 
confusing and seemingly inflexible, and it appeared to restrict development 
numbers.  This left some uncertainty about the role of the NPs, the location of 
local housing and its overall delivery.

106.To make RA1 (and the associated explanatory text) sound MM036 makes 
clear that the proportionate growth sought from within each HMA would be 
indicative.  It adds that the indicative targets relate to the HMAs as a whole 
leaving flexibility for NPs to identify the most suitable housing sites.  It sets 
out that local evidence and environmental factors would inform the scale of 
development. It indicates that the overall figure of 5,300 is a minimum target 
and therefore the indicative figures are not meant to be read as a cap on
housing numbers. 

107.To make RA2 (and the associated explanatory text sound), MM037 clarifies 
the approach to be taken to the quantity and location of development. The 
submission Plan reasonably identifies the most sustainable villages within the 
HMAs capable of accommodating new housing based on a range of studies of 
the rural hierarchy and rural housing markets a [C30, C31 and C32]. Rather 
than be prescriptive MM037 replaces text within the policy to ensure that the 
minimum target growth will be used to inform the level of housing within the 
settlements and that NPs will allocate sites for housing accordingly.  It sets out 
a number of criteria followed through in the text to make the policy more 
responsive, having regard to the role and function of the settlement, housing 
type and landscape setting. The modification indicates that the Council are 
producing a Rural Areas Site Allocation DPD for parishes where there is no NP.  

43



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

26

The LDS Update (February 2015) [IN7] indicates that the timescale for 
adoption to be Autumn 2017.  MM043 changes wording in rural exception 
housing policy H3 to be consistent with changes to RA2. The MMs make the 
approach to the rural settlements much more flexible and give immediate 
guidance to developers about where new housing may be appropriate making 
the policy sound.

108.For development within the open countryside MM038 is necessary to add 
clarity to policy RA3 setting out where it would apply in order for it to be 
effective.  It deletes over prescriptive text from the explanatory paragraphs to 
update the CS in line with the wording of the NPPF. The submission Plan 
Policy RA4 relating to agricultural, forestry and rural enterprise dwellings set 
restrictive criteria relating to the size of new homes which appeared to have 
no evidence base.  MM039 deletes the restrictive text and amends the 
associated explanatory texts removing unnecessary or prescriptive information 
enabling the policy to be flexible, effective and sound.   MM040 and MM041
remove restrictive text from policy RA5 for the re-use of rural buildings and 
policy RA6 for the rural economy to ensure that it reflects changes to other 
rural policies. For RA5, the policy relates to both residential and economic uses 
and the MMs ensure that the policies accord with the approach to the rural 
areas set out in the NPPF. 

109.Overall, the approach to the rural areas is positively prepared, is appropriate 
to the needs of the area, is soundly based and consistent with national policy.

Issue 11 – Whether the Core Strategy would monitor development and 
necessary infrastructure effectively?  

110.The aforementioned modifications to SS3 relate to monitoring and action to be 
taken in relation to housing in terms of infrastructure delivery and monitoring.  
MM061, MM062, MM063 and MM064 add/delete text to ensure that CS 
policy ID1 and the explanatory paragraphs would support the modifications 
made to SS3 and assist the delivery of infrastructure for all development 
identified by the plan.  Crucially the MM clarifies that contributions from 
developers towards infrastructure can only be sought where they comply with 
the statutory tests and the NPPF.  The text is updated to reflect the MMs to 
SS3 and ID1 and to make the policy sound. The MM065 update of Appendix
1 relating to saved Unitary Development Plan policies is necessary to provide 
clarity, and a new appendix 3, the Infrastructure Delivery Plan, would assist 
with monitoring. I have deleted references to appendices 2, 7 and 8 which are 
not necessary as main modifications to make the plan sound.  

111.Overall the plan would monitor development and necessary infrastructure 
effectively.

Assessment of Legal Compliance
112.My examination of the compliance of the Plan with the legal requirements is 

summarised in the table below.  I conclude that the Core Strategy meets them 
all.

44



Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy, Inspector’s Report September 2015

27

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

Local Development 
Scheme (LDS)

The Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy is 
identified within the approved LDS January 2015 
which sets out an expected adoption date of 
Summer 2016. The Herefordshire Local Plan Core 
Strategy’s content and timing are generally 
compliant with the LDS. 

Statement of Community 
Involvement (SCI) and 
relevant regulations

The SCI was adopted in March 2007 and 
consultation has been compliant with the 
requirements therein, including the consultation on 
the post-submission proposed ‘main modification’ 
changes (MM)

Sustainability Appraisal 
(SA)

SA has been carried out and is adequate.

Appropriate Assessment 
(AA)

The Habitats Regulations AA Screening Report (May 
2014) sets out that the plan may have some 
negative impact, and an AA has been undertaken.
This found that there would not be an adverse effect 
on the integrity of protected sites from the plan as a 
whole.  

National Policy The Local Plan complies with national policy except 
where indicated and modifications are 
recommended.

Sustainable Community 
Strategy (SCS)

Satisfactory regard has been paid to the SCS.

2004 Act (as amended) 
and 2012 Regulations.

The Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy complies 
with the Act and the Regulations.

Overall Conclusion and Recommendation
113.The Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy has a number of deficiencies in 

relation to soundness and legal compliance for the reasons set out above 
which mean that I recommend non-adoption of it as submitted, in accordance 
with Section 20(7A) of the 2004 Act. These deficiencies have been explored in 
the main issues set out above.

114.The Council has requested that I recommend main modifications to make the 
Plan sound and legally compliant and capable of adoption.  I conclude that 
with the recommended main modifications set out in the Appendix the 
Herefordshire Local Plan Core Strategy satisfies the requirements of Section 
20(5) of the 2004 Act and meets the criteria for soundness in the National 
Planning Policy Framework.

Christine Thorby 

INSPECTOR

This report is accompanied by the Appendix containing the Main Modifications.

45



46



   

H
er

ef
o

rd
sh

ir
e 

L
o

ca
l P

la
n

C
o

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y

M
ai

n
M

o
d

if
ic

at
io

n
s

S
ep

te
m

b
er

20
15

  

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
2

47



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
s 

Th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
co

nt
ai

ns
 m

ai
n 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 c
on

su
lte

d 
on

 a
t v

ar
io

us
 ti

m
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
20

 M
ar

ch
 a

nd
 1

0 
A

ug
us

t 
20

15
. 

1.
A

ll 
Po

lic
y 

nu
m

be
rs

, p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 n

um
be

rs
, f

ig
ur

e 
nu

m
be

rs
 a

re
 ta

ke
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

Co
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
Pr

e-
Su

bm
is

si
on

 P
ub

lic
at

io
n 

M
ay

 2
01

4.
  

2.
Fo

r 
ea

ch
 m

ai
n 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n,

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 c

ha
ng

e 
an

d 
th

e 
re

as
on

 fo
r t

ha
t c

ha
ng

e 
is

 g
iv

en
.  

W
he

re
 n

ew
 w

or
di

ng
 is

 
pr

op
os

ed
 to

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
ex

pl
an

at
or

y 
te

xt
 it

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
un

de
rl

in
ed

.  
W

he
re

 it
 is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
to

 d
el

et
e 

w
or

di
ng

 fr
om

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
or

 te
xt

 th
is

 
is

 s
ho

w
n 

as
 c

ro
ss

ed
 o

ut
. E

ac
h 

M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 g

iv
en

 a
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 n
um

be
r b

eg
in

ni
ng

 ‘M
M

..’
.  

48



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

M
in

er
al

s 
an

d 
W

as
te

 -
 t

he
 d

el
et

io
n 

of
 t

he
 m

in
er

al
s 

an
d 

w
as

te
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

su
pp

or
ti

ng
 t

ex
t 

(P
ol

ic
ie

s 
M

1-
6/

W
1-

5)
 in

 t
he

 s
ub

m
it

te
d 

pl
an

 a
nd

 t
he

 c
om

m
it

m
en

t 
to

 f
ut

ur
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
m

in
er

al
s 

an
d 

w
as

te
 p

la
n 

M
M

01
. 

1.
7 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

W
he

n 
ad

op
te

d,
 t

he
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
w

ill
 r

ep
la

ce
 m

os
t 

U
ni

ta
ry

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 (

U
D

P)
, 

20
07

 p
ol

ic
ie

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, 

so
m

e 
of

 t
he

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 U

D
P 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
sa

ve
d 

(s
ee

 a
pp

en
di

x 
1)

 a
nd

 w
ill

 re
m

ai
n 

in
 fo

rc
e 

un
til

 re
pl

ac
ed

 b
y 

ot
he

r D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
D

oc
um

en
ts

 
an

d 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
s.

 T
og

et
he

r 
w

ith
 t

he
 H

er
ef

or
d 

Ar
ea

 P
la

n 
D

PD
, M

in
er

al
s 

an
d 

W
as

te
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n,
  N

at
ur

al
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 D
PD

, 
Tr

av
el

le
rs

’ S
ite

s 
D

oc
um

en
t (

D
PD

) a
nd

 o
th

er
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 a

nd
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

ns
, t

he
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 w
ill

 fo
rm

 
th

e 
st

at
ut

or
y 

“d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pl

an
” 

fo
r 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
. A

 P
ol

ic
ie

s 
M

ap
 w

ill
 s

et
s 

ou
t t

he
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 d
es

ig
na

tio
ns

 in
 t

he
 C

ou
nt

y.
  f

or
 a

ll 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 D
oc

um
en

ts
, o

nc
e 

th
ey

 h
av

e 
be

en
 e

xa
m

in
ed

 a
nd

 a
do

pt
ed

. I
n 

th
e 

m
ea

nt
im

e,
 m

an
y 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l d
es

ig
na

tio
ns

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

be
 s

ho
w

n 
on

 
th

e 
ad

op
te

d 
U

ni
ta

ry
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

20
07

 P
ro

po
sa

ls
 M

ap
, w

hi
ch

 c
an

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
on

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 w
eb

si
te

. 

 

1.
13

 
D

el
et

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h:

 
A 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 N

at
ur

al
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 D

oc
um

en
t 

(N
at

ur
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 D

PD
) 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

. 
Th

is
 w

ill
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

ta
rg

et
s 

an
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 m
in

er
al

s 
an

d 
w

as
te

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

fo
r 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 t

o 
co

ve
r 

th
e 

pl
an

 p
er

io
d 

to
 2

03
1.

 T
hi

s 
D

PD
 is

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l's

 L
oc

al
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

ch
em

e.
 

N
at

ur
al

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
M

in
er

al
s 

an
d 

W
as

te
  

1.
13

 M
in

er
al

s 
an

d 
w

as
te

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

al
t 

w
ith

 t
hr

ou
gh

 a
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

M
in

er
al

s 
an

d 
W

as
te

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pl
an

 d
oc

um
en

t 
(D

PD
). 

Th
is

 
w

ill
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 t

ak
in

g 
ac

co
un

t 
of

 t
he

 N
at

io
na

l 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 P

ol
ic

y 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

(N
PP

F)
, 

th
e 

m
in

er
al

s 
an

d 
w

as
te

 s
ec

tio
ns

 o
f 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

up
 to

 d
at

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 b

as
e 

st
ud

ie
s 

an
d 

en
su

rin
g 

cl
os

e 
co

op
er

at
io

n 
w

ith
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

in
g 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

on
 c

ro
ss

-b
ou

nd
ar

y 
is

su
es

. I
t 

w
ill

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
ta

rg
et

s 
an

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 m

in
er

al
s 

an
d 

w
as

te
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 t
o 

co
ve

r 
th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d 
to

 2
03

1.
 T

he
 t

im
et

ab
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 t
hi

s 
D

PD
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 a
 r

ev
is

ed
 L

oc
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Sc

he
m

e.
 U

nt
il 

th
e 

M
in

er
al

s 
an

d 
W

as
te

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

is
 a

do
pt

ed
, t

he
 m

in
er

al
s 

an
d 

w
as

te
 s

ec
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 U

ni
ta

ry
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

‘s
av

ed
’ a

nd
 r

em
ai

n 
in

 
fo

rc
e 

un
til

 re
pl

ac
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

M
in

er
al

s 
an

d 
W

as
te

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n.

 

 

2.
35

 
D

el
et

e 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h:

  
M

in
er

al
s 

an
d 

w
as

te
 

2.
35

 K
no

w
n 

m
in

er
al

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 a

re
 r

el
at

iv
el

y 
lim

ite
d 

in
 r

an
ge

, p
rim

ar
ily

 c
on

si
st

in
g 

of
 a

gg
re

ga
te

s 
(s

an
d,

 g
ra

ve
l a

nd
 c

ru
sh

ed
 r

oc
k 

(li
m

es
to

ne
))

. 
Ag

gr
eg

at
es

 f
ro

m
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 q
ua

rr
ie

s 
su

pp
ly

 b
ot

h 
lo

ca
l m

ar
ke

ts
 a

nd
 t

he
 w

id
er

 a
re

a.
 T

he
 m

ai
n 

no
n-

ag
gr

eg
at

e 
m

in
er

al
 b

ei
ng

 
w

or
ke

d 
is

 s
an

ds
to

ne
 fo

r 
us

e 
as

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
st

on
e 

an
d 

ro
of

 t
ile

s.
 In

 c
on

tr
as

t 
to

 t
he

 a
gg

re
ga

te
 q

ua
rr

ie
s,

 t
he

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
n 

of
 s

an
ds

to
ne

 is
 a

 s
m

al
l-s

ca
le

 
op

er
at

io
n 

de
pe

nd
en

t 
on

 n
ee

d 
an

d 
m

ar
ke

t 
de

m
an

d.
 T

he
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

ex
tr

ac
tio

n 
of

 a
gg

re
ga

te
s 

an
d 

sa
nd

st
on

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 m
ee

t 
fu

tu
re

 
gr

ow
th

 d
em

an
ds

, l
oc

al
 s

an
ds

to
ne

 b
ei

ng
 v

ita
l f

or
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

re
st

or
at

io
n,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 lo
ca

l c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s.

   

 

49



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

2.
36

 
D

el
et

e 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h:

 
In

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 C

ou
nt

y 
Co

un
ci

l, 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 h
as

 p
re

pa
re

d 
a 

Jo
in

t M
un

ic
ip

al
 W

as
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

tr
at

eg
y 

up
 to

 2
03

4.
 T

hi
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 in

 li
gh

t 
of

 le
gi

sl
at

iv
e 

an
d 

fis
ca

l c
ha

ng
es

. W
as

te
 le

ve
ls

 h
av

e 
de

cl
in

ed
 s

in
ce

 2
00

4 
an

d 
re

ce
nt

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
in

 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

of
 w

as
te

 (
40

%
 in

 2
01

0-
11

) 
an

d 
re

du
ci

ng
 t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 g

oi
ng

 t
o 

la
nd

fil
l. 

Th
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
w

as
te

 g
en

er
at

ed
 a

nd
 h

ow
 

th
is

 is
 tr

ea
te

d 
re

m
ai

n 
an

 is
su

e,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 a
s 

po
pu

la
tio

ns
 g

ro
w

.  
 

 

 

3.
14

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
N

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
si

gn
ed

 a
nd

 c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

 in
 w

ay
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 lo

ca
l d

is
tin

ct
iv

en
es

s 
is

 r
ei

nf
or

ce
d.

 T
he

 w
id

er
 im

pa
ct

s 
of

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 w

ill
 b

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

by
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

ca
rb

on
 e

m
is

si
on

s,
 m

in
im

is
in

g 
po

llu
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 f
lo

od
in

g,
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 n

at
ur

al
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
by

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 w

as
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

re
ne

w
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
sc

he
m

es
 T

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 w

as
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

re
ne

w
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
sc

he
m

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
gu

id
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
of

 t
he

 M
in

er
al

s 
an

d 
W

as
te

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n.

 

 

Fi
g 

3.
1 

D
el

et
e 

fr
om

 th
ird

 c
ol

um
n 

fo
r o

bj
ec

tiv
e 

11
 

Co
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
po

lic
ie

s 
– 

M
N

1-
6,

 W
1-

5 
 

3.
10

7 
N

ew
 w

as
te

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 in

to
 s

ite
s 

su
ita

bl
e 

fo
r 

in
du

st
ria

l u
se

 c
lo

se
 t

o 
th

e 
or

ig
in

 o
f 

su
ch

 w
as

te
. P

ro
po

sa
ls

 t
o 

m
in

im
is

e 
w

as
te

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
-u

se
, r

ec
yc

lin
g 

an
d 

tr
ea

tm
en

t,
 w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

in
 th

e 
de

si
gn

 o
f n

ew
 la

rg
e 

sc
al

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
.  

M
in

er
al

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
ar

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
de

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
M

in
er

al
s 

Sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 A
re

as
 a

nd
 ta

rg
et

s 
ar

e 
se

t f
or

 s
an

d,
 g

ra
ve

l a
nd

 c
ru

sh
ed

 ro
ck

 e
xt

ra
ct

io
n 

to
 m

ee
t a

do
pt

ed
 ta

rg
et

s.
 

Th
e 

po
lic

ie
s 

in
 t

he
 P

la
ce

 S
ha

pi
ng

 s
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l q

ua
lit

y 
po

lic
ie

s 
w

ill
 d

el
iv

er
 t

hi
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

. T
he

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
of

 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

be
tt

er
 u

se
 o

f 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

is
 d

ea
lt 

w
ith

 in
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

of
 t

he
 P

la
ce

 S
ha

pi
ng

 a
nd

 g
en

er
al

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l p
ol

ic
ie

s 
se

ct
io

ns
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 t

he
 

M
in

er
al

s 
an

d 
W

as
te

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 th
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 o
f m

in
er

al
 re

so
ur

ce
s.

 

 

4.
2.

10
 

 A
m

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
N

on
-s

tr
at

eg
ic

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

op
os

al
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 H
er

ef
or

d 
Ar

ea
 P

la
n,

 M
in

er
al

s 
an

d 
W

as
te

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n,

 m
as

te
r 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 g
ui

da
nc

e.
 T

he
se

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
: 

Am
en

d 
6th

 b
ul

le
t p

oi
nt

 to
 re

ad
: 

 
En

ha
nc

em
en

t p
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r t
he

 h
is

to
ric

 c
or

e 
an

d 
he

rit
ag

e 
as

se
ts

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ar

ch
ae

ol
og

y 
 

 

N
ew

 p
ar

a 
af

te
r 

4.
2.

81
 

In
se

rt
 n

ew
 s

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

af
te

r 4
.2

.8
1:

 
M

in
er

al
s 

Th
e 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
ar

ea
 is

 s
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

a 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 p

ol
ic

y 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f 

m
in

er
al

 r
es

er
ve

s 
(s

an
d 

an
d 

gr
av

el
). 

 A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 f
or

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 in

 th
is

 re
sp

ec
t u

si
ng

 th
e 

sa
ve

d 
U

D
P 

po
lic

y 
M

5 
un

til
 th

is
 is

 re
pl

ac
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

M
in

er
al

s 
an

d 
W

as
te

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

po
lic

y.
  

 

5.
3.

1 
D

ia
gr

am
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

pa
ra

 5
.3

.1
 

 

50



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

 D
el

et
e 

3rd
 c

ol
um

n 
la

be
lle

d 
 “

N
at

ur
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 m

in
er

al
s”

 
D

el
et

e 
4th

 c
ol

um
n 

la
be

lle
d 

 “
N

at
ur

al
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 w
as

te
” 

 Fu
tu

re
 p

la
nn

in
g 

po
lic

y 
Th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

po
lic

ie
s 

ou
tli

ne
d 

ab
ov

e 
w

ill
 u

nd
er

pi
n 

si
te

 s
pe

ci
fic

 p
ol

ic
ie

s.
 A

lo
ng

si
de

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 p

ol
ic

ie
s,

 fu
tu

re
 c

om
po

ne
nt

s 
of

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

Co
un

ci
l’s

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n,

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 t

he
 M

in
er

al
s 

an
d 

W
as

te
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n ,
 o

th
er

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
nd

 s
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 p

la
nn

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

ts
, w

ill
 b

e 
sh

ap
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
ba

se
 a

nd
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
iti

es
 th

ro
ug

h 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
s 

 
5.

3.
71

 to
 

5.
3.

11
3 

D
el

et
e 

Po
lic

es
 M

1,
 M

2,
 M

3 
M

4,
 M

5,
 M

6,
 W

1,
 W

2,
 W

3,
 W

4 
an

d 
W

5 
D

el
et

e 
ev

er
yt

hi
ng

 fr
om

 p
ar

a 
5.

3.
71

 to
 p

ar
a 

5.
3.

11
3 

in
cl

us
iv

e 
 

5.
3.

11
4 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l q
ua

lit
y 

m
on

it
or

in
g 

in
di

ca
to

rs
: 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 li

st
ed

 in
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

se
ct

io
ns

, t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

di
ct

or
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 m

ea
su

re
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l p
ol

ic
ie

s 
(s

om
e 

ar
e 

as
pi

ra
tio

na
l):

 

 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

na
tu

re
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

si
te

s 
as

 a
 c

on
se

qu
en

ce
 o

f p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

; 
 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 lo
ca

l s
ite

s 
w

he
re

 p
os

iti
ve

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
m

an
ag

em
en

t h
as

 o
r i

s 
be

in
g 

im
pl

em
en

te
d;

 
 

nu
m

be
r o

f l
is

te
d 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
nd

 s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 a

nc
ie

nt
 m

on
um

en
ts

 o
n 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
t r

is
k 

re
gi

st
er

 (E
ng

lis
h 

H
er

ita
ge

); 
 

ne
t c

ha
ng

e 
in

 c
on

di
tio

n 
of

 S
SS

I’s
 (N

at
ur

al
 E

ng
la

nd
); 

 
nu

m
be

r o
f a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 g

ra
nt

ed
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 c

on
tr

ar
y 

to
 th

e 
ad

vi
ce

 o
f s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
(e

.g
. E

ng
lis

h 
H

er
ita

ge
, N

at
ur

al
 E

ng
la

nd
 o

r 
th

e 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t A
ge

nc
y)

; 
 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f r
iv

er
 le

ng
th

 a
ss

es
se

d 
as

 g
oo

d 
bi

ol
og

ic
al

 o
r c

he
m

ic
al

 q
ua

lit
y 

(E
A)

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 s
o 

fa
r a

s 
th

ey
 re

la
te

 to
 th

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
N

ut
rie

nt
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n;
 

 
ph

os
ph

at
e 

le
ve

ls
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

Ri
ve

r W
ye

 S
AC

 a
nd

 a
dj

oi
ni

ng
 tr

ib
ut

ar
ie

s 
th

at
 re

ce
iv

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

ph
os

ph
at

es
 fr

om
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 g
ro

w
th

; 
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

ha
t h

as
 re

su
lte

d 
in

 lo
ss

/r
es

to
ra

tio
n/

cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 B

AP
 H

ab
ita

ts
 o

f P
rin

ci
pa

l I
m

po
rt

an
ce

 (P
rio

rit
y 

H
ab

ita
ts

); 
 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
ot

al
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 a
t b

el
ow

 3
0 

dw
el

lin
gs

 p
er

 h
ec

ta
re

; 
 

nu
m

be
r o

f r
es

id
en

tia
l a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 a

t l
es

s 
th

an
 1

.5
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

s 
pe

r u
ni

t;
 

. 

51



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

 
th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r,
 fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

an
d 

ou
tc

om
es

 o
f p

la
nn

in
g 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t i

nv
es

tig
at

io
ns

/ 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
ea

ls
 c

on
ce

rn
in

g 
th

e 
as

pe
ct

s 
of

 lo
ca

l l
os

s 
of

 
lo

ca
lly

 im
po

rt
an

t b
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

ith
in

 a
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

; 
 

nu
m

be
r o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 m

ee
tin

g 
an

d 
su

rp
as

si
ng

 n
at

io
na

l d
es

ig
n 

st
an

da
rd

s;
 

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
Co

un
ty

 S
ite

 a
nd

 M
on

um
en

ts
 R

eg
is

te
r;

 a
nd

 
 

co
m

pa
ris

on
 o

f  
m

in
er

al
 p

ro
du

ct
io

n 
fig

ur
es

 w
ith

 n
at

io
na

l a
nd

 s
ub

-n
at

io
na

l a
pp

or
tio

nm
en

ts
; 

 
es

tim
at

es
 o

f p
er

m
itt

ed
 a

nd
 u

se
ab

le
 la

nd
 b

an
ks

 fo
r a

gg
re

ga
te

s 
(s

an
d,

 g
ra

ve
l a

nd
 c

ru
sh

ed
 ro

ck
); 

 
af

te
r-

us
e 

of
 s

ite
s 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 w

ild
lif

e 
ha

bi
ta

t c
re

at
io

n;
 

 
th

e 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 (r
eu

se
d 

an
d 

re
cy

cl
ed

) a
gg

re
ga

te
s;

 a
nd

 
 

da
ta

 o
n 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
ra

ilh
ea

d 
at

 M
or

et
on

-o
n-

Lu
gg

; a
nd

 
 

su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

to
 th

e 
G

re
en

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

fr
om

 th
e 

ab
ov

e 
an

d 
an

y 
ot

he
r m

ea
su

re
s.

 
Se

ct
io

n 
1:

 In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

an
d 

Ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
 

M
M

02
. 

1.
16

 
A

ft
er

 p
ar

a 
1.

16
 in

se
rt

 n
ew

 p
ar

as
: 

 *.
**

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pl
an

s 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 b
e 

in
 g

en
er

al
 c

on
fo

rm
ity

 w
ith

 t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

of
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pl
an

 f
or

 t
he

 
ar

ea
 in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
m

ee
t 

‘t
he

 b
as

ic
 c

on
di

tio
ns

’ 
W

ith
 t

hi
s 

re
ga

rd
, 

th
e 

w
ho

le
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 is
 d

ef
in

ed
 a

s 
be

in
g 

’t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

la
n 

fo
r t

he
 a

re
a’

 in
 te

rm
s 

of
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 8
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

4B
 o

f t
he

 T
ow

n 
an

d 
Co

un
tr

y 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 A

ct
 (1

99
0)

. 
 *.

**
 S

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
pr

og
re

ss
 is

 b
ei

ng
 m

ad
e 

on
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pl

an
s 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

y.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

o 
en

su
re

 d
el

iv
er

y,
 

ar
ea

s 
 w

ith
ou

t 
a 

de
si

gn
ed

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 a

re
a 

by
 t

he
 a

do
pt

io
n 

of
 t

he
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 ‘

Ru
ra

l A
re

a 
Si

te
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 D

oc
um

en
t’

. M
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 p

la
n 

pr
og

re
ss

 w
ill

 t
ak

e 
pl

ac
e 

an
d 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 t

ho
se

 a
re

as
 n

ot
 

m
ak

in
g 

pr
og

re
ss

 t
o 

Re
gu

la
tio

n 
14

 d
ra

ft
 b

y 
th

e 
Is

su
es

 a
nd

 O
pt

io
ns

 s
ta

ge
 o

f 
th

e 
Ru

ra
l A

re
a 

Si
te

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
D

PD
 f

or
 t

he
ir 

in
cl

us
io

n 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 
do

cu
m

en
t. 

 

 

52



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

M
M

03
. 

1.
17

 
D

el
et

e 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
e 

w
ith

 n
ew

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
. 

Th
ro

ug
h 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
, l

oc
al

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 c
ho

os
e 

w
he

re
 th

ey
 w

an
t 

ne
w

 h
om

es
, s

ho
ps

 a
nd

 o
ff

ic
es

 to
 b

e 
bu

ilt
; h

av
e 

th
ei

r 
sa

y 
on

 w
ha

t t
ho

se
 n

ew
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 s
ho

ul
d 

lo
ok

 li
ke

, a
nd

 g
ra

nt
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 fo

r t
he

 n
ew

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 th

ey
 w

an
t t

o 
se

e 
go

 a
he

ad
. F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 
th

e 
‘C

om
m

un
ity

 R
ig

ht
 t

o 
Bu

ild
’ p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
al

lo
w

s 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 t

o 
ch

oo
se

 w
he

re
 a

nd
 w

he
n 

to
 b

ui
ld

 h
om

es
, s

ho
ps

, f
ac

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

, 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

en
tir

el
y 

on
 w

ha
t 

lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e 

de
ci

de
 t

he
ir 

co
m

m
un

ity
 n

ee
ds

 a
re

. T
he

 C
om

m
un

ity
 R

ig
ht

 t
o 

Bu
ild

 s
ch

em
e 

w
ill

 h
el

p 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 t

o 
ga

in
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 f

or
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 t
he

y 
w

an
t 

to
 t

ak
e 

pl
ac

e;
 w

ith
 t

he
 b

en
ef

its
 o

f 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
(f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

pr
of

its
), 

be
in

g 
m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
a 

co
m

m
un

ity
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
n,

 fo
r t

he
 c

om
m

un
ity

. 
Th

e 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 R
ig

ht
 t

o 
Bu

ild
 e

na
bl

es
 c

om
m

un
ity

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 t

o 
pr

og
re

ss
 n

ew
 l

oc
al

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

ith
ou

t 
th

e 
ne

ed
 t

o 
go

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 
no

rm
al

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
pr

oc
es

s,
 a

s 
lo

ng
 a

s 
th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

m
ee

t 
ce

rt
ai

n 
cr

ite
ria

 a
nd

 t
he

re
 is

 c
om

m
un

ity
 b

ac
ki

ng
 in

 a
 lo

ca
l r

ef
er

en
du

m
.  

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 m
ay

 w
is

h 
to

 b
ui

ld
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 o
r 

ne
w

 c
om

m
un

ity
 a

m
en

iti
es

, a
nd

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 t

he
y 

ca
n 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 o
ve

rw
he

lm
in

g 
lo

ca
l s

up
po

rt
, 

th
e 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 R

ig
ht

 t
o 

Bu
ild

 w
ill

 g
iv

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 t

he
 p

ow
er

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 t
hi

s 
di

re
ct

ly
. A

ll 
pr

of
its

 d
er

iv
ed

 f
ro

m
 a

 C
om

m
un

ity
 R

ig
ht

 t
o 

Bu
ild

 
m

us
t 

be
 u

se
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
 o

f 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
lo

ca
l f

ac
ili

tie
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

vi
lla

ge
 h

al
ls

.  
Co

m
m

un
iti

es
 w

hi
ch

 
w

is
h 

to
 u

se
 t

he
 n

ew
 p

ow
er

s 
m

us
t 

pr
od

uc
e 

an
d 

su
bm

it 
a 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 R

ig
ht

 t
o 

Bu
ild

 O
rd

er
. 

 A
 p

ro
po

sa
l 

ca
n 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n,

 o
r o

n 
its

 o
w

n.
 

 

M
M

04
. 

Fi
g 

3.
1 

8 
 T

o 
st

re
ng

th
en

 t
he

 e
co

no
m

ic
 v

ia
bi

lit
y 

of
 t

he
 m

ar
ke

t 
to

w
ns

, 
vi

lla
ge

s 
ru

ra
l 

se
tt

le
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 t
he

ir 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
ru

ra
l 

hi
nt

er
la

nd
s 

ar
ea

s 
by

 
fa

ci
lit

at
in

g 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

di
ve

rs
ifi

ca
tio

n,
 i

m
pr

ov
in

g 
de

liv
er

y 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
hr

ou
gh

 h
ou

si
ng

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
us

in
g)

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
ed

 IC
T 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
re

al
is

in
g 

th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t a

s 
an

 e
co

no
m

ic
 a

ss
et

 
 In

se
rt

 n
ew

 o
bj

ec
ti

ve
 8

a 
:  

8a
 T

o 
su

pp
or

t 
an

d 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

di
ve

rs
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 c
ou

nt
y’

s 
hi

st
or

ic
 s

tr
en

gt
h 

in
 l

an
d-

ba
se

d 
in

du
st

rie
s,

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

ag
ric

ul
tu

re
 a

nd
 f

oo
d 

pr
od

uc
tio

n,
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f 
a 

th
riv

in
g,

 p
ro

du
ct

iv
e,

 e
ff

ic
ie

nt
, c

om
pe

tit
iv

e 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l 
se

ct
or

, r
ec

og
ni

si
ng

 th
e 

hi
gh

 im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f t
hi

s 
se

ct
or

 to
 th

e 
co

un
ty

’s
 e

co
no

m
y 

as
 a

 w
ho

le
 a

nd
 to

 th
e 

ru
ra

l e
co

no
m

y 
in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
.”

 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

po
lic

ie
s 

– 
SS

5,
 R

A
6,

 E
1 

. 

53



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

M
M

05
.

SS
2 

Po
lic

y 
SS

2 
- D

el
iv

er
in

g 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 

A 
su

pp
ly

 o
f d

el
iv

er
ab

le
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
ab

le
 la

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 a
 m

in
im

um
 o

f 1
6,

50
0 

ho
m

es
 in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 b

et
w

ee
n 

20
11

 a
nd

 2
03

1 
to

 m
ee

t m
ar

ke
t a

nd
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
ne

ed
. 

H
er

ef
or

d 
is

 t
he

 fo
cu

s 
fo

r 
ne

w
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 it

s 
ro

le
 a

s 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

ce
nt

re
 in

 t
he

 c
ou

nt
y.

 O
ut

si
de

 H
er

ef
or

d,
 t

he
 m

ai
n 

fo
cu

s 
fo

r 
ne

w
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 in
 th

e 
m

ar
ke

t t
ow

ns
 o

f B
ro

m
ya

rd
, K

in
gt

on
, L

ed
bu

ry
, L

eo
m

in
st

er
 a

nd
 R

os
s 

on
 W

ye
, o

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
or

 n
ew

 
al

lo
ca

tio
ns

 t
o 

en
ha

nc
e 

th
ei

r 
ro

le
s 

as
 m

ul
ti-

fu
nc

tio
na

l 
ce

nt
re

s 
fo

r 
th

ei
r 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

ru
ra

l 
hi

nt
er

la
nd

s 
ar

ea
s.

 I
n 

th
e 

ru
ra

l 
ar

ea
s 

ne
w

 h
ou

si
ng

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 w
he

re
 it

 h
el

ps
 t

o 
m

ee
t 

lo
ca

l h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

, s
up

po
rt

s 
th

e 
ru

ra
l e

co
no

m
y 

an
d 

lo
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

is
 r

es
po

ns
iv

e 
to

 t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f i
ts

 c
om

m
un

ity
. O

ut
si

de
 o

f v
ill

ag
es

, n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
ca

re
fu

lly
 c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 t
he

 
co

un
tr

ys
id

e 
fo

r 
its

 o
w

n 
sa

ke
. .

 In
 t

he
 w

id
er

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

 n
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 w
ill

 b
e 

ca
re

fu
lly

 c
on

tr
ol

le
d 

re
fle

ct
in

g 
th

e 
ne

ed
 t

o 
re

co
gn

is
e 

th
e 

in
tr

in
si

c 
ch

ar
ac

te
r a

nd
 b

ea
ut

y 
of

 th
e 

co
un

tr
ys

id
e.

 

Th
e 

us
e 

of
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

la
nd

 in
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

.  
Re

si
de

nt
ia

l d
en

si
ty

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
lo

ca
l c

ha
ra

ct
er

 a
nd

 
go

od
 q

ua
lit

y 
de

si
gn

. T
he

 ta
rg

et
 n

et
 d

en
si

ty
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
co

un
ty

 is
 b

et
w

ee
n 

30
 a

nd
 5

0 
dw

el
lin

gs
 p

er
 h

ec
ta

re
, a

lth
ou

gh
 th

is
 m

ay
 b

e 
le

ss
 in

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
ar

ea
s 

Th
e 

br
oa

d 
di

st
rib

ut
io

n 
of

 n
ew

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
 w

ill
 b

e 
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f: 

Pl
ac

e 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

N
ew

 h
om

es
 

H
er

ef
or

d 
W

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
m

ai
n 

fo
cu

s 
fo

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
6,

50
0 

O
th

er
 u

rb
an

 a
re

as
 –

 
Br

om
ya

rd
, K

in
gt

on
, 

Le
db

ur
y,

 L
eo

m
in

st
er

, 
Ro

ss
 o

n 
W

ye
 

Ra
ng

e 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
re

as
on

ab
le

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

– 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 to

 s
tr

en
gt

he
n 

ro
le

 in
 

m
ee

tin
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

4,
70

0 

Ru
ra

l V
ill

ag
es

 S
et

tle
m

e
nt

s 
se

e 
lis

t i
n 

Pl
ac

e 
- 

Sh
ap

in
g 

se
ct

io
n 

M
or

e 
lim

ite
d 

ra
ng

e 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
so

m
e 

lim
ite

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ot

en
tia

l b
ut

 n
um

er
ou

s 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 

5,
30

0 

 

M
M

06
. 

3.
40

 
D

el
et

e 
th

e 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h:

 
“T

he
 a

bi
lit

y 
fo

r s
el

f-
bu

ild
 h

om
es

 a
nd

 c
o-

ho
us

in
g 

sc
he

m
es

 to
 c

om
e 

fo
rw

ar
d 

ei
th

er
 b

y 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
or

 c
om

m
un

ity
 g

ro
up

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
ns

 o
r D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
. T

he
se

 w
ill

 lo
ok

 to
 a

llo
ca

te
 s

pe
ci

fic
 s

ite
s.

 

 

54



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

 Re
pl

ac
e 

w
ith

; 
‘T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
re

co
gn

is
es

 t
ha

t 
in

di
vi

du
al

 o
r 

gr
ou

p 
se

lf 
an

d 
cu

st
om

 b
ui

ld
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

w
ill

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 t

he
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 h

om
es

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d.
  

Th
es

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
in

 t
he

 f
or

m
 o

f 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

, 
lo

w
 c

os
t 

m
ar

ke
t 

an
d 

op
en

 m
ar

ke
t 

ho
us

in
g.

  
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
w

ill
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 t
hi

s 
ty

pe
 o

f 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
w

he
re

 t
he

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

re
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 t
he

 r
el

ev
an

t 
po

lic
ie

s 
of

 t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 p
la

ns
.  

Sp
ec

ifi
c 

si
te

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

fo
r 

th
is

 ty
pe

 o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
Ar

ea
 a

nd
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

ns
 w

he
re

 a
 d

em
an

d 
fo

r 
th

is
 ty

pe
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d.

  
Re

vi
si

on
s 

to
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 g
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 it
s 

lin
ks

 w
it

h 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
rl

y 
Po

lic
y 

SS
3:

 

M
M

07
. 

SS
3 

D
el

et
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

‘P
ol

ic
y 

SS
3 

Re
le

as
in

g 
la

nd
 fo

r r
es

id
en

ti
al

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t’
: 

Su
ff

ic
ie

nt
 la

nd
 fo

r r
es

id
en

tia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
re

le
as

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

Co
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
ho

us
in

g 
ta

rg
et

 is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

ov
er

 th
e 

pl
an

 p
er

io
d.

 
Th

e 
re

le
as

e 
of

 s
pe

ci
fic

 s
ite

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
ph

as
ed

 o
r 

de
la

ye
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 is

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

r i
n 

or
de

r t
o 

sa
fe

gu
ar

d 
th

e 
in

te
gr

ity
 o

f t
he

 R
iv

er
 W

ye
 S

pe
ci

al
 A

re
a 

of
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

(S
AC

) f
ro

m
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t a
dv

er
se

 e
ff

ec
ts

. 
In

 re
le

as
in

g 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l l
an

d 
pr

io
rit

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 th

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pr

op
os

al
s 

an
d 

th
e 

re
-u

se
 o

f b
ro

w
nf

ie
ld

 la
nd

 in
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 lo

ca
tio

ns
. 

Th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 t
ow

ar
ds

 r
el

ea
se

 o
f 

si
te

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ke

pt
 u

nd
er

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 a
nn

ua
l m

on
ito

rin
g 

pr
oc

es
s.

 If
 r

at
es

 o
f 

de
liv

er
y 

or
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

fr
om

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

in
di

ca
te

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 n
ew

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 w

ill
 e

xc
ee

d 
or

 fa
ll 

be
lo

w
 t

he
 t

ar
ge

t 
fig

ur
e 

by
 2

0%
 o

ve
r 

a 
pe

rio
d 

of
 3

 o
r 

m
or

e 
ye

ar
s,

 t
he

 
tim

es
ca

le
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
le

as
e 

of
 s

ite
s 

sh
ow

n 
in

 F
ig

ur
e 

3.
5 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
co

ns
id

er
ed

 o
r 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 id

en
tif

y 
ad

di
tio

na
l l

an
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 o

th
er

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
D

oc
um

en
ts

. 
 a

nd
 r

ep
la

ce
 w

it
h:

   
Po

lic
y 

SS
3 

-E
ns

ur
in

g 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 h
ou

si
ng

 la
nd

 d
el

iv
er

y 
 

A 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 s
up

pl
y 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 la

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 t

he
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 h
ou

si
ng

 t
ar

ge
t 

as
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 P
ol

ic
y 

SS
2 

ov
er

 
th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d.
  T

he
 r

at
e 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

el
iv

er
y 

an
d 

su
pp

ly
 w

ill
 b

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 t

ho
ug

h 
th

e 
an

nu
al

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
pr

oc
es

s.
  I

f m
on

ito
rin

g 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
s 

th
at

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 n

ew
 d

w
el

lin
g 

co
m

pl
et

io
ns

 is
 b

el
ow

 t
he

 c
um

ul
at

iv
e 

ta
rg

et
 fi

gu
re

 o
ve

r 
a 

12
-m

on
th

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
pe

rio
d 

(1
 A

pr
il 

– 
31

 M
ar

ch
) a

s 
se

t 
ou

t 
in

 t
he

 h
ou

si
ng

 t
ra

je
ct

or
y 

in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

4 
th

e 
Co

un
ci

l w
ill

 p
rio

rit
is

e 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
up

pl
y 

in
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

pe
rio

ds
 u

si
ng

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

w
hi

ch
, d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

th
e 

sc
al

e 
an

d 
na

tu
re

 o
f p

ot
en

tia
l u

nd
er

-d
el

iv
er

y,
 w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e:
 

 
A 

pa
rt

ia
l r

ev
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

– 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y:

 o
r 

 
Th

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
of

 n
ew

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
D

oc
um

en
ts

; o
r 

 
Th

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
of

 a
n 

in
te

rim
 p

os
iti

on
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
an

d 
ut

ili
si

ng
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

fr
om

 t
he

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 H

ou
si

ng
 L

an
d 

Av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

to
 

id
en

tif
y 

ad
di

tio
na

l h
ou

si
ng

 la
nd

. 

 

55



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

A 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 h
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

re
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 k

ey
 to

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
sp

at
ia

l s
tr

at
eg

y.
  I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

el
em

en
ts

 o
f k

ey
 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
fu

ll 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ho

us
in

g 
ta

rg
et

s.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

tim
el

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
se

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 a
nd

 th
e 

ke
y 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
.  

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 5
 s

et
s 

ou
t t

he
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 th
e 

tim
in

g 
of

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
. I

t a
ls

o 
id

en
tif

ie
s 

ac
tio

ns
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 t
o 

sa
fe

gu
ar

d 
th

e 
in

te
gr

ity
 o

f t
he

 R
iv

er
 W

ye
 S

pe
ci

al
 A

re
a 

of
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

(S
AC

) f
ro

m
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
ad

ve
rs

e 
ef

fe
ct

s.
  T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

m
on

ito
r 

th
e 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 i

n 
th

is
 a

pp
en

di
x.

 A
ny

 m
at

er
ia

l d
el

ay
s 

in
 t

he
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

of
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l s
af

eg
ua

rd
s 

an
d 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 le

ad
 to

 u
nd

er
-d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

up
pl

y 
w

ill
 in

fo
rm

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 m
ea

su
re

s 
se

t 
ou

t a
bo

ve
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pl
an

-le
d 

co
rr

ec
tiv

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e.

 
3.

42
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 t

he
 h

ou
si

ng
 le

ve
ls

 a
nd

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
pr

op
os

ed
 in

 t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 is

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 u

po
n 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 b
ei

ng
 

fu
nd

ed
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
ed

. F
ig

ur
e 

3.
5 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
n 

in
iti

al
 in

di
ca

tiv
e 

co
un

ty
-w

id
e 

tr
aj

ec
to

ry
 fo

r 
th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

ba
se

d 
up

on
 t

he
 li

ke
ly

 r
el

ea
se

 o
f 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
si

te
s 

in
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

y.
 T

hi
s 

tr
aj

ec
to

ry
 s

ug
ge

st
s 

th
at

 h
ou

si
ng

 c
om

pl
et

io
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

ba
ck

-lo
ad

ed
, 

st
ar

tin
g 

w
ith

 a
ro

un
d 

60
0 

dw
el

lin
gs

 p
er

 
an

nu
m

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

fir
st

 fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
 o

f t
he

 p
la

n 
pe

rio
d,

 w
ith

 th
e 

hi
gh

es
t l

ev
el

s 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 g
ro

w
th

 (9
50

 p
er

 a
nn

um
) t

ak
in

g 
pl

ac
e 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 

th
e 

pl
an

 p
er

io
d.

 A
 d

et
ai

le
d 

tr
aj

ec
to

ry
 is

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

4.
  T

he
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

on
ito

re
d 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d 
an

d 
m

ay
 It

 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

re
-a

dj
us

tm
en

t 
an

d 
ad

de
d 

de
ta

il 
to

 r
ef

le
ct

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
on

 t
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

ite
s 

an
d 

ke
y 

el
em

en
ts

 o
f 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
.  

 

 

N
ew

 P
ar

a 
 

TE
XT

 
AD

D
ED

  

A
dd

 n
ew

 p
ar

a 
af

te
r S

S3
 a

nd
 b

ef
or

e 
3.

43
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s 
*.

**
 T

he
 d

el
iv

er
y 

an
d 

su
pp

ly
 o

f 
ne

w
 h

ou
si

ng
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

on
ito

re
d 

on
 a

 r
eg

ul
ar

 b
as

is
 a

nd
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 a

nn
ua

l m
on

ito
rin

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
.  

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 5
 s

et
s 

ou
t 

an
 in

di
ca

tiv
e 

tr
aj

ec
to

ry
 fo

r 
to

ta
l h

ou
si

ng
 c

om
pl

et
io

ns
, w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 b

as
is

 fo
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
co

m
pl

et
io

ns
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

pl
an

 
pe

rio
d.

  I
n 

th
e 

ev
en

t t
ha

t t
he

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
s 

th
at

 th
e 

ra
te

 o
f c

om
pl

et
io

ns
 h

av
e 

fa
lle

n 
be

lo
w

 ta
rg

et
s,

 a
n 

ea
rly

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t w

ill
 

be
 m

ad
e 

as
 t

o 
th

e 
m

os
t 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 t
o 

bo
os

t 
ho

us
in

g 
de

liv
er

y 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

up
on

 t
he

 s
ca

le
 a

nd
 n

at
ur

e 
of

 t
he

 is
su

e.
  

Th
e 

st
ep

pe
d 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 6
00

 d
pa

 fo
r 

th
e 

fir
st

 fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
 o

f t
he

 p
la

n 
(2

01
1-

20
16

), 
85

0 
dp

a 
fo

r 
ye

ar
s 

6-
10

 (2
01

6-
20

21
), 

90
0 

dp
a 

fo
r 

ye
ar

s 
11

-1
5 

(2
02

1-
20

26
) a

nd
 

95
0 

dp
a 

fo
r 

ye
ar

s 
16

-2
0 

(2
02

6-
20

31
) w

ou
ld

 b
e 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
fo

r 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

as
se

ss
in

g 
la

nd
 s

up
pl

y 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

fiv
e 

ye
ar

 h
ou

si
ng

 la
nd

 s
up

pl
y)

 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

pl
an

 p
er

io
d.

  F
or

 c
al

cu
la

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
fiv

e 
ye

ar
 h

ou
si

ng
 la

nd
 s

up
pl

y,
 d

ue
 to

 p
er

si
st

en
t u

nd
er

 d
el

iv
er

y 
a 

bu
ff

er
 o

f 2
0%

 is
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
.  

 

3.
43

 
Th

e 
 T

o 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t o
f t

he
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

  h
ou

si
ng

 ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g,
 h

ow
ev

er
, t

he
re

 m
ay

 b
e 

is
  a

 n
ee

d 
to

 p
ha

se
 th

e 
re

le
as

e 
of

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

in
st

an
ce

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
nd

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

ei
th

er
 p

rio
r t

o,
 o

r 
co

-o
rd

in
at

ed
 w

ith
, t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 th

e 
ca

se
 in

 re
sp

ec
t o

f m
aj

or
 e

le
m

en
ts

 o
f i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

e 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Re
lie

f 
Ro

ad
. 

 

56



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

 
3.

44
 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, t

he
 R

iv
er

 W
ye

 S
AC

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 in

cl
ud

es
 s

ec
tio

ns
 w

he
re

 t
he

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
ex

ce
ed

s 
ph

os
ph

at
e 

le
ve

l t
ar

ge
ts

 a
nd

 t
hi

s 
ex

ce
ss

 p
re

ve
nt

s 
se

ct
io

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
riv

er
 f

ro
m

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 f

av
ou

ra
bl

e 
co

nd
iti

on
. 

It
 i

s 
al

so
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

se
ct

io
ns

 o
f 

riv
er

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
w

at
er

 
qu

al
ity

 t
ar

ge
ts

 d
o 

no
t 

fa
il 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t 

of
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t.

 N
at

ur
al

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
nd

 t
he

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

Ag
en

cy
 h

av
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 a
 N

ut
rie

nt
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Pl
an

 (
N

M
P)

 w
hi

ch
 s

et
s 

ou
t 

to
 c

on
tr

ol
 a

nd
 r

ed
uc

e 
ph

os
ph

at
es

 in
 t

he
 S

AC
. 

Th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 a
ct

io
ns

 in
 t

he
 N

M
P 

w
ill

 
fa

ci
lit

at
e 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

N
at

ur
al

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
nd

 t
he

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

Ag
en

cy
 h

av
e 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
of

 a
 N

ut
rie

nt
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Pl
an

 (
N

M
P)

, 
th

e 
ai

m
s 

of
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 t
o 

co
nt

ro
l 

an
d 

re
du

ce
 p

ho
sp

ha
te

s 
in

 t
he

 S
AC

. 
Th

is
 w

ill
 f

ac
ili

ta
te

 t
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 n
ew

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

N
M

P 
m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
ne

ed
 t

o 
ph

as
e 

or
 d

el
ay

 t
he

 r
el

ea
se

 o
f 

ho
us

in
g 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d.
 

Po
lic

y 
SD

4 
in

 th
e 

G
en

er
al

 P
ol

ic
ie

s 
se

ct
io

n 
de

al
s 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 w

ith
 w

as
te

w
at

er
 tr

ea
tm

en
t a

nd
 ri

ve
r w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y.

 
 

 

3.
45

 
 “

Fi
gu

re
 3

.5
 s

et
s 

ou
t 

an
 in

di
ca

tiv
e 

tr
aj

ec
to

ry
 fo

r 
to

ta
l h

ou
si

ng
 c

om
pl

et
io

ns
, w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 b

as
is

 fo
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
co

m
pl

et
io

ns
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

pl
an

 
pe

rio
d.

 T
he

 s
up

pl
y 

of
 n

ew
 h

ou
si

ng
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

on
ito

re
d 

cl
os

el
y 

an
d 

if 
ra

te
s 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

fa
ll 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 b
el

ow
 t

ar
ge

ts
, a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

as
 to

 w
he

th
er

 th
e 

ea
rly

 re
le

as
e 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

llo
ca

tio
ns

 is
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 b
oo

st
 d

el
iv

er
y.

” 
 

 

3.
46

 
D

el
et

e 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h:

 
“T

he
 fi

gu
re

 o
f 2

0%
 v

ar
ia

tio
n 

in
 r

at
es

 o
f d

el
iv

er
y,

 a
bo

ve
 o

r b
el

ow
, o

n 
a 

co
un

ty
 w

id
e 

ba
si

s 
w

ill
 ’t

rig
ge

r’
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 e
xp

lo
re

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n.

 D
el

iv
er

y 
ra

te
s 

ar
e 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 to

 b
e 

lo
w

er
 in

 t
he

 e
ar

ly
 y

ea
rs

 o
f t

he
 P

la
n.

 T
he

re
fo

re
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

an
y 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 in
 th

e 
ca

se
 o

f u
nd

er
 

de
liv

er
y 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

un
til

 t
he

 m
id

dl
e/

la
tt

er
 s

ta
ge

s 
of

 t
he

 p
la

n 
pe

rio
d.

  I
t s

ho
ul

d 
be

 n
ot

ed
 t

ha
t t

he
 s

up
pl

y/
de

liv
er

y 
si

tu
at

io
n 

w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 s
in

gl
e 

ye
ar

 d
el

iv
er

y 
ra

te
s,

 b
ut

 o
n 

an
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 s
itu

at
io

n 
ov

er
 a

t 
le

as
t 

3-
5 

ye
ar

s.
 S

ho
ul

d 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
ra

te
s 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 e
xc

ee
d 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 r

at
es

 o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

w
ill

 o
nl

y 
be

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 w

he
re

 t
he

 r
at

e 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
is

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 t
he

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 o

f t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 n

ot
 b

ei
ng

 a
ch

ie
ve

d.
” 

 

 

Fi
g 

3.
5 

 
D

el
et

e 
Fi

gu
re

 3
.5

 
Fi

gu
re

 3
.5

 - 
In

di
ca

ti
ve

 h
ou

si
ng

 tr
aj

ec
to

ry
 2

01
1-

 3
1 

 
20

11
-1

6 
20

16
-2

1 
20

21
-2

6 
20

26
-3

1 
To

ta
l 

H
er

ef
or

d 
10

00
 

15
00

 
20

00
 

20
00

 
65

00
 

Le
om

in
st

er
 

30
0 

50
0 

70
0 

80
0 

23
00

 
Ro

ss
-o

n-
W

ye
 

25
0 

27
5 

17
5 

20
0 

90
0 

Le
db

ur
y 

18
0 

35
0 

21
0 

60
 

80
0 

Br
om

ya
rd

 
12

0 
12

5 
12

5 
13

0 
50

0 

 

57



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

Ki
ng

to
n 

30
 

40
 

60
 

70
 

20
0 

Ru
ra

l A
re

as
 

11
20

 
14

60
 

12
30

 
14

90
 

53
00

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
30

00
 

42
50

 
45

00
 

47
50

 
16

50
0 

 

M
M

08
. 

SS
4 

SS
4 

– 
M

ov
em

en
t a

nd
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

ti
on

 
N

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

an
d 

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 m

in
im

is
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 t

he
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 n
et

w
or

k;
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 jo
ur

ne
y 

tim
es

 a
nd

 t
he

 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 a

nd
 s

af
e 

op
er

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 n
et

w
or

k 
ar

e 
no

t 
de

tr
im

en
ta

lly
 im

pa
ct

ed
.  

Fu
rt

he
rm

or
e,

 w
he

re
 p

ra
ct

ic
ab

le
, d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
op

os
al

s 
sh

ou
ld

 
be

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

by
 a

nd
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

a 
ge

nu
in

e 
ch

oi
ce

 o
f m

od
es

 o
f t

ra
ve

l i
nc

lu
di

ng
 w

al
ki

ng
, c

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 tr
an

sp
or

t.
   

 
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 th
at

 w
ill

 g
en

er
at

e 
hi

gh
 jo

ur
ne

y 
nu

m
be

rs
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 in
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 lo

ca
tio

ns
, a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
by

 m
ea

ns
 o

th
er

 th
an

 p
riv

at
e 

ca
r.

 
Al

te
rn

at
iv

el
y,

 s
uc

h 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 t
ha

t 
th

ey
 c

an
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

by
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

un
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

pa
tt

er
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

tr
av

el
 b

y 
w

al
ki

ng
, c

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
 “P

ro
po

sa
ls

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

ne
w

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
ed

 e
xi

st
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
, w

al
ki

ng
 a

nd
 c

yc
lin

g 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 w
ill

 b
e 

su
pp

or
te

d.
  

W
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
, 

la
nd

 a
nd

 r
ou

te
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

de
d 

as
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

in
 fu

tu
re

 lo
ca

l o
r 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pe

r 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
, w

hi
ch

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
st

at
ut

or
y 

te
st

s,
 s

ou
gh

t t
o 

as
si

st
 w

ith
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 n
ew

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 tr
an

sp
or

t i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

at
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

fo
r 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

en
er

gy
 

ca
rs

.”
  

  “
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
H

ig
hw

ay
s 

Ag
en

cy
, n

at
io

na
l o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 N
et

w
or

k 
Ra

il,
 b

us
 a

nd
 tr

ai
n 

op
er

at
or

s ,
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
an

d 
lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 t
o 

br
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
th

e 
lo

ca
l a

nd
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 n

et
w

or
k 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
co

ng
es

tio
n,

 im
pr

ov
e 

ai
r 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 r

oa
d 

sa
fe

ty
 a

nd
 o

ff
er

 g
re

at
er

 tr
an

sp
or

t c
ho

ic
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
aj

or
 s

ch
em

es
: 

   
ES

G
 L

in
k 

Ro
ad

 (s
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

 ro
ut

e)
 a

nd
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 H
ub

; 
  

H
er

ef
or

d 
Re

lie
f R

oa
d;

 
  

So
ut

he
rn

 L
eo

m
in

st
er

 R
el

ie
f R

oa
d;

 
  

Co
nn

ec
t 2

 C
yc

le
w

ay
 in

 H
er

ef
or

d;
 

  
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 R

id
e 

sc
he

m
es

; a
nd

 
  

ot
he

r s
ch

em
es

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
 P

la
n 

an
d 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 D

el
iv

er
y 

Pl
an

. 
 

              

58



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

Pr
op

os
al

s 
w

hi
ch

 e
na

bl
e 

th
e 

tr
an

sf
er

 o
f 

fr
ei

gh
t 

fr
om

 r
oa

d 
to

 r
ai

l 
w

ill
 b

e 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

. 
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
op

os
al

s 
in

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 
ve

hi
cu

la
r 

m
ov

em
en

ts
 t

ha
t 

co
ul

d 
de

tr
im

en
ta

lly
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l q
ua

lit
y,

 a
m

en
ity

, s
af

et
y 

an
d 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
of

 t
he

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 lo
ca

lit
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 d

em
on

st
ra

tin
g 

ho
w

 th
e 

tr
af

fic
 im

pa
ct

s 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

m
iti

ga
te

d.
 

 

M
M

09
. 

3.
72

 
Ad

d 
to

 e
nd

 o
f p

ar
a:

 
Th

e 
co

un
ty

 h
as

 a
 h

ig
h 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 s
m

al
l a

nd
 m

ed
iu

m
 s

iz
ed

 e
nt

er
pr

is
es

 a
nd

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 o
ff

er
 c

on
tin

ui
ng

 s
up

po
rt

 f
or

 s
uc

h 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 in
 

fu
tu

re
. 

 

M
M

01
0.

3.
76

 
Th

e 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
La

nd
 S

tu
dy

 2
01

2 
st

at
es

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
em

er
gi

ng
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 h
as

 a
n 

ov
er

al
l t

ar
ge

t 
of

 1
48

 h
ec

ta
re

s 
(h

a)
 o

f 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d,
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 a
 r

ol
lin

g 
fiv

e 
ye

ar
 r

es
er

vo
ir 

of
 3

7 
ha

. B
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ou

tp
ut

 o
f 

pr
oj

ec
tin

g 
pa

st
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
ra

te
s,

 t
he

 
ov

er
al

l t
ar

ge
t 

of
 1

48
 h

a 
ou

tli
ne

d 
in

 t
he

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 w
ou

ld
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 r
ob

us
t 

le
ve

l o
f 

su
pp

ly
 a

nd
 w

ou
ld

 e
na

bl
e 

a 
w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
an

d 
ch

oi
ce

 o
f 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

si
te

s 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 c
ou

nt
y 

to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t 
th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d.
 H

ig
he

r 
qu

al
ity

 la
nd

 r
ef

er
re

d 
to

 in
 t

hi
s 

po
lic

y 
is

 t
ha

t 
de

fin
ed

 a
s 

“b
es

t”
 a

nd
 “

go
od

” 
in

 t
he

 2
01

2 
St

ud
y 

an
d 

is
 s

ub
je

ct
 t

o 
m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

di
sc

us
si

on
 in

 p
ol

ic
y 

E2
.  

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 6
 s

et
s 

ou
t 

de
ta

ils
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t l
an

d 
an

d 
its

 d
el

iv
er

y 
an

d 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
 

 

M
M

01
1.

SS
6 

Po
lic

y 
SS

6 
– 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

lo
ca

l d
is

ti
nc

tiv
en

es
s 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
se

rv
e 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
e 

th
os

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

as
se

ts
 t

ha
t 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

y’
s 

di
st

in
ct

iv
en

es
s,

 i
n 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 it

s 
se

tt
le

m
en

t 
pa

tt
er

n,
 la

nd
sc

ap
e,

 b
io

di
ve

rs
ity

 a
nd

 h
is

to
ric

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 t

ho
se

 w
ith

 s
pe

ci
fic

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l d
es

ig
na

tio
ns

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 s

ho
ul

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 t
ho

se
 e

co
sy

st
em

s 
es

se
nt

ia
l t

o 
th

e 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
co

un
ty

’s
 

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
its

 e
co

no
m

y.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 s

ha
pe

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
an

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 p

la
nn

in
g 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

ou
ts

et
, a

nd
 b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 u
po

n 
ea

ch
 w

he
re

 th
ey

 a
re

 re
le

va
nt

:  
 

la
nd

sc
ap

e,
 to

w
ns

ca
pe

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l d
is

tin
ct

iv
en

es
s,

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 in

 A
re

as
 o

f O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 N
at

ur
al

   
   

Be
au

ty
; 

 
bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
 a

nd
 g

eo
di

ve
rs

ity
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 S
pe

ci
al

 A
re

as
 o

f C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
an

d 
Si

te
s 

of
 S

pe
ci

al
 S

ci
en

tif
ic

 In
te

re
st

 ; 
 

hi
st

or
ic

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 h

er
ita

ge
 a

ss
et

s 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 S
ch

ed
ul

ed
 M

on
um

en
ts

 a
nd

 L
is

te
d 

Bu
ild

in
gs

 
 

th
e 

ne
tw

or
k 

of
 g

re
en

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
; 

 
lo

ca
l a

m
en

ity
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 li
gh

t p
ol

lu
tio

n,
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 tr
an

qu
ill

ity
; 

 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l a
nd

 fo
od

 p
ro

du
ct

iv
ity

 a
nd

 s
oi

ls
;  

 
 

ph
ys

ic
al

 re
so

ur
ce

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

m
in

er
al

s,
 s

oi
ls

, m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f w
as

te
, t

he
 w

at
er

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t, 

re
ne

w
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
an

d 
en

er
gy

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n.
  

  Th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 o
f t

he
 c

ou
nt

y’
s 

in
te

rn
at

io
na

l a
nd

 n
at

io
na

lly
 im

po
rt

an
t 

fe
at

ur
es

 a
nd

 a
re

as
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

at
er

ia
l 

to
 t

he
 d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 r
el

ev
an

t 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s.

 F
ur

th
er

m
or

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 

fe
at

ur
es

, 
ar

ea
s 

an
d 

si
te

s 
de

fin
in

g 
lo

ca
l 

               

59



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

di
st

in
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 o

th
er

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pl

an
 d

oc
um

en
ts

, 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 p
la

nn
in

g 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 w
he

re
 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 to

 d
ef

in
e 

lo
ca

l d
is

tin
ct

iv
en

es
s 

sh
ou

ld
 in

fo
rm

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 u

po
n 

pr
op

os
al

s 
  

 W
he

re
 t

he
 b

en
ef

its
 o

f 
pr

op
os

al
s 

ar
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 t

o 
ou

tw
ei

gh
 t

he
 a

dv
er

se
 e

ff
ec

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t,
 o

r 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

co
m

pe
tin

g 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 a

nd
 fu

ll 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

is
 n

ot
 p

os
si

bl
e,

 c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
m

ea
su

re
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ad

va
nc

ed
 

  

    

3.
10

2 
Th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

op
os

ed
 s

ho
ul

d 
de

liv
er

 s
ite

s 
th

at
, 

in
 a

lm
os

t 
al

l 
ca

se
s,

 p
ro

te
ct

 a
nd

/o
r 

en
ha

nc
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 n
at

ur
al

, 
bu

ilt
, 

hi
st

or
ic

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l 
as

se
ts

 i
n 

th
e 

co
un

ty
’s

 c
at

he
dr

al
 c

ity
, 

hi
st

or
ic

 m
ar

ke
t 

to
w

ns
, 

sm
al

le
r 

se
tt

le
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 d
is

tin
ct

iv
e 

co
un

tr
ys

id
e.

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
 N

at
ur

al
 E

ng
la

nd
 h

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 f

or
 e

ac
h 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

re
a 

of
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

y;
 it

 is
 

al
so

 c
on

su
lte

d 
up

on
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 t
ha

t 
m

ig
ht

 a
ff

ec
t 

Si
te

s 
of

 S
pe

ci
al

 S
ci

en
tif

ic
 In

te
re

st
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 t
ha

t 
m

ay
 b

e 
re

le
va

nt
 t

o 
th

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

nd
 a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
ir 

fa
vo

ur
ab

le
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

st
at

us
. M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 f

or
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

W
ye

 V
al

le
y 

an
d 

M
al

ve
rn

 H
ill

s 
Ar

ea
s 

of
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 N

at
ur

al
 B

ea
ut

y.
 T

he
se

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

le
va

nt
 t

o 
th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
of

 e
ff

ec
ts

 o
f 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

up
on

 t
he

se
 im

po
rt

an
t 

as
se

ts
. T

he
 m

os
t 

rig
or

ou
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
 t

o 
as

se
ss

in
g 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
fo

r 
th

os
e 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
 n

at
io

na
l o

r 
an

d 
in

te
rn

at
io

na
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l d

es
ig

na
tio

ns
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
pr

op
os

al
s 

in
 a

re
as

 o
ut

si
de

 b
ut

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 h
av

in
g 

an
 e

ff
ec

t 
up

on
 t

he
m

, i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 t

he
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
af

fo
rd

ed
 t

o 
su

ch
 a

re
as

 in
 t

he
 N

at
io

na
l P

la
nn

in
g 

Po
lic

y 
Fr

am
ew

or
k.

 S
ite

s 
an

d 
fe

at
ur

es
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 s

ho
ul

d 
al

so
 r

ec
ei

ve
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 le
ve

l o
f p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
w

he
n 

de
te

rm
in

in
g 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 u
po

n 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
an

d 
lo

ca
l 

di
st

in
ct

iv
en

es
s.

 S
ub

se
qu

en
t 

po
lic

ie
s 

se
t 

ou
t 

th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 t
ha

t 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 t

he
se

 a
nd

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 s
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 p

la
nn

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

re
fe

rr
ed

 in
 t

he
ir 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
t 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 r

el
ev

an
t.

 A
pp

en
di

x 
8 

pr
ov

id
es

 li
st

s 
of

 t
ho

se
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 d

ra
ft

in
g 

th
is

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
. H

ow
ev

er
, l

oc
al

ly
 im

po
rt

an
t s

ite
s 

an
d 

fe
at

ur
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

al
so

 re
ce

iv
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 le

ve
ls

 o
f c

ar
e 

w
he

n 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 u
po

n 
th

em
.  

 

M
M

01
2.

SS
7 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ro

po
sa

ls
 w

ill
 b

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 m
iti

ga
te

 th
ei

r i
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
. 

 At
 a

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 le

ve
l, 

th
is

 w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e:

 
 

fo
cu

ss
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
o 

th
e 

m
os

t s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 lo
ca

tio
ns

; 
 

de
liv

er
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
ha

t s
ee

ks
 to

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 tr
av

el
 b

y 
pr

iv
at

e 
ca

r a
nd

 w
hi

ch
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

s 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

av
el

 o
pt

io
ns

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

w
al

ki
ng

, c
yc

lin
g 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
t;

 
 

de
si

gn
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 to

 re
du

ce
 c

ar
bo

n 
em

is
si

on
s 

an
d 

us
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

ly
; 

 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 d

ec
en

tr
al

is
ed

 a
nd

 re
ne

w
ab

le
 o

r l
ow

 c
ar

bo
n 

en
er

gy
 w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

;  

       

60



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
, l

oc
al

 fo
od

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n,

 p
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

an
d 

fa
rm

in
g 

to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

co
un

ty
’s

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 fo
od

 m
ile

s*
; 

 
pr

ot
ec

tin
g 

th
e 

be
st

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l l
an

d 
w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e;
 

 Ke
y 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 re
sp

on
se

s 
to

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 in

cl
ud

e:
 

 
ta

ki
ng

 in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 th
e 

kn
ow

n 
ph

ys
ic

al
 a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l c

on
st

ra
in

ts
 w

he
n 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t;
 

 
en

su
rin

g 
de

si
gn

 a
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

 a
re

 re
si

lie
nt

 to
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 im
pa

ct
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 p
as

si
ve

 s
ol

ar
 d

es
ig

n 
fo

r h
ea

tin
g 

an
d 

co
ol

in
g 

an
d 

tr
ee

 p
la

nt
in

g 
fo

r s
ha

di
ng

; 
 

m
in

im
is

in
g 

th
e 

ris
k 

of
 fl

oo
di

ng
 a

nd
 m

ak
in

g 
us

e 
of

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
m

et
ho

ds
;  

 
re

du
ci

ng
 h

ea
t i

sl
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

s 
(f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

an
d 

w
at

er
, p

la
nt

in
g 

an
d 

gr
ee

n 
ro

of
s)

; 
 

re
du

ct
io

n,
 re

-u
se

 a
nd

 re
cy

cl
in

g 
of

 w
as

te
 w

ith
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 e
m

ph
as

is
 o

n 
w

as
te

 m
in

im
is

at
io

n 
on

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t s
ite

s;
 a

nd
 

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 m

us
t d

em
on

st
ra

te
 w

at
er

 e
ff

ic
ie

nc
y 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 re
du

ce
 d

em
an

d 
on

 w
at

er
 re

so
ur

ce
s.

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 a

pp
lia

nc
es

 a
nd

 e
xp

lo
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 ra

in
w

at
er

 re
cy

cl
in

g 
Ad

ap
ta

tio
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

de
si

gn
 a

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 in
 m

or
e 

lo
ca

lly
 s

pe
ci

fic
 d

et
ai

l i
n 

a 
D

es
ig

n 
Co

de
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 P
la

nn
in

g 
D

oc
um

en
t.

 

              

Pl
ac

e 
Sh

ap
in

g 
- H

er
ef

or
d 

M
M

01
3.

4.
2.

7 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
To

 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
hi

s 
vi

si
on

, t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 H

er
ef

or
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

ns
 a

nd
 e

nh
an

ce
s 

its
 r

ol
e 

as
 a

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 c

en
tr

e.
 W

ith
in

 t
he

 c
on

te
xt

 
of

 t
he

 w
id

er
 P

la
n 

in
 g

en
er

al
, a

nd
 P

ol
ic

ie
s 

H
D

1 
to

 H
D

6 
in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 “

H
er

ef
or

d”
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 r
eg

ar
de

d 
in

 p
ol

ic
y 

te
rm

s 
as

 t
he

 a
re

a 
to

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 H
er

ef
or

d 
Ar

ea
 P

la
n.

 T
he

y 
po

lic
ie

s 
re

fle
ct

 it
s 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 t
o 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
ith

ou
t 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 h

ar
m

 t
o 

lo
ca

l 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 in

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 lo
ca

tio
ns

.  
Co

nc
en

tr
at

in
g 

th
e 

la
rg

es
t p

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

co
un

ty
’s

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

H
er

ef
or

d 
w

ill
 h

el
p 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 

su
pp

or
t 

th
e 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 c

ity
 i

n 
th

e 
lo

ng
 t

er
m

, 
by

 c
ap

ita
lis

in
g 

on
 e

xi
st

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

gr
ea

te
r 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 f
or

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 t
he

m
. P

ol
ic

ie
s 

H
D

2,
 H

D
4,

 H
D

5 
an

d 
H

D
6 

an
d 

th
e 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
te

xt
 e

xp
la

in
 t

he
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 f
or

 t
he

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
t t

he
 u

rb
an

 e
xt

en
si

on
s 

in
 te

rm
s 

of
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
 

 

 

61



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

M
M

01
4.

H
D

1   
TE

XT
  

CH
AN

G
E 

Po
lic

y 
H

D
1-

 H
er

ef
or

d 
H

er
ef

or
d 

w
ill

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
ar

ou
nd

 a
 m

in
im

um
 o

f 6
,5

00
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d 
an

d 
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f 1

5 
ha

 o
f n

ew
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t l

an
d.

 
M

aj
or

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 in
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

lo
ca

tio
ns

: 

 
Ar

ou
nd

 8
00

 n
ew

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 in

 H
er

ef
or

d 
Ci

ty
 C

en
tr

e 
(H

D
2)

 
 

Ar
ou

nd
 5

00
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 a
t t

he
 N

or
th

er
n 

U
rb

an
 E

xp
an

si
on

 A
re

a 
(H

D
4)

 
 

Ar
ou

nd
 1

,0
00

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 a

t t
he

 W
es

te
rn

 U
rb

an
 E

xp
an

si
on

 A
re

a 
(H

D
5)

 
 

Ar
ou

nd
 1

,0
00

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 a

t t
he

 S
ou

th
er

n 
U

rb
an

 E
xp

an
si

on
 A

re
a 

(H
D

6)
 

Th
e 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 h

ou
si

ng
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

of
 a

ro
un

d 
3,

20
0 

dw
el

lin
gs

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
, w

in
df

al
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

an
d 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 n

on
-s

tr
at

eg
ic

 s
ite

s 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 H
er

ef
or

d 
Ar

ea
 P

la
n 

or
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
ns

. 
M

aj
or

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ill

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 in

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
lo

ca
tio

ns
:  

 
10

ha
 o

f e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t l
an

d 
at

 th
e 

W
es

te
rn

 U
rb

an
 E

xp
an

si
on

 a
re

a 
 

Ar
ou

nd
 5

ha
 o

f e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t l
an

d 
at

 th
e 

So
ut

he
rn

 U
rb

an
 E

xp
an

si
on

 a
re

a.
  

Fu
rt

he
r e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t l

an
d 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ol
ic

y 
H

D
7 

 

M
M

01
5.

H
D

2 
Po

lic
y 

H
D

2 
– 

H
er

ef
or

d 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

e 
 

 Th
e 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e 

w
ill

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
ar

ou
nd

 8
00

 n
ew

 h
om

es
, 

th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 t
o 

be
 l

oc
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 a
 n

ew
 u

rb
an

 v
ill

ag
e.

 F
ur

th
er

 r
es

id
en

tia
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
ill

 t
ak

e 
pl

ac
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
, 

re
-d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

br
ow

nf
ie

ld
 s

ite
s,

 r
e-

us
e 

of
 

up
pe

r 
flo

or
s 

ab
ov

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 p

re
m

is
es

, i
nf

ill
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

si
te

 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Ar
ea

 P
la

n.
 A

 t
ar

ge
t 

of
 3

5%
 o

f t
he

se
 n

ew
 

ho
m

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ix
ed

 te
nu

re
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
w

ith
 a

 d
en

si
ty

 th
at

 is
 c

om
pa

tib
le

 w
ith

 th
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ur
ba

n 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

si
te

. 
 Th

e 
ur

ba
n 

vi
lla

ge
 w

ill
 b

e 
se

rv
ed

 b
y 

sa
fe

 a
nd

 a
tt

ra
ct

iv
e 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
an

d 
cy

cl
e 

lin
ks

 t
o 

ot
he

r 
ar

ea
s 

of
 t

he
 c

ity
, t

he
 n

ew
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 in
te

rc
ha

ng
e,

 t
he

 
Co

ur
ty

ar
d 

Ar
ts

 C
en

tr
e 

an
d 

ne
ar

by
 a

re
as

 o
f g

re
en

 s
pa

ce
. A

 n
ew

 L
in

k 
Ro

ad
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

se
rv

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pa

rc
el

s 
fo

rm
in

g 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 u
rb

an
 v

ill
ag

e 
co

nn
ec

tin
g 

Ed
ga

r 
St

re
et

 to
 th

e 
w

es
t a

nd
 C

om
m

er
ci

al
 R

oa
d 

to
 th

e 
ea

st
 (w

ith
 a

 s
pu

r 
lin

ki
ng

 B
la

ck
fr

ia
rs

 S
tr

ee
t t

o 
th

e 
so

ut
h)

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

as
si

st
in

g 
in

 
re

du
ci

ng
 tr

af
fic

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
co

re
 o

f t
he

 c
ity

.  
 N

ew
m

ar
ke

t 
St

re
et

, 
Bl

ue
sc

ho
ol

 S
tr

ee
t 

an
d 

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

 S
qu

ar
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
-d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 b

ec
om

e 
sa

fe
 a

nd
 a

tt
ra

ct
iv

e 
ro

ut
es

 f
or

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

an
d 

cy
cl

is
ts

, 
w

ith
 i

m
pr

ov
ed

 p
ub

lic
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

ed
 c

on
ne

ct
iv

ity
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

hi
st

or
ic

 c
ity

 c
en

tr
e 

an
d 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

ar
ea

 p
ar

tly
 

fa
ci

lit
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ne
w

 li
nk

 ro
ad

.  
 

 

62



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

 Th
e 

ur
ba

n 
vi

lla
ge

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
m

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 o
th

er
 u

se
s 

an
d 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 f

or
m

in
g 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

w
id

er
 r

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

ar
ea

 c
re

at
in

g 
a 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

m
ix

ed
 u

se
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

w
hi

ch
 re

sp
ec

ts
 a

nd
 w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e 
en

ha
nc

es
 th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t.
 T

he
se

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

 

 
a 

ca
na

l b
as

in
 f

or
m

in
g 

th
e 

te
rm

in
us

 o
f 

th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 a

nd
 G

lo
uc

es
te

rs
hi

re
 C

an
al

 w
ill

 b
e 

cr
ea

te
d 

la
nd

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 t

ow
ar

ds
 a

 
ca

na
l b

as
in

 fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

te
rm

in
us

 o
f t

he
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 &
 G

lo
uc

es
te

rs
hi

re
 C

an
al

, w
hi

ch
 is

 b
ei

ng
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

H
er

ef
or

d 
&

 G
lo

uc
es

te
r 

Ca
na

l T
ru

st
; 

 
ea

ch
 s

ta
ge

 o
f 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
hi

ch
 a

dj
oi

ns
 W

id
em

ar
sh

 B
ro

ok
 w

ill
 b

e 
 m

ax
im

is
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 f
or

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
fo

r 
bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
, t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
flo

od
 re

lie
f a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 s

ur
fa

ce
 w

at
er

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
so

lu
tio

ns
 a

nd
 o

pt
im

is
ed

 a
s 

a 
gr

ee
n 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 li

nk
; 

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 p

ub
lic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 o

pe
ra

to
rs

 w
ill

 d
el

iv
er

 a
n 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 in
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
cl

os
e 

to
 th

e 
ra

ilw
ay

 s
ta

tio
n 

to
 m

ax
im

is
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 tr

av
el

; 
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r 

ne
w

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

, t
ou

ris
m

, e
du

ca
tio

n 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

te
rt

ia
ry

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s)
 le

is
ur

e,
 h

ea
lth

, c
iv

ic
 a

nd
 p

ol
ic

e 
an

d 
fir

e 
us

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 m

ee
t a

ny
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

ne
ed

; 
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

te
na

nt
(s

) o
f E

dg
ar

 S
tr

ee
t 

fo
ot

ba
ll 

st
ad

iu
m

 to
 e

xp
lo

re
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

a 
sp

or
ts

 le
d 

m
ix

ed
-

us
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f p

ar
ts

 o
f H

er
ef

or
d 

U
ni

te
d 

Fo
ot

ba
ll 

G
ro

un
d,

 in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
ne

w
 s

pe
ct

at
or

 s
ta

nd
s,

 w
ill

 b
e 

so
ug

ht
; a

nd
 

 
ne

w
 p

ub
lic

 c
ar

 p
ar

ki
ng

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

In
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 v

ita
lit

y 
of

 t
he

 c
ity

 c
en

tr
e,

 n
ew

 r
e t

ai
l u

se
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

fo
cu

se
d 

to
 t

he
 c

or
e 

of
 t

he
 c

ity
 c

en
tr

e 
as

 
de

fin
ed

 b
el

ow
. A

ny
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

fu
rt

he
r 

m
aj

or
 r

et
ai

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
ov

er
 t

he
 p

la
n 

pe
rio

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

et
 th

ro
ug

h 
fu

rt
he

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
Ei

gn
 G

at
e 

an
d 

th
at

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 E
dg

ar
 S

tr
ee

t 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
ar

ea
 w

hi
ch

 li
es

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 d

ef
in

ed
 t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 t
he

 f
or

m
er

 li
ve

st
oc

k 
m

ar
ke

t s
ite

 O
ld

 M
ar

ke
t, 

al
on

g 
Bl

ue
sc

ho
ol

 S
tr

ee
t a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
re

fu
rb

is
hm

en
t a

nd
 re

-d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

he
 B

ut
te

rm
ar

ke
t.

  
 W

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

d 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

e,
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ch

an
ge

s 
of

 u
se

 w
ill

 b
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 w
he

re
 th

ey
: 

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ne

w
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 a

nd
 o

ff
ic

e 
sp

ac
e 

in
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 c

ity
 c

en
tr

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ab
ov

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
re

ta
il 

an
d 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 p
re

m
is

es
; 

 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
e 

th
e 

vi
ta

lit
y 

an
d 

vi
ab

ili
ty

 o
f t

he
 c

ity
 c

en
tr

e.
 P

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 u
se

s 
ou

ts
id

e 
th

e 
de

fin
ed

 t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

 w
ill

 
be

 s
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

th
e 

se
qu

en
tia

l 
te

st
 a

nd
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 f

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

ov
er

 1
,2

50
 7

00
 m

2  g
ro

ss
 f

lo
or

 s
pa

ce
 w

ill
 r

eq
ui

re
 a

n 
im

pa
ct

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t t
o 

de
te

rm
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 th

er
e 

co
ul

d 
be

 a
ny

 a
dv

er
se

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
; 

 
im

pr
ov

e 
ov

er
al

l a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
by

 w
al

ki
ng

, c
yc

lin
g 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
t;

 
 

pr
ov

id
e 

ne
w

, o
r e

nh
an

ce
d 

sp
or

t,
 re

cr
ea

tio
n 

an
d 

le
is

ur
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r l
oc

al
 re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

vi
si

to
rs

; 
 

pr
ov

id
e 

ne
w

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

cu
ltu

ra
l a

nd
 t

ou
ris

m
 a

tt
ra

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 f

ac
ili

tie
s,

 w
hi

ch
 r

es
pe

ct
 t

he
 c

ity
’s

 h
is

to
ric

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l 

di
st

in
ct

iv
en

es
s;

 

63



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

 
en

ab
le

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 c

an
al

 b
as

in
 w

ith
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ha
rf

ag
e 

an
d 

vi
si

to
r c

en
tr

e;
 

 
en

ab
le

 t
he

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n,

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
re

st
or

at
io

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t 
of

 H
er

ef
or

d’
s 

na
tu

ra
l 

an
d 

he
rit

ag
e 

as
se

ts
 t

he
re

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 a
nd

 
se

tt
in

g,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
y,

 w
ith

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 re

ga
rd

 to
 th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 s

tr
ee

t p
at

te
rn

s 
an

d 
th

e 
sk

yl
in

e.
  

 
4.

2.
16

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 u
rb

an
 v

ill
ag

e 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 t

he
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f t
he

 a
ro

un
d 

80
0 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 in

 t
he

 c
ity

 c
en

tr
e.

 T
he

se
 w

ill
 c

om
pr

is
e 

a 
m

ix
tu

re
 

of
 a

pa
rt

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 f

am
ily

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
t 

a 
m

in
im

um
 a

ve
ra

ge
 d

en
si

ty
 o

f 
50

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 p

er
 h

ec
ta

re
. 

35
%

 o
f 

th
es

e 
ho

m
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
, 

w
ith

 
di

ff
er

en
t 

ty
pe

s 
of

 t
en

ur
es

 a
va

ila
bl

e,
 t

o 
sa

tis
fy

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 l

oc
al

 n
ee

ds
. 

H
ou

si
ng

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 t
ha

t 
m

ee
ts

 t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f 
al

l 
se

ct
io

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ho
us

in
g 

fo
r 

ol
de

r 
pe

rs
on

s 
– 

a 
ne

ed
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
st

ud
y 

of
 t

he
 H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 S

up
po

rt
 N

ee
ds

 o
f 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e 
in

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 2
01

2.
 A

ll 
ho

m
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d 

to
 h

ig
h 

en
er

gy
 e

ff
ic

ie
nc

y 
st

an
da

rd
s 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
in

 th
is

 p
la

n 

 

4.
2.

21
 

Pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r 
of

fic
e 

us
es

 o
ut

si
de

 t
he

 c
ity

 c
en

tr
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 t

he
 s

eq
ue

nt
ia

l a
pp

ro
ac

h,
 a

s 
ou

tli
ne

d 
in

 p
ol

ic
y 

E5
. P

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r 

of
fic

es
 w

hi
ch

 
ha

ve
 a

 g
ro

ss
 f

lo
or

 s
pa

ce
 o

f 
1,

25
0 

70
0 

 m
2  o

r 
ov

er
, o

ut
si

de
 t

he
 c

ity
 c

en
tr

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

im
pa

ct
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
w

hi
ch

 m
ee

ts
 t

he
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 N

at
io

na
l P

la
nn

in
g 

Po
lic

y 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

an
d 

po
lic

y 
E5

 

 

4.
2.

27
 

Co
m

m
un

it
y 

an
d 

 E
du

ca
ti

on
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

/o
r 

co
m

m
un

ity
 i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
le

vy
 m

on
ie

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
so

ug
ht

 f
ro

m
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t 

of
 p

rim
ar

y 
an

d 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

to
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
de

m
an

d 
fr

om
 n

ew
 r

es
id

en
ts

. 
Th

e 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

e 
w

ill
 p

la
y 

a 
ro

le
 i

n 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

gr
ea

te
r 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
hi

gh
er

 e
du

ca
tio

n.
 A

t 
th

e 
tim

e 
of

 a
do

pt
io

n 
th

er
e 

is
 a

n 
am

bi
tio

n 
to

 c
re

at
e 

a 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 i
n 

H
er

ef
or

d,
 t

he
 p

rin
ci

pa
l 

of
 w

hi
ch

 i
s 

fu
lly

 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 P

ol
ic

y 
SC

1 
 

 

4.
2.

31
 

Th
e 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e 

of
 H

er
ef

or
d,

 r
ef

er
re

d 
to

 a
s 

‘to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

’ f
or

 p
ur

po
se

s 
of

 P
ol

ic
y 

E5
, i

s 
de

fin
ed

 in
 F

ig
ur

e 
4.

3 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

es
 p

rim
ar

y 
an

d 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

fr
on

ta
ge

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
fin

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Ar
ea

 P
la

n 
(H

AP
)..

 R
et

ai
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
co

nc
en

tr
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

. A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

pr
op

os
al

s 
w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
a 

gr
os

s 
flo

or
 s

pa
ce

 o
f 1

,2
50

 7
00

 m
2  o

r 
ov

er
, o

ut
si

de
 th

e 
de

fin
ed

 c
en

tr
e 

as
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
H

AP
, w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
an

 im
pa

ct
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t w
hi

ch
 m

ee
ts

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 N

at
io

na
l P

la
nn

in
g 

Po
lic

y 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

an
d 

po
lic

ie
s 

E5
 a

nd
 E

6 

 

4.
2.

37
 

An
y 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r 
le

is
ur

e 
us

es
 o

ut
si

de
 t

he
 c

ity
 t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
, 

ha
vi

ng
 a

 g
ro

ss
 f

lo
or

 s
pa

ce
 o

f 
1,

25
0 

 7
00

  
  

 m
2  o

r 
ov

er
, 

w
ill

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 t

he
 

se
qu

en
tia

l t
es

t 
an

d 
be

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

im
pa

ct
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
w

hi
ch

 m
ee

ts
 t

he
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

N
at

io
na

l P
la

nn
in

g 
Po

lic
y 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
an

d 
po

lic
y 

E5
. 

 

 

Fi
g 

4.
3 

D
el

et
e 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.3
, a

nd
 r

ep
la

ce
 w

ith
 a

  
ne

w
 m

ap
 s

ho
w

in
g 

th
e 

O
ld

 M
ar

ke
t 

an
d 

Li
nk

 R
oa

d 
to

 s
et

 t
he

 c
ity

 c
en

tr
e 

in
to

 p
ro

pe
r 

co
nt

ex
t 

at
 t

im
e 

of
 

ad
op

tio
n 

 

M
M

01
6.

H
D

3 
Po

lic
y 

H
D

3 
- 

H
er

ef
or

d 
m

ov
em

en
t  

64



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
: 

 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

H
er

ef
or

d’
s 

ec
on

om
y 

by
 i

nc
re

as
in

g 
co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

 t
o 

th
e 

na
tio

na
l 

an
d 

lo
ca

l 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

ne
tw

or
ks

 b
y 

re
du

ci
ng

 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
jo

ur
ne

y 
tim

e 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

us
in

g 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 f
un

di
ng

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

un
ci

l 
fu

nd
in

g,
 p

ub
lic

 f
un

di
ng

, 
Eu

ro
pe

an
 fu

nd
in

g,
 d

ev
el

op
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
/o

r c
om

m
un

ity
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 le
vy

 m
on

ie
s 

to
 fu

nd
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 
 

im
pr

ov
e 

he
al

th
, w

el
lb

ei
ng

 a
nd

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

by
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

ai
r 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

no
is

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
m

ax
im

is
in

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 fo

r 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 tr
an

sp
or

t m
od

es
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 fo

r s
ho

rt
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

jo
ur

ne
ys

. 
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 u
se

 a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f f
un

di
ng

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 
  

pa
ck

ag
es

 o
f 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 f

oc
us

si
ng

 o
n 

ke
y 

ro
ut

es
 i

nt
o 

th
e 

ci
ty

 d
el

iv
er

in
g 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 p

ub
lic

 r
ea

lm
 i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 c

on
ne

ct
iv

ity
 fo

r p
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

, c
yc

lis
ts

 a
nd

 b
us

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 m
od

e 
us

er
s;

 

 
Be

ha
vi

ou
ra

l 
ch

an
ge

 c
am

pa
ig

ns
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 c
om

pl
em

en
t 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 d

el
iv

er
y 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 m
od

e 
us

e 
an

d 
he

al
th

y 
lif

es
ty

le
s.

 
  

re
du

ce
d 

re
lia

nc
e 

on
 c

ar
 u

se
 b

y 
in

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

w
al

ki
ng

, 
cy

cl
in

g 
an

d 
bu

s 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
m

od
e 

ro
ut

es
 w

ith
in

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 

co
nn

ec
tin

g 
th

em
 w

ith
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ne
tw

or
ks

; 
  

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 p

ub
lic

 tr
an

sp
or

t i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

en
ab

lin
g 

im
pr

ov
ed

 a
cc

es
s 

an
d 

in
te

gr
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

bu
s 

an
d 

to
 ra

il 
se

rv
ic

es
; 

  
co

nv
en

ie
nt

, s
af

e 
an

d 
se

cu
re

 c
ar

 p
ar

ki
ng

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
tt

ra
ct

 s
ho

pp
er

s 
an

d 
vi

si
to

rs
 a

nd
 d

et
er

 c
om

m
ut

er
 p

ar
ki

ng
 in

 t
he

 c
ity

 c
en

tr
e,

 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f P

ar
k 

an
d 

Ri
de

, P
ar

k 
an

d 
Sh

ar
e 

an
d 

Pa
rk

 a
nd

 C
yc

le
 P

ar
k 

an
d 

Ch
oo

se
  s

ite
s;

 a
nd

 

 
a 

w
es

te
rn

 R
el

ie
f R

oa
d 

to
 t

he
 w

es
t 

of
 H

er
ef

or
d 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
vo

lu
m

e 
of

 t
ra

ff
ic

 fr
om

 t
he

 c
ity

 c
en

tr
e 

an
d 

en
ab

le
 t

he
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 w

al
ki

ng
, 

cy
cl

in
g 

an
d 

bu
s 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

hi
gh

w
ay

 n
et

w
or

k.
 T

he
 r

oa
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
si

gn
ed

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 in

 s
uc

h 
a 

w
ay

 w
hi

ch
 a

vo
id

s 
an

d 
m

iti
ga

te
s 

ad
ve

rs
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

or
 p

hy
si

ca
l d

am
ag

e 
to

 o
r 

lo
ss

 o
f 

ha
bi

ta
ts

, n
oi

se
 p

ol
lu

tio
n 

an
d 

vi
br

at
io

n,
 li

gh
t 

po
llu

tio
n,

 a
ir 

po
llu

tio
n,

 
flo

od
 ri

sk
 a

nd
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

on
 th

e 
Ri

ve
r W

ye
 S

AC
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
m

en
ity

 a
nd

 b
us

in
es

s 
in

te
re

st
s.

 C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
th

e 
ro

ad
 o

n 
he

rit
ag

e 
as

se
ts

, 
th

ei
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

an
d 

se
tt

in
g,

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 t
he

 h
is

to
ric

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 o

f 
th

e 
w

id
er

 l
an

ds
ca

pe
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 

re
qu

ire
d.

 F
ur

th
er

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 H
er

ef
or

d 
Ar

ea
 P

la
n 

an
d 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n(

s)
. 

Th
e 

pa
ce

 o
f d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 a
nd

 m
ov

em
en

t 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 w
ill

 b
e 

al
ig

ne
d 

w
ith

 t
ha

t o
f h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 p

ol
ic

y 
SS

3.
” 

 
M

M
01

7.
H

D
4 

Po
lic

y 
H

D
4 

– 
N

or
th

er
n 

U
rb

an
 E

xp
an

si
on

 (H
ol

m
er

 W
es

t)
 

La
nd

 a
t 

H
ol

m
er

 w
es

t 
w

ill
 d

el
iv

er
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
ly

 p
la

nn
ed

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 u
rb

an
 e

xp
an

si
on

. T
he

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
se

ns
iti

ve
ly

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 

in
to

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ur

ba
n 

fa
br

ic
 o

f 
H

er
ef

or
d,

 a
nd

 t
he

 w
id

er
 la

nd
sc

ap
e,

 t
hr

ou
gh

 h
ig

h 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

. T
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

: 

 

65



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

La
nd

 a
t H

ol
m

er
 w

es
t w

ill
 d

el
iv

er
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
ly

 p
la

nn
ed

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 u
rb

an
 e

xp
an

si
on

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

ur
ba

n 
fa

br
ic

 o
f H

er
ef

or
d,

 w
hi

ch
 

m
ee

ts
 h

ig
h 

de
si

gn
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
. 

N
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
se

ns
iti

ve
ly

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 in

to
 t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

la
nd

sc
ap

e.
 A

ny
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 t

he
 lo

ca
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

t,
 h

er
ita

ge
 a

ss
et

s 
or

 b
io

di
ve

rs
ity

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

iti
ga

te
d 

an
d 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ta

ke
n 

to
 c

on
se

rv
e 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 
im

po
rt

an
t e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l, 

hi
st

or
ic

 a
nd

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
qu

al
ity

. T
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
: 

 
Ar

ou
nd

 5
00

 n
ew

 h
om

es
, a

t 
an

 a
ve

ra
ge

 d
en

si
ty

 o
f 

up
 t

o 
35

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 p

er
 h

ec
ta

re
, c

om
pr

is
in

g 
a 

m
ix

 o
f 

m
ar

ke
t 

an
d 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
se

 
si

ze
s 

an
d 

ty
pe

s 
th

at
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f 

po
lic

y 
H

3 
an

d 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 t
he

 l
at

es
t 

ve
rs

io
n 

of
 t

he
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 L
oc

al
 

H
ou

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t A

ss
es

sm
en

t;
   

 
a 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 3
5%

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l n

um
be

r o
f d

w
el

lin
gs

 s
ha

ll 
be

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g;

  
 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f 
a 

35
0 

sp
ac

e 
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 R

id
e 

Ch
oo

se
 s

ite
 (

la
nd

 a
nd

 i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e)

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 t
he

 w
es

te
rn

 s
id

e 
of

 t
he

 A
49

 i
n 

cl
os

e 
pr

ox
im

ity
 t

o 
th

e 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Re
lie

f 
Ro

ad
 a

nd
 la

nd
 o

r 
a 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 f

ac
ili

ta
te

 t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 t
he

 a
dj

oi
ni

ng
 p

ha
se

 o
f 

th
e 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Re

lie
f R

oa
d;

 
 

w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
yc

le
 r

ou
te

s 
an

d 
gr

ee
n 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 c

or
rid

or
s 

lin
ki

ng
 t

o 
th

e 
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 R

id
e 

si
te

, t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 r
ig

ht
 o

f 
w

ay
 n

et
w

or
k 

an
d 

ex
is

tin
g 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t s
ite

s 
in

 th
e 

lo
ca

lit
y;

 
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 n

ew
 g

re
en

 b
uf

fe
rs

 a
nd

 li
ne

ar
 g

re
en

 ro
ut

es
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 a

lo
ng

 A
yl

es
 B

ro
ok

; 
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 m
iti

ga
te

 f
lo

od
 r

is
k 

bo
th

 f
or

 t
he

 n
ew

 h
om

es
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 e
xp

an
si

on
 a

re
a 

an
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
 o

f 
ex

is
tin

g 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 i

n 
ot

he
r 

pa
rt

s 
of

 t
he

 c
ity

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 i
nc

or
po

ra
tio

n 
of

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 u
rb

an
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

so
lu

tio
ns

, 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 g
re

en
 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 n

et
w

or
k 

an
d 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 c
on

tr
ol

 w
at

er
 le

ve
ls

 w
ith

in
 A

yl
es

 B
ro

ok
; 

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f a
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

w
ar

ds
 in

do
or

 a
nd

 o
ut

do
or

 s
po

rt
s 

an
d 

pl
ay

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
an

d 
al

lo
tm

en
ts

; 
 

w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 a

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

w
ar

ds
 a

 p
re

-s
ch

oo
l f

ac
ili

ty
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f/

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 t
ow

ar
ds

 t
he

 e
nh

an
ce

m
en

t 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
pr

im
ar

y 
an

d 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 in
 th

e 
lo

ca
lit

y 
an

d 
an

y 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

ne
ed

 fo
r o

th
er

 c
om

m
un

ity
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

/f
ac

ili
tie

s;
 a

nd
 

 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

of
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n.
  

Th
is

 e
xp

an
si

on
 a

re
a 

w
ill

 b
e 

ac
ce

ss
ed

 p
rim

ar
ily

 o
ff

 t
he

 A
41

03
 R

om
an

 R
oa

d.
  T

he
 a

re
a 

w
ill

 b
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

in
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 m

an
ne

r 
to

 s
ho

w
 t

he
 

la
yo

ut
 o

f 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
an

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

.  
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 5

 s
et

s 
ou

t 
th

e 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 u
rb

an
 e

xp
an

si
on

 
ar

ea
s 

an
d 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 k
ey

 n
ew

 i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e.

  
Th

is
 e

xp
an

si
on

 a
re

a 
w

ill
 b

e 
ac

ce
ss

ed
 p

rim
ar

ily
 o

ff
 t

he
 A

41
03

 R
om

an
 R

oa
d 

bu
t 

is
 a

ls
o 

de
pe

nd
en

t 
on

 t
he

 e
xp

an
de

d 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f t
he

 A
49

 b
y 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 tr
an

sp
or

t m
ea

su
re

s 
an

d 
th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

 fu
tu

re
 p

ha
se

s 
of

 a
 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Re

lie
f 

Ro
ad

. 
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
fr

om
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

fo
r 

H
er

ef
or

d 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 n

ew
 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 tr

an
sp

or
t m

ea
su

re
s.

 A
 d

et
ai

le
d 

m
as

te
rp

la
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 s

ho
w

 th
e 

la
yo

ut
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
og

re
ss

ed
 a

nd
 fi

na
lis

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Ar

ea
 P

la
n 

 

66



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

4.
2.

55
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

Th
is

 p
ol

ic
y 

w
ill

 d
el

iv
er

 a
 m

in
im

um
 o

f 
Ar

ou
nd

 5
00

 n
ew

 h
om

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 H
ol

m
er

 w
es

t 
ar

ea
. A

ll 
w

ill
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 t

o 
hi

gh
 e

ne
rg

y 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

st
an

da
rd

s.
 A

 t
ar

ge
t 

of
 3

5%
 w

ill
 b

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

. 
H

ou
si

ng
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 t

ha
t 

m
ee

ts
 t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f 

al
l 

se
ct

io
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
fo

r 
ol

de
r 

pe
rs

on
s 

– 
a 

ne
ed

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 in
 t

he
 s

tu
dy

 o
f t

he
 H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 S

up
po

rt
 n

ee
ds

 o
f O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 2
01

2.
 

Th
e 

de
si

gn
 a

nd
 s

ty
le

s 
of

 t
he

 n
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 w
ill

 c
om

pl
em

en
t 

th
e 

bu
ilt

 a
nd

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

of
 t

he
 lo

ca
lit

y 
an

d 
th

e 
sc

al
e 

an
d 

de
ns

ity
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

fle
ct

iv
e 

of
 t

he
 t

op
og

ra
ph

y 
an

d 
pr

om
in

en
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

ar
ea

. T
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
la

id
 o

ut
 a

nd
 a

ll 
ho

m
es

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d 
to

 a
 h

ig
h 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
st

an
da

rd
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

en
er

gy
 a

nd
 w

at
er

 u
sa

ge
 is

 m
in

im
is

ed
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ly
 s

ou
rc

ed
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
re

 u
se

d 
w

he
re

 
pr

ac
tic

ab
le

. T
hi

s 
w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 re
ne

w
ab

le
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r l
ow

 c
ar

bo
n 

en
er

gy
 s

ou
rc

es
 

 

M
M

01
8.

H
D

5 
Po

lic
y 

H
D

5 
– 

W
es

te
rn

 U
rb

an
 E

xp
an

si
on

 (T
hr

ee
 E

lm
s)

 
Th

e 
ar

ea
 w

ill
 b

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
in

 a
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 m
an

ne
r 

to
 s

ho
w

 t
he

 la
yo

ut
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

.  
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 5

 s
et

s 
ou

t 
th

e 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 u
rb

an
 e

xp
an

si
on

 a
re

as
 a

nd
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f k

ey
 n

ew
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

  L
an

d 
no

rt
h 

w
es

t 
of

 t
he

 c
ity

 
ce

nt
re

 is
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

fo
r 

a 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
m

ix
ed

 u
se

 u
rb

an
 e

xp
an

si
on

 t
o 

be
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

ly
 m

as
te

rp
la

nn
ed

 t
o 

fo
rm

 a
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 in
te

r-
re

la
te

d 
ne

w
 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

ds
.  

Th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

:  
 

  
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f 

 a
ro

un
d 

1,
00

0 
ho

m
es

, 
at

 a
n 

av
er

ag
e 

de
ns

ity
 o

f 
up

 t
o 

35
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 p
er

 h
ec

ta
re

, 
co

m
pr

is
in

g 
a 

m
ix

 o
f 

m
ar

ke
t 

an
d 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
se

 s
iz

es
 a

nd
 t

yp
es

 t
ha

t 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f 

po
lic

y 
H

3 
an

d 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 t
he

 l
at

es
t 

ve
rs

io
n 

of
 t

he
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 H
ou

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t A

ss
es

sm
en

t;
   

 
a 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 3
5%

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l n

um
be

r o
f d

w
el

lin
gs

 s
ha

ll 
be

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g;

 
 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 la

nd
 a

nd
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 to
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ad

jo
in

in
g 

ph
as

e 
of

 th
e 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Re

lie
f R

oa
d;

 
 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f 1
0 

he
ct

ar
es

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t l

an
d,

 c
om

pr
is

in
g 

pr
ed

om
in

an
tly

 o
f a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f u

se
 c

la
ss

 B
1,

 B
2 

an
d 

B8
 lo

ca
te

d 
ne

ar
 to

 th
e 

ne
w

 li
ve

st
oc

k 
m

ar
ke

t w
ith

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 th

e 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Re
lie

f R
oa

d 
an

d 
Ro

m
an

 R
oa

d;
 

 
Pa

rk
 &

 C
ho

os
e 

si
te

 (l
an

d 
an

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

); 
la

nd
 a

nd
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 fo
r a

 tr
an

sp
or

t i
nt

er
ch

an
ge

 o
r a

ro
un

d 
15

0 
sp

ac
es

; 
 

a 
ne

w
 li

ne
ar

 p
ar

k 
al

on
g 

th
e 

Ya
zo

r 
Br

oo
k 

co
rr

id
or

 c
on

ne
ct

in
g 

w
ith

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
gr

ee
n 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 li

nk
s 

ea
st

 o
f 

th
e 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
ar

ea
, 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 ri

gh
ts

 o
f w

ay
 n

et
w

or
k 

w
ith

in
 a

nd
 a

dj
oi

ni
ng

 th
e 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

al
 re

cr
ea

tio
n 

sp
ac

e;
 

 
a 

se
rie

s 
of

 n
ew

 g
re

en
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 w
hi

ch
 e

nh
an

ce
 t

he
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 v

al
ue

 o
f t

he
 a

re
a 

an
d 

al
so

 s
er

ve
 a

s 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cy
cl

e 
lin

ks
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
op

tim
is

in
g 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 t

he
 d

is
us

ed
 r

ai
lw

ay
 li

ne
 t

o 
co

nn
ec

t 
w

ith
 t

he
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 in
te

rc
ha

ng
e,

 
sc

ho
ol

s,
 c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t l

an
d 

an
d 

th
e 

re
m

ai
nd

er
 o

f t
he

 c
ity

; 
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r n
ew

 b
us

 li
nk

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

ar
ea

;  
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 b

es
po

ke
, h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 in

cl
us

iv
e 

de
si

gn
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

th
at

 w
ill

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 o

ld
er

 p
er

so
ns

 a
nd

 
co

nt
rib

ut
es

 to
 th

e 
di

st
in

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

si
te

 a
nd

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t;

  
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
on

 s
ite

 o
f 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 s

po
rt

s 
an

d 
pl

ay
 f

ac
ili

tie
s,

 f
or

m
al

 a
nd

 i
nf

or
m

al
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 c

om
m

un
ity

 o
rc

ha
rd

s,
 w

oo
dl

an
d 

 

67



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

pl
an

tin
g 

an
d 

al
lo

tm
en

ts
; 

 
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 H
un

tin
gt

on
 v

ill
ag

e 
in

to
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

ar
ea

 in
 a

 w
ay

 w
hi

ch
  r

es
pe

ct
s 

pr
es

er
ve

s 
an

d,
 w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 e

nh
an

ce
s 

th
e 

se
tt

in
g 

of
 th

e 
Co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
Ar

ea
 a

nd
 h

er
ita

ge
 a

ss
et

s;
 

 
a 

ne
w

 2
10

 p
la

ce
 p

rim
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

 p
la

ce
s 

w
ith

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 p

re
-s

ch
oo

l a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

on
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t;
 

 
an

 e
xt

en
si

on
 o

f W
hi

te
cr

os
s 

H
ig

h 
Sc

ho
ol

 t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 c
ap

ac
ity

 fr
om

 a
 6

 fo
rm

 e
nt

ry
 t

o 
7 

fo
rm

 e
nt

ry
 s

ch
oo

l, 
w

ith
 c

om
m

en
su

ra
te

 s
ch

oo
l 

pl
ay

in
g 

fie
ld

 p
ro

vi
si

on
; 

 
a 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 h
ub

 t
o 

m
ee

t 
an

y 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

ne
ed

 f
or

 s
m

al
l s

ca
le

 c
on

ve
ni

en
ce

 r
et

ai
l, 

co
m

m
un

ity
 m

ee
tin

g 
sp

ac
e,

 h
ea

lth
 

pr
ov

is
io

n,
 in

do
or

 s
po

rt
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r c
om

m
un

ity
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

/f
ac

ili
tie

s 
w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

; 
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ur
ba

n 
dr

ai
na

ge
 a

nd
 fl

oo
d 

m
iti

ga
tio

n 
so

lu
tio

ns
 to

 fo
rm

 a
n 

in
te

gr
al

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 g

re
en

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 n

et
w

or
k;

 
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 m

iti
ga

te
 fl

oo
d 

ris
k 

ar
is

in
g 

fr
om

 Y
az

or
 B

ro
ok

 fo
r e

xi
st

in
g 

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
ci

ty
; a

nd
 

 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

of
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n.
  

 Th
e 

ar
ea

 w
ill

 b
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

in
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 m

an
ne

r 
to

 s
ho

w
 t

he
 la

yo
ut

 o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
.  

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 5
 s

et
s 

ou
t 

th
e 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 u

rb
an

 e
xp

an
si

on
 a

re
as

 a
nd

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f 
ke

y 
ne

w
 i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
  

Th
is

 l
oc

at
io

n 
is

 a
ls

o 
de

pe
nd

en
t 

on
 t

he
 e

xp
an

de
d 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f 

th
e 

A4
9 

an
d 

lo
ca

l h
ig

hw
ay

 n
et

w
or

k 
by

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

m
ea

su
re

s 
an

d/
or

 t
he

 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

 f
ut

ur
e 

ph
as

es
 o

f 
th

e 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Re
lie

f 
Ro

ad
. C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

fr
om

 t
hi

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
fo

r 
H

er
ef

or
d 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 n
ew

 i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
m

ea
su

re
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 D

el
iv

er
y 

Pl
an

 
 

4.
2.

67
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

Th
is

 p
ol

ic
y 

w
ill

 d
el

iv
er

 a
 m

in
im

um
 o

f 
Ar

ou
nd

 1
,0

00
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 w

es
te

rn
 e

xp
an

si
on

 a
re

a.
 A

ro
un

d 
35

%
 o

f 
th

e 
to

ta
l 

nu
m

be
r o

f d
w

el
lin

gs
 w

ill
 b

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 to
 b

e 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 in
 s

m
al

l c
lu

st
er

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

 H
ou

si
ng

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 th
at

 m
ee

ts
 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 a
ll 

se
ct

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 c

om
m

un
ity

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 h

ou
si

ng
 f

or
 o

ld
er

 p
er

so
ns

 –
 a

 n
ee

d 
hi

gh
lig

ht
ed

 in
 t

he
 s

tu
dy

 o
f 

th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 S
up

po
rt

 
ne

ed
s 

of
 O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 2
01

2.
   

 

M
M

01
9.

H
D

6 
Po

lic
y 

H
D

6 
- S

ou
th

er
n 

U
rb

an
 E

xp
an

si
on

 (L
ow

er
 B

ul
lin

gh
am

) 
La

nd
 a

t 
Lo

w
er

 B
ul

lin
gh

am
 w

ill
 d

el
iv

er
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
ly

 p
la

nn
ed

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 u
rb

an
 e

xp
an

si
on

. 
Th

e 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

se
ns

iti
ve

ly
 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 in

to
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

ur
ba

n 
fa

br
ic

 o
f 

H
er

ef
or

d,
 a

nd
 t

he
 w

id
er

 la
nd

sc
ap

e,
 t

hr
ou

gh
 h

ig
h 

de
si

gn
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
. L

an
d 

lo
ca

te
d 

so
ut

h 
w

es
t 

of
 R

ot
he

rw
as

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Zo
ne

 a
nd

 n
or

th
 o

f 
th

e 
B4

39
9 

(R
ot

he
rw

as
 A

cc
es

s 
Ro

ad
) 

is
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

fo
r 

a 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
m

ix
ed

 u
se

 
ur

ba
n 

ex
pa

ns
io

n.
 T

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

:  
 

 

68



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

 
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f 

ar
ou

nd
 1

,0
00

 n
ew

 h
om

es
, 

at
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
de

ns
ity

 o
f 

up
 t

o 
35

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 p

er
 h

ec
ta

re
, 

co
m

pr
is

in
g 

a 
m

ix
 o

f 
m

ar
ke

t 
an

d 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

se
 s

iz
es

 a
nd

 t
yp

es
 t

ha
t 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f 
po

lic
y 

H
3 

an
d 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 t

he
 l

at
es

t 
ve

rs
io

n 
of

 t
he

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 L
oc

al
 H

ou
si

ng
 M

ar
ke

t A
ss

es
sm

en
t;

  
 

a 
ta

rg
et

 o
f 3

5%
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l n
um

be
r o

f d
w

el
lin

gs
 s

ha
ll 

be
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g;
  

 
ar

ou
nd

 5
 h

ec
ta

re
s 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t l

an
d 

co
m

pr
is

in
g 

a 
m

ix
tu

re
 o

f u
se

 c
la

ss
 B

1,
 B

2 
an

d 
B8

 to
 c

om
pl

em
en

t H
er

ef
or

d 
En

te
rp

ris
e 

Zo
ne

;  
 

 
su

ita
bl

e 
ve

hi
cu

la
r a

cc
es

s 
to

 th
e 

si
te

 p
rin

ci
pa

lly
 fr

om
 th

e 
B4

39
9;

  
 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f 
a 

35
0 

sp
ac

e 
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 R

id
e 

Ch
oo

se
 s

ite
 (

la
nd

 a
nd

 i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e)

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
 t

o 
th

e 
A4

9/
 R

ot
he

rw
as

 A
cc

es
s 

Ro
ad

 
ro

un
da

bo
ut

; 
 

gr
ee

n 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 c
or

rid
or

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ar

ea
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
gr

ee
nw

ay
s 

al
on

g 
Re

d 
Br

oo
k 

an
d 

N
or

to
n 

Br
oo

k 
an

d 
lin

ks
 w

ith
 W

ith
y 

Br
oo

k;
 

 
cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 a
 c

ou
nt

ry
 p

ar
k 

to
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
ne

w
 fo

ot
pa

th
s 

lin
ki

ng
 w

ith
 t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 r

ig
ht

 o
f w

ay
 n

et
w

or
k 

in
 t

he
 lo

ca
lit

y,
 w

oo
dl

an
d 

an
d 

or
ch

ar
d 

pl
an

tin
g;

 
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 b

es
po

ke
, h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 in

cl
us

iv
e 

de
si

gn
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

th
at

 w
ill

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 o

ld
er

 p
er

so
ns

 a
nd

 
co

nt
rib

ut
es

 to
 th

e 
di

st
in

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

si
te

 a
nd

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t;

  
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
on

 s
ite

 o
f a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 s

po
rt

s 
an

d 
pl

ay
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e,

 c
om

m
un

ity
 o

rc
ha

rd
s 

an
d 

al
lo

tm
en

ts
; 

 
a 

ne
w

 
21

0 
pl

ac
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
 

pl
ac

es
 

an
d 

w
he

re
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 
to

w
ar

ds
 

ne
w

 
 

w
ith

 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

pr
e-

sc
ho

ol
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s;

 
 

a 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 h

ub
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 s
m

al
l s

ca
le

 c
on

ve
ni

en
ce

 r
et

ai
l a

nd
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f a

nd
/o

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

w
ar

ds
 a

ny
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

ne
ed

 f
or

 o
th

er
 c

om
m

un
ity

 i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e/

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 c
om

m
un

ity
 m

ee
tin

g 
sp

ac
e 

an
d 

he
al

th
 p

ro
vi

si
on

, 
in

do
or

 a
nd

 o
ut

do
or

 
sp

or
ts

 w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
; 

 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ur

ba
n 

dr
ai

na
ge

 a
nd

 fl
oo

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

so
lu

tio
ns

 to
 fo

rm
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 g
re

en
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 n
et

w
or

k;
 

 
ne

w
 d

ire
ct

 w
al

ki
ng

, c
yc

lin
g 

an
d 

bu
s 

lin
ks

 fr
om

 t
he

 u
rb

an
 e

xt
en

si
on

 t
o 

th
e 

Pa
rk

 a
nd

 R
id

e 
Ch

oo
se

 t
o 

th
e 

w
es

t,
 H

er
ef

or
d 

En
te

rp
ris

e 
Zo

ne
 

to
 th

e 
ea

st
 a

nd
 e

xi
st

in
g 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e 

to
 th

e 
no

rt
h;

 
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
of

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n;

 a
nd

 
 

th
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
an

d,
 w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 e

nh
an

ce
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 h

er
ita

ge
 a

ss
et

s 
th

ei
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

an
d 

se
tt

in
g.

 A
n 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
ar

ch
ae

ol
og

ic
al

 im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 t
o 

en
su

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
of

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
 d

et
ai

le
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 in
 th

is
 a

re
a.

 
Th

e 
ar

ea
 w

ill
 b

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
in

 a
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 m
an

ne
r 

to
 s

ho
w

 t
he

 la
yo

ut
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

. A
pp

en
di

x 
5 

se
ts

 o
ut

 
th

e 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f u

rb
an

 e
xp

an
si

on
 a

re
a 

an
d 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 k
ey

 n
ew

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 T

hi
s 

lo
ca

tio
n 

is
 a

ls
o 

de
pe

nd
en

t 
on

 th
e 

ex
pa

nd
ed

 c
ap

ac
ity

 o
f t

he
 A

49
, b

y 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 tr

an
sp

or
t m

ea
su

re
s 

an
d 

th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

of
 fu

tu
re

 p
ha

se
s 

of
 th

e 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Re
lie

f R
oa

d.
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

fr
om

 t
hi

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
fo

r 
H

er
ef

or
d 

tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ne
w

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 

69



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t m
ea

su
re

s 
4.

2.
84

 
Th

is
 p

ol
ic

y 
se

ek
s 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 a

ro
un

d 
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f 

1,
00

0 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 o
f 

on
e 

to
 f

iv
e 

be
dr

oo
m

s 
in

 s
iz

e,
 A

 w
ith

 a
 m

in
im

um
 o

f 
35

%
 o

f 
th

e 
to

ta
l 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 w
ill

 b
e 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
, t

o 
be

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
ed

 in
 s

m
al

l c
lu

st
er

s 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.
 H

ou
si

ng
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 t
ha

t 
m

ee
ts

 t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f 
al

l s
ec

tio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ho
us

in
g 

fo
r 

ol
de

r 
pe

rs
on

s 
– 

a 
ne

ed
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 in

 t
he

 s
tu

dy
 o

f 
th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 

Su
pp

or
t 

ne
ed

s 
of

 O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e 
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 2

01
2 .

 T
he

 h
ou

si
ng

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ed

om
in

an
tly

 t
w

o 
st

or
ey

s 
in

 h
ei

gh
t,

 r
ef

le
ct

in
g 

th
e 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

ch
ar

ac
te

r o
f t

he
 lo

ca
lit

y.
   

 

Pl
ac

e 
Sh

ap
in

g:
 B

ro
m

ya
rd

: 

M
M

02
0.

BY
1 

Po
lic

y 
BY

1 
– 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

Br
om

ya
rd

  
Am

en
d 

fir
st

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
: 

Br
om

ya
rd

 w
ill

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
ar

ou
nd

 a
 m

in
im

um
 o

f  5
00

 n
ew

 h
om

es
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 a

ro
un

d 
5 

he
ct

ar
es

 o
f n

ew
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pl
an

 
pe

rio
d.

 T
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 th
e 

no
rt

h 
w

es
te

rn
 a

re
as

 o
f t

he
 to

w
n 

w
ith

 a
 to

ta
l o

f a
ro

un
d 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f 2
50

 n
ew

 
ho

m
es

. 
Ar

ou
nd

 5
ha

 o
f 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 c
om

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 B
ro

m
ya

rd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 
pr

oc
es

s.
 F

ur
th

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
ill

 t
ak

e 
pl

ac
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
, w

in
df

al
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

si
te

s 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
or

 o
th

er
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

D
oc

um
en

t. 
th

e 
Br

om
ya

rd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n.

 

 

M
M

02
1.

BY
2 

Po
lic

y 
BY

2 
– 

La
nd

 a
t H

ar
dw

ic
k 

Ba
nk

 
D

el
et

e 
fir

st
 li

ne
 a

nd
 fi

rs
t b

ul
le

t p
oi

nt
 o

f p
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
e 

as
 fo

llo
w

s:
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

at
 L

an
d 

at
 H

ar
dw

ic
k 

Ba
nk

 w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 t
o 

br
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 u
rb

an
 e

xt
en

si
on

 o
f 

th
e 

to
w

n:
 

  
a 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
ly

 p
la

nn
ed

, 
m

ix
ed

 u
se

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 a
ro

un
d 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f 
25

0 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 a
t 

an
 a

ve
ra

ge
 d

en
si

ty
 o

f 
up

 t
o 

35
 

dw
el

lin
gs

 p
er

 h
ec

ta
re

 c
om

pr
is

in
g 

a 
m

ix
 o

f m
ar

ke
t a

nd
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
e 

si
ze

s 
an

d 
ty

pe
s 

th
at

 m
ee

t t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 o

f P
ol

ic
y 

H
3 

an
d 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
la

te
st

 v
er

si
on

 o
f t

he
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 L
oc

al
 H

ou
si

ng
 M

ar
ke

t A
ss

es
sm

en
t;

 
 La

nd
 a

t H
ar

dw
ic

k 
Ba

nk
 w

ill
 d

el
iv

er
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
ly

 p
la

nn
ed

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 u
rb

an
 e

xt
en

si
on

 to
 th

e 
to

w
n 

an
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 d

el
iv

er
: 

 
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f 

25
0 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 a

t 
an

 a
ve

ra
ge

 d
en

si
ty

 o
f 

up
 t

o 
35

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 p

er
 h

ec
ta

re
 c

om
pr

is
in

g 
a 

m
ix

 o
f 

m
ar

ke
t 

an
d 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
us

e 
si

ze
s 

an
d 

ty
pe

s 
th

at
 m

ee
t t

he
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 o
f P

ol
ic

y 
H

3 
an

d 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

la
te

st
 v

er
si

on
 o

f t
he

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 
H

ou
si

ng
 M

ar
ke

t A
ss

es
sm

en
t”

 
 

a 
ta

rg
et

 o
f 4

0%
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l n
um

be
r o

f d
w

el
lin

gs
 s

ha
ll 

be
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g;
  

 
a 

ne
w

 fo
rm

al
 p

ar
k 

to
 fo

rm
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t c

om
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 n

ew
 p

la
y 

an
d 

sp
or

ts
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

al
lo

tm
en

ts
;  

 
“t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

ar
ea

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

lin
ke

d 
by

 a
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

ve
hi

cu
la

r 
ac

ce
ss

, l
ik

el
y 

to
 t

ak
e 

th
e 

fo
rm

 o
f 

a 
ro

un
da

bo
ut

, o
nt

o 
th

e 
A4

4.
  

Th
e 

 

70



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

ar
ea

s 
sh

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 s
er

vi
ce

d 
by

 a
 r

es
id

en
tia

l r
oa

d 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 fo

r 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 to

 e
xt

en
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

be
yo

nd
 t

he
 

pl
an

 p
er

io
d 

an
d 

se
rv

e 
as

 a
 fu

tu
re

 li
nk

 ro
ad

 ro
ut

e 
to

 o
th

er
 p

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 lo

ca
l h

ig
hw

ay
 n

et
w

or
k.

  
  

th
e 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l r

oa
ds

 le
ad

in
g 

of
f 

W
in

sl
ow

 R
oa

d 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ut
ili

se
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 li

nk
s 

to
 t

he
 t

ow
n 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

an
d 

cy
cl

e 
lin

ks
) a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
pu

bl
ic

 tr
an

sp
or

t l
in

ks
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

; 
  

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 
an

d 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 

to
w

ar
ds

 
an

y 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

ne
ed

 
fo

r 
ne

w
/i

m
pr

ov
ed

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 
Th

is
 

sh
al

l 
in

cl
ud

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 c
la

ss
ro

om
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r t

he
 lo

ca
l p

rim
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

 w
hi

ch
 s

ho
ul

d 
in

co
rp

or
at

e 
pu

bl
ic

ly
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
yo

ut
h 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s;
  

  
a 

hi
gh

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
of

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

la
yo

ut
 w

hi
ch

 re
sp

ec
ts

 th
e 

to
w

ns
ca

pe
, l

an
ds

ca
pe

 a
nd

 g
re

en
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 a

re
a;

   
  

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
of

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n;

 
  

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

bu
ff

er
s 

to
 m

iti
ga

te
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
of

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

re
as

 o
n 

th
e 

w
id

er
 la

nd
sc

ap
e;

 
  

an
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 a
rc

ha
eo

lo
gi

ca
l i

m
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
of

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
 th

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

po
sa

ls
; a

nd
 

  
a 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 u

rb
an

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
sy

st
em

 w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 m

ea
su

re
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

ra
in

 g
ar

de
ns

 a
nd

 s
w

al
es

 t
o 

m
an

ag
e 

gr
ou

nd
 a

nd
 

su
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

an
d 

sa
fe

gu
ar

d 
ag

ai
ns

t a
ny

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
flo

od
 ri

sk
. 

4.
3.

3 
D

el
et

e 
an

d 
re

pl
ac

e 
fir

st
 w

or
d 

of
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

: 
Ar

ou
nd

 A
 m

in
im

um
 o

f 2
50

 n
ew

 h
om

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

H
ar

dw
ic

k 
Ba

nk
 a

re
a,

 n
or

th
-w

es
t o

f t
he

 to
w

n.
 

 

4.
3.

4 
Ad

d 
a 

ne
w

 s
en

te
nc

e 
pr

io
r t

o 
th

e 
pe

nu
lti

m
at

e 
se

nt
en

ce
 to

 re
ad

: 
 Th

e 
po

lic
y 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 a

ro
un

d 
5 

he
ct

ar
es

 o
f 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 t
hr

ou
gh

 a
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 B
ro

m
ya

rd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 w
ill

 h
el

p 
cr

ea
te

 g
re

at
er

 
an

d 
m

or
e 

di
ve

rs
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r 

Br
om

ya
rd

. A
ny

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
is

 li
ke

ly
 t

o 
ne

ed
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
to

 m
iti

ga
te

 
an

y 
vi

su
al

 im
pa

ct
. I

f e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t l
an

d 
is

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

ex
is

tin
g 

ho
us

in
g,

 it
 w

ill
 b

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 c

o-
or

di
na

te
 b

ot
h 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 g

re
at

er
 

ec
on

om
ie

s 
of

 s
ca

le
 a

nd
 e

ns
ur

e 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rin

g 
la

nd
 u

se
s 

ar
e 

co
m

pa
tib

le
. T

hi
s 

m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

re
st

ric
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
ar

ea
s 

ne
xt

 t
o 

th
e 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l t

o 
us

e 
cl

as
s 

B1
 o

r 
su

ita
bl

e 
liv

e/
w

or
k 

un
its

. T
he

 B
ro

m
ya

rd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 w
ill

 s
ee

k 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 o
f 

fiv
e 

he
ct

ar
es

.  
G

iv
en

 t
he

 le
ve

l o
f c

on
st

ra
in

ts
 in

 B
ro

m
ya

rd
 t

he
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
cl

os
el

y 
m

on
ito

re
d 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
ed

 if
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

.  
 T

he
 p

ol
ic

y 
en

ab
lin

g 
sm

al
l s

ca
le

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t/
m

ix
ed

 u
se

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ill
 a

llo
w

 fo
r 

a 
m

or
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

re
du

ci
ng

 t
he

 n
ee

d 
to

 t
ra

ve
l. 

Fu
rt

he
r 

sm
al

l 
sc

al
e 

si
te

s 
fo

r 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
us

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
an

d/
or

 o
th

er
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 th

e 
Br

om
ya

rd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n.

   
 

   

4.
3.

6 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h:
 

Th
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
ar

ea
 s

ho
ul

d 
al

so
 f

ac
ili

ta
te

 a
 n

ew
 r

oa
d 

lin
k 

on
 t

he
 p

er
ip

he
ry

 o
f 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

a 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

fo
r 

ve
hi

cu
la

r 
ac

ce
ss

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 s

er
ve

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ne

w
 la

nd
 u

se
s 

ov
er

 t
he

 p
la

n 
pe

rio
d 

bu
t.

 It
 m

us
t 

al
so

 b
e 

de
si

gn
ed

 s
o 

as
 n

ot
 t

o 
pr

ej
ud

ic
e 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
be

yo
nd

 t
he

 p
la

n 
pe

rio
d 

an
d 

th
e 

ev
en

tu
al

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 a

 f
ul

l r
oa

d 
lin

k 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

fr
om

 t
he

 
A4

4 
to

 T
en

bu
ry

 R
oa

d.
  

 

71



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

M
M

02
2.

 
4.

3.
14

 
Th

e 
to

w
n 

re
ta

in
s 

a 
m

od
es

t 
am

ou
nt

 o
f c

om
pa

ris
on

 g
oo

ds
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 f

ro
m

 e
xi

st
in

g 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

an
y 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 t

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 t

hi
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 

of
fe

r 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

pe
nd

en
t 

up
on

 t
he

 m
ar

ke
t 

ha
vi

ng
 t

he
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 c
on

fid
en

ce
 in

 t
he

 t
ow

n.
 N

ew
 h

om
es

 in
 B

ro
m

ya
rd

 w
ith

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
m

ea
ns

 o
f 

ac
ce

ss
 in

to
 t

ow
n 

sh
ou

ld
 s

tr
en

gt
he

n 
su

pp
or

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
’s

 v
ita

lit
y 

an
d 

vi
ab

ili
ty

. T
he

 t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

 is
 d

ef
in

ed
 in

 F
ig

ur
e 

4.
6 

an
d 

re
la

te
s 

to
 

Po
lic

y 
E5

. T
he

 s
iz

e 
th

re
sh

ol
d 

of
 2

00
 m

2 
se

t o
ut

 in
 P

ol
ic

y 
E5

 in
di

ca
te

s 
w

he
n 

im
pa

ct
 te

st
in

g 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

 

Fi
g 

4.
6 

D
el

et
e 

fig
ur

e 
4.

6.
  

 
Pl

ac
e 

Sh
ap

in
g 

Ki
ng

to
n 

M
M

02
3.

KG
1 

Po
lic

y 
KG

1 
– 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

Ki
ng

to
n 

Ki
ng

to
n 

w
ill

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
ar

ou
nd

 2
00

 n
ew

 h
om

es
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 s
ite

s 
be

in
g 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
or

 o
th

er
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

D
oc

um
en

t.
 A

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

w
ill

 a
llo

ca
te

 s
ite

s 
to

 m
ee

t t
hi

s 
le

ve
l o

f h
ou

si
ng

.”
 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, p

ro
vi

si
on

 f
or

 n
ew

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
us

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 b
ro

ug
ht

 f
or

w
ar

d 
to

 m
ee

t 
ne

ed
s 

fr
om

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 K

in
gt

on
 a

nd
 W

es
t 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
ub

-M
ar

ke
t A

re
a.

  
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r K

in
gt

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 w
he

re
 th

ey
:  

  

 
de

liv
er

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f P
ol

ic
y 

H
1;

 
 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
m

ix
 o

f 
m

ar
ke

t 
an

d 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

se
 s

iz
es

 a
nd

 t
yp

es
 t

ha
t 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f 
Po

lic
y 

H
3 

an
d 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 t

he
 

la
te

st
 v

er
si

on
 o

f t
he

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 H
ou

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t A

ss
es

sm
en

t;
   

 
en

ab
le

 a
n 

ov
er

al
l d

en
si

ty
 o

f u
p 

to
 3

5 
dw

el
lin

gs
 p

er
 h

ec
ta

re
; 

 
en

ab
le

 h
om

e 
w

or
ki

ng
;  

 
m

ak
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
sm

al
l 

sc
al

e 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
si

te
s,

 b
ro

ug
ht

 f
or

w
ar

d 
in

 b
al

an
ce

 w
ith

 h
ou

si
ng

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 K

in
gt

on
 a

nd
 W

es
t 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
ub

-M
ar

ke
t A

re
a;

  
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
vi

ta
lit

y 
an

d 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

. P
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r n
ew

 re
ta

il,
 le

is
ur

e 
or

 o
ff

ic
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f o
ve

r 2
00

m
2 

 in
 

gr
os

s 
flo

or
 s

pa
ce

 a
nd

 lo
ca

te
d 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

de
fin

ed
 t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
 w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 a

n 
im

pa
ct

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 

N
at

io
na

l P
la

nn
in

g 
Po

lic
y 

Fr
am

ew
or

k,
 t

o 
de

te
rm

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 t
he

re
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

an
y 

ad
ve

rs
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 t

he
 v

ita
lit

y 
an

d 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 K
in

gt
on

 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
; 

 
m

ak
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r 
gr

ee
n 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 a

m
en

ity
 s

pa
ce

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 p

la
y 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 a

nd
 t

he
 li

nk
in

g 
of

 
ha

bi
ta

ts
 in

to
 e

co
lo

gi
ca

l n
et

w
or

ks
 w

ith
in

 a
nd

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 th
e 

to
w

n;
 

 
m

ak
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r o
r i

m
pr

ov
e 

w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
yc

lin
g 

lin
ks

 to
 th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
, s

ch
oo

ls
, s

ho
pp

in
g 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t;

 
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
pr

ot
ec

t,
 c

on
se

rv
e 

an
d 

w
he

re
  

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
po

ss
ib

le
, 

en
ha

nc
e 

th
e 

hi
st

or
ic

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 o

f 
Ki

ng
to

n,
 i

n 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 t
he

 f
ea

tu
re

s 
th

at
 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

 t
he

  C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Ar

ea
; a

nd
 it

s 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e 
an

d 
se

tt
in

g,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 fe

at
ur

es
, i

ts
 h

er
ita

ge
 a

ss
et

s,
 im

po
rt

an
t 

bu
ild

in
gs

, 
sc

en
ic

 v
ie

w
s 

an
d 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
fe

at
ur

es
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 th

e 
to

w
n;

” 
 

ha
ve

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

d 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t a
nd

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

to
w

n/
pa

ris
h 

co
un

ci
l. 

 

 

72



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

4.
4.

3 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

20
0 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 i

n 
Ki

ng
to

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
20

11
 a

nd
 2

03
1,

 w
ith

 s
ite

s 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 D
oc

um
en

t . 
Si

te
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

co
nf

in
es

 o
f 

th
e 

to
w

n 
ar

e 
co

ns
tr

ai
ne

d 
in

 t
er

m
s 

of
 f

lo
od

in
g.

 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
pe

rip
he

ra
l s

ite
s 

w
ill

 r
eq

ui
re

 c
om

pr
om

is
e 

in
 t

er
m

s 
of

 e
ff

ec
t 

up
on

 t
he

 la
nd

sc
ap

e.
 C

ho
ic

e 
of

 s
ite

s 
sh

ou
ld

 s
ee

k 
th

os
e 

w
ith

 le
as

t 
im

pa
ct

 
an

d 
w

he
re

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
an

d 
to

w
ns

ca
pe

 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ca

n 
be

st
 

be
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

. 
Ph

as
in

g 
m

ay
 

w
ill

 
be

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

w
he

re
 t

hi
s 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
tim

e 
to

 o
ve

rc
om

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 c
on

st
ra

in
ts

. G
iv

en
 t

he
 le

ve
l o

f 
co

ns
tr

ai
nt

s 
in

 K
in

gt
on

, t
he

 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
cl

os
el

y 
m

on
ito

re
d.

 If
 t

hi
s 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 it
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 t
he

 
re

qu
ire

d 
le

ve
l o

f h
ou

si
ng

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 u
se

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
si

tu
at

io
n 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 p

ol
ic

y 
SS

3.
 T

hi
s 

m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

hi
s 

po
lic

y.
  

 

4.
4.

5 
Th

e 
po

lic
y 

en
co

ur
ag

es
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 s

m
al

l s
ca

le
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 a
t 

Ki
ng

to
n.

 H
at

to
n 

G
ar

de
ns

 In
du

st
ria

l E
st

at
e 

w
as

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 

as
 

a 
ru

ra
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
an

d 
is

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 

th
riv

in
g.

 
An

 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

si
m

ila
r 

fa
ci

lit
y 

w
hi

ch
 

w
ou

ld
 

be
ne

fit
 

bo
th

 
th

e 
to

w
n 

an
d 

its
 h

in
te

rla
nd

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 r
ur

al
 a

re
a.

 I
t 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 f
or

 s
uc

h 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

to
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 o
r 

ev
en

 i
m

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

to
 t

he
 

ex
is

tin
g 

to
w

n.
 T

he
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 s

uc
h 

si
te

s 
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 a
dv

er
se

ly
 a

ff
ec

t 
th

e 
to

w
n’

s 
se

tt
in

g 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l f
ea

tu
re

s 
bu

t 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

w
ith

in
 w

al
ki

ng
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

an
d 

sh
ou

ld
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
to

w
n’

s 
se

tt
in

g 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l f
ea

tu
re

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
ad

ve
rs

el
y 

af
fe

ct
ed

. E
na

bl
in

g 
w

or
ki

ng
 

fr
om

 h
om

e 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ol

ic
y 

E3
 –

 H
om

e 
W

or
ki

ng
 m

ay
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
le

ve
l o

f 
ne

ed
 a

lth
ou

gh
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 f
or

 s
m

al
l s

ca
le

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 re
m

ai
n.

 

 

M
M

02
4.

4.
4.

7 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 T
ow

n 
Ce

nt
re

 T
ow

n 
Ce

nt
re

s 
St

ud
y 

U
pd

at
e 

20
12

 s
ug

ge
st

s 
th

e 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 fo
re

ca
st

 fo
r 

Ki
ng

to
n 

ov
er

 t
he

 p
la

n 
pe

rio
d 

is
 u

nl
ik

el
y 

to
 

be
 o

f a
 s

ca
le

 t
o 

re
qu

ire
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r 

fu
rt

he
r 

co
nv

en
ie

nc
e 

flo
or

 s
pa

ce
. M

an
y 

of
 t

he
 s

m
al

le
r 

un
its

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 t

ow
n 

co
ul

d 
ab

so
rb

 m
or

e 
tu

rn
ov

er
 

w
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

flo
or

 s
pa

ce
. 

Th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 a
re

a 
fo

r 
th

e 
to

w
n 

is
 r

ef
le

ct
ed

 in
 F

ig
ur

e 
4.

8 
an

d 
th

e 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 v

ita
lit

y 
of

 t
hi

s 
ar

ea
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
pr

ot
ec

te
d.

 T
he

 s
iz

e 
th

re
sh

ol
d 

of
 2

00
 m

2 
in

di
ca

te
s 

w
he

n 
im

pa
ct

 t
es

tin
g 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d.

 T
he

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
w

ill
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
le

ve
l o

f f
le

xi
bi

lit
y 

gi
ve

n 
to

 u
se

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 a
re

a.
 

 

Fi
g 

4.
8 

D
el

et
e 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.8
  

 
Pl

ac
e 

Sh
ap

in
g 

Le
db

ur
y 

73



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

M
M

02
5.

LB
1 

Po
lic

y 
LB

1-
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
Le

db
ur

y 
Le

db
ur

y 
w

ill
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

ar
ou

nd
 a

 m
in

im
um

 o
f 8

00
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 b
al

an
ce

d 
w

ith
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f 1

5 
he

ct
ar

es
 o

f n
ew

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
la

nd
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d.
 T

he
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f 
ne

w
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

fo
cu

ss
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
of

 t
he

 t
ow

n 
as

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 P

ol
ic

y 
LB

2 
an

d 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

lo
ca

tio
n 

fo
r 

ne
w

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t o
f a

ro
un

d 
12

 h
ec

ta
re

s 
is

 to
 th

e 
w

es
t o

f t
he

 to
w

n,
 s

ou
th

 o
f L

itt
le

 M
ar

cl
e 

Ro
ad

. F
ur

th
er

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ill
 t

ak
e 

pl
ac

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

co
m

m
itm

en
ts

, 
in

fil
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t,

 a
nd

 s
ite

s 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

or
 o

th
er

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
D

oc
um

en
t. 

A 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 s
ite

s 
w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
fu

tu
re

 p
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

H
ou

si
ng

 L
an

d 
Av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
As

se
ss

m
en

t (
SH

LA
A)

. 
W

ith
in

 L
ed

bu
ry

, n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ro

po
sa

ls
 w

ill
 b

e 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 w
he

re
 th

ey
:  

 
al

lo
w

 fo
r s

ui
ta

bl
e 

sm
al

l s
ca

le
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t s

ite
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
liv

e 
w

or
k 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 w
ith

in
 o

r a
dj

oi
ni

ng
 th

e 
to

w
n;

  
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
vi

ta
lit

y 
an

d 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
.  

Pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r 
ne

w
 r

et
ai

l, 
le

is
ur

e 
or

 o
ff

ic
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 

ov
er

 5
00

 4
00

m
2  i

n 
gr

os
s 

flo
or

 s
pa

ce
 a

nd
 l

oc
at

ed
 o

ut
si

de
 t

he
 t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
 w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 a

n 
im

pa
ct

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

to
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 th

er
e 

co
ul

d 
be

 a
ny

 a
dv

er
se

 im
pa

ct
s 

on
 th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
;  

 
im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 w

ith
in

 L
ed

bu
ry

 b
y 

w
al

ki
ng

, c
yc

lin
g 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

, p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 w
he

re
 t

he
y 

en
ha

nc
e 

co
nn

ec
tiv

ity
 w

ith
, f

or
 

ex
am

pl
e,

 lo
ca

l f
ac

ili
tie

s,
 n

ew
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

re
as

 a
nd

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

;  
 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

de
fic

ie
nc

ie
s 

in
 c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d/
or

 a
llo

w
 fo

r i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 (i
nc

lu
di

ng
 b

ro
ad

ba
nd

) i
n 

th
e 

to
w

n,
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t;
 

 
re

fle
ct

 a
nd

 e
nh

an
ce

 th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

 b
ui

lt 
hi

st
or

ic
 e

le
m

en
ts

 o
f L

ed
bu

ry
, s

uc
h 

as
 it

s 
st

on
e,

 b
ric

k 
an

d 
tim

be
r-

fr
am

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

, m
ed

ie
va

l 
pl

an
 fo

rm
, c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
se

tt
in

g 
ov

er
lo

ok
in

g 
th

e 
Le

ad
on

 V
al

le
y;

 
 

pr
ot

ec
t a

nd
 e

nh
an

ce
 it

s 
gr

ee
n 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 r
ig

ht
 o

f w
ay

 n
et

w
or

k 
an

d 
bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 th

e 
M

al
ve

rn
 H

ill
s 

Ar
ea

 o
f O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 N

at
ur

al
 B

ea
ut

y 
to

 th
e 

ea
st

 a
nd

 th
e 

Le
ad

on
 v

al
le

y 
to

 th
e 

w
es

t;
 

 
in

co
rp

or
at

e 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 a
nd

 e
nh

an
ce

 t
he

 s
et

tin
g 

of
 t

he
 t

ow
n 

fr
om

 e
as

te
rn

 a
nd

 w
es

te
rn

 v
ie

w
po

in
ts

 a
nd

 w
he

re
 t

hi
s 

is
 n

ot
 p

os
si

bl
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s;
 a

nd
 

 
ha

ve
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
d 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t a

nd
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
to

w
n 

co
un

ci
l. 

 

 

74



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

M
M

02
6.

LB
2 

Po
lic

y 
LB

2 
- L

an
d 

no
rt

h 
of

 th
e 

V
ia

du
ct

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
op

os
al

s 
no

rt
h 

of
 t

he
 v

ia
du

ct
 in

 L
ed

bu
ry

 w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 t
o 

br
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 m
ix

ed
 u

se
 u

rb
an

 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

of
 th

e 
to

w
n:

 

 
a 

m
ix

ed
 u

se
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 a

ro
un

d 
62

5 
ne

w
 h

om
es

, a
t 

an
 a

ve
ra

ge
 d

en
si

ty
 o

f 
ar

ou
nd

 4
0 

dw
el

lin
gs

 p
er

 h
ec

ta
re

, c
om

pr
is

in
g 

a 
m

ix
 o

f 
m

ar
ke

t 
an

d 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

se
 s

iz
es

 a
nd

 t
yp

es
 t

ha
t 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 o

f 
Po

lic
y 

H
3 

an
d 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 t

he
 la

te
st

 v
er

si
on

 o
f 

th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

Lo
ca

l H
ou

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t A

ss
es

sm
en

t;
   

 
A

ro
un

d 
3 

he
ct

ar
es

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

, r
es

tr
ic

te
d 

to
 U

se
 C

la
ss

 B
1 ,

 t
o 

be
 lo

ca
te

d 
al

on
g 

th
e 

no
rt

he
rn

 a
nd

 e
as

te
rn

 b
ou

nd
ar

y 
ad

jo
in

in
g 

ex
is

tin
g 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
;”

 
 

a 
ta

rg
et

 o
f 4

0%
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l n
um

be
r o

f d
w

el
lin

gs
 to

 b
e 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
; 

 
la

nd
 a

nd
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

a 
re

st
or

ed
 c

an
al

 to
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 a

nd
 G

lo
uc

es
te

rs
hi

re
 C

an
al

 T
ru

st
; 

 
a 

ne
w

 li
ne

ar
 in

fo
rm

al
 p

ar
k 

to
 li

nk
 to

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

to
w

n 
tr

ai
l, 

ri
ve

rs
id

e 
w

al
k,

  r
ec

re
at

io
na

l o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

an
d 

ex
is

tin
g 

al
lo

tm
en

ts
; 

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pe

r  
co

nt
ri

bu
tio

ns
 

to
w

ar
ds

 
an

y 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

ne
ed

 
fo

r 
ne

w
/i

m
pr

ov
ed

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s/

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. T
hi

s 
sh

al
l i

nc
lu

de
 a

 n
ew

 2
10

 p
la

ce
 p

rim
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

(o
r 

an
 e

xp
an

si
on

 o
f t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pr
im

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
) a

nd
 n

ew
 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 p

la
y,

 in
do

or
 a

nd
 o

ut
do

or
 s

po
rt

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
de

liv
er

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
de

ve
lo

pe
r 

co
nt

ri
bu

tio
ns

; 
 

pr
im

ar
y 

ve
hi

cu
la

r 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

fr
om

 e
ith

er
 t

he
 H

er
ef

or
d 

Ro
ad

 u
nd

er
 t

he
 v

ia
du

ct
 w

ith
 t

he
 o

pt
io

n 
of

 a
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 
ac

ce
ss

 o
r f

ro
m

 th
e 

Br
om

ya
rd

 R
oa

d 
to

 th
e 

no
rt

h;
 

 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

to
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

 t
he

 a
m

en
ity

 o
f 

fu
tu

re
 o

cc
up

an
ts

 f
ro

m
 u

na
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
no

is
e 

an
d 

to
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

 t
he

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 a

dj
oi

ni
ng

 th
e 

ar
ea

; 
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 b

es
po

ke
, 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

in
cl

us
iv

e 
de

si
gn

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

th
at

 w
ill

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 o

ld
er

 p
er

so
ns

 a
nd

 t
ha

t 
co

nt
ri

bu
te

s 
to

 th
e 

di
st

in
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

is
 p

ar
t o

f L
ed

bu
ry

 a
nd

 r
es

pe
ct

s 
th

e 
se

tt
in

g 
an

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

lis
te

d 
vi

ad
uc

t a
nd

 th
e 

M
al

ve
rn

 H
ill

s 
A

re
a 

of
 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 N
at

ur
al

 B
ea

ut
y;

 
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

ds
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

ad
ve

rs
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

qu
an

tit
y 

in
 th

e 
Ri

ve
r L

ea
do

n;
 

 
ne

w
 w

al
ki

ng
, c

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
bu

s 
lin

ks
 fr

om
 th

e 
ur

ba
n 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
di

re
ct

ly
 to

 th
e 

to
w

n 
tr

ai
l a

nd
 ri

ve
rs

id
e 

w
al

k 
un

de
r t

he
 v

ia
du

ct
, t

he
 ra

ilw
ay

 s
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 to
 c

re
at

e 
lin

ka
ge

s 
to

 n
ea

rb
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 e

xi
st

in
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s;

  
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
of

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n;

 a
nd

   
a 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 u

rb
an

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
sy

st
em

 w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 m

ea
su

re
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

ra
in

 g
ar

de
ns

 a
nd

 s
w

al
es

 t
o 

m
an

ag
e 

gr
ou

nd
 a

nd
 s

ur
fa

ce
 w

at
er

 
dr

ai
na

ge
 a

nd
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

 a
ga

in
st

 a
ny

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
flo

od
 ri

sk
. 

 

4.
5.

7 
Am

en
d 

fir
st

 s
en

te
nc

e:
  

Ve
hi

cu
la

r,
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n,
 c

yc
le

 a
nd

 b
us

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 t

he
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

ite
 w

ill
 p

rim
ar

ily
 b

e 
un

de
r 

th
e 

vi
ad

uc
t 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

, w
ith

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
lin

ks
 t

o 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

lin
ki

ng
 w

ith
 t

he
 s

ta
tio

n.
 If

 r
eq

ui
re

d,
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f 

a 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

ve
hi

cu
la

r 
ac

ce
ss

 o
n 

to
 t

he
 B

ro
m

ya
rd

 
Ro

ad
 w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
th

en
 e

na
bl

e 
th

e 
cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 a
 r

oa
d 

lin
k.

 A
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 t

he
 s

pe
ed

 li
m

it 
al

on
g 

th
e 

Br
om

ya
rd

 R
oa

d 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
th

e 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Ro
ad

/B
ro

m
ya

rd
 R

oa
d 

ju
nc

tio
n 

ar
e 

al
so

 li
ke

ly
 t

o 
be

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

de
si

gn
, s

af
et

y 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

of
 t

hi
s 

ro
ad

 a
nd

 ju
nc

tio
n.

 
Th

es
e,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 h

ig
hw

ay
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, w

ill
 b

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 b

y 
a 

tr
af

fic
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t.
 

 

75



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

M
M

02
7.

4.
5.

14
 

 
Th

e 
po

lic
y 

fo
r 

sh
op

pi
ng

 in
 L

ed
bu

ry
, b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 in
 t

he
 T

ow
n 

Ce
nt

re
s 

St
ud

y 
U

pd
at

e 
20

12
, i

s 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g,
 t

hr
iv

in
g 

ce
nt

re
 

w
hi

ch
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
a 

m
ix

tu
re

 o
f p

op
ul

ar
 h

ig
h 

st
re

et
 a

nd
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t s
to

re
s.

 N
ew

 h
om

es
 a

nd
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
in

 L
ed

bu
ry

 w
ill

 s
tr

en
gt

he
n 

th
is

 s
up

po
rt

 
fo

r 
th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
m

od
es

 o
f t

ra
ns

po
rt

 in
to

 t
he

 t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

 v
ia

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
to

w
n 

tr
ai

l w
ill

 a
ls

o 
su

pp
or

t 
th

is
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

. A
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 a

re
a 

is
 d

ef
in

ed
 in

 F
ig

ur
e 

4.
11

 a
nd

 re
la

te
s 

to
 P

ol
ic

y 
E6

. 
 

 

Fi
gu

re
 

4.
11

. 
D

el
et

e 
fig

ur
e.

 4
.1

1 
 

Pl
ac

e 
Sh

ap
in

g 
- L

eo
m

in
st

er
 

M
M

02
8.

LO
1 

Po
lic

y 
LO

1 
– 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

Le
om

in
st

er
 

Le
om

in
st

er
 w

ill
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f 2
,3

00
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d,
 (2

01
1-

20
31

) o
f w

hi
ch

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f 
1,

50
0 

dw
el

lin
gs

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ur

ba
n 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
to

 t
he

 s
ou

th
-w

es
t 

of
 t

he
 t

ow
n.

 T
he

 r
em

ai
ni

ng
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
th

ro
ug

h 
ex

is
tin

g 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
, 

sm
al

le
r 

sc
al

e 
no

n-
st

ra
te

gi
c 

si
te

s 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

ilt
 u

p 
ar

ea
; 

th
os

e 
w

hi
ch

 c
om

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Le

om
in

st
er

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 D
oc

um
en

ts
, o

r 
si

te
s 

ju
dg

ed
 a

s 
ha

vi
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
po

te
nt

ia
l w

hi
ch

 
ar

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

H
ou

si
ng

 L
an

d 
Av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
As

se
ss

m
en

t.
  

Th
e 

Le
om

in
st

er
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Pa

rk
 w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 t

o 
se

rv
e 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

ne
ed

s 
of

 L
eo

m
in

st
er

, w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

fu
rt

he
r 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
of

 u
p 

to
 

10
ha

 t
o 

th
e 

so
ut

h 
of

 t
he

 e
nt

er
pr

is
e 

pa
rk

. 
Th

e 
re

le
as

e 
of

 t
he

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 l

an
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

ph
as

ed
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

up
o n

 t
he

 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
or

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

of
 la

nd
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

en
te

rp
ris

e 
pa

rk
. 

In
 L

eo
m

in
st

er
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 w
ill

 b
e 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 w

he
re

 th
ey

:  

 
co

nt
in

ue
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 L

eo
m

in
st

er
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r s
ui

ta
bl

e 
sm

al
l s

ca
le

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t s
ite

s 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
to

w
n;

 
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 v

ita
lit

y 
of

 t
he

 t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

. 
Pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

ne
w

 r
et

ai
l, 

le
is

ur
e 

or
 o

ff
ic

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 
ov

er
 5

00
 4

00
m

2  in
 g

ro
ss

 fl
oo

r s
pa

ce
 a

nd
 lo

ca
te

d 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 th
e 

de
fin

ed
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 a

n 
im

pa
ct

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 N

at
io

na
l P

la
nn

in
g 

Po
lic

y 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
w

he
th

er
 t

he
re

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
an

y 
ad

ve
rs

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 t
he

 v
ita

lit
y 

an
d 

vi
ab

ili
ty

 o
f L

eo
m

in
st

er
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
; 

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 d

o 
no

t e
xa

ce
rb

at
e 

ai
r p

ol
lu

tio
n 

le
ve

ls
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

re
a 

at
 B

ar
ga

te
s;

 
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t d

oe
s 

no
t u

nd
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t o
f w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

ta
rg

et
s 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ol
ic

y 
SD

3 
an

d 
SD

4;
 a

nd
 

 
ha

ve
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
d 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t a

nd
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
to

w
n/

pa
ris

h 
co

un
ci

l. 

 

M
M

02
9.

LO
2 

Po
lic

y 
LO

2 
– 

Le
om

in
st

er
 u

rb
an

 e
xt

en
si

on
 

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

at
 L

eo
m

in
st

er
 u

rb
an

 e
xt

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 t

o 
br

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d  

La
nd

 s
ou

th
 w

es
t 

of
 L

eo
m

in
st

er
 w

ill
 d

el
iv

er
 a

 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

ly
 p

la
nn

ed
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 u

rb
an

 e
xt

en
si

on
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 d
el

iv
er

: 

 
ar

ou
nd

 a
 m

in
im

um
 o

f 
1,

50
0 

ne
w

 h
om

es
 a

t 
an

 a
ve

ra
ge

 d
en

si
ty

 o
f 

up
 t

o 
35

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 p

er
 h

ec
ta

re
 c

om
pr

is
in

g 
a 

m
ix

 o
f 

m
ar

ke
t 

an
d 

 

76



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
se

 s
iz

es
 a

nd
 t

yp
es

 t
ha

t 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f 

Po
lic

y 
H

3,
 a

nd
 t

he
 n

ee
ds

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
la

te
st

 v
er

si
on

 o
f 

th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 H
ou

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t A

ss
es

sm
en

t;
   

 
an

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 2
5%

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

as
 a

n 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 h

om
es

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

in
 th

e 
to

w
n;

  
 

a 
so

ut
he

rn
 L

eo
m

in
st

er
 r

el
ie

f r
oa

d 
lin

ki
ng

 t
he

 W
or

ce
st

er
 R

oa
d 

ro
un

da
bo

ut
 d

ire
ct

ly
 t

o 
th

e 
A4

4,
 t

o 
he

lp
 r

el
ie

ve
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
to

w
n 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

ai
r q

ua
lit

y 
in

 th
e 

Ba
rg

at
es

 a
re

a;
 

 
sm

al
l s

ca
le

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 re

ta
il 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s;
 

 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

as
 d

em
an

d 
ar

is
es

 in
 th

e 
fo

rm
 o

f u
se

 c
la

ss
 B

1 
an

d 
liv

e/
w

or
k 

un
its

; 
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 c
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 y

ou
th

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 a
 c

om
m

un
ity

 h
ub

; 
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 n

ew
 4

20
 p

la
ce

 p
rim

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
 a

nd
 p

re
-s

ch
oo

l f
ac

ili
tie

s;
 

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f 
on

-s
ite

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e,

 s
po

rt
s 

an
d 

re
cr

ea
tio

n 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

(in
 a

dd
iti

on
 t

o 
Co

ck
cr

of
t 

H
ill

). 
Th

is
 s

ha
ll 

in
cl

ud
e 

fu
lly

 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 s
em

i-n
at

ur
al

 a
nd

 n
at

ur
al

 g
re

en
sp

ac
e;

 p
la

y 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r 

al
l a

ge
 g

ro
up

s,
 in

do
or

 a
nd

 o
ut

do
or

 s
po

rt
s 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
(s

om
e 

of
 w

hi
ch

 
m

ay
 b

e 
of

f s
ite

); 
al

lo
tm

en
ts

 a
nd

 n
ew

 o
rc

ha
rd

 p
la

nt
in

g;
 

 
ne

w
 g

re
en

 i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
yc

lin
g 

lin
ks

 t
o 

th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

, 
sc

h o
ol

s,
 t

he
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 l

oc
al

 p
ub

lic
 r

ig
ht

 o
f 

w
ay

 
ne

tw
or

k;
 

 
re

te
nt

io
n 

of
 t

he
 h

ig
hl

y 
se

ns
iti

ve
 l

an
ds

ca
pe

 a
re

as
 a

nd
 g

eo
lo

gi
ca

l 
fe

at
ur

es
 o

f 
Co

ck
cr

of
t 

H
ill

 (
w

hi
ch

 e
nc

om
pa

ss
es

 R
ye

la
nd

s 
Cr

of
t)

 b
y 

re
ta

in
in

g 
th

is
 s

ite
 a

s 
na

tu
ra

l o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e;

 
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
of

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n;

 
 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 u
rb

an
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

sy
st

em
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 m
ea

su
re

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
ra

in
 g

ar
de

ns
 a

nd
 s

w
al

es
 t

o 
m

an
ag

e 
gr

ou
nd

 a
nd

 
su

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
an

d 
sa

fe
gu

ar
d 

ag
ai

ns
t a

ny
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

flo
od

 ri
sk

; a
nd

 
 

an
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 a
rc

ha
eo

lo
gi

ca
l i

m
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
of

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
 th

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

po
sa

ls
. 

 
Th

e 
la

nd
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

to
 t

he
 s

ou
th

-w
es

t o
f L

eo
m

in
st

er
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

en
ab

le
 t

he
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 o
f t

he
 to

w
n 

to
 b

e 
m

et
 b

ey
on

d 
th

e 
pl

an
 

pe
rio

d.
  

4.
6.

5 
Am

en
d 

se
co

nd
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 
Ar

ou
nd

 A
 m

in
im

um
 o

f 1
,5

00
 h

om
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 u

rb
an

 e
xt

en
si

on
 u

p 
to

 2
03

1 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f o
th

er
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
o 

m
ee

t t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f i
ts

 re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
in

te
gr

at
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

to
w

n.
 

 

M
M

03
0.

4.
6.

20
 

Th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

co
m

pa
ris

on
 r

et
ai

l p
ro

po
sa

ls
 is

 m
or

e 
lim

ite
d 

w
ith

 a
 m

od
es

t 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 t

ow
ar

ds
 t

he
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 p
la

n 
pe

rio
d.

 T
he

 s
tu

dy
 in

di
ca

te
d 

th
at

 
th

e 
pr

io
rit

y 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

to
 s

te
er

 a
ny

 n
ew

 fl
oo

rs
pa

ce
 to

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 a
s 

fa
r 

as
 th

is
 is

 p
ra

ct
ic

al
, a

nd
 o

nl
y 

to
 p

er
m

it 
ou

t-
of

-c
en

tr
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
if 

th
ey

 
w

ou
ld

 m
at

er
ia

lly
 e

nh
an

ce
 t

he
 r

et
ai

l o
ff

er
 o

f 
th

e 
to

w
n 

an
d 

as
si

st
 in

 r
et

ai
ni

ng
 c

at
ch

m
en

t 
re

si
de

nt
s’

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 T
he

 s
tu

dy
 in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 a
n 

 
Im

pa
ct

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 w
ill

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 o

f 5
00

m
2 

40
0m

2  o
f f

lo
or

sp
ac

e 
an

d 
gr

ea
te

r a
nd

 th
is

 is
 re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 P
ol

ic
y 

E5
. 

 

77



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

4.
6.

22
 

D
el

et
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
w

or
ds

 fr
om

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
se

nt
en

ce
 a

nd
 a

dd
 n

ew
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 
M

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 r

et
ai

l p
ro

vi
si

on
 fo

r 
Le

om
in

st
er

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

to
 a

llo
ca

te
 s

ite
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 
th

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
of

 a
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 a

nd
/o

r 
ot

he
r 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 D

oc
um

en
ts

.  T
he

 e
xt

en
t 

of
 t

he
 t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
 a

nd
 t

he
 

pr
im

ar
y 

sh
op

pi
ng

 a
re

a,
 (m

ad
e 

up
 o

f t
he

 p
rim

ar
y 

an
d 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
fr

on
ta

ge
s)

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
fin

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

 

Fi
g 

4.
14

 
D

el
et

e 
Fi

gu
re

 4
.1

4 
 

 

M
M

03
1.

4.
6.

24
 

Ad
d 

ne
w

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 to

 fo
llo

w
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 4
.6

.2
4:

 
“S

ec
tio

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
Ri

ve
r 

W
ye

 S
AC

 w
he

re
 t

he
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

ta
rg

et
s 

ar
e 

al
re

ad
y 

ex
ce

ed
ed

 w
ill

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
nu

tr
ie

nt
s 

in
 li

ne
 

w
ith

 t
he

 t
ar

ge
ts

. A
ll 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
Le

om
in

st
er

 u
rb

an
 e

xt
en

si
on

 m
us

t 
no

t 
co

m
pr

om
is

e 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e 

N
ut

rie
nt

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
ov

er
al

l r
ed

uc
tio

ns
 a

lo
ng

 th
es

e 
st

re
tc

he
s.

” 

 

Pl
ac

e 
Sh

ap
in

g 
– 

Ro
ss

-o
n-

W
ye

 

M
M

03
2.

RW
1 

Po
lic

y 
RW

1 
– 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

Ro
ss

-o
n-

W
ye

 
Ro

ss
-o

n-
W

ye
 w

ill
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

ar
ou

nd
 a

 m
in

im
um

 o
f 

90
0 

ne
w

 h
om

es
, 

ba
la

nc
ed

 w
ith

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

10
 h

ec
ta

re
s 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
la

nd
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d,
 i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 t
he

 s
pa

tia
l 

st
ra

te
gy

. 
A 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ho

us
in

g 
lo

ca
tio

n 
w

ill
 f

oc
us

 n
ew

 r
es

id
en

tia
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

 m
in

im
um

 o
f 2

00
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 to
 th

e 
so

ut
h 

ea
st

 o
f t

he
 to

w
n.

 F
ur

th
er

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ill

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

ex
is

tin
g 

co
m

m
itm

en
t, 

in
fil

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
an

d 
pe

rip
he

ra
l 

to
w

n 
si

te
s 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 D
oc

um
en

t.
 T

he
 r

em
ai

ni
ng

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
fo

r 
ho

m
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 o
n 

si
te

s 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n.

  
 W

ith
in

 R
os

s-
on

-W
ye

, n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ro

po
sa

ls
 w

ill
 b

e 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 w
he

re
 th

ey
: 

 
al

lo
w

 fo
r s

ui
ta

bl
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t s

ite
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
liv

e-
w

or
k 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 w
ith

in
 o

r a
dj

oi
ni

ng
 th

e 
to

w
n;

 
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
vi

ta
lit

y 
an

d 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
. 

Pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r 
ne

w
 r

et
ai

l, 
le

is
ur

e 
or

 o
ff

ic
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 

ov
er

 5
00

 4
00

m
2  g

ro
ss

 f
lo

or
 s

pa
ce

 a
nd

 l
oc

at
ed

 o
ut

si
de

 t
he

 t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 a
n 

im
pa

ct
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
to

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 th
er

e 
co

ul
d 

be
 a

ny
 a

dv
er

se
 im

pa
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

; 
 

im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 w
ith

in
 R

os
s-

on
-W

ye
 b

y 
w

al
ki

ng
, c

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 w

he
re

 t
he

y 
en

ha
nc

e 
co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

 w
ith

 
lo

ca
l f

ac
ili

tie
s,

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 a
nd

 e
xi

st
in

g 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t a
re

as
; 

 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
 d

ef
ic

ie
nc

ie
s 

in
 t

ow
ar

ds
 n

ew
 o

r 
im

pr
ov

ed
 c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d/
or

 a
llo

w
 fo

r 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 t

he
 t

ow
n 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t;

 
 

re
fle

ct
 a

nd
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
 n

at
ur

al
 a

nd
 b

ui
lt 

hi
st

or
ic

 e
le

m
en

ts
 o

f R
os

s-
on

-W
ye

, s
uc

h 
as

 it
s 

re
d 

sa
nd

st
on

e 
an

d 
tim

be
r 

fr
am

ed
 

Tu
do

r b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

w
al

ls
, t

he
 m

ed
ie

va
l p

la
n 

fo
rm

, c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 n

at
ur

al
 s

et
tin

g 
ov

er
lo

ok
in

g 
th

e 
Ri

ve
r W

ye
; 

 

78



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

 
en

ha
nc

e 
gr

ee
n 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 th

e 
W

ye
 V

al
le

y 
Ar

ea
 o

f O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 N
at

ur
al

 B
ea

ut
y 

an
d 

th
e 

Ri
ve

r W
ye

; a
nd

 
 

ha
ve

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

d 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t a
nd

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

to
w

n/
pa

ris
h 

co
un

ci
l. 

M
M

03
3.

RW
2 

Po
lic

y 
RW

2 
– 

La
nd

 a
t H

ild
er

sl
ey

 
 Th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
l o

n 
la

nd
 to

 th
e 

so
ut

h 
ea

st
 o

f R
os

s-
on

-W
ye

 a
t H

ild
er

sl
ey

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

rin
g 

fo
rw

ar
d 

in
cl

ud
e  

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 d
el

iv
er

 a
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

ly
 p

la
nn

ed
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 u

rb
an

 e
xt

en
si

on
 o

f t
he

 to
w

n:
 

 

 
ar

ou
nd

 a
 m

in
im

um
 o

f 
20

0 
ne

w
 h

om
es

 a
t 

an
 a

ve
ra

ge
 d

en
si

ty
 o

f 
up

 t
o 

35
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 p
er

 h
ec

ta
re

, 
co

m
pr

is
in

g 
a 

m
ix

 o
f 

m
ar

ke
t 

an
d 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
se

 s
iz

es
 a

nd
 t

yp
es

 t
ha

t 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f 

Po
lic

y 
H

3 
an

d 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 t
he

 l
at

es
t 

ve
rs

io
n 

of
 t

he
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 H
ou

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t A

ss
es

sm
en

t;
  

 
a 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 4
0%

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l n

um
be

r o
f d

w
el

lin
gs

 s
ha

ll 
be

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g;

  
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 t

ow
ar

ds
 a

ny
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

ne
ed

 f
or

 n
ew

/i
m

pr
ov

ed
 c

om
m

un
ity

 f
ac

ili
tie

s/
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. 
Th

is
 s

ha
ll 

in
cl

ud
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 t
ow

ar
ds

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f: 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

re
-s

ch
oo

l p
la

ce
s;

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

la
ss

ro
om

s 
at

 J
oh

n 
Ky

rle
 H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
 

fo
r s

ec
on

da
ry

, p
os

t 1
6 

an
d 

yo
ut

h/
co

m
m

un
ity

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 fu

rt
he

r s
pe

ci
al

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l n

ee
ds

 p
ro

vi
si

on
; 

 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

 s
po

rt
/r

ec
re

at
io

n 
sp

ac
e 

ei
th

er
 o

n 
or

 o
ff

 s
ite

 a
s 

an
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
to

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
on

 s
ite

 J
oh

n 
Ky

rle
 H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
 p

la
yi

ng
 

fie
ld

; 
 

th
e 

cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 g

re
en

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
ar

ea
 t

o 
be

ne
fit

 r
es

id
en

ts
, l

oc
al

 b
at

 p
op

ul
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 f

lo
ra

 a
nd

 
fa

un
a;

 
 

ne
w

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

an
d 

cy
cl

e 
lin

ks
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 a
re

a 
to

w
ar

ds
 t

he
 t

ow
n 

an
d 

ne
ar

by
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

si
te

s,
 t

o 
ea

se
 r

oa
d 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
an

d 
lim

it 
CO

2
 

em
is

si
on

s;
 

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 m
iti

ga
tio

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d,
 w

hi
ch

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
co

us
tic

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

is
su

es
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 t

he
 p

ro
xi

m
ity

 o
f 

th
e 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 fi
rin

g 
ra

ng
e 

ar
e 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
ily

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
; 

 
ad

ve
rs

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 t
he

 W
at

er
 S

ou
rc

e 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

Zo
ne

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

vo
id

ed
 o

r 
m

iti
ga

te
d,

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 i

nc
or

po
ra

tio
n 

of
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ur
ba

n 
dr

ai
na

ge
 s

ol
ut

io
ns

 s
uc

h 
as

 r
ai

n 
ga

rd
en

s 
an

d 
sw

al
es

; 
an

d 
th

e 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

by
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
er

 o
f 

a 
Su

rf
ac

e 
W

at
er

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n;
 

 
av

oi
d 

an
d 

m
iti

ga
te

 a
dv

er
se

 im
pa

ct
s 

fr
om

 n
oi

se
 a

nd
 a

ir 
po

llu
tio

n 
an

d 
vi

br
at

io
n 

(d
ur

in
g 

bo
th

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
an

d 
oc

cu
pa

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 h

om
es

) 
on

 th
e 

Ri
ve

r W
ye

 S
AC

, W
ye

 V
al

le
y 

W
oo

dl
an

ds
 S

AC
 a

nd
 th

e 
W

ye
 V

al
le

y 
an

d 
Fo

re
st

 o
f D

ea
n 

Ba
t S

ite
s 

SA
C ;

 a
nd

 
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f b
es

po
ke

, h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 in
cl

us
iv

e 
de

si
gn

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
th

at
 w

ill
 m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f o

ld
er

 p
er

so
ns

 a
nd

 th
at

 
co

nt
rib

ut
es

 t
o 

th
e 

di
st

in
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 t

hi
s 

pa
rt

 o
f R

os
s-

on
-W

ye
 a

nd
 e

nh
an

ce
s 

th
e 

se
tt

in
g 

of
 t

he
 a

dj
ac

en
t W

ye
 V

al
le

y 
Ar

ea
 o

f O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 
N

at
ur

al
 B

ea
ut

y.
 

 

79



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

M
M

03
4.

N
ew

 P
ar

a 
 

In
se

rt
 n

ew
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 a
ft

er
 4

.7
.1

0 
*.

*.
**

   
Th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 t
o 

se
rv

e 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 R

os
s-

on
-W

ye
 a

nd
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 a

re
as

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
on

ito
re

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

Pl
an

 
pe

rio
d.

 A
ny

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
ad

di
tio

na
l n

ee
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
th

ro
ug

h:
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

co
m

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

SS
5,

 R
W

1,
 E

1 
an

d 
E3

 o
f t

he
 P

la
n;

 a
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

Co
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y;
 o

r 
a 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 D
oc

um
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
ar

ea
.”

 

 

M
M

03
5.

4.
7.

19
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
:  

A 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 is

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 F
ig

ur
e 

4.
17

 a
nd

 r
el

at
es

 to
 P

ol
ic

y 
E5

 a
nd

 E
6.

 T
hi

s 
m

ap
 d

ra
w

s 
a 

lin
e 

ar
ou

nd
 t

he
 m

ai
n 

sh
op

pi
ng

 s
tr

ee
ts

 a
nd

 e
ns

ur
es

 
th

at
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
un

de
ru

se
d,

 o
ft

en
 v

ac
an

t 
re

ta
il 

un
its

 a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
fo

rm
s 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t,

 s
uc

h 
as

 r
es

id
en

tia
l, 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 d

riv
e 

an
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

in
 t

he
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l q

ua
lit

y 
of

 s
uc

h 
ar

ea
s.

 T
he

 t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

 f
or

 R
os

s-
on

-W
ye

 is
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

on
 t

he
 ‘s

av
ed

’ H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 U

ni
ta

ry
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 m
ap

. 
Th

is
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 i

de
nt

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 P

rim
ar

y 
Sh

op
pi

ng
 A

re
as

 i
n 

th
e 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n.
 S

av
ed

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
ca

n 
be

 v
ie

w
ed

 in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

1.
 

 

Fi
g 

4.
17

 
D

el
et

e 
Fi

g 
4.

17
 R

os
s-

on
-W

ye
 T

ow
n 

Ce
nt

re
 

 
  

Re
vi

si
on

s 
to

 r
ur

al
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ol
ic

ie
s 

RA
1 

to
 R

A
6 

an
d 

su
pp

or
ti

ng
 te

xt
 

M
M

03
6.

4.
8.

6 
‘B

y 
vi

rt
ue

 o
f 

th
es

e 
at

tr
ib

ut
es

, 
Th

e 
ru

ra
l 

ar
ea

 o
f 

ea
ch

 H
M

A 
ha

s 
di

ff
er

in
g 

fu
tu

re
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
. 

w
hi

ch
 t

hi
s 

lo
ca

lly
 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 T
he

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
ad

op
te

d 
in

 t
hi

s 
pl

an
 s

et
s 

ou
t 

ai
m

s 
to

 r
es

po
nd

 t
o 

th
es

e 
ne

ed
s 

an
d 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 i
n 

a 
fle

xi
bl

e 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
ve

 
w

ay
 m

or
e 

cl
os

el
y.

 T
og

et
he

r 
w

ith
 t

he
 r

ol
l o

ut
 o

f t
he

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ag
en

da
, t

hi
s 

st
ra

te
gy

 w
ill

 e
m

po
w

er
 m

or
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 t
o 

be
ne

fit
 

fr
om

 m
ea

ni
ng

fu
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t,

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 t

o 
ev

ol
ve

 a
s 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

pl
ac

es
 w

hi
ls

t 
re

sp
ec

tin
g 

th
e 

th
ei

r 
fu

nd
am

en
ta

l 
ru

ra
l 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
of

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

.’ 
  

    

4.
8.

9 
Th

e 
H

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

in
 r

ur
al

 a
re

as
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
s,

 a
ny

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
Ru

ra
l 

Ar
ea

s 
Si

te
 

Al
lo

ca
tio

ns
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 D
oc

um
en

t 
an

d 
a 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

co
m

m
itm

en
ts

, a
nd

 w
in

df
al

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
  a

nd
 s

ite
s 

en
ab

le
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

s.
 F

or
 t

ho
se

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 n
ot

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
ad

va
nc

em
en

t 
of

 a
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
, 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
m

ay
 c

on
si

de
r 

al
lo

ca
tin

g 
ho

us
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
en

su
re

 t
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 r
ur

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 

si
te

s.
 T

he
 c

ou
nc

il’
s 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
H

ou
si

ng
 L

an
d 

Av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

As
se

ss
m

en
t i

nd
ic

at
es

 th
er

e 
is

 p
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 th
is

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

se
d 

in
 th

is
 

po
lic

y.
 in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 ru
ra

l v
ill

ag
es

. 

 

4.
8.

11
 

Th
e 

in
di

ca
tiv

e 
m

in
im

um
 r

ur
al

 H
M

A 
ta

rg
et

 w
ill

 u
nd

er
pi

n 
as

si
st

 in
 in

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

sc
al

e 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
in

 t
he

 s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 v
ill

ag
es

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 
ea

ch
 H

M
A.

 T
he

 t
ar

ge
t 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 a

 le
ve

l o
f 

gr
ow

th
 f

or
 v

ill
ag

es
, a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
, a

nd
 w

hi
ch

 t
ha

t 
is

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 t
o 

ex
is

tin
g 

H
M

A 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s.

 a
nd

 r
ef

le
ct

iv
e 

of
 fu

tu
re

 h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 w
ith

in
 th

at
 a

re
a.

 F
or

 in
di

vi
du

al
 v

ill
ag

es
 o

f e
ac

h 
H

M
A 

th
is

 is
 tr

an
sl

at
ed

 

 

80



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 t

he
 t

ot
al

 n
um

be
r 

of
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 in
 t

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
co

re
 (n

ot
 p

ar
is

h)
. F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 t
he

 g
ro

w
th

 t
ar

ge
t 

fo
r 

a 
vi

lla
ge

 o
f 1

00
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 
lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 B
ro

m
ya

rd
 H

M
A 

(w
hi

ch
 h

as
 a

 1
5%

 ta
rg

et
) w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
15

 n
ew

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 o

ve
r t

he
 p

la
n 

pe
rio

d 
20

11
 to

 2
03

1.
 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
4.

8.
13

 
(b

el
ow

 
4.

8.
12

) 

O
n 

th
is

 b
as

is
, 

al
l v

ill
ag

es
 A

ll 
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 F

ig
ur

es
 4

.2
0 

an
d 

4.
21

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
th

e 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 f
or

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
an

d 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 h
ou

si
ng

 
gr

ow
th

. 
 t

ha
t 

is
 p

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 t
o 

th
ei

r 
ex

is
tin

g 
si

ze
. 

Th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

fo
cu

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 h

ou
si

ng
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

 t
ho

se
 s

et
tle

m
en

ts
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 i

n 
Fi

gu
re

 
4.

20
. 

th
os

e 
vi

lla
ge

s 
th

at
 i

n 
th

e 
co

nt
ex

t 
of

 t
he

 r
ur

al
 H

M
A 

w
ith

in
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
se

t 
an

d 
fu

nc
tio

n 
ar

e 
th

e 
m

os
t 

lo
ca

lly
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 t

o 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
(F

ig
ur

e 
4.

20
). 

In
 t

he
 r

em
ai

ni
ng

, o
ft

en
 t

yp
ic

al
ly

 s
m

al
le

r 
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
 v

ill
ag

es
 o

f e
ac

h 
H

M
A,

 a
s 

se
t 

ou
t 

in
 F

ig
ur

e 
4.

21
  p

ro
po

rt
io

na
l h

ou
si

ng
 g

ro
w

th
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

st
ric

te
d 

to
 s

m
al

le
r 

m
ar

ke
t 

ho
us

in
g 

(o
r 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
) w

hi
ch

 m
ee

ts
 t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 

lo
ca

l 
co

nn
ec

tio
ns

, 
w

ho
m

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
be

 a
bl

e 
to

 l
iv

e 
in

 t
he

ir 
ar

ea
 (

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
1)

. 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 a
tt

en
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

ho
us

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

re
sp

ec
t 

th
e 

sc
al

e,
 f

or
m

, l
ay

ou
t, 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
an

d 
se

tt
in

g 
of

 t
he

 s
et

tle
m

en
t 

co
nc

er
ne

d.
  

By
 v

irt
ue

 o
f 

th
ei

r 
si

ze
 a

nd
 

ch
ar

ac
te

r m
an

y 
of

 th
es

e 
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
 d

o 
no

t h
av

e 
a 

tr
ad

iti
on

al
 v

ill
ag

e 
or

 n
uc

le
ar

 c
en

tr
e 

an
d 

in
 m

an
y 

ca
se

s 
ha

ve
 a

 d
is

pe
rs

ed
 s

et
tle

m
en

t p
at

te
rn

 
w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
re

sp
ec

te
d 

in
 th

e 
de

si
gn

 o
f n

ew
 h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

.  
Th

is
 w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 s
ch

em
es

 th
at

 a
re

 lo
ca

lly
 d

is
tin

ct
iv

e.
   

 

 

4.
8.

14
 

Th
er

ef
or

e,
 t

he
 t

ar
ge

t 
pr

ov
id

es
 in

di
vi

du
al

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 w
ith

 a
 s

ta
rt

in
g 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
w

hi
ch

 t
he

y 
sh

ou
ld

 a
im

 t
o 

m
ee

t 
or

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 e

xc
ee

d 
ov

er
 t

he
 

pl
an

 p
er

io
d 

in
 a

 lo
ca

lly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 m

an
ne

r 
an

d 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

on
 t

he
ir 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 a

sp
ira

tio
ns

. T
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l a
nd

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 c

on
st

ra
in

ts
 o

f 
an

 a
re

a 
w

ill
 b

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 i
n 

sh
ap

in
g 

a 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 (

an
d 

ot
he

r 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 D
oc

um
en

ts
). 

W
ith

 r
eg

ar
d 

to
 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
, N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

ns
 w

ill
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 n

ee
d 

to
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f t

he
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

ne
tw

or
k 

in
 th

ei
r 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

n 
w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ol
ic

y 
SD

4.
 

 

RA
1 

Po
lic

y 
RA

1 
– 

Ru
ra

l h
ou

si
ng

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 

In
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 ru

ra
l a

re
as

 a
ro

un
d 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f 5
,3

00
 n

ew
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
et

w
ee

n 
20

11
 a

nd
 2

03
1 

to
 h

el
p 

m
ee

t c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 

th
e 

co
un

ty
’s

 h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
. w

ith
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
be

in
g 

a 
pr

io
rit

y.
 T

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f r
ur

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 w

ill
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
w

id
er

 re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ru

ra
l e

co
no

m
y.

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
om

ot
ed

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

ed
, a

nd
 th

e 
un

iq
ue

 lo
ca

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

an
d,

 w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
, e

nh
an

ce
d.

  

N
ew

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 w

ill
 b

e 
br

oa
dl

y 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

co
un

ty
’s

 ru
ra

l a
re

as
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 s

ev
en

 7
 H

ou
si

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
 A

re
as

 (H
M

A)
s 

– 
as

 il
lu

st
ra

te
d 

in
 F

ig
ur

e 
4.

18
) T

hi
s 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
es

in
g 

th
at

 d
iff

er
en

t a
re

as
 o

f H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 h

av
e 

di
ff

er
en

t f
ut

ur
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
an

d 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
.  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 t
o 

ru
ra

l H
M

A 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s 

an
d 

re
fle

ct
iv

e 
of

 fu
tu

re
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 e
ac

h 
ar

ea
, a

 g
ro

w
th

 t
ar

ge
t 

(%
) w

ill
 

as
si

st
 t

o 
in

fo
rm

 t
he

 le
ve

l o
f h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 v

ill
ag

es
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 e

ac
h 

H
M

A.
 A

ll 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
s 

sh
al

l a
im

 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 le
ve

ls
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
se

 ta
rg

et
s 

in
 a

 lo
ca

lly
 fo

cu
se

d 
w

ay
. 

Th
e 

5,
30

0 
dw

el
lin

gs
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ru
ra

l H
M

As
 a

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
. T

he
 in

di
ca

tiv
e 

ho
us

in
g 

gr
ow

th
 ta

rg
et

s 
in

 e
ac

h 
of

 

  

81



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

th
e 

ru
ra

l H
M

As
 w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 a

s 
a 

ba
si

s 
fo

r t
he

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
la

ns
 in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
. L

oc
al

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l f

ac
to

rs
 w

ill
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
ca

le
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.
  

Ru
ra

l H
M

A
 

A
pp

ro
xi

m
at

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
dw

el
lin

gs
 2

01
1 

- 2
03

1 
In

di
ca

ti
ve

 h
ou

si
ng

 g
ro

w
th

 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

th
e 

vi
lla

ge
s(

%
)* 

Br
om

ya
rd

 
36

4 
15

 

G
ol

de
n 

V
al

le
y 

30
4 

12
 

H
er

ef
or

d 
18

70
 

18
 

Ki
ng

to
n 

31
7 

12
 

Le
db

ur
y 

56
5 

14
 

Le
om

in
st

er
 

73
0 

14
 

Ro
ss

 o
n 

W
ye

 
11

50
 

14
 

 
__

__
 

 
 

53
00

 
 

  *T
ar

ge
ts

 fo
r 

vi
lla

ge
s 

ar
e 

in
di

ca
tiv

e 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

s 
a 

st
ar

tin
g 

po
in

t 
fo

r 
w

or
k 

on
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

ns
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
D

oc
um

en
ts

. L
oc

al
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

w
ill

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

sc
al

e 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 fa

ll 
ab

ov
e 

or
 b

el
ow

 th
e 

in
di

ca
tiv

e 
ta

rg
et

. 

M
M

03
7.

4.
8.

18
 

As
 

se
t 

ou
t 

 
ea

rli
er

 
in

 
th

is
 

se
ct

io
n,

 E
ea

ch
 

ru
ra

l 
H

M
A 

w
as

 
ev

al
ua

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

co
m

bi
ni

ng
 

th
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 

a 
lo

ca
lis

ed
 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
(m

ed
ia

n 
vi

lla
ge

 s
et

tle
m

en
t 

si
ze

 in
 e

ac
h 

ru
ra

l H
M

A)
, t

og
et

he
r 

w
ith

 a
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 T
hi

s 
du

al
 a

na
ly

si
s 

ta
rg

et
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

at
 lo

ca
lly

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 v
ill

ag
es

 w
hi

ch
 a

ct
 a

s 
a 

fo
cu

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
w

id
er

 c
om

m
un

ity
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 p

re
se

nc
e 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
th

at
 c

an
 i

nc
lu

de
 

sc
ho

ol
s,

 s
ho

ps
, p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s 

an
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
. I

t a
ls

oT
hi

s 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 w

ill
 e

na
bl

es
 th

os
e 

vi
lla

ge
s 

w
ith

 a
 s

iz
ea

bl
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
ba

si
s 

(in
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f 

th
e 

H
M

A)
 a

nd
 p

ot
en

tia
l t

o 
ev

ol
ve

 t
o 

be
co

m
e 

m
or

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

. A
cr

os
s 

m
an

y 
ar

ea
s 

of
 a

ll 
ru

ra
l H

M
As

, c
om

m
un

iti
es

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

 

82



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

di
ff

ic
ul

ty
 i

n 
ac

ce
ss

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 p
ar

is
he

s 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 n
ot

 o
nl

y 
th

e 
ne

ed
 t

o 
su

pp
or

t 
cu

rr
en

t 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 f

ac
ili

tie
s,

 b
ut

 t
o 

en
ha

nc
e 

th
ei

r 
pr

ov
is

io
n.

 a
ll 

se
tt

le
m

en
ts

 in
 t

he
 r

ur
al

 a
re

as
 t

o 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
lly

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 t
he

 N
at

io
na

l 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 P

ol
ic

y 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

 A
 n

um
be

r 
of

 v
ill

ag
es

 h
av

e 
a 

si
ze

ab
le

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

ba
si

s 
bu

t 
lim

ite
d 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
By

 
en

ab
lin

g 
so

m
e 

ho
us

in
g 

gr
ow

th
 w

ith
in

 t
he

se
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
, f

ac
ili

tie
s 

be
co

m
e 

m
or

e 
vi

ab
le

 a
nd

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
ne

ed
s 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

sp
ir

at
io

ns
 a

re
 

m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 b

e 
re

al
is

ed
. 

4.
8.

19
 

A 
to

ta
l 

of
 1

19
 v

ill
ag

es
  

O
ne

 h
un

dr
ed

 a
nd

 n
in

et
ee

n 
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
co

un
ty

 a
ll 

H
M

As
 t

o 
be

 t
he

 m
ai

n 
fo

cu
s 

of
 

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 h
ou

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 t
he

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

.  
an

d 
tT

he
se

 a
re

 li
st

ed
 in

 F
ig

ur
e 

4.
20

. W
ith

in
 t

he
se

 v
ill

ag
es

 s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 
ca

re
fu

lly
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
w

hi
ch

 is
 p

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 t
o 

th
e 

si
ze

 o
f t

he
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 it
s 

ne
ed

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
. o

nl
y 

w
he

re
 r

es
id

en
tia

l 
pr

op
os

al
s 

ar
e 

lo
ca

lly
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

vi
lla

ge
s 

re
ta

in
 th

ei
r s

ep
ar

at
e,

 d
is

tin
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

va
rie

d 
ch

ar
ac

te
rs

. 

 

4.
8.

20
 

Re
si

de
nt

ia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 o

r 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 t

o 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

bu
ilt

 u
p 

ar
ea

(s
) 

of
 t

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
se

tt
le

m
en

t 
(w

ith
 p

rio
rit

y 
be

in
g 

gi
ve

n 
to

 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f s

ui
ta

bl
e 

an
d 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
br

ow
nf

ie
ld

 s
ite

s)
 to

 g
ua

rd
 a

ga
in

st
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 u
nn

ec
es

sa
ry

 li
ne

ar
, d

et
ac

he
d 

or
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 

co
un

tr
ys

id
e 

is
ol

at
ed

, 
no

n-
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
 

an
d 

di
sc

or
da

nt
 

dw
el

lin
gs

 
do

 
no

t 
ar

is
e 

in
 

th
e 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

co
un

tr
ys

id
e 

w
hi

ch
 

w
ou

ld
 

ad
ve

rs
el

y 
da

m
ag

e 
af

fe
ct

 t
he

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 a

nd
 s

et
tin

g 
of

 a
 v

ill
ag

e 
se

tt
le

m
en

t 
an

d 
its

 lo
ca

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t.

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 lo
ca

lly
 d

ef
in

ed
 s

en
si

tiv
e 

si
te

s 
w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

’. 

 

4.
8.

22
 

Re
si

de
nt

ia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 t
o 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

 t
he

 fu
tu

re
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 o
f e

ac
h 

H
M

A 
by

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 m
ix

 o
f d

w
el

lin
g 

ty
pe

s 
an

d 
si

ze
s 

ha
vi

ng
 r

eg
ar

d 
to

 t
he

 L
oc

al
 H

ou
si

ng
 M

ar
ke

t 
As

se
ss

m
en

t 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

re
le

va
nt

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
so

ur
ce

s.
.. 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
se

ns
iti

ve
ly

 a
nd

 in
cl

us
iv

el
y 

de
si

gn
ed

 t
o 

re
fle

ct
 t

he
 li

fe
lo

ng
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 o
f 

th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g.

  
Th

ey
 s

ho
ul

d 
al

so
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e,
 

w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 to

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 m
uc

h 
ne

ed
ed

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
, a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

m
es

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n.
 

 

4.
8.

25
 

 ‘T
he

re
fo

re
, i

n 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 F

ig
ur

e 
4.

21
, p

ro
po

rt
io

na
l l

ev
el

s 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 w
ill

 b
e 

fo
cu

se
d 

on
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 s
m

al
le

r 
m

ar
ke

t 
ho

m
es

 w
hi

ch
 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
, w

ho
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 a

ff
or

d 
a 

ho
us

e 
to

 li
ve

 in
 t

he
ir 

lo
ca

l a
re

a.
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

, 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 c
rit

er
ia

 1
 t

o 
4 

of
 P

ol
ic

y 
H

2 
w

ill
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

in
 t

he
se

 v
ill

ag
es

. I
t 

is
 im

po
rt

an
t 

th
at

 t
he

se
 h

ou
si

ng
 

sc
he

m
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 n

ee
ds

 le
d,

 t
he

 s
ta

rt
in

g 
po

in
t 

be
in

g 
a 

ne
ed

 f
or

 a
 h

ou
se

 o
r 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 v

ill
ag

e,
 r

at
he

r 
th

an
 t

he
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
of

 a
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 s

ite
. O

n 
th

is
 b

as
is

, h
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 w

ill
 b

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

th
at

 is
 re

qu
ire

d 
in

 th
e 

se
tt

le
m

en
t c

on
ce

rn
ed

. I
n 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 

pr
op

os
al

s 
th

at
 s

ee
k 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 t

o 
m

ee
t 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
lo

ca
l 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

s,
 t

ho
se

 p
ro

po
se

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 m

us
t 

be
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
, 

co
m

pe
lli

ng
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 h

ow
 t

he
 p

ro
po

sa
l m

ee
ts

 th
at

 n
ee

d.
 th

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

lo
ca

l h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

d,
 a

ll 
of

 w
hi

ch
 m

us
t 

be
 c

le
ar

ly
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
d 

to
 t

he
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

of
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il.

 A
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ob
lig

at
io

n 
w

ill
 r

es
tr

ic
t 

th
e 

oc
cu

pa
tio

n 
of

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 o

n 
th

is
 b

as
is

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

he
ir 

lo
ng

 t
er

m
 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

fo
r t

ho
se

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
’. 

      

4.
8.

26
 

Sm
al

le
r 

ho
us

es
, p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

 t
w

o 
an

d 
th

re
e 

be
dr

oo
m

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s,

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

be
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
ru

ra
l a

re
as

. T
o 

ad
dr

es
s 

th
is

 n
ee

d 
an

d 
 

83



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

ho
us

e 
va

lu
es

 r
em

ai
n 

at
 t

he
 lo

w
er

 e
nd

 o
f 

th
e 

ho
us

e 
pr

ic
e 

ra
ng

e 
in

 t
he

 a
re

a,
 t

he
 s

iz
e 

of
 a

ny
 n

ew
 d

w
el

lin
g 

an
d 

pl
ot

 s
iz

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

st
ric

te
d 

fo
r 

th
os

e 
vi

lla
ge

s 
in

 F
ig

ur
e 

4.
21

. D
w

el
lin

g 
si

ze
 is

 t
he

 n
et

 in
te

rn
al

 fl
oo

r 
ar

ea
, m

ea
su

re
d 

fr
om

 in
te

rn
al

 w
al

l f
in

is
h 

to
 in

te
rn

al
 w

al
l f

in
is

h 
of

 th
e 

un
it,

 w
ith

 n
o 

sp
ac

e 
or

 ro
om

s 
di

sc
ou

nt
ed

. T
he

 s
iz

e 
of

 a
ny

 o
ne

 d
w

el
lin

g 
w

ill
 b

e 
lim

ite
d 

to
 a

 m
ax

im
um

 n
et

 in
te

rn
al

 fl
oo

r 
sp

ac
e 

of
 8

0s
q.

m
 in

 
a 

ca
se

 o
f a

 o
ne

 o
r t

w
o 

be
dr

oo
m

 h
ou

se
, 9

0s
q.

m
 fo

r a
 th

re
e 

be
dr

oo
m

 h
ou

se
 a

nd
 1

00
sq

.m
 in

 th
e 

ca
se

 o
f a

 fo
ur

 b
ed

ro
om

 h
ou

se
. T

he
se

 fi
gu

re
s 

ar
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 t
he

 in
te

rn
al

 fl
oo

rs
pa

ce
 a

llo
w

an
ce

s 
m

ad
e 

by
 r

eg
is

te
re

d 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

w
he

n 
ap

pl
yi

ng
 t

o 
th

e 
H

om
es

 a
nd

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 A
ge

nc
y 

fo
r 

fu
nd

in
g 

ut
ili

si
ng

 t
he

ir 
H

ou
si

ng
 Q

ua
lit

y 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 s
ys

te
m

. I
n 

th
e 

ev
en

t 
th

at
 m

ed
ic

al
 n

ee
ds

 n
ec

es
si

ta
te

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 a
ny

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
ad

di
tio

na
l f

lo
or

 a
re

a 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 s

ha
ll 

be
 ju

st
ifi

ed
 o

n 
a 

ca
se

 b
y 

ca
se

 b
as

is
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
su

bm
is

si
on

 o
f a

 n
ee

ds
 a

pp
ra

is
al

 th
at

 in
cl

ud
es

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
fr

om
 a

 m
ed

ic
al

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l. 
Pe

rm
itt

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

rig
ht

s 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 r

em
ov

ed
 t

o 
lim

it 
th

e 
en

la
rg

em
en

t 
of

 s
uc

h 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
, 

w
ith

 a
 

co
ns

eq
ue

nt
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 v
al

ue
 a

nd
 p

ric
e.

 
A 

pr
oa

ct
iv

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ta
ke

n 
to

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 p

la
nn

in
g 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
co

un
ty

. A
t F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
15

, t
he

re
 a

re
 8

8 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

ar
ea

s 
in

 t
he

 c
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

is
 b

ei
ng

 m
ad

e 
in

 t
he

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pl

an
s.

 T
he

se
 p

la
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

th
e 

pr
in

ci
pa

l m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 b

y 
w

hi
ch

 n
ew

 r
ur

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 w

ill
 b

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d,

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
an

d 
m

an
ag

ed
. T

he
 p

ro
po

rt
io

na
l g

ro
w

th
 t

ar
ge

t 
w

ith
in

 p
ol

ic
y 

RA
1 

w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 t
he

 b
as

is
 fo

r 
th

e 
m

in
im

um
 le

ve
l o

f n
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 t
ha

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
ed

 in
 e

ac
h 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d 
pl

an
. T

he
 t

ar
ge

t 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 a
 

le
ve

l o
f g

ro
w

th
 fo

r 
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
, a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
, t

ha
t i

s 
pr

op
or

tio
na

te
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
H

M
A 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s.
 F

or
 in

di
vi

du
al

 s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 in
 e

ac
h 

H
M

A,
 

th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
fle

ct
ed

 a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

th
e 

to
ta

l 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 i

n 
th

e 
pa

ris
h 

co
nc

er
ne

d.
  

In
 p

ar
is

he
s 

w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 

se
tt

le
m

en
t 

lis
te

d 
in

 F
ig

ur
e 

4.
20

 a
nd

 4
.2

1 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pl

an
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 f

le
xi

bi
lit

y 
to

 a
pp

or
tio

n 
th

e 
m

in
im

um
 h

ou
si

ng
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

se
tt

le
m

en
ts

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 a
llo

w
 fo

r 
a 

lo
ca

lly
 fl

ex
ib

le
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

th
at

 w
ill

 r
es

pe
ct

 s
et

tle
m

en
t 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s,
 t

he
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 l

oc
al

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

lo
ca

l 
fa

ct
or

s.
 T

hi
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 w
ill

 a
cc

or
d 

w
ith

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 5

5 
of

 t
he

 N
PP

F 
w

hi
ch

 
in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 w
he

re
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

gr
ou

ps
 o

f s
m

al
le

r s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 in
 r

ur
al

 a
re

as
, t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
on

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
m

ay
 s

up
po

rt
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
 a

 lo
ca

tio
n 

ne
ar

by
. T

he
 a

do
pt

io
n 

of
 th

is
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

w
ill

 a
llo

w
 d

is
tin

ct
iv

e 
so

lu
tio

ns
 w

hi
ch

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
va

rie
d 

ge
og

ra
ph

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
co

un
ty

.  
 

RA
2 

Po
lic

y 
RA

2 
– 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 v
ill

ag
es

  H
ou

si
ng

 in
 s

et
tl

em
en

ts
 o

ut
si

de
 H

er
ef

or
d 

an
d 

th
e 

m
ar

ke
t t

ow
ns

. 
To

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
st

re
ng

th
en

 a
 n

et
w

or
k 

of
 lo

ca
lly

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

ru
ra

l p
ar

ts
 o

f H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
, t

he
re

 w
ill

 b
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 
fo

r s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 g
ro

w
th

 w
ill

 b
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
in

 th
os

e 
vi

lla
ge

s 
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 F

ig
ur

es
 4

.2
0 

an
d 

4.
21

. T
hi

s 
w

ill
 e

na
bl

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
ha

t h
as

 th
e 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 b
es

t a
bl

e 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
bo

ls
te

rin
g 

ex
is

tin
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n,
 im

pr
ov

ei
ng

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 th
ei

r c
om

m
un

iti
es

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
. 

Th
e 

gr
ow

th
 ta

rg
et

 fo
r t

he
 v

ill
ag

es
 (%

) o
f e

ac
h 

ru
ra

l H
M

A 
w

ill
 a

ss
is

t t
o 

in
fo

rm
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f h
ou

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

vi
lla

ge
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 
Fi

gu
re

s 
4.

20
 a

nd
 4

.2
1.

 A
ll 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
ns

 s
ha

ll 
ai

m
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 le
ve

ls
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 to
 p

ro
po

rt
io

na
lly

 m
ee

t t
he

se
 ta

rg
et

s 
in

 a
 

 

84



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

lo
ca

lly
 fo

cu
se

d 
w

ay
.  

Th
e 

m
in

im
um

 g
ro

w
th

 ta
rg

et
 in

 e
ac

h 
ru

ra
l H

ou
si

ng
 M

ar
ke

t A
re

a 
w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f h
ou

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
o 

be
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 in
 

th
e 

va
rio

us
 s

et
tle

m
en

ts
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 F
ig

ur
es

 4
.2

0 
an

d 
4.

21
. N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

ns
 w

ill
 a

llo
ca

te
 la

nd
 fo

r n
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 o
r o

th
er

w
is

e 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 d

el
iv

er
y 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 le

ve
ls

 o
f h

ou
si

ng
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 v
ar

io
us

 ta
rg

et
s.

 
H

ou
si

ng
 g

ro
w

th
 w

ill
 v

ar
y 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

vi
lla

ge
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 a
 p

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 m
an

ne
r a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 o

nl
y 

w
he

re
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

po
sa

l i
s 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 to

 b
e 

lo
ca

lly
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 b

y:
  

1.
en

su
rin

g 
th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 re

fle
ct

s 
th

e 
si

ze
, r

ol
e 

an
d 

fu
nc

tio
n 

of
 e

ac
h 

vi
lla

ge
 a

nd
 is

 lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 o

r a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
bu

ilt
 u

p 
ar

ea
(s

) o
f t

he
 

vi
lla

ge
 s

o 
as

 to
 n

ot
 re

su
lt 

in
 fr

ee
 s

ta
nd

in
g,

 in
di

vi
du

al
 o

r s
m

al
l g

ro
up

s 
of

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 o
bv

io
us

ly
 d

et
ac

he
d 

fr
om

, o
r p

er
ip

he
ra

l t
o,

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
bu

ilt
 u

p 
ar

ea
(s

); 
 

2.
gi

vi
ng

 p
rio

rit
y 

to
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f s

ui
ta

bl
e 

br
ow

nf
ie

ld
 s

ite
s;

  
3.

be
in

g 
of

 a
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 d

es
ig

n 
w

hi
ch

 is
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 to

 it
s 

co
nt

ex
t a

nd
 m

ak
es

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 th

e 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t a
nd

 ru
ra

l l
an

ds
ca

pe
;  

4.
co

nt
rib

ut
in

g 
to

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 m
ix

 o
f d

w
el

lin
g 

ty
pe

s 
an

d 
si

ze
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

, t
o 

m
ee

t t
he

 h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
 o

f 
al

l s
ec

to
rs

 o
f t

he
 c

om
m

un
ity

; a
nd

  
5.

w
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n,
 b

y 
un

de
rt

ak
in

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n.

  
H

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 w
ill

 b
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 w
he

re
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

cr
ite

ria
 a

re
 m

et
: 

1.
Th

ei
r d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
la

yo
ut

 s
ho

ul
d 

re
fle

ct
 th

e 
si

ze
, r

ol
e 

an
d 

fu
nc

tio
n 

of
 e

ac
h 

se
tt

le
m

en
t a

nd
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 o
r a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

bu
ilt

 
up

 a
re

a.
 In

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 s

m
al

le
r s

et
tle

m
en

ts
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 fi

g 
4.

21
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 a
tt

en
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

fo
rm

, l
ay

ou
t, 

ch
ar

ac
te

r a
nd

 s
et

tin
g 

of
 th

e 
si

te
 a

nd
 it

s 
lo

ca
tio

n 
in

 th
at

 s
et

tle
m

en
t;

 a
nd

/o
r t

he
y 

re
su

lt 
in

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
ha

t c
on

tr
ib

ut
es

 to
 

or
 is

 e
ss

en
tia

l t
o 

th
e 

so
ci

al
 w

el
l-b

ei
ng

 o
f t

he
 s

et
tle

m
en

t c
on

ce
rn

ed
;  

2.
 T

he
ir 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 m
ak

e 
be

st
 a

nd
 fu

ll 
us

e 
of

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
br

ow
nf

ie
ld

 s
ite

s 
w

he
re

ve
r p

os
si

bl
e;

  
3.

Th
ey

 re
su

lt 
in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

, s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 s
ch

em
es

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 to

 th
ei

r c
on

te
xt

 a
nd

 m
ak

e 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 th

e 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t a
nd

 it
s 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
se

tt
in

g;
 a

nd
 

4.
Th

ey
 re

su
lt 

in
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 s
ch

em
es

 th
at

 g
en

er
at

e 
th

e 
si

ze
, t

yp
e,

 te
nu

re
 a

nd
 ra

ng
e 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 th

at
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 
se

tt
le

m
en

t,
 re

fle
ct

in
g 

lo
ca

l d
em

an
d.

 
 

Sp
ec

ifi
c 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r t
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 lo
ca

l n
ee

d 
ho

us
in

g 
w

ill
 b

e 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 w
he

re
 th

ey
 m

ee
t a

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

ne
ed

 a
nd

 th
ei

r l
on

g-
te

rm
 

re
te

nt
io

n 
as

 lo
ca

l n
ee

ds
 h

ou
si

ng
 is

 s
ec

ur
ed

 a
s 

su
ch

. 
In

 th
e 

vi
lla

ge
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 F
ig

ur
e 

4.
21

 p
ro

po
rt

io
na

l r
es

id
en

tia
l g

ro
w

th
 w

ill
 b

e 
lim

ite
d 

to
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 s

m
al

le
r m

ar
ke

t h
ou

si
ng

, w
he

re
 th

e 

85



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
l s

at
is

fie
s 

cr
ite

ria
 1

–5
 a

bo
ve

; a
nd

:  
6.

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

su
bm

is
si

on
 o

f a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t m

ee
ts

 a
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
lo

ca
l h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
d.

 R
es

id
en

tia
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 to
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 m

ee
tin

g 
an

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
ne

ed
, w

he
re

 it
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
fo

r a
ny

 o
f t

he
 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
  

 
Ex

is
tin

g 
re

si
de

nt
s 

of
 th

e 
pa

ris
h 

re
qu

iri
ng

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n;
  

 
 !
"#

$%
&'

%!
(
)&

!)
*+
#!
,-
$$
#'

.!*
'/

!0&
'1
!%
.*
'/

2'
1!
3*
4
205
!02
'6
%!
724

4
#/

2*
.#
!3*

4
205
!&
'0
5!

 
 

e.
g.

 p
ar

en
t,

 s
ib

lin
g 

or
 a

du
lt 

ch
ild

) w
ith

 th
e 

pa
ris

h;
  

 
G

ra
nd

pa
re

nt
s,

 g
ra

nd
ch

ild
re

n,
 a

un
ts

 o
r u

nc
le

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 o

nl
y 

w
he

re
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l c
on

si
de

rs
 it

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 fo

r t
he

 a
pp

lic
an

t t
o 

be
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

Pa
ris

h 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 o
r r

ec
ei

ve
 m

ed
ic

al
 o

r s
oc

ia
l s

up
po

rt
 to

 o
r f

ro
m

 a
 re

la
tiv

e;
  

 
Pe

rs
on

s 
w

ith
 p

er
m

an
en

t, 
fu

ll 
tim

e 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t b
as

ed
 m

ai
nl

y 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

pa
ris

h.
  

 7.
  t

he
 d

w
el

lin
g 

si
ze

 is
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 a
 n

et
 in

te
rn

al
 fl

oo
r a

re
a 

of
 8

0s
q.

m
 (1

 o
r 2

 b
ed

ro
om

 h
ou

se
) o

r 9
0s

q.
m

 (3
 b

ed
ro

om
 h

ou
se

) o
r 1

00
sq

.m
 (4

 
be

dr
oo

m
 h

ou
se

). 
O

nl
y 

w
he

re
 m

ed
ic

al
 n

ee
ds

 n
ec

es
si

ta
te

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 s
pe

ci
fic

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ill
 a

ny
 re

su
lti

ng
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 fl
oo

r s
pa

ce
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
; a

nd
  

   
8.

 th
e 

pl
ot

 s
iz

e 
is

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 a

 m
ax

im
um

 a
re

a 
of

 3
50

sq
.m

 u
nl

es
s 

si
te

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s 

or
 c

on
fig

ur
at

io
n 

re
nd

er
 th

is
 im

pr
ac

tic
al

.  
 Pe

rm
is

si
on

 g
ra

nt
ed

 in
 t

he
se

 c
as

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

 t
ha

t 
sa

fe
gu

ar
d 

oc
cu

pa
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
fo

r 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

lo
ca

l 
ho

us
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

an
d 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

do
 s

o 
in

 p
er

pe
tu

ity
. T

o 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 p

ol
ic

y,
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 a

 c
on

di
tio

n 
re

m
ov

in
g 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
rig

ht
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

er
ec

tio
n 

of
 a

ny
 e

xt
en

si
on

 o
r 

de
ta

ch
ed

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 c
ur

til
ag

e 
an

d 
a 

co
nd

iti
on

 r
es

tr
ic

tin
g 

th
e 

co
nv

er
si

on
 o

f a
n 

an
ci

lla
ry

 g
ar

ag
e 

in
 t

o 
ha

bi
ta

bl
e 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n.

 A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

su
ch

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 in

 v
ar

ia
tio

n 
of

 t
he

se
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 w
ill

 o
nl

y 
be

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
in

 e
xc

ep
tio

na
l c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s.

 
Pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 in

 t
he

 v
ill

ag
es

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 F
ig

ur
e 

4.
21

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 w

he
re

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
is

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 c

rit
er

ia
 1

 
to

 4
 o

f P
ol

ic
y 

H
2.

 
 

M
M

03
8.

4.
8.

28
 

Th
e 

se
tt

le
m

en
t 

bo
un

da
rie

s 
fo

r 
th

os
e 

pl
ac

es
 v

ill
ag

es
 d

et
ai

le
d 

lis
te

d 
in

 P
ol

ic
y 

RA
2 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
fin

ed
 in

 e
ith

er
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
la

ns
 o

r 
th

e 
Ru

ra
l 

Ar
ea

s 
Si

te
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

D
PD

. 
 O

ut
si

de
 o

f 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

s 
th

es
e 

se
tt

le
m

en
ts

 n
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
st

ric
te

d 
st

ric
tly

 c
on

tr
ol

le
d 

to
 a

vo
id

 
un

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

pa
tt

er
ns

 o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t.

 Is
ol

at
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
in

 t
he

 c
ou

nt
ry

si
de

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

pr
ot

ec
t 

th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
an

d 
w

id
er

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t.

 In
 th

e 
pe

rio
d 

le
ad

in
g 

up
 to

 th
e 

de
fin

iti
on

 o
f a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 s

et
tle

m
en

t b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

th
e 

Co
un

ci
l w

ill
 a

ss
es

s 
an

y 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 i

n 
Fi

gu
re

 4
.2

0 
an

d 
4.

21
 a

ga
in

st
 t

he
ir 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

to
 t

he
 m

ai
n 

bu
ilt

 u
p 

fo
rm

 o
f 

th
e 

se
tt

le
m

en
t.

  
Re

si
de

nt
ia

l 

 

86



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
ill

 t
he

re
fo

re
 b

e 
lim

ite
d 

to
 t

ho
se

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 w

hi
ch

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
cr

ite
ria

 li
st

ed
 in

 P
ol

ic
y 

RA
3.

 P
ro

po
sa

ls
 s

ho
ul

d 
se

ek
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

us
e 

of
 

ex
is

tin
g 

bu
ild

in
gs

 th
ro

ug
h 

co
nv

er
si

on
 a

nd
 a

da
pt

io
n 

in
 p

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.
  T

hi
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 a
cc

or
ds

 w
ith

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 5

5 
of

 th
e 

N
PP

F.
  

Pr
op

os
al

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

si
te

d 
w

ith
in

 o
r 

ad
jo

in
in

g 
a 

se
tt

le
m

en
t 

an
d 

se
ek

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
us

e 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

ild
in

gs
 t

hr
ou

gh
 c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
an

d 
ad

ap
tio

n 
in

 
pr

ef
er

en
ce

 to
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

RA
3 

Po
lic

y 
RA

3 
– 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 c
ou

nt
ry

si
de

 
In

 r
ur

al
 l

oc
at

io
ns

 o
ut

si
de

 o
f 

se
tt

le
m

en
ts

, 
as

 t
o 

be
 d

ef
in

ed
 i

n 
ei

th
er

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pl
an

s 
or

 t
he

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

 s
ite

 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 

D
PD

, 
 a

w
ay

 f
ro

m
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 v

ill
ag

es
, 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

lim
ite

d 
to

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 w

hi
ch

 s
at

is
fy

 o
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
of

 t
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

cr
ite

ria
: 

1.
m

ee
ts

 a
n 

ag
ric

ul
tu

ra
l o

r 
fo

re
st

ry
 n

ee
d 

or
 o

th
er

 fa
rm

 d
iv

er
si

fic
at

io
n 

en
te

rp
ris

e 
fo

r 
a 

w
or

ke
r 

to
 li

ve
 p

er
m

an
en

tly
 a

t o
r 

ne
ar

 th
ei

r 
pl

ac
e 

of
 

w
or

k 
an

d 
co

m
pl

ie
s 

w
ith

 P
ol

ic
y 

RA
4;

 o
r 

2.
ac

co
m

pa
ni

es
 a

nd
 is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 th
e 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
r g

ro
w

th
 o

f a
 ru

ra
l e

nt
er

pr
is

e,
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ie
s 

w
ith

 P
ol

ic
y 

RA
4;

 o
r 

3.
in

vo
lv

es
 t

he
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t o

f a
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

dw
el

lin
g 

(w
ith

 a
 la

w
fu

l r
es

id
en

tia
l u

se
) t

ha
t 

is
 c

om
pa

ra
bl

e 
in

 s
iz

e 
an

d 
sc

al
e 

w
ith

, a
nd

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 th
e 

la
w

fu
l d

om
es

tic
 c

ur
til

ag
e,

 o
f t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

dw
el

lin
g;

 o
r 

4.
w

ou
ld

 r
es

ul
t 

in
 t

he
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 r

e-
us

e 
of

 a
 r

ed
un

da
nt

 o
r 

di
su

se
d 

bu
ild

in
g(

s)
 w

he
re

 i
t 

co
m

pl
ie

s 
w

ith
 P

ol
ic

y 
RA

5;
 o

r 
an

d 
le

ad
s 

to
 a

n 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t o
f i

ts
 im

m
ed

ia
te

 s
et

tin
g;

 o
r  

 
5.

is
 ru

ra
l e

xc
ep

tio
n 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ol
ic

y 
H

2;
 o

r 
6.

is
 o

f 
ex

ce
pt

io
na

l q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

in
no

va
tiv

e 
de

si
gn

 s
at

is
fy

in
g 

th
e 

de
si

gn
 c

rit
er

ia
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 5

5 
of

 t
he

 N
at

io
na

l P
la

nn
in

g 
Po

lic
y 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
an

d 
ac

hi
ev

es
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
f d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n;
 o

r 
7.

is
 a

 s
ite

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 fo

r t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f g
yp

si
es

 o
r o

th
er

 tr
av

el
le

rs
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ol

ic
y 

H
4.

 

 

4.
8.

29
 

‘O
cc

up
an

cy
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 t
he

 e
xp

an
si

on
 o

f r
ur

al
 b

us
in

es
s 

en
te

rp
ris

es
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
to

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l a
nd

 fo
re

st
ry

 
dw

el
lin

gs
 (

Po
lic

y 
RA

4)
. T

o 
m

ak
e 

th
e 

st
oc

k 
of

 o
cc

up
at

io
na

l d
w

el
lin

gs
 m

or
e 

fle
xi

bl
e 

th
an

 in
 t

he
 p

as
t 

an
d 

re
sp

on
d 

to
 lo

ca
l h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

, t
he

 
oc

cu
pa

tio
n 

of
 s

uc
h 

dw
el

lin
gs

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

se
cu

re
d 

fr
om

 t
he

 s
ta

rt
 b

y 
a 

Se
ct

io
n 

10
6 

Ag
re

em
en

t 
th

at
 a

ls
o 

en
co

m
pa

ss
es

 lo
ca

l h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
.. 

 A
s 

su
ch

, i
n 

th
e 

ev
en

t t
ha

t t
he

re
 is

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 a

 fu
nc

tio
na

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t e
ith

er
 fr

om
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 r

ur
al

 b
us

in
es

s 
or

 fr
om

 o
th

er
 r

ur
al

 e
nt

er
pr

is
es

 in
 th

e 
lo

ca
lit

y,
 th

e 
dw

el
lin

g 
w

ill
 d

ef
au

lt 
to

 lo
ca

l h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
 ra

th
er

 th
an

 b
ei

ng
 lo

st
 fr

om
 th

e 
st

oc
k 

of
 s

m
al

le
r a

ff
or

da
bl

y 
pr

ic
ed

 ru
ra

l h
ou

si
ng

. 

 

4.
8.

30
 

Re
pl

ac
em

en
t 

dw
el

lin
gs

 w
ill

 o
nl

y 
be

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
at

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

ild
in

g 
ha

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
an

d 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 r
es

id
en

tia
l u

se
 r

ig
ht

s 
an

d 
ha

s 
no

t 
be

en
 a

ba
nd

on
ed

. 
Pr

op
os

al
s 

sh
ou

ld
 o

rd
in

ar
ily

 b
e 

si
te

d 
in

 t
he

 s
am

e 
a 

si
m

ila
r 

po
si

tio
n 

as
 t

he
 o

rig
in

al
 d

w
el

lin
g 

un
le

ss
 t

he
re

 i
s 

te
ch

ni
ca

l 
ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
la

w
fu

l d
om

es
tic

 c
ur

til
ag

e.
 T

o 
sa

fe
gu

ar
d 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
an

d 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 

ru
ra

l l
an

ds
ca

pe
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 v
is

ua
l i

m
pa

ct
 o

f 
la

rg
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

, 
th

e 
si

ze
 o

f 
an

y 
re

pl
ac

em
e n

t 
dw

el
lin

g 
w

ill
 b

e 
of

 a
 c

om
pa

ra
bl

e 
to

ta
l c

ub
ic

 v
ol

um
e 

 

87



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

(m
ea

su
re

d 
ex

te
rn

al
ly

) t
o 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

dw
el

lin
g.

 T
o 

m
in

im
is

e 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

sa
l o

n 
th

e 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
ar

ea
, t

he
 d

es
ig

n 
of

 th
e 

dw
el

lin
g 

an
d 

an
y 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
re

sp
ec

t t
he

 lo
ca

l c
ha

ra
ct

er
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a 
an

d/
or

 m
ak

e 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 th

e 
ru

ra
l l

an
ds

ca
pe

. A
s 

su
ch

 
th

e 
m

as
s,

 s
ca

le
, h

ei
gh

t a
nd

 e
xt

er
na

l a
pp

ea
ra

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
re

su
lta

nt
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
be

 ta
ke

n 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
. P

er
m

itt
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t r
ig

ht
s 

w
ill

 
ge

ne
ra

lly
m

ay
 b

e 
re

m
ov

ed
 fr

om
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t d
w

el
lin

gs
 lo

ca
te

d 
in

 th
e 

co
un

tr
ys

id
e.

 

M
M

03
9.

RA
4 

Po
lic

y 
RA

4 
– 

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l, 
fo

re
st

ry
 a

nd
 r

ur
al

 e
nt

er
pr

is
e 

dw
el

lin
gs

 
Pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

dw
el

lin
gs

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
re

, f
or

es
tr

y 
an

d 
ru

ra
l e

nt
er

pr
is

es
 a

ris
in

g 
un

de
r 

Po
lic

y 
RA

3 
w

ill
 o

nl
y 

be
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 w
he

re
 it

 c
an

 
be

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

d 
th

at
 t

he
re

 is
 a

 s
us

ta
in

ed
 e

ss
en

tia
l f

un
ct

io
na

l n
ee

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
dw

el
lin

g 
an

d 
it 

fo
rm

s 
an

 e
ss

en
tia

l p
ar

t 
of

 a
 fi

na
nc

ia
lly

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
bu

si
ne

ss
, a

nd
 th

at
 s

uc
h 

ne
ed

 c
an

no
t b

e 
m

et
 in

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n.
 S

uc
h 

dw
el

lin
gs

 s
ho

ul
d:

 
1.

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 th
e 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

co
ul

d 
no

t b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 a

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
bu

ild
in

g(
s)

; 
2.

be
 s

ite
d 

so
 a

s 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
fu

nc
tio

na
l n

ee
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
un

it 
or

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 o
th

er
 d

w
el

lin
gs

; 
3.

be
 o

f 
a 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y,

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 d
es

ig
n 

w
hi

ch
 i

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 t
o 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t 

an
d 

m
ak

es
 a

 p
os

iti
ve

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 t
he

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t a
nd

 ru
ra

l l
an

ds
ca

pe
; a

nd
 

4.
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

of
 a

 s
iz

e 
no

 g
re

at
er

 t
ha

n 
a 

ne
t 

in
te

rn
al

 fl
oo

r 
ar

ea
 o

f 1
00

 s
q.

m
, o

nl
y 

ut
ili

si
ng

 t
he

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 2

0%
 a

llo
w

an
ce

 w
he

re
 t

he
 n

at
ur

e 
an

d 
ne

ed
s 

of
 th

e 
en

te
rp

ris
e 

re
qu

ire
 a

nd
 c

an
 b

e 
ju

st
ifi

ed
. 

W
he

re
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 t

he
 e

co
no

m
ic

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
ru

ra
l e

nt
er

pr
is

e 
is

 n
ot

 p
ro

ve
n 

or
 w

he
re

 a
n 

en
te

rp
ris

e 
is

 n
ot

 y
et

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d,

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 fo
r 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
gr

an
te

d 
fo

r 
a 

m
ax

im
um

 p
er

io
d 

of
 t

hr
ee

 y
ea

rs
 t

o 
en

ab
le

 t
he

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 e
nt

er
pr

is
e 

to
 b

e 
as

se
ss

ed
. S

uc
ce

ss
iv

e 
ex

te
ns

io
ns

 w
ill

 n
ot

 n
or

m
al

ly
 b

e 
gr

an
te

d.
 T

em
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ca

re
fu

lly
 s

ite
d 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 u

ni
t 

or
 in

 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 o
th

er
 d

w
el

lin
gs

. 
D

w
el

lin
gs

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 t
hi

s 
po

lic
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 o

cc
up

an
cy

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
(e

nc
om

pa
ss

in
g 

lo
ca

l h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
 o

cc
up

an
cy

 s
et

 o
ut

 
in

 P
ol

ic
y 

RA
2 

as
 a

 d
ef

au
lt)

 s
ec

ur
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 a
 S

ec
tio

n 
10

6 
Ag

re
em

en
t.

 In
 s

om
e 

si
tu

at
io

ns
 it

 w
ill

 b
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 t

o 
us

e 
le

ga
l a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 t

o 
tie

 
ot

he
r 

dw
el

lin
gs

 t
o 

th
e 

un
it 

an
d/

or
 r

es
tr

ic
t 

th
e 

oc
cu

pa
nc

y 
of

 o
th

er
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 fa

rm
/b

us
in

es
s 

un
it.

 In
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

le
ga

l 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 ti

e 
a 

ru
ra

l e
nt

er
pr

is
e 

dw
el

lin
g 

to
 a

dj
oi

ni
ng

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 la

nd
 to

 p
re

ve
nt

 th
em

 b
ei

ng
 s

ol
d 

se
pa

ra
te

ly
. 

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 f
or

 t
he

 r
em

ov
al

 o
f 

oc
cu

pa
nc

y 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

(o
r 

se
ct

io
n 

10
6 

Ag
re

em
en

ts
) 

w
hi

ch
 p

re
-d

at
e 

ad
op

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 w
ill

 o
nl

y 
be

 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 w

he
re

 it
 c

an
 b

e 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

th
e 

dw
el

lin
g 

is
 s

ur
pl

us
 t

o 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
an

d 
su

st
ai

ne
d 

or
ig

in
al

 b
us

in
es

s 
ne

ed
s,

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

ot
he

r 
ru

ra
l 

en
te

rp
ris

es
 in

 t
he

 lo
ca

lit
y 

an
d 

th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

 g
en

ui
ne

 a
nd

 u
ns

uc
ce

ss
fu

l a
tt

em
pt

 t
o 

m
ar

ke
t 

th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 a
t 

a 
re

al
is

tic
 p

ric
e 

(f
or

 r
en

t 
or

 s
al

e)
 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 v
er

ifi
ed

. 

 

4.
8.

35
 

Al
l a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 t
ha

t 
a 

dw
el

lin
g 

at
 t

he
 e

nt
er

pr
is

e 
is

 e
ss

en
tia

l b
y 

sh
ow

in
g 

a 
fu

nc
tio

na
l n

ee
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

oc
cu

pi
er

 t
o 

be
 p

re
se

nt
 a

t 
th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 f

or
 t

he
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f 
th

e 
tim

e.
 T

he
re

fo
re

, 
fu

ll 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ap
pr

ai
si

ng
 t

he
 n

ee
d,

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

 f
un

ct
io

na
l 

 

88



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

as
se

ss
m

en
t,

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

nd
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

pe
rs

on
 s

ho
ul

d 
ac

co
m

pa
ny

 a
ll 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

. A
ny

 fu
nc

tio
na

l n
ee

d 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
ca

n 
on

ly
 b

e 
su

st
ai

ne
d 

w
he

re
 it

 is
 a

n 
es

se
nt

ia
l p

ar
t o

f a
n 

ec
on

om
ic

al
ly

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 e
nt

er
pr

is
e.

 F
in

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
as

 to
 t

he
 e

co
no

m
ic

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 
en

te
rp

ris
e 

in
 t

he
 f

or
m

 o
f 

ac
co

un
ts

 a
nd

 w
hi

ch
 g

iv
es

 f
ur

th
er

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 t
he

 n
ee

d 
sh

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 t

o 
su

pp
or

t 
al

l 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
. 

Bu
si

ne
ss

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

fo
r 

at
 le

as
t t

hr
ee

 y
ea

rs
, h

av
e 

be
en

 p
ro

fit
ab

le
 fo

r 
at

 le
as

t 
on

e 
ye

ar
, b

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 fi

na
nc

ia
lly

 s
ou

nd
 a

nd
 

ha
ve

 a
 c

le
ar

 p
ro

sp
ec

t 
of

 r
em

ai
ni

ng
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
. T

he
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
cl

ea
rly

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 w
hy

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
in

 
th

e 
lo

ca
lit

y,
 e

ith
er

 o
n 

th
e 

fa
rm

 o
r w

ith
in

 e
xi

st
in

g 
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
, i

s 
un

su
ita

bl
e 

or
 u

na
va

ila
bl

e,
 a

nd
 e

xp
lo

re
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 m
ea

ns
 o

f m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

ne
ed

. 
4.

8.
37

 
Am

en
d 

fir
st

 t
w

o 
se

nt
en

ce
s:

 T
o 

av
oi

d 
a 

pr
ol

ife
ra

tio
n 

of
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 in
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

ry
si

de
, o

cc
up

an
cy

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
(e

nc
om

pa
ss

in
g 

lo
ca

l h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
 a

s 
in

tr
od

uc
ed

 in
 R

A2
) w

ill
 b

e 
se

cu
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
Se

ct
io

n 
10

6 
Ag

re
em

en
ts

 a
tt

ac
he

d 
to

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 a

dv
an

ce
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
is

 p
ol

ic
y.

 T
hi

s 
is

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
if 

th
e 

dw
el

lin
g 

co
nc

er
ne

d 
is

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

by
 t

he
 o

rig
in

al
 b

us
in

es
s,

 it
 is

 fi
rs

tly
 k

ep
t 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
es

se
nt

ia
l n

ee
ds

 o
f r

ur
al

 e
nt

er
pr

is
es

 in
 

th
e 

lo
ca

lit
y,

 s
ub

se
qu

en
tly

 d
ef

au
lti

ng
 t

o 
lo

ca
l h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

.  
W

he
re

 a
 s

ec
on

d 
dw

el
lin

g 
is

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 f

or
 t

he
 e

ss
en

tia
l m

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 a
 r

ur
al

 
en

te
rp

ris
e,

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l w

ill
 r

es
tr

ic
t t

he
 o

cc
up

at
io

n/
se

pa
ra

te
 s

al
e 

of
 a

ny
 e

xi
st

in
g 

dw
el

lin
gs

 o
n 

th
e 

ho
ld

in
g 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 in

 th
e 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
or

 c
on

tr
ol

 
of

 t
he

 a
pp

lic
an

t 
or

 t
he

ir 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 b
us

in
es

s/
pa

rt
ne

rs
. S

im
ila

rly
, w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, p
la

nn
in

g 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

 m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 t
o 

pr
ev

en
t 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 

se
pa

ra
tio

n 
of

 a
 f

ar
m

ho
us

e(
s)

 f
ro

m
 a

ny
 a

dj
oi

ni
ng

 f
ar

m
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 la
nd

. 
Th

es
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 n

ew
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 f
or

 
ad

di
tio

na
l d

w
el

lin
gs

 d
o 

no
t 

al
lo

w
 e

xi
st

in
g 

fa
rm

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 t

o 
be

 r
em

ov
ed

 fr
om

 t
he

 r
ur

al
 w

or
ke

r 
ho

us
in

g 
st

oc
k,

 p
ro

te
ct

 t
he

 c
ou

nt
ry

si
de

 a
ga

in
st

 
th

e 
pr

es
su

re
 fo

r n
ew

 h
om

es
 a

nd
 to

 p
re

ve
nt

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n 

fo
r t

he
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 d
w

el
lin

g 
be

in
g 

un
de

rm
in

ed
.”

 

 

4.
8.

38
 

W
he

re
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

a 
dw

el
lin

g 
is

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

on
 t

he
 b

as
is

 o
f p

ro
ve

n 
es

se
nt

ia
l n

ee
d,

 p
re

fe
re

nc
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 t

he
 u

se
 o

f s
ui

ta
bl

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
bu

ild
in

gs
 th

ro
ug

h 
co

nv
er

si
on

. W
he

re
 th

is
 is

 n
ot

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 a

ny
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
re

la
te

 c
lo

se
ly

 to
 th

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 n
ee

d.
 

In
 m

os
t 

ca
se

s 
th

is
 w

ill
 m

ea
n 

th
at

 t
he

 n
ew

 d
w

el
lin

g 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

si
te

d 
in

 c
lo

se
 p

ro
xi

m
ity

 t
o 

ex
is

tin
g 

bu
ild

in
gs

. I
so

la
te

d 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 o

r 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 t

ha
t 

co
ul

d 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

fa
rm

 f
ra

gm
en

ta
tio

n 
in

 t
he

 c
as

e 
of

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 f

or
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l 

en
te

rp
ris

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
vo

id
ed

 a
nd

 a
n 

un
de

rly
in

g 
re

ga
rd

 t
o 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
ut

ur
e 

oc
cu

pa
nc

y 
on

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 lo
ca

l h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d.

 T
he

 lo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

si
tin

g 
of

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
w

ill
 

its
el

f 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

on
 t

he
 b

as
is

 o
f 

pe
rm

an
en

t 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
be

in
g 

pr
ov

id
ed

. W
he

re
 o

th
er

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 t
he

 e
nt

er
pr

is
e 

is
 b

ei
ng

 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

t t
he

 s
am

e 
tim

e 
as

 p
ar

t o
f a

n 
ov

er
al

l s
ch

em
e,

 s
iti

ng
 o

f a
ll 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 o
n 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 b
as

is
. 

 

4.
8.

39
 

Ta
ki

ng
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

of
 m

an
y 

ru
ra

l w
or

ke
rs

 f
or

 a
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

th
at

 is
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e,
 t

og
et

he
r 

w
ith

 t
he

 in
tr

od
uc

ed
 d

ef
au

lt 
to

 lo
ca

l h
ou

si
ng

 
ne

ed
s 

oc
cu

pa
nc

y,
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r 

ru
ra

l w
or

ke
r 

dw
el

lin
gs

 s
ho

ul
d 

ai
m

 to
 b

e 
a 

si
ze

 o
f n

o 
gr

ea
te

r 
th

an
 a

 n
et

 in
te

rn
al

 fl
oo

r 
ar

ea
 (m

ea
su

re
d 

fr
om

 w
al

l 
fin

is
h 

to
 w

al
l f

in
is

h 
of

 t
he

 u
ni

t)
 o

f 
10

0s
q.

m
. T

hi
s 

is
 f

or
 c

on
si

st
en

cy
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 c
rit

er
ia

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 P

ol
ic

y 
RA

2 
th

at
 is

 b
as

ed
 u

po
n 

al
lo

w
an

ce
s 

m
ad

e 
by

 r
eg

is
te

re
d 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
w

he
n 

ap
pl

yi
ng

 t
o 

th
e 

H
om

es
 a

nd
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 A

ge
nc

y 
fo

r 
fu

nd
in

g.
 N

ot
w

ith
st

an
di

ng
 t

hi
s,

 d
ep

en
di

ng
 

up
on

 t
he

 n
at

ur
e 

of
 t

he
 e

nt
er

pr
is

e 
w

ith
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

 d
w

el
lin

g 
is

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d,

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 f

lo
or

 s
pa

ce
 n

ee
ds

 m
ay

 e
xi

st
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 f
or

 a
 w

et
 r

oo
m

 o
r 

fa
rm

 o
ff

ic
e.

 A
n 

al
lo

w
an

ce
 o

f u
p 

to
 a

 fu
rt

he
r 2

0%
 (2

0s
q.

m
) m

ay
 b

e 
ut

ili
se

d 
w

he
re

 s
uc

h 
ne

ed
s 

ca
n 

be
 ju

st
ifi

ed
. P

er
m

itt
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t r
ig

ht
s 

fo
r 

 

89



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

dw
el

lin
gs

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
un

de
r t

hi
s 

po
lic

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

m
ov

ed
 

4.
8.

40
 

W
he

re
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

to
 r

em
ov

e 
oc

cu
pa

nc
y 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
(o

r 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

) 
on

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 w

he
n 

an
 e

ss
en

tia
l 

on
-s

ite
 w

or
ke

r 
is

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 

re
qu

ire
d 

th
at

 p
re

-d
at

e 
th

e 
de

fa
ul

t 
to

 lo
ca

l n
ee

ds
 h

ou
si

ng
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Co
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y,
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
 is

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
. A

cc
or

di
ng

ly
 a

pp
lic

an
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 t
he

re
 is

 n
o 

fu
nc

tio
na

l n
ee

d 
an

d 
th

us
 t

he
 d

w
el

lin
g 

is
 s

ur
pl

us
 

to
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

an
d 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 t
he

 o
rig

in
al

 r
ur

al
 e

nt
er

pr
is

e,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
ot

he
r 

ru
ra

l e
nt

er
pr

is
es

 in
 t

he
 lo

ca
lit

y.
 E

vi
de

nc
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 t

ha
t 

ge
nu

in
e 

at
te

m
pt

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
to

 m
ar

ke
t 

th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 f
or

 s
al

e  
or

 r
en

t 
at

 a
 r

ea
lis

tic
 p

ric
e 

th
at

 r
ef

le
ct

s 
its

 o
cc

up
an

cy
 

re
st

ric
tio

n 
fo

r 
a 

pe
rio

d 
of

 a
t 

le
as

t 
12

 m
on

th
s.

 T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 r
eq

ui
re

 t
he

 m
ar

ke
tin

g 
pr

ic
e 

to
 b

e 
in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 v

er
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

Va
lu

er
 

pr
io

r t
o 

th
e 

co
m

m
en

ce
m

en
t o

f m
ar

ke
tin

g.
 

 

4.
8.

41
 

Fo
r 

th
os

e 
dw

el
lin

gs
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

un
de

r 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 t
hi

s 
po

lic
y,

 fi
rs

t 
an

d 
fo

re
m

os
t 

th
e 

dw
el

lin
g 

sh
ou

ld
 c

on
tin

ue
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
on

 t
he

 b
as

is
 i

t 
w

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

so
 n

ot
 t

o 
re

ad
ily

 d
im

in
is

h 
th

e 
st

oc
k 

of
 l

ow
er

 p
ric

ed
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 e

ss
en

tia
l 

ru
ra

l 
w

or
ke

rs
, 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 t
he

 f
ar

m
in

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

. W
he

re
 t

he
re

 is
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 a
 f

un
ct

io
na

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
fr

om
 t

he
 o

rig
in

al
 b

us
in

es
s 

or
 o

th
er

 r
ur

al
 e

nt
er

pr
is

es
, 

ev
id

en
ce

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
lo

ca
l h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 c
rit

er
ia

 (P
ol

ic
y 

RA
2)

 a
nd

 t
hu

s 
sa

tis
fy

 
cl

au
se

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
10

6 
Ag

re
em

en
t b

ef
or

e 
oc

cu
pa

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
dw

el
lin

g 
on

 a
 lo

ca
l n

ee
ds

 b
as

is
 c

an
 la

w
fu

lly
 c

om
m

en
ce

.  
  

 

M
M

04
0.

4.
8.

42
 

Re
ce

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 t

o 
pl

an
ni

ng
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
  

m
ea

n 
th

at
 in

 c
er

ta
in

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

rig
ht

s 
w

ill
 a

llo
w

 t
he

 c
ha

ng
e 

of
 u

se
 o

f 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l b
ui

ld
in

gs
 t

o 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l o
r 

to
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 p

rio
r 

ap
pr

ov
al

. P
ol

ic
y 

RA
5 

ap
pl

ie
s 

to
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 f
or

 r
e-

us
e 

of
 

ru
ra

l b
ui

ld
in

gs
 t

ha
t 

ar
e 

no
t 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 t

hi
s 

ne
w

 le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

an
d 

th
at

 w
ill

 r
eq

ui
re

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

. I
t 

re
co

gn
is

es
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

re
-u

se
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
ru

ra
l b

ui
ld

in
gs

 h
as

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t 
ro

le
 t

o 
pl

ay
 in

 p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

ec
on

om
ic

 p
ro

sp
er

ity
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

in
 r

ur
al

 a
re

as
. t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 S

uc
h 

pr
op

os
al

s 
ca

n 
re

su
lt 

in
 t

he
 c

re
at

io
n 

of
 lo

ca
l a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
jo

bs
, t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
pr

em
is

es
 f

or
 b

us
in

es
s 

st
ar

t-
up

s 
an

d/
or

 e
xp

an
si

on
s,

 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

bu
si

ne
ss

 n
et

w
or

ks
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
fa

rm
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
di

ve
rs

ifi
ca

tio
n 

sc
he

m
es

. T
he

 r
e-

us
e 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 c
an

 a
ls

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

be
ne

fit
s 

by
 m

ak
in

g 
us

e 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d 

at
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

tim
e 

co
ns

er
vi

ng
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
f h

er
ita

ge
 v

al
ue

. R
ed

un
da

nt
 r

ur
al

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

re
 o

ft
en

 
lo

ca
te

d 
aw

ay
 f

ro
m

 v
ill

ag
es

 i
n 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 t
o 

be
 u

ns
ui

ta
bl

e 
fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
 T

he
re

fo
re

 t
hi

s 
po

lic
y,

 w
he

re
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

 is
 r

eq
ui

re
d,

 s
ee

ks
 t

o 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

re
-u

se
 fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l u
se

s 
in

 v
ill

ag
es

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 u
nl

es
s 

ce
rt

ai
n 

cr
ite

ria
 a

re
 

m
et

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 a
llo

w
 i

t 
to

 t
ak

e 
pl

ac
e 

aw
ay

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 v

ill
ag

es
. 

Ev
id

en
ce

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

is
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 
re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r i
ts

 fo
rm

er
 u

se
' 

 

RA
5 

Po
lic

y 
RA

5 
– 

Re
-u

se
 o

f r
ur

al
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
Th

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
re

-u
se

 o
f 

in
di

vi
du

al
 a

nd
 g

ro
up

s 
of

 r
ed

un
da

nt
 o

r 
di

su
se

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
fa

rm
st

ea
ds

 i
n 

ru
ra

l 
ar

ea
s,

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 m

ak
e 

a 
po

si
tiv

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 r
ur

al
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
an

d 
en

te
rp

ris
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t 

th
e 

lo
ca

l 
ec

on
om

y 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

liv
e 

w
or

k 
un

its
),  

or
 w

hi
ch

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

es
 to

 o
r i

s 
es

se
nt

ia
l t

o 
th

e 
so

ci
al

 w
el

l b
ei

ng
 o

f t
he

 c
ou

nt
ry

si
de

, w
ill

 b
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 w
he

re
: 

1.
de

si
gn

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 r

es
pe

ct
 t

he
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 a
nd

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 o
f a

ny
 r

ed
un

da
nt

 o
r 

di
su

se
d 

bu
ild

in
g 

an
d 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 t
ha

t 
it 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 t

he
 

m
os

t v
ia

bl
e 

op
tio

n 
fo

r t
he

 lo
ng

 te
rm

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t o
f a

ny
 h

er
ita

ge
 a

ss
et

 a
ff

ec
te

d,
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 it

s 
se

tt
in

g;
 

 

90



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

2.
de

si
gn

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 m

ak
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 fo

r p
ro

te
ct

ed
 a

nd
 p

rio
rit

y 
sp

ec
ie

s 
an

d 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 h
ab

ita
ts

; 
3.

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 i
s 

co
m

pa
tib

le
 w

ith
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

in
g 

us
es

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

an
y 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l 
op

er
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
ca

us
e 

un
du

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
s 

an
d;

 
4.

th
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
re

 o
f p

er
m

an
en

t a
nd

 s
ub

st
an

tia
l c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
w

ith
ou

t m
aj

or
 o

r c
om

pl
et

e 
re

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n;

 a
nd

 
5.

th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

is
 c

ap
ab

le
 o

f 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
in

g 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 n

ew
 u

se
 w

ith
ou

t 
th

e 
ne

ed
 f

or
 s

ub
st

an
tia

l a
lte

ra
tio

n 
or

 e
xt

en
si

on
, a

nc
ill

ar
y 

bu
ild

in
gs

, 
ar

ea
s 

of
 h

ar
d 

st
an

di
ng

 o
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
hi

ch
 i

nd
iv

id
ua

lly
 o

r 
ta

ke
n 

to
ge

th
er

 w
ou

ld
 a

dv
er

se
ly

 a
ff

ec
t 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
or

 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

or
 h

av
e 

a 
de

tr
im

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

its
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
s 

an
d 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
se

tt
in

g.
 

 Th
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

re
-u

se
 o

f 
ru

ra
l b

ui
ld

in
gs

 f
or

 r
es

id
en

tia
l u

se
 in

 v
ill

ag
es

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 P
ol

ic
y 

RA
2 

w
ill

 b
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 w
he

re
 t

he
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
m

ee
ts

 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f 
cr

ite
ria

1-
5.

 I
n 

ru
ra

l l
oc

at
io

ns
 a

w
ay

 f
ro

m
 v

ill
ag

es
, 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

-u
se

 o
f 

bu
ild

in
gs

 f
or

 r
es

id
en

tia
l u

se
 w

ill
 o

nl
y 

be
 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 w
he

re
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 m

ee
ts

 th
e 

cr
ite

ria
 1

-5
 li

st
ed

 a
bo

ve
 a

nd
 

 
a)

it 
is

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ol
ic

y 
RA

4 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

ru
ra

l w
or

ke
rs

; o
r 

b)
w

he
re

 t
he

 r
ed

un
da

nt
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

is
 a

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
 a

nd
 t

he
 a

pp
lic

an
t 

ha
s 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

d 
th

at
 o

th
er

 n
on

-r
es

id
en

tia
l u

se
s 

ar
e 

no
t 

vi
ab

le
; 

or
 

c)
it 

w
ill

 r
es

ul
t 

in
 a

n 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t 
of

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g(
s)

 a
nd

 im
m

ed
ia

te
 s

et
tin

g 
w

he
re

 th
ei

r 
cu

rr
en

t 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 d
et

ra
ct

s 
fr

om
 lo

ca
l a

m
en

ity
 

an
d/

or
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

lo
ca

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t.

 
An

y 
pP

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
s 

gr
an

te
d 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

po
lic

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 a
 c

on
di

tio
n 

re
m

ov
in

g 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

rig
ht

s 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 
al

te
ra

tio
ns

, e
xt

en
si

on
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

M
M

04
1.

RA
6 

Po
lic

y 
RA

6 
-R

ur
al

 e
co

no
m

y 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
ge

ne
ra

tin
g 

pr
op

os
al

s 
w

hi
ch

 h
el

p 
di

ve
rs

ify
 t

he
 r

ur
al

 e
co

no
m

y 
in

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

 s
uc

h 
as

 k
no

w
le

dg
e 

ba
se

d 
cr

ea
tiv

e 
in

du
st

rie
s,

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l t

ec
hn

ol
og

ie
s,

 b
us

in
es

s 
di

ve
rs

ifi
ca

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 a
nd

 h
om

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ill
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d.

 w
he

re
 t

he
y 

ar
e 

of
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
ca

le
 fo

r 
th

ei
r l

oc
at

io
n,

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

by
 a

 c
ho

ic
e 

of
 tr

an
sp

or
t m

od
es

 a
nd

 o
f a

 fo
rm

 w
hi

ch
 p

ro
te

ct
s 

an
d 

re
sp

ec
ts

 th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l a
nd

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
qu

al
ity

. A
 

ra
ng

e 
of

 e
co

no
m

ic
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

su
pp

or
te

d,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

pr
op

os
al

s 
w

hi
ch

: 
 !
"#

#$
%t

 a
nd

 s
tr

en
gt

he
n 

lo
ca

l f
oo

d 
an

d 
dr

in
k 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
in

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 lo
ca

tio
ns

; 
 !
"#

#$
%&
'(
)*

+$
%'
#%
$&
,-
&'
&.
,'
/0
&(
10&
2'
()

*'
/0
(3

010
&2
'$
4'-
$5

5
,%
-0
(1
'4(

-0
10&
0,
!'
$4
'(
)'
(#

#%
$#

%0(
&,
'&
2#
,'
()

*'
!-
(1
,'
0)
'%
"%
(1
'(
%,
(!
6's

uc
h 

as
 v

ill
ag

e 
sh

op
s,

 
pe

tr
ol

 fi
lli

ng
 s

ta
tio

ns
, g

ar
de

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s;

 
 0
)/
$1
/,
'&.

,'
!5

(1
1'!
-(
1,
'e

xp
an

si
on

 o
r e

xt
en

si
on

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 in

 ru
ra

l a
re

as
 in

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 lo
ca

tio
ns

; 
 #

%$
5
$&
,'
!"
!&
(0
)(

31
,'
&$
"%
0!
5
'#
%$
#$

!(
1!
'$
4'(

)'
(#

#%
$#

%0(
&,
'!
-(
1,
'0)
'(
--
$%
*(

)-
,'
7
0&.

'8
$1
0-
2'
9:

''-
To

ur
is

m
; 

 

91



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

 r
ec

og
ni

se
 t

ha
t 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 b

en
ef

its
 o

f 
ut

ili
si

ng
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 n

at
ur

al
 a

nd
 h

is
to

ric
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
as

 a
n 

as
se

t 
to

 b
e 

va
lu

ed
, c

on
se

rv
ed

 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

ed
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
na

tu
ra

l a
nd

 h
is

to
ric

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

s 
an

 a
ss

et
 w

hi
ch

 is
 v

al
ue

d 
an

d 
co

ns
er

ve
d.

; 
 !
"#

po
rt

 th
e 

re
te

nt
io

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
m

ili
ta

ry
 s

ite
s 

to
 re

m
ai

n 
vi

ab
le

; 
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
re

te
nt

io
n 

an
d/

 o
r d

iv
er

si
fic

at
io

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l b
us

in
es

se
s 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 d

iv
er

si
fy

 th
e 

ru
ra

l e
co

no
m

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 w

he
re

 th
ey

; 
 

w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e,

 in
vo

lv
e 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
 o

f u
se

 a
nd

 re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

re
du

nd
an

t b
ui

ld
in

gs
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ol

ic
y 

RA
5 

– 
Re

-u
se

 o
f r

ur
al

 
bu

ild
in

gs
. T

he
 re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f i
so

la
te

d 
br

ow
nf

ie
ld

 s
ite

s 
w

hi
ch

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 h

av
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

bu
ild

in
gs

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
 $

%!
"&
$'
()
*(
'()

$'
+$

,$
-.
#/

$%
('0
!'
.1
'*
'!
2*
-$
'3
)0
2)
'3
."

-+
'b

e 
co

m
m

en
su

ra
te

 w
ith

 it
 lo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
se

tt
in

g 
no

t t
hr

ea
te

n 
th

e 
vi

ta
lit

y 
an

d 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 o

f a
 

ne
ar

by
 c

en
tr

e;
 

 a
re

 o
f a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
ca

le
 a

nd
/o

r u
se

 w
hi

ch
 d

oe
s 

do
 n

ot
  c

au
se

 u
na

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
ad

ve
rs

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
to

 th
e 

am
en

ity
 o

f n
ea

rb
y 

re
si

de
nt

s 
by

 v
irt

ue
 o

f 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 m
as

s,
 n

oi
se

, d
us

t,
 li

gh
tin

g 
an

d 
sm

el
l; 

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 t
ra

ff
ic

 g
en

er
at

ed
 d

o 
no

t 
ge

ne
ra

te
 t

ra
ff

ic
 m

ov
em

en
ts

 t
ha

t 
ca

nn
ot

 b
y 

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 c
an

 b
e 

sa
fe

ly
 b

e 
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
ed

 s
af

el
y 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

lo
ca

l r
oa

d 
ne

tw
or

k,
 a

nd
 d

oe
s 

no
t r

es
ul

t i
n 

th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 w

id
en

 ro
ad

s 
or

 th
e 

re
m

ov
al

 o
f h

ed
ge

ro
w

s;
 a

nd
 

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t d
oe

s 
do

 n
ot

 u
nd

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t o

f w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
ta

rg
et

s 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ol

ic
yi

es
 S

D
3 

an
d 

SD
4.

 
4.

8.
51

 
It

 i
s 

im
po

rt
an

t 
to

 h
el

p 
st

re
ng

th
en

 t
he

Th
e 

ru
ra

l 
ec

on
om

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
st

re
ng

th
en

ed
 b

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
ne

w
 a

nd
 e

xp
an

di
ng

 r
ur

al
 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 s

ub
je

ct
 t

o 
th

em
 b

ei
ng

. P
ol

ic
y 

RA
6 

se
ts

 o
ut

 a
 r

an
ge

 o
f c

rit
er

ia
 t

ha
t 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

m
et

 t
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 a
re

 o
f 

an
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 s

ca
le

 a
nd

 lo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 th
ey

 d
o 

no
t s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 im

pa
ct

 u
po

n 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l q

ua
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

ar
ea

. 

 

4.
8.

52
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 c

on
ta

in
s 

Th
e 

W
ye

 V
al

le
y 

AO
N

B 
an

d 
th

e 
M

al
ve

rn
 H

ill
s 

AO
N

B 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 r
ec

og
ni

se
d 

by
 t

he
 N

at
io

na
l P

la
nn

in
g 

Po
lic

y 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

as
 

ar
ea

s 
w

he
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
st

ric
te

d.
 In

 t
he

se
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ar

ea
s,

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

st
ric

te
d 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l t

o 
ca

us
e 

ad
ve

rs
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

to
 t

he
 A

O
N

B,
 f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

po
ly

tu
nn

el
s.

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
on

 p
ro

po
se

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 in

 A
O

N
Bs

 is
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

16
 o

f 
th

e 
N

PP
F.

 P
ol

ic
y 

LD
1 

of
 t

hi
s 

pl
an

 a
ls

o 
se

ts
 o

ut
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

on
 h

ow
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 s
ho

ul
d 

se
ek

 to
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

 t
he

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 a

nd
 a

pp
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 
th

es
e 

ar
ea

s.
   

 

 

G
en

er
al

 P
ol

ic
ie

s 
– 

So
ci

al
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

Re
vi

si
on

s 
to

 P
ol

ic
y 

H
1 

up
on

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s 

to
 r

ef
le

ct
 re

ce
nt

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 n

at
io

na
l p

ol
ic

y 
gu

id
an

ce
 

M
M

04
2.

H
1 

Al
l n

ew
 o

pe
n 

m
ar

ke
t 

ho
us

in
g 

pr
op

os
al

s 
on

 s
ite

s 
of

 m
or

e 
th

an
 1

0 
dw

el
lin

gs
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
a 

m
ax

im
um

 c
om

bi
ne

d 
gr

os
s 

flo
or

 s
pa

ce
 o

f 
m

or
e 

th
an

 
10

00
sq

m
 a

bo
ve

 th
e 

th
re

sh
ol

ds
 s

et
 o

ut
 b

el
ow

 w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 m

ee
tin

g 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
. 

 W
ith

in
 a

nd
 a

dj
oi

ni
ng

 t
he

 u
rb

an
 a

re
as

 o
f H

er
ef

or
d 

an
d 

th
e 

m
ar

ke
t 

to
w

ns
, p

ro
po

sa
ls

 o
f 1

5 
or

 m
or

e 
dw

el
lin

gs
 o

r 
0.

5 
he

ct
ar

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 

 

92



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

pr
ov

is
io

n.
 In

 ru
ra

l a
re

as
, a

ll 
ne

w
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 m

ak
e 

a 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
w

he
re

by
: 

 i)
on

 s
ite

s 
of

 3
 o

r 
m

or
e 

dw
el

lin
gs

, t
he

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 o

n-
si

te
 u

nl
es

s 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

 c
an

 c
le

ar
ly

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 
th

at
 a

 fi
na

nc
ia

l c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
or

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

; 
ii)

on
 s

ite
s 

of
 1

 o
r 2

 d
w

el
lin

gs
, d

ev
el

op
er

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 fi

na
nc

ia
l c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
of

f-
si

te
. 

Th
e 

am
ou

nt
 a

nd
 m

ix
 o

f 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

os
e 

on
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
ite

s 
w

ill
 v

ar
y 

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

d,
 a

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

la
te

st
 h

ou
si

ng
 m

ar
ke

t 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
an

d 
w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, 
an

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

of
 t

he
 v

ia
bi

lit
y 

of
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t.

 T
he

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

in
di

ca
tiv

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 n
ee

d 
an

d 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 in

 t
he

 c
ou

nt
y’

s 
ho

us
in

g 
m

ar
ke

t 
an

d 
ho

us
in

g 
va

lu
e 

ar
ea

s:
 

1.
a 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 3
5%

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
on

 s
ite

s 
in

 th
e 

H
er

ef
or

d,
 H

er
ef

or
d 

N
or

th
er

n 
an

d 
So

ut
he

rn
 H

in
te

rla
nd

s,
 a

nd
 K

in
gt

on
 a

nd
 W

es
t 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 h

ou
si

ng
 v

al
ue

 a
re

as
; 

2.
a 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 4
0%

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
on

 s
ite

s 
in

 t
he

 L
ed

bu
ry

, R
os

s 
an

d 
Ru

ra
l H

in
te

rla
nd

s;
 a

nd
 N

or
th

er
n 

Ru
ra

l h
ou

si
ng

 v
al

ue
 a

re
as

 
(w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 B
ro

m
ya

rd
); 

3.
a 

ta
rg

et
 

of
 

25
%

 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

on
 

si
te

s 
in

 
th

e 
Le

om
in

st
er

 
ho

us
in

g 
va

lu
e 

ar
ea

. 
 

An
y 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

un
de

r t
he

 te
rm

s 
of

 th
is

 p
ol

ic
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

in
 p

er
pe

tu
ity

 fo
r t

ho
se

 in
 lo

ca
l h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
d.

 
In

 o
rd

er
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

an
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 b

al
an

ce
 o

f a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

is
 p

ro
vi

de
d,

 th
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 fo
r e

ac
h 

ho
us

in
g 

m
ar

ke
t a

re
a 

an
d 

ho
us

in
g 

va
lu

e 
ar

ea
 

w
ill

 fo
rm

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
fo

r d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
th

e 
m

ix
 o

f t
en

ur
e 

ty
pe

s 
on

 s
pe

ci
fic

 s
ite

s.
 

 
5.

1.
10

 
Th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 t
he

 L
oc

al
 H

ou
si

ng
 M

ar
ke

t 
As

se
ss

m
en

t 
20

13
 (

LH
M

A)
 h

av
e 

al
so

 b
ee

n 
ta

ke
n 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 s
o 

th
at

 t
he

 r
es

ul
ta

nt
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

on
 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

re
 lo

ca
lly

 r
el

ev
an

t 
an

d 
vi

ab
le

 T
he

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

ev
id

en
ce

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

by
 u

pd
at

in
g 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

m
ar

ke
t 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

w
or

k 
an

d 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 h

ou
si

ng
 v

al
ue

 a
re

as
 o

n 
at

 a
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

ly
 b

as
is

. 
 

 

5.
1.

12
 

D
el

et
e 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
5.

1.
12

 In
 r

ur
al

 a
re

as
 t

he
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f 
ne

w
 h

ou
si

ng
 is

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 o

n 
sm

al
l s

ite
s 

of
 f

ew
er

 t
ha

n 
5 

dw
el

lin
gs

 a
nd

 t
he

re
fo

re
 t

o 
en

su
re

 t
he

 m
ax

im
um

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 n

ew
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
a 

th
re

sh
ol

d 
of

 o
ne

 h
ou

se
 is

 ju
st

ifi
ed

. W
he

re
 t

he
re

 a
re

 s
ite

s 
th

at
 a

re
 c

ap
ab

le
 o

f 
de

liv
er

in
g 

3 
dw

el
lin

gs
 o

r 
m

or
e,

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 e
xp

ec
t 

th
e 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 t

o 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
on

-s
ite

, u
nl

es
s 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

r 
ca

n 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t 

fo
r 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

be
tt

er
 m

et
 th

ro
ug

h 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 to

 o
ff

-s
ite

 p
ro

vi
si

on
. T

he
re

 m
us

t h
ow

ev
er

 b
e 

a 
re

al
is

tic
 p

ro
sp

ec
t t

ha
t t

he
 o

ff
-s

ite
 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
w

ou
ld

 m
ee

t t
he

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
ne

ed
, a

nd
 c

om
e 

fo
rw

ar
d 

in
 a

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

tim
es

ca
le

. W
he

re
 r

ur
al

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 o

f o
ne

 o
r t

w
o 

dw
el

lin
gs

 a
re

 

 

93



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

pr
op

os
ed

 it
 is

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
th

at
 a

n 
on

-s
ite

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
po

ss
ib

le
, a

nd
 t

he
re

fo
re

 in
 s

uc
h 

a 
ca

se
 a

n 
of

f-
si

te
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
W

he
re

 n
ew

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 f
or

 t
he

 r
e-

us
e 

of
 r

ur
al

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
, 

an
 e

le
m

en
t 

of
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
sh

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ol

ic
y 

H
1.

 

M
M

04
3.

H
2 

Po
lic

y 
H

2 
- R

ur
al

 e
xc

ep
ti

on
 s

it
es

  
Pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

sm
al

l a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

sc
he

m
es

 in
 r

ur
al

 a
re

as
 m

ay
 b

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 o

n 
la

nd
 w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 n

or
m

al
ly

 b
e 

re
le

as
ed

 f
or

 h
ou

si
ng

 
w

he
re

: 
1.

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 c
ou

ld
 a

ss
is

t i
n 

m
ee

tin
g 

a 
pr

ov
en

 lo
ca

l n
ee

d 
fo

r a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g;

 a
nd

 
2.

th
e 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

is
 m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

, a
nd

 re
ta

in
ed

 in
 p

er
pe

tu
ity

 fo
r l

oc
al

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 n

ee
d 

of
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g;
 a

nd
 

3.
th

e 
si

te
 r

es
pe

ct
s 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s 
of

 it
s 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
gs

, d
em

on
st

ra
te

s 
go

od
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
of

fe
rs

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

no
rm

al
ly

 in
 a

 s
et

tle
m

en
t i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 in
 P

ol
ic

y 
RA

2.
 

4.
th

e 
in

te
rn

al
 fl

oo
r a

re
a 

of
 th

e 
dw

el
lin

gs
 a

re
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

si
ze

 li
m

its
 re

qu
ire

d 
by

 p
ol

ic
y 

RA
2 .

 
In

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
en

ab
le

 t
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

so
m

e 
m

ar
ke

t 
ho

us
in

g 
m

ay
 b

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
to

 s
ub

si
di

se
 a

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n.

 H
ow

ev
er

, 
ev

id
en

ce
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
– 

by
 w

ay
 o

f 
a 

fin
an

ci
al

 a
pp

ra
is

al
, 

in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 s
ca

le
 o

f m
ar

ke
t h

ou
si

ng
 is

 th
at

 re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r t

he
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g.

 

 

M
M

04
4.

H
3 

Po
lic

y 
H

3 
– 

En
su

ri
ng

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

ra
ng

e 
an

d 
m

ix
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 
Re

si
de

nt
ia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

ra
ng

e 
an

d 
m

ix
 o

f 
ho

us
in

g 
un

its
 w

hi
ch

 c
an

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 t

he
 c

re
at

io
n 

of
 b

al
an

ce
d 

an
d 

in
cl

us
iv

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
. I

n 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

, o
n 

la
rg

er
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

ite
s 

of
 m

or
e 

th
an

 5
0 

dw
el

lin
gs

 n
ot

 e
nt

ire
ly

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 m

ee
t a

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t n

ee
d ,

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
: 

1.
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 h
ou

se
 ty

pe
s 

an
d 

si
ze

s 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f a
ll 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 y
ou

ng
er

 s
in

gl
e 

pe
op

le
; 

2.
pr

ov
id

e 
ho

us
in

g 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 b
ei

ng
 a

da
pt

ed
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

in
 th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 w
ith

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 n

ee
ds

; a
nd

 
3.

pr
ov

id
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ne

ed
s 

of
 th

e 
el

de
rly

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

by
: 

-
pr

ov
id

in
g 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

fo
r o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

; 
-

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 n
on

-s
pe

ci
al

is
t n

ew
 h

ou
si

ng
 is

 b
ui

lt 
to

 ta
ke

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
f t

he
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
of

 a
n 

ag
ei

ng
 p

op
ul

at
io

n;
 

-
en

su
rin

g 
th

at
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 c
on

ta
in

 a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 h

ou
se

 ty
pe

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
, b

un
ga

lo
w

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n.

  
Th

e 
la

te
st

 L
oc

al
 H

ou
si

ng
 M

ar
ke

t A
ss

es
sm

en
t w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 m

ix
 a

nd
 ra

ng
e 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 ty

pe
s 

an
d 

si
ze

s.
 

 

M
M

04
5.

3.
39

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Th

e 
G

yp
sy

 a
nd

 T
ra

ve
lle

rs
 a

nd
 T

ra
ve

lli
ng

 S
ho

w
pe

rs
on

 A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

As
se

ss
m

en
t,

 2
01

5 
Th

e 
G

yp
sy

 a
nd

 T
ra

ve
lle

rs
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 2
01

3 
hi

gh
lig

ht
ed

 
a 

ne
ed

 f
or

 f
ur

th
er

 p
er

m
an

en
t 

pi
tc

he
s 

in
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

y.
 A

 T
ra

ve
lle

rs
’ S

ite
s 

se
pa

ra
te

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 D

oc
um

en
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

on
 

fr
om

 t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 t

o 
al

lo
ca

te
 p

itc
he

s,
 b

ut
 in

 t
he

 m
ea

nt
im

e 
an

 in
te

rim
 p

ol
ic

y 
is

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 t

he
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

on
 s

oc
ia

l p
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 t
he

 G
en

er
al

 
Po

lic
ie

s 
se

ct
io

n 
of

 th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t. 

 

94



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

H
4 

D
el

et
e 

fir
st

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 a

nd
 a

m
en

d 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 p
ol

ic
y 

to
 re

ad
: 

Po
lic

y 
H

4 
– 

Tr
av

el
le

r S
it

es
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r 
th

e 
si

te
 n

ee
ds

 o
f t

ra
ve

lle
rs

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

 T
ra

ve
lle

rs
’ D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 D
oc

um
en

t 
(D

PD
), 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
si

te
 a

llo
ca

tio
ns

. 
Si

te
s 

fo
r 

at
 le

as
t 

31
 n

ew
 r

es
id

en
tia

l p
itc

he
s 

fo
r 

gy
ps

ie
s 

an
d 

tr
av

el
le

rs
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
20

17
, w

ith
 t

he
 

ta
rg

et
 f

or
 t

he
 r

em
ai

nd
er

 o
f 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
up

 t
o 

20
27

 b
ei

ng
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
in

 t
he

 T
ra

ve
lle

r 
D

PD
. T

he
 2

01
7 

ta
rg

et
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

 a
dd

iti
on

 t
o 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

le
ve

l o
f 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 u

na
ut

ho
ris

ed
 s

ite
s 

ei
th

er
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
ir 

re
te

nt
io

n 
w

he
re

 t
he

y 
co

m
pl

y 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 w

ith
 t

he
 c

rit
er

ia
 

lis
te

d 
be

lo
w

 o
r t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
re

le
as

e 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

ite
s 

w
he

re
 s

uc
h 

un
au

th
or

is
ed

 s
ite

s 
ar

e 
no

 lo
ng

er
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

 
Th

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
ne

ed
s 

of
 t

ra
ve

lle
rs

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 f
or

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

 T
ra

ve
lle

rs
’ S

ite
s 

D
oc

um
en

t 
(D

PD
), 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
si

te
 s

pe
ci

fic
 a

llo
ca

tio
ns

. 
In

 t
he

 a
bs

en
ce

 o
f 

an
 a

do
pt

ed
 D

PD
, o

r 
w

he
re

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 f

or
 s

ite
s 

ar
e 

br
ou

gh
t 

fo
rw

ar
d 

on
 n

on
-a

llo
ca

te
d 

 la
nd

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
ev

id
en

ce
 t

ha
t 

th
ey

 
m

ee
t a

 lo
ca

l n
ee

d,
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 w
ill

 b
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 w

he
re

: 
1.

si
te

s 
af

fo
rd

 re
as

on
ab

le
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 s
ch

oo
ls

, i
n 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 a

vo
id

in
g 

lo
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
tr

av
el

; 
2.

ad
eq

ua
te

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 s
cr

ee
ni

ng
 a

nd
 la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 d
oe

s 
no

t r
es

ul
t i

n 
an

 
ad

ve
rs

e 
ef

fe
ct

 u
po

n 
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

an
d 

am
en

ity
 o

f t
he

 la
nd

sc
ap

e,
 h

is
to

ric
 a

ss
et

s 
an

d/
or

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
in

g 
pr

op
er

tie
s;

 t
o 

pr
ot

ec
t 

lo
ca

l a
m

en
ity

 
an

d 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
3.

th
ey

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
pe

ac
ef

ul
 a

nd
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 c
o-

ex
is

te
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
si

te
 a

nd
 th

e 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 
4.

in
 t

he
 c

as
e 

of
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 f
or

  
th

ey
 e

na
bl

e 
m

ix
ed

 b
us

in
es

s 
an

d 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
(p

ro
vi

di
ng

 f
or

 t
he

 l
iv

e-
w

or
k 

lif
es

ty
le

 o
f 

tr
av

el
le

rs
), 

lo
ca

l a
m

en
ity

 is
 n

ot
 a

dv
er

se
ly

 a
ff

ec
te

d;
 

5.
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 p
itc

he
s 

at
 a

ny
 lo

ca
tio

n 
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 o
ve

rlo
ad

 lo
ca

l i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e;

 t
he

y 
av

oi
d 

un
du

e 
pr

es
su

re
 o

n 
lo

ca
l i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 

6.
in

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

, t
he

 s
iz

e 
of

 th
e 

si
te

 s
ho

ul
d 

re
fle

ct
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
si

ze
 a

nd
 d

en
si

ty
 s

o 
th

at
 s

ite
s 

do
 d

oe
s 

no
t d

om
in

at
e 

ne
ar

by
 s

et
tle

d 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
; a

nd
 

7.
th

ey
 a

re
 c

ap
ab

le
 o

f a
cc

om
m

od
at

in
g 

on
-s

ite
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

th
at

 m
ee

t 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r 

m
od

er
n 

tr
av

el
le

r 
si

te
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 p

la
y 

ar
ea

s,
 

st
or

ag
e,

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 fo

r r
ec

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
w

as
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t,

 a
nd

 w
he

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, w
or

k 
ar

ea
s .

  
In

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

, w
he

re
 t

he
re

 is
 a

 c
as

e 
of

 lo
ca

l n
ee

d 
fo

r 
an

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

tr
av

el
le

r 
si

te
, b

ut
 c

rit
er

io
n 

1 
ab

ov
e 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
fu

lfi
lle

d,
 t

he
n 

an
 e

xc
ep

tio
n 

m
ay

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
an

d 
pr

op
os

al
s 

pe
rm

itt
ed

, p
ro

vi
de

d 
su

ch
 s

ite
s 

ca
n 

be
 re

ta
in

ed
 fo

r t
ha

t p
ur

po
se

 in
 p

er
pe

tu
ity

.  

 

5.
1.

24
 

Th
e 

Tr
av

el
le

r 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 T
ra

ve
lle

rs
’ 

Si
te

s 
D

oc
um

en
t 

w
hi

ch
 i

s 
pr

og
ra

m
m

ed
  

in
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

Lo
ca

l 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Sc
he

m
e(

20
15

), 
fo

r 
ad

op
tio

n 
in

 s
pr

in
g 

20
16

, w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 r

es
id

en
tia

l s
ite

s 
fo

r 
at

 le
as

t 
31

 n
ew

 p
itc

he
s 

fo
r 

‘g
yp

si
es

 a
nd

 t
ra

ve
lle

rs
’ b

y 
20

17
, a

nd
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

a 
lo

ng
er

 t
er

m
 t

ar
ge

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

up
 to

 2
02

7 
an

d 
be

yo
nd

 if
 p

os
si

bl
e;

 

 

95



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 b

ro
ad

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r f

ur
th

er
 d

ev
el

op
ab

le
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l s
ite

s 
fo

r ‘
gy

ps
ie

s 
an

d 
tr

av
el

le
rs

’ o
ve

r t
he

 p
er

io
ds

 2
01

7-
20

31
; 

 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 n

ee
d 

fo
r,

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

, t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f t
ra

ns
it 

si
te

s;
 

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

so
m

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r 

tr
av

el
lin

g 
sh

ow
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 c
ou

nt
y,

 w
ith

 t
he

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

lo
ts

 b
ei

ng
 ju

dg
ed

 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 c
rit

er
ia

 in
 p

ol
ic

y 
H

4 
ab

ov
e;

 
 

an
 u

rg
en

t r
e-

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f c
ur

re
nt

 n
ee

d 
w

ith
 a

n 
in

di
ca

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
fo

r u
pd

at
in

g 
ne

ed
 o

n 
a 

re
gu

la
r b

as
is

; 
 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 p
riv

at
e 

si
te

s 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

pl
an

 p
er

io
d;

 
 

an
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f c

ur
re

nt
 n

ee
d 

fo
r p

er
m

an
en

t r
es

id
en

tia
l p

itc
he

s 
w

ith
 a

n 
in

di
ca

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
fo

r u
pd

at
in

g 
ne

ed
 o

n 
a 

re
gu

la
r b

as
is

; 
 

pi
tc

h 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r t
ra

ve
lle

rs
;  

 
de

liv
er

ab
le

 s
ite

s 
fo

r r
es

id
en

tia
l p

itc
he

s 
fo

r t
he

 p
er

io
d 

20
14

-1
9 

 to
 s

et
 a

ga
in

st
 ta

rg
et

s;
 

 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 b

ro
ad

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r f

ur
th

er
 d

ev
el

op
ab

le
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l s
ite

s 
fo

r t
ra

ve
lle

rs
 o

ve
r t

he
 p

er
io

d 
20

19
-2

03
1;

 
 

id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 n
ee

d 
fo

r,
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
, t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f t

ra
ns

it 
si

te
s 

fo
r t

he
 p

la
n 

pe
rio

d;
 

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r,
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
, p

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r t

ra
ve

lli
ng

 s
ho

w
pe

rs
on

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
 fo

r t
he

 p
la

n 
pe

rio
d;

 
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 
a 

ru
ra

l e
xc

ep
tio

ns
 p

ol
ic

y 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

si
te

s 
to

 b
e 

br
ou

gh
t 

fo
rw

ar
d 

so
le

ly
 a

s 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 g
yp

sy
 a

nd
 t

ra
ve

lle
r 

si
te

s;
 a

nd
 

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 s

up
po

rt
 f

or
 t

he
 a

ut
ho

ris
at

io
n 

of
 l

on
g-

te
rm

 u
no

ff
ic

ia
l 

si
te

s 
w

he
re

 t
he

y 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

cr
ite

ria
 i

n 
po

lic
y 

H
4 

ab
ov

e 
or

 t
he

 
m

ak
in

g 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

of
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

w
he

re
 th

ey
 a

re
 lo

st
 fo

r w
ha

te
ve

r r
ea

so
n.

  
5.

1.
25

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
D

ra
ft

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 G

yp
sy

 a
nd

 T
ra

ve
lle

r 
Ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
As

se
ss

m
en

t 
20

13
 id

en
tif

ie
s 

a 
to

ta
l m

in
im

um
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

of
 

31
 r

es
id

en
tia

l p
itc

he
s 

by
 2

02
0.

 T
hi

s 
ta

rg
et

 is
 in

 a
dd

iti
on

 t
o 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 u
no

ff
ic

ia
l s

ite
s.

 A
 p

itc
h 

is
 d

ef
in

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
’a

re
a 

of
 la

nd
 o

n 
a 

gy
ps

y 
an

d 
tr

av
el

le
r 

ca
ra

va
n 

si
te

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 f

or
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

fa
m

ily
.’ 

A 
pl

ot
 m

ea
ns

 a
 p

itc
h 

on
 a

 “
tr

av
el

lin
g 

sh
ow

pe
op

le
” 

si
te

 (o
ft

en
 c

al
le

d 
a 

“y
ar

d”
). 

Th
is

 te
rm

in
ol

og
y 

di
ff

er
en

tia
te

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l p
itc

he
s 

fo
r 

“g
yp

si
es

 a
nd

 tr
av

el
le

rs
” 

an
d 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 p

lo
ts

 fo
r 

“t
ra

ve
lli

ng
 s

ho
w

pe
op

le
”,

 w
hi

ch
 

m
ay

/w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 i
nc

or
po

ra
te

 s
pa

ce
 o

r 
to

 b
e 

sp
lit

 t
o 

al
lo

w
 f

or
 t

he
 s

to
ra

ge
 o

f 
eq

ui
pm

en
t.

 S
tu

di
es

 f
or

 t
he

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 T

ra
ve

lle
r 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 D

oc
um

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 lo

ok
 a

t 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

es
tim

at
in

g 
le

ve
ls

 o
f 

ne
ed

 f
or

 p
itc

he
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

pe
rio

ds
 2

01
7-

20
31

. 
Es

tim
at

es
 o

f 
ne

ed
 b

ey
on

d 
20

17
 c

an
no

t b
e 

fo
re

ca
st

 w
ith

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 a

cc
ur

ac
y 

an
d 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t r

ev
ie

w
s 

af
te

r t
he

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
D

oc
um

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
ep

ar
ed

.  
 

 

5.
1.

26
 

Cu
rr

en
tly

 s
om

e 
As

 a
t 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

, t
he

re
 a

re
 1

01
 1

14
 a

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
es

id
en

tia
l p

itc
he

s 
ar

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

w
ith

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 w
ith

 a
 f

ur
th

er
 2

7 
21

 
pi

tc
he

s 
on

 u
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

, b
ut

 t
ol

er
at

ed
 s

ite
s.

 N
um

be
rs

 o
f c

ar
av

an
s 

on
 t

he
se

 s
ite

s 
ha

ve
 fl

uc
tu

at
ed

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
pa

st
 t

w
o 

ye
ar

s 
fr

om
 1

48
 to

 1
61

 a
nd

 
av

er
ag

in
g 

15
7.

 S
om

e 
pi

tc
he

s 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 c

ar
av

an
. 

A 
Tr

av
el

le
r 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 D

oc
um

en
t 

w
ill

 s
et

 o
ut

 t
he

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 s
ite

s 
an

d 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 p
itc

he
s 

at
 e

ac
h 

lo
ca

tio
n.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 lo

ok
 a

t 
m

at
te

rs
 in

 d
et

ai
l f

or
 t

he
 p

er
io

d 
up

 t
o 

20
17

 a
nd

 it
 is

 li
ke

ly
 t

ha
t 

br
oa

d 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r 
es

tim
at

es
 o

f n
ee

d 
be

yo
nd

 t
hi

s 
pe

rio
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d.
 P

rio
r 

to
 t

he
 a

do
pt

io
n 

of
 a

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 D

oc
um

en
t,

 P
ol

ic
y 

H
4 

 

96



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 a
s 

an
 in

te
rim

 p
ol

ic
y 

to
 d

ire
ct

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.
  

   
5.

1.
27

 
D

el
et

e 
fir

st
 s

en
te

nc
e 

an
d 

am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
:  

In
 t

he
 im

m
ed

ia
te

 t
er

m
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 8
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 p
itc

he
s 

by
 b

rin
gi

ng
 b

ac
k 

in
to

 u
se

 p
itc

he
s 

at
 it

s 
si

te
 in

 B
ro

m
ya

rd
. 

Th
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 m

ay
 n

ee
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r 
fu

rt
he

r 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l s
ite

 n
ee

ds
 u

nt
il 

th
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
Tr

av
el

le
rs

’ S
ite

s 
D

oc
um

en
t 

is
 a

do
pt

ed
 in

 2
01

6 
an

d 
po

lic
y 

H
4 

se
ts

 o
ut

 t
he

 b
as

is
 u

po
n 

w
hi

ch
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
gr

an
te

d 
du

rin
g 

th
is

 p
er

io
d.

 T
he

 c
rit

er
ia

 in
 t

hi
s 

po
lic

y 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

ap
pl

y 
w

he
n 

th
e 

de
fin

ed
 n

ee
d 

fo
r r

es
id

en
tia

l g
yp

sy
 a

nd
 tr

av
el

le
r s

ite
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 m
et

, y
et

 fu
rt

he
r n

ee
d 

is
 a

cc
ep

te
d.

   
 

 

5.
1.

28
 

In
 a

ss
es

si
ng

 w
he

th
er

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 a
 lo

ca
l n

ee
d 

ex
is

ts
, t

he
 c

at
eg

or
ie

s 
se

t 
ou

t 
in

 p
ol

ic
y 

RA
2 

w
ill

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d.

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
, a

nd
 in

 In
 t

he
 s

am
e 

w
ay

 
th

at
 a

 r
ur

al
 e

xc
ep

tio
n 

po
lic

y 
is

 a
pp

lie
d 

to
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t,

 r
ur

al
 e

xc
ep

tio
n 

si
te

s 
ca

n 
al

so
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

tr
av

el
le

r 
si

te
s 

an
d 

th
e 

Tr
av

el
le

rs
’ 

Si
te

s 
D

oc
um

en
t 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

is
 i

ss
ue

. 
A 

ru
ra

l 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

si
te

 p
ol

ic
y 

en
ab

le
s 

sm
al

l 
si

te
s 

to
 b

e 
us

ed
, 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 f

or
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
tr

av
el

le
r s

ite
s 

in
 p

er
pe

tu
ity

, i
n 

sm
al

l r
ur

al
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
, t

ha
t w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 n
or

m
al

ly
 b

e 
us

ed
 fo

r t
ra

ve
lle

r s
ite

s.
  

 

5.
1.

29
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
:  

Al
th

ou
gh

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 t

he
re

 is
 n

o 
Th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
of

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 
tr

an
si

t 
si

te
s 

or
 p

lo
ts

 fo
r 

tr
av

el
lin

g 
sh

ow
 p

eo
pl

e 
th

is
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 
w

or
k 

fo
r 

th
e 

Tr
av

el
le

rs
’ S

ite
s 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 D

oc
um

en
t.

 S
ho

ul
d 

an
y 

ne
ed

 a
ris

e 
in

 t
he

 in
te

rim
; p

ro
po

sa
ls

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 s
at

is
fy

 t
he

 c
rit

er
ia

 s
et

 
ou

t i
n 

Po
lic

y 
H

4.
  

 

5.
1.

30
 

In
 b

rin
gi

ng
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 f
or

w
ar

d 
it 

w
ill

 b
e 

im
po

rt
an

t 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 s
ite

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 la

nd
sc

ap
ed

 in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

lim
it 

th
ei

r 
vi

su
al

 im
pa

ct
 a

nd
 

sh
ou

ld
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 l
oc

al
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 s
ho

ps
, 

an
d 

sc
ho

ol
s 

an
d 

he
al

th
ca

re
. 

Sm
al

l 
si

te
s 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

in
g 

pi
tc

he
s 

fo
r 

in
di

vi
du

al
 o

r 
ex

te
nd

ed
 f

am
ili

es
 a

re
 g

en
er

al
ly

 m
or

e 
un

ob
tr

us
iv

e,
 e

as
ie

r 
to

 m
an

ag
e 

an
d 

ar
e 

le
ss

 li
ke

ly
 t

o 
be

 o
f 

a 
sc

al
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 d
om

in
at

e 
lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

. 
It

 i
s 

al
so

 i
m

po
rt

an
t 

to
 r

ec
og

ni
se

 t
ha

t 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

is
 i

nc
lu

de
d 

to
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

liv
e-

w
or

k 
na

tu
re

 o
f 

gy
ps

ie
s 

an
d 

tr
av

el
le

rs
 a

nd
 

ad
eq

ua
te

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 is

 m
ad

e 
fo

r p
la

y 
sp

ac
e 

fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n.

 

 

M
M

04
6.

SC
1 

Po
lic

y 
SC

1 
– 

So
ci

al
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
it

y 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

w
hi

ch
 p

ro
te

ct
, 

re
ta

in
 o

r 
en

ha
nc

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
so

ci
al

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
or

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 n
ew

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
ar

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

as
 lo

ca
lly

 a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

 w
ill

 b
e 

su
pp

or
te

d.
 S

uc
h 

pr
op

os
al

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
 o

r 
cl

os
e 

to
 s

et
tle

m
en

ts
, h

av
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 c

o-
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e 
be

 s
af

el
y 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 b

y 
fo

ot
, b

y 
cy

cl
e 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
t.

   
N

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

ha
t c

re
at

es
 a

 n
ee

d 
fo

r a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

oc
ia

l a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

(f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 s

ch
oo

ls
, p

re
-s

ch
oo

ls
, c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
ce

nt
re

s,
 c

hi
ld

 
m

in
di

ng
 p

ro
vi

si
on

, y
ou

th
 p

ro
vi

si
on

, p
ub

s 
an

d 
lo

ca
l s

ho
ps

) -
 t

ha
t 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
m

et
 t

hr
ou

gh
 e

xi
st

in
g 

so
ci

al
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

- w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 t
o 

m
ee

t 
th

e 

 

97



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 t

hr
ou

gh
 n

ew
, 

or
 e

xt
en

si
on

 o
f 

ex
is

tin
g,

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

r 
by

 d
ev

el
op

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 w
hi

ch
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 t
es

ts
 o

f 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

20
4 

of
 th

e 
N

PP
F 

w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
.  

 
Pr

op
os

al
s 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

or
 e

xp
an

si
on

 o
f 

so
ci

al
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
pu

bl
ic

ly
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
to

ile
ts

 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r d
is

ab
le

d 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 b
ab

y 
ch

an
gi

ng
). 

 
Ex

is
tin

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
ta

in
ed

, u
nl

es
s 

it 
ca

n 
be

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

d 
th

at
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

fa
ci

lit
y 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e,

 o
r 

ca
n 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

ff
ec

te
d;

 o
r i

t c
an

 b
e 

sh
ow

n 
th

at
 th

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
is

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 re

qu
ire

d,
 v

ia
bl

e 
or

 is
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 fi
t f

or
 p

ur
po

se
; a

nd
 w

he
re

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

, i
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

va
ca

nt
 a

nd
 m

ar
ke

te
d 

fo
r c

om
m

un
ity

 u
se

 w
ith

ou
t s

uc
ce

ss
. V

ia
bl

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

m
us

t b
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 to

 th
os

e 
th

ey
 

re
pl

ac
e,

 in
 te

rm
s 

of
 s

iz
e,

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

. 
Th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

or
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f h

ig
he

r e
du

ca
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

th
e 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 e

nh
an

ce
m

en
t o

f e
xi

st
in

g,
 o

r p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f n
ew

, t
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
sk

ill
s 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ac

tiv
el

y 
pr

om
ot

ed
. 

 
5.

1.
37

 
Lo

ca
l r

et
ai

l p
re

m
is

es
, 

vi
lla

ge
 h

al
ls

, 
ch

ur
ch

es
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 h
ou

se
s,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 in
 t

he
 r

ur
al

 a
re

as
 a

re
 o

ft
en

 a
t 

th
e 

he
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
pl

ac
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 to

 m
ee

t,
 to

 u
se

 fu
nc

tio
n 

ro
om

s,
 to

 s
oc

ia
lis

e 
an

d 
to

 fu
lfi

l t
he

 d
ay

 to
 d

ay
 c

on
ve

ni
en

ce
 n

ee
ds

 o
f t

he
 lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
un

ity
. 

In
 s

om
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 i
t 

is
 b

ec
om

in
g 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 d
iff

ic
ul

t 
to

 r
et

ai
n 

se
rv

ic
es

, 
sh

op
s 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ou
se

s;
 h

ow
ev

er
 i

t 
is

 e
ss

en
tia

l 
th

at
 

su
pp

or
t 

is
 g

iv
en

 t
o 

en
ab

le
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 s

er
ve

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
. I

n 
su

ch
 c

as
es

, f
le

xi
bi

lit
y 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
lo

ca
l s

ho
ps

, 
se

rv
ic

es
 o

r 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s 

to
 d

iv
er

si
fy

 in
to

 a
nc

ill
ar

y 
re

ta
il 

an
d 

to
ur

is
m

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
or

 c
om

m
un

ity
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
‘C

om
m

un
ity

 R
ig

ht
 t

o 
Bi

d’
 p

ro
ce

ss
. T

hi
s 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
m

ay
 e

na
bl

e 
th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 t

o 
co

nt
in

ue
 t

o 
se

rv
e 

th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
. W

he
re

 a
 b

us
in

es
s 

is
 s

ho
w

n 
to

 b
e 

no
 lo

ng
er

 
vi

ab
le

, t
he

 fi
rs

t a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
to

 in
ve

st
ig

at
e 

w
he

th
er

 a
n 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 u

se
 is

 p
os

si
bl

e.
 In

 o
rd

er
 to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 u

se
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
co

ns
id

er
ed

, 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

fo
r 

a 
pe

rio
d 

of
 a

t 
le

as
t 

12
 m

on
th

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 w
ith

 a
ny

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
th

e 
lo

ss
 o

f c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

  

 

M
M

04
7.

O
S1

 
Po

lic
y 

O
S1

 - 
Re

qu
ir

em
en

t f
or

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e,

 s
po

rt
s 

an
d 

re
cr

ea
ti

on
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

 Th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e,

 s
po

rt
s 

an
d 

re
cr

ea
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ill

 a
ris

e 
in

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

:  
 

1.
al

l n
ew

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l d

w
el

lin
gs

; o
r 

2.
re

ta
il 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

pr
op

os
al

s 
of

 g
re

at
er

 t
ha

n 
10

00
 s

qu
ar

e 
m

et
re

s 
of

 f
lo

or
 s

pa
ce

 o
r 

th
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 o

f 
15

 o
r 

m
or

e 
fu

ll-
tim

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s;

 w
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 n

ee
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 in

fo
rm

al
 a

re
as

 o
f a

m
en

ity
 g

re
en

sp
ac

e 
 fo

r t
he

 u
se

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
an

d 
vi

si
to

rs
; a

nd
 

3.
re

si
de

nt
ia

l i
ns

tit
ut

io
ns

, s
tu

de
nt

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n,

 a
ss

em
bl

y 
an

d 
le

is
ur

e,
 h

ot
el

s 
or

 h
os

te
ls

. 

 

98



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

5.
1.

47
 

Fo
r 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

an
d/

or
 r

et
ai

l 
pr

op
os

al
s,

 f
or

m
al

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e,

 s
po

rt
s 

an
d 

re
cr

ea
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

(s
ee

 G
lo

ss
ar

y)
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 

H
ow

ev
er

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 o
n-

si
te

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f a
t 

le
as

t 
5%

 o
f t

he
 t

ot
al

 s
ite

 a
re

a 
fo

r 
in

fo
rm

al
 a

re
as

 o
f a

m
en

ity
 g

re
en

sp
ac

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

an
d 

vi
si

to
rs

 f
or

 b
re

ak
s,

 a
nd

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

pr
op

er
ly

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

by
 t

he
 o

w
ne

r/
m

an
ag

in
g 

co
m

pa
ny

 f
or

 t
he

 s
ite

.  
in

fo
rm

al
 a

re
as

 o
f 

am
en

ity
 g

re
en

sp
ac

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

an
d 

vi
si

to
rs

 fo
r 

br
ea

ks
, a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 o

n 
a 

si
te

 b
y 

si
te

 b
as

is
.  

If 
th

er
e 

is
 a

 
ne

ar
by

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

w
ith

in
 s

af
e 

w
al

ki
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 c

at
er

 f
or

 t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s,

 a
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

of
 t

he
 e

qu
iv

al
en

t 
co

st
 o

f 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

th
e 

on
-s

ite
 a

re
a 

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

ab
ov

e 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

of
f-

si
te

 p
ro

vi
si

on
, m

ay
 a

ls
o 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d.
 U

se
rs

 o
f 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l i

ns
tit

ut
io

ns
 

e.
g.

 c
ar

e 
ho

m
es

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
re

qu
ire

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f 
on

-s
ite

 a
m

en
ity

 g
re

en
sp

ac
e,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 w
he

re
 t

he
 f

ac
ili

ty
 h

os
ts

 f
am

ili
es

 a
nd

 c
hi

ld
re

n.
 F

or
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

fo
r 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 s
ev

er
e 

m
ob

ili
ty

 im
pa

irm
en

ts
, a

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
(o

n 
a 

pr
o-

ra
ta

 b
as

is
) a

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

us
in

g 
th

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
 

 

M
M

04
8.

O
S2

 
 P

ol
ic

y 
O

S2
 –

 M
ee

ti
ng

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e,

 s
po

rt
s 

an
d 

re
cr

ea
ti

on
 n

ee
ds

 
 In

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
, 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

, 
sp

or
ts

 a
nd

 r
ec

re
at

io
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
so

ug
ht

, 
w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, 
ta

ki
ng

 in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

: 
1.

an
y 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
m

us
t 

be
 i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 a
ll 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 s

et
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
f 

qu
an

tit
y,

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 a
s 

de
fin

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
co

m
pa

ni
on

 g
ui

de
 to

 P
PG

17
 o

r a
ny

 s
uc

ce
ss

or
 d

oc
um

en
t;

 a
nd

 
2.

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e,

 s
po

rt
s 

an
d 

re
cr

ea
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
on

-s
ite

 u
nl

es
s 

an
 o

ff
-s

ite
 o

r 
pa

rt
ia

l o
ff

-s
ite

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
w

ou
ld

 
re

su
lt 

in
 a

n 
eq

ua
lly

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l e

nh
an

ce
m

en
t 

to
 a

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

, 
sp

or
ts

 a
nd

/o
r 

re
cr

ea
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

y 
w

hi
ch

 is
 o

f 
be

ne
fit

 t
o 

th
e 

lo
ca

l 
co

m
m

un
ity

. 
Pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

m
aj

or
 s

po
rt

s 
or

 le
is

ur
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 w

hi
ch

 m
ee

t 
an

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
re

gi
on

al
 o

r 
su

b-
re

gi
on

al
 n

ee
d,

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 o
r 

on
 t

he
 e

dg
e 

of
 H

er
ef

or
d.

 W
he

re
 n

o 
su

ita
bl

e 
si

te
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
on

 th
e 

ed
ge

 o
f H

er
ef

or
d,

 th
e 

ur
ba

n 
ar

ea
s 

of
 m

ar
ke

t t
ow

ns
 m

ay
 a

ls
o 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d.
 

 

M
M

04
9.

M
T1

 
Po

lic
y 

M
T1

 –
 T

ra
ff

ic
 m

an
ag

em
en

t,
 h

ig
hw

ay
 s

af
et

y 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

ac
ti

ve
 tr

av
el

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 s
ho

ul
d 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
pr

in
ci

pl
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 c
ov

er
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
t a

nd
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n:

  
1.

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

an
d 

lo
ca

l h
ig

hw
ay

 n
et

w
or

k 
ca

n 
ab

so
rb

 t
he

 t
ra

ff
ic

 im
pa

ct
s 

of
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
ith

ou
t 

ad
ve

rs
el

y 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

th
e 

sa
fe

 a
nd

 e
ff

ic
ie

nt
 fl

ow
 o

f t
ra

ff
ic

 o
n 

th
e 

ne
tw

or
k 

or
 th

at
 tr

af
fic

 im
pa

ct
s 

ca
n 

be
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
lly

 m
an

ag
ed

 to
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
le

ve
ls

 to
 re

du
ce

 
an

d 
m

iti
ga

te
 a

ny
 a

dv
er

se
 im

pa
ct

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t;
   

2.
pr

om
ot

e 
an

d,
 w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 (d
ep

en
di

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 a
nd

 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

si
te

), 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
by

 m
ea

ns
 o

th
er

 th
an

 p
riv

at
e 

m
ot

or
is

ed
 tr

an
sp

or
t;

 
3.

en
co

ur
ag

e 
ac

tiv
e 

tr
av

el
 b

eh
av

io
ur

 t
o 

re
du

ce
 n

um
be

rs
 o

f 
sh

or
t 

di
st

an
ce

 c
ar

 j
ou

rn
ey

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 t
ra

ve
l 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

pr
om

ot
io

na
l a

nd
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
ra

is
in

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
; 

   

99



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

4.
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 a

re
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

an
d 

la
id

 o
ut

 t
o 

ac
hi

ev
e 

sa
fe

 e
nt

ra
nc

e 
 a

nd
 e

xi
t,

 h
av

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l a

nd
 m

an
oe

uv
rin

g 
sp

ac
e,

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r a

ll 
m

od
es

 o
f t

ra
ns

po
rt

, t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
af

e 
ac

ce
ss

 fo
r t

he
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
se

rv
ic

es
; 

5.
pr

ot
ec

t 
ex

is
tin

g 
lo

ca
l a

nd
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

  l
on

g 
di

st
an

ce
 f

oo
tw

ay
s,

 c
yc

le
w

ay
s 

an
d 

br
id

le
w

ay
s 

un
le

ss
 a

n 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
ro

ut
e 

of
 a

t 
le

as
t 

eq
ua

l u
til

ity
 

va
lu

e 
ca

n 
be

 u
se

d,
 a

nd
 f

ac
ili

ta
te

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 t
o 

ex
is

tin
g 

or
 p

ro
vi

de
 n

ew
 c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
 t

o 
th

es
e 

ro
ut

es
, e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 w
he

re
 s

uc
h 

sc
he

m
es

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
 P

la
n 

an
d/

or
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 D
el

iv
er

y 
Pl

an
; a

nd
 

6.
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 h

av
e 

re
ga

rd
 to

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 H

ig
hw

ay
s 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t D
es

ig
n 

G
ui

de
 a

nd
 c

yc
le

 a
nd

 v
eh

ic
le

 p
ar

ki
ng

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

s 
pr

es
cr

ib
ed

 
in

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
 P

la
n 

- h
av

in
g 

re
ga

rd
 to

 th
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
si

te
 a

nd
 n

ee
d 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
av

el
 c

ho
ic

es
. 

W
he

re
 t

ra
ff

ic
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

in
tr

od
uc

ed
 t

he
y 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

si
gn

ed
 in

 a
 w

ay
 w

hi
ch

 r
es

pe
ct

s 
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

of
 t

he
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 a

re
a 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
its

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r.

 W
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
, t

he
 p

rin
ci

pl
e 

of
 s

ha
re

d 
sp

ac
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
. 

G
en

er
al

 P
ol

ic
ie

s 
– 

Ec
on

om
ic

 P
ro

sp
er

it
y 

M
M

05
0.

5.
2.

4 
D

el
et

e 
 

As
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 F
ig

ur
e 

5.
2,

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 c

at
er

 fo
r 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

 p
er

io
d 

w
ith

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 a
s 

a 
w

ho
le

, i
t i

s 
es

tim
at

ed
 t

ha
t t

he
re

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

11
8 

he
ct

ar
es

 o
f 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 s
up

pl
y 

ei
th

er
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

(w
ith

ou
t 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

) 
or

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 (

si
te

s 
w

ith
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

 w
he

re
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t d

ev
el

op
m

en
t h

as
 n

ot
 s

ta
rt

ed
 (n

/s
) o

r i
s 

un
de

r c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
(u

/c
))

. 
  

 

 
D

el
et

e 
Fi

gu
re

 5
.2

 
 

M
M

05
1.

E2
 

Po
lic

y 
E2

 –
 R

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t l

an
d 

an
d 

bu
ild

in
gs

 
In

 c
ri

te
ri

on
 1

 d
el

et
e 

“r
el

ea
se

” 
re

pl
ac

e 
w

ith
 “

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t”

 
 1.

 
th

e 
re

le
as

e  
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 s
ite

 fo
r 

ot
he

r 
us

es
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 r
es

ul
t 

in
 a

n 
ov

er
al

l s
ho

rt
ag

e 
in

 t
he

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

qu
an

tit
y 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 s
up

pl
y 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
; o

r 
 

 

M
M

05
2.

E4
 

Po
lic

y 
E4

 - 
To

ur
is

m
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

1 
an

d 
th

ird
 c

rit
er

io
n:

  
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
om

ot
ed

 a
s 

a 
de

st
in

at
io

n 
fo

r 
qu

al
ity

 le
is

ur
e 

vi
si

ts
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 t

ou
ris

m
 b

y 
ut

ili
si

ng
, c

on
se

rv
in

g 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

in
g 

th
e 

co
un

ty
’s

 u
ni

qu
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l a
nd

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

by
 r

ec
og

ni
si

ng
 t

he
 in

tr
in

si
c 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
an

d 
be

au
ty

 o
f t

he
 c

ou
nt

ry
si

de
. I

n 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

, t
he

 
to

ur
is

t i
nd

us
tr

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f m
ea

su
re

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g:

 

 

100



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

1.
 r

ec
og

ni
si

ng
 t

he
 u

ni
qu

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 o
f H

er
ef

or
d 

an
d 

th
e 

m
ar

ke
t 

to
w

ns
 a

s 
ke

y 
vi

si
to

r 
at

tr
ac

tio
ns

 a
nd

 a
s 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 t
o 

fo
cu

s 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 n

ew
 la

rg
er

 s
ca

le
 to

ur
is

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t;
 

2.
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 t

ou
ris

m
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s,

 c
ap

ita
lis

in
g 

on
 a

ss
et

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

e 
co

un
ty

’s
 la

nd
sc

ap
e,

 r
iv

er
s,

 o
th

er
 w

at
er

w
ay

s 
an

d 
at

tr
ac

tiv
e 

ru
ra

l 
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
, 

w
he

re
 t

he
re

 i
s 

no
 d

et
rim

en
ta

l 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

co
un

ty
’s

 v
ar

ie
d 

na
tu

ra
l 

an
d 

he
rit

ag
e 

as
se

ts
 o

r 
on

 t
he

 o
ve

ra
ll 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
an

d 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t.

 P
ar

tic
ul

ar
 r

eg
ar

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
ha

d 
to

 c
on

se
rv

in
g 

th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
an

d 
sc

en
ic

 b
ea

ut
y 

in
 t

he
 A

re
as

 o
f 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 N
at

ur
al

 B
ea

ut
y;

 
3.

 r
et

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 e

nh
an

ci
ng

 e
xi

st
in

g,
 a

nd
 e

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 n

ew
, a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
an

d 
at

tr
ac

tio
ns

 t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t 

th
e 

co
un

ty
, w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 h
el

p 
to

 d
iv

er
si

fy
 

th
e 

to
ur

is
t 

pr
ov

is
io

n,
 e

xt
en

d 
th

e 
to

ur
is

t 
se

as
on

 a
nd

 i
nc

re
as

e 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 v
is

ito
rs

 s
ta

yi
ng

 o
ve

rn
ig

ht
. 

In
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 f

or
 a

 h
ig

h 
st

an
da

rd
 h

ot
el

 w
ith

 b
us

in
es

s 
an

d 
co

nf
er

en
ci

ng
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ne
w

 h
ot

el
s 

in
 H

er
ef

or
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
. A

pp
lic

an
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 

‘H
ot

el
 N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t’

 fo
r a

ny
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 fo

r n
ew

 h
ot

el
s;

 
4.

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 c

yc
lin

g,
 w

al
ki

ng
 a

nd
 h

er
ita

ge
 t

ou
ris

m
 i

s 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 b
y 

fa
ci

lit
at

in
g 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 l

on
g 

di
st

an
ce

 w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
yc

lin
g 

ro
ut

es
, 

fo
od

 a
nd

 d
rin

k 
tr

ai
ls

 a
nd

 h
er

ita
ge

 t
ra

ils
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
pu

bl
ic

 r
ig

ht
s 

of
 w

ay
, 

w
hi

ls
t 

ha
vi

ng
 s

pe
ci

al
 r

eg
ar

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
vi

su
al

 
am

en
ity

 o
f s

uc
h 

ro
ut

es
 a

nd
 tr

ai
ls

, a
nd

 fo
r t

he
 s

et
tin

g 
of

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
s 

in
 th

ei
r v

ic
in

ity
; a

nd
 

5.
 t

he
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

of
 t

he
 h

is
to

ric
 r

ou
te

 o
f 

th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 a

nd
 G

lo
uc

es
te

rs
hi

re
 C

an
al

 (
sh

ow
n 

on
 t

he
 P

ol
ic

ie
s 

M
ap

), 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 i

ts
 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
, b

ui
ld

in
gs

, t
ow

pa
th

 a
nd

 f
ea

tu
re

s.
 W

he
re

 t
he

 o
rig

in
al

 a
lig

nm
en

t 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

re
-e

st
ab

lis
he

d,
 a

 c
or

rid
or

 a
llo

w
in

g 
fo

r 
de

vi
at

io
ns

 w
ill

 
be

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
ed

. N
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 o
r 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 a
dj

oi
ni

ng
 t

he
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

ed
 c

or
rid

or
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

la
nd

 f
or

 c
an

al
 

re
st

or
at

io
n.

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
no

t 
co

nn
ec

te
d 

w
ith

 t
he

 c
an

al
 t

ha
t 

w
ou

ld
 p

re
ve

nt
 o

r 
pr

ej
ud

ic
e 

th
e 

re
st

or
at

io
n 

of
 a

 c
on

tin
uo

us
 r

ou
te

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

. 
 

M
M

05
3.

5.
2.

28
 

Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 P

ol
ic

y 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

re
qu

ire
s 

lo
ca

l 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
to

 s
et

 t
hr

es
ho

ld
s 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t 
fo

r 
an

 i
m

pa
ct

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
fo

r 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 f

or
 r

et
ai

l, 
le

is
ur

e 
an

d 
of

fic
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

ou
ts

id
e 

of
 t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
s.

  
In

di
vi

du
al

 t
hr

es
ho

ld
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
se

t 
fo

r 
H

er
ef

or
d 

an
d 

th
e 

m
ar

ke
t t

ow
ns

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s,

 a
nd

 a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 P
la

ce
 S

ha
pi

ng
 p

ol
ic

ie
s:

 
H

er
ef

or
d 

   
 1

25
0 

sq
 m

 7
00

 s
q.

m
 

Br
om

ya
rd

   
   

20
0 

sq
.m

 
Ki

ng
to

n 
   

   
   

 2
00

 s
q.

m
 

Le
db

ur
y 

   
   

   
 5

00
 s

q 
m

 4
00

 s
q.

m
 

Le
om

in
st

er
   

  5
00

 s
q 

m
 4

00
 s

q.
m

 
Ro

ss
-o

n-
W

ye
 5

00
 s

q 
m

 4
00

 s
q.

m
 

 

101



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

G
en

er
al

 P
ol

ic
ie

s 
– 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l Q
ua

lit
y 

M
M

05
4.

LD
1 

Po
lic

y 
LD

1 
– 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
an

d 
to

w
ns

ca
pe

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 a

nd
 to

w
ns

ca
pe

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 a
nd

 a
ch

ie
ve

 a
ll 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

: 
 

 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 th

at
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 o
f t

he
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

an
d 

to
w

ns
ca

pe
 h

as
 p

os
iti

ve
ly

 in
flu

en
ce

d 
th

e 
de

si
gn

, s
ca

le
, n

at
ur

e 
an

d 
si

te
 

se
le

ct
io

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t o
f t

he
 s

et
tin

g 
of

 s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ar
ea

s;
 

 
co

ns
er

ve
 a

nd
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

e 
na

tu
ra

l, 
hi

st
or

ic
 a

nd
 s

ce
ni

c 
be

au
ty

 o
f i

m
po

rt
an

t l
an

ds
ca

pe
s 

an
d 

fe
at

ur
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 A

re
as

 o
f O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

N
at

ur
al

 B
ea

ut
y,

 n
at

io
na

lly
 a

nd
 lo

ca
lly

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

pa
rk

s 
an

d 
ga

rd
en

s 
an

d 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
ar

ea
s;

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ar
ea

’s
 

ch
ar

ac
te

r a
nd

 b
y 

en
ab

lin
g 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 u

se
s,

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t;

  

 
in

co
rp

or
at

e 
ne

w
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

sc
he

m
es

 a
nd

 th
ei

r m
an

ag
em

en
t t

o 
en

su
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
nt

eg
ra

te
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 in
to

 it
s 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
gs

; a
nd

 
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
ex

te
nd

 tr
ee

 c
ov

er
 w

he
re

 im
po

rt
an

t t
o 

am
en

ity
, t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
re

te
nt

io
n 

of
 im

po
rt

an
t t

re
es

, a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t o

f 
tr

ee
s 

lo
st

 th
ro

ug
h 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 n

ew
 p

la
nt

in
g 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 g

re
en

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

 

M
M

05
5.

LD
2 

Po
lic

y 
LD

2 
– 

Bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

 a
nd

 G
eo

di
ve

rs
it

y 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 s
ho

ul
d 

co
ns

er
ve

, r
es

to
re

 a
nd

 e
nh

an
ce

 th
e 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

 a
nd

 g
eo

di
ve

rs
ity

 a
ss

et
s 

of
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

, i
nc

or
po

ra
tin

g 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e:
 

 1.
re

te
nt

io
n 

an
d 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
of

 s
ite

s,
 n

et
w

or
ks

 a
nd

 s
pe

ci
es

 o
f E

ur
op

ea
n,

 n
at

io
na

l a
nd

 lo
ca

l i
m

po
rt

an
ce

 a
nd

 th
os

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
ith

in
 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

 a
nd

 g
eo

di
ve

rs
ity

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
na

tu
re

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
si

te
s 

an
d 

ha
bi

ta
ts

, a
nd

 im
po

rt
an

t s
pe

ci
es

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

ei
r s

ta
tu

s 
as

 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

 
a)

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
ha

t i
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 h
ar

m
 s

ite
s 

an
d 

sp
ec

ie
s 

of
 E

ur
op

ea
n 

Im
po

rt
an

ce
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
; 

b)
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

ha
t w

ou
ld

 b
e 

lia
bl

e 
to

 h
ar

m
 S

ite
s 

of
 S

pe
ci

al
 S

ci
en

tif
ic

 In
te

re
st

 o
r n

at
io

na
lly

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 s

pe
ci

es
 w

ill
 o

nl
y 

be
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 if
 

th
e 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

st
at

us
 o

f t
he

ir 
ha

bi
ta

t o
r i

m
po

rt
an

t p
hy

si
ca

l f
ea

tu
re

s 
ca

n 
be

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 b

y 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

or
 o

th
er

 m
at

er
ia

l c
on

si
de

ra
tio

ns
 

ar
e 

su
ff

ic
ie

nt
 to

 o
ut

w
ei

gh
 n

at
ur

e 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

; 
c)

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
ha

t w
ou

ld
 b

e 
lia

bl
e 

to
 h

ar
m

 th
e 

na
tu

re
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

va
lu

e 
of

 a
 s

ite
 o

r s
pe

ci
es

 o
f l

oc
al

 n
at

ur
e 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

in
te

re
st

 w
ill

 
on

ly
 b

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 if

 th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
ut

w
ei

gh
s 

th
e 

lo
ca

l v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

, h
ab

ita
t  

or
 p

hy
si

ca
l f

ea
tu

re
 th

at
 s

up
po

rt
s 

im
po

rt
an

t s
pe

ci
es

.  

   

102



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

d)
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

ha
t w

ill
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
co

he
re

nc
e 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

ec
ol

og
ic

al
 n

et
w

or
k 

of
 s

ite
s 

w
ill

 o
nl

y 
be

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 

w
he

re
 a

de
qu

at
e 

co
m

pe
ns

at
or

y 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

br
ou

gh
t f

or
w

ar
d.

 
2.

re
st

or
at

io
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
 a

nd
 g

eo
di

ve
rs

ity
 fe

at
ur

es
 o

n 
si

te
 a

nd
 c

on
ne

ct
iv

ity
 to

 w
id

er
 e

co
lo

gi
ca

l n
et

w
or

ks
; a

nd
 

3.
cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 n
ew

 b
io

di
ve

rs
ity

 fe
at

ur
es

 a
nd

 w
ild

lif
e 

ha
bi

ta
ts

. 
W

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l w

ill
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

to
 a

gr
ee

 a
 m

an
ag

em
en

t s
tr

at
eg

y 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
of

, a
nd

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 

ad
ve

rs
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
, b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 a

nd
 g

eo
di

ve
rs

ity
 fe

at
ur

es
.  

  
5.

3.
13

 
D

el
et

e 
la

st
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 
W

he
re

 h
ar

m
 c

an
no

t b
e 

av
oi

de
d,

 c
om

pe
ns

at
or

y 
m

ea
su

re
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 to

 o
ff

se
t a

ny
 lo

ss
es

 o
r a

dv
er

se
 e

ff
ec

ts
. 

 

5.
3.

14
 

D
ep

en
de

nt
 u

po
n 

th
e 

sc
al

e 
an

d 
pr

ox
im

ity
 o

f 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

to
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 o

r 
ge

od
iv

er
si

ty
 f

ea
tu

re
s,

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 s

ee
k 

m
ay

 r
eq

ui
re

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

to
 p

ro
du

ce
 a

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

st
ra

te
gy

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

he
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 fe
at

ur
es

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t.

 S
uc

h 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 m
ay

 i
nc

lu
de

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 u
p-

to
-d

at
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 s

ha
pe

 f
ut

ur
e 

po
lic

y 
re

vi
ew

s 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 
in

fo
rm

 fu
tu

re
 s

ite
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

la
ns

 

 

M
M

05
6.

LD
3 

Po
lic

y 
LD

3 
– 

G
re

en
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 s
ho

ul
d 

pr
ot

ec
t, 

m
an

ag
e 

an
d 

pl
an

 fo
r t

he
 p

re
se

rv
at

io
n 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

an
d 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 n

ew
 g

re
en

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
, a

nd
 s

ho
ul

d 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
: 

1.
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
te

nt
io

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
gr

ee
n 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 c

or
rid

or
s 

an
d 

lin
ka

ge
s;

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 v

al
ue

d 
la

nd
sc

ap
es

, t
re

es
, 

he
dg

er
ow

s,
 w

oo
dl

an
ds

, w
at

er
 c

ou
rs

es
 a

nd
 a

dj
oi

ni
ng

 fl
oo

d 
pl

ai
n;

 
2.

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 o
n-

si
te

 g
re

en
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

, i
n 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 w
ill

 b
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
w

he
re

 th
is

 e
nh

an
ce

s 
th

e 
ne

tw
or

k;
 a

nd
 

3.
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
w

ith
, a

nd
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
to

, t
he

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 g
re

en
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 n
et

w
or

k.
 

 

103



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

M
M

05
7.

LD
4 

LD
4 

H
is

to
ri

c 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t a
nd

 H
er

it
ag

e 
A

ss
et

s 
: 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ro

po
sa

ls
  a

ff
ec

tin
g 

he
rit

ag
e 

as
se

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
w

id
er

 h
is

to
ric

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
: 

1.
 t

he
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 e

nh
an

ce
m

en
t 

of
 p

re
se

rv
e 

or
 w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e 
en

ha
nc

e 
he

rit
ag

e 
as

se
ts

 a
nd

 t
he

ir 
se

tt
in

gs
 t

ha
t 

po
si

tiv
el

y 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
 th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

of
 a

 s
ite

, t
ow

ns
ca

pe
 a

nd
/o

r 
w

id
er

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
ar

ea
s 

in
 a

 m
an

ne
r 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

 
th

ei
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
us

es
 a

nd
 s

ym
pa

th
et

ic
 d

es
ig

n,
 in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 e

m
ph

as
is

in
g 

th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 f
or

m
 a

nd
 f

un
ct

io
n 

w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e 

; 
2.

 t
he

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t 
of

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

th
ei

r 
se

tt
in

gs
 t

hr
ou

gh
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
us

es
 a

nd
 s

ym
pa

th
et

ic
 d

es
ig

n 
w

he
re

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
ex

is
t, 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

 t
he

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 a

nd
 l

oc
al

 d
is

tin
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 t

he
 t

ow
ns

ca
pe

 o
r 

w
id

er
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 w
ith

in
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

ar
ea

s;
 

3.
 u

se
 th

e 
re

te
nt

io
n,

 re
pa

ir 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
us

e 
of

  h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

s 
a 

fo
cu

s 
fo

r w
id

er
 re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
sc

he
m

es
; a

nd
 

4.
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 re
co

rd
in

g 
of

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
s 

in
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

m
pa

ct
, i

n 
ca

se
s 

w
he

re
 a

gr
ee

d 
lo

ss
 o

cc
ur

s 
re

co
rd

 a
nd

 a
dv

an
ce

 th
e 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 t
he

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 o
f 

an
y 

he
rit

ag
e 

as
se

ts
 t

o 
be

 lo
st

 (w
ho

lly
 o

r 
in

 p
ar

t)
 a

nd
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

th
is

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
or

 a
rc

hi
ve

 g
en

er
at

ed
 p

ub
lic

ly
 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
; a

nd
  

5.
 w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, i
m

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 th

e 
he

rit
ag

e 
as

se
t.

 
  Th

e 
sc

op
e 

of
 t

he
 w

or
ks

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

, 
co

ns
er

ve
 a

nd
 e

nh
an

ce
 h

er
ita

ge
 a

ss
et

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

se
tt

in
gs

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 t
o 

th
ei

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

sc
he

m
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

em
ph

as
is

e 
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 f

or
m

 a
nd

 f
un

ct
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 a
ss

et
 a

nd
, 

w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
, 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 th
em

. 

            

5.
3.

27
 

D
el

et
e 

fin
al

 tw
o 

se
nt

en
ce

s 
W

he
re

 it
 is

 a
gr

ee
d 

th
at

 a
 h

er
ita

ge
 a

ss
et

 c
an

no
t 

be
 r

et
ai

ne
d,

 t
he

n 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

in
cl

ud
es

, a
s 

a 
m

in
im

um
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t,

 t
he

 r
ec

or
di

ng
 o

f 
m

at
er

ia
l 

th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

lo
st

. O
th

er
 m

iti
ga

to
ry

 o
r c

om
pe

ns
at

or
y 

m
ea

su
re

s 
m

ay
 h

ow
ev

er
 b

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

 
Re

pl
ac

e 
th

es
e 

se
nt

en
ce

s 
w

it
h:

 
‘W

he
re

 t
he

 lo
ss

 o
f 

or
 s

ub
st

an
tia

l h
ar

m
 t

o 
a 

he
rit

ag
e 

as
se

t 
or

 it
s 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

 is
 o

ut
w

ei
gh

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 b
en

ef
its

 o
f 

a 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
 

w
hi

ch
 is

 a
llo

w
ed

 t
o 

pr
oc

ee
d,

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

sh
al

l, 
in

 a
 m

an
ne

r 
pr

op
or

tio
na

te
 t

o 
its

 im
po

rt
an

ce
, r

ec
or

d 
an

d 
ad

va
nc

e 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 t

he
 h

er
ita

ge
 

as
se

t.
 T

hi
s 

ev
id

en
ce

 s
ha

ll 
be

 m
ad

e 
pu

bl
ic

ly
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
no

rm
al

ly
 t

hr
ou

gh
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 H
is

to
ric

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

Re
co

rd
, a

 m
us

eu
m

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
lo

ca
l 

ar
ch

iv
e 

as
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
.’ 

  

104



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

M
M

05
8.

SD
1 

Po
lic

y 
SD

1 
– 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

En
er

gy
 E

ff
ic

ie
nc

y 
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

sh
ou

ld
 in

cl
ud

e 
hi

gh
 q

ua
lit

y 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
de

si
gn

 t
ha

t 
al

so
 c

re
at

es
 a

 s
af

e,
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
w

el
l i

nt
eg

ra
te

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
cr

ea
te

 
sa

fe
, s

us
ta

in
ab

le
, w

el
l i

nt
eg

ra
te

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ts
 fo

r 
al

l m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 c

om
m

un
ity

. I
n 

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 t
hi

s,
 a

ll 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

sh
ou

ld
 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
:  

  
en

su
re

 th
at

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 m

ak
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 u
se

 o
f l

an
d 

- t
ak

in
g 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
on

te
xt

 a
nd

 s
ite

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s,

  
 

ne
w

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
lo

ca
l d

is
tin

ct
iv

en
es

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
in

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

lo
ca

l a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 d

et
ai

lin
g 

an
d 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 

re
sp

ec
tin

g 
sc

al
e,

 h
ei

gh
t,

 p
ro

po
rt

io
ns

 a
nd

 m
as

si
ng

 o
f 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

w
hi

le
 m

ak
in

g 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 t

he
 a

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

 
di

ve
rs

ity
 a

nd
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 o
f 

th
e 

ar
ea

 in
cl

ud
in

g,
 w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, t
hr

ou
gh

 in
no

va
tiv

e 
de

si
gn

; b
e 

de
si

gn
ed

 t
o 

pr
es

er
ve

 a
nd

 e
nh

an
ce

 lo
ca

lly
 

di
st

in
ct

iv
e 

bu
ilt

, h
is

to
ric

 a
nd

 n
at

ur
al

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s 

of
 a

 s
ite

 a
nd

 it
s 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r 

m
ak

e 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 t

he
 a

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

 
di

ve
rs

ity
 a

nd
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 o
f t

he
 a

re
a 

th
ro

ug
h 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 la

yo
ut

, s
iti

ng
, s

ca
le

, h
ei

gh
t,

 p
ro

po
rt

io
ns

 a
nd

 m
as

si
ng

, o
rie

nt
at

io
n,

 u
se

, a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 

de
ta

ili
ng

, l
an

ds
ca

pi
ng

 a
nd

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
d 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

m
en

ity
 fo

r e
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
pr

op
os

ed
 re

si
de

nt
s;

  
 

en
su

re
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

do
es

 n
ot

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
, 

or
 s

uf
fe

r 
fr

om
, 

ad
ve

rs
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

ar
is

in
g 

fr
om

 n
oi

se
, 

lig
ht

 o
r 

ai
r 

co
nt

am
in

at
io

n,
 l

an
d 

in
st

ab
ili

ty
 o

r c
au

se
 g

ro
un

d 
w

at
er

 p
ol

lu
tio

n;
  

 
w

he
re

 c
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 l

an
d 

is
 p

re
se

nt
, 

un
de

rt
ak

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 r
em

ed
ia

tio
n 

w
he

re
 i

t 
ca

n 
be

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

d 
th

at
 t

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e;
 ;

 i
n 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 o
n 

co
nt

am
in

at
ed

 la
nd

, i
t i

s 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

th
at

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 re
m

ed
ia

tio
n 

ca
n 

be
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 d
is

tin
ct

iv
e 

fe
at

ur
es

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
nd

 th
ei

r s
et

tin
g 

ar
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

de
d 

an
d 

w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
, r

es
to

re
d;

 
 

ut
ili

se
 p

hy
si

ca
l s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 m
ea

su
re

s 
th

at
 in

cl
ud

e,
 in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
, o

rie
nt

at
io

n 
of

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
, t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f 

w
at

er
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

m
ea

su
re

s,
 

st
or

ag
e 

fo
r b

ic
yc

le
s 

an
d 

w
as

te
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r r
ec

yc
lin

g,
 a

nd
 e

na
bl

in
g 

re
ne

w
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
an

d 
en

er
gy

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

; 
 

m
in

im
is

e 
re

so
ur

ce
 u

se
 a

nd
 c

ar
bo

n 
di

ox
id

e 
em

is
si

on
s 

by
 m

ax
im

is
in

g 
th

e 
en

er
gy

 a
nd

 w
at

er
 e

ff
ic

ie
nc

y 
of

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 p

rio
rit

is
in

g 
a 

“f
ab

ric
 fi

rs
t”

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
. W

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 o

n-
si

te
 re

ne
w

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
sh

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

; 
 

al
lo

w
 e

as
y 

ac
ce

ss
 f

or
 a

ll 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

fa
ci

lit
at

in
g 

sh
or

te
r 

lin
ks

 b
et

w
ee

n 
de

st
in

at
io

ns
, 

an
d 

al
lo

w
in

g 
fo

r a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 tr

an
sp

or
t m

od
es

 
 

op
tim

is
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

la
nd

 a
nd

/o
r b

ui
ld

in
gs

; 
 

cr
ea

te
 s

af
e 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ts
, 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 c

rim
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y 

an
d 

th
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 e

st
ab

lis
hm

en
ts

 w
he

re
 

ha
za

rd
ou

s 
su

bs
ta

nc
es

 a
re

 p
re

se
nt

 t
ha

t 
m

in
im

is
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 f
or

 c
rim

e 
an

d 
an

tis
oc

ia
l 

be
ha

vi
ou

r 
by

 i
nc

or
po

ra
tin

g 
Se

cu
re

d 
by

 D
es

ig
n 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
, a

nd
 c

on
si

de
r t

he
 in

co
rp

or
at

io
n 

of
 fi

re
 s

af
et

y 
m

ea
su

re
s;

 
 

en
su

rin
g 

de
si

gn
s 

ca
n 

be
 e

as
ily

 a
da

pt
ed

 a
nd

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
ne

w
 t

ec
hn

ol
og

ie
s 

to
 m

ee
t 

ch
an

gi
ng

 n
ee

ds
 t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t 
th

e 
lif

et
im

e 
of

 t
he

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t;
 a

nd
 

 
ut

ili
se

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
m

et
ho

ds
 w

hi
ch

 m
in

im
is

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 n
on

-r
en

ew
ab

le
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 m
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 r
ec

yc
le

d 
an

d 

 

105



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

su
st

ai
na

bl
y 

so
ur

ce
d 

m
at

er
ia

ls
; 

 
th

at
 th

e 
de

si
gn

 o
f t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

s 
re

si
lie

nt
 to

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

m
in

im
is

in
g 

flo
od

 ri
sk

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 p

ol
ic

y 
SD

3;
 a

nd
 

 
in

cl
ud

e 
el

em
en

ts
 th

at
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 g
re

en
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 p

ol
ic

y 
LD

3.
 

 Al
l 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 m

at
er

ia
l 

ch
an

ge
s 

of
 u

se
, 

w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 t
o 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 h
ow

 t
he

 a
bo

ve
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
en

er
gy

 e
ff

ic
ie

nc
y 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 fa
ct

or
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 fr
om

 th
e 

ou
ts

et
. 

5.
3.

32
 

Am
en

d 
se

co
nd

 s
en

te
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

po
lic

y 
on

w
ar

ds
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

In
 t

er
m

s 
of

 e
ne

rg
y 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n,

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 in

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 t
ha

t 
ac

hi
ev

e 
‘P

as
si

vh
au

s’
 a

cc
re

di
ta

tio
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

su
pp

or
te

d,
 u

nl
es

s 
th

e 
ad

ve
rs

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e,

 to
w

ns
ca

pe
 o

r v
is

ua
l i

m
pa

ct
s 

of
 d

oi
ng

 s
o 

w
ou

ld
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 o

ut
w

ei
gh

 th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

of
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 P
as

si
vh

au
s.

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 in

 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 th

at
 a

ch
ie

ve
 o

th
er

 a
cc

re
di

ta
tio

n 
st

an
da

rd
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 B
RE

EA
M

 a
nd

 th
e 

Co
de

 fo
r S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 H

om
es

, a
cc

re
di

te
d 

st
an

da
rd

s 
of

 
en

er
gy

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 c
ov

er
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

cr
ite

ria
, 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 w

he
re

 t
he

 l
ev

el
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

m
at

er
ia

lly
 

ex
ce

ed
s 

th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
Re

gu
la

tio
ns

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 re

le
va

nt
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 in
 p

la
ce

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e.

 

 

5.
3.

33
 

Am
en

d 
fir

st
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 
La

rg
e-

sc
al

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 (n

on
-r

es
id

en
tia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 e

xc
ee

di
ng

 1
,0

00
 s

qu
ar

e 
m

et
re

s 
gr

os
s 

flo
or

sp
ac

e,
 a

nd
 n

ew
 r

es
id

en
tia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

co
m

pr
is

in
g 

10
 o

r 
m

or
e 

un
its

, 
w

he
th

er
 n

ew
 b

ui
ld

 o
r 

co
nv

er
si

on
) 

w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 t
o 

sh
ou

ld
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 h

ow
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

on
-s

ite
 

re
ne

w
ab

le
 e

ne
rg

y 
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

w
as

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t h
av

e 
al

so
 b

ee
n 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

nd
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
de

si
gn

 o
f t

he
 s

ch
em

e.
 

 

M
M

05
9.

SD
2 

Po
lic

y 
SD

2 
– 

Re
ne

w
ab

le
 a

nd
 lo

w
 c

ar
bo

n 
en

er
gy

 g
en

er
at

io
n 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ro

po
sa

ls
 th

at
 s

ee
k 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 re

ne
w

ab
le

 a
nd

 lo
w

 c
ar

bo
n 

en
er

gy
 ta

rg
et

s 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

U
K 

Re
ne

w
ab

le
 E

ne
rg

y 
St

ra
te

gy
 (o

r a
ny

 
fu

tu
re

 n
at

io
na

l e
qu

iv
al

en
t)

 w
ill

 b
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
w

he
re

 th
ey

 m
ee

t t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
cr

ite
ria

: 
1.

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 d
oe

s 
no

t a
dv

er
se

ly
 im

pa
ct

 u
po

n 
th

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 fo
r i

nt
er

na
tio

na
l o

r n
at

io
na

l d
es

ig
na

te
d 

na
tu

ra
l a

nd
 h

is
to

ric
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

he
rit

ag
e 

as
se

ts
; 

2.
th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 d

oe
s 

no
t a

dv
er

se
ly

 a
ff

ec
t r

es
id

en
tia

l a
m

en
ity

; 
3.

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 d
oe

s 
no

t r
es

ul
t i

n 
an

y 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
et

rim
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
 u

po
n 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r o
f t

he
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

an
d 

th
e 

bu
ilt

 o
r h

is
to

ric
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t;

 a
nd

 
th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 c

an
 b

e 
co

nn
ec

te
d 

ef
fic

ie
nt

ly
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
na

tio
na

l g
rid

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 u

nl
es

s 
it 

ca
n 

be
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
d 

th
at

 e
ne

rg
y 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 u
se

d 
on

-s
ite

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f a

 s
pe

ci
fic

 e
nd

 u
se

r.
 

 

M
M

06
0.

N
ew

 p
ar

a 
A

dd
 n

ew
 p

ar
a 

be
fo

re
 5

.3
.4

6 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

  
*.

*.
**

 T
he

 ‘S
eq

ue
nt

ia
l T

es
t’ 

is
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 

10
0-

10
4 

of
 th

e 
N

PP
F.

   
Th

is
 a

im
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
in

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t d

oe
s 

no
t t

ak
e 

pl
ac

e 
in

 a
re

as
 a

t 
hi

gh
 r

is
k 

of
 f

lo
od

in
g 

by
 d

ire
ct

in
g 

it 
aw

ay
 f

ro
m

 a
re

as
 a

t 
hi

gh
es

t 
ris

k.
 A

re
as

 a
t 

ris
k 

of
 f

lo
od

in
g 

ar
e 

th
os

e 
fa

lli
ng

 w
ith

in
 F

lo
od

 Z
on

es
 2

 

 

106



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

an
d 

3 
as

 d
ef

in
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t A

ge
nc

y’
s 

w
eb

si
te

.  
Fl

oo
d 

Zo
ne

 1
 is

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f l

ow
 p

ro
ba

bi
lit

y 
of

 fl
oo

di
ng

 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 b
e 

us
ed

 in
 

pr
ef

er
en

ce
 t

o 
la

nd
 in

 o
th

er
 z

on
es

. 
H

ow
ev

er
 la

nd
 in

 F
lo

od
 Z

on
e 

1 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

ha
ve

 c
rit

ic
al

 la
nd

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

w
hi

ch
 c

an
 b

e 
as

ce
rt

ai
ne

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
La

nd
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

te
am

.  
W

he
re

 n
o 

re
as

on
ab

le
 s

ite
s 

ar
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
w

ith
in

 F
lo

od
 Z

on
e 

1 
th

e 
‘E

xc
ep

tio
n 

Te
st

’ m
ay

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d.

 W
he

re
 t

hi
s 

te
st

 n
ee

ds
 t

o 
be

 a
pp

lie
d 

ce
rt

ai
n 

fo
rm

s 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
m

ay
 b

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 in

 F
lo

od
 Z

on
es

 2
 a

nd
 3

 d
ep

en
di

ng
 u

po
n 

th
ei

r 
le

ve
l o

f v
ul

ne
ra

bi
lit

y.
  T

he
se

 a
re

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 G

ui
da

nc
e 

to
 th

e 
N

at
io

na
l P

la
nn

in
g 

Po
lic

y 
Fr

am
ew

or
k.

 

M
M

06
1.

ID
1 

Po
lic

y 
ID

1-
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 D
el

iv
er

y 
Pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r 

ne
w

 a
nd

/o
r 

th
e 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
, 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
, w

ill
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

co
-o

rd
in

at
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h.
  

W
he

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, 
in

 a
dd

iti
on

 t
o 

pl
an

ni
ng

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 f

or
 e

ss
en

tia
l 

on
-s

ite
 d

es
ig

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 c

rit
ic

al
 i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 d

ev
el

op
er

 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 t

ow
ar

ds
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 t

hr
ou

gh
 s

10
6 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 a

nd
/o

r 
a 

fu
tu

re
 C

om
m

un
ity

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 L

ev
y 

(C
IL

), 
w

ill
 b

e 
se

cu
re

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 n
at

io
na

l p
la

nn
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r r

el
ev

an
t l

eg
is

la
tio

n.
 

A 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 O

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 P
la

nn
in

g 
D

oc
um

en
t (

SP
D

) w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 d
et

ai
ls

 o
f t

he
 ty

pe
 a

nd
 s

ca
le

 o
f o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 th

at
 m

ay
 a

pp
ly

.  
Pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r n

ew
, a

nd
 th

e 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
, s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
, w

ill
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

co
-o

rd
in

at
ed

 a
pp

ro
ac

h.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e,

 in
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 p
la

nn
in

g 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

fo
r e

ss
en

tia
l o

n-
si

te
 d

es
ig

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 c

rit
ic

al
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

: 
1.

co
nt

rib
ut

in
g 

to
w

ar
ds

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 fr
om

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
hr

ou
gh

 a
 m

an
da

to
ry

 ta
rif

f s
ys

te
m

; 
2.

s1
06

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fo

r s
pe

ci
fic

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 fr

om
 a

ll 
ty

pe
s 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t d

ire
ct

ly
 re

qu
ire

d 
in

 o
rd

er
 fo

r t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
o 

be
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 n
at

io
na

l a
nd

 lo
ca

l p
la

nn
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
re

le
va

nt
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n;
 

3.
ut

ili
si

ng
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t f
un

di
ng

 s
ou

rc
es

; 
4.

lin
ki

ng
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 p
ub

lic
 in

ve
st

m
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
es

; 
5.

co
-o

rd
in

at
in

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l i
nv

es
tm

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 o

f t
he

 g
as

, e
le

ct
ric

, t
el

ec
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 w
at

er
 in

du
st

rie
s 

(u
til

iti
es

); 
6.

ot
he

r n
ew

 fu
nd

in
g 

or
 in

no
va

tiv
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

pp
ro

ac
he

s.
 

Ta
rif

f c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 s
er

vi
ce

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
: 

a)
ph

ys
ic

al
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 in
cl

ud
in

g;
 im

pr
ov

ed
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n,
 c

yc
le

 a
nd

 b
us

 ro
ut

es
, t

he
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
H

er
ef

or
d 

w
es

te
rn

 re
lie

f r
oa

d;
 th

e 
ci

ty
 li

nk
 ro

ad
, p

ar
k 

an
d 

rid
e 

si
te

s 
an

d 
tr

an
sp

or
t h

ub
; s

tr
at

eg
ic

 s
ew

er
ag

e;
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 fl
oo

d 
de

fe
nc

e,
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

ar
is

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

N
ut

rie
nt

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n;
 re

ne
w

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n;
 a

nd
 b

ro
ad

ba
nd

 p
ro

vi
si

on
; 

b)
so

ci
al

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 in

cl
ud

in
g;

 e
du

ca
tio

n,
 h

ea
lth

ca
re

, e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

se
rv

ic
es

, c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 b
ui

lt 
sp

or
ts

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 c

ul
tu

ra
l f

ac
ili

tie
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

bu
ilt

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 re
al

m
; a

nd
 

 

107



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

c)
gr

ee
n 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 in

cl
ud

in
g;

 p
la

y 
ar

ea
s,

 p
ar

ks
, a

llo
tm

en
ts

 a
nd

 g
re

en
 s

pa
ce

s,
  s

po
rt

in
g 

an
d 

re
cr

ea
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

ha
bi

ta
t c

re
at

io
n.

 
Se

ct
io

n 
10

6 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 s
er

vi
ce

 s
pe

ci
fic

 o
n 

an
d 

of
f s

ite
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 to
 in

cl
ud

e;
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g,
 w

at
er

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t i
nc

lu
di

ng
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 d

ra
in

ag
e,

 s
af

e 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 tr
an

sp
or

t l
in

ks
, e

ss
en

tia
l u

til
iti

es
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
), 

pl
ay

, s
po

rt
 a

nd
 re

cr
ea

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 la

nd
sc

ap
in

g 
an

d 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 p
ay

m
en

ts
.  

 

M
M

06
2.

3.
11

3 
A

dd
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

se
nt

en
ce

 a
t t

he
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 
‘W

he
re

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
to

 N
at

io
na

l p
la

nn
in

g 
po

lic
y 

th
e 

an
nu

al
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
if 

th
e 

po
lic

ie
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
e 

sp
at

ia
l 

st
ra

te
gy

 re
qu

ire
 re

vi
ew

.’ 
  

An
d 

am
en

d:
 

So
ci

al
 

 
ho

us
in

g 
co

m
pl

et
io

ns
 b

y 
si

ze
, t

yp
e 

an
d 

te
nu

re
 a

nd
 lo

ca
tio

n 
– 

as
se

ss
ed

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 5
 y

ea
r p

er
io

ds
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
er

e 
re

m
ai

ns
 

a 
fle

xi
bl

e 
su

pp
ly

 o
f a

va
ila

bl
e 

an
d 

de
liv

er
ab

le
 la

nd
 fo

r h
ou

si
ng

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

co
un

ty
;”

 
 

 

M
M

06
3.

N
ew

 p
ar

a 
In

se
rt

 a
 n

ew
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 to
 fo

llo
w

 a
ft

er
 P

ar
a 

4.
5.

5 
to

 re
ad

: 
*.

*.
* 

  
Th

e 
fig

ur
es

 f
or

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
(a

s 
w

ith
 h

ou
si

ng
) 

ar
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

w
ho

le
 p

la
n 

pe
rio

d 
an

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

on
ito

re
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

An
nu

al
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
Pr

oc
es

s 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
nd

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r m

an
ag

em
en

t m
ea

su
re

s.
 “

 
 

 

M
M

06
4.

6.
23

 
If 

it 
ap

pe
ar

s 
th

at
 th

e 
po

lic
ie

s 
ar

e 
no

t b
ei

ng
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e,

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ac

tio
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

ta
ke

n:
 

 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 p

ol
ic

y 
or

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
co

nc
er

ne
d 

an
d 

of
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

fu
ll 

or
 p

ar
tia

l r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 

pl
an

; a
nd

; 
 

ac
tio

ns
 to

 s
lo

w
 o

r s
pe

ed
 u

p 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 la
nd

 fo
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
t d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

th
e 

ra
te

 o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

ch
ie

ve
d;

 a
nd

/o
r 

 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
or

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 la

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
fu

rt
he

r D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
nd

/o
r N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
s.

  

 

M
M

06
5.

Ap
pe

nd
ic

es
 

 D
EL

ET
E 

 
TE

XT
 

N
ew

 a
pp

en
di

ce
s 

(3
-8

) w
ill

 b
e 

ad
de

d 
to

 th
e 

Co
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y.
  T

he
 c

on
te

nt
s 

of
 A

pp
en

di
x 

1 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

up
da

te
d.

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 1

 –
 S

av
ed

 U
ni

ta
ry

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
(2

00
7)

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

op
os

al
s 

m
ap

s 
 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
to

 b
e 

re
pl

ac
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
– 

Co
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y)
 

 

 

108



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
 –

 E
vi

de
nc

e 
Ba

se
   

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 3
 –

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n,
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Pl

an
  

 Ap
pe

nd
ix

 4
 –

 D
et

ai
le

d 
An

nu
al

is
ed

 T
ra

je
ct

or
y 

 Ap
pe

nd
ix

 5
 –

 S
S3

: N
ec

es
sa

ry
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 fo
r S

tr
at

eg
ic

 S
ite

s 
 Ap

pe
nd

ix
 6

 –
 S

S5
: K

ey
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t S

ite
s 

D
el

iv
er

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 T

im
es

ca
le

s 
 Ap

pe
nd

ix
 7

 –
 H

ou
si

ng
 V

al
ue

 A
re

as
 b

y 
Po

st
co

de
 

 Ap
pe

nd
ix

 8
 –

 S
ite

s 
w

ith
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l D

es
ig

na
tio

ns
  

A-
 

Co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

Ar
ea

s 
B-

 
Sc

he
du

le
d 

An
ci

en
t M

on
um

en
ts

 (S
AM

s)
 

C-
 

Re
gi

st
er

ed
 H

is
to

ric
 P

ar
ks

 a
nd

 G
ar

de
ns

 
D

- 
U

nr
eg

is
te

re
d 

Pa
rk

s 
an

d 
G

ar
de

ns
 

E-
 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

re
as

 o
f C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

(S
AC

s)
 

F-
 

Si
te

s 
of

 S
pe

ci
al

 S
ci

en
tif

ic
 In

te
re

st
 (S

SS
Is

) 
G

- 
N

at
io

na
l N

at
ur

e 
Re

se
rv

es
 (N

N
Rs

) 
H

- 
Lo

ca
l N

at
ur

e 
Re

se
rv

es
 (L

N
Rs

) 
I- 

Sp
ec

ia
l W

ild
lif

e 
Si

te
s 

(S
W

S)
 

J-
 

Lo
ca

l G
eo

lo
gi

ca
l S

ite
s 

   
K-

 
Ar

ea
s 

of
 A

nc
ie

nt
 a

nd
 S

em
i-N

at
ur

al
 W

oo
dl

an
d 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Se

ct
io

n 
5:

 G
en

er
al

 P
ol

ic
ie

s 
– 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l Q
ua

lit
y 

M
M

06
6.

 
SD

3 
Am

en
d 

bu
lle

t 6
:  

6.
w

at
er

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 a
ll 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
, s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
: 

  

109



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
 

 

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t s
ho

ul
d 

ac
hi

ev
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 - 
O

pt
io

na
l T

ec
hn

ic
al

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 - 

W
at

er
 e

ff
ic

ie
nc

y 
st

an
da

rd
s 

 to
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 o

f C
od

e 
fo

r S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 H
om

es
 L

ev
el

 5
 fo

r w
at

er
 e

ff
ic

ie
nc

y 
(8

0 
lit

re
s/

pe
rs

on
/d

ay
)  

At
 th

e 
tim

e 
of

 a
do

pt
io

n 
th

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

 w
at

er
 e

ff
ic

ie
nc

y 
st

an
da

rd
s 

w
er

e 
11

0 
lit

re
s/

pe
rs

on
/d

ay
; o

r 

 
no

n-
re

si
de

nt
ia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 1

,0
00

 s
q.

m
 g

ro
ss

 fl
oo

rs
pa

ce
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 o

f B
RE

EA
M

 3
 c

re
di

ts
 fo

r w
at

er
 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

as
 a

 m
in

im
um

; 

 

M
M

06
7.

 
Pa

ra
. 

5.
3.

40
 

Ad
d 

to
 e

nd
 o

f p
ar

ag
ra

ph
: 

 In
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f w
in

d 
en

er
gy

, N
at

io
na

l P
la

nn
in

g 
Po

lic
y 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

ga
in

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r 

w
in

d 
en

er
gy

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
cl

ea
rly

 i
n 

a 
Lo

ca
l 

or
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 P
la

n.
  

Th
er

ef
or

e,
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
w

he
th

er
 t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
su

ita
bl

e 
ar

ea
s 

fo
r 

w
in

d 
en

er
gy

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 R

ur
al

 A
re

as
 S

ite
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 D

oc
um

en
t 

or
 

ot
he

r 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pl

an
 d

oc
um

en
t.

  N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

s 
al

so
 h

av
e 

th
e 

ab
ili

ty
 t

o 
co

ns
id

er
 id

en
tif

yi
ng

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
si

te
s 

fo
r w

in
d 

en
er

gy
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t.

 

 

 

SD
2 

Ad
d 

to
 e

nd
 o

f p
ol

ic
y:

  

In
 th

e 
ca

se
 o

f e
ne

rg
y 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
w

in
d 

po
w

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

, p
er

m
is

si
on

 w
ill

 o
nl

y 
be

 g
ra

nt
ed

 fo
r s

uc
h 

pr
op

os
al

s 
w

he
re

:  

 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 s

ite
 is

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 a
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
or

 o
th

er
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

D
oc

um
en

t a
s 

a 
su

ita
bl

e 
si

te
 fo

r w
in

d 
en

er
gy

 g
en

er
at

io
n;

 a
nd

 

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
, i

t c
an

 b
e 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

d 
th

at
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 im

pa
ct

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

ca
n 

be
 fu

lly
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

, a
nd

 
th

er
ef

or
e 

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 h
as

 th
e 

ba
ck

in
g 

of
 th

e 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

. 

 

110



 
 

 

  
 

  

 

 

H
er
ef
o
rd
sh

ir
e 
L
o
ca

l P
la
n

C
o
re
 S
tr
at
eg

y
M
in
o
r 
M
o
d
if
ic
at
io
n
s

  

 
 

 
 

  

H
er
ef
o
rd
sh

ir
e 
L
o
ca

l P
la
n

C
o
re
 S
tr
at
eg

y 
M
in
o
r 
M
o
d
if
ic
at
io
n
s 

 
O
ct
o
b
er
 2
01

5 

 
AP

PE
N

D
IX

 3
 

H
er
ef
o
rd
sh

ir
e 
L
o
ca

l P
la
n
 

 

111



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 6
5 

M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

5 

  M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
s 

Th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

 li
st

 o
f 

pr
op

os
ed

 m
in

or
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 t

o 
th

e 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y.

  
U

nl
ik

e 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 t
he

y 
do

 n
ot

 r
el

at
e 

to
 t

he
 

so
un

dn
es

s 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

. 

Th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
in

cl
ud

es
 m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 t

ha
t 

ar
os

e 
fr

om
 t

he
 h

ea
ri

ng
 s

es
si

on
s 

th
at

 t
oo

k 
pl

ac
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

10
th

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
an

d 
25

th
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
15

.  
It

 
al

so
 in

cl
ud

es
 m

in
or

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 t
ha

t 
w

er
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 t

he
 E

xa
m

in
at

io
n 

D
oc

um
en

t 
A

10
, S

ch
ed

ul
e 

of
 M

in
or

 C
ha

ng
es

 (
w

he
re

 t
he

se
 h

av
e 

no
t 

be
en

 s
up

er
se

de
d 

by
 o

th
er

 c
ha

ng
es

). 
 M

in
or

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

E.
19

7 
is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

a 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

w
ith

dr
aw

al
 o

f t
he

 C
od

e 
fo

r S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 H
om

es
 b

y 
th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t. 

Th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
al

so
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

 li
st

 o
f f

ur
th

er
 m

in
or

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
ri

si
ng

 in
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

on
 th

e 
Pl

an
’s

 M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
. T

he
 

In
sp

ec
to

r’
s 

Re
po

rt
, (

pa
ra

gr
ap

hs
 4

 a
nd

 1
00

), 
in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 s
uc

h 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 a

re
 a

 m
at

te
r f

or
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il.

 
                      

112



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 6
5 

M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

1.
 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

an
d 

Ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
 

E
.1
 

 
1.

1 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h:
 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

is
 p

re
pa

rin
g 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 p
la

nn
in

g 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 k
no

w
n 

as
 t

he
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
to

 g
ui

de
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

an
d 

ch
an

ge
 in

 t
he

 c
ou

nt
y 

ov
er

 t
he

 n
ex

t 
20

 y
ea

rs
 u

p 
to

 2
03

1.
 O

th
er

 d
oc

um
en

ts
, s

uc
h 

as
 a

 S
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 A

pp
ra

is
al

, w
hi

ch
 f

or
m

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 T
he

 L
oc

al
 P

la
n 

ev
id

en
ce

 b
as

e,
 h

av
e 

al
so

 b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
. T

he
  

is
 m

ad
e 

up
 o

f 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y.

 A
 li

st
 o

f 
al

l t
he

 
Lo

ca
l 

Pl
an

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 b

ei
ng

 p
re

pa
re

d,
 a

nd
 t

he
ir 

tim
et

ab
le

s,
 a

re
 s

et
 o

ut
 i

n 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
do

cu
m

en
t c

al
le

d 
a 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
ch

em
e.

 

To
 

re
m

ov
e 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

te
xt

 
an

d 
to

 c
la

rif
y 

th
e 

te
xt

. 

E
.2
 

 
1.

2 
D

el
et

e 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h:

 
Th

e 
tit

le
 o

f “
Lo

ca
l P

la
n”

, i
nt

ro
du

ce
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

N
at

io
na

l P
la

nn
in

g 
Po

lic
y 

Fr
am

ew
or

k,
 2

01
2 

re
pl

ac
es

 
th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 n

ot
at

io
n 

of
 “

Lo
ca

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Fr

am
ew

or
k”

 o
r 

LD
F 

w
hi

ch
 w

as
 in

 u
se

 w
he

n 
w

e 
st

ar
te

d 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 a

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pl

an
 to

 th
e 

ad
op

te
d 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 U

ni
ta

ry
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 2
00

7.
 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
te

xt
. 

E
.3
 

 
1.

3 
Am

en
d 

 4
th

 b
ul

le
t p

oi
nt

:  

• 
pr

ot
ec

t,
 c

on
se

rv
e 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
e 

va
lu

ed
 n

at
ur

al
, h

is
to

ric
 a

nd
 b

ui
lt 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ts

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

re
as

 
of

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 n
at

ur
al

 b
ea

ut
y,

 s
pe

ci
al

 a
re

as
 o

f c
on

se
rv

at
io

n,
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

es
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
th

e 
co

un
ty

’s
 

in
tr

in
si

c 
at

tr
ac

tiv
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r;
 

To
 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 

th
e 

do
cu

m
en

t. 

E
.4
 

 
1.

6 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Th

e 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

do
es

 n
ot

 a
llo

ca
te

 l
an

d 
di

re
ct

ly
, 

bu
t 

pr
op

os
es

 b
ro

ad
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 d
ire

ct
io

ns
 f

or
 

gr
ow

th
 i

n 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
. 

A 
fu

rt
he

r 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Ar
ea

 P
la

n 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 (

D
PD

) 
an

d 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
s 

(N
D

P)
 a

re
 p

ro
po

se
d 

to
 f

ol
lo

w
 t

he
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 w
ill

 a
llo

ca
te

 l
ar

ge
, 

m
ed

iu
m

 a
nd

 s
m

al
l 

si
te

s 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 f
or

 t
he

 c
ou

nt
y.

 F
ig

ur
e 

1.
1 

sh
ow

s 
ho

w
 t

he
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 f
or

m
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n 
an

d 
ho

w
 it

 re
la

te
s 

to
 o

th
er

 p
la

nn
in

g 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 li
nk

s 
to

 th
e 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 S

tr
at

eg
y.

   

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 g

re
at

er
 c

la
rit

y.
 

113



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 6
5 

M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.5
 

 
1.

9 
D

el
et

e 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

an
d 

tit
le

. 
“C

ha
ng

es
 to

 th
e 

pl
an

 s
in

ce
 th

e 
la

st
 c

on
su

lt
at

io
n 

1.
9 

Th
is

 P
re

 –
 S

ub
m

is
si

on
 P

ub
lic

at
io

n 
ve

rs
io

n 
of

 t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 i

nc
lu

de
s 

bo
th

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

po
lic

y 
gu

id
an

ce
 i

n 
re

sp
on

se
 t

o 
ne

w
 n

at
io

na
l 

gu
id

an
ce

 s
et

 o
ut

 i
n 

th
e 

N
at

io
na

l P
la

nn
in

g 
Po

lic
y 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
20

12
. T

hi
s 

ha
s 

m
ea

nt
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 r
ev

is
ed

 s
et

 o
f p

ol
ic

ie
s 

fr
om

 
th

at
 s

et
 o

ut
 i

n 
th

e 
Pr

ef
er

re
d 

O
pt

io
ns

 (
20

10
) 

an
d 

Re
vi

se
d 

Pr
ef

er
re

d 
O

pt
io

ns
 (

20
11

) 
st

ag
es

 o
f 

th
e 

pl
an

, w
hi

ch
 s

et
 o

ut
 t

o 
co

ve
r 

pu
re

ly
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 is
su

es
. O

th
er

 in
flu

en
ce

s 
ha

ve
 a

ls
o 

af
fe

ct
ed

 t
he

 p
ol

ic
y 

w
rit

in
g,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
is

su
es

 r
ai

se
d 

du
rin

g 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n,
 t

he
 e

m
er

ge
nc

e 
of

 n
ew

 o
r 

up
da

te
d 

ev
id

en
ce

 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

ex
te

rn
al

 i
nf

lu
en

ce
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

ot
he

r 
bo

di
es

’ 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

. 
Th

e 
Su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

Ap
pr

ai
sa

l 
Re

po
rt

 a
cc

om
pa

ny
in

g 
th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t 

de
ta

ils
 i

n 
an

 “
au

di
t 

tr
ai

l”
 h

ow
 t

he
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

in
 t

hi
s 

ve
rs

io
n 

ha
ve

 e
m

er
ge

d 
ov

er
 t

he
 v

ar
io

us
 s

ta
ge

s 
of

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n.

  
La

te
r 

in
 t

hi
s 

se
ct

io
n,

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 1

.2
6 

on
 “

Co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n”

 li
st

s 
th

e 
st

ag
es

 in
 th

e 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t t

o 
da

te
.”

 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
ou

t o
f d

at
e 

te
xt

. 

E
.6
 

 
Fi

g 
1.

1 
D

el
et

e 
an

d 
re

pl
ac

e 
di

ag
ra

m
 

To
 

up
da

te
 

te
xt

 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
cl

ar
ity

. 
E
.7
 

 
1.

10
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

 P
la

nn
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
fo

r 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 h
av

e 
be

en
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
co

nt
ex

t 
of

 n
at

io
na

l 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l P
la

nn
in

g 
Po

lic
y 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
(N

PP
F)

 a
nd

 N
at

io
na

l 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 P

ol
ic

y 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

(N
PP

G
). 

 a
nd

 w
ith

 r
Re

ga
rd

 h
as

 a
ls

o 
be

en
 h

ad
 to

 o
th

er
 p

la
ns

 a
nd

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

pr
od

uc
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
. 

N
at

io
na

l 
po

lic
ie

s 
on

 p
la

nn
in

g 
m

at
te

rs
 a

re
 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 t
he

 N
at

io
na

l 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 P

ol
ic

y 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

(N
PP

F)
 a

nd
 t

he
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
to

 t
he

 
N

PP
F.

  
 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
te

xt
. 

E
.8
 

 
1.

11
 

D
el

et
e 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h:
 

“T
he

 W
es

t 
M

id
la

nd
s 

Re
gi

on
al

 S
pa

tia
l S

tr
at

eg
y 

(R
SS

) w
as

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 p

la
nn

in
g 

fr
am

ew
or

k,
 

ho
w

ev
er

 i
t 

w
as

 f
or

m
al

ly
 r

ev
ok

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
20

th
 M

ay
 2

01
3.

 T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

do
es

 n
ot

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

at
 t

he
 

re
vo

ca
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 R
SS

 w
ill

 u
nd

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

Co
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
as

 it
 h

as
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

its
 o

w
n,

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

ev
id

en
ce

 b
as

e 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

ho
us

in
g 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 s
til

l 
ca

rr
ie

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
so

m
e 

of
 t

he
 o

rig
in

al
 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 o

f 
th

e 
RS

S 
su

ch
 a

s 
ho

us
in

g 
de

liv
er

y 
an

d 
st

re
ng

th
en

in
g 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

of
fe

r 
of

 t
he

 
co

un
ty

.”
 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
te

xt
. 

114



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 6
5 

M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.9
 

 
1.

12
 

Th
e 

pr
in

ci
pa

l r
ol

e 
of

 t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 is

 t
o 

de
liv

er
 t

he
 s

pa
tia

l p
la

nn
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 f

or
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
lo

ca
l c

ha
ra

ct
er

is
tic

s 
of

 th
e 

ar
ea

. T
he

 d
ra

ft
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 It
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 o

f 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

ns
 th

at
 h

av
e 

ta
ke

n 
pl

ac
e,

 o
th

er
 c

ou
nc

il 
pl

an
s,

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 a
nd

 in
iti

at
iv

es
 a

nd
 a

ls
o 

on
 

th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

of
 t

he
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

ba
se

 t
ha

t 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

re
pa

re
d 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 it

. I
t 

is
 a

ls
o 

un
de

rp
in

ne
d 

by
 a

 
Su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

Ap
pr

ai
sa

l w
hi

ch
 a

ss
es

se
d 

th
e 

so
ci

al
, e

co
no

m
ic

 a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

s 
of

 th
e 

Co
re

 
St

ra
te

gy
 t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 d
oc

um
en

t 
an

d 
a 

H
ab

ita
ts

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 a

ss
es

se
d 

an
y 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

 E
ur

op
ea

n 
si

te
s.

   

To
 u

pd
at

e 
te

xt
. 

E
.1
0
 

 
1.

14
 

A 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 T
ra

ve
lle

rs
’ 

Si
te

s 
D

oc
um

en
t 

( 
D

PD
) 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

. 
Th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t 

w
ill

 s
et

 o
ut

 
al

lo
ca

tio
ns

 a
nd

 p
la

nn
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 f

or
 t

ra
ve

lle
rs

 in
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

y 
to

 c
ov

er
 t

he
 

pl
an

 p
er

io
d 

to
 2

03
1.

 T
hi

s 
D

PD
 is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

ch
em

e.
 

To
 c

or
re

ct
 n

am
e 

of
 th

e 
D

PD
 a

nd
 

to
 re

m
ov

e 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
te

xt
. 

E
.1
1
 

 
1.

15
 

Th
e 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

(S
CS

): 
Th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 P
la

n,
 2

01
0 

se
ts

 o
ut

 a
 lo

ng
-t

er
m

 v
is

io
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
un

ty
 u

p 
to

 2
02

0 
an

d 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. 

 T
he

 la
tt

er
 

co
m

pr
is

es
 o

f a
 r

an
ge

 o
f l

oc
al

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 b

us
in

es
s 

gr
ou

ps
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 s
ec

to
r 

bo
di

es
. T

he
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f t
he

 S
CS

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 P

la
n 

is
 t

o 
se

t 
a 

cl
ea

r 
vi

si
on

 a
nd

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
fo

cu
si

ng
 o

n 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

so
ci

al
, e

co
no

m
ic

, a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l w
el

l-b
ei

ng
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a,
 in

 a
dd

iti
on

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
an

 o
ve

ra
rc

hi
ng

 f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

w
ith

in
 w

hi
ch

 o
th

er
 l

oc
al

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

w
ill

 s
it.

 T
he

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

op
os

al
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

w
ill

 h
el

p 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 s
om

e 
of

 th
e 

SC
S 

pr
io

rit
ie

s.
 E

qu
al

ly
, t

he
 th

em
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

SC
S 

ha
ve

 h
el

pe
d 

to
 g

ui
de

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 o
f t

he
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

. 

To
 s

im
pl

ify
 th

e 
do

cu
m

en
t t

itl
e.

 

E
.1
2
 

 
1.

20
 

D
el

et
e 

an
d 

ad
d 

te
xt

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 L

oc
al

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 P

la
n 

(L
TP

) e
st

ab
lis

he
s 

th
e 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 a
ll 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
an

d 
tr

av
el

 fo
r 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
. T

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 th

e 
LT

P 
an

d 
th

e 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

ha
s 

be
en

 
a 

lin
ke

d 
pr

oc
es

s.
 T

he
 c

ou
nc

il'
s 

em
er

gi
ng

 L
TP

 c
ov

er
s 

th
e 

fir
st

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 p

er
io

d 
fr

om
 

Ap
ril

 2
01

23
/1

4 
to

 2
01

5/
16

 a
nd

 is
 a

n 
im

po
rt

an
t 

lo
ca

l d
oc

um
en

t 
w

hi
ch

 s
up

po
rt

s 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 t
he

 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y.

 T
he

 L
TP

 w
ill

 b
e 

up
da

te
d 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
ke

y 
el

em
en

ts
 o

f i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

se
t 

ou
t 

in
 t

he
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
its

 a
do

pt
io

n.
 

To
 

up
da

te
 

te
xt

 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

LT
P.

 

E
.1
3
 

 
1.

22
 

Am
en

d 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

Th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 In
ve

st
m

en
t 

Pl
an

, 2
01

1-
20

26
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
by

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 t
he

 H
om

es
 a

nd
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 A

ge
nc

y.
 It

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

w
ith

in
 

w
hi

ch
 t

he
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 w
ill

 w
or

k 
an

d 
in

ve
st

 t
og

et
he

r 
al

on
gs

id
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 in
 t

he
 p

ub
lic

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
s 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
ke

y 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

in
 m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
vi

si
on

 fo
r H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 

To
 in

cl
ud

e 
en

d 
da

te
 o

f t
he

 L
oc

al
 

In
ve

st
m

en
t P

la
n 

115



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 6
 o

f 6
5 

M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.1
4
 

 
1.

25
 

Am
en

d 
te

xt
: 

Fu
tu

re
 s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
an

d 
pl

an
s 

m
ay

 b
ec

om
e 

re
le

va
nt

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pl
an

 p
er

io
d.

 In
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

Co
un

ci
l, 

as
 t

he
 L

ea
d 

Lo
ca

l F
lo

od
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

(L
LF

A)
 f

or
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

y,
 h

as
 n

ew
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
to

w
ar

ds
 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 lo
ca

l f
lo

od
 r

is
ks

. O
ne

 o
f 

its
 d

ut
ie

s 
is

 t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
Lo

ca
l F

lo
od

 
Ri

sk
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
St

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 it

s 
m

ai
n 

fo
cu

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
on

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

flo
od

in
g 

fr
om

 s
ur

fa
ce

 w
at

er
, 

gr
ou

nd
w

at
er

 a
nd

 o
rd

in
ar

y 
w

at
er

co
ur

se
s.

 T
he

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 p
re

pa
re

d.
 I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 o
ne

 o
f 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 t

ha
t 

is
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 t
he

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

 
co

un
ty

-w
id

e 
Ca

rb
on

 R
ed

uc
tio

n 
St

ra
te

gy
 i

n 
or

de
r 

to
 m

ee
t 

ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 l
in

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 

Cl
im

at
e 

Ch
an

ge
 A

ct
 2

00
8.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 s

ee
k 

a 
34

%
 re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 c

ar
bo

n 
on

 1
99

0 
le

ve
ls

 b
y 

20
20

.  
 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
te

xt
. 

E
.1
5
 

 
1.

26
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

O
ne

 o
f t

he
 m

ai
n 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pl

an
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
is

 t
ha

t 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

re
 in

vo
lv

ed
 

fr
om

 th
e 

ou
ts

et
. T

hi
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 is
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 n
at

io
na

l p
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

in
  

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

of
 C

om
m

un
ity

 In
vo

lv
em

en
t 

20
07

, w
hi

ch
 fo

rm
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n.
 T

o 
en

su
re

 e
ar

ly
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t 
on

 t
he

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 t
he

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 to
 c

om
m

en
t 

an
d 

he
lp

 s
ha

pe
 it

, t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
ke

y 
st

ag
es

 o
f c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

w
er

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

: 

1.
 

Is
su

es
 P

ap
er

 (A
ut

um
n 

20
07

) 

2.
 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

O
pt

io
ns

 P
ap

er
 (S

um
m

er
 2

00
8)

 

3.
 

Pl
ac

e 
Sh

ap
in

g 
Pa

pe
r (

Sp
rin

g 
20

10
) 

4.
 

Pr
ef

er
re

d 
O

pt
io

ns
 (A

ut
um

n 
20

10
) 

5.
 

Re
vi

se
d 

Pr
ef

er
re

d 
O

pt
io

ns
 (A

ut
um

n 
20

11
) 

6.
 

D
ra

ft
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 (S
pr

in
g 

20
13

) 

7.
 

Pr
e-

su
bm

is
si

on
 P

ub
lic

at
io

n 
(S

um
m

er
 2

01
4)

 

8.
 

M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 (S

pr
in

g 
20

15
) 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
te

xt
 

E
.1
6
 

 
1.

27
 

D
el

et
e 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h:
 

Th
is

 s
ta

ge
 i

n 
th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 p
re

pa
rin

g 
th

e 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

is
 t

he
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n 
of

 a
 P

re
-S

ub
m

is
si

on
 

Pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

ve
rs

io
n.

 S
ub

je
ct

 t
o 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 r
es

po
ns

es
 t

o 
th

is
 s

ta
ge

, t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 w

ill
 

th
en

 b
e 

su
bm

itt
ed

 fo
r e

xa
m

in
at

io
n,

 w
ith

 it
s 

fin
al

 a
do

pt
io

n 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 la
te

r i
n 

20
14

.  
 

Re
m

ov
e 

ou
t o

f d
at

e 
te

xt
. 

116



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 7
 o

f 6
5 

M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.1
7
 

 
1.

29
 

D
el

et
e 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
e 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h:
 

En
gl

is
h 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
au

th
or

iti
es

 a
dj

oi
ni

ng
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 a
re

: W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 C

ou
nt

y 
Co

un
ci

l, 
Sh

ro
ps

hi
re

 
Co

un
ci

l a
nd

 G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

 C
ou

nt
y 

Co
un

ci
l, 

w
hi

ch
 d

ea
l w

ith
 w

as
te

 a
nd

 m
in

er
al

s 
m

at
te

rs
. T

he
re

 is
 a

 
Jo

in
t 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 

W
as

te
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

St
ra

te
gy

 
(2

00
4-

20
34

) 
be

tw
ee

n 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
an

d 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 a
nd

 t
hi

s 
ha

s 
ha

d 
gr

ea
t 

su
cc

es
s.

 R
es

id
en

ts
 h

av
e 

he
lp

ed
 t

o 
m

ee
t 

its
 a

im
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
du

ci
ng

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f w
as

te
 th

ro
w

n 
aw

ay
 a

nd
 b

y 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f w
as

te
 re

cy
cl

ed
.  

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
sh

ar
es

 
bo

un
da

rie
s 

w
ith

 
fiv

e 
En

gl
is

h 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
 

an
d 

th
re

e 
W

el
sh

 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
. T

he
 E

ng
lis

h 
au

th
or

iti
es

 a
re

 th
e 

tw
o 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
of

 W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 a

nd
 

G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

 C
ou

nt
y 

Co
un

ci
ls

, 
bo

th
 o

f 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 f
or

 w
as

te
 a

nd
 m

in
er

al
s 

pl
an

ni
ng

. 
M

al
ve

rn
 H

ill
s 

an
d 

Fo
re

st
 o

f 
D

ea
n 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
Co

un
ci

ls
 a

re
 t

he
 r

es
pe

ct
iv

e 
lo

ca
l p

la
nn

in
g 

au
th

or
iti

es
 f

or
 

th
ei

r 
tw

o 
tie

r 
st

ru
ct

ur
e.

 S
hr

op
sh

ire
 C

ou
nt

y 
is

 a
 u

ni
ta

ry
 a

ut
ho

rit
y.

 T
he

 t
hr

ee
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

in
g 

W
el

sh
 

au
th

or
iti

es
 a

re
 M

on
m

ou
th

sh
ire

 C
ou

nt
y 

Co
un

ci
l, 

Po
w

ys
 C

ou
nt

y 
Co

un
ci

l 
an

d 
th

e 
Br

ec
on

 B
ea

co
ns

 
N

at
io

na
l P

ar
k 

Au
th

or
ity

. 

Fo
r g

re
at

er
 c

la
rit

y.
 

E
.1
8
 

 
1.

30
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h:

  
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 c
on

ta
in

s 
pa

rt
s 

of
 t

w
o 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
la

nd
sc

ap
es

 o
f 

na
tio

na
l i

m
po

rt
an

ce
: 

th
e 

W
ye

 V
al

le
y 

an
d 

M
al

ve
rn

 H
ill

s 
Ar

ea
s 

of
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 N

at
ur

al
 B

ea
ut

y 
(A

O
N

B)
. T

he
se

 a
dj

oi
n 

M
on

m
ou

th
sh

ire
 a

nd
 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y 
(s

ee
 F

ig
ur

e 
1.

2)
. T

he
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 m

us
t e

ns
ur

e 
a 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

of
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
ith

in
 b

ot
h 

ar
ea

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
its

 p
la

nn
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s,
 a

nd
 jo

in
t 

w
or

ki
ng

 v
ia

 
th

e 
AO

N
B 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
ps

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

AO
N

B 
 m

an
ag

em
en

t b
oa

rd
s 

pl
an

s.
 

To
 

m
ak

e 
th

e 
te

xt
 

m
or

e 
co

m
pl

et
e 

E
.1
9
 

 
Fi

gu
re

 1
.2

 
Am

en
d 

tit
le

 a
nd

 d
ia

gr
am

 to
 re

ad
: 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 A
dj

oi
ni

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
Ar

ea
s 

of
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 N

at
ur

al
 B

ea
ut

y 
To

 c
la

rif
y 

co
nt

en
ts

 o
f d

ia
gr

am
. 

E
.2
0
 

 
1.

31
 

D
el

et
e 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h:
 

“H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 a

nd
 S

hr
op

sh
ire

 C
ou

nc
ils

 h
av

e 
w

or
ke

d 
cl

os
el

y 
to

ge
th

er
 i

n 
th

e 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 a

 
ho

us
in

g 
ev

id
en

ce
 b

as
e 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

H
ou

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

20
08

 f
or

 t
he

 W
es

t 
H

ou
si

ng
 M

ar
ke

t 
Ar

ea
 a

nd
 o

n 
a 

jo
in

t 
ho

us
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
. J

oi
nt

 w
or

ki
ng

 h
as

 a
ls

o 
ta

ke
n 

pl
ac

e 
hi

st
or

ic
al

ly
 

on
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
of

 t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f 
gy

ps
ie

s 
an

d 
tr

av
el

le
rs

 in
 t

he
 a

re
a.

 A
lo

ng
si

de
 o

th
er

 c
on

st
itu

en
t 

au
th

or
iti

es
, H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 t
he

 M
ar

ch
es

 L
oc

al
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
(L

EP
), 

w
hi

ch
 is

 fu
rt

he
r d

et
ai

le
d 

la
te

r 
in

 th
is

 s
ec

tio
n.

” 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
te

xt
. 

117



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 8
 o

f 6
5 

M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.2
1
 

 
1.

32
 

D
el

et
e 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h:
 

“A
lth

ou
gh

 t
he

 a
dj

oi
ni

ng
 W

el
sh

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

of
 P

ow
ys

 a
nd

 M
on

m
ou

th
sh

ire
 a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 t

o 
a 

di
ff

er
en

t 
na

tio
na

l 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

po
lic

y 
fr

am
ew

or
k,

 
jo

in
t 

w
or

ki
ng

 
on

 
is

su
es

 o
f 

w
at

er
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
w

at
er

 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

is
 b

ei
ng

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t,

 s
in

ce
 a

ll 
th

re
e 

au
th

or
iti

es
 a

re
 s

er
ve

d 
by

 t
he

 s
am

e 
w

at
er

 c
om

pa
ny

 - 
D

w
r 

Cy
m

ru
 W

el
sh

 W
at

er
. 

As
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 i
s 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 t
o 

W
al

es
 r

eg
ar

d 
ha

s 
al

so
 b

ee
n 

ha
d 

to
 i

ts
 

na
tio

na
l g

ui
da

nc
e,

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Po

lic
y 

W
al

es
 (N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
2)

.”
 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
te

xt
. 

E
.2
2
 

 
1.

33
 

D
el

et
e 

pa
rt

s 
of

 b
ul

le
t p

oi
nt

 1
 a

nd
 2

: 
1)
 

Th
e 

Fa
st

er
sh

ire
 P

ro
je

ct
 i

nv
ol

ve
s 

cl
os

e 
co

-o
pe

ra
tio

n 
w

ith
 G

lo
uc

es
te

rs
hi

re
 C

ou
nt

y 
Co

un
ci

l 
to

 
ut

ili
se

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

an
d 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 f

un
di

ng
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

fa
st

er
 b

ro
ad

ba
nd

. 
Th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
ar

ea
 c

ov
er

s 
al

l h
om

es
 a

nd
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 a

nd
 G

lo
uc

es
te

rs
hi

re
 t

ha
t 

w
ou

ld
 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
no

t h
av

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 fa

st
er

 b
ro

ad
ba

nd
 w

ith
ou

t g
ov

er
nm

en
t i

nt
er

ve
nt

io
n 

 2)
  

Th
e 

un
de

rly
in

g 
ai

m
 o

f 
th

e 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

of
 p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
in

 H
er

ef
or

d 
hi

gh
lig

ht
s 

a 
m

ov
e 

to
w

ar
ds

 c
re

at
in

g 
a 

m
or

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
co

un
ty

 w
ith

 im
pr

ov
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
le

is
ur

e,
 a

nd
 c

ul
tu

ra
l 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

, 
th

er
eb

y 
po

te
nt

ia
lly

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
so

m
e 

cr
os

s 
bo

un
da

ry
 m

ov
em

en
ts

. 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 h
as

 
fo

rm
ed

 a
 L

oc
al

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

(L
EP

) 
w

ith
 S

hr
op

sh
ire

 a
nd

 T
el

fo
rd

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f 

th
e 

co
m

m
on

 
is

su
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
ar

ea
s.

 T
he

 M
ar

ch
es

 L
EP

 w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 t
o 

sh
ar

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 c

re
at

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 a

nd
 r

ai
se

 t
he

 p
ro

fil
e 

of
 t

he
 a

re
a.

 O
ne

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
of

 t
hi

s 
is

 t
he

 c
re

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 
H

er
ef

or
d 

En
te

rp
ris

e 
Zo

ne
 a

t 
Ro

th
er

w
as

 (
Fi

g.
1.

3)
. T

he
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Zo

ne
 h

as
 a

 f
oc

us
 o

n 
th

e 
de

fe
nc

e 
an

d 
se

cu
rit

y 
se

ct
or

, 
w

ith
 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
hu

bs
 

fo
cu

se
d 

on
 

ad
va

nc
ed

 
te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
, 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
 a

nd
 f

oo
d 

an
d 

dr
in

k 
te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
. 

It
 i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

w
ill

 
be

co
m

e 
a 

ca
ta

ly
st

 f
or

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t 
th

e 
to

w
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

M
ar

ch
es

 t
hr

ou
gh

 
th

e 
cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 h
ig

hl
y 

sk
ill

ed
 jo

bs
 a

nd
 th

e 
en

co
ur

ag
em

en
t o

f o
ve

rs
ea

s 
in

ve
st

m
en

t. 
Th

e 
M

ar
ch

es
 L

EP
 

Bo
ar

d 
ha

s 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 P

oi
se

d 
fo

r 
G

ro
w

th
, a

 h
ig

h 
le

ve
l p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

ho
us

in
g 

st
at

em
en

t 
w

hi
ch

 s
et

s 
ou

t 
a 

pl
ed

ge
 to

 w
or

k 
pr

o-
ac

tiv
el

y 
w

ith
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 to
 c

re
at

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
LE

P 
ar

ea
. I

t 
ha

s 
al

so
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

a 
dr

af
t 

M
ar

ch
es

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 E

co
no

m
ic

 P
la

n 
20

14
-2

02
0 

w
hi

ch
 p

ro
m

ot
es

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
, 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 r

ef
er

rin
g 

to
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

W
es

te
rn

 R
el

ie
f 

Ro
ad

 a
nd

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t a
t H

er
ef

or
d 

En
te

rp
ris

e 
Zo

ne
.”

 
 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
te

xt
. 

118



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 9
 o

f 6
5 

M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
  

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.2
3
 

 
1.

34
 

Am
en

d 
fir

st
 s

en
te

nc
e 

to
 re

ad
: 

Th
e 

Co
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
m

us
t 

be
 is

 u
nd

er
pi

nn
ed

 b
y 

a 
ro

bu
st

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
ba

se
 t

ha
t 

is
 r

eg
ul

ar
ly

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 t

o 
in

fo
rm

 d
ec

is
io

n 
an

d 
pl

an
 m

ak
in

g.
 T

he
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
op

os
al

s 
m

us
t 

be
 b

ot
h 

in
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

an
d 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 r
el

ev
an

t 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

ev
id

en
ce

. 
Th

e 
lis

t 
of

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 a

nd
 s

ou
rc

es
 m

ak
in

g 
up

 t
hi

s 
ev

id
en

ce
 b

as
e 

is
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
2.

 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
te

xt
. 

E
.2
4
 

 
1.

35
 

Am
en

d 
fin

al
 s

en
te

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h:

 
Th

is
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 d
oc

um
en

t 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

ss
es

se
d 

ag
ai

ns
t 

th
es

e 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

cr
ite

ria
 a

nd
 t

he
 r

es
ul

ts
 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

ca
n 

be
 f

ou
nd

 i
n 

th
e 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
Ap

pr
ai

sa
l 

Re
po

rt
., 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 t

he
 d

ra
ft

 
pr

op
os

al
s 

ar
e 

th
os

e 
th

at
 

pe
rf

or
m

 
m

os
t 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
ily

 
w

he
n 

ev
al

ua
te

d 
ag

ai
ns

t 
re

as
on

ab
le

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
. 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
te

xt
. 

E
.2
5
 

 
1.

37
 

Am
en

d 
w

or
di

ng
: 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

 a
re

 k
ey

 a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 t
o 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 L

oc
al

 P
la

ns
. 

Co
nt

in
uo

us
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

en
ab

le
s 

an
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 e
ff

ec
tiv

en
es

s 
of

 t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 t

he
 

po
lic

ie
s 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
w

ith
in

 it
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 b
ot

h 
de

liv
er

in
g 

an
d 

co
nt

ro
lli

ng
 v

ar
io

us
 ty

pe
s 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

y.
 A

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 T
ow

n 
an

d 
Co

un
tr

y 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 (L

oc
al

 P
la

nn
in

g)
 (E

ng
la

nd
) R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 

20
12

, 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 p
re

pa
re

 a
n 

Au
th

or
ity

 A
nn

ua
l 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
Re

po
rt

s 
co

nt
ai

ni
ng

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 a
ll 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
se

t 
ou

t 
in

 t
he

 lo
ca

l p
la

nn
in

g 
au

th
or

ity
’s

 L
oc

al
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Sc
he

m
e.

 
O

ne
 o

f 
th

e 
ke

y 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
re

po
rt

 is
 t

o 
m

on
ito

r 
po

lic
ie

s 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

w
ith

in
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 
D

oc
um

en
ts

 
an

d 
to

 
re

po
rt

 
on

 
th

ei
r 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

, 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 

w
he

re
 

po
lic

ie
s 

ar
e 

no
t 

be
in

g 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
an

d 
w

hy
 a

nd
 a

ls
o 

w
he

re
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

sp
ec

ify
 a

 t
ar

ge
t 

of
 n

et
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 o

r 
ne

t 
ad

di
tio

na
l a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
dw

el
lin

gs
 to

 b
e 

re
ac

he
d.

 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
te

rm
in

ol
og

y.
 

E
.2
6
 

 
1.

38
 

Am
en

d 
w

or
di

ng
: 

To
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
, a

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
is

 s
et

 o
ut

 a
t 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 e

ac
h 

se
ct

io
n 

an
d 

in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

3 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

af
te

r 
ad

op
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 p
la

n.
 T

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 k
ey

 p
la

n 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 t
ho

se
 t

o 
m

on
ito

r 
th

e 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

of
 t

he
 p

la
n.

 W
he

re
 

po
lic

ie
s 

ar
e 

no
t 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

as
 i

nt
en

de
d,

 t
he

 a
nn

ua
l 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt

 p
ro

ce
ss

 w
ill

 s
ug

ge
st

 t
he

 
ac

tio
ns

 t
ha

t 
ne

ed
 t

o 
be

 t
ak

en
 t

o 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

e 
is

su
es

. 
It

 i
s 

in
te

nd
ed

 t
ha

t,
 i

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 a
nn

ua
l 

m
on

ito
rin

g,
 a

 fi
ve

-y
ea

rly
 c

yc
le

 o
f a

 m
or

e 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 is
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d,
 

w
ith

 d
at

es
 o

f 2
01

9 
an

d 
20

24
. R

ev
ie

w
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 c

om
m

en
ce

 in
 a

dv
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 r
ev

ie
w

 
da

te
s 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
an

y 
ne

w
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

to
 b

e 
ad

op
te

d 
in

 a
 ti

m
el

y 
m

an
ne

r.
 

To
 

up
da

te
 

re
fe

re
nc

es
 

to
 

m
on

ito
rin

g.
  

 

119



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
0 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.2
7
 

 
1.

42
 

In
se

rt
 n

ew
 s

en
te

nc
e 

at
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
: 

If 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

sh
ow

s 
th

at
 r

es
id

en
tia

l 
si

te
s 

ar
e 

co
m

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d 

m
or

e 
sl

ow
ly

 t
ha

n 
pl

an
ne

d,
 t

he
 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Ar

ea
 P

la
n,

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 t

he
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 t

o 
re

vi
ew

 o
th

er
 d

es
ig

na
tio

ns
/p

ol
ic

ie
s 

to
 b

rin
g 

fu
rt

he
r 

si
te

s 
fo

rw
ar

d 
if 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.
 T

he
 m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 P

ol
ic

y 
SS

3 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

be
 u

se
d.

” 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

2.
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

on
te

xt
 

E
.2
8
 

 
2.

2 
In

se
rt

 u
pd

at
ed

 w
eb

 a
dd

re
ss

  h
tt

p:
//

fa
ct

sa
nd

fig
ur

es
.h

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

.g
ov

.u
k/

 
To

 u
pd

at
e 

th
e 

pl
an

 
E
.2
9
 

 
2.

23
 

Am
en

d 
se

co
nd

 s
en

te
nc

e 
to

 re
ad

: 
Th

e 
re

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 H

er
ef

or
d’

s 
liv

es
to

ck
 m

ar
ke

t 
an

d 
Th

is
 s

ch
em

e 
of

fe
rs

 a
n 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 t

o 
tr

an
sf

or
m

 
th

is
 u

nd
er

-u
til

is
ed

 a
re

a,
 r

eg
en

er
at

e 
th

e 
lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
y 

an
d 

w
id

en
 t

he
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

es
 o

ff
er

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ci

ty
, s

tr
en

gt
he

ni
ng

 it
s 

ro
le

 in
 th

e 
co

un
ty

 a
nd

 re
gi

on
. 

Th
e 

re
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 H
er

ef
or

d’
s 

liv
es

to
ck

 m
ar

ke
t 

an
d 

th
e 

op
en

in
g 

of
 t

he
 O

ld
 M

ar
ke

t 
m

ix
ed

 r
et

ai
l a

nd
 

le
is

ur
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
in

 2
01

4 
ha

s 
tr

an
sf

or
m

ed
 a

n 
un

de
r-

ut
ili

se
d 

ar
ea

, 
re

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
th

e 
lo

ca
l 

ec
on

om
y 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
ed

 th
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

es
 o

ff
er

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ci

ty
, s

tr
en

gt
he

ni
ng

 it
s 

ro
le

 in
 th

e 
co

un
ty

 a
nd

 
re

gi
on

. T
he

 O
ld

 M
ar

ke
t d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

ls
o 

an
ch

or
s 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 u
rb

an
 v

ill
ag

e 
to

 th
e 

no
rt

h.
 

 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 a

nd
 r

ef
le

ct
 

th
e 

op
en

in
g 

of
 th

e 
O

ld
 M

ar
ke

t 
 

E
.3
0
 

 
2.

24
 

Am
en

d 
Ta

bl
e 

pr
ec

ed
in

g 
pa

ra
 2

.2
4 

‘E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l q
ua

lit
y 

– 
ke

y 
fa

ct
s’

 
N

at
ur

al
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t:
 

2 
Ar

ea
s 

of
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 N

at
io

na
l N

at
ur

al
 B

ea
ut

y 
(A

O
N

B)
 

 
4 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

re
as

 o
f C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

(S
AC

) 
 

77
 S

ite
s 

of
 S

pe
ci

al
 S

ci
en

tif
ic

 In
te

re
st

 (S
SS

I) 
3 

N
at

io
na

l N
at

ur
e 

Re
se

rv
es

 (N
N

R)
 

77
3 

Lo
ca

l W
ild

lif
e 

Si
te

s 
(L

W
S)

 
13

1 
Lo

ca
l G

eo
lo

gi
ca

l S
ite

s 
  

 H
is

to
ric

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t:

 
58

99
 L

is
te

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
  

26
3 

Sc
he

du
le

d 
An

ci
en

t M
on

um
en

ts
 (S

AM
) 

24
 R

eg
is

te
re

d 
hi

st
or

ic
 p

ar
ks

 a
nd

 g
ar

de
ns

 
64

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
ar

ea
s 

 
 Fl

oo
di

ng
: 

10
%

 o
f l

an
d 

w
ith

in
 F

lo
od

 Z
on

e 
2 

(lo
w

 to
 m

ed
iu

m
 ri

sk
) 

9%
 w

ith
in

 a
 F

lo
od

 Z
on

e 
3 

(h
ig

h 
ris

k)
 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

120



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
1 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.3
1
 

 
2.

24
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 is

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

to
 b

e 
th

e 
W

es
t M

id
la

nd
s’

 m
os

t r
ur

al
 c

ou
nt

y.
 T

he
 c

ou
nt

ry
si

de
 is

 r
ic

h 
an

d 
va

rie
d,

 ra
ng

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

hi
gh

 h
ill

s 
of

 th
e 

bo
rd

er
 a

re
as

 a
nd

 th
e 

dr
am

at
ic

 s
te

ep
 s

lo
pi

ng
 W

ye
 G

or
ge

, t
o 

th
e 

ge
nt

le
 ro

lli
ng

 s
lo

pe
s 

of
 th

e 
G

ol
de

n 
an

d 
Te

m
e 

Va
lle

ys
 a

nd
 th

e 
lo

w
 ly

in
g 

riv
er

 m
ea

do
w

s 
of

 c
en

tr
al

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

. L
ar

ge
 t

ra
ct

s 
of

 t
hi

s 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ar
e 

of
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 w

ith
 t

he
 W

ye
 V

al
le

y 
an

d 
M

al
ve

rn
 

H
ill

s 
ha

vi
ng

 n
at

io
na

l 
AO

N
B 

de
si

gn
at

io
n,

 w
hi

ls
t 

th
e 

ar
ea

 a
lo

ng
 t

he
 w

es
te

rn
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

w
ith

 t
he

 
Br

ec
on

 B
ea

co
ns

 N
at

io
na

l P
ar

k 
is

 a
ls

o 
of

 t
he

 h
ig

he
st

 q
ua

lit
y 

it 
la

ck
s 

an
y 

na
tio

na
l d

es
ig

na
tio

n.
 M

an
y 

an
ci

en
t 

lo
ca

l l
an

ds
ca

pe
s 

co
nt

in
ue

 t
o 

su
rv

iv
e 

in
ta

ct
 in

 t
he

 f
ac

e 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

es
su

re
s 

an
d 

th
e 

co
un

ty
’s

 re
m

ot
er

 a
re

as
 o

ft
en

 p
os

se
ss

 a
 c

on
tin

ui
ty

 a
nd

 tr
an

qu
ill

ity
 th

at
 is

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 s
ca

rc
e 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

E
.3
2
 

 
2.

34
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

As
 a

lre
ad

y 
in

di
ca

te
d,

 t
he

 R
iv

er
 W

ye
 a

nd
 i

ts
 t

rib
ut

ar
ie

s 
ar

e 
am

on
gs

t 
th

e 
m

os
t 

im
po

rt
an

t 
na

tu
ra

l 
as

se
ts

 o
f H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

. H
ow

ev
er

, p
ho

sp
ha

te
 le

ve
ls

 in
 s

m
al

l s
ec

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 R

iv
er

 W
ye

 S
pe

ci
al

 A
re

a 
of

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
(S

AC
) 

ar
e 

pr
es

en
tly

 e
xc

ee
di

ng
 t

he
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 f

or
 t

he
 r

iv
er

, d
eg

ra
di

ng
 

th
e 

ec
os

ys
te

m
. T

hi
s 

is
 t

he
 r

es
ul

t 
of

 c
on

tr
ol

le
d 

w
as

te
 w

at
er

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 r

es
id

en
tia

l 
an

d 
in

du
st

ria
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l p
ra

ct
ic

es
 in

 t
he

 c
at

ch
m

en
t 

ar
ea

. T
he

re
fo

re
, t

o 
en

su
re

 
al

l s
ec

tio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

Ri
ve

r 
W

ye
 S

AC
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
Ri

ve
r 

Lu
gg

 s
ec

tio
n)

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
fa

vo
ur

ab
le

 c
on

di
tio

n 
ph

os
ph

at
e 

ta
rg

et
 it

 is
 e

ss
en

tia
l t

ha
t f

ut
ur

e 
in

pu
ts

 a
re

 c
on

tr
ol

le
d.

 T
he

 c
at

ch
m

en
t o

f t
he

 W
ye

 c
ov

er
s 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 a
re

a 
of

 t
he

 c
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

a 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 is

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pl
an

 p
er

io
d 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

121



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
2 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.3
3
 

 
2.

36
 

Am
en

d 
Ta

bl
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
2.

36
 ‘S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l i

ss
ue

s,
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

&
 c

ha
lle

ng
es

’ 

• 
Pr

ot
ec

t,
 c

on
se

rv
e 

an
d 

w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e 

en
ha

nc
e 

th
e 

co
un

ty
’s

 ri
ch

 n
at

ur
al

 a
nd

 h
is

to
ric

 a
ss

et
s 

 

• 
Ad

dr
es

s 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 a
nd

 fl
oo

di
ng

 

• 
Pl

an
 fo

r t
he

 p
ot

en
tia

l i
m

pa
ct

 o
f c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 in
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 

• 
En

su
re

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

re
 o

f h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

re
fle

ct
in

g 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 

di
st

in
ct

iv
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r  

• 
U

se
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

ef
fic

ie
nt

ly
 

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
ai

r a
nd

 w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 

• 
Co

nt
in

ue
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

w
as

te
 le

ve
ls

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
a 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

w
as

te
 g

oi
ng

 to
 la

nd
fil

l  

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
, 

an
d 

re
fle

ct
 

re
vi

se
d 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 

de
al

in
g 

w
ith

 
m

in
er

al
s 

an
d 

w
as

te
 is

su
es

. 

3.
 

Vi
si

on
, O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
nd

 S
pa

tia
l S

tr
at

eg
y 

E
.3
4
 

 
3.

6 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
By

 2
03

1,
 d

ec
en

t,
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

m
es

, 
jo

bs
, 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 u

rb
an

 a
nd

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

 t
o 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 a

ll 
se

ct
io

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n,

 
cr

ea
tin

g 
he

al
th

y,
 

sa
fe

 
an

d 
se

cu
re

 
lo

w
 

cr
im

e,
 

in
cl

us
iv

e 
pl

ac
es

 
an

d 
ro

bu
st

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 t

ha
t 

pr
om

ot
e 

go
od

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 w

el
l-b

ei
ng

, m
ai

nt
ai

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 a

nd
 s

el
f-

su
ff

ic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

re
du

ce
 s

oc
ia

l i
so

la
tio

n 

To
 g

iv
e 

cl
ar

ity
 

E
.3
5
 

 
3.

8 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

w
or

ke
rs

 in
 u

rb
an

 a
nd

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
a 

re
du

ce
d 

ne
ed

 t
o 

tr
av

el
 b

y 
pr

iv
at

e 
ca

r 
w

ith
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

“a
ct

iv
e 

tr
av

el
” 

i.e
. 

w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
yc

lin
g 

pr
om

ot
ed

, 
al

on
g 

w
ith

 i
m

pr
ov

ed
 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 t
o 

pu
bl

ic
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

. 
In

 H
er

ef
or

d,
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

an
ag

ed
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 

im
pr

ov
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 a
 b

al
an

ce
d 

pa
ck

ag
e 

of
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 m
ea

su
re

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 r

el
ie

f 
ro

ad
, p

ar
k 

an
d 

rid
e 

ch
oo

se
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

bu
s 

pr
io

rit
y 

sc
he

m
es

. R
es

id
en

ts
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 

to
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 th
e 

sh
ap

e 
of

 th
ei

r l
oc

al
 a

re
a 

th
ro

ug
h 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t i

n 
pl

an
 m

ak
in

g 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

122



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
3 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.3
6
 

 
3.

12
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

H
er

ef
or

d 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 s
tr

on
g,

 s
ub

-r
eg

io
na

l s
ho

pp
in

g,
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t,

 le
is

ur
e 

an
d 

cu
ltu

ra
l f

oc
us

 f
or

 
th

e 
co

un
ty

. 
Co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

in
 

an
d 

ar
ou

nd
 

th
e 

ci
ty

 
ce

nt
re

 
w

ill
 

co
m

pl
em

en
t 

th
e 

hi
st

or
ic

 c
or

e 
in

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 h

om
es

, 
jo

bs
, 

sh
op

s 
an

d 
le

is
ur

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
th

e 
ci

ty
 w

ill
 b

e 
a 

vi
br

an
t 

de
st

in
at

io
n 

of
 c

ho
ic

e 
fo

r 
sh

op
pe

rs
 a

nd
 v

is
ito

rs
 

al
ik

e.
 T

he
 m

ar
ke

t 
to

w
ns

 w
ill

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 t

he
 e

co
no

m
ic

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 t
he

 c
ou

nt
y 

w
hi

ls
t 

be
in

g 
di

st
in

ct
iv

e,
 t

hr
iv

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

ce
nt

re
s 

th
at

 a
re

 b
et

te
r 

lin
ke

d 
to

 t
he

ir 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
hi

nt
er

la
nd

 v
ill

ag
es

 
ru

ra
l s

et
tle

m
en

ts
 t

hr
ou

gh
 e

nt
er

pr
is

e 
hu

bs
, s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 a
nd

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y.

 O
ur

 v
ill

ag
e-

ba
se

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 

w
ill

 
be

 
su

pp
or

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

ne
w

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

liv
e/

w
or

k 
un

its
) 

in
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 to

 fo
st

er
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

ru
ra

l r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

E
.3
7
 

 
3.

16
 

Th
e 

w
or

di
ng

 o
f p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 3
.1

6 
be

 a
m

en
de

d 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

 
“T

he
 a

re
a’

s 
va

lu
ed

 h
is

to
ric

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
nd

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
re

so
ur

ce
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
its

 n
at

ur
al

 
be

au
ty

 a
nd

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 la

nd
sc

ap
e,

 b
io

di
ve

rs
ity

, g
eo

di
ve

rs
ity

, b
ui

lt 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
an

d 
cu

ltu
ra

l h
er

ita
ge

 
w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ot
ec

te
d,

 c
on

se
rv

ed
 a

nd
 e

nh
an

ce
d…

…
” 

To
 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 

th
e 

do
cu

m
en

t 

E
.3
8
 

 
Fi

g 
3.

1 
Th

e 
w

or
di

ng
 o

f o
bj

ec
tiv

e 
12

 to
 b

e 
am

en
de

d 
to

 re
ad

: 
To

 c
on

se
rv

e,
 p

ro
m

ot
e,

 u
til

is
e 

an
d 

en
jo

y 
ou

r 
na

tu
ra

l, 
bu

ilt
, h

is
to

ric
 h

er
ita

ge
 a

nd
 c

ul
tu

ra
l a

ss
et

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
fu

lle
st

 b
en

ef
its

 t
o 

th
e 

w
ho

le
 c

om
m

un
ity

 b
y 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 t
he

 c
ou

nt
y’

s 
cu

rr
en

t 
st

oc
k 

of
 v

al
ue

d 
he

rit
ag

e 
an

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
as

se
ts

 f
ro

m
 l

os
s 

an
d 

da
m

ag
e 

re
ve

rs
in

g 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
tr

en
ds

, 
en

su
rin

g 
be

st
 c

on
di

tio
n 

an
d 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

ex
pa

ns
io

n,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 m

an
ag

in
g 

fu
tu

re
 a

ss
et

s 
 

To
 

m
ak

e 
th

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
e 

m
or

e 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 a
nd

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 

th
e 

N
PP

F 

E
.3
9
 

 
3.

19
 

Am
en

de
d 

te
xt

 in
 p

en
ul

tim
at

e 
se

nt
en

ce
; 

In
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 o

f t
he

 R
ev

is
ed

 P
re

fe
rr

ed
 O

pt
io

ns
, c

om
bi

na
tio

ns
 o

f s
tr

at
eg

ic
 u

rb
an

 
ex

te
ns

io
ns

 a
re

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 in

 H
er

ef
or

d 
an

d 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

t 
to

w
ns

 a
nd

 s
m

al
le

r 
(n

on
-

st
ra

te
gi

c)
 s

ite
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 t
he

 H
er

ef
or

d 
Ar

ea
 P

la
n,

 o
th

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pl
an

 d
oc

um
en

ts
  t

he
 

Br
om

ya
rd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
, 

th
e 

Ru
ra

l 
Ar

ea
s 

Si
te

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 D
oc

um
en

t 
 a

nd
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
ns

. 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

123



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
4 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.4
0
 

 
3.

20
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

Th
e 

sp
at

ia
l 

st
ra

te
gy

 r
ef

le
ct

s 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
an

d 
fu

tu
re

 r
ol

e 
an

d 
fu

nc
tio

n 
of

 a
ll 

se
tt

le
m

en
ts

 i
n 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
. A

 h
ie

ra
rc

hy
 o

f 
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
 w

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
ns

 o
n 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

O
pt

io
ns

 a
nd

 P
la

ce
 S

ha
pi

ng
 P

ap
er

 s
ta

ge
s 

of
 p

ro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
; 

w
ith

 t
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f 

gr
ow

th
 ta

ki
ng

 p
la

ce
 in

 th
e 

ur
ba

n 
ar

ea
s 

of
 H

er
ef

or
d 

an
d 

th
e 

m
ar

ke
t t

ow
ns

 a
t t

he
 h

ig
he

st
 le

ve
l o

f t
he

 
hi

er
ar

ch
y.

 F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

a 
re

vi
se

d 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 o

f t
he

 h
ie

ra
rc

hy
 b

el
ow

 th
e 

m
ar

ke
t t

ow
ns

 le
ve

l a
ft

er
 th

e 
Pr

ef
er

re
d 

O
pt

io
ns

 s
ta

ge
, a

 m
or

e 
lo

ca
lis

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

ha
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
vi

lla
ge

s 
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
 c

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
w

he
re

 p
ro

po
rt

io
na

l 
le

ve
ls

 o
f 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

m
ay

 b
e 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
. 

 T
he

se
 a

re
 d

et
ai

le
d 

in
 t

he
 P

la
ce

 
Sh

ap
in

g 
se

ct
io

n 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

e 
vi

lla
ge

s 
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
du

e 
to

 t
he

ir 
ex

is
tin

g 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 t
og

et
he

r 
w

ith
 t

ho
se

 s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 w
he

re
 s

om
e 

fu
tu

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
ill

 o
ff

er
 t

he
 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 th
em

 to
 b

ec
om

e 
m

or
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e,

 th
us

 s
tr

en
gt

he
ni

ng
 th

ei
r r

ol
e 

lo
ca

lly
 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

E
.4
1
 

 
3.

25
 

D
el

et
e 

th
e 

w
ho

le
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

: 
“F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
ab

ol
iti

on
 o

f 
th

e 
W

es
t 

M
id

la
nd

s 
Re

gi
on

al
 A

ss
em

bl
y 

an
d 

th
e 

fa
ct

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
ad

op
te

d 
Re

gi
on

al
 P

la
n’

s 
ho

us
in

g 
ta

rg
et

 o
nl

y 
w

en
t 

up
 t

o 
20

26
, 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l d

ec
id

ed
 t

o 
co

m
m

is
si

on
 it

s 
ow

n 
te

ch
ni

ca
l a

dv
ic

e 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

 in
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

y 
to

 2
03

1.
  T

he
 s

tu
dy

 a
im

ed
 t

o 
as

se
ss

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ev

id
en

ce
 a

nd
 t

o 
re

co
m

m
en

d 
an

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 le
ve

l o
f g

ro
w

th
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

w
ho

le
 p

la
n 

pe
rio

d 
of

 t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
.”

 
 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

E
.4
2
 

 
3.

26
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
 3

.2
6 

to
 re

ad
: 

Th
e 

Co
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
ho

us
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t 

in
 P

ol
ic

y 
SS

2 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o

f 
th

e 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
re

se
ar

ch
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 L
oc

al
 H

ou
si

ng
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 S
tu

di
es

 (
20

11
, 

20
12

 a
nd

 2
01

4 )
. 

Th
es

e 
re

po
rt

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 e

vi
de

nc
e-

ba
se

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

n 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 le
ve

l o
f h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
de

d 
in

 t
he

 li
gh

t 
of

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
ec

on
om

ic
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l t
re

nd
s.

  
Th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 1

6,
50

0 
ho

m
es

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

20
11

 t
o 

20
31

 w
ill

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
el

y 
as

se
ss

ed
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
un

ty
 s

et
 o

ut
 i

n 
th

e 
20

14
 s

tu
dy

. 
Th

ey
 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gi

es
 a

nd
 r

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

an
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

ba
se

d 
on

 r
ea

lis
tic

 e
co

no
m

ic
 

gr
ow

th
 fo

re
ca

st
s 

ov
er

 th
e 

pl
an

 p
er

io
d.

 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

124



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
5 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.4
3
 

 
3.

28
 

Am
en

d 
Pa

ra
 3

.2
8 

to
 re

ad
: 

“T
he

 L
oc

al
 H

ou
si

ng
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 S
tu

dy
 2

01
1 

an
d 

20
12

 s
et

 o
ut

 p
rin

ci
pl

es
 t

o 
he

lp
 g

ui
de

 t
he

 p
ro

ce
ss

 
of

 id
en

tif
yi

ng
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 le
ve

l o
f 

ho
us

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 p
os

si
bl

e 
po

lic
y 

op
tio

ns
. 

Ec
on

om
ic

 s
ce

na
rio

s 
w

er
e 

th
en

 a
pp

lie
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 fo
re

ca
st

s 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
gr

ow
th

. T
hi

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
an

d 
te

st
in

g 
co

nc
lu

de
d 

th
at

 h
ou

si
ng

 d
el

iv
er

y 
fo

r 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 2
01

1-
31

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 w

ith
in

 a
 r

an
ge

 o
f 

be
tw

ee
n 

14
,4

00
 h

om
es

 (7
20

 p
er

 a
nn

um
) a

nd
 1

8,
00

0 
(9

00
 p

er
 a

nn
um

). 
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l d
et

er
m

in
ed

 t
ha

t 
a 

fig
ur

e 
of

 a
ro

un
d 

16
,5

00
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 w
ou

ld
 m

ee
t 

gr
ow

th
 a

sp
ira

tio
ns

 f
or

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 g
ro

w
th

 in
 t

he
 

lo
ca

l e
co

no
m

y 
an

d 
is

 d
el

iv
er

ab
le

. T
he

 le
ve

l o
f h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 p
ro

po
se

d 
w

ill
 s

up
po

rt
 g

ro
w

th
 in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 t
he

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

of
 a

ro
un

d 
7.

7%
 t

he
re

by
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
ec

on
om

ic
 

gr
ow

th
.  

Su
ch

 a
 le

ve
l w

ou
ld

 g
o 

to
w

ar
ds

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

th
e 

im
ba

la
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

of
 th

e 
co

un
ty

 b
y 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
an

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 m
ix

 o
f 

ho
us

in
g 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
of

 n
ew

 
ho

m
es

 f
or

 p
eo

pl
e 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 a

nd
 y

ou
ng

er
 f

am
ili

es
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
th

is
 is

 a
n 

is
su

e 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
be

yo
nd

 2
03

1 
in

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t p

la
ns

. 
 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

E
.4
4
 

 
3.

30
 

D
el

et
e:

 
Th

e 
ov

er
al

l t
ot

al
 n

um
be

r o
f n

ew
 h

om
es

 to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n 

20
11

 a
nd

 2
03

1 
is

 1
6,

50
0.

 H
ow

ev
er

, 
as

 a
 t

he
re

 a
re

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
 (

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

s)
 t

he
 a

ct
ua

l 
am

ou
nt

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
fr

om
 A

pr
il 

20
13

 is
 le

ss
 a

t 1
3,

66
0 

To
 r

em
ov

e 
re

fe
re

nc
es

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 

be
co

m
e 

ou
td

at
ed

  

E
.4
5
 

 
Fi

g 
3.

4 
D

el
et

e 
 

 H
ou

si
ng

 la
nd

 s
up

pl
y 

po
si

tio
n 

at
 2

01
3 

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

 
al

lo
ca

ti
on

 
Co

m
pl

et
ed

 
20

11
-1

3 
Co

m
m

it
m

en
ts

 
20

13
 

Re
si

du
al

 
ho

m
es

 
ta

rg
et

  2
01

1-
20

31
 

H
er

ef
or

d 
6,

50
0 

22
7 

91
6 

5,
35

7 
Le

om
in

st
er

 
2,

30
0 

65
 

45
3 

1,
78

2 
Ro

ss
-o

n-
W

ye
 

90
0 

54
 

21
6 

63
0 

Le
db

ur
y 

80
0 

17
 

35
 

74
8 

Br
om

ya
rd

 
50

0 
1 

30
 

46
9 

Ki
ng

to
n 

20
0 

5 
24

 
17

1 
Ru

ra
l A

re
as

 
5,

30
0 

17
4 

62
3 

4,
50

3 

To
 r

em
ov

e 
re

fe
re

nc
es

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 

be
co

m
e 

ou
td

at
ed

 

125



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
6 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

To
ta

l 
16

,5
00

 
54

3 
2,

29
7 

13
,6

60
 

 N
ot

e:
 F

ig
ur

es
 a

re
 n

et
 d

w
el

lin
g 

co
m

m
itm

en
ts

. 
 C

om
m

itm
en

ts
 a

re
 n

et
 c

om
m

itm
en

ts
 m

in
us

 5
%

 
re

fle
ct

in
g 

la
ps

ed
 

pe
rm

is
si

on
s.

” 
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

U
ni

ta
ry

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 
pr

op
os

al
s 

w
ith

ou
t 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

 a
re

 n
ot

 i
nc

lu
de

d 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 C
om

m
itm

en
ts

 2
01

3 
to

ta
ls

 (
es

tim
at

ed
 a

t 
64

6 
dw

el
lin

gs
). 

H
ow

ev
er

, u
nt

il 
th

e 
ad

op
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

Co
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
th

ey
 w

ill
 re

m
ai

n 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 a

do
pt

ed
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

la
n.

 

E
.4
6
 

 
3.

31
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

M
or

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
de

ta
ils

 o
f 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
si

te
s 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 h

ou
se

 t
yp

es
, d

en
si

ty
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

n 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
Pl

ac
e-

Sh
ap

in
g 

se
ct

io
n 

an
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 m

as
te

r 
pl

an
ni

ng
. 

 T
he

 
fo

rt
hc

om
in

g 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Ar
ea

 P
la

n 
, t

he
 B

ro
m

ya
rd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
, t

he
 R

ur
al

 A
re

as
 S

ite
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 D
oc

um
en

t 
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
nd

/o
r 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

ns
 w

ill
 id

en
tif

y 
no

n-
st

ra
te

gi
c 

si
te

s 
an

d 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

qu
es

tio
n 

of
 w

he
th

er
 o

r 
no

t t
o 

de
fin

e 
se

tt
le

m
en

t b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

in
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ol
ic

ie
s.

 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

E
.4
7
 

 
3.

35
 

Am
en

d 
Pa

ra
 3

.3
5 

to
 re

ad
: 

“T
he

 d
ec

is
io

n,
 a

t 
th

e 
Re

vi
se

d 
Pr

ef
er

re
d 

O
pt

io
n 

st
ag

e,
 t

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 t

he
 le

ve
l o

f h
ou

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
in

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

 fr
om

 4
70

0 
to

 5
30

0 
w

as
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

tr
yi

ng
 t

o 
be

 m
or

e 
lo

ca
lly

 r
es

po
ns

iv
e 

to
 t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f 

al
l r

ur
al

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

. T
he

 p
la

n 
so

ug
ht

 s
ee

ks
 to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 w
hi

ch
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 a
nd

 
en

ha
nc

ed
 

ac
ce

ss
 

to
 

lo
ca

l 
se

rv
ic

es
 

an
d 

ta
ck

le
d 

is
su

es
 

of
 

ru
ra

l 
ho

us
in

g 
af

fo
rd

ab
ili

ty
, 

gi
vi

ng
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
to

 
th

e 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

. 
Th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
le

ve
l 

of
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 v
ill

ag
es

 s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 w
ill

 s
ub

se
qu

en
tly

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 e

ith
er

 a
 R

ur
al

 A
re

as
 S

ite
 A

llo
ca

tio
ns

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
D

oc
um

en
t  

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
D

oc
um

en
ts

 o
r N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

ns
. 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

126



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
7 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.4
8
 

 
3.

41
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

In
 re

sp
ec

t o
f t

he
 h

ou
si

ng
 ta

rg
et

 fo
r H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 th
e 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
n 

is
 th

at
 th

e 
hi

gh
es

t r
at

e 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 
co

m
pl

et
io

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
la

tt
er

 e
nd

 o
f t

he
 p

la
n 

pe
rio

d.
 T

hi
s 

is
 b

ec
au

se
: 

a)
 

Th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

m
ar

ke
t 

in
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

y 
is

 d
ep

re
ss

ed
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
ra

te
s 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 w
el

l b
el

ow
 

th
e 

ra
te

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l t
ar

ge
t;

 

b)
 

Th
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t 

of
 t

he
 r

ev
is

ed
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

ta
rg

et
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
pe

nd
en

t 
up

on
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
ke

y 
el

em
en

ts
 o

f i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

fo
r t

he
 c

ou
nt

y;
 a

nd
 

c)
 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 le
ad

-in
 ti

m
es

 n
ee

de
d 

be
fo

re
 m

aj
or

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
ite

s 
ca

n 
be

 d
ev

el
op

ed
. 

 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
de

ta
il.

 

E
.4
9
 

 
3.

52
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h:

 
Se

co
nd

ly
, t

he
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

is
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 d

ev
el

op
er

s,
 th

e 
H

ig
hw

ay
s 

Ag
en

cy
 a

nd
 tr

an
sp

or
t p

ro
vi

de
rs

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

, 
co

nn
ec

tio
ns

 a
nd

 c
ho

ic
es

 i
n 

ou
r 

m
ai

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
an

d 
ru

ra
l 

ar
ea

s 
(w

he
re

 r
el

ia
nc

e 
on

 t
he

 p
riv

at
e 

ca
r 

is
 o

ft
en

 t
he

 o
nl

y 
op

tio
n)

. T
hi

s 
is

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 im
po

rt
an

t 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l 

jo
ur

ne
ys

 in
 H

er
ef

or
d 

w
he

re
 a

 b
al

an
ce

d 
pa

ck
ag

e 
of

 m
ea

su
re

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

m
or

e 
w

al
ki

ng
 a

nd
 c

yc
lin

g,
 

bu
s 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
an

d 
a 

w
es

te
rn

 R
el

ie
f 

Ro
ad

 i
s 

ne
ed

ed
 i

n 
or

de
r 

to
 w

ou
ld

 i
m

pr
ov

e 
co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

 a
nd

 
tr

av
el

 c
ho

ic
e,

 re
du

ce
 c

on
ge

st
io

n,
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 re
al

m
 a

nd
 fo

st
er

 lo
ca

l e
nt

er
pr

is
e 

an
d 

to
ur

is
m

. 

To
 

en
su

re
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

te
rm

in
ol

og
y 

is
 u

se
d.

  
 

E
.5
0
 

 
3.

58
 

D
el

et
e 

la
st

 th
re

e 
se

nt
en

ce
s.

 
St

ud
ie

s 
w

hi
ch

 
ex

am
in

ed
 t

he
 

ne
ed

 
fo

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

ro
ad

 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
to

 
se

rv
e 

th
e 

H
er

ef
or

d 
En

te
rp

ris
e 

Zo
ne

 d
id

 n
ot

 r
ec

om
m

en
d 

in
cl

us
io

n 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 r

oa
d 

lin
ks

. S
uc

h 
a 

pr
op

os
al

 is
 t

he
re

fo
re

 
no

t 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 t
o 

be
 a

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

op
tio

n 
fo

r 
in

cl
us

io
n 

in
 t

he
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

. 
Th

e 
ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
of

 
po

lic
y 

H
D

6 
in

cl
ud

es
 m

or
e 

de
ta

il 
of

 th
is

 w
or

k.
 

 

 To
 

re
m

ov
e 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
no

t 
in

cl
ud

ed
 

in
 

th
e 

Co
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y.
  

 

E
.5
1
 

 
3.

63
 

In
se

rt
 n

ew
 s

en
te

nc
e 

at
 e

nd
 o

f 3
.6

3:
  

Im
pr

ov
ed

 a
nd

 e
xp

an
de

d 
hi

gh
er

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 i
s 

en
vi

sa
ge

d 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 
st

ra
te

gy
 t

o 
he

lp
 r

et
ai

n 
ou

r 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 i

m
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

sk
ill

s 
ba

se
 o

f 
th

e 
co

un
ty

. 
 T

he
 p

la
ce

 
sh

ap
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l p
ol

ic
y 

on
 c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ill
 d

el
iv

er
 th

is
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

y.
 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 r

ec
en

t 
w

or
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

to
 b

rin
g 

ab
ou

t 
th

e 
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t 

of
 a

 u
ni

ve
rs

ity
 i

n 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

. T
hi

s 
pr

op
os

al
 h

as
 w

id
es

pr
ea

d 
su

pp
or

t 
in

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il,

 t
he

 w
id

er
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 w
ith

 
lo

ca
l 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
. 

Th
e 

em
er

gi
ng

 p
ro

po
sa

l 
w

ill
 d

o 
m

uc
h 

to
 c

on
so

lid
at

e 
th

e 
ro

le
 o

f 
H

er
ef

or
d 

as
 a

 
tr

ad
iti

on
al

 c
ou

nt
y 

to
w

n 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

vi
br

an
t 

an
d 

di
ve

rs
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 D

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
Pl

an
. 

127



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
8 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

th
e 

st
at

e 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
t 

th
at

 t
im

e 
th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

an
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 f

or
 it

 t
o 

be
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 g
re

at
er

 
de

ta
il 

in
 th

e 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Ar
ea

 P
la

n.
 

E
.5
2
 

 
3.

86
 

D
el

et
e 

fin
al

 tw
o 

se
nt

en
ce

s.
 

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

im
pr

ov
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 t
he

 L
iv

es
to

ck
 M

ar
ke

t 
re

ta
il-

le
d 

m
ix

ed
 u

se
 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

Th
is

 r
ep

re
se

nt
s 

th
e 

m
os

t 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 r
et

ai
l 

sc
he

m
e 

in
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

y 
fo

r 
m

an
y 

ye
ar

s 
an

d 
by

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

ho
ps

 a
nd

 l
ei

su
re

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
w

ill
 m

ak
e 

H
er

ef
or

d 
be

tt
er

 
ab

le
 t

o 
co

m
pe

te
 w

ith
 s

ub
 r

eg
io

na
l c

en
tr

es
 o

ut
si

de
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

y,
 h

el
pi

ng
 t

o 
re

ta
in

 t
he

 r
et

ai
l s

pe
nd

 
w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
. 

At
 e

nd
 o

f 
re

ta
in

ed
 t

hi
rd

 s
en

te
nc

e 
ad

d:
 “

 a
nd

 w
ill

 c
on

so
lid

at
e 

th
e 

re
ce

nt
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 v
ita

lit
y 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
op

en
in

g 
of

 th
e 

O
ld

 L
iv

es
to

ck
 M

ar
ke

t r
et

ai
l/

le
is

ur
e 

sc
he

m
e.

 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

E
.5
3
 

 
3.

88
 

D
el

et
e 

fir
st

 s
en

te
nc

e 
 

Th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f 
th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 is

 d
ef

in
ed

 f
or

 H
er

ef
or

d 
an

d 
ea

ch
 m

ar
ke

t 
to

w
n 

in
 t

he
 p

la
ce

 s
ha

pi
ng

 
se

ct
io

n 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
. 

E
.5
4
 

 
3.

91
 

Am
en

d 
fin

al
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 T
he

se
 d

el
iv

er
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 6

, 7
, 8

, 8
a 

an
d 

9.
 

To
 

in
cl

ud
e 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 
pr

op
os

ed
 n

ew
 o

bj
ec

tiv
e 

8a
. 

E
.5
5
 

 
3.

92
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

Th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 
fo

r 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
qu

al
ity

 
w

ill
 

su
pp

or
t 

th
e 

cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 t
hr

ou
gh

 p
ro

te
ct

in
g 

ex
is

tin
g 

bu
ilt

, h
is

to
ric

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
nd

 n
at

ur
al

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l a
ss

et
s,

 
th

e 
be

tt
er

 u
se

 o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

th
e 

ca
us

es
 a

nd
 e

ff
ec

ts
 o

f c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
. 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
. 

E
.5
6
 

 
3.

94
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

Th
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 c

ou
nt

y’
s 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

its
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t, 
w

he
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
, w

ill
 

be
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 p

re
se

rv
at

io
n,

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t 

of
 i

ts
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

as
se

ts
 a

nd
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 t
he

 n
at

ur
al

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

in
 a

n 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 w
ay

 t
ha

t 
su

pp
or

ts
 t

he
 h

ea
lth

 
an

d 
w

el
lb

ei
ng

 o
f 

its
 in

ha
bi

ta
nt

s.
 A

lth
ou

gh
 t

he
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

w
ill

 b
e 

ba
se

d 
up

on
 a

dd
re

ss
in

g 
is

su
es

 a
t 

a 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

sc
al

e,
 t

he
re

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
st

an
ce

s 
w

he
re

 d
et

ai
le

d 
fe

at
ur

es
 a

nd
 a

ss
et

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
ns

er
ve

d 
w

he
n 

th
ey

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 lo

ca
l d

is
tin

ct
iv

en
es

s 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
. 

128



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
9 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.5
7
 

 
3.

96
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

In
 u

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
, t

he
 v

al
ue

s 
at

ta
ch

ed
 to

 lo
ca

l d
is

tin
ct

iv
en

es
s 

by
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 c

an
 in

cl
ud

e 
so

ci
al

 a
nd

 e
co

no
m

ic
 p

er
ce

pt
io

ns
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l c

ha
ra

ct
er

is
tic

s.
 W

he
re

 p
ro

du
ce

d,
 lo

ca
l 

gu
id

an
ce

 s
ho

ul
d 

in
fo

rm
 t

he
 d

es
ig

n 
pr

oc
es

s.
 A

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 P

la
nn

in
g 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 e

xi
st

 t
ha

t 
pr

ov
id

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

ad
vi

ce
 o

n 
bo

th
 t

he
 n

at
ur

al
 a

nd
 h

is
to

ric
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

, 
ar

ch
ae

ol
og

y 
an

d 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r.
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
pl

an
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 f

or
 b

ot
h 

Ar
ea

s 
of

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 N
at

ur
al

 B
ea

ut
y 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 s
et

 fo
r s

ite
s 

of
 in

te
rn

at
io

na
l a

nd
 n

at
io

na
l b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 in

te
re

st
.  

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
. 

E
.5
8
 

 
3.

98
 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

Th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
gr

ow
th

 a
re

as
 a

vo
id

 l
oc

at
io

ns
 a

t 
hi

gh
 r

is
k 

of
 f

lo
od

in
g 

w
he

re
ve

r 
po

ss
ib

le
, 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 

ag
ai

ns
t l

os
s 

of
 li

fe
 a

nd
 r

ec
ur

rin
g 

da
m

ag
e 

to
 p

ro
pe

rt
y.

 F
lo

od
 a

lle
vi

at
io

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 w
he

re
 

flo
od

 a
vo

id
an

ce
 i

s 
no

t 
po

ss
ib

le
. 

N
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 f

or
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
ty

pe
 a

nd
 s

iz
e 

of
 

su
st

ai
na

bl
y 

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d 

an
d 

w
el

l-d
es

ig
ne

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
 to

 r
ed

uc
e 

ca
rb

on
 d

io
xi

de
 e

m
is

si
on

s,
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 a

da
pt

at
io

n,
 e

nh
an

ce
 e

ne
rg

y 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

an
d 

re
sp

ec
t l

oc
al

 d
is

tin
ct

iv
en

es
s 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

E
.5
9
 

 
3.

10
1 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

N
ew

 p
ar

ks
 a

nd
 g

re
en

 s
pa

ce
s 

in
 H

er
ef

or
d 

an
d 

th
e 

m
ar

ke
t t

ow
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fo
r 

re
cr

ea
tio

n 
an

d 
sp

or
t, 

as
 w

el
l 

as
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

to
 t

he
 l

oc
al

 g
re

en
 i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
ne

tw
or

k,
  

pr
om

ot
in

g 
bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
 a

nd
 t

o 
en

ha
nc

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 w

el
l-b

ei
ng

. O
th

er
, n

ec
es

sa
ry

 n
ew

 o
r 

en
ha

nc
ed

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

ch
oi

ce
s 

w
ill

 
be

 
de

liv
er

ed
 

in
 

as
so

ci
at

io
n 

w
ith

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
re

du
ce

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 tr

av
el

 lo
ng

 
di

st
an

ce
s 

by
 p

riv
at

e 
ca

r.
 R

el
ev

an
t 

po
lic

ie
s 

in
 t

he
 p

la
ce

 s
ha

pi
ng

 s
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

lo
ca

l 
di

st
in

ct
iv

en
es

s 
po

lic
ie

s 
w

ill
 d

el
iv

er
 th

is
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

y 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

E
.6
0
 

 
3.

10
3 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

Pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r 
ne

w
/i

m
pr

ov
ed

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 t

o 
pr

ot
ec

t 
w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y,

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 o

f 
th

e 
Ri

ve
rs

 W
ye

 
an

d 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
Lu

gg
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 E
ur

op
ea

n 
pr

ot
ec

te
d 

Sp
ec

ia
l 

Ar
ea

s 
of

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n,
 w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 

en
su

re
 t

he
 s

pe
ci

al
 f

ea
tu

re
s 

of
 t

he
se

 s
ite

s 
ar

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d,
 d

es
pi

te
 t

he
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

fo
r 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
se

w
ag

e 
tr

ea
tm

en
t c

ap
ac

ity
 fr

om
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

129



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 2
0 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.6
1
 

 
3.

11
0 

D
el

et
e 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 “
pr

ot
ec

tin
g 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t f

or
 it

s 
ow

n 
sa

ke
” 

in
 P

ar
a 

3.
11

0 
an

d 
re

pl
ac

e 
w

ith
” 

 “T
he

se
 c

om
pr

is
e:

 p
ro

te
ct

in
g 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

fo
r 

its
 o

w
n 

sa
ke

 r
ec

og
ni

si
ng

 t
he

 in
tr

in
si

c 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

an
d 

be
au

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
co

un
tr

ys
id

e;
 r

es
pe

ct
in

g 
lo

ca
l d

is
tin

ct
iv

en
es

s;
 f

un
di

ng
 n

ew
 g

re
en

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
; 

an
d 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 th

e 
ca

us
es

 a
nd

 im
pa

ct
s 

of
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

. T
he

se
 li

nk
 to

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 1
0,

 
11

 a
nd

 1
2.

” 

To
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 N

PP
F 

E
.6
2
 

 
3.

11
1 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
hs

 to
 re

ad
: 

 “T
o 

im
pl

em
en

t 
th

e 
sp

at
ia

l s
tr

at
eg

y,
 a

 d
el

iv
er

y 
st

ra
te

gy
 is

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 t

he
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 D
el

iv
er

y 
Pl

an
 

(ID
P)

 w
hi

ch
 a

cc
om

pa
ni

es
 t

he
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

. T
hi

s 
is

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n,

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
D

el
iv

er
y 

Pl
an

 in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

3.
  I

t i
s 

sp
lit

 in
to

 d
is

tin
ct

 s
ub

je
ct

 a
re

as
: 

 

• 
Co

un
ty

w
id

e 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

; 

• 
H

er
ef

or
d;

 

• 
Th

e 
m

ar
ke

t t
ow

ns
; 

• 
Th

e 
ru

ra
l a

re
as

. 
 

To
 

re
fle

ct
 

th
e 

ne
w

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n,

 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Pl

an
 a

nd
 r

ev
is

ed
 

ID
P 

fr
om

 e
ar

lie
r s

ta
ge

s.
 

E
.6
3
 

 
3.

11
2 

D
el

et
e 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h:
 

A 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
be

in
g 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 e

ac
h 

ca
te

go
ry

 a
nd

 h
ow

 t
he

 le
ve

l o
f 

gr
ow

th
 f

or
 e

ac
h 

ar
ea

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 is
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 t
he

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

te
xt

 t
o 

th
e 

ID
P.

 M
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
pr

op
os

al
s 

w
ill

 c
om

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Ar
ea

 P
la

n,
 o

th
er

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 
an

d 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

ns
. 

To
 

re
fle

ct
 

th
e 

ne
w

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n,

 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Pl

an
 a

nd
 r

ev
is

ed
 

ID
P 

fr
om

 e
ar

lie
r s

ta
ge

s 

130



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 2
1 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.6
4
 

 
3.

11
4 

D
el

et
e 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h:
 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
ap

pr
ai

sa
l 

3.
11

4 
Th

e 
ap

pr
ai

sa
l f

in
di

ng
s 

ar
e 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
e 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
Ap

pr
ai

sa
l R

ep
or

t.
 T

he
y 

st
at

e 
th

at
 th

e 
sp

at
ia

l s
tr

at
eg

y 
is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 h
av

e 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 p

os
iti

ve
 e

ff
ec

t o
n 

th
e 

th
em

e 
of

 b
ui

lt 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t,
 b

ut
 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l e

ff
ec

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
th

em
es

 o
f t

ra
ns

po
rt

 a
nd

 a
cc

es
s,

 re
so

ur
ce

 c
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
an

d 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 a
nd

 th
e 

na
tu

ra
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
re

 m
ix

ed
. T

he
 o

ve
ra

ll 
ef

fe
ct

 o
n 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
th

em
es

 a
nd

 h
ea

lth
y 

an
d 

pr
os

pe
ro

us
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 th

em
es

 a
re

 m
in

or
 p

os
iti

ve
. T

he
re

 w
er

e 
no

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 fo

r c
ha

ng
es

 to
 p

ol
ic

y 
w

or
di

ng
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l. 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
Pl

an
 a

nd
 a

vo
id

 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
te

xt
 

E
.6
5
 

 
Ke

y 
D

ia
gr

am
 

P4
9 

Am
en

dm
en

t t
o 

bo
x 

“D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 h
om

es
 a

nd
 jo

bs
” 

 **
* 

To
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 B

ro
m

ya
rd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n.
 

To
 

up
da

te
 

Ke
y 

D
ia

gr
am

 
in

 
re

sp
ec

t 
of

 
th

e 
Br

om
ya

rd
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n.
 

4.
1.
 H

er
ef

or
d 

Pl
ac

e 
Sh

ap
in

g 
E
.6
6
 

 
4.

2.
3 

Am
en

d 
fin

al
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 
A 

w
es

te
rn

 R
el

ie
f R

oa
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

ke
y 

el
em

en
t 

to
 a

 c
on

ge
st

io
n 

fr
ee

 c
ity

 b
y 

en
ab

lin
g 

an
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
tr

un
k 

ro
ut

e,
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 h

ig
hw

ay
 c

ap
ac

ity
 t

o 
im

pl
em

en
t 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
m

ea
su

re
s 

an
d 

re
du

ci
ng

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f t

hr
ou

gh
 tr

af
fic

 in
 th

e 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

e 
 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

E
.6
7
 

 
Fi

g 
4.

1 
In

se
rt

 u
pd

at
ed

 w
eb

 a
dd

re
ss

:  
  

ht
tp

:/
/f

ac
ts

an
df

ig
ur

es
.h

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

.g
ov

.u
k/

 
To

 
re

m
ov

e 
ou

t 
of

 
da

te
 

re
fe

re
nc

es
 

E
.6
8
 

 
4.

2.
8 

D
el

et
e 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
an

d 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 ta
bl

e 
4.

2.
8 

Th
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

 s
ho

w
s 

th
e 

le
ve

l 
of

 c
om

m
itm

en
ts

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
et

io
ns

 a
s 

at
 1

 A
pr

il 
20

13
 f

or
 

H
er

ef
or

d.
  T

hi
s 

le
av

es
 a

 r
es

id
ua

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
of

 5
,3

57
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 u
p 

to
 2

03
1.

 T
he

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 s

ite
s 

ar
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 t
o 

de
liv

er
 a

ro
un

d 
3,

30
0 

ne
w

 d
w

el
lin

gs
. T

he
 H

er
ef

or
d 

Ar
ea

 P
la

n 
w

ill
 a

llo
ca

te
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 o
n 

no
n-

st
ra

te
gi

c 
si

te
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
, 

w
ith

 w
in

df
al

ls
, 

th
e 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 h

ou
si

ng
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

of
 a

ro
un

d 
2,

05
7 

w
ill

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

.  
 S
tr
at
eg

ic
 

al
lo
ca
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

20
11
-1
3 

C
o
m
m
it
m
en

ts
 

20
13
 

S
tr
at
eg

ic
 u
rb
an

 
ex
p
an

si
o
n
s 

R
es
id
u
al
 h
o
u
si
n
g
 

re
q
u
ir
em

en
t 

6,
50
0 

22
7 

91
6 

3,
30
0 

2,
05
7 

  

To
 

re
m

ov
e 

ou
t 

of
 

da
te

 
re

fe
re

nc
es

 

131



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 2
2 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.6
9
 

 
4.

2.
9 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

Po
lic

ie
s 

SS
3 

an
d 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 5
 t

og
et

he
r 

w
ith

 H
D

2,
 H

D
4,

 H
D

5 
an

d 
H

D
6 

an
d 

th
ei

r 
ex

pl
an

at
or

y 
te

xt
 a

ls
o 

se
t 

ou
t 

th
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 i

ss
ue

s 
fo

r 
ea

ch
 a

re
a 

an
d 

th
ei

r 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
. 

H
ow

ev
er

 t
he

 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
un

de
r 

al
l t

he
se

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
w

ill
 r

eq
ui

re
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 t
he

 w
at

er
 s

up
pl

y 
an

d 
w

as
te

 w
at

er
 t

re
at

m
en

t 
sy

st
em

s.
 T

he
 w

at
er

 s
up

pl
y 

sy
st

em
 f

or
 H

er
ef

or
d 

is
 s

er
ve

d 
by

 t
w

o 
di

st
in

ct
 

sy
st

em
s,

 o
ne

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 n

or
th

, a
nd

 o
ne

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 s

ou
th

. I
n 

or
de

r 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
gr

ow
th

, b
ot

h 
th

e 
tr

un
k 

w
at

er
 m

ai
ns

 s
up

pl
yi

ng
 t

he
 c

ity
 w

ill
 r

eq
ui

re
 u

ps
iz

in
g.

 T
he

 c
os

t 
of

 a
ny

 u
ps

iz
in

g 
of

 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

, 
in

 a
dv

an
ce

 o
f 

a 
w

at
er

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
r 

ca
rr

yi
ng

 o
ut

 t
he

 w
or

k,
 w

ill
 f

al
l 

to
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
re

qu
is

iti
on

in
g 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 o

f t
he

 w
at

er
 in

du
st

ry
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
er

e 
is

 a
n 

ad
eq

ua
te

 s
up

pl
y 

of
 w

at
er

 b
ro

ug
ht

 in
to

 t
he

 c
ity

. T
he

re
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 a

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
fo

r 
of

f-
si

te
 m

ai
ns

 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

fr
om

 t
he

 t
ru

nk
 s

ys
te

m
 t

o 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t.

  
H

er
ef

or
d 

is
 s

er
ve

d 
by

 t
w

o 
w

as
te

 
w

at
er

 t
re

at
m

en
t 

w
or

ks
, 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 r

eq
ui

re
 f

ur
th

er
 i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

w
or

ks
 t

o 
se

rv
e 

th
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

gr
ow

th
.  

 

To
 

en
su

re
 

su
ita

bl
e 

cr
os

s 
re

fe
re

nc
in

g 
to

 o
th

er
 p

ol
ic

ie
s.

 
 To

 a
vo

id
 u

nn
ec

es
sa

ry
 d

et
ai

l 
in

 
th

e 
CS

 

E
.7
0
 

 
4.

2.
14

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Th

e 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

ai
m

s 
to

 i
m

pr
ov

e 
H

er
ef

or
d’

s 
st

at
us

 a
s 

a 
su

b-
re

gi
on

al
 s

ho
pp

in
g 

de
st

in
at

io
n 

by
 

en
ha

nc
in

g 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ex
is

tin
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
in

te
gr

at
in

g 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

in
to

 t
he

 h
is

to
ric

 
ce

nt
re

. T
he

 E
ig

n 
G

at
e 

an
d 

Ed
ga

r 
St

re
et

 r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
ar

ea
s 

ar
e 

th
e 

fo
cu

s 
fo

r 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

th
is

 a
im

, a
nd

 
th

es
e 

ar
ea

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

fin
ed

 in
 d

et
ai

l i
n 

th
e 

H
AP

. D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
in

 t
he

 E
dg

ar
 S

tr
ee

t r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
ar

ea
 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
 m

as
te

rp
la

n 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 a

 h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 m
ix

ed
 

us
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
m

as
te

rp
la

n 
w

hi
ch

 s
et

s 
ou

t 
an

 o
ve

ra
rc

hi
ng

 
vi

si
on

 o
f 

ho
w

 t
he

 a
re

a 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 t

he
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 D
el

iv
er

y 
Pl

an
 id

en
tif

ie
s 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
th

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t.

 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
po

lic
y 

 

132



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 2
3 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.7
1
 

 
4.

2.
28

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
H

er
ef

or
d’

s 
hi

st
or

ic
 h

er
ita

ge
 m

us
t 

be
 t

re
at

ed
 v

ie
w

ed
 a

s 
a 

va
lu

ab
le

 a
ss

et
 a

s 
th

e 
ci

ty
 e

xp
an

ds
 a

nd
 

ch
an

ge
s.

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 t
o 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 h
ow

 t
he

se
 h

er
ita

ge
 a

ss
et

s,
 t

he
ir 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

an
d 

se
tt

in
g,

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
co

ns
er

ve
d 

 a
nd

 w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 e

nh
an

ce
d.

 H
er

ef
or

d 
is

 
fo

rt
un

at
e 

to
 h

av
e 

a 
w

ea
lth

 o
f 

hi
st

or
ic

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
, a

rc
ha

eo
lo

gi
ca

l r
em

ai
ns

, h
is

to
ric

 s
tr

ee
ts

ca
pe

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 W

id
em

ar
sh

 S
tr

ee
t 

an
d 

St
 O

w
en

s 
St

re
et

 a
nd

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
es

, 
w

hi
ch

 p
ro

vi
de

 v
al

ua
bl

e 
se

tt
in

gs
 f

or
 

hi
st

or
ic

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
, 

 f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e;
 a

t 
th

e 
Ca

th
ed

ra
l 

Cl
os

e 
an

d 
th

e 
pl

ot
s 

of
 t

he
 a

dj
oi

ni
ng

 C
an

on
s’

 
ho

us
es

. 
W

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

d 
th

er
e 

is
 t

he
 n

at
io

na
lly

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Ar

ea
 o

f 
Ar

ch
ae

ol
og

ic
al

 
Im

po
rt

an
ce

 (A
AI

). 
Ad

di
tio

na
lly

, o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
ex

is
t t

o 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
se

tt
in

g 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
he

rit
ag

e 
as

se
ts

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

Ci
ty

 W
al

l 
an

d 
Bl

ac
kf

ria
rs

 F
ria

ry
/C

on
in

gs
by

 H
os

pi
ta

l 
si

te
. 

Pu
bl

ic
 r

ea
lm

 w
or

ks
 t

o 
N

ew
m

ar
ke

t 
St

re
et

 a
nd

 B
lu

es
ch

oo
l S

tr
ee

t 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

se
tt

in
g 

of
 

th
e 

Ci
ty

 W
al

l, 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t h
is

to
ric

 a
ss

et
 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

E
.7
2
 

 
4.

2.
30

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Th

e 
To

w
n 

Ce
nt

re
s 

St
ud

y 
U

pd
at

e 
20

12
 c

on
fir

m
s 

H
er

ef
or

d 
as

 th
e 

pr
in

ci
pa

l s
ho

pp
in

g 
ce

nt
re

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
co

un
ty

. A
lth

ou
gh

 t
he

 r
ep

or
t 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
es

 t
ha

t 
H

er
ef

or
d 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
ff

ec
te

d 
by

 th
e 

do
w

nt
ur

n 
in

 t
he

 
ec

on
om

y 
al

on
g 

w
ith

 m
an

y 
ot

he
r 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
in

 t
he

 U
ni

te
d 

Ki
ng

do
m

, i
t 

fin
ds

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

e 
sh

ow
s 

si
gn

s 
of

 re
si

lie
nc

e 
an

d 
its

 o
ut

lo
ok

 is
 g

oo
d.

 T
he

 o
pe

ni
ng

 o
f t

he
 O

ld
 M

ar
ke

t (
20

14
) a

dd
ed

 to
 th

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 c

om
m

itm
en

t 
fo

r 
re

ta
il 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

at
 t

he
 f

or
m

er
 li

ve
st

oc
k 

m
ar

ke
t.

 T
he

 la
tt

er
 w

ill
 a

dd
 t

o 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
m

ix
 o

f 
na

tio
na

l m
ul

tip
le

s 
an

d 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
tr

ad
er

s 
an

d 
w

ill
 s

tr
en

gt
he

ns
 H

er
ef

or
d’

s 
its

 
ro

le
 a

s 
a 

pr
in

ci
pa

l c
en

tr
e,

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 e

co
no

m
ic

 b
en

ef
its

 a
nd

 w
ill

 h
el

p 
re

du
ci

ng
 u

ns
us

ta
in

ab
le

 t
ra

ve
l 

an
d 

re
ta

il 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 le
ak

ag
e 

to
 o

th
er

 c
iti

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 W

or
ce

st
er

, C
he

lte
nh

am
, B

ris
to

l a
nd

 C
ar

di
ff

. 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
te

xt
. 

E
.7
3
 

 
4.

2.
32

 
D

el
et

e 
se

nt
en

ce
: 

Pr
im

ar
y 

fr
on

ta
ge

s 
ar

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 c

om
pr

is
e 

pr
ed

om
in

an
tly

 o
f 

re
ta

il 
us

es
, 

w
hi

ls
t 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
fr

on
ta

ge
s 

w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 g
re

at
er

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 fo
r a

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 o

f u
se

s,
 s

uc
h 

as
 re

st
au

ra
nt

s 
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

. 

To
 

re
m

ov
e 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

du
pl

ic
at

io
n.

 

133



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 2
4 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.7
4
 

 
4.

2.
33

 
D

el
et

e 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
e 

w
ith

: 
Fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

op
en

in
g 

of
 t

he
 ‘O

ld
 M

ar
ke

t’
 (

20
14

) 
th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 t
he

 T
ow

n 
Ce

nt
re

s 
St

ud
y 

U
pd

at
e 

20
12

, i
nd

ic
at

es
 t

ha
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

re
m

ai
n 

fo
r 

ne
w

 r
et

ai
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

e,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 E

ig
n 

St
re

et
 r

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

ar
ea

. 
Th

er
ef

or
e 

at
 t

he
 t

im
e 

of
 a

do
pt

io
n 

th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

ne
ed

 t
o 

al
lo

ca
te

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

si
te

s 
fo

r 
re

ta
il 

or
 o

th
er

 u
se

s 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 c
ity

. H
ow

ev
er

 t
hi

s 
si

tu
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
as

se
ss

ed
 w

he
n 

th
e 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Ar

ea
 P

la
n 

is
 p

ro
du

ce
d.

 T
he

 H
er

ef
or

d 
Ar

ea
 P

la
n 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 t
o 

re
co

ns
id

er
 t

he
 e

xt
en

t 
of

 t
he

 t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

 a
nd

 p
rim

ar
y 

an
d 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
re

ta
il 

fr
on

ta
ge

s 
M

os
t o

f t
he

 e
xp

an
de

d 
sh

op
pi

ng
 a

re
a 

of
 H

er
ef

or
d 

w
ill

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 a

t t
he

 o
ld

 li
ve

st
oc

k 
m

ar
ke

t a
nd

 E
ig

n 
G

at
e 

ar
ea

, w
hi

ch
 to

ge
th

er
 h

av
e 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

in
g 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l g

ro
w

th
. T

hi
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 
is

 c
on

fir
m

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
To

w
n 

Ce
nt

re
s 

St
ud

y 
U

pd
at

e 
20

12
, 

w
hi

ch
 i

nd
ic

at
es

 t
ha

t,
 i

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 t
he

 
fo

rm
er

 l
iv

es
to

ck
 m

ar
ke

t,
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

re
m

ai
n 

fo
r 

ne
w

 r
et

ai
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

in
 t

he
 c

ity
 c

en
tr

e,
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 E

ig
n 

St
re

et
 r

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

ar
ea

. 
 T

he
re

 i
s 

th
er

ef
or

e 
no

 n
ee

d 
to

 a
llo

ca
te

 
ad

di
tio

na
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

si
te

s 
fo

r 
re

ta
il 

or
 o

th
er

 u
se

s 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 c
ity

. H
ow

ev
er

 t
hi

s 
si

tu
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
as

se
ss

ed
 w

he
n 

th
e 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Ar

ea
 P

la
n 

is
 p

ro
du

ce
d.

 T
he

 H
er

ef
or

d 
Ar

ea
 P

la
n 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 t
o 

re
co

ns
id

er
 t

he
 e

xt
en

t 
of

 t
he

 t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

 a
nd

 p
rim

ar
y 

an
d 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
re

ta
il 

fr
on

ta
ge

s.
 

Re
vi

se
d 

te
xt

 t
o 

re
fle

ct
 t

he
 O

ld
 

M
ar

ke
t o

pe
ni

ng
 

 

E
.7
5
 

 
4.

2.
34

 
D

el
et

e 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h:

 
Re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 f
or

m
er

 l
iv

es
to

ck
 m

ar
ke

t 
br

ow
nf

ie
ld

 s
ite

, 
w

hi
ch

 i
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 u
nd

er
w

ay
, 

w
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

m
ix

 o
f 

un
it 

si
ze

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

la
rg

er
 u

ni
ts

 t
o 

at
tr

ac
t 

hi
gh

 s
tr

ee
t 

m
ul

tip
le

s 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t 
st

or
e)

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
no

t 
cu

rr
en

tly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

in
 t

he
 c

ity
 c

en
tr

e.
  

W
hi

ls
t 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 p

ub
lic

 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 t

ho
ug

h 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

 p
ub

lic
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 h
ub

; a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

liv
es

to
ck

 m
ar

ke
t 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
 S

uc
ce

ss
fu

l 
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
w

ith
 t

he
 

ex
is

tin
g 

hi
st

or
ic

 r
et

ai
l c

or
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 c
re

at
io

n 
of

 n
ew

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

fr
ie

nd
ly

 li
nk

s.
 

M
ea

su
re

s 
to

 f
ur

th
er

 i
m

pr
ov

e 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

e’
s 

sh
op

pi
ng

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
te

xt
. 

134



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 2
5 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.7
6
 

 
4.

2.
35

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
To

ur
is

m
 p

la
ys

 a
n 

im
po

rt
an

t 
ro

le
 i

n 
H

er
ef

or
d’

s 
ec

on
om

y 
an

d 
it 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
om

ot
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 
pl

an
ne

d 
m

ix
ed

-u
se

 r
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 c
ity

. O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 a
tt

ra
ct

 m
or

e 
to

ur
is

ts
, w

ho
 m

ak
e 

an
 

im
po

rt
an

t 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 t
he

 lo
ca

l e
co

no
m

y,
 w

ill
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
. 

Th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
to

ur
is

m
 p

ot
en

tia
l c

an
 b

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
of

 n
ew

 m
ee

tin
g/

co
nf

er
en

ci
ng

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 w
hi

ch
 m

ak
e 

be
tt

er
 u

se
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
as

se
ts

, s
uc

h 
as

 t
he

 C
ou

rt
ya

rd
 T

he
at

re
 fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e.
 T

he
 

M
ar

ch
es

 H
ot

el
 S

tu
dy

 (
20

12
) 

id
en

tif
ie

s 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 f

or
 a

 p
re

m
iu

m
 s

ty
le

  
ne

w
 h

ot
el

s 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

an
d 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

an
d/

or
 e

xt
en

si
on

 o
f 

ex
is

tin
g 

ho
te

ls
. 

Th
is

 s
tu

dy
 c

on
cl

ud
es

 t
ha

t 
th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
ne

ed
 f

or
 f

ur
th

er
 b

ud
ge

t 
ho

te
ls

 i
n 

H
er

ef
or

d 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 p
la

n 
pe

rio
d.

 O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 
pr

om
ot

e 
to

ur
is

m
 a

nd
 r

ec
re

at
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 o

n 
th

e 
Ri

ve
r 

W
ye

 in
 H

er
ef

or
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 w

he
re

 
th

ey
 a

re
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 p
ol

ic
y 

E4
 o

n 
To

ur
is

m
. 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
te

xt
 a

nd
 

cl
ar

ify
 th

e 
po

lic
y.

 

E
.7
7
 

 
4.

2.
36

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 
th

e 
fo

rm
er

 
liv

es
to

ck
 

m
ar

ke
t 

w
ill

 
in

cl
ud

e;
 

a 
ne

w
 

m
ul

ti-
sc

re
en

 
ci

ne
m

a,
 

re
st

au
ra

nt
s 

an
d 

ca
fe

s,
 w

hi
ls

t 
O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

fa
ci

lit
at

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Ar
ea

 P
la

n 
fo

r 
ot

he
r 

le
is

ur
e 

an
d 

to
ur

is
m

 u
se

s 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 e
xt

en
de

d 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

e 
to

 
co

m
pl

em
en

t e
xi

st
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

  
 

To
 r

ef
le

ct
 t

he
 f

ac
t 

th
at

 t
he

 O
ld

 
M

ar
ke

t h
as

 o
pe

ne
d 

 

E
.7
8
 

 
4.

2.
39

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Fa

ci
lit

at
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 m
ax

im
is

in
g 

co
nn

ec
tiv

ity
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 c
ity

 b
y 

al
l t

ra
ns

po
rt

 m
od

es
 is

 e
ss

en
tia

l t
o 

re
du

ce
 c

on
ge

st
io

n,
 s

up
po

rt
 f

ut
ur

e 
pr

os
pe

rit
y 

an
d 

en
ab

le
 g

ro
w

th
 w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

d.
 T

he
 L

oc
al

 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

Pl
an

 (2
01

3/
14

 –
 2

01
4/

15
) o

ut
lin

es
 a

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
fo

r 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 c
ity

. I
t 

al
so

 id
en

tif
ie

s 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t 
fo

r 
a 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

Re
vi

ew
 t

o 
in

fo
rm

 t
he

 lo
ng

-t
er

m
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 
st

ra
te

gy
 fo

r 
th

e 
ci

ty
 T

he
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 is
 c

om
pl

em
en

te
d 

an
d 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 t
he

 L
oc

al
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

ci
ty

 o
n 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 a
 tr

an
sp

or
t s

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r H

er
ef

or
d 

.  
 

 

To
 

cl
ar

ify
 

th
e 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

CS
 

an
d 

th
e 

LT
P/

H
er

ef
or

d 
Tr

an
sp

or
t P

la
n 

 

E
.7
9
 

 
4.

2.
41

 
D

el
et

e 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h:

 
Th

e 
fu

tu
re

 H
er

ef
or

d 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

Re
vi

ew
 w

ill
 id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
sc

he
m

es
 to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 t

hi
s 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
pa

ck
ag

e 
an

d 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

a 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r 

H
er

ef
or

d,
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
th

e 
gr

ow
th

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

To
 r

em
ov

e 
du

pl
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
ou

t-
of

-d
at

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
 

135



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 2
6 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.8
0
 

 
4.

2.
44

 
D

el
et

e 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h:

  
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 c

on
tin

ui
ng

 t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

its
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

ba
se

 b
y 

un
de

rt
ak

in
g 

a 
re

fr
es

h 
of

 i
ts

 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

fo
re

ca
st

s 
an

d 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 f

ut
ur

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

co
nd

iti
on

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

of
 t

he
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t c

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 th

e 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

To
 r

em
ov

e 
du

pl
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
ou

t-
of

-d
at

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 

E
.8
1
 

 
4.

2.
45

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h:
 

Th
e 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

Re
vi

ew
 w

ill
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

a 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

st
ra

te
gy

 f
or

 H
er

ef
or

d 
an

d 
w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

sy
st

em
at

ic
 a

nd
 in

-d
ep

th
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
cu

rr
en

t 
an

d 
fu

tu
re

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 c

on
di

tio
ns

. 
Th

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 o

f 
th

is
 

re
vi

ew
 w

ill
 b

e 
a 

co
st

ed
, 

ph
as

ed
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ov
er

 t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 

pe
rio

d 
to

 f
ac

ili
ta

te
 g

ro
w

th
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

. 
Th

e 
re

vi
ew

 w
ill

 i
de

nt
ify

 a
nd

 t
es

t 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 

pa
ck

ag
es

. 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

 t
o 

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
ou

tli
ne

d 
in

 p
ol

ic
y 

H
D

3 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

pa
ck

ag
es

 a
re

 l
ik

el
y 

to
 

in
cl

ud
e:

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
gr

ow
th

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
: 

• 
re

al
 ti

m
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 c

or
e 

bu
s 

ne
tw

or
k 

an
d 

st
op

 u
pg

ra
de

s;
 

• 
ac

tiv
e 

tr
av

el
 n

et
w

or
k;

 

• 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

of
 D

es
tin

at
io

n 
H

er
ef

or
d 

pr
oj

ec
t;

 

• 
H

er
ef

or
d 

tr
an

sp
or

t h
ub

; 

• 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

e 
re

fu
rb

is
hm

en
ts

; 

• 
bu

s 
pr

io
rit

y 
m

ea
su

re
s;

 

• 
ra

il 
tr

ac
k 

an
d 

si
gn

al
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 b

et
w

ee
n 

H
er

ef
or

d 
an

d 
M

al
ve

rn
; a

nd
 

• 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 e

le
ct

ric
 a

nd
 lo

w
 c

ar
bo

n 
ve

hi
cl

es
.  

Pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 b
rin

g 
fo

rw
ar

d 
th

e 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

pr
op

os
al

s 
ar

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
in

 th
e 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 D

el
iv

er
y 

Pl
an

. 

To
 b

rin
g 

th
e 

Co
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
up

-
to

-d
at

e.
 

E
.8
2
 

 
4.

2.
46

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h:
 

A 
ke

y 
el

em
en

t 
of

 t
he

 lo
ng

-t
er

m
 H

er
ef

or
d 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
st

ra
te

gy
 is

 t
he

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
fo

r 
a 

Re
lie

f 
Ro

ad
 

w
ith

 a
 s

ec
on

d 
riv

er
 c

ro
ss

in
g.

 T
hi

s 
vi

ta
l 

ad
di

tio
n 

to
 t

he
 c

ity
’s

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 n

et
w

or
k 

w
ill

 e
na

bl
e 

th
e 

re
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

hi
gh

w
ay

 f
or

 b
us

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
w

al
ki

ng
 a

nd
 c

yc
lin

g 
m

ea
su

re
s 

an
d 

th
e 

re
-

ro
ut

in
g 

of
 t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

A4
9 

Tr
un

k 
Ro

ad
 (

m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
Ag

en
cy

) 
re

m
ov

in
g 

lo
ng

er
 

di
st

an
ce

 tr
af

fic
 fr

om
 th

e 
ce

nt
re

 o
f t

he
 c

ity
 

To
 

en
su

re
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

te
rm

in
ol

og
y 

is
 u

se
d.

 
 

136



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 2
7 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.8
3
 

 
4.

2.
47

 
Ca

pi
ta

lis
e 

“R
el

ie
f R

oa
d”

 in
 s

ec
on

d 
se

nt
en

ce
.  

To
 

en
su

re
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

te
rm

in
ol

og
y 

is
 u

se
d.

 
E
.8
4
 

 
4.

2.
49

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Th

e 
fir

st
 s

ec
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

Re
lie

f R
oa

d 
to

 b
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d 

is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
se

ct
io

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
A4

9 
an

d 
A4

65
, a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
So

ut
h 

W
ye

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 P

ac
ka

ge
 (

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 t

he
 L

oc
al

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 P

la
n)

. 
Th

e 
se

co
nd

 s
ec

tio
n 

w
ill

 li
nk

 t
he

 A
46

5 
an

d 
th

e 
A4

10
3 

an
d 

 in
cl

ud
es

 a
 b

rid
ge

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
of

 t
he

 W
ye

. 
(A

46
5 

– 
A4

10
3)

. T
hi

s 
se

ct
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
w

ou
ld

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

co
-o

rd
in

at
ed

 w
ith

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 t
he

 W
es

te
rn

 U
rb

an
 E

xp
an

si
on

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 a

t 
Th

re
e 

El
m

s.
 T

he
 fi

na
l s

ec
tio

n 
w

ou
ld

 li
nk

 t
he

 A
41

03
 to

 
th

e 
w

es
te

rn
 a

nd
 e

as
te

rn
 s

id
es

 o
f 

th
e 

A4
9 

in
 t

he
 n

or
th

 o
f 

H
er

ef
or

d.
  

Co
st

s 
of

 t
he

 li
nk

 s
ec

tio
ns

 a
re

 
hi

gh
lig

ht
ed

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 s

tu
dy

. 
O

th
er

 s
ou

rc
es

 o
f 

fu
nd

in
g 

an
d 

tim
in

gs
 o

f 
de

liv
er

y 
ar

e 
se

t 
ou

t 
in

 t
he

 
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 D
el

iv
er

y 
Pl

an
, w

hi
ch

 a
cc

om
pa

ni
es

 t
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t.

 T
he

 E
co

no
m

ic
 V

ia
bi

lit
y 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

20
13

 e
xp

la
in

s 
th

e 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 in
 th

e 
pl

an
 g

en
er

al
ly

 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y.

 
To

 
re

m
ov

e 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
re

fe
re

nc
es

 
an

d 
en

su
re

 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 
te

rm
in

ol
og

y 
an

d 
av

oi
d 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

de
ta

il 
 

E
.8
5
 

 
4.

2.
50

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
W

or
k 

on
 t

he
 D

et
ai

le
d 

al
ig

nm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 r
oa

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

sh
ow

n 
in

 t
he

 H
er

ef
or

d 
Ar

ea
 

Pl
an

. 
Cl

os
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 k
ey

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

an
d 

an
y 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 in
 p

re
pa

rin
g 

th
e 

H
AP

 a
nd

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 b
od

ie
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ne
ed

ed
 t

o 
en

su
re

 t
he

 a
vo

id
an

ce
 o

f 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

na
tu

ra
l 

as
se

ts
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 i

de
nt

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 im
pa

ct
s 

fr
om

 p
hy

si
ca

l d
am

ag
e/

lo
ss

 o
f 

ha
bi

ta
t,

 n
oi

se
 p

ol
lu

tio
n 

an
d 

vi
br

at
io

n,
 li

gh
t 

po
llu

tio
n,

 a
ir 

po
llu

tio
n 

an
d 

w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
on

 t
he

 R
iv

er
 W

ye
 S

AC
. T

he
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
ex

ac
t 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 fu
lly

 t
ak

e 
ac

co
un

t 
of

 fl
oo

d 
ris

k 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

no
 d

et
rim

en
t 

to
 

th
ird

 
pa

rt
ie

s.
 

Re
ga

rd
 

sh
ou

ld
 

al
so

 
be

 
ha

d 
to

 
an

y 
im

pa
ct

 
on

 
So

ur
ce

 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

Zo
ne

s.
  

Co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 i
m

pa
ct

s 
on

 t
he

 h
is

to
ric

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
w

ith
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 
re

ga
rd

 b
ei

ng
 p

ai
d 

to
 a

ny
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
he

rit
ag

e 
as

se
ts

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
ei

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e 
an

d 
se

tt
in

g,
 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
ic

al
 in

te
re

st
 a

nd
  a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 o
f t

he
 w

id
er

 la
nd

sc
ap

e.
 

To
 

en
su

re
 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
ar

e 
fo

llo
w

ed
. 

To
 

en
su

re
 c

on
si

st
en

t t
er

m
in

ol
og

y.
 

E
.8
6
 

 
4.

2.
51

 
Ca

pi
ta

lis
e 

“R
el

ie
f R

oa
d”

.  
To

 
en

su
re

 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 
te

rm
in

ol
og

y 
is

 u
se

d.
 

E
.8
7
 

 
4.

2.
54

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Th

e 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

ar
ea

 r
ef

er
re

d 
to

 a
s 

H
ol

m
er

 W
es

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
on

 a
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 b
as

is
. 

in
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

a 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
br

ie
f 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 H
er

ef
or

d 
Ar

ea
 P

la
n.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 i

nc
lu

de
 

va
ria

tio
ns

 in
 la

yo
ut

, d
en

si
ty

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
n 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

 f
or

m
 a

nd
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 t
o 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

th
at

 
re

sp
ec

ts
 th

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

se
ns

iti
vi

ty
, a

nd
 e

xi
st

in
g 

na
tu

ra
l a

nd
 h

is
to

ric
 fe

at
ur

es
 o

f t
he

 a
re

a.
 

 

To
 c

on
fir

m
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

to
 p

la
n 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

on
 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 b
as

is
 

 

137



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 2
8 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.8
8
 

 
4.

2.
56

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Th

e 
ne

w
 a

re
a 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 m
od

es
 o

f 
tr

av
el

 a
nd

 d
is

co
ur

ag
e 

ca
r 

us
e.

 It
 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
im

ar
ily

 a
cc

es
se

d 
fr

om
 R

om
an

 R
oa

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
op

tio
n 

of
 a

 fu
rt

he
r 

ac
ce

ss
 li

nk
 to

 th
e 

no
rt

he
rn

 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Re
lie

f R
oa

d 
co

rr
id

or
 a

nd
 P

ar
k 

an
d 

Ri
de

 C
ho

os
e.

 T
he

 s
ch

em
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
lia

nt
 o

n 
w

al
ki

ng
 a

nd
 

cy
cl

in
g 

ro
ut

es
 a

nd
 b

us
 p

rio
rit

y 
to

 a
cc

es
s 

th
e 

ci
ty

 a
nd

 e
xi

st
in

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
po

lic
y 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 t
o 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

an
d 

m
ov

em
en

t 
m

od
es

. 

E
.8
9
 

 
4.

2.
57

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
A 

Pa
rk

 a
nd

 R
id

e 
Ch

oo
se

 s
ite

 is
 p

la
nn

ed
 o

n 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 n
or

th
er

n 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

ar
ea

, a
lo

ng
si

de
 t

he
 A

49
, 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 w

or
k 

in
 c

om
bi

na
tio

n 
w

ith
 t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

w
es

te
rn

 a
nd

 s
ou

th
er

n 
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 R

id
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

Th
es

e 
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 R

id
e 

ar
ea

s 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

ha
ve

 t
he

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 b

e 
‘P

ar
k 

an
d 

Ca
r 

Sh
ar

e’
 s

to
ps

 a
nd

 ‘P
ar

k 
an

d 
Cy

cl
e’

 p
oi

nt
s,

 s
o 

th
at

 t
he

ir 
fu

ll 
po

te
nt

ia
l i

n 
re

du
ci

ng
 p

riv
at

e 
ca

r 
us

e 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 c
ity

 c
an

 b
e 

re
al

is
ed

. 
Th

e 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 s
iti

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 R

id
e 

Ch
oo

se
 s

ho
ul

d 
ta

ke
 i

nt
o 

ac
co

un
t 

an
y 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
po

lic
y 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 t
o 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

an
d 

m
ov

em
en

t 
m

od
es

. 

E
.9
0
 

 
4.

2.
59

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Li

st
ed

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 a

 S
ch

ed
ul

ed
 A

nc
ie

nt
 M

on
um

en
t 

at
 S

t 
Ba

rt
ho

lo
m

ew
’s

 C
hu

rc
h 

an
d 

H
ol

m
er

 
H

ou
se

 li
e 

to
 t

he
 e

as
t 

of
 t

he
 e

xp
an

si
on

 a
re

a.
 N

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

si
gn

ed
 t

o 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 t
he

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 a
nd

 t
he

 s
et

tin
g 

of
 t

he
se

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
s 

ar
e 

m
in

im
is

ed
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t a

re
 p

ur
su

ed
 a

nd
 r

eg
ar

d 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ha
d 

to
 t

he
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 H
is

to
ric

 
La

nd
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

is
at

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
t.

 T
he

re
 i

s 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

fo
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 b

ur
ie

d 
ar

ch
ae

ol
og

ic
al

 r
em

ai
ns

 t
o 

su
rv

iv
e 

w
ith

in
 t

hi
s 

ar
ea

 a
s 

pa
rt

s 
ar

e 
of

 it
 a

re
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

to
 t

he
 R

om
an

 R
oa

d 
an

d 
ae

ria
l p

ho
to

gr
ap

hs
 

in
di

ca
te

 t
he

 p
re

se
nc

e 
of

 f
or

m
er

 s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 h
er

e.
 E

ar
th

w
or

ks
 a

ls
o 

in
di

ca
te

 t
he

 p
re

se
nc

e 
of

 
m

ed
ie

va
l s

et
tle

m
en

ts
 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

E
.9
1
 

 
4.

2.
61

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Ap

pr
op

ria
te

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 t

he
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

ne
ed

 t
o 

su
pp

or
t 

th
e 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

so
ug

ht
  

w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 f

or
 p

rim
ar

y 
an

d 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

liv
in

g 
in

 th
e 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
ar

ea
.  

Th
er

e 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 a

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

w
ar

ds
 e

xp
an

de
d 

pr
e-

sc
ho

ol
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 w
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pr
im

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

or
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

 n
ew

 p
re

-s
ch

oo
l f

ac
ili

ty
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 e
xp

an
si

on
 a

re
a.

   

To
 c

on
fir

m
 t

he
 b

as
is

 o
n 

w
hi

ch
 

de
ve

lo
pe

r 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
so

ug
ht

. 
 

E
.9
2
 

 
4.

2.
72

 
Ca

pi
ta

lis
e 

“R
el

ie
f R

oa
d”

.  
To

 
en

su
re

 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 
te

rm
in

ol
og

y 
is

 u
se

d.
 

138



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 2
9 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.9
3
 

 
4.

2.
73

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ill

 a
ls

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
a 

tr
an

sp
or

t i
nt

er
ch

an
ge

 a
re

a 
w

ith
 c

ap
ac

ity
 fo

r a
ro

un
d 

15
0 

sp
ac

es
 

Pa
rk

 a
nd

 C
ho

os
e 

si
te

 w
ith

  
an

d 
an

ci
lla

ry
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

se
cu

re
 c

yc
le

 l
oc

k 
up

s.
 I

n 
th

e 
sh

or
t 

to
 

m
ed

iu
m

 te
rm

, t
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 a

s 
a 

“P
ar

k 
an

d 
Sh

ar
e”

 a
nd

 “
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 C

yc
le

” 
hu

b 
bu

t l
on

ge
r t

er
m

, t
he

 
si

te
 m

ay
 a

ls
o 

be
 a

 P
ar

k 
an

d 
Ri

de
 s

ite
 t

o 
co

m
pl

em
en

t 
th

e 
pr

in
ci

pa
l P

ar
k 

an
d 

Ri
de

 s
ite

s 
no

rt
h 

an
d 

so
ut

h 
of

 th
e 

ci
ty

 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
po

lic
y 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 t
o 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

an
d 

m
ov

em
en

t 
m

od
es

. 

E
.9
4
 

 
4.

2.
78

 
D

el
et

e 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
e 

w
ith

: 
21

0 
pr

im
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

 p
la

ce
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l n

ee
ds

 o
f 

th
e 

ne
w

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
by

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
 A

 n
ew

 2
10

 p
la

ce
 p

rim
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l n

ee
ds

 o
f 

th
e 

ne
w

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
by

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
a 

de
fic

it 
in

 c
ap

ac
ity

 
w

ith
in

 e
xi

st
in

g 
sc

ho
ol

s 
in

 t
he

 n
or

th
 w

es
t 

of
 t

he
 c

ity
. T

hi
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ce

nt
ra

lly
 lo

ca
te

d 
cl

os
e 

to
 t

he
 

ex
is

tin
g 

hi
gh

 s
ch

oo
l t

o 
cr

ea
te

 a
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
hu

b 
to

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.
 I

f 
pr

e-
sc

ho
ol

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

is
 n

ot
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 c

om
m

un
ity

 h
ub

, t
hi

s 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 
ne

w
 p

rim
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

. 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
po

lic
y 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 t
o 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
 

E
.9
5
 

 
4.

2.
80

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Th

e 
Ya

zo
r 

Br
oo

k 
co

rr
id

or
 is

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

as
 fl

oo
dp

la
in

 w
hi

ch
 a

ls
o 

ex
te

nd
s 

to
 a

 w
id

er
 la

nd
 a

re
a 

at
 t

he
 

ea
st

er
n 

en
d 

of
 t

he
 e

xp
an

si
on

 a
re

a.
 T

he
 W

at
er

 C
yc

le
 S

tu
dy

 a
nd

 t
he

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 F

lo
od

 R
is

k 
As

se
ss

m
en

t 
ha

ve
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 t

ha
t a

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f n

ew
 s

ur
fa

ce
 w

at
er

 
di

sc
ha

rg
es

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 u

rb
an

 e
xt

en
si

on
 a

nd
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 m

iti
ga

te
 a

ga
in

st
 f

lu
vi

al
 f

lo
od

 r
is

k 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 T

hi
s 

is
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

en
co

m
pa

ss
 s

ur
fa

ce
 w

at
er

 a
tt

en
ua

tio
n 

fe
at

ur
es

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
an

 in
te

gr
al

 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
an

d 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

 e
nh

an
ce

m
en

t.
 A

 d
et

ai
le

d 
flo

od
 r

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 t
he

se
 is

su
es

. Y
az

or
 B

ro
ok

 is
 a

ls
o 

an
 e

xi
st

in
g 

so
ur

ce
 

of
 f

lo
od

in
g 

to
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s,
 c

om
m

un
ity

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
hi

gh
w

ay
 i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
ea

st
 o

f 
th

e 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ill
 a

ls
o 

ne
ed

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 a

ss
is

t i
n 

re
du

ci
ng

 th
is

 e
xi

st
in

g 
flo

od
 

ris
k,

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 n

at
io

na
l p

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
te

ch
ni

ca
l g

ui
da

nc
e 

on
 t

he
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 f
lo

od
 r

is
k.

  
Th

e 
ar

ea
 s

uf
fe

rs
 f

ro
m

 lo
w

 w
at

er
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
an

 u
pg

ra
de

 t
o 

th
e 

m
ai

ns
 w

at
er

 s
up

pl
y 

to
 

se
rv

e 
th

e 
ar

ea
 m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
  

 W
ith

 r
eg

ar
d 

to
 t

he
 W

hi
te

cr
os

s 
H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
 e

xp
an

si
on

, f
lo

od
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 r
eq

ui
re

d.
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 u

til
is

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
an

d 
ne

w
 p

la
yi

ng
 f

ie
ld

s 
fo

r 
flo

od
 b

et
te

rm
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
ex

pl
or

ed
. 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
po

lic
y.

 

139



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 3
0 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.9
6
 

 
4.

2.
90

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
 A

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t,
 a

 s
ou

th
er

n 
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 R

id
e 

Ch
oo

se
 s

ite
 is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
in

 t
he

 v
ic

in
ity

 o
f t

he
 

A4
9/

Ro
th

er
w

as
 A

cc
es

s 
Ro

ad
 r

ou
nd

ab
ou

t t
o 

co
m

pl
em

en
t 

th
os

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 n

or
th

 a
nd

 w
es

t o
f t

he
 c

ity
 

as
id

e 
ot

he
r 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
lo

ca
tio

ns
. T

he
se

 P
ar

k 
an

d 
Ri

de
 a

re
as

 s
ho

ul
d 

al
so

 h
av

e 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 t
o 

be
 P

ar
k 

an
d 

Ca
r 

Sh
ar

e 
hu

bs
, a

nd
 P

ar
k 

an
d 

Cy
cl

e 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
he

ir 
fu

ll 
po

te
nt

ia
l i

n 
re

du
ci

ng
 p

riv
at

e 
ca

r 
us

e 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 c
ity

. P
ro

vi
si

on
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

ne
ed

 t
o 

be
 in

cl
ud

ed
 fo

r 
a 

sm
al

l p
ar

ki
ng

 a
re

a 
to

 s
er

ve
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

ry
 

pa
rk

. 
Th

e 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 s
iti

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 R

id
e 

sh
ou

ld
 t

ak
e 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 a
ny

 i
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e.
 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
po

lic
y 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 t
o 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

an
d 

m
ov

em
en

t 
m

od
es

. 

E
.9
7
 

 
H

D
7 

Po
lic

y 
H

D
7 

– 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t P

ro
vi

si
on

 
H

er
ef

or
d 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

fo
cu

s 
fo

r 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

in
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

y.
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

su
pp

ly
 a

t H
er

ef
or

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 th

ro
ug

h:
 

• 
th

e 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 t

he
 c

ity
 c

en
tr

e 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 w
id

er
 c

ity
 r

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 i

nc
lu

de
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 u
se

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ne
w

 o
ff

ic
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
an

d 
cr

ea
tin

g 
a 

be
tt

er
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
fo

r 
ex

is
tin

g 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

. P
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r 
of

fic
e 

us
es

 o
ut

si
de

 o
f t

he
 c

ity
 c

en
tr

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 th
e 

se
qu

en
tia

l 
te

st
, a

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 2
4 

of
 th

e 
N

PP
F;

 
• 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 a
t 

H
er

ef
or

d 
En

te
rp

ris
e 

Zo
ne

 a
t 

Ro
th

er
w

as
 t

o 
st

re
ng

th
en

 t
he

 e
nt

er
pr

is
e 

zo
ne

, 
w

ith
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 f
oc

us
 o

n 
de

fe
nc

e 
an

d 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

se
ct

or
s,

 
cr

ea
tin

g 
ad

de
d 

be
ne

fit
 fo

r c
om

pa
ni

es
 w

ho
 lo

ca
te

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
; 

• 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
sm

al
l 

sc
al

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

an
d 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
ba

se
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

; a
nd

   
• 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 n
ew

 a
re

as
 o

f e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
la

nd
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 
ur

ba
n 

ex
te

ns
io

ns
. 

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 c

la
rit

y.
 

E
.9
8
 

 
4.

2.
10

3 
D

el
et

e 
se

nt
en

ce
: 

Fo
llo

w
in

g 
de

si
gn

at
io

n,
 s

tu
di

es
 w

er
e 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 t

o 
ex

am
in

e 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 b

en
ef

its
 o

f 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

ro
ad

 i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

to
 s

er
ve

 t
he

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Zo
ne

. 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
e 

re
po

rt
s,

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
, w

id
er

 s
oc

ia
l a

nd
 t

ra
ff

ic
 im

pa
ct

s 
of

 a
n 

ea
st

er
n 

lin
k 

ro
ad

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Zo

ne
 t

o 
th

e 
A4

38
 L

ed
bu

ry
 R

oa
d,

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 in
cl

us
io

n 
of

 s
uc

h 
a 

lin
k 

in
 th

e 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

To
 

de
le

te
 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

te
xt

 
fr

om
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

140



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 3
1 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.9
9
 

 
4.

2.
10

7 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Al

th
ou

gh
 t

hi
s 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
ar

k 
is

 l
oc

at
ed

 7
km

 n
or

th
 o

f 
H

er
ef

or
d,

 i
t 

is
 o

ne
 o

f 
th

e 
co

un
ty

’s
 l

ar
ge

st
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

si
te

s 
an

d 
is

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
ly

 c
lo

se
 t

o 
H

er
ef

or
d 

to
 a

ss
is

t 
in

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

an
d 

fu
tu

re
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

ne
ed

s.
 

Th
is

 
si

te
 

pr
es

en
tly

 
co

m
pr

is
es

 
60

,0
00

 
m

² 
of

 
pr

ed
om

in
an

tly
 

B1
 

an
d 

B8
 

flo
or

sp
ac

e,
 

al
th

ou
gh

 a
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 
ha

s 
be

en
 

gr
an

te
d 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

is
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 
be

in
g 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 f

or
 a

ro
un

d 
a 

fu
rt

he
r 

51
,0

00
 m

² 
of

 m
ix

ed
 B

1,
 B

2 
an

d 
B8

 f
lo

or
sp

ac
e,

 t
ot

al
lin

g 
an

 
ad

di
tio

na
l 2

1 
he

ct
ar

es
. 

Th
e 

si
te

 is
 r

at
ed

 a
s 

‘g
oo

d’
 in

 t
he

 E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
La

nd
 S

tu
dy

 2
01

2 
an

d 
if 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

is
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

, 
th

e 
si

te
 

w
ill

 
of

fe
r 

a 
di

ve
rs

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 

ne
w

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
. 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
te

xt
. 

To
 

re
m

ov
e 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

te
xt

 
fr

om
 th

e 
Pl

an
. 

4.
3 

Br
om

ya
rd

 P
la

ce
 S

ha
pi

ng
 

E
.1
0
0
 

 
4.

3.
1 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

As
 p

ar
t 

of
 th

e 
vi

si
on

 fo
r 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
, B

ro
m

ya
rd

 w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 fu

lfi
l a

 d
iv

er
se

 r
an

ge
 o

f i
m

po
rt

an
t 

ro
le

s 
as

 a
 fo

cu
s 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l, 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t,

 r
ec

re
at

io
na

l a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l u
se

s.
 T

he
 t

ow
n 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 
to

 a
ct

 a
s 

a 
se

rv
ic

e 
ce

nt
re

 f
or

 it
s 

hi
nt

er
la

nd
 t

he
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 r

ur
al

 a
re

a.
 T

he
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

pr
om

ot
es

 t
he

 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 t

he
 t

ow
n,

 t
ak

in
g 

in
to

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
its

 n
ee

ds
, 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 
co

ns
tr

ai
nt

s.
 T

hi
s 

vi
si

on
 is

 m
an

ife
st

ed
 in

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 1
, 4

, 6
, 8

 a
nd

 1
0,

 w
hi

ch
 f

or
 B

ro
m

ya
rd

, 
ce

nt
re

 o
n 

m
ee

tin
g 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
), 

re
du

ci
ng

 t
he

 n
ee

d 
to

 t
ra

ve
l, 

fa
ci

lit
at

in
g 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
di

ve
rs

ifi
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
de

liv
er

y 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

se
rv

ic
es

. T
he

 s
pa

tia
l s

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r 

Br
om

ya
rd

 is
 b

al
an

ce
d 

ag
ai

ns
t 

its
 u

ni
qu

e 
ne

ed
s,

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
co

ns
tr

ai
nt

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 re
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
to

w
n 

pr
of

ile
 m

ap
 in

 F
ig

ur
e 

4.
4.

 

To
 

en
su

re
 

us
e 

of
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

te
rm

in
ol

og
y 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 

th
e 

pl
an

. 

E
.1
0
1
 

 
Fi

g 
4.

4 
D

el
et

e 
so

ur
ce

 re
fe

re
nc

e:
 

“h
tt

p:
//

fa
ct

sa
nd

fig
ur

es
.h

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

.g
ov

.u
k/

yo
ur

ar
ea

.a
sp

x”
 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
e 

w
ith

: 
“h

tt
p:

//
fa

ct
sa

nd
fig

ur
es

.h
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
.g

ov
.u

k/
 “

 

To
 

en
su

re
 

th
at

 
so

ur
ce

 
re

fe
re

nc
es

 in
 t

he
 p

la
n 

ar
e 

up
 t

o 
da

te
. 

141



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 3
2 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.1
0
2
 

 
4.

3.
2 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

To
 a

ch
ie

ve
 t

he
 v

is
io

n 
fo

r 
Br

om
ya

rd
, 

a 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ur
ba

n 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

is
 

pr
op

os
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
w

es
t 

ar
ea

 o
f 

th
e 

to
w

n.
 I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 n

ew
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 o
f 

ar
ou

nd
 5

 
he

ct
ar

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 B
ro

m
ya

rd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

. 
Th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 

ho
us

in
g 

at
 H

ar
dw

ic
k 

Ba
nk

 i
s 

lo
ca

te
d 

on
 m

ai
nl

y 
‘h

ig
h’

 a
nd

 ‘
m

ed
iu

m
-h

ig
h’

 s
en

si
tiv

ity
 l

an
ds

ca
pe

 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 

th
e 

U
rb

an
 

Fr
in

ge
 

Se
ns

iti
vi

ty
 

An
al

ys
is

 
20

10
. 

H
ig

h 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s 

ar
e 

pr
ed

om
in

an
t a

ll 
ar

ou
nd

 B
ro

m
ya

rd
 a

nd
 fl

oo
di

ng
 is

su
es

 a
ls

o 
co

ns
tr

ai
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

o 
th

e 
ea

st
 o

f t
he

 
to

w
n.

 T
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
co

ns
tr

ai
nt

s 
of

 B
ro

m
ya

rd
 m

us
t 

be
 b

al
an

ce
d 

w
ith

 t
he

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

 T
he

 s
pa

tia
l s

tr
at

eg
y 

pr
op

os
es

 to
 d

ire
ct

 s
om

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
o 

Br
om

ya
rd

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 it

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
ce

nt
re

 ro
le

, m
ee

t l
oc

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 fu
rt

he
r e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r t

he
 

lo
ca

l 
co

m
m

un
ity

. 
Po

lic
ie

s 
BY

1 
an

d 
BY

2 
se

t 
ou

t 
ho

w
 t

he
 s

pa
tia

l 
st

ra
te

gy
 f

or
 B

ro
m

ya
rd

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 a
nd

 m
an

ag
ed

 a
nd

 a
re

 il
lu

st
ra

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Br

om
ya

rd
 K

ey
 D

ia
gr

am
 –

 F
ig

ur
e 

4.
5.

 

To
 r

es
po

nd
 t

o 
th

e 
fa

ct
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

To
w

n 
Co

un
ci

l 
ha

s 
de

ci
de

d 
no

t 
to

 
pr

od
uc

e 
a 

Br
om

ya
rd

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 P
la

n.
  P

ro
po

sa
ls

 
fo

r 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
Co

un
ci

l 
to

 
pr

od
uc

e 
Br

om
ya

rd
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 

ar
e 

no
w

 
in

cl
ud

ed
 

in
 

re
vi

si
on

s 
to

 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

ch
em

e.
 

E
.1
0
3
 

 
Fi

g 
4.

5 
D

el
et

e 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

on
 m

ap
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
   

N
ew

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t s
ite

 to
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 B
ro

m
ya

rd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n.

 
  

To
 a

vo
id

 a
ny

 m
is

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
ab

ou
t 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 
fu

tu
re

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t l
an

d.
 

E
.1
0
4
 

 
4.

3.
7 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

Th
e 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
sh

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
a 

ne
tw

or
k 

of
 c

yc
le

 w
ay

s 
an

d 
fo

ot
pa

th
s 

th
at

 a
re

 e
as

ily
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
an

d 
co

nn
ec

t 
w

ith
 t

he
 t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
, 

ex
is

tin
g 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

si
te

s,
 c

om
m

un
ity

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
co

un
tr

ys
id

e.
 

Th
is

 
is

 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 

im
po

rt
an

t 
gi

ve
n 

th
e 

pe
rip

he
ra

l 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
re

a.
 C

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 w

ill
 b

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Br
om

ya
rd

 A
re

a 
Pl

an
 a

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
an

d/
or

 o
th

er
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
.  

 

To
 

re
sp

on
d 

to
 

th
e 

fa
ct

 
th

at
 

th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

in
te

nt
io

n 
to

 
pr

og
re

ss
 

w
ith

 
a 

Br
om

ya
rd

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
Pl

an
. 

 
In

 
th

e 
ab

se
nc

e 
of

 
su

ch
 

a 
Pl

an
 

th
e 

Co
un

ci
l i

s 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 to
 d

ra
ft

in
g 

a 
Br

om
ya

rd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 
fo

r t
he

 to
w

n.
 

 
4.

2.
 K

in
gt

on
 P

la
ce

 s
ha

pi
ng

 

E
.1
0
5
 

 
Fi

g 
4.

7 
D

el
et

e 
so

ur
ce

 re
fe

re
nc

e:
 

“h
tt

p:
//

fa
ct

sa
nd

fig
ur

es
.h

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

.g
ov

.u
k/

yo
ur

ar
ea

.a
sp

x”
 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
e 

w
ith

: 
“h

tt
p:

//
fa

ct
sa

nd
fig

ur
es

.h
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
.g

ov
.u

k/
 “

 
  

To
 

en
su

re
 

th
at

 
so

ur
ce

 
re

fe
re

nc
es

 in
 t

he
 p

la
n 

ar
e 

up
 t

o 
da

te
. 

142



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 3
3 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

4.
3.
 Le

db
ur

y 
Pl

ac
e 

Sh
ap

in
g 

E
.1
0
6
 

 
Fi

g 
4.

9 
 A

m
en

d 
so

ur
ce

 te
xt

 a
t b

ot
to

m
 o

f F
ig

 4
.9

 to
 re

ad
: 

ht
tp

:/
/f

ac
ts

an
df

ig
ur

es
.h

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

.g
ov

.u
k/

yo
ur

ar
ea

/a
sp

x 
To

 u
pd

at
e 

w
eb

 li
nk

 a
dd

re
ss

 

E
.1
0
7
 

 

   
 4

.5
.3

 
Am

en
d 

la
st

 s
en

te
nc

e 
 

“T
he

 r
em

ai
ni

ng
 h

ou
si

ng
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

fo
r 

Le
db

ur
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 e
xi

st
in

g 
co

m
m

itm
en

ts
, 

w
in

df
al

ls
 a

nd
/o

r 
th

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 s

ite
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

ei
th

er
 a

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 a
nd

/o
r 

ot
he

r D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
D

oc
um

en
ts

.”
 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
Pl

an
. 

E
.1
0
8
 

 
4.

5.
5 

D
el

et
e 

la
st

 p
ar

t o
f f

irs
t s

en
te

nc
e:

 
“L

an
d 

no
rt

h 
of

 t
he

 v
ia

du
ct

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
ar

ou
nd

 3
 h

ec
ta

re
s 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 (
in

 a
dd

iti
on

 t
o 

an
y 

ex
is

tin
g 

co
m

m
itm

en
ts

), 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
st

ric
te

d 
to

 u
se

 c
la

ss
 B

1 
(li

gh
t 

in
du

st
ry

, o
ff

ic
es

, r
es

ea
rc

h 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t)
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 c
om

pl
em

en
t t

he
 la

rg
er

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t a
re

a 
an

d 
to

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
am

en
ity

. B
y 

re
qu

iri
ng

 t
hi

s 
to

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

al
on

g 
th

e 
bo

un
da

ry
 w

ith
 t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

in
du

st
ria

l e
st

at
e,

 t
hi

s 
w

ill
 a

ct
 a

s 
a 

no
is

e 
bu

ff
er

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
ne

w
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 e

xi
st

in
g 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
. 

Sm
al

l-s
ca

le
 s

ite
s 

fo
r 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

us
e 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 a
nd

/o
r 

ot
he

r 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
.”

 

As
 a

 c
on

se
qu

en
tia

l 
ch

an
ge

 t
o 

bu
lle

t 2
 o

f P
ol

ic
y 

LB
2 

E
.1
0
9
 

 
4.

5.
6 

Am
en

d 
th

ird
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 
“N

ew
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

in
 t

he
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

, 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 t
he

 f
or

th
co

m
in

g 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 D

oc
um

en
ts

, w
ill

 a
ls

o 
pr

om
ot

e 
lo

ca
l 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s.

” 

To
 

up
da

te
 

an
d 

to
 

re
m

ov
e 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

te
xt

 

E
.1
1
0
 

 
4.

5.
8 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

Th
e 

is
su

e 
of

 c
ar

 p
ar

ki
ng

 s
up

pl
y 

an
d 

de
m

an
d 

at
 t

he
 r

ai
lw

ay
 s

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
in

 t
he

 t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

 w
ill

 b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 

an
d/

or
 

ot
he

r 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 
D

oc
um

en
ts

  

To
 

up
da

te
 

an
d 

to
 

re
m

ov
e 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

te
xt

 

E
.1
1
1
 

 
4.

5.
10

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
A 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

 n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 e

xi
st

in
g 

de
si

gn
at

io
ns

 in
 L

ed
bu

ry
 w

ill
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

a 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
an

d/
or

 o
th

er
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

To
 

up
da

te
 

an
d 

to
 

re
m

ov
e 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

te
xt

 

143



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 3
4 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.1
1
2
 

 
4.

5.
13

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
A 

la
nd

m
ar

k 
fe

at
ur

e 
of

 L
ed

bu
ry

 is
 it

s 
ra

ilw
ay

 v
ia

du
ct

 w
hi

ch
 is

 G
ra

de
 II

 li
st

ed
. A

ny
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f t
he

 
vi

ad
uc

t 
si

te
 w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 r

es
pe

ct
 t

he
 s

et
tin

g 
an

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e 
of

 t
he

 v
ia

du
ct

, 
ye

t 
re

ga
rd

 i
t 

as
 a

 
po

si
tiv

e 
fe

at
ur

e 
to

 b
e 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 w

ith
in

, a
nd

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
m

as
te

r p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
de

si
gn

 o
f, 

an
y 

sc
he

m
e.

 
 

To
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 t

he
 w

or
di

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
N

PP
F.

 

E
.1
1
3
 

 
4.

5.
15

 
Am

en
d 

la
st

 s
en

te
nc

e:
 

Th
e 

ne
ed

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

To
w

n 
Ce

nt
re

s 
St

ud
y 

U
pd

at
e 

20
12

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 r
eg

ul
ar

ly
 a

ga
in

st
 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 c

ap
ac

ity
 a

nd
 t

he
 id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 a

ny
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 t
o 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

m
ay

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 
an

d/
or

 
ot

he
r 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 

D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

 

To
 

up
da

te
 

an
d 

to
 

re
m

ov
e 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

te
xt

 

4.
4.
 Le

om
in

st
er

 P
la

ce
 S

ha
pi

ng
 

E
.1
1
4
 

 
4.

6.
1 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

Le
om

in
st

er
, a

s 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

ce
nt

re
 in

 t
he

 n
or

th
 o

f 
th

e 
co

un
ty

, w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

fu
lfi

l a
 d

iv
er

se
 r

an
ge

 o
f 

im
po

rt
an

t 
ro

le
s 

as
 a

 c
en

tr
e 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l, 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t,

 c
ul

tu
ra

l, 
re

ta
il,

 t
ou

ris
m

 a
nd

 r
ec

re
at

io
na

l 
us

es
. L

eo
m

in
st

er
 w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 t

o 
ac

t a
s 

a 
se

rv
ic

e 
ce

nt
re

 to
 it

s 
ru

ra
l h

in
te

rla
nd

 t
he

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 r
ur

al
 

ar
ea

s.
 T

hi
s 

st
ra

te
gy

 s
ee

ks
 t

o 
pr

om
ot

e 
th

e 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 t

he
 t

ow
n,

 t
ak

in
g 

in
to

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

its
 n

ee
ds

, o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
co

ns
tr

ai
nt

s.
 

To
 

en
su

re
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

te
rm

in
ol

og
y 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 

th
e 

pl
an

. 

E
.1
1
5
 

 
Fi

g 
4.

12
 

In
se

rt
 u

pd
at

ed
 w

eb
 a

dd
re

ss
:  

  
ht

tp
:/

/f
ac

ts
an

df
ig

ur
es

.h
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
.g

ov
.u

k/
 

To
 

re
m

ov
e 

ou
t 

of
 

da
te

 
re

fe
re

nc
es

 

E
.1
1
6
 

 
4.

6.
3 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

Re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

is
 p

ro
po

se
d 

to
 t

he
 s

ou
th

-w
es

t 
of

 t
he

 t
ow

n.
 T

he
 d

ec
is

io
n 

to
 f

oc
us

 t
he

 
la

rg
es

t s
in

gl
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 to
 L

eo
m

in
st

er
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

re
co

gn
iti

on
 o

f 
its

 e
co

no
m

ic
 im

po
rt

an
ce

 lo
ca

te
d 

on
 t

he
 A

49
 c

or
rid

or
; t

ha
t 

it 
is

 t
he

 le
as

t 
co

ns
tr

ai
ne

d 
m

ar
ke

t 
to

w
n;

 
its

 g
oo

d 
pu

bl
ic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 li

nk
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
ra

ilw
ay

 s
ta

tio
n;

 a
nd

 t
ha

t 
an

 u
rb

an
 e

xt
en

si
on

 w
ill

 b
rin

g 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

be
ne

fit
s 

in
 t

he
 fo

rm
 o

f a
 s

ou
th

er
n 

lin
k 

re
lie

f r
oa

d.
 T

he
 la

tt
er

 w
ill

 b
en

ef
it 

th
e 

ce
nt

re
 o

f t
he

 
to

w
n 

in
 te

rm
s 

of
 re

du
ci

ng
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ai
r q

ua
lit

y.
 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 t
he

 
ro

ad
 

E
.1
1
7
 

 
Fi

gu
re

 
4.

13
 

Am
en

d 
la

be
l f

or
 n

ew
 ro

ad
: 

So
ut

he
rn

 L
in

k 
Re

lie
f R

oa
d 

Co
rr

id
or

 
To

 
en

su
re

 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 
te

rm
in

ol
og

y.
 

144



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 3
5 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.1
1
8
 

 
4.

6.
6 

Th
ird

 s
en

te
nc

e:
 

An
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 m

ix
 o

f 
ho

us
in

g 
w

ill
 b

e 
ne

ed
ed

, 
in

fo
rm

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
m

os
t 

up
 t

o 
da

te
 L

oc
al

 H
ou

si
ng

 
M

ar
ke

t 
As

se
ss

m
en

t,
 in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 a
ll 

se
ct

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 c

om
m

un
ity

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ho

us
in

g 
fo

r 
ol

de
r 

pe
rs

on
s.

 -
a 

ne
ed

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

st
ud

y 
of

 t
he

 H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 S
up

po
rt

 n
ee

ds
 o

f 
O

ld
er

 
Pe

op
le

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 2
01

2.
” 

Ad
di

tio
na

l 
te

xt
 

to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

cl
ar

ifi
ca

tio
n.

 
D

el
et

io
n 

to
 

re
m

ov
e 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

te
xt

. 

E
.1
1
9
 

 
4.

6.
9 

D
el

et
e:

 
D

et
ai

le
d 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

m
is

si
on

 h
as

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

be
en

 g
ra

nt
ed

 fo
r 

42
5 

dw
el

lin
gs

 a
t 

Ba
ro

ns
 C

ro
ss

 C
am

p,
 

Ch
ol

st
re

y 
Ro

ad
. 

Th
is

 
br

ow
nf

ie
ld

 
si

te
 

w
as

 
an

 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

un
de

r 
th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
U

ni
ta

ry
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 a

nd
 i

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 t
o 

be
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pl
an

 p
er

io
d.

 T
he

 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 n
on

-s
tr

at
eg

ic
 h

ou
si

ng
 in

 L
eo

m
in

st
er

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 s
m

al
le

r 
sc

al
e 

si
te

s 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
bu

ilt
 u

p 
ar

ea
 i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 a
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

an
d/

or
 o

th
er

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
D

oc
um

en
ts

 

D
el

et
io

n 
to

 
re

m
ov

e 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
an

d 
ou

t 
of

 
da

te
  

te
xt

. 

E
.1
2
0
 

 
4.

6.
11

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Pr

ev
io

us
 s

tu
di

es
 h

av
e 

in
di

ca
te

d 
th

at
 th

e 
Th

e 
Ba

rg
at

es
 a

re
a 

of
 th

e 
to

w
n 

su
ff

er
s 

fr
om

 c
on

ge
st

io
n 

an
d 

w
ith

ou
t 

ne
w

 r
oa

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 t
he

 p
ot

en
tia

l g
ro

w
th

 o
f 

Le
om

in
st

er
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

lim
ite

d.
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

, 
th

e 
Ba

rg
at

es
 a

re
a 

is
 a

ls
o 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 a

s 
an

 A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Ar
ea

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 p

oo
r 

ai
r 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 n

ew
 r

oa
d 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 w

ou
ld

 e
na

bl
e 

m
uc

h 
of

 th
e 

he
av

y 
ve

hi
cu

la
r t

ra
ff

ic
 to

 b
e 

di
ve

rt
ed

 
fr

om
 th

is
 a

re
a.

 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
te

xt
. 

E
.1
2
1
 

 
4.

6.
12

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

: 
Th

e 
ur

ba
n 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
pr

ov
id

es
 t

he
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
ne

w
 r

oa
d 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

s 
an

 i
nt

eg
ra

l 
el

em
en

t 
of

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.
  A

 li
nk

 r
el

ie
f 

ro
ad

 c
on

ne
ct

in
g 

th
e 

W
or

ce
st

er
 R

oa
d 

ro
un

da
bo

ut
 t

o 
th

e 
A4

4 
at

 B
ar

on
’s

 C
ro

ss
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d.
 M

uc
h 

of
 t

he
 li

nk
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 B
43

61
 H

er
ef

or
d 

Ro
ad

 t
o 

th
e 

W
or

ce
st

er
 R

oa
d 

ro
un

da
bo

ut
 h

as
 a

lre
ad

y 
be

en
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
, w

ith
 a

 s
m

al
l a

re
a 

of
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
20

0 
ya

rd
s 

ne
ed

ed
 t

o 
co

m
pl

et
e 

th
e 

lin
k.

 T
he

 e
nt

ire
 l

in
k 

re
lie

f 
ro

ad
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

si
gn

ed
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
di

re
ct

 a
nd

 m
or

e 
co

nv
en

ie
nt

 r
ou

te
 fo

r 
ve

hi
cl

es
 a

nd
 a

vo
id

 t
he

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 
th

ro
ug

h 
tr

af
fic

 t
o 

pa
ss

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

, a
nd

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

, t
he

 B
ar

ga
te

s 
ju

nc
tio

n.
 T

he
 li

nk
 r

el
ie

f 
ro

ad
 is

 a
ls

o 
lik

el
y 

to
 r

eq
ui

re
 n

ew
 r

ou
nd

ab
ou

t 
ju

nc
tio

ns
 o

n 
th

e 
B4

36
1 

an
d 

A4
4 

an
d 

an
 e

xt
en

si
on

 o
f t

he
 h

ig
hw

ay
 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 in

 th
e 

so
ut

h 
w

es
t c

or
ne

r o
f t

he
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Pa

rk
. 

To
 

en
su

re
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

te
rm

in
ol

og
y 

is
 u

se
d 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 

th
e 

pl
an

. 

145



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 3
6 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.1
2
2
 

 
4.

6.
17

 
Th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

 n
ew

 c
om

bi
ne

d 
in

fa
nt

 a
nd

 j
un

io
r 

sc
ho

ol
 i

s 
cu

rr
en

tly
 u

nd
er

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
to

 
re

pl
ac

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

in
 t

he
 t

ow
n.

  T
hi

s 
ne

w
 s

ch
oo

l w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 u
p 

to
 6

30
 p

la
ce

s 
w

hi
ch

 m
ee

ts
 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

ne
ed

.  
H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 T

he
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 h
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 t
he

 u
rb

an
 e

xt
en

si
on

 w
ill

 p
la

ce
 

cr
ea

te
 a

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 
a 

ne
w

 p
rim

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
 o

f u
p 

to
 4

20
 p

la
ce

s 
pr

im
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

 p
la

ce
s.

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
, t

he
re

 
w

ill
 b

e 
a 

ne
ed

 f
or

 a
 c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
ce

nt
re

 f
or

 t
he

 e
ar

ly
 y

ea
rs

 w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 f
or

m
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
hu

b.
 In

 t
er

m
s 

of
 h

ig
h 

sc
ho

ol
 p

la
ce

s,
 t

he
 E

ar
l M

or
tim

er
 C

ol
le

ge
 h

as
 a

de
qu

at
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 t
o 

co
ve

r 
th

e 
ne

w
 g

ro
w

th
 o

f t
he

 to
w

n.
 T

he
se

 n
ew

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ill
 h

el
p 

cr
ea

te
 a

 m
or

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

.”
 

To
 

re
m

ov
e 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

te
xt

 
fr

om
 th

e 
pl

an
. 

E
.1
2
3
 

 
4.

6.
18

 
Am

en
d 

se
co

nd
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 
Ar

ch
ae

ol
og

ic
al

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
ha

s 
be

en
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

, 
in

 L
eo

m
in

st
er

, 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 a

t 
la

nd
 s

ou
th

 o
f 

Ba
ro

ns
 

Cr
os

s 
w

he
re

 t
he

re
 a

re
 e

ar
th

w
or

ks
. T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ro
ut

e 
of

 t
he

 s
ou

th
er

n 
lin

k 
re

lie
f 

ro
ad

 n
ee

ds
 f

ul
l 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

pr
io

r 
to

 a
ny

 w
or

ks
 t

ak
in

g 
pl

ac
e 

on
 t

he
 s

ou
th

 w
es

t 
ex

te
ns

io
n.

 T
he

 S
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 

Ap
pr

ai
sa

l h
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 th
at

 a
ny

 a
rc

ha
eo

lo
gi

ca
l c

on
ce

rn
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 s

ite
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d,
 

th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

do
ne

 a
t t

he
 m

as
te

r p
la

nn
in

g 
st

ag
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
d 

de
ta

ile
d 

fie
ld

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
 

To
 

en
su

re
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

te
rm

in
ol

og
y 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 

th
e 

pl
an

. 
To

 re
m

ov
e 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

te
xt

. 

E
.1
2
4
 

 
4.

6.
19

 
Am

en
d 

fin
al

 s
en

te
nc

e:
 

“I
t 

m
ay

 a
ls

o 
be

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 t
o 

co
ns

id
er

 S
sm

al
l s

ca
le

 c
on

ve
ni

en
ce

 r
et

ai
l t

o 
w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
ur

ba
n 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

 d
ay

 to
 d

ay
 n

ee
ds

 o
f t

he
 re

si
de

nt
s 

of
 th

e 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t.

” 

To
 b

et
te

r 
re

fle
ct

 t
he

 w
or

di
ng

 o
f 

Po
lic

y 
LO

2 

E
.1
2
5
 

 
4.

6.
23

 
Re

na
m

e 
th

e 
tit

le
 o

f t
hi

s 
se

ct
io

n 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

 
 “

Su
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
 m

an
ag

em
en

t,
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

flu
vi

al
 fl

oo
di

ng
” 

 

To
 

up
da

te
 

th
e 

pl
an

 
an

d 
fo

r 
cl

ar
ity

 

4.
5.
 R

os
s 

on
 W

ye
 P

la
ce

 S
ha

pi
ng

 

E
.1
2
6
 

 
Fi

gu
re

 
4.

15
 

In
se

rt
 u

pd
at

ed
 w

eb
 a

dd
re

ss
:  

  
ht

tp
:/

/f
ac

ts
an

df
ig

ur
es

.h
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
.g

ov
.u

k/
 

To
 

re
m

ov
e 

ou
t 

of
 

da
te

 
re

fe
re

nc
es

 

146



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 3
7 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.1
2
7
 

 
4.

7.
9 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
: 

Th
e 

co
nt

in
ua

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 U

ni
ta

ry
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 T
he

 p
ol

ic
y 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

 t
o 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
of

 t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 h

ou
si

ng
 l

oc
at

io
n 

at
 M

od
el

 F
ar

m
, 

w
ill

 h
el

p 
fa

ci
lit

at
e 

gr
ea

te
r 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 f
or

 t
he

 r
es

id
en

ts
 o

f 
Ro

ss
-o

n-
W

ye
. 

Th
is

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
ar

ea
 is

 lo
ca

te
d 

at
 a

n 
im

po
rt

an
t 

en
tr

an
ce

 to
 th

e 
to

w
n 

an
d 

co
ns

is
ts

 o
f a

 fa
rm

 a
nd

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l f
ie

ld
s 

w
ith

 a
 fi

el
d 

bu
ff

er
 to

 
th

e 
ne

ar
by

 r
es

id
en

tia
l a

re
a 

to
 t

he
 w

es
t.

 A
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

fo
r 

B1
, B

2 
an

d 
B8

 u
se

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
ed

, 
w

hi
ch

 s
ho

ul
d 

in
cl

ud
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 l

an
ds

ca
pi

ng
 t

o 
fo

rm
 a

 k
ey

 e
le

m
en

t 
of

 a
ny

 
pr

op
os

al
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

, p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 e
as

te
rn

 e
dg

e 
w

hi
ch

 is
 o

pe
n 

to
 lo

ng
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

vi
ew

s 
  

To
 b

rin
g 

th
e 

do
cu

m
en

t 
up

 t
o 

da
te

 b
y 

re
m

ov
in

g 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 

th
e 

U
D

P 
an

d 
to

 
co

rr
ec

t 
pu

nc
tu

at
io

n.
 

E
.1
2
8
 

 
4.

7.
10

 
Am

en
d 

fir
st

 s
en

te
nc

e 
to

 re
ad

: 
Th

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
r o

f t
he

 M
od

el
 F

ar
m

 a
re

a.
. 

    

Fo
r c

la
rit

y 

Ru
ra

l A
re

as
 

E
.1
2
9
 

 
4.

8.
1 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
ru

ra
l a

re
as

 o
ut

si
de

 o
f 

H
er

ef
or

d 
an

d 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

t 
to

w
ns

 r
ec

og
ni

se
s 

th
e 

m
an

y 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 i
n 

se
cu

rin
g 

th
ei

r 
lo

ng
 t

er
m

 f
ut

ur
e 

in
 a

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 m
an

ne
r.

 T
he

 c
on

ce
pt

 o
f 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
is

 b
as

ed
 u

po
n 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

oc
ia

l, 
ec

on
om

ic
 a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l f

ac
to

rs
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 
th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

f 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t,
 m

ar
ke

t 
an

d 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

, 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

, 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t,
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 i

nt
an

gi
bl

e 
fa

ct
or

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
so

ci
al

 f
ab

ric
 r

ef
le

ct
in

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
co

he
si

on
, i

nt
er

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 a

nd
 c

om
m

itm
en

t. 
 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
te

xt
. 

E
.1
3
0
 

 
4.

8.
2 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

is
 a

bo
ut

 p
os

iti
ve

 g
ro

w
th

. a
nd

 t
he

re
fo

re
 g

ai
ns

 in
 t

he
se

 th
re

e 
di

m
en

si
on

s 
of

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 a
re

 is
 c

en
tr

al
 t

o 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

a 
st

ro
ng

 li
vi

ng
 a

nd
 w

or
ki

ng
 r

ur
al

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

an
d 

m
ee

tin
g 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 1

, 5
, 8

, 8
a,

 1
0 

an
d 

12
 o

f t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
.  

To
 i

m
pr

ov
e 

cl
ar

ity
 o

f 
te

xt
 a

nd
 

to
 

in
cl

ud
e 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 
pr

op
os

ed
 n

ew
 o

bj
ec

tiv
e 

8a
. 

E
.1
3
1
 

 
4.

8.
3  

To
 a

ch
ie

ve
 t

hi
s 

ai
m

, t
he

 r
ur

al
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

se
ek

 to
 e

nh
an

ce
 t

he
 r

ol
e 

th
e 

co
un

ty
’s

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

 v
ill

ag
es

 h
av

e 
tr

ad
iti

on
al

ly
 p

la
ye

d 
as

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e,

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 c
en

tr
es

 f
or

 t
he

ir 
ru

ra
l 

ca
tc

hm
en

ts
. 

Th
er

ef
or

e 
th

e 
Fo

r 
cl

ar
ity

 a
nd

 c
on

si
st

en
cy

. T
he

 
w

or
d 

‘v
ill

ag
e’

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
pl

ac
ed

 

147



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 3
8 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

po
si

tiv
e 

gr
ow

th
 o

f 
ex

is
tin

g 
vi

lla
ge

s 
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 r

ur
al

 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 a
nd

 h
ou

si
ng

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
, 

th
at

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
es

 t
ow

ar
ds

 m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 t
he

ir 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

nd
 s

tr
en

gt
he

ni
ng

 t
he

se
 c

en
tr

es
 a

s 
hi

ve
s 

of
 a

ct
iv

ity
 b

ot
h 

so
ci

al
ly

 a
nd

 e
co

no
m

ic
al

ly
 w

ill
 

be
 s

up
po

rt
ed

. 

w
ith

 
‘s

et
tle

m
en

t’
 

w
he

re
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.
 

E
.1
3
2
 

 
4.

8.
4 

W
ith

in
 t

hi
s 

la
rg

e,
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

 r
ur

al
 c

ou
nt

y,
 it

 is
 a

pp
ar

en
t 

th
at

 d
iff

er
en

t 
ar

ea
s 

of
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
ha

ve
 t

he
ir 

ow
n 

id
en

tit
ie

s 
sh

ap
ed

 b
y 

a 
va

rie
ty

 o
f 

fa
ct

or
s 

an
d 

af
fin

iti
es

 t
ha

t 
ha

ve
 e

vo
lv

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 

tim
e.

 A
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
as

pe
ct

 o
f 

th
is

 g
eo

gr
ap

hy
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

to
 a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 l

oc
al

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 i

s 
th

e 
se

tt
le

m
en

t 
pa

tt
er

n.
 A

s 
th

e 
pa

tt
er

n 
of

 r
ur

al
 s

et
tle

m
en

ts
 v

ar
ie

s,
 a

 m
or

e 
lo

ca
lis

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 t

he
 

ru
ra

l a
re

as
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
fo

r t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
. 

To
 a

dd
 c

la
rit

y 
to

 te
xt

 

E
.1
3
3
 

 
4.

8.
5 

Th
is

 T
he

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
ad

op
te

d 
bu

ild
s 

up
on

 w
or

k 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 o
n 

H
ou

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t A

re
as

 (H
M

As
) t

hr
ou

gh
 

th
e 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
H

ou
si

ng
 M

ar
ke

t 
As

se
ss

m
en

t 
20

08
, 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 H
ou

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

20
13

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 H

ou
si

ng
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t 

St
ud

y 
20

12
. 

Th
es

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 o

f 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 h

ou
si

ng
 

m
ar

ke
t h

av
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

sp
at

ia
l v

ar
ia

tio
ns

. i
t v

ar
ie

s 
sp

at
ia

lly
 a

nd
 th

e 
 T

he
 c

ou
nt

y 
ca

n 
be

 
di

vi
de

d 
in

 t
o 

se
ve

n 
ar

ea
s 

ba
se

d 
up

on
 c

om
m

on
 h

ou
si

ng
 m

ar
ke

t 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
te

nu
re

, 
ho

us
e 

ty
pe

 p
ro

fil
e,

 i
nc

om
es

 a
nd

 a
ff

or
da

bi
lit

y,
 a

nd
 h

ou
se

 p
ric

es
. 

, 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 I
t 

al
so

 r
ef

le
ct

s 
ge

og
ra

ph
ic

al
 p

ro
xi

m
ity

, p
at

te
rn

s 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 m

ov
em

en
t 

(m
ig

ra
tio

n)
 a

nd
 t

ra
ve

l t
o 

w
or

k 
pa

tt
er

ns
. 

th
at

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 t
he

 f
un

ct
io

na
l 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

w
he

re
 p

eo
pl

e 
liv

e 
an

d 
w

or
k.

 T
he

 s
ev

en
 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
al

 a
re

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

ar
e 

th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t 

Ar
ea

s 
of

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
, w

hi
ch

 a
re

 il
lu

st
ra

te
d 

in
 F

ig
ur

e 
4.

18
. 

To
 a

dd
 c

la
rit

y 
to

 te
xt

 

E
.1
3
4
 

 
4.

8.
7 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 s
ev

en
 H

M
As

 a
re

 b
ro

ad
ly

 fo
cu

se
d 

on
 H

er
ef

or
d 

an
d 

th
e 

m
ar

ke
t t

ow
ns

 (e
xc

ep
t f

or
 t

he
 

G
ol

de
n 

Va
lle

y)
 a

nd
 u

til
is

e 
w

ar
d 

bo
un

da
rie

s.
 (w

ith
in

 w
hi

ch
 p

ar
is

he
s 

si
t)

. T
he

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

 
ha

s 
be

en
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
on

 t
he

 b
as

is
 o

f 
an

 a
na

ly
si

s 
of

 t
he

 r
ur

al
 e

le
m

en
t 

of
 e

ac
h 

H
M

A 
on

ly
. T

he
 t

er
m

 
‘r

ur
al

 H
M

As
’ u

se
d 

in
 t

hi
s 

se
ct

io
n 

re
fe

rs
 o

nl
y 

to
 t

he
se

 t
he

 r
ur

al
 p

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 d

ef
in

ed
 H

M
As

. C
ha

ng
es

 
to

 t
he

 e
le

ct
or

al
 w

ar
ds

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 in
 2

01
5 

m
ay

 r
es

ul
t 

in
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

to
 a

m
en

d 
th

e 
bo

un
da

rie
s 

of
 

th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t A

re
as

. 

To
 a

dd
 c

la
rit

y 
to

 te
xt

 

E
.1
3
5
 

 
4.

8.
8 

D
el

et
e:

  
‘T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
is

 p
ro

po
si

ng
 t

ha
t 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
5,

30
0 

ho
us

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

cr
os

s 
al

l 
ru

ra
l 

Te
xt

 is
 s

up
er

flu
ou

s 

148



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 3
9 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

H
M

As
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d.
 T

hi
s 

co
un

ty
 w

id
e 

ru
ra

l h
ou

si
ng

 f
ig

ur
e 

ca
n 

be
 b

ro
ke

n 
do

w
n 

by
 r

ur
al

 
H

M
A,

 in
fo

rm
in

g 
a 

se
t 

of
 in

di
ca

tiv
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ta
rg

et
s 

w
hi

ch
 r

el
at

e 
to

 t
he

 f
ut

ur
e 

ho
us

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
an

d 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 d
iff

er
en

t a
re

as
 a

nd
 ru

ra
l c

om
m

un
iti

es
 o

f t
he

 c
ou

nt
y’

. 

E
.1
3
6
 

 
Fi

g 
4.

19
 

 
D

el
et

e 
ta

bl
e:

  
Ru

ra
l h

ou
si

ng
 2

01
1 

– 
20

31
 

D
w

el
lin

g 
nu

m
be

rs
 

Ru
ra

l h
ou

si
ng

 c
om

pl
et

io
ns

 2
01

1 
- 2

01
3 

17
4 

(n
et

) 

Ru
ra

l h
ou

si
ng

 c
om

m
itm

en
ts

 a
s 

at
 A

pr
il 

20
14

 
62

3 
(n

et
) 

W
in

df
al

l a
llo

w
an

ce
 2

01
4 

-2
03

1 
90

0 

Si
te

s 
en

ab
le

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

Pl
an

s 
or

 o
th

er
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

D
oc

um
en

ts
 

36
03

 

To
ta

l 2
01

1 
– 

20
31

 
53

00
 

 

Ta
bl

e 
w

ill
 b

ec
om

e 
ou

t 
of

 d
at

e.
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 

th
e 

AM
R 

          

E
.1
3
7
 

 
4.

8.
10

 
Am

en
d 

la
st

 s
en

te
nc

e:
  

Th
er

e 
is

 c
le

ar
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

ov
er

 m
an

y 
ye

ar
s 

th
at

 s
uc

h 
si

te
s 

ha
ve

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 a

n 
im

po
rt

an
t 

el
em

en
t 

of
 t

he
 

co
un

ty
’s

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
up

pl
y 

an
d 

as
 s

uc
h 

a 
m

od
es

t 
w

in
df

al
l a

llo
w

an
ce

 fo
r 

ru
ra

l a
re

as
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 
of

 1
00

0 
dw

el
lin

gs
 (5

0 
pe

r a
nn

um
). 

To
 a

dd
 c

la
rit

y 
to

 te
xt

 

E
.1
3
8
 

 
4.

8.
12

 
“T

he
 R

ur
al

 H
ou

si
ng

 B
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

Pa
pe

r 
(M

ar
ch

 2
01

3)
 s

et
s 

ou
t 

in
 it

s 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 2

 t
he

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

of
 

ea
ch

 r
ur

al
 H

M
A 

un
de

rt
ak

en
. 

to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 v
ill

ag
e 

da
ta

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

fig
ur

es
 f

or
 t

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 
dw

el
lin

gs
 in

 e
ac

h 
vi

lla
ge

 c
or

e)
. T

he
 d

at
a 

is
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
of

 a
 p

oi
nt

 in
 t

im
e 

an
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 

re
vi

ew
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
pl

an
 p

er
io

d.
 T

hi
s 

do
cu

m
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
a 

us
ef

ul
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 f
or

 p
ar

is
h 

co
un

ci
ls

 
pr

od
uc

in
g 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
s.

 
W

hi
ls

t 
pa

ris
h 

co
un

ci
ls

 
en

ga
ge

d 
in

 
th

e 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

 c
an

 u
til

is
e 

th
e 

Co
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
ev

id
en

ce
 b

as
e,

 t
hr

ou
gh

 g
at

he
rin

g 
th

ei
r 

ow
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l l
oc

al
ity

 b
as

ed
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
ey

 m
ay

 d
ev

el
op

 t
he

ir 
ow

n 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
su

pe
rf

lu
ou

s 
te

xt
. 

149



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 4
0 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

th
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 a

n 
ar

ea
 w

hi
ch

 d
el

iv
er

 t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
’s

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 in
 a

 
lo

ca
lly

 fo
cu

se
d 

w
ay

”.
 

E
.1
3
9
 

 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

4.
8.

13
 

ab
ov

e 
4.

8.
14

) 

Th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

gr
ow

th
 t

ar
ge

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

s 
of

 e
ac

h 
H

M
A 

w
ill

 a
ss

is
t 

in
 in

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 

em
er

gi
ng

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

s 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

lo
ca

lly
 f

oc
us

ed
 

po
lic

y 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 o
n 

th
e 

sc
al

e 
an

d 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 r
es

id
en

tia
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

in
 t

he
ir 

ar
ea

, 
in

 g
en

er
al

 
co

nf
or

m
ity

 w
ith

 t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
. W

hi
ls

t 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
s 

ne
ed

 t
o 

be
 c

le
ar

 o
n 

ho
w

 th
ey

 fi
t w

ith
 c

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

po
lic

ie
s,

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

se
e 

th
is

 ta
rg

et
 a

s 
in

di
ca

tiv
e 

an
d 

no
t t

he
 s

ol
e 

m
ea

su
re

 o
f g

en
er

al
 c

on
fo

rm
ity

. H
ou

si
ng

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

op
os

al
s 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
al

lo
ca

tio
ns

) i
n 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

s 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
m

in
de

d 
to

 t
he

 t
ar

ge
t 

an
d 

lo
ca

l e
vi

de
nc

e,
 b

ei
ng

 
ab

le
 to

 c
le

ar
ly

 e
xp

la
in

 th
e 

ra
tio

na
le

 fo
r a

ny
 d

iff
er

en
ce

 

N
ot

e:
 E

rr
or

 in
 p

ar
a 

nu
m

be
rin

g-
 

du
pl

ic
at

e 
pa

ra
gr

ap
hs

 4
.8

.1
3.

 
 To

 re
m

ov
e 

su
pe

rf
lu

ou
s 

te
xt

.  

E
.1
4
0
 

 
4.

8.
15

 
It

 is
 e

nv
is

ag
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

is
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

w
ill

 le
ad

 t
o 

m
an

y 
sm

al
l s

ca
le

 r
es

id
en

tia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 w
he

re
 t

he
 

pr
op

os
al

 is
 c

ha
m

pi
on

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 w
ith

 c
le

ar
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l b
en

ef
its

. I
t 

is
 

al
so

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

is
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 t
he

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

of
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
(H

1 
an

d 
H

2)
 w

ill
 le

ad
 to

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
ac

ro
ss

 a
ll 

ru
ra

l a
re

as
 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
su

pe
rf

lu
ou

s 
te

xt
. 

E
.1
4
1
 

 
4.

8.
16

 
H

ou
si

ng
 in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 v
ill

ag
es

 s
et

tl
em

en
ts

 
4.

8.
16

  
N

at
io

na
l 

po
lic

y 
su

pp
or

ts
 a

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
in

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

 w
hi

ch
 i

s 
lo

ca
lly

 re
sp

on
si

ve
, r

ef
le

ct
in

g 
lo

ca
l h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 w
ith

 a
n 

th
e 

em
ph

as
is

 b
ei

ng
 o

n 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

, 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t a
nd

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

 v
ill

ag
es

, a
vo

id
in

g 
ne

w
 is

ol
at

ed
 h

om
es

 in
 th

e 
co

un
tr

ys
id

e.
 

To
 

en
su

re
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

te
rm

in
ol

og
y 

E
.1
4
2
 

 
4.

8.
17

 
 A

ck
no

w
le

dg
in

g 
th

e 
co

un
ty

’s
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f 
ru

ra
l 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

ds
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

di
ff

er
en

t 
ch

ar
ac

te
rs

 o
f 

th
e 

ru
ra

l 
H

M
As

 a
re

 s
ee

n 
in

 t
he

ir 
vi

lla
ge

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

, 
a 

m
or

e 
lo

ca
lis

ed
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
of

 e
ac

h 
ru

ra
l 

H
M

A 
ha

s 
be

en
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
to

 i
nf

or
m

 h
ow

 r
ur

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 w

ill
 b

e 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

. 
Th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 t
hi

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

t i
s 

fu
lly

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 th

e 
Ru

ra
l H

ou
si

ng
 B

ac
kg

ro
un

d 
Pa

pe
r M

ar
ch

 2
01

3.
 

Te
xt

 is
 s

up
er

flu
ou

s 

E
.1
4
3
 

 
4.

8.
21

 
G

iv
en

 t
he

 im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 la
nd

sc
ap

e,
 a

nd
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 t

he
 M

al
ve

rn
 H

ill
s 

an
d 

W
ye

 
Va

lle
y 

Ar
ea

s 
of

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 N
at

ur
al

 B
ea

ut
y1 , n

ew
 d

w
el

lin
gs

 s
ho

ul
d 

m
ak

e 
a 

po
si

tiv
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 

th
ei

r 
ru

ra
l 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
by

 b
ei

ng
 b

ui
lt 

to
 a

 h
ig

h 
st

an
da

rd
, 

in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g.

 H
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 d
es

ig
n 

th
at

 is
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 a

nd
 r

ei
nf

or
ce

s 
th

e 
lo

ca
lly

 d
is

tin
ct

iv
e 

ve
rn

ac
ul

ar
 

w
ill

 b
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
d.

 I
nn

ov
at

iv
e 

an
d/

or
 c

on
te

m
po

ra
ry

 d
es

ig
n 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 

To
 a

dd
 c

la
rit

y 
to

 te
xt

 

150



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 4
1 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

w
he

re
 i

t 
is

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 t
o 

th
e 

its
 c

on
te

xt
, 

it 
m

ak
es

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 t

he
 a

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

di
ve

rs
ity

 o
f 

th
e 

lo
ca

lit
y 

an
d 

ac
hi

ev
es

 h
ig

h 
le

ve
ls

 o
f 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
in

 t
er

m
s 

of
 e

ne
rg

y 
an

d 
w

at
er

 e
ff

ic
ie

nc
y,

 a
s 

se
t 

ou
t 

in
 P

ol
ic

y 
SD

1.
 A

ll 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f t
he

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
ne

tw
or

k 
in

 t
he

 a
re

a 
an

d 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f f

ut
ur

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
n 

w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ol

ic
y 

SD
4.

” 

E
.1
4
4
 

 
4.

8.
23

 
W

he
re

 a
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 e

xi
st

s,
 r

es
id

en
tia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

su
pp

or
t 

if 
th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 i

s 
in

 c
on

fo
rm

ity
 w

ith
 t

he
ir

 p
la

n.
 D

ev
el

op
er

s 
ad

va
nc

in
g 

pr
op

os
al

s 
in

 t
he

 
ab

se
nc

e 
of

 a
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 s

ho
ul

d 
en

su
re

 e
ar

ly
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t 
w

ith
 t

he
 l

oc
al

 
co

m
m

un
ity

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 t

he
 p

ar
is

h 
co

un
ci

l i
s 

un
de

rt
ak

en
. T

he
 r

es
ul

ts
 o

f 
an

y 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

sh
ou

ld
 

be
 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n;

 
re

fe
re

nc
in

g 
ho

w
 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

co
nt

rib
ut

es
 to

 m
ee

tin
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 a
m

bi
tio

ns
 

 

Te
xt

 is
 s

up
er

flu
ou

s 

E
.1
4
5
 

 
4.

8.
24

 
H

ou
si

ng
 a

Af
fo

rd
ab

ili
ty

 is
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

is
su

e 
in

 r
ur

al
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

.  
du

e 
to

 t
he

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
ho

us
e 

pr
ic

es
 a

nd
 in

co
m

es
. T

hi
s 

si
tu

at
io

n 
is

 e
xa

ce
rb

at
ed

 b
y 

an
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ho
us

in
g 

m
ix

 t
ha

t 
is

 h
ea

vi
ly

 
sk

ew
ed

 t
ow

ar
ds

 h
ig

he
r 

va
lu

e 
pr

op
er

tie
s,

 t
og

et
he

r 
w

ith
 d

em
an

d 
fr

om
 p

eo
pl

e 
m

ov
in

g 
to

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

 
an

d 
re

st
ric

te
d 

sc
op

e 
fo

r 
ne

w
 h

ou
se

 b
ui

ld
in

g.
 A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
th

er
e 

is
 a

 n
ee

d 
fo

r m
ar

ke
t h

ou
si

ng
 p

ric
ed

 a
t 

a 
le

ve
l t

ha
t c

an
 b

e 
af

fo
rd

ed
 b

y 
lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e.
  

To
 a

dd
 c

la
rit

y 
to

 te
xt

 

E
.1
4
6
 

 
Fi

g 
4.

20
 

Am
en

d:
 ‘

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
0:

 T
he

 v
ill

ag
es

 s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
ar

e 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

fo
cu

s 
of

 p
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 

ho
us

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t’ 

 

Fo
r 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

th
e 

w
or

d 
‘v

ill
ag

e’
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

m
ov

ed
 f

ro
m

 
th

e 
Pl

an
 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
ed

 
w

ith
 

‘s
et

tle
m

en
t’

 w
he

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

. 
  

E
.1
4
7
 

 
Fi

g 
4.

21
 

Fi
gu

re
 4

.2
1:

 V
ill

ag
es

 w
he

re
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
re

st
ric

te
d 

to
 m

ar
ke

t h
om

es
 w

hi
ch

 m
ee

t t
he

 
ne

ed
s 

of
 

pe
op

le
 

w
ith

 
lo

ca
l 

co
nn

ec
tio

ns
 

or
 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
us

in
g.

 
O

th
er

 
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
 

w
he

re
 

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 h
ou

si
ng

 is
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
. 

 

Fo
r 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

th
e 

w
or

d 
‘v

ill
ag

e’
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

m
ov

ed
 f

ro
m

 
th

e 
Pl

an
 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
ed

 
w

ith
 

‘s
et

tle
m

en
t’

 w
he

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

. 

151



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 4
2 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

Am
en

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

w
ith

in
 F

ig
 4

.2
1 

lis
t  

Br
ie

nt
on

   
Br

ei
nt

on
  

 Fa
ct

ua
l c

or
re

ct
io

n 
 

 

E
.1
4
8
 

 
 4

.8
.3

1 
Al

l 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
ta

ke
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
dr

ai
na

ge
 n

et
w

or
k 

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

an
d 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

n 
w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ol
ic

y 
SD

4.
 

To
 a

dd
 c

la
rit

y 
to

 te
xt

 

E
.1
4
9
 

 
 4

.8
.3

2 
Am

en
d 

fin
al

 s
en

te
nc

e:
 

Th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 m

ak
e 

an
 e

xc
ep

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l p
ol

ic
y 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
co

un
tr

ys
id

e 
in

 
or

de
r 

to
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f r

ur
al

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

ha
s 

lo
ng

 b
ee

n 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 a
nd

 t
hi

s 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 t

o 
ru

ra
l w

or
ke

rs
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

en
do

rs
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

N
at

io
na

l P
la

nn
in

g 
Po

lic
y 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
(2

01
32

01
2)

  
 

Fa
ct

ua
l c

or
re

ct
io

n 
to

 te
xt

 

E
.1
5
0
 

 
 4

.8
.3

3 
Am

en
d 

la
st

 s
en

te
nc

e:
  

‘T
he

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 b
us

in
es

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
sc

ru
tin

is
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
an

y 
es

se
nt

ia
l n

ee
d 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

ca
n 

be
 

su
st

ai
ne

d 
so

 t
he

 c
on

ce
ss

io
ns

 c
rit

er
ia

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 P

ol
ic

y 
RA

4 
ar

e 
no

t 
ab

us
ed

. u
nd

er
m

in
in

g 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 a

nd
 le

ad
in

g 
to

 s
po

ra
di

c,
 is

ol
at

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 c

ou
nt

ry
si

de
’. 

  
 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
su

pe
rf

lu
ou

s 
te

xt
. 

E
.1
5
1
 

 
4.

8.
34

 
Am

en
d 

fir
st

 s
en

te
nc

e:
 

 ‘T
hu

s 
Th

er
ef

or
e,

 in
 t

er
m

s 
of

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l o
r 

fo
re

st
ry

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 it

 w
ill

 b
e 

es
se

nt
ia

l t
o 

fir
st

ly
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

th
at

 s
ta

te
d 

in
te

nt
io

ns
 t

o 
en

ga
ge

 i
n 

ag
ric

ul
tu

re
 a

re
 s

ou
nd

ly
-b

as
ed

 g
en

ui
ne

, 
re

as
on

ab
ly

 l
ik

el
y 

to
 

m
at

er
ia

lis
e 

an
d 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 b

ei
ng

 s
us

ta
in

ed
 fo

r a
 re

as
on

ab
le

 p
er

io
d 

of
 ti

m
e.

” 
 

To
 a

dd
 c

la
rit

y 
to

 te
xt

 

E
.1
5
2
 

 
4.

8.
43

 
Re

du
nd

an
t 

ru
ra

l 
bu

ild
in

gs
 i

n 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 v
ar

y 
gr

ea
tly

 i
n 

te
rm

s 
of

 s
ca

le
, 

de
si

gn
 a

nd
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

on
 t

he
ir 

or
ig

in
al

 u
se

. S
om

e 
ar

e 
si

tu
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 v
ill

ag
es

, b
ut

 t
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 a
re

 lo
ca

te
d 

in
 

th
e 

co
un

tr
ys

id
e.

 T
he

y 
m

ay
 o

cc
as

io
na

lly
 b

e 
si

ng
le

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 b

ut
 m

or
e 

co
m

m
on

ly
 a

re
 g

ro
up

ed
 

to
ge

th
er

 in
 fa

rm
st

ea
ds

 o
r o

th
er

 c
lu

st
er

s.
 M

an
y 

ar
e 

fo
rm

er
 a

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l b

ui
ld

in
gs

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 
re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r 
th

ei
r 

or
ig

in
al

 p
ur

po
se

. 
O

th
er

s 
m

ay
 r

el
at

e 
to

 d
iff

er
en

t 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 c

or
n 

m
ill

s 
or

 
ot

he
r 

in
du

st
ria

l 
bu

ild
in

gs
. 

M
os

t 
of

 t
he

se
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 h
av

e 
he

rit
ag

e 
va

lu
e 

an
d 

ar
e 

re
fe

rr
ed

 t
o 

in
 t

he
 

po
lic

y 
as

 ‘h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
s.

’ H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 h

as
 s

om
e 

3,
00

0 
hi

st
or

ic
 f

ar
m

st
ea

ds
 w

hi
ch

 c
an

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
su

pe
rf

lu
ou

s 
te

xt
. 

152



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 4
3 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

in
g 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
a 

di
ve

rs
e 

ru
ra

l e
co

no
m

y.
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 h

is
to

ric
 fa

rm
st

ea
ds

 
va

ry
 w

id
el

y 
in

 s
ca

le
 a

nd
 f

or
m

 a
nd

 m
ak

e 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 t
he

 c
ou

nt
y’

s 
bu

ilt
 h

er
ita

ge
, 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

an
d 

se
ns

e 
of

 l
oc

al
 d

is
tin

ct
iv

en
es

s.
 O

f 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 i
s 

th
e 

hi
gh

 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 f

ar
m

st
ea

ds
 t

ha
t 

re
ta

in
 a

ll 
or

 m
uc

h 
of

 t
he

ir 
hi

st
or

ic
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

. 
Ch

an
gi

ng
 f

ar
m

in
g 

pr
ac

tic
es

 h
av

e 
m

ad
e 

m
an

y 
tr

ad
iti

on
al

 f
ar

m
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 r
ed

un
da

nt
 a

nd
 f

in
di

ng
 a

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
us

e 
w

hi
ch

 p
re

se
rv

es
 th

ei
r c

ha
ra

ct
er

 a
nd

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 fa

rm
st

ea
d 

gr
ou

pi
ng

 is
 o

ne
 w

ay
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

th
ei

r 
su

rv
iv

al
.  

W
he

re
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
-u

se
 o

f f
ar

m
st

ea
ds

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 i

nf
or

m
ed

 b
y 

an
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 f
ar

m
st

ea
d 

as
 a

 w
ho

le
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
its

 l
an

ds
ca

pe
 s

et
tin

g,
 

ch
ar

ac
te

r,
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
 a

nd
 s

en
si

tiv
ity

 t
o 

an
d 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
fo

r 
ch

an
ge

. 
 T

hi
s 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

sh
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

re
ga

rd
 to

 th
e 

W
es

t M
id

la
nd

s 
Fa

rm
st

ea
ds

 a
nd

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 P

ro
je

ct
 P

la
nn

in
g 

To
ol

s 
Re

po
rt

 2
01

0 
(E

ng
lis

h 
H

er
ita

ge
), 

th
e 

Fa
rm

st
ea

d 
As

se
ss

m
en

t 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

(E
ng

lis
h 

H
er

ita
ge

) 
an

d 
th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 H
is

to
ric

 
Fa

rm
st

ea
ds

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
is

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 2
00

8 
(H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il)

.  
…

’ 
E
.1
5
3
 

 
4.

8.
44

 
Th

e 
W

es
t 

M
id

la
nd

s 
Fa

rm
st

ea
ds

 a
nd

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 P

ro
je

ct
 n

ot
es

 t
ha

t 
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
, t

he
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 

re
-u

se
 o

f 
ru

ra
l b

ui
ld

in
gs

 h
as

 t
en

de
d 

to
 r

ev
ol

ve
 a

ro
un

d 
to

ur
is

m
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t.

  W
hi

ls
t 

th
er

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
so

m
e 

sc
op

e 
fo

r 
fu

rt
he

r 
to

ur
is

m
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

th
er

e 
is

 n
ow

 g
re

at
er

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
fo

r 
ot

he
r 

ty
pe

s 
of

 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 t
o 

de
ve

lo
p.

 T
he

 w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

ty
pe

s 
ar

e 
su

ita
bl

e 
fo

r 
a 

va
rie

ty
 o

f 
di

ff
er

en
t 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 a

nd
 e

xp
an

di
ng

 b
ro

ad
ba

nd
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
w

ill
 h

el
p 

to
 i

nc
re

as
e 

th
ei

r 
po

te
nt

ia
l, 

ul
tim

at
el

y 
co

nt
rib

ut
in

g 
to

 a
 d

iv
er

se
 r

ur
al

 e
co

no
m

y 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

lo
ca

l j
ob

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s.
  W

he
re

 a
 r

ed
un

da
nt

 
bu

ild
in

g 
in

 o
pe

n 
co

un
tr

ys
id

e 
is

 a
 h

er
ita

ge
 a

ss
et

 a
nd

 is
 p

ro
po

se
d 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l u

se
, a

pp
lic

an
ts

 m
us

t 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 t

ha
t 

ot
he

r 
no

n-
re

si
de

nt
ia

l u
se

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
vi

ab
le

 t
hr

ou
gh

 a
 m

ar
ke

t 
te

st
ed

 r
ep

or
t 

to
 b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 w

ith
 a

ny
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n.
   

 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
su

pe
rf

lu
ou

s 
te

xt
. 

E
.1
5
4
 

 
4.

8.
45

 
Am

en
d:

 ‘P
ol

ic
y 

RA
5 

do
es

 n
ot

 is
 n

ot
 in

te
nd

ed
 t

o 
su

pp
or

t 
th

e 
re

bu
ild

in
g 

of
 r

ur
al

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
fa

lle
n 

in
to

 a
 d

er
el

ic
t r

ui
no

us
 s

ta
te

. a
s 

At
 th

is
 p

oi
nt

 th
ei

r s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 h
as

 u
su

al
ly

 b
ee

n 
lo

st
. C

an
di

da
te

 
Bb

ui
ld

in
gs

 s
ho

ul
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
be

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 s
ou

nd
 a

nd
 c

ap
ab

le
 o

f 
bo

na
 f

id
e 

co
nv

er
si

on
 f

or
 t

he
 

pr
op

os
ed

 
us

e 
w

ith
ou

t 
m

aj
or

 
re

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n.

 
A 

fu
ll 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
 

su
rv

ey
 

m
ay

 
be

 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 w

he
th

er
 th

is
 is

 th
e 

ca
se

.’ 

To
 a

dd
 c

la
rit

y 
to

 th
e 

te
xt

 

E
.1
5
5
 

 
4.

8.
47

 
W

he
re

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
ap

pl
ic

an
ts

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 t
ha

t 
pr

op
os

ed
 u

se
s 

re
sp

ec
t 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
of

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
, 

ar
e 

su
ita

bl
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ru
ra

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t,
 a

dd
re

ss
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 
is

su
es

 a
nd

 d
o 

no
t 

ha
ve

 a
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
am

en
ity

 o
f l

oc
al

 r
es

id
en

ts
 a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
an

d 
in

 

To
 a

dd
 f

le
xi

bi
lit

y 
to

 r
ec

og
ni

se
 

th
at

 
th

es
e 

is
su

es
 

m
ay

 
be

 
co

ve
re

d 
by

 o
th

er
 p

la
ns

. 

153



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 4
4 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

te
rm

s 
of

 n
oi

se
, l

ig
ht

 a
nd

 a
ir 

po
llu

tio
n.

 D
et

ai
le

d 
de

si
gn

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 f

or
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 f
or

 t
he

 r
e-

us
e 

of
 

in
di

vi
du

al
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 f
ar

m
st

ea
ds

 w
ill

 b
e 

se
t 

ou
t 

in
 a

 D
es

ig
n 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 P
la

nn
in

g 
D

oc
um

en
t.

 H
ow

ev
er

 i
n 

br
oa

d 
te

rm
s 

pr
op

os
al

s 
m

us
t 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

sc
he

m
es

 r
es

pe
ct

 t
he

 h
is

to
ric

 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

an
d 

in
te

re
st

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

, i
ts

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

nd
 h

er
ita

ge
 a

ss
et

s,
 a

nd
 

its
 p

la
ce

 in
 th

e 
w

id
er

 la
nd

sc
ap

e.
 O

ve
ra

ll,
 s

ch
em

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
ke

ep
 n

ew
 o

pe
ni

ng
s 

to
 a

 m
in

im
um

; r
es

pe
ct

 
in

te
rn

al
 fe

at
ur

es
 a

nd
 s

pa
ce

s;
 a

nd
 a

vo
id

 in
tr

od
uc

in
g 

no
n-

tr
ad

iti
on

al
 ‘o

ve
r-

do
m

es
tic

’ f
ea

tu
re

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
do

rm
er

 w
in

do
w

s,
 c

hi
m

ne
y 

st
ac

ks
, p

or
ch

es
 o

r u
ns

ym
pa

th
et

ic
 m

at
er

ia
ls

.  

 

E
.1
5
6
 

 
4.

8.
49

 
In

 s
um

m
ar

y 
th

is
 p

ol
ic

y 
su

pp
or

ts
 t

he
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 r

e-
us

e 
of

 r
ur

al
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 w
he

re
 i

t 
se

cu
re

s 
th

ei
r 

fu
tu

re
, t

he
 c

ha
ng

es
 p

ro
po

se
d 

do
 n

ot
 h

ar
m

 t
he

ir 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

an
d 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 u
na

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 th
e 

lo
ca

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
iti

es
. 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
su

pe
rf

lu
ou

s 
te

xt
. 

E
.1
5
7
 

 
4.

8.
50

 
Al

th
ou

gh
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
po

lic
y 

fo
r 

ec
on

om
ic

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
in

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
ce

nt
re

s 
on

 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

ec
on

om
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 f
or

 H
er

ef
or

d 
an

d 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

t 
to

w
ns

, t
he

 r
ur

al
 e

co
no

m
y 

of
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 is
 m

uc
h 

br
oa

de
r 

an
d 

ta
ke

s 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 t

he
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 l

an
d 

an
d 

vi
lla

ge
s 

ou
ts

id
e 

ur
ba

n 
ar

ea
s.

 T
he

 r
ur

al
 

ar
ea

s 
ha

ve
 c

on
si

st
en

tly
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
fo

r 
m

an
y 

ce
nt

ur
ie

s 
pl

ay
ed

 a
 s

tr
on

g 
ro

le
 in

 lo
ca

l, 
re

gi
on

al
 a

nd
 

na
tio

na
l f

oo
d 

an
d 

dr
in

k 
pr

od
uc

tio
n,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 in
 a

re
as

 s
uc

h 
as

 a
gr

ic
ul

tu
re

 a
nd

 fa
rm

in
g.

 O
th

er
 u

se
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 r

ur
al

 e
co

no
m

y 
co

ns
is

t 
of

 lo
ca

l b
us

in
es

se
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

, v
ill

ag
e 

sh
op

s 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ou

se
s,

 
to

ur
is

m
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n,

 h
om

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 b

us
in

es
se

s,
 m

ili
ta

ry
 u

se
s,

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 f
ar

m
 

di
ve

rs
ifi

ca
tio

n 
en

te
rp

ris
es

. T
he

 s
tr

en
gt

he
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 r
ur

al
 e

co
no

m
y 

is
 a

ls
o 

im
po

rt
an

t f
or

 in
 r

et
ai

ni
ng

 
a 

sk
ill

ed
 la

bo
ur

 fo
rc

e 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 r
ur

al
 a

re
a,

 a
nd

 o
ff

er
s 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 to
 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

. I
n 

or
de

r 
to

 a
llo

w
 t

he
 r

ur
al

 e
co

no
m

y 
to

 g
ro

w
 in

to
 t

he
 f

ut
ur

e,
 t

he
re

 is
 a

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

po
lic

y 
to

 a
llo

w
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
st

ar
t-

up
s 

an
d 

co
nt

in
ua

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 b

us
in

es
s 

en
te

rp
ris

es
, 

bu
si

ne
ss

 d
iv

er
si

fic
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 h
om

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

nd
 e

m
br

ac
in

g.
  

It 
al

so
 e

m
br

ac
es

 n
ew

 
te

ch
no

lo
gi

es
 a

nd
 m

et
ho

ds
 to

 a
llo

w
 th

e 
ru

ra
l e

co
no

m
y 

of
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 to
 p

ro
sp

er
. i

nt
o 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
su

pe
rf

lu
ou

s 
te

xt
. 

154



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 4
5 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.1
5
8
 

 
4.

8.
53

 
A 

nu
m

be
r o

f i
ni

tia
tiv

es
 h

av
e 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

d 
th

e 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f f

oo
d 

an
d 

dr
in

k 
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

in
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
an

d 
st

re
ng

th
en

in
g 

th
e 

ru
ra

l e
co

no
m

y.
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

up
on

 lo
ca

l f
oo

d 
w

eb
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 
un

de
rt

ak
en

2 
w

hi
ch

 s
ho

w
ed

 th
at

 lo
ca

l f
oo

d 
ec

on
om

ie
s 

an
d 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t r

et
ai

lin
g 

ar
e 

un
de

r t
hr

ea
t 

fr
om

 s
up

er
m

ar
ke

t e
xp

an
si

on
 a

nd
 c

en
tr

al
is

ed
 s

up
pl

y 
ch

ai
ns

. T
he

 s
tu

dy
 w

hi
ch

 fo
cu

se
d 

on
 a

 s
m

al
le

r 
lo

ca
l m

od
el

 u
se

d 
fo

r L
ed

bu
ry

 is
 a

 te
m

pl
at

e 
w

hi
ch

 c
an

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r o

th
er

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

co
un

ty
 a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
. 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
su

pe
rf

lu
ou

s 
te

xt
. 

E
.1
5
9
 

 
4.

8.
54

 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 P

ol
ic

y 
E4

 w
hi

ch
 p

ro
m

ot
es

 to
ur

is
m

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

y,
 T

ou
ris

m
 p

la
ys

 a
 la

rg
e 

ro
le

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ru
ra

l 
ec

on
om

y.
  

Th
e 

va
rie

d 
w

ith
 t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f 

to
ur

is
t 

ce
nt

re
s,

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
po

in
ts

 a
nd

 
di

sp
la

ys
, s

ta
tic

 c
ar

av
an

s,
 c

ha
le

ts
, c

am
pi

ng
 a

nd
 t

ou
rin

g 
ca

ra
va

n 
si

te
s.

 S
uc

h 
to

ur
is

m
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

en
ab

le
 

ex
is

tin
g 

fa
rm

s 
an

d 
ru

ra
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
to

 d
iv

er
si

fy
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
in

g 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 v

is
ito

rs
. 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
su

pe
rf

lu
ou

s 
te

xt
. 

E
.1
6
0
 

 
4.

8.
55

 
As

 w
el

l a
s 

to
ur

is
m

, t
he

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

 a
ls

o 
pl

ay
 h

os
t 

to
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 w

ed
di

ng
 a

nd
 c

or
po

ra
te

 f
un

ct
io

ns
 

w
hi

ch
 t

ak
e 

pl
ac

e 
w

ith
in

 p
ur

po
se

 b
ui

lt 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 o
r 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
nd

 la
rg

er
 c

ou
nt

ry
 h

ou
se

s,
 s

om
e 

in
 

is
ol

at
ed

 l
oc

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 o

th
er

s 
w

ith
in

 r
ur

al
 s

et
tle

m
en

ts
. 

It
 i

s 
im

po
rt

an
t 

th
at

 s
ca

le
 i

s 
ta

ke
n 

in
to

 
ac

co
un

t 
in

 t
he

se
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s,

 a
s 

ev
en

 a
 m

at
er

ia
l c

ha
ng

e 
of

 u
se

 h
as

 t
he

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 a

ff
ec

t 
th

e 
lo

ca
l 

am
en

ity
 b

y 
w

ay
 o

f i
ss

ue
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

no
is

e,
 tr

af
fic

 a
nd

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
W

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
, 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 i

so
la

te
d 

an
d 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 (
br

ow
nf

ie
ld

) 
si

te
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

ry
si

de
, d

et
ac

he
d 

fr
om

 a
 s

et
tle

m
en

t, 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
ce

as
ed

 o
pe

ra
tin

g.
 S

om
e 

si
te

s 
m

ay
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 c
on

ta
in

 a
ny

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
, a

nd
 s

ee
in

g 
as

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
in

 is
ol

at
ed

 lo
ca

tio
ns

, i
t 

w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 

be
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

or
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
fu

rt
he

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.
  

To
 re

m
ov

e 
su

pe
rf

lu
ou

s 
te

xt
. 

E
.1
6
1
 

 
4.

8.
56

 
W

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
, 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 i

so
la

te
d 

an
d 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 (
br

ow
nf

ie
ld

) 
si

te
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

ry
si

de
, d

et
ac

he
d 

fr
om

 a
 s

et
tle

m
en

t, 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
ce

as
ed

 o
pe

ra
tin

g.
 S

om
e 

si
te

s 
m

ay
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 c
on

ta
in

 a
ny

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
, a

nd
 s

ee
in

g 
as

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
in

 is
ol

at
ed

 lo
ca

tio
ns

, i
t 

w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 

be
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

or
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
fu

rt
he

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
su

pe
rf

lu
ou

s 
te

xt
 

E
.1
6
2
 

 
4.

8.
57

 
An

 I
so

la
te

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
si

te
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 f

or
 c

ap
ab

le
 o

f 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 v
ia

bl
e 

w
ith

 s
m

al
l 

ex
te

ns
io

ns
 

an
d/

or
 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
 

an
d 

A 
ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n 
w

ill
 

ne
ed

 
sh

ou
ld

 
to

 
be

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

to
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 t
he

 n
ec

es
si

ty
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

th
es

e 
ad

di
tio

ns
. 

Ex
te

ns
io

ns
 a

nd
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t s
ite

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
lo

ok
ed

 u
po

n 
fa

vo
ur

ab
ly

, h
ow

ev
er

 th
es

e 
Pr

op
os

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
su

pe
rf

lu
ou

s 
te

xt
. 

155



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 4
6 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

to
 t

ak
e 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
th

er
 r

el
ev

an
t 

po
lic

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 t

hi
s 

Pl
an

. o
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 s

iti
ng

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
n 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

op
en

 c
ou

nt
ry

si
de

. 

E
.1
6
3
 

 
4.

8.
58

 
Th

e 
N

at
io

na
l P

la
nn

in
g 

Po
lic

y 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

co
re

 p
rin

ci
pl

es
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

s 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

w
hi

ch
 o

ut
lin

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

us
e 

of
 b

ro
w

nf
ie

ld
 la

nd
, e

xc
ep

t 
w

he
re

 t
he

 s
ite

 h
as

 h
ig

h 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l v

al
ue

. A
lth

ou
gh

 
a 

si
te

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
ha

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
 o

n 
it 

in
 t

he
 p

as
t,

 t
hi

s 
do

es
 n

ot
 j

us
tif

y 
th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ne
ss

 t
o 

re
de

ve
lo

p 
th

e 
si

te
 if

 t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 h

av
e 

si
nc

e 
be

en
 r

em
ov

ed
. S

ite
s 

w
ith

ou
t 

bu
ild

in
gs

 w
ill

 r
eq

ui
re

 a
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
ir 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
va

lu
e 

an
d 

w
he

th
er

 t
he

y 
m

ak
e 

a 
po

si
tiv

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 t
he

 
la

nd
sc

ap
e,

 e
ve

n 
if 

th
e 

si
te

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 c

on
ta

in
s 

th
e 

re
m

na
nt

s 
of

 a
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

us
e.

 D
ep

en
de

nt
 u

po
n 

th
e 

na
tu

re
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
, i

t m
ay

 b
e 

m
or

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 a
nd

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
to

 k
ee

p 
a 

si
te

 w
ith

 n
o 

bu
ild

in
gs

 in
 it

s 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

te
 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
su

pe
rf

lu
ou

s 
te

xt
. 

E
.1
6
4
 

 
4.

8.
59

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

:  
Th

es
e 

po
lic

ie
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 b
y:

 
• 

th
e 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pe

r 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
/c

om
m

un
ity

 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 le
vy

 
• 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 
• 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Ar

ea
 P

la
n,

 B
ro

m
ya

rd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

, 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
s,

 
ot

he
r 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

nd
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 P
la

nn
in

g 
D

oc
um

en
ts

 a
nd

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 P
la

ns
. 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

E
.1
6
5
 

 
4.

8.
60

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

:  
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

 t
o 

th
e 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 l

is
te

d 
in

 t
he

 S
pa

tia
l 

St
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 G
en

er
al

 P
ol

ic
ie

s’
 s

ec
tio

ns
, 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

di
ct

or
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 m

ea
su

re
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
po

lic
ie

s:
 

• 
ut

ili
si

ng
 th

e 
AM

R 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
n 

in
di

ca
to

r o
f h

ou
si

ng
 c

om
pl

et
io

ns
 b

y 
H

M
As

 a
nd

 ru
ra

l H
M

As
 

• 
ut

ili
si

ng
 th

e 
AM

R 
to

 m
on

ito
r 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f h
ou

si
ng

 c
om

pl
et

io
ns

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 m
ar

ke
t h

ou
si

ng
 

fo
r l

oc
al

 p
eo

pl
e 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

156



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 4
7 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.1
6
6
 

 
4.

8.
61

 
D

el
et

e 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
Ap

pr
ai

sa
l a

nd
 H

ab
ita

ts
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
Th

e 
Su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

Ap
pr

ai
sa

l 
Re

po
rt

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 t
hi

s 
Pr

e-
Su

bm
is

si
on

 
Pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
Ve

rs
io

n 
of

 t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 r

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

th
re

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

cr
ite

ria
 t

o 
th

e 
pl

ac
e-

sh
ap

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s 

on
 B

ro
m

ya
rd

 (
BR

2)
 a

nd
 L

eo
m

in
st

er
 (

LO
2)

, 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 i
ss

ue
s 

co
nc

er
ni

ng
 t

he
 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
of

 h
er

ita
ge

 a
ss

et
s,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 a
rc

ha
eo

lo
gy

 (
Br

om
ya

rd
 a

nd
 L

eo
m

in
st

er
 p

ol
ic

ie
s)

 a
nd

 
co

nt
rib

ut
in

g 
to

 z
er

o 
ca

rb
on

 e
m

is
si

on
s.

 T
he

se
 h

av
e 

be
en

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 t
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t,

 w
he

re
 

po
ss

ib
le

, 
al

th
ou

gh
 t

he
 is

su
e 

of
 z

er
o 

ca
rb

on
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

is
 b

ei
ng

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
na

tio
na

l l
ev

el
 

th
ro

ug
h 

fo
rt

hc
om

in
g 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
 a

nd
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
is

su
e 

fo
r p

la
nn

in
g 

po
lic

y.
 

 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
su

pe
rf

lu
ou

s 
te

xt
. 

5.
 

G
en

er
al

 P
ol

ic
ie

s 

E
.1
6
7
 

 
Pa

ra
 

 5
.1

.9
 

In
se

rt
 n

ew
 s

en
te

nc
e 

at
 e

nd
 o

f 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h:

. 
 T

he
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

of
 p

os
tc

od
e 

ar
ea

s 
to

 H
ou

si
ng

 V
al

ue
 

Ar
ea

s 
ca

n 
be

 fo
un

d 
in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
7 

To
 re

fe
r t

o 
ne

w
 a

pp
en

di
x 

E
.1
6
8
 

 
5.

1.
16

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

:  
Ru

ra
l 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
sc

he
m

es
 n

ee
d 

to
 t

ak
e 

fu
ll 

ac
co

un
t 

of
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
de

si
gn

, 
si

tin
g 

an
d 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 a

vo
id

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 w

he
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 f
or

 r
ea

so
ns

 o
f 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
or

 v
is

ua
l 

im
pa

ct
. 

Si
m

ila
rly

 a
 s

ite
’s

 l
oc

at
io

n 
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 p
la

ce
 

ad
di

tio
na

l f
in

an
ci

al
 b

ur
de

ns
 u

po
n 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 o

cc
up

yi
ng

 t
he

 s
ch

em
e 

su
ch

 a
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

is
ol

at
io

n 
or

 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

co
st

s 
in

 
ga

in
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 
to

 
lo

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 
an

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 
fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e 
sc

ho
ol

s 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t.
  

G
iv

en
 t

ha
t 

th
es

e 
sc

he
m

es
 m

ay
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 o
r 

ar
ou

nd
 s

m
al

l v
ill

ag
es

, 
th

e 
sc

al
e 

of
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
re

fle
ct

 th
e 

lo
ca

lit
y;

 m
ea

ni
ng

 th
at

 s
m

al
l a

ff
or

da
bl

e 
ho

us
in

g 
sc

he
m

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t 
no

rm
al

ly
 e

xc
ee

d 
15

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 in

 to
ta

l. 

To
 r

ef
le

ct
 t

ha
t 

th
er

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
la

rg
er

 
sc

al
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
w

hi
ch

 
m

ay
 b

e 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 

E
.1
6
9
 

 
5.

1.
17

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

:  
N

at
io

na
l 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ol

ic
y 

in
di

ca
te

s 
th

at
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 w

he
th

er
 a

llo
w

in
g 

so
m

e 
m

ar
ke

t 
ho

us
in

g 
on

 e
xc

ep
tio

n 
si

te
s 

w
ou

ld
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

ad
di

tio
na

l a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

to
 m

ee
t 

lo
ca

l 
ne

ed
s.

 W
he

re
 s

uc
h 

sc
he

m
es

 a
re

 p
ro

po
se

d,
 t

he
 a

pp
lic

an
t 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 t

ha
t 

a 
m

ix
ed

 t
en

ur
e 

sc
he

m
e 

is
 e

ss
en

tia
l t

o 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 t
he

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

th
at

 it
 r

em
ov

es
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

pu
bl

ic
 s

ub
si

dy
. O

pe
n 

m
ar

ke
t 

ho
us

in
g 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
lim

ite
d 

to
 a

n 
ab

so
lu

te
 

m
in

im
um

 i
n 

su
ch

 s
ch

em
es

 a
nd

 o
nl

y 
in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

vi
ab

le
. 

 T
he

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

s 
an

d/
or

 o
th

er
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

an
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

si
te

s 
fo

r a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

To
 

re
fle

ct
 

th
at

 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

oc
ca

si
on

s 
w

he
re

 p
ub

lic
 s

ub
si

dy
 

m
ay

 
be

 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 
m

ak
e 

sc
he

m
es

 v
ia

bl
e.

 

157



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 4
8 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.1
7
0
 

 
5.

1.
21

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

:  
It

 is
 im

po
rt

an
t 

th
at

 t
he

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

ne
ed

s 
an

d 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f 
al

l s
ec

tio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

ar
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 in

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ol

ic
ie

s.
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t p
la

nn
in

g 
po

lic
y 

is
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 fa

vo
ur

in
g 

th
e 

id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 s
ite

s 
fo

r 
tr

av
el

le
rs

.  
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

re
co

gn
is

es
 th

es
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 w
hi

ch
 

w
ill

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
fo

rw
ar

d 
in

 t
he

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

 n
ew

 T
ra

ve
lle

rs
’ D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 S
ite

s 
D

oc
um

en
t.

 In
 

th
e 

in
te

rim
 h

ow
ev

er
, 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
po

lic
y 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

co
ns

id
er

 t
he

 m
er

its
 o

f 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

pr
op

os
al

s.
 

To
 b

rin
g 

th
e 

Co
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
up

 to
 

da
te

 

E
.1
7
1
 

 
5.

1.
23

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

:  
Th

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 t

o 
pl

an
ni

ng
 f

or
 t

ra
ve

lle
rs

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

 T
ra

ve
lle

r 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 
D

oc
um

en
t 

Tr
av

el
le

rs
’ S

ite
s 

D
oc

um
en

t 
w

ill
 r

ef
le

ct
 t

he
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t 

of
 t

ra
ve

lle
r 

an
d 

se
tt

le
d 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 in
 d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

th
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t.

 T
ra

ve
lle

r 
si

te
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
os

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

ne
ed

s 
of

 g
yp

si
es

 a
nd

 t
ra

ve
lle

rs
 w

ho
 w

ill
 r

em
ai

n 
in

 a
 l

oc
at

io
n 

pe
rm

an
en

tly
 o

r 
fo

r 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l p
er

io
ds

, t
ra

ns
it 

si
te

s 
fo

r 
th

os
e 

m
ov

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ar
ea

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

pl
ot

s 
fo

r t
ra

ve
lli

ng
 s

ho
w

 p
eo

pl
e.

 

To
 b

rin
g 

th
e 

te
xt

 u
p 

to
 d

at
e 

an
d 

m
ak

e 
th

e 
w

or
di

ng
 

co
m

pl
ia

nt
 

w
ith

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

Po
lic

y 
fo

r 
Tr

av
el

le
rs

, 2
01

2 

E
.1
7
2
 

 
5.

1.
35

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

:  
Po

pu
la

tio
n 

gr
ow

th
 w

ill
 g

en
er

at
e 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 n

ee
ds

 t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
, 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 
co

nc
en

tr
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 m
aj

or
 g

ro
w

th
 l

oc
at

io
ns

, 
an

d 
it 

is
 e

ss
en

tia
l 

th
at

 t
he

se
 s

er
vi

ce
 n

ee
ds

 a
re

 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 le

ve
ls

 o
f s

oc
ia

l a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

. T
hi

s 
sh

ou
ld

 c
om

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
ei

th
er

 a
s 

an
 in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
(a

da
pt

ab
le

, m
ix

ed
 u

se
 a

nd
 m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
at

 a
n 

ea
rly

 
st

ag
e)

, o
r 

by
 w

ay
 o

f 
a 

de
ve

lo
pe

r 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n/
co

m
m

un
ity

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 le

vy
 m

on
ie

s 
 w

hi
ch

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 te

st
s 

of
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 2
04

 o
f t

he
 N

PP
F.

  
 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

E
.1
7
3
 

 
5.

1.
44

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

:  
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 is
 f

or
tu

na
te

 t
o 

ha
ve

 a
 b

ro
ad

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

, s
po

rt
s 

an
d 

re
cr

ea
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 b

ot
h 

in
 p

ub
lic

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p.
 O

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 s

po
rt

s 
an

d 
re

cr
ea

tio
n 

ty
po

lo
gy

 
de

fin
iti

on
s 

ar
e 

ba
se

d 
up

on
 P

PG
17

 –
 A

ss
es

si
ng

 N
ee

ds
 a

nd
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s:

 A
 C

om
pa

ni
on

 G
ui

de
 a

nd
 

in
cl

ud
e 

(b
ut

 a
re

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
) 

fo
rm

al
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

al
 p

ar
ks

 a
nd

 g
ar

de
ns

, s
ch

oo
l s

po
rt

s 
gr

ou
nd

s,
 

pu
bl

ic
 r

ig
ht

s 
of

 w
ay

, 
al

lo
tm

en
ts

, 
se

m
i-n

at
ur

al
 a

re
as

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

or
ch

ar
ds

), 
sp

or
ts

 p
la

yi
ng

 f
ie

ld
s,

 
ce

m
et

er
ie

s 
an

d 
ch

ur
ch

ya
rd

s,
 a

m
en

ity
 a

re
as

, i
nd

oo
r 

sp
or

ts
 h

al
ls

, c
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

pl
ay

 f
ac

ili
tie

s,
 v

ill
ag

e 
ha

lls
, c

iv
ic

 s
pa

ce
s,

 c
ou

nt
ry

 p
ar

ks
, g

re
en

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 c

or
rid

or
s 

an
d 

ca
na

ls
. 

To
 

re
m

ov
e 

ou
t 

of
 

da
te

  
re

fe
re

nc
es

 

158



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 4
9 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.1
7
4
 

 
5.

1.
46

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

:  
W

he
re

ve
r 

po
ss

ib
le

, T
he

 n
ee

d 
fo

r s
pa

ce
, s

po
rt

s 
an

d 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l f
ac

ili
tie

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 o
n 

a 
si

te
 

by
 s

ite
 b

as
is

. 
O

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
sp

or
ts

 a
nd

 r
ec

re
at

io
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
pl

ac
ed

 o
n 

si
te

 a
nd

 b
e 

in
te

gr
al

 t
o 

th
e 

fu
nc

tio
ni

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
 O

ff
-s

ite
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

so
ug

ht
 w

he
re

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

, 
on

 a
n 

eq
ua

lly
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l b
as

is
 f

or
 t

he
 lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 (
as

 d
ef

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

lo
ca

l p
la

nn
in

g 
au

th
or

ity
) 

of
 t

he
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 s

po
rt

s 
or

 
re

cr
ea

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
y 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 
po

lic
y.

 

E
.1
7
5
 

 
5.

1.
48

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

:  
In

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
sh

or
tf

al
ls

 a
ga

in
st

 a
 lo

ca
l s

ta
nd

ar
d 

of
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 a
nd

 s
et

 o
ut

 fu
tu

re
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

, 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 a

 lo
ca

l a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 s

po
rt

s 
an

d 
re

cr
ea

tio
n 

ne
ed

s 
w

hi
ch

 i
s 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 N

at
io

na
l 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 P
ol

ic
y 

Fr
am

ew
or

k,
 t

he
 

co
m

pa
ni

on
 g

ui
de

 to
 P

PG
17

 a
nd

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 s

et
 b

y 
re

le
va

nt
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 s
uc

h 
as

 F
ie

ld
s 

in
 T

ru
st

, S
po

rt
 

En
gl

an
d 

an
d 

N
at

ur
al

 E
ng

la
nd

. 
Th

is
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
co

m
pr

is
es

 a
n 

O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e 

St
ud

y 
20

07
, 

Sp
or

ts
 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

20
10

, 
Pl

ay
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

St
ud

y 
20

13
 a

nd
 a

 P
la

yi
ng

 P
itc

h 
As

se
ss

m
en

t 
20

12
. 

Th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

is
 u

pd
at

in
g 

its
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

ba
se

 i
n 

or
de

r 
to

 i
nc

or
po

ra
te

 l
oc

al
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 i
nt

o 
ei

th
er

 a
 

su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 p

la
nn

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

t,
 o

th
er

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Pl

an
 D

oc
um

en
t 

an
d/

or
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
ns

. T
hi

s 
ev

id
en

ce
 b

as
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 p
la

nn
in

g 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 to

 
ai

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 s

po
rt

s 
an

d 
re

cr
ea

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
.  

   

To
 

re
m

ov
e 

ou
t 

of
 

da
te

 
re

fe
re

nc
es

 

E
.1
7
6
 

 
5.

1.
50

 
D

el
et

e 
Pa

ra
gr

ap
h:

 
Pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

m
aj

or
 s

po
rt

in
g 

or
 l

ei
su

re
 f

ac
ili

tie
s 

aw
ay

 f
ro

m
 H

er
ef

or
d 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e 

an
d 

th
e 

m
ar

ke
t 

to
w

ns
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 u
nl

es
s 

th
er

e 
is

 a
 d

em
on

st
ra

bl
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t 

fo
r 

th
ei

r 
us

e 
to

 b
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

in
 a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 lo

ca
tio

n.
 P

ro
po

sa
ls

 f
or

 s
uc

h 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
ne

ed
 t

o 
ta

ke
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

ot
he

r 
re

le
va

nt
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

in
 t

hi
s 

pl
an

, 
co

ve
rin

g 
is

su
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 t
he

 i
m

pa
ct

 u
po

n 
th

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

an
d 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t  

  

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
no

t 
re

qu
ire

d 
as

 t
he

 
is

su
e 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 

ot
he

r p
ol

ic
ie

s 

E
.1
7
7
 

 
5.

1.
57

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

:  
Al

on
g 

si
de

 t
he

 a
bo

ve
, d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
op

os
al

s 
sh

ou
ld

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 p

re
sc

rib
ed

 b
y 

 h
av

e 
re

ga
rd

 t
o 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 L
TP

 w
hi

le
 p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
th

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 s
et

 o
ut

 i
n 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

H
ig

hw
ay

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
D

es
ig

n 
G

ui
de

 f
or

 N
ew

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 t

he
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
fo

r 
Tr

an
sp

or
t’

s 
M

an
ua

l 
fo

r 
St

re
et

s 
an

d 
M

an
ua

l 
fo

r 
St

re
et

s 
2 

– 
W

id
er

 A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
 P

rin
ci

pl
es

 (
20

10
) 

Co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 g

iv
en

 t
o 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

of
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 C
irc

ul
ar

 0
2/

20
13

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n 

M
an

ua
l f

or
 ro

ad
s 

an
d 

br
id

ge
s 

or
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n.
 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

159



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 5
0 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.1
7
8
 

 
5.

2.
2 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
:  

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
re

la
te

 t
o 

th
e 

th
em

e 
of

 e
co

no
m

ic
 p

ro
sp

er
ity

 a
nd

 i
nc

lu
de

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

; 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 e

xi
st

in
g 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

la
nd

; 
ho

m
e 

w
or

ki
ng

, 
to

ur
is

m
, 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
an

d 
pr

im
ar

y 
sh

op
pi

ng
 a

re
as

 a
nd

 f
ro

nt
ag

es
. 

Th
ey

 s
up

pl
em

en
t 

th
e 

sp
at

ia
l 

st
ra

te
gy

 
po

lic
y 

SS
5 

an
d 

th
e 

Pl
ac

e-
Sh

ap
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s.
 I

n 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

, 
th

ey
 a

dd
re

ss
 r

el
ev

an
t 

Co
re

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 6
-9

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 th

e 
sp

at
ia

l s
tr

at
eg

y 
se

ct
io

n 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

E
.1
7
9
 

 
5.

2.
22

 
D

el
et

e 
fr

om
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

: 
“T

he
 M

ar
ch

es
 H

ot
el

 S
tu

dy
 2

01
2 

in
di

ca
te

s 
th

at
 t

hr
ee

 s
ta

r 
ho

te
ls

 d
om

in
at

e 
su

pp
ly

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

. 
Th

e 
st

ud
y 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
a 

ne
ed

 
fo

r 
la

rg
er

 
4-

st
ar

 
ho

te
ls

 
in

 
th

e 
co

un
ty

 
w

ith
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
an

d 
co

nf
er

en
ci

ng
 f

ac
ili

tie
s.

 I
n 

or
de

r 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 t
he

re
 i

s 
no

t 
an

 o
ve

rs
up

pl
y 

of
 a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 

st
an

da
rd

 o
f h

ot
el

” 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
su

pe
rf

lu
ou

s 
te

xt
 

 

E
.1
8
0
 

 
E5

 
Po

lic
y 

E5
 –

 T
ow

n 
Ce

nt
re

s 
In

 s
ec

on
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
in

se
rt

: 
Pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

ou
ts

id
e 

th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
w

ill
 

on
ly

 
be

 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 

if 
it 

ca
n 

be
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

d 
th

at
 t

he
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 s

eq
ue

nt
ia

l t
es

t,
 a

s 
se

t 
ou

t 
in

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 2

4 
of

 t
he

 N
PP

F,
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
m

et
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 a
dv

er
se

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
vi

ta
lit

y 
an

d 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 c
en

tr
es

. A
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
fu

se
d 

if 
it 

fa
ils

 t
he

 s
eq

ue
nt

ia
l t

es
t 

or
 a

n 
im

pa
ct

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t. 

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 c

la
rit

y 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

se
qu

en
tia

l t
es

t. 

E
.1
8
1
 

 
5.

3.
3 

Lo
ca

lly
 d

is
tin

ct
iv

e 
as

se
ts

 b
ot

h 
na

tu
ra

l 
an

d 
m

an
-m

ad
e,

 a
re

 f
in

ite
 a

nd
 i

rr
ep

la
ce

ab
le

 a
nd

 a
ny

 
de

tr
im

en
ta

l 
im

pa
ct

s 
ca

n 
ca

rr
y 

cu
ltu

ra
l, 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l, 
ec

on
om

ic
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l 
co

st
s.

 A
 n

um
be

r 
of

 
as

se
ts

 b
en

ef
it 

fr
om

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

es
ig

na
tio

ns
 w

ith
in

 n
at

io
na

l a
nd

 in
te

rn
at

io
na

l l
eg

is
la

tio
n.

 S
ta

tu
to

ry
 

de
si

gn
at

io
ns

 
ra

ng
e 

fr
om

 
la

rg
e 

ar
ea

s 
co

ns
er

ve
d 

fo
r 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
ge

od
iv

er
si

ty
 

or
 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

 
im

po
rt

an
ce

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

e 
W

ye
 V

al
le

y 
an

d 
M

al
ve

rn
 H

ill
s 

Ar
ea

s 
of

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 N
at

ur
al

 B
ea

ut
y 

an
d 

Ri
ve

r 
W

ye
 S

pe
ci

al
 A

re
a 

of
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n,

 to
 in

di
vi

du
al

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 li

st
ed

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 p
ro

te
ct

ed
 

fo
r 

th
ei

r 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 o

r 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

. A
pp

en
di

x 
8 

lis
ts

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

si
te

s 
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 a

t 
tim

e 
of

 a
do

pt
io

n 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
te

xt
 a

nd
  

up
da

te
 t

he
 

pl
an

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
ne

w
 a

pp
en

di
x.

 

160



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 5
1 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.1
8
2
 

 
5.

3.
4 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
:  

N
on

-s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

de
si

gn
at

io
ns

 
an

d 
lo

ca
lly

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 
fe

at
ur

es
 

ar
e 

eq
ua

lly
 

im
po

rt
an

t 
to

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 l

oc
al

 d
is

tin
ct

iv
en

es
s.

 W
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
, 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

im
po

rt
an

t 
as

se
ts

 s
uc

h 
as

 l
oc

al
 w

ild
lif

e 
si

te
s,

 l
oc

al
 g

eo
lo

gi
ca

l 
si

te
s 

an
d 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 

in
te

re
st

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 u
ni

qu
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r.
  

N
on

-s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

lo
ca

lly
 d

is
tin

ct
iv

e 
bu

ild
in

gs
 a

nd
 g

re
en

 s
pa

ce
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
fo

rt
hc

om
in

g 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 D
oc

um
en

ts
 o

r N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
ns

 

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
pl

an
 

E
.1
8
3
 

 
5.

3.
8 

Am
en

d 
fo

ur
th

 s
en

te
nc

e:
  

Fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

pr
op

os
al

s 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

of
te

n 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 f

or
 m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 c
on

se
rv

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

fe
at

ur
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 t
re

es
, t

o 
re

st
or

e 
fe

at
ur

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

he
dg

es
 a

nd
 t

o 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
by

 o
th

er
 m

ea
ns

 s
uc

h 
as

 w
oo

dl
an

d 
pl

an
tin

g,
 c

re
at

io
n 

of
 w

et
la

nd
 a

re
as

 o
r 

re
st

or
at

io
n 

of
 h

is
to

ric
 fe

at
ur

es
 

 

To
 re

m
ov

e 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
te

xt
. 

E
.1
8
4
 

 
5.

3.
9 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h 

to
 re

ad
:  

A 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 V
ar

io
us

 l
an

ds
ca

pe
 a

nd
 t

ow
ns

ca
pe

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
re

pa
re

d 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 a

 H
is

to
ric

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

is
at

io
n 

an
d 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s 
ap

pr
ai

sa
ls

. T
he

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 C

ha
ra

ct
er

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

ry
 P

la
nn

in
g 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
20

09
 (S

PD
) w

ill
 

be
 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

pl
an

 
pe

rio
d.

 
Th

e 
SP

D
 

w
ill

 
bu

ild
 

up
on

 
th

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
ev

id
en

ce
 

ba
se

 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n;

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 N

at
ur

al
 E

ng
la

nd
’s

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
 A

re
as

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 m
or

e 
re

ce
nt

ly
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

U
rb

an
 F

rin
ge

 S
en

si
tiv

ity
 A

na
ly

si
s 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
10

, 
Ra

pi
d 

To
w

ns
ca

pe
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 (

va
rio

us
), 

G
re

en
 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

0 
an

d 
ot

he
r l

oc
al

 s
tu

di
es

 c
ov

er
in

g 
th

e 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 a

nd
 h

is
to

ric
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t.

 I
n 

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 t
he

 a
bo

ve
, 

re
le

va
nt

 A
re

as
 o

f 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 N

at
ur

al
 B

ea
ut

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
s,

 a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

gu
id

an
ce

 a
ls

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
m

or
e 

pl
ac

e-
sp

ec
ifi

c 
gu

id
an

ce
 w

hi
ch

 
sh

ou
ld

 in
fo

rm
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t p

ro
po

sa
ls

 fr
om

 th
e 

ou
ts

et
 

To
 a

dd
 c

la
rit

y 

E
.1
8
5
 

 
5.

3.
11

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

:  
Bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
 c

an
 b

e 
de

fin
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

va
rie

ty
 o

f 
si

te
s,

 h
ab

ita
ts

 a
nd

 s
pe

ci
es

 w
ith

in
 a

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
lo

ca
lit

y 
an

d 
is

 in
flu

en
ce

d 
by

 f
ac

to
rs

 s
uc

h 
as

 g
eo

lo
gy

, 
to

po
gr

ap
hy

 a
nd

 c
lim

at
e.

 G
eo

di
ve

rs
ity

 r
ef

er
s 

to
 t

he
 

na
tu

ra
l p

ro
ce

ss
es

 a
nd

 c
on

st
itu

en
t p

ar
ts

 th
at

 h
av

e 
sh

ap
ed

 th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

es
 m

in
er

al
s,

 s
oi

ls
 

an
d 

w
at

er
. 

G
eo

di
ve

rs
ity

 i
s 

th
e 

va
rie

ty
 o

f 
ro

ck
, 

m
in

er
al

s,
 f

os
si

ls
, 

so
ils

, 
la

nd
fo

rm
s 

an
d 

na
tu

ra
l 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

sh
ap

ed
 th

e 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

To
 a

dd
 c

la
rit

y 

161



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 5
2 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.1
8
6
 

 
5.

3.
16

 
Re

vi
se

 e
nd

 o
f f

irs
t s

en
te

nc
e:

 
‘…

…
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
ity

’s
 a

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
bo

un
da

rie
s,

 a
re

 h
el

d 
at

 t
he

 l
is

te
d 

in
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
8e

-k
 a

nd
 

fu
rt

he
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

is
 h

el
d 

at
 th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 B
io

lo
gi

ca
l R

ec
or

ds
 C

en
tr

e.
’ 

To
 g

iv
e 

cl
ar

ity
 

E
.1
8
7
 

 
5.

3.
17

 
Ta

bl
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
pa

ra
 5

.3
.1

7 
in

se
rt

 a
s 

tit
le

:  
Fi

gu
re

 5
.2

: H
ie

ra
rc

hy
 o

f G
re

en
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 A
ss

et
s 

 An
d 

ch
an

ge
 h

ea
di

ng
 in

 c
ol

um
n 

1 
to

: 
Co

un
ty

 /
 R

eg
io

na
l S

tr
at

eg
y 

  

To
 g

iv
e 

cl
ar

ity
 

E
.1
8
8
 

 
5.

3.
21

 
Am

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
to

 re
ad

:  
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
op

os
al

s 
sh

ou
ld

 i
de

nt
ify

 a
nd

 p
ro

te
ct

 e
xi

st
in

g 
gr

ee
n 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
. 

Th
is

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

re
as

 m
ap

pe
d 

in
 t

he
 G

re
en

 I
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 2
01

0 
or

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 f

ea
tu

re
s 

th
at

 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
 t

he
 g

re
en

 i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

ne
tw

or
k.

 T
he

 G
re

en
 I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 2

01
0 

an
d 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 S

tu
dy

 id
en

tif
y 

th
os

e 
fe

at
ur

es
 t

ha
t 

co
nt

ri
bu

te
 t

o 
th

e 
gr

ee
n 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 n

et
w

or
k 

Th
is

 
Pr

op
os

al
s 

sh
ou

ld
 t

ak
e 

ac
co

un
t 

of
 f

ea
tu

re
s 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 s

ite
, 

bu
t 

an
d 

al
so

 o
n 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 s
ite

s 
as

 
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
an

d 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

w
ith

 t
he

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

s 
is

 a
 k

ey
 o

bj
ec

tiv
e.

 P
ro

po
sa

ls
 s

ho
ul

d 
in

co
rp

or
at

e 
th

e 
re

te
nt

io
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t 

of
 f

ea
tu

re
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

tr
ee

s 
an

d 
he

dg
er

ow
s,

 t
og

et
he

r 
w

ith
 lo

ng
 t

er
m

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
cl

ar
ity

 a
nd

 c
er

ta
in

ty
 

E
.1
8
9
 

 
5.

3.
24

 
A

m
en

d 
fin

al
 s

en
te

nc
e;

 

Th
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

re
-u

se
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

ild
in

gs
 c

an
 a

ls
o 

he
lp

 m
iti

ga
te

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

du
ci

ng
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

re
ss

ur
es

 o
n 

gr
ee

nf
ie

ld
 s

ite
s,

 re
du

ci
ng

 d
em

an
d 

fo
r c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

en
er

gy
 a

nd
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 
an

d 
by

 m
in

im
is

in
g 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

w
as

te
.  

 

To
 g

iv
e 

cl
ar

ity
  

E
.1
9
0
 

 
5.

3.
46

   
Am

en
d 

fir
st

 s
en

te
nc

e:
 

‘P
ol

ic
y 

SD
3 

al
so

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
cr

ite
ria

 f
or

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

to
 c

on
si

de
r 

w
he

n 
pr

op
os

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
ith

in
 

ar
ea

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 b

ei
ng

 a
t r

is
k 

of
 fl

oo
di

ng
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t. 

To
 g

iv
e 

cl
ar

ity
 

162



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 5
3 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.1
9
1
 

 
5.

3.
62

 
Th

e 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
Ag

en
cy

 a
nd

 N
at

ur
al

 E
ng

la
nd

 h
av

e 
co

m
m

itt
ed

, 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

fo
rm

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
of

 
In

te
nt

, t
o 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
ns

 o
f 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 a
 N

ut
rie

nt
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
 a

im
ed

 t
o 

co
nt

ro
l a

nd
 r

ed
uc

e 
ph

os
ph

at
e 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 R

iv
er

 W
ye

 S
AC

 a
nd

 in
 d

oi
ng

 s
o 

se
ek

 t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

ac
tio

ns
 t

o 
en

ab
le

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

 T
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 w

ill
 p

la
y 

a 
vi

ta
l r

ol
e 

in
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 N
ut

rie
nt

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
, 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

an
d 

m
ea

su
re

s.
 T

he
 N

ut
rie

nt
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
 

w
ill

 id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 id

en
tif

ie
s 

th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ac
tio

ns
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 t

he
 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 t

ar
ge

t 
fo

r 
ph

os
ph

at
e 

by
 2

02
7.

 P
la

nn
in

g 
gu

id
an

ce
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 w

he
re

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 c

ov
er

 r
el

ev
an

t 
m

ea
su

re
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 N

ut
rie

nt
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
, 

or
 a

ny
 

re
vi

si
on

s 
to

 i
t, 

co
m

pr
is

in
g 

th
e 

ne
ed

 f
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ad

vi
ce

, 
de

ta
ile

d 
ph

as
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
, 

op
tio

ns
 

th
at

 m
ig

ht
 b

e 
fu

nd
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 d
ev

el
op

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

, 
w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

ec
ol

og
ic

al
 c

on
di

tio
n 

of
 

st
re

tc
he

s 
al

on
g 

th
e 

SA
C 

riv
er

s,
 a

nd
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

. 
  

To
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
re

fe
re

nc
es

 t
o 

th
e 

N
ut

rie
nt

 M
an

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

E
.1
9
2
 

 
5.

3.
11

5 
D

el
et

e 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h:

 
Su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

Ap
pr

ai
sa

l  
1.

3.
11

5 
Th

e 
Su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

Ap
pr

ai
sa

l R
ep

or
t p

ro
du

ce
d 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

hi
s 

Co
re

 
St

ra
te

gy
 d

id
 n

ot
 re

co
m

m
en

d 
an

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 a
ny

 o
f t

he
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

in
 th

is
 s

ec
tio

n.
  I

n 
re

la
tio

n 
to

 s
oc

ia
l p

ro
gr

es
s 

po
lic

ie
s,

 th
es

e 
w

er
e 

ap
pr

ai
se

d 
as

 h
av

in
g 

m
os

tly
 p

os
iti

ve
 

ef
fe

ct
s 

w
ith

 a
 n

um
be

r h
av

in
g 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 p

os
iti

ve
 e

ff
ec

ts
. T

he
 o

nl
y 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

ef
fe

ct
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
es

e 
po

lic
ie

s 
w

as
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 P

ol
ic

y 
H

2 
- a

llo
w

in
g 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 

sc
he

m
es

 in
 ru

ra
l a

re
as

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

a 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
n 

re
du

ci
ng

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 tr

av
el

. 
Th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 p

ro
sp

er
ity

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
ar

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 to

 h
av

e 
m

os
tly

 p
os

iti
ve

 e
ff

ec
ts

, w
hi

ls
t i

n 
re

sp
ec

t o
f t

he
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l q

ua
lit

y 
po

lic
ie

s 
th

e 
lo

ca
l d

is
tin

ct
iv

en
es

s 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
de

si
gn

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
ar

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 to

 h
av

e 
m

os
tly

 p
os

iti
ve

 o
r s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 p

os
iti

ve
 e

ff
ec

ts
. 

Po
lic

ie
s 

de
al

in
g 

w
ith

 m
in

er
al

s 
an

d 
w

as
te

 a
re

 a
ss

es
se

d 
as

 h
av

in
g 

m
ix

ed
 e

ff
ec

ts
.P

ol
ic

ie
s 

de
al

in
g 

w
ith

 m
in

er
al

s 
an

d 
w

as
te

 a
re

 a
ss

es
se

d 
as

 h
av

in
g 

m
ix

ed
 e

ff
ec

ts
. 

     

To
 

up
da

te
 

th
e 

Co
re

 
St

ra
te

gy
 

an
d 

re
m

ov
e 

un
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

te
xt

. 

163



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 5
4 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

6.
 

D
el

iv
er

y,
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

M
on

ito
rin

g 

E
.1
9
3
 

 
6.

13
 

Th
e 

ty
pe

 o
f i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
ta

rif
f w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 s
er

vi
ce

 is
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 a
n 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Pl

an
 (I

D
P)

. T
he

 ID
P 

pr
ov

id
es

 ro
bu

st
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 th
ro

ug
h 

to
 

20
31

, b
ut

 th
e 

fo
cu

s 
is

 o
n 

th
e 

m
ea

su
re

s 
th

at
 a

re
 n

ee
de

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

fir
st

 5
 y

ea
rs

 (2
01

1 
to

 2
01

6)
 fr

om
 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f a

do
pt

io
n,

 in
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f t

he
 lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 p
la

n 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y.

 T
he

 ID
P 

sc
he

du
le

 a
nd

 re
qu

ire
d 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 is

 s
et

 o
ut

 o
n 

an
 a

re
a 

ba
si

s 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Co

un
ty

-w
id

e,
 

Th
e 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Ar

ea
, t

he
 M

ar
ke

t T
ow

ns
 a

nd
 th

e 
Ru

ra
l A

re
as

 

To
 g

iv
e 

cl
ar

ity
  

E
.1
9
4
 

 
6.

15
 

A 
lis

t o
f p

rio
rit

is
ed

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 p

ro
je

ct
s,

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l h
av

e 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 to
, w

ill
 b

e 
ad

ve
rt

is
ed

 
on

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 w
eb

si
te

 in
 th

e 
fo

rm
 o

f a
 R

eg
ul

at
io

n 
12

3 
lis

t.
 T

hi
s 

lis
t w

ill
 h

av
e 

be
en

 v
er

ifi
ed

 in
 te

rm
s 

of
 a

ch
ie

va
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

ph
as

in
g 

of
 d

el
iv

er
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Ec
on

om
ic

 V
ia

bi
lit

y 
St

ud
y 

20
14

  a
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 b
as

e 
de

al
in

g 
w

ith
 E

co
no

m
ic

 V
ia

bi
lit

y,
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
 b

al
an

ce
 is

 s
tr

uc
k 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

an
d 

th
e 

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 s

ite
s 

to
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
nd

us
tr

y 

To
 g

iv
e 

cl
ar

ity
 

E
.1
9
5
 

 
6.

22
 

Th
e 

co
nt

in
uo

us
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
op

os
al

s 
is

 e
ss

en
tia

l t
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 th

e 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

ac
hi

ev
es

 it
s 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
. T

he
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
on

ito
re

d 
pr

in
ci

pa
lly

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

An
nu

al
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

Re
po

rt
 (A

M
R)

, i
n 

th
e 

m
an

ne
r d

es
cr

ib
ed

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f e
ac

h 
se

ct
io

n 
of

 th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t a
nd

 in
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 3
 –

 th
e 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n,
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Pl

an
. T

he
 A

M
R 

re
po

rt
 w

ill
 s

et
 o

ut
 th

e 
ba

si
c 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 m

ai
n 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

co
nt

ai
n 

de
ta

ils
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s 

in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

. 

To
 g

iv
e 

cl
ar

ity
 

G
lo

ss
ar

y 
of

 te
rm

s 

164



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 5
5 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.1
9
6
 

 
G

lo
ss

ar
y 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
te

rm
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ad

de
d/

am
en

de
d 

w
ith

 d
ef

in
iti

on
s 

as
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
: 

Ag
gr

eg
at

es
 

Ag
gr

eg
at

es
 W

or
ki

ng
 p

ar
ty

 

Cu
st

om
 b

ui
ld

 

Fu
nc

tio
na

l n
ee

d 
te

st
 

Lo
ca

l A
gg

re
ga

te
s 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

Lo
ca

l A
ut

ho
rit

y 
Co

lle
ct

ed
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 W
as

te
 

Lo
ca

l N
ee

ds
 

M
an

ag
ed

 A
gg

re
ga

te
 S

up
pl

y 
Sy

st
em

s 

M
in

er
al

s 
Sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 A

re
a 

Pa
rk

 a
nd

 ri
de

 C
ho

os
e 

Pr
im

ar
y 

Ag
gr

eg
at

es
 

Re
st

or
at

io
n 

Se
co

nd
ar

y 
Ag

gr
ea

gt
e 

Se
lf 

-b
ui

ld
 H

ou
si

ng
 

Se
lf 

bu
ild

 h
om

es
 a

nd
 c

o-
ho

us
in

g 
sc

he
m

es
 

So
ci

al
 w

el
l-b

ei
ng

 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
te

xt
 o

f t
he

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 o

r d
el

et
e 

de
fin

iti
on

s 
w

he
re

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 

E
.1
9
7
 

 
G

lo
ss

ar
y 

D
el

et
e:

 

Co
de

 F
or

 S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 H
om

es
  

Th
e 

Co
de

 is
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l s
ta

nd
ar

d 
fo

r t
he

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 h

om
es

. I
t 

ai
m

s 
to

 re
du

ce
 c

ar
bo

n 
em

is
si

on
s 

an
d 

cr
ea

te
 m

or
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ho
m

es
. 

To
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

fa
ct

 th
at

 th
e 

Co
de

 
ha

s 
be

en
 w

ith
dr

aw
n 

by
 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t  

 

165



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 5
6 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 c

om
m

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
du

ri
ng

 th
e 

M
ai

n 
M

od
ifi

ca
tio

n 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

ns
 (R

ef
er

en
ce

 to
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 M

ai
n 

M
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
al

so
 in

cl
ud

ed
 

w
he

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

). 

E
.1
9
8
 

 
M

M
03

 

1.
17

 

Am
en

d 
2nd

 s
en

te
nc

e:
 

Co
m

m
un

iti
es

 m
ay

 w
is

h 
to

 b
ui

ld
 n

ew
 h

om
es

 o
r n

ew
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
m

en
iti

es
, a

nd
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 th
ey

 
ca

n 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 o

ve
rw

he
lm

in
g 

lo
ca

l s
up

po
rt

 th
ro

ug
h 

a 
po

si
tiv

e 
re

fe
re

nd
um

 re
su

lt,
 th

e 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 R
ig

ht
 to

 B
ui

ld
 w

ill
 g

iv
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 th
e 

po
w

er
s 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

is
 d

ire
ct

ly
.  

 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
te

xt
. 

E
.1
9
9
 

 
M

M
07

 

SS
3 

Am
en

d 
pa

ra
gr

ap
h:

 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 5
 s

et
s 

ou
t t

he
 re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 th

e 
tim

in
g 

of
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. I

t a
ls

o 
id

en
tif

ie
s 

ac
tio

ns
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 
of

 th
e 

Ri
ve

r W
ye

 S
pe

ci
al

 A
re

a 
of

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
(S

AC
) f

ro
m

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

dv
er

se
 e

ff
ec

ts
.  

Th
e 

Co
un

ci
l w

ill
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

m
on

ito
r t

he
 re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

is
 a

pp
en

di
x.

 A
ny

 m
at

er
ia

l d
el

ay
s 

in
 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 o
fr

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l s
af

eg
ua

rd
s 

an
d 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 

le
ad

 to
 u

nd
er

-d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
up

pl
y 

w
ill

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
se

t o
ut

 a
bo

ve
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pl
an

-le
d 

co
rr

ec
tiv

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e.

 

 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
te

xt
 a

nd
 c

or
re

ct
 ty

po
gr

ap
hi

ca
l 

er
ro

r.
 

E
.2
0
0
 

 
M

M
07

 

N
ew

 p
ar

a 
(B

ef
or

e 
3.

43
) 

Am
en

d 
2nd

 s
en

te
nc

e:
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 5
4 

se
ts

 o
ut

 a
n 

in
di

ca
tiv

e 
tr

aj
ec

to
ry

 fo
r t

ot
al

 h
ou

si
ng

 c
om

pl
et

io
ns

, w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 
ba

si
s 

fo
r m

on
ito

rin
g 

co
m

pl
et

io
ns

 o
ve

r t
he

 p
la

n 
pe

ri
od

. 

 

To
 c

or
re

ct
 re

fe
re

nc
in

g 
er

ro
r.

  

E
.2
0
1
 

 
M

M
08

 

SS
4 

Am
en

d 
5th

 b
ul

le
t p

oi
nt

: 

• 
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 R

id
eC

ho
os

e 
sc

he
m

es
; a

nd
 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 
re

fe
re

nc
es

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
pl

an
. 

166



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 5
7 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.2
0
2
 

 
3.

59
 

A
m

en
d 

3rd
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 

Th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

ra
ilh

ea
d 

fo
r m

in
er

al
s 

tr
an

sp
or

t a
t M

or
et

on
-o

n-
Lu

gg
 w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 b
ei

s 
be

in
g 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
m

in
er

al
s 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y .

 

 

To
 re

fle
ct

 a
nd

 b
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 M

M
01

- 
re

m
ov

al
 o

f t
he

 m
in

er
al

s 
se

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

Co
re

 
St

ra
te

gy
.  

E
.2
0
3
 

 
M

M
01

1 

SS
6 

A
m

en
d 

1st
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ro

po
sa

ls
 s

ho
ul

d 
co

ns
er

ve
 a

nd
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

os
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l a
ss

et
s 

th
at

 
co

nt
rib

ut
e 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
un

ty
’s

 d
is

tin
ct

iv
en

es
s,

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 it
s 

se
tt

le
m

en
t p

at
te

rn
, l

an
ds

ca
pe

, 
bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
 a

nd
 h

is
to

ric
he

rit
ag

e 
as

se
ts

 a
nd

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 th

os
e 

w
ith

 s
pe

ci
fic

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
de

si
gn

at
io

ns
. 

 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 re
fe

re
nc

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

pl
an

. 

E
.2
0
4
 

 
M

M
01

1 

3.
10

2 

A
m

en
d 

2nd
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 N

at
ur

al
 E

ng
la

nd
 h

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 fo

r e
ac

h 
Sp

ec
ia

l A
re

a 
of

 
Co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
; i

t i
s 

al
so

 c
on

su
lte

d 
up

on
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 th
at

 m
ig

ht
 a

ff
ec

t S
pe

ci
al

 
Ar

ea
s 

of
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

an
d 

Si
te

s 
of

 S
pe

ci
al

 S
ci

en
tif

ic
 In

te
re

st
, a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
le

va
nt

 to
 th

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

nd
 a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t o

f t
he

ir 
fa

vo
ur

ab
le

 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
st

at
us

. 

 A
m

en
d 

4th
 s

en
te

nc
e:

  

Th
e 

m
os

t r
ig

or
ou

s 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 to
 a

ss
es

si
ng

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t s
ho

ul
d 

be
 ta

ke
n 

fo
r t

ho
se

 
ar

ea
s 

w
ith

 n
at

io
na

l o
r a

nd
 in

te
rn

at
io

na
l a

nd
 n

at
io

na
l d

es
ig

na
tio

ns
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 in

 a
re

as
 

ou
ts

id
e 

bu
t h

av
in

g 
an

 e
ff

ec
t u

po
n 

th
em

, i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

af
fo

rd
ed

 to
 s

uc
h 

ar
ea

s 
in

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l P
la

nn
in

g 
Po

lic
y 

Fr
am

ew
or

k.
 

 

To
 a

dd
 c

la
rit

y 
to

 th
e 

te
xt

. 

167



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 5
8 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.2
0
5
 

 
M

M
01

5 

H
D

2 

Am
en

d 
5th

 b
ul

le
t p

oi
nt

: 

• 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 th

e 
te

na
nt

(s
)o

f E
dg

ar
 S

tr
ee

t f
oo

tb
al

l s
ta

di
um

 to
 

ex
pl

or
e 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r t

he
 a

 s
po

rt
s 

le
d 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f p
ar

ts
 o

f H
er

ef
or

d 
U

ni
te

d 
Fo

ot
ba

ll 
G

ro
un

d,
 in

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

ne
w

 s
pe

ct
at

or
 s

ta
nd

s,
 w

ill
 b

e 
so

ug
ht

; a
nd

 
Am

en
d 

fin
al

 b
ul

le
t p

oi
nt

: 

• 
en

ab
le

 th
e 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n,
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t o

f H
er

ef
or

d’
s 

he
rit

ag
e 

as
se

ts
, 

th
er

e 
th

ei
r s

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
 a

nd
 s

et
tin

g,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ar
ch

ae
ol

og
y,

 w
ith

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 re

ga
rd

 to
 th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 s

tr
ee

t p
at

te
rn

s 
an

d 
th

e 
sk

yl
in

e.
 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
te

xt
, a

nd
 to

 c
or

re
ct

 a
 s

pe
lli

ng
 

er
ro

r.
  

E
.2
0
6
 

 
H

D
4 

Re
m

ov
e 

st
rik

et
hr

ou
gh

 in
 3

rd
 b

ul
le

t p
oi

nt
: 

…
im

pr
ov

in
g 

co
nn

ec
ti

vi
ty

 fo
r 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

m
od

e 
us

er
s;

 

 

To
 c

or
re

ct
 a

 ty
po

gr
ap

hi
ca

l e
rr

or
.  

168



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 5
9 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.2
0
7
 

 
M

M
01

8 

H
D

5 

A
m

en
d 

fir
st

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
: 

La
nd

 a
t T

hr
ee

 E
lm

s 
w

ill
 d

el
iv

er
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
ly

 p
la

nn
ed

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 u
rb

an
 e

xp
an

si
on

. T
he

 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
se

ns
iti

ve
ly

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 in

to
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

ur
ba

n 
fa

br
ic

 o
f H

er
ef

or
d,

 
an

d 
th

e 
w

id
er

 la
nd

sc
ap

e,
 th

ro
ug

h 
hi

gh
 d

es
ig

n 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

st
an

da
rd

s.
Th

e 
ar

ea
 w

ill
 b

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
in

 a
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 m
an

ne
r t

o 
sh

ow
 th

e 
la

yo
ut

 o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

. A
pp

en
di

x 
5 

se
ts

 o
ut

 th
e 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f u
rb

an
 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
ar

ea
s 

an
d 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 k
ey

 n
ew

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
. L

an
d 

no
rt

h 
w

es
t o

f t
he

 c
ity

 c
en

tr
e 

is
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

fo
r a

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 m
ix

ed
 u

se
 u

rb
an

 e
xp

an
si

on
 to

 b
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
ly

 m
as

te
rp

la
nn

ed
 

to
 fo

rm
 a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 in

te
r-

re
la

te
d 

ne
w

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s.

 T
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 

pr
ov

id
e:

 

U
pd

at
e 

5th
 b

ul
le

t p
oi

nt
: 

• 
la

nd
 a

nd
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 fo
r a

 tr
an

sp
or

t i
nt

er
ch

an
ge

 o
r a

ro
un

d 
15

0 
sp

ac
es

 P
ar

k 
an

d 
Ch

oo
se

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s;
si

te
 (l

an
d 

an
d 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
)::

 
Am

en
d 

11
th

 b
ul

le
t p

oi
nt

: 

• 
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 H
un

tin
gt

on
 V

ill
ag

e 
in

to
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
re

a 
in

 a
 w

ay
 w

hi
ch

 re
sp

ec
ts

, 
pr

es
er

ve
s 

pr
ot

ec
ts

, c
on

se
rv

es
 a

nd
, w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 e

nh
an

ce
s 

th
e 

se
tt

in
g 

of
 th

e 
Co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
Ar

ea
 a

nd
 h

er
ita

ge
 a

ss
et

s;
 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

pl
an

, t
o 

av
oi

d 
re

pe
tit

io
n 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

po
lic

y.
 

E
.2
0
8
 

 
M

M
02

6 

LB
2 

D
el

et
e 

7th
 b

ul
le

t p
oi

nt
: 

• 
pr

im
ar

y 
ve

hi
cu

la
r a

cc
es

s 
to

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
fr

om
 e

ith
er

 th
e 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Ro

ad
 

un
de

r t
he

 v
ia

du
ct

 w
ith

 th
e 

op
tio

n 
of

 a
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 a
cc

es
s 

or
 fr

om
 th

e 
Br

om
ya

rd
 R

oa
d 

to
 

th
e 

no
rt

h;
 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
e 

w
ith

: 

• 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

ve
hi

cu
la

r a
cc

es
s 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

, t
he

 d
et

ai
ls

 o
f w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 a

t p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
st

ag
e;

 

 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
po

lic
y.

  

169



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 6
0 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.2
0
9
 

 
M

M
02

6 

4.
5.

7 

A
dd

 to
 e

nd
 o

f p
ar

ag
ra

ph
: 

, a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

of
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
su

bm
itt

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
si

te
. 

 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
n 

th
e 

si
te

.  

E
.2
1
0
 

 
M

M
03

6 

4.
8.

11
 

A
m

en
d 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h:
 

Th
e 

m
in

im
um

 in
di

ca
tiv

e 
ru

ra
l H

M
A 

ta
rg

et
 w

ill
 u

nd
er

pi
n 

as
si

st
 in

 in
fo

rm
in

g 
th

e 
sc

al
e 

of
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

n 
th

e 
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
 v

ill
ag

es
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 e

ac
h 

H
M

A.
 T

he
 ta

rg
et

 re
pr

es
en

ts
 a

 le
ve

l o
f 

gr
ow

th
 fo

r p
ar

is
he

s,
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 a

nd
 w

hi
ch

, t
ha

t i
s 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 p

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

H
M

A 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s.

 a
nd

 re
fle

ct
iv

e 
of

 fu
tu

re
 h

ou
si

ng
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 w
ith

in
 th

at
 a

re
a.

 
Fo

r i
nd

iv
id

ua
l v

ill
ag

es
 o

f e
ac

h 
H

M
A 

th
is

 is
 tr

an
sl

at
ed

 a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l n

um
be

r o
f 

dw
el

lin
gs

 in
 th

e 
vi

lla
ge

 c
or

e 
(n

ot
 p

ar
is

h)
. F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 th
e 

gr
ow

th
 ta

rg
et

 fo
r a

 v
ill

ag
e 

of
 1

00
 

dw
el

lin
gs

 lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
Br

om
ya

rd
 H

M
A 

(w
hi

ch
 h

as
 1

5%
 ta

rg
et

) w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

15
 

ne
w

 d
w

el
lin

gs
 o

ve
r t

he
 p

la
n 

pe
rio

d 
20

11
 to

 2
03

1.
  

   

To
 a

dd
 c

la
rit

y 
an

d 
en

su
re

 c
on

si
st

en
cy

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

pl
an

.  

E
.2
1
1
 

 
M

M
03

7 

4.
8.

18
 

A
m

en
d 

2nd
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 

Th
is

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
w

ill
 e

na
bl

e 
al

l s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
ru

ra
l a

re
as

 to
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

nd
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

lly
 s

en
si

tiv
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 P

ol
ic

y 
Fr

am
ew

or
k.

 

 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 o
f t

he
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

ta
ke

n.
 

E
.2
1
2
 

 
M

M
03

7 

4.
8.

25
 

A
m

en
d 

1st
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 

O
n 

th
is

 b
as

is
, h

ou
si

ng
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 w
ill

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

ra
ng

e 
th

at
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

in
fo

r t
he

 
se

tt
le

m
en

t c
on

ce
rn

ed
. 

 

To
 m

ak
e 

be
tt

er
 u

se
 o

f g
ra

m
m

ar
. 

170



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 6
1 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.2
1
3
 

 
M

M
03

7 

4.
8.

26
 

A
m

en
d 

2nd
 s

en
te

nc
e 

Re
pl

ac
e 

“a
re

” 
w

ith
 “

w
er

e”
 

A
m

en
d 

3rd
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 

Th
es

e 
pl

an
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

th
e 

pr
in

ci
pa

l m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 b

y 
w

hi
ch

 n
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 w
ill

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d,
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

an
d 

m
an

ag
ed

. 

A
m

en
d 

5th
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 

Th
e 

ta
rg

et
 re

pr
es

en
ts

 a
 le

ve
l o

f g
ro

w
th

 fo
r s

et
tle

m
en

ts
pa

ris
he

s,
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
, t

ha
t i

s 
pr

op
or

tio
na

te
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
H

M
A 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s.
 

D
el

et
e 

6th
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 

Fo
r i

nd
iv

id
ua

l s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 in
 e

ac
h 

H
M

A,
 th

is
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

fle
ct

ed
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l 
nu

m
be

r o
f d

w
el

lin
gs

 in
 th

e 
pa

ris
h 

co
nc

er
ne

d.
  

an
d 

re
pl

ac
e 

w
it

h:
 

Th
e 

m
ai

n 
fo

cu
s 

fo
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
w

ith
in

 o
r a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
ex

is
tin

g 
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
 in

di
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 fi

g 
4.

20
 a

nd
 4

.2
1.

 

 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 ta

ke
n 

to
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

pl
an

. 

E
.2
1
4
 

 
M

M
03

7 

RA
2 

A
m

en
d 

1st
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 

To
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
d 

st
re

ng
th

en
 lo

ca
lly

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

ru
ra

l p
ar

ts
 o

f 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

, s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 g
ro

w
th

 w
ill

 b
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
in

 o
r a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
th

os
e 

se
tt

le
m

en
ts

 
in

 F
ig

ur
es

 4
.2

0 
an

d 
4.

21
.  

A
m

en
d 

4th
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
ns

 w
ill

 a
llo

ca
te

 la
nd

 fo
r n

ew
 h

ou
si

ng
 o

r o
th

er
w

is
e 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 
de

liv
er

y 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 le
ve

ls
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 v

ar
io

us
 ta

rg
et

s,
 b

y 
in

di
ca

tin
g 

le
ve

ls
 o

f s
ui

ta
bl

e 
an

d 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

. 

 

To
 a

dd
 c

la
rit

y 
to

 th
e 

po
lic

y 
ap

pr
oa

ch
.  

171



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 6
2 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.2
1
5
 

 
M

M
03

8 

4.
8.

28
 

A
m

en
d 

1st
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 

W
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
,T

he
 s

et
tle

m
en

t b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

(o
r a

 re
as

on
ab

le
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e)
 fo

r t
ho

se
 

pl
ac

es
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
 li

st
ed

 in
 P

ol
ic

y 
RA

2 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

fin
ed

 in
 e

ith
er

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pl
an

s 
or

 th
e 

Ru
ra

l A
re

as
 S

ite
s 

Al
lo

ca
tio

n 
D

PD
.  

Pl
ac

e 
3rd

 s
en

te
nc

e:
 

In
 th

e 
pe

rio
d 

le
ad

in
g 

up
 to

 th
e 

de
fin

iti
on

 o
f a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 s

et
tle

m
en

t b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

th
e 

Co
un

ci
l w

ill
 

as
se

ss
 a

ny
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 fo

r r
es

id
en

tia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 in
 F

ig
ur

e 
4.

20
 a

nd
 4

.2
1 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
ir 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

to
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

bu
ilt

 u
p 

fo
rm

 o
f t

he
 s

et
tle

m
en

t.
   

Be
fo

re
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 2
nd

 s
en

te
nc

e:
 

O
ut

si
de

 o
f t

he
se

 s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 n
ew

 h
ou

si
ng

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
st

ric
te

d 
to

 a
vo

id
 u

ns
us

ta
in

ab
le

 p
at

te
rn

s 
of

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 

 

To
 a

dd
 c

la
rit

y 
to

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t f

or
 

se
tt

le
m

en
t b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 
w

he
re

 th
ey

 a
re

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
r o

f t
he

 
se

tt
le

m
en

t,
 a

nd
 to

 a
dd

 c
la

rit
y 

to
 th

e 
po

lic
y 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 in
 g

en
er

al
. 

E
.2
1
6
 

 
M

M
04

0 

RA
5 

A
dd

 to
 fi

rs
t s

en
te

nc
e:

 

Th
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

re
-u

se
 o

f i
nd

iv
id

ua
l a

nd
 g

ro
up

s 
of

 r
ed

un
da

nt
 o

r d
is

us
ed

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
fa

rm
st

ea
ds

 in
 ru

ra
l a

re
as

, w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 m

ak
e 

a 
po

si
tiv

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 ru
ra

l b
us

in
es

se
s 

an
d 

en
te

rp
ris

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 lo
ca

l e
co

no
m

y 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

liv
e 

w
or

k 
un

its
) o

r w
hi

ch
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
es

 to
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t,
 o

r i
s 

es
se

nt
ia

l t
o 

th
e 

so
ci

al
 w

el
l-b

ei
ng

 o
f t

he
 

co
un

tr
ys

id
e,

 w
ill

 b
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 w
he

re
: 

 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
po

lic
y’

s 
in

te
nt

. 

E
.2
1
7
 

 
M

M
04

1 

RA
6 

A
dd

 to
 5

th
 b

ul
le

t p
oi

nt
: 

• 
pr

om
ot

e 
th

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
us

e 
of

 th
e 

na
tu

ra
l a

nd
 h

is
to

ric
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
s 

an
 a

ss
et

 w
hi

ch
 is

 
va

lu
ed

,a
nd

 c
on

se
rv

ed
 a

nd
 e

nh
an

ce
d;

 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
w

ith
 n

at
io

na
l p

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

pl
an

.  

172



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 6
3 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.2
1
8
 

 
M

M
04

5 

5.
1.

26
 

Fo
r 

fig
ur

es
 in

 o
pe

ni
ng

 s
en

te
nc

es
: 

As
 a

t J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

5*
, t

he
re

 a
re

 1
14

 a
ut

ho
ris

ed
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l p
itc

he
s 

w
ith

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 w
ith

 a
 

fu
rt

he
r 2

1 
pi

tc
he

s 
on

 u
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

, b
ut

 to
le

ra
te

d 
si

te
s.

 N
um

be
rs

 o
f c

ar
av

an
s 

on
 th

es
e 

si
te

s 
ha

ve
 

flu
ct

ua
te

d 
ov

er
 th

e 
pa

st
 tw

o 
ye

ar
s 

fr
om

 1
48

 to
 1

61
 a

nd
 a

ve
ra

gi
ng

 1
57

. 

In
se

rt
 fo

ot
no

te
 a

ft
er

 5
.1

.3
0:

 

*C
ar

av
an

 c
ou

nt
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 b
y 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
(J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
5)

 

 

To
 c

la
rif

y 
th

e 
so

ur
ce

s 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

us
ed

. 

E
.2
1
9
 

 
M

M
05

5 

5.
3.

14
 

A
m

en
d 

w
or

di
ng

 in
 1

st
 s

en
te

nc
e:

 

D
ep

en
de

nt
 u

po
n 

th
e 

sc
al

e 
an

d 
pr

ox
im

ity
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ro

po
sa

ls
 to

af
fe

ct
in

g 
bi

od
iv

er
si

ty
 o

r 
ge

od
iv

er
si

ty
 fe

at
ur

es
, H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

m
ay

 re
qu

ire
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
to

 p
ro

du
ce

 a
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
st

ra
te

gy
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
fe

at
ur

es
 o

f i
nt

er
es

t. 

 

To
 a

dd
 c

la
rit

y 
to

 th
e 

te
xt

.  

E
.2
2
0
 

 
M

M
05

7 

LD
4 

A
m

en
d 

cr
it

er
io

n 
1,

  

de
le

te
 th

e 
te

rm
 “

pr
es

er
ve

…
” 

an
d 

am
en

d 
to

 “
pr

ot
ec

t, 
co

ns
er

ve
 a

nd
 w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e…
” 

 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 te
rm

in
ol

og
y 

E
.2
2
1
 

 
5.

3.
11

4 
A

m
en

d:
 

…
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 m
ea

su
re

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l p

ol
ic

ie
s 

A
m

en
d 

bu
lle

t p
oi

nt
: 

§ 
nu

m
be

r o
f l

is
te

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
 a

nd
 s

ch
ed

ul
ed

 a
nc

ie
nt

 m
on

um
en

ts
 o

n 
bu

ild
in

gs
 a

t r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
 

(E
ng

lis
h 

H
er

ita
ge

 H
is

to
ric

 E
ng

la
nd

); 

 

To
 c

or
re

ct
 a

 ty
po

gr
ap

hi
ca

l e
rr

or
 a

nd
 to

 
en

su
re

 th
e 

pl
an

 is
 u

p-
to

-d
at

e.
 

173



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 6
4 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.2
2
2
 

 
M

M
06

5 

Ap
pe

nd
ic

es
 

U
pd

at
e 

ap
pe

nd
ix

: 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 1
- S

av
ed

 U
ni

ta
ry

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n 
(2

00
7)

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

op
os

al
s 

m
ap

s 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s 

to
 b

e 
re

pl
ac

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l P

la
n-

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
) 

 A
dd

 n
ew

 a
pp

en
di

ce
s:

 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 7
- H

ou
si

ng
 V

al
ue

 A
re

as
 b

y 
Po

st
co

de
 

 Ap
pe

nd
ix

 8
- S

ite
s 

w
ith

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l D
es

ig
na

tio
ns

 

A-
 

Co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

Ar
ea

s 

B-
 

Sc
he

du
le

d 
An

ci
en

t M
on

um
en

ts
 (S

AM
s)

 

C-
 

Re
gi

st
er

ed
 H

is
to

ric
 P

ar
ks

 a
nd

 G
ar

de
ns

 

D
- 

U
nr

eg
is

te
re

d 
Pa

rk
s 

an
d 

G
ar

de
ns

 

E-
 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

re
as

 o
f C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

(S
AC

s)
 

F-
 

Si
te

s 
of

 S
pe

ci
al

 S
ci

en
tif

ic
 In

te
re

st
 (S

SS
Is

) 

G
- 

N
at

io
na

l N
at

ur
e 

Re
se

rv
es

 (N
N

Rs
) 

H
- 

Lo
ca

l N
at

ur
e 

Re
se

rv
es

 (L
N

Rs
) 

I- 
Sp

ec
ia

l W
ild

lif
e 

Si
te

s 
(S

W
S)

 

J-
 

Lo
ca

l G
eo

lo
gi

ca
l S

ite
s 

   

K-
 

Ar
ea

s 
of

 A
nc

ie
nt

 a
nd

 S
em

i-N
at

ur
al

 W
oo

dl
an

d 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

 

To
 a

dd
 c

la
rit

y 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
m

or
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
  

174



 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 L

oc
al

 P
la

n 
Co

re
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 6
5 

of
 6

5 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

  
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
5 

 

Re
f N

o 
Po

lic
y/

 
Pa

ra
/ 

Fi
gu

re
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
in

or
 M

od
ifi

ca
ti

on
  

Re
as

on
 fo

r 
M

in
or

 M
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 

E
.2
2
3
 

 
M

M
06

5 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 5
 

Se
ri

al
 6

, c
ol

um
n:

 “
D

el
iv

er
y 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n”
, d

el
et

e 
re

fe
re

nc
e:

 

H
C 

D
CW

W
 

 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
ap

pe
nd

ix
 is

 fa
ct

ua
lly

 c
or

re
ct

.  

 

175



176



  APPENDIX 4 

 

 

 Equality Impact and Needs Assessment Form 
 
A)  Description 
 
 Name of service, function, policy (or other) being assessed 
 

Planning Policy – Herefordshire Local Plan - Core Strategy  

 Directorate or organisation responsible (and service, if it is a policy) 
 

Economies, Communities and Corporate 

 Date of assessment 
 

October  2015 

 Names and/or job titles of people carrying out the assessment 

 Kevin Singleton Team Leader: Strategic Planning 

 Accountable person  
 

Andrew Ashcroft 

 
 What are the aims or main purpose of the service, function or policy?  What 

does it provide and how does it provide it?  
 To provide the statutory Local Plan, a planning strategy and planning policies, for 

the County up to 2031. Aims and objectives of the Core Strategy can be found in 
section 4 of the Place Shaping document that can be found on the Planning Policy 
pages of Herefordshire Council website. 

 Location or any other relevant information 
 

To cover the whole county 

 List any key policies or procedures to be reviewed as part of this assessment. 
 

The whole Core Strategy 

 Who is intended to benefit from the service, function or policy? 
 All residents of and visitors to the county of Herefordshire, by setting out a clear 

planning strategy and planning policies for the county. 
 Who are the stakeholders?  What is their interest? 
 National, regional and local organisations with an interest in planning and residents 

of the county. 
 
 
B)  Partnerships and Procurement 
 
 If you contract out services or work in partnership with other organisations, 

Herefordshire Council remains responsible for ensuring that the quality of 
provision/delivery meets the requirements of the Equality Act 2010, ie. 
• Eliminates unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation 

177



  APPENDIX 4 

 

• Advance equality of opportunity between different groups 
• Fosters good relations between different groups 
 
What information do you give to the partner/contractor in order to ensure that they 
meet the requirements of the Act?  What information do you monitor from the 
partner/contractor in order to ensure that they meet the requirements of the Act? 

 

 Access to all evidence base data. 

 
 Are there any concerns at this stage that indicate the possibility of 

inequalities/negative impacts? For example: complaints, comments, research, 
and outcomes of a scrutiny review.  Please describe: 

 No 

 
 
C)  Information 
 
 What information (monitoring or consultation data) have you got and what is 

it telling you?   
 The Core Strategy Consultation Statements are published on the Planning Policy 

section of Herefordshire Council website.  They contain all information regarding the 
publicity of the consultation, the timings of the consultation, who was consulted and 
all of the findings of the consultation. The information from these statements shows 
that consultation has aimed to fully allow all sections of the community to participate 
in the process. 

 
 
D)  Assessment/Analysis 
 
 Describe your key findings (eg. negative, positive or neutral impacts - actual 

or potential).  Also your assessment of risk. 
 Strand/community Impact  
 The Core Strategy can 

affect anyone in any walk 
of life, including people 
on low income, Gypsies 
and Travellers etc 

The impacts have been planned to be neutral or positive 

 
  

   

 
  

 
  

 
. 
 
E)  Consultation 
 

178



  APPENDIX 4 

 

 Did you carry out any consultation?   

 YES   NO  
 
 Who was consulted?   
 It was open to all residents of Herefordshire and key stakeholders, to identify their 

requirements and inform of their choices for the growth and development of 
Herefordshire up till 2031. Details of how and where we consulted and what the 
findings were can be found in the Core Strategy Consultation Statements available 
on the planning policy section of Herefordshire Council website. -
www.herefordshire.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/planning 
policy/corestrategy. 

 
 Describe other research, studies or information used to assist with the 

assessment and your key findings. 
  Prior to the consultation commencing a new website was established which 

contained access to all the evidence base supporting the Core Strategy 
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/planning- 
policy/local-plan- evidence-base 

 Do you use diversity monitoring categories?  Yes        No    
(if No you should use this as an action as we are required by law to monitor 
diversity categories) 

 If yes, which categories? 
 

 Race  
 Sex  
 Sexual Orientation  
 Religion & Belief  
 Disability  
 Age  
 Gender Reassignment 
 Marriage & Civil Partnership  
 Pregnancy & Maternity  

 
What do you do with the diversity monitoring data you gather?  Is this 
information published?  And if so, where? 

 The results of the diversity monitoring through each stage of the development of the 
Core Strategy can be seen in the Core strategy’s Consultation Statements which 
can be found on the Planning Policy website.  
Information gathered throughout the consultation is published within the 
Consultation Statement that can be viewed at 
https://beta.herefordshire.gov.uk/media/6846846/cs_consultation_responses.xls 

 
 
F)  Conclusions 
 
 Action/objective/target OR  

Justification 
Resources required Timescale I/R/S/J 

a) The Core Strategy has been 
recommended to Council and its 
implications are planned to be added 
to the Service Plans for the Council 

  R,S 

179



  APPENDIX 4 

 

b) 
    

c) 
    

d) 
    

 
(I)  Taking immediate effect. 
(R) Recommended to Council/Directors through a Committee or other Report*. 
(S) Added to the Service Plan. 
(J) To be brought to the attention of the Herefordshire Equality & Human Rights Group. 

180



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Paul Harris on Tel (07792 881 832)  

 

 

Meeting: 
 

Cabinet 

Meeting date: 15 October 2015 
Title of report: Local Account 2014/15 
Report by: Director of Adults and Wellbeing 

 

Alternative options 

1 It is a Department of Health requirement that a Local Account be published. It would 
be possible to change the content and presentation but the draft complies with best 
practice guidance.  

Reasons for recommendations 

2 The reasons to approve the Local Account as attached are that: 
  
a) it meets the Department of Health’s requirements;  
b) the content and layout reflect best practice recommendations from the  regional 

Association of Directors of Adult Social Service (ADASS); and  
c) It has been developed with full cooperation and production from service user 

and carer representation from the Making it Real Board. 

Key considerations 

3 All councils with a remit for adult social care are required by government to produce 
an annual local account of services. This relates to the replacement of the role of the 
regulator, the Care Quality Commission (CQC), in assessing council performance by 

Classification 
Open 
 
Key Decision  
This is not a key decision. 
 
Wards Affected 
Countywide  
 
Purpose 
To approve publication of the Local Account of Adult Social Care and Support 
2014/15 
 
Recommendation(s) 
 
That Cabinet approve the publication of the Local Account as attached at Appendix A 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5

181



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Paul Harris on Tel (07792 881 832)  

 

a lighter-touch approach, which emphasises local accountability and sector- and 
peer-led assessment.  
 

4  The purpose of local accounts is twofold: to communicate with and promote 
accountability to the local community; and to support benchmarking, peer review and 
sector-led improvement.  

5  National guidance leaves the format and content to be determined locally. The 
approach agreed for Herefordshire is to address the challenges and requirements by: 

a)  Producing the document as a web based PDF, available online but easy to print 
off hard copies; 

b) Having a tone and style aimed at citizen audience;  
c) Having the comprehensive underpinning data published separately and 

referenced, interwoven and analysed throughout the account (e.g. statutory 
returns, user and carer surveys, complaints reports, CQC reports on providers, 
national census data);  

d) Being balanced and therefore credible – good news and bad news, both in 
context and evidence based; 

e) Giving the context of national policy, financial challenges and the range of 
organisations that deliver social care;  

f) Having a structure based on the national performance; and  
g) Consulting and involving a range of stakeholders during the production.  

 
6 This year’s local account details progress against the objectives set out in the 

previous year’s report and other areas of service improvement.  It reports on the 
findings of the peer review which was undertaken in June 2014 and the progress 
made towards meeting its key recommendations.  It provides both financial and 
performance data for 2014/15 reporting year and also sets out some of the key 
challenges and priorities for 2015/16. There are also several case studies which give 
a person centred perspective on some of the changes that have been made within 
the reporting year. 

Community impact 

7  The final document, and the process of producing it, is an important element in 
ensuring local authorities make themselves accountable to their local communities. 

              
             The local account specifically gives a true and fair outline of key issues and 

performance to a general reader and reflects and refers to the detailed evidence 
available on the council’s “Facts and Figures” webpages and in the wider public 
domain.  

Equality duty 

8  The local account identifies how we support our vulnerable people with a range of 
tailored services.  

Financial implications 

9 There are no financial implications.  

Legal implications 

10 All councils with a remit for adult social care are required by government to produce 
an annual local account of services. Local accounts are referred to in the Department 

182



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Paul Harris on Tel (07792 881 832)  

 

of Health’s “Transparency in Outcomes: a framework for adult social care” 
consultation paper (November 2010) in the context of localism and transparency, and 
in the subsequent Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework published in March 2011.  

 
This guidance leaves format and content to be determined locally.  
 
The attached local account fulfils this requirement. 

Risk management 

11 The proposal does not contain any specific or direct risk management implications.  

Consultees 

12 The production of the 2014/15 Local Account has been fully co-produced with service 
users and carers on the Making it Real Board.  The Board has had full oversight and 
has directed much of the content this year.  

 
13 The subjective content of the account is based on the annual survey of social care 

users and also the opinions of residential and nursing care service users, through the 
quality and review team survey.  

 
14 The local account has been presented to the Health & Social Care Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee.  The document was accepted with no changes required and 
generated general discussion about the work and performance of Adults & Wellbeing.   

Appendices 

Appendix A – Local Account 2014/15  

Background papers 

None 

 
 
 

183



184



Adult Social Care in
Herefordshire
Our Local Account 2014/15

@HfdsCouncil 
hfdscouncil

APPENDIX A

185



Contents
Introduction

Understanding the challenge – facts and figures

How care is provided in Herefordshire

A change in approach

Progress on a page

Key highlights of our journey so far

Some of our achievements in 2014/15

How are we doing?

Spending and service levels

Our plans and challenges for 2015/16

Further information

3

4

5

5

6

7

7

13

20

21

24

186



3

We began a conversation last year about the need to change our approach to adult social care.  As the
financial challenges continue to grow we need to move this conversation forward and discuss collectively how
we are going to manage with less money at a time when more people need help. 

We have continued to make significant changes over the last year in line with requirements from the Care Act
2014 which you can read about in this Local Account.  Our focus has been, and will continue to be, helping
people look after themselves better and supporting communities so that we can help people remain
independent for longer.  

Our aims remain clear: we want to make sure Herefordshire residents:

• have access to information, advice and guidance to help them keep safe, healthy and independent;
• have choice and control with services that are affordable;
• are offered care and support that is integrated across health and social care;
• have access to supportive local communities;
• are able to access good quality services that meet their support needs.

This year’s Local Account highlights some of the challenges we have faced and achievements we have made in
2014-15, many of them as a result of the Care Act.  The journey continues in 2015-16. 

Introduction

Councillor Patricia Morgan
Cabinet member for health
and wellbeing

187



Herefordshire – the context

Understanding the challenge 
Herefordshire has a population of 186,100
people; 59,900 of these live in Hereford, 9,800
in Ledbury, 11,900 in Leominster and 10,700
in Ross-on-Wye. The rest of the population live
in the rural parishes – Herefordshire has the
fourth lowest population density in England.

The county has an older age structure than
England and Wales averages, with people aged
65 and over constituting 23 per cent of the
county’s population (42,000 people), in
comparison with 19 per cent nationally. It also
has a higher proportion of older people
comparied to similar authorities. 

Projections suggest 30 per cent of
Herefordshire’s population will be aged 65+ in
2031, compared to 23 per cent nationally. This
equates to aroud 50,400 65-84 year-olds (39
per cent more than in 2013), and
approximately 11,700 aged 85+.

Council Expenditure 
In 2014/15 the councils net expenditure was a
little over £145m.  Of this, 39% was spent on
adult social care services.

1804 people received
other community based
services during the year,
including domiciliary care and
day care services

4

Economy,
Communities &
Corporate 34%

Childrens Wellbeing 
27%

Adults and
Wellbeing 

39%

Council spending in 2014/15

Nursing care 
£10.4m

Residential
care
£22m

Domiciliary
Care 

£11.6m

Supported
Accommodation
£2.3m

Direct
Payments
£0.8m

�

Other
Services
£3.2m

Carers
£1m

474 people
received
nursing care
during the year

670 people
received
residential care
during the year

451
people
received
direct
payments
during the
year

Personal
Budgets
£4.5m

� ��

188



5

Social care in a changing world

How is care provided in Herefordshire
The adult and wellbeing directorate is part of
Herefordshire Council. We work with other
organisations across the county to support
adults who have care and support needs to be
as independent as possible and stay safe. These
organisations include:

Voluntary and community organisations;
organisations such as Herefordshire Carers,
Services for Independent Living and Hereford
Disability United provide information advice and
support services.

Health service; including hospitals and GPs,
who provide the medical treatment for
Herefordshire residents.

Domiciliary care (home care) agencies and
other service providers; help to support
individuals to remain living in their own homes,
often meeting personal care needs.

Friends and family; a huge number of people
provide informal care to their friends and family,
this was estimated to be around 21,000 carers
in the 2011 census.

Care homes; provide people with a safe place
to live where their care, support and health
needs can all be met. 

This graph gives an indication of the types of
placements made within care homes in
Herefordshire.  Whilst the council places a large
proportion of people in care homes, there is
significant demand from self-funders in the
county.

44% 39%

17%

� council funded
placements

� health funded
placements

� self-funders/
other
placements
made by other
authorities

The social care system faces unprecedented
challenges:

• demographic change;
• dealing with the implications of the

economic downturn; 
• significant funding challenges (funding for

local authorities has reduced by 40% in the
last five years);

• new public health responsibilities;
• integration with health by 2017. 

We recognise the magnitude of the challenge
confronting all of us and realise we won’t be
able to continue to provide care in the same
way that we have historically; we are
committed to seeking new, inclusive ways to
face these challenges.  

Our new approach is founded upon the
following priorities:

• to help people take care of themselves
better – by asking individuals what they
need then helping them make that happen;

• to support communities and help them
grow so that they can support people
better;

• to change people’s expectations so that
they can be realistic about what is available,
who will provide it and how it will be paid
for.

In 2014-15 we began talking to people about
this new approach.  At the same time, we
began to plan for a new information, advice
and signposting service to pull together all the
rich community-based assets in a new online
directory for Herefordshire people.

189



6

Improve our safeguarding services Implemented a person-centred approach through
Making Safeguarding Personal

Reviewed and launched a new Herefordshire
Safeguarding Adults Board

Challenges identified in our last 
Local Account Progress in 2014-15

We aimed to: What we achieved:

�

�

�

�

Make it easier for people to have choice and control
with a direct payment

Refreshed our direct payments policy

Updated our direct payment fact sheets

Produced easy to read literature

Work closer with health Signed up to the Better Care Fund and began 
planning collaboratively to help people avoid going

into long term care and/or hospital

Meet all the Care Act requirements Reviewed and changed our assessment process

Developed an information and advice service to be
launched in 2015-16

Refreshed policies

Improve our approach to personalisation and involve
people more in service changes or redesign

Improved dialogue between commissioners and people
affected by service changes

Making it Real Board developed further
Personalisation lead appointed

�

�

190



7

April 2008
Herefordshire Council and Herefordshire
Primary Care Trust establish a single
management structure to become
Herefordshire Public Services.

April 2011
Health and social care join forces to form
Wye Valley NHS Trust – the first integrated
provider of acute, community and social
care in England.

2012
National reforms lead to primary care
trusts being relaced by clinical
commissioning groups. 

Sept 2013
The council brings social care back into
the council.  It also changes the way some
of the social care services is provided so
that service users can use direct payments
to buy these services.

Health services for people with learning
disabilities is transferred from Wye Valley
NHS Trust to 2gether Foundation Trust.

The council develops a new structure and
Adults becomes a single directorate.

Council embarks on a programme of
commissioning to bring new providers
and a fresh approach to services in the
county.

March 2014
The council extends arrangements for
2gether NHS Trust to provide mental
health and substance misuse services
pending a strategic review in 2014.

Summer 2014
Public health becomes part of the adult
and wellbeing directorate in order to align
prevention work.

March 2015
The council brings seconded staff from
2gether NHS Trust back into the council to
deliver assessment and care management
services for mental health clients.

Key highlights of the
journey so far

Some of our
achievements 2014/15
Care Act 2014
The Care Act brought together existing
legislation into a new set of laws to build a
health and social care system around people’s
wellbeing, care needs and improved outcomes.
It had a big impact on adult social care in
2014-15 as local authorities prepared to meet
the following Care Act requirements: 

• easier access to information and advice, and
more of it;

• more activities and support for people to
choose from and changes to the way care is
paid for;

• review of support for carers;

• new national eligibility criteria;

• local safeguarding boards to become
statutory;

• making it easier for young adults to move
from children’s services to adult services.

To prepare for the Care Act implementation on
1st April 2015, we refreshed several key
policies (see page 9), revised systems and
processes, strengthened our safeguarding
board arrangements, developed a new
approach to assessments in line with new
eligibility standards. We also tendered for a
advocacy services and a new community hub
and system provider for  information and
advice. We have trained all our staff to make
sure they deliver assessments and services in
line with the new regulations.

191



8

Making Safeguarding Personal
In January 2015, we implemented the national
programme, Making Safeguarding Personal
(MSP) in Herefordshire. MSP focuses on
person-centred support, helping people at risk
of harm to achieve what they want to achieve
by: 

• talking and listening to people about what
they want to happen

• recognising the person as the expert on
their own life

• giving people greater choice and control

• working with the individual to achieve the
outcomes that they themselves determine

• improving the quality of life, wellbeing and
safety of the adult

Safeguarding Board
We have renewed and strengthened the
Herefordshire Safeguarding Adults Board by:

• appointing an independent chair of the
safeguarding board

• rearranging the remit of the board and its
subgroups

• recruiting new members to the board in
addition to the statutory members

• developing support to the board through a
newly established business unit

• working with West Midlands councils to
produce new policies and procedures

Policy Refresh
We have updated and reviewed the following
policies:

Care and Supporting Your Needs Policy
(https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/media/7963
891/care_and_support_and_meeting_your_ne
eds_2015.pdf )

Charging Policy

Direct Payments Policy
(https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/health-and-
social-care/adult-services/direct-payments-for-s
ocial-care)

Deferred Payments Policy
(https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/media/2106
081/Deferred-Payment-Agreement-
Policy_Final.pdf)

Safeguarding Policy
(https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/media/2450
704/wm_adult_safeguarding_pp_draft1415.pdf)

We have also worked on internal policies
around supervision and care with recording,
and quality assurance, in order to support our
social care workforce.

Independent Living Fund (ILF)
The Independent Living Fund came to an end
in June 2015.  In the build up to this date, all
clients in receipt of ILF payments were
reviewed by our social care team. Letters were
sent out to all recipients explaining the
changes that would be taking place and some
additional staff were brought in to focus on
the task.

Recognising some service users were anxious
about the ILF finishing, all were re-assessed
and packages of care continue to meet the
needs of most individuals.

192



9

Better Care
The Better Care Fund was established by
central government to bring health and social
care services together in order to join up
services more effectively.  In September 2014,
Herefordshire Council and the Clinical
Commissioning Group submitted plans which
after some revisions were approved in February
2015.  

These plans focus on three key areas:
• Minimum protection of social care; 
• Community health and social care services
redesign, and 

• Managing the care home market.  

Within each of these schemes are a number of
planned developments designed to join up
health and social care systems.  This work is
due to deliver improvements in specific areas
such as admissions to hospitals, falls-specific
admissions to hospitals, delayed transfers of
care and reduced permanent admission to
residential and nursing homes.

Barbara’s story 

Barbara never really enjoyed games at school: walking had always been difficult 
for her, but no one seemed to know what the problem was.  All came to a head 
in1992 when she had a relapse and lost her sense of balance. This resulted in her being unable to drive
anymore and she lost her confidence to out anymore because of the dizziness and pain she suffered.

Barbara is one of people in Herefordshire who
received financial support from the Independent
Living Fund (ILF).  She also received some help from
the council which she received in the form of a direct
payment.  She was very worried when she heard the
ILF was to close because at the time, the bulk of the
funding she was receiving was from the ILF.  

Barbara felt her concerns were compounded by the
fact that very little information was available from the
ILF, and the council too was unsure about how the
fund was going to be closed down.

“I had a reassessment in March, then another one in May so that my funding arrangements could be
transferred the local authority,” said Barbara. “Luckily, my support plan has been reasonably well protected,
so I don’t lose out financially.  But the last year has been a very worrying time for me and my family: there
were lots of rumours about cutting services and reducing your hours.  Then there was the worry about the
money coming into the local authority and not being ring-fenced so it could be used to pay for roads to be
mended instead.”

“I am still worried about what will happen next year as the council has not said anything.  It is the lack of
information that is worrying.”

Barbara is an active member of the Making it Real Board and will continue to challenge and ask questions
to make sure that people are kept informed of changes that affect them in an accessible way. Her role gives
people who use services like her a voice and makes sure the council continues to address real issues that
matter to Herefordshire residents.

- the impact of the Independent Living Fund closing

193



10

Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
A health and wellbeing strategy was developed
during 2014/15.  The strategy was developed
following a detailed involvement and
engagement programme with all stakeholders,
including the public, to identify priority areas
for Herefordshire.  Seven priority areas were
identified, the top three being mental health,
children and young people and older people.
This strategy has subsequently been approved
and multi-agency action plans will be
implemented during 2015-16 focussing on
keeping people well, reducing health
inequalities and promoting self-help.  

Public Health
The Public Health function in Herefordshire has
contributed significantly to improving the Health
and Wellbeing of our residents at both a high,
strategic level and at a practical day to day level too.

Underpinning the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, a
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment was completed
identifying the current and future health and care
needs of Herefordshire.  This supports the planning
and commissioning (buying) of health, well-being
and social care services each year. 

In addition, work to ensure the delivery of services
to ensure Health Checks, Stop Smoking initiatives,
Drugs and Alcohol Services and Sexual Health,
through appropriate market tendering was
undertaken.

Transitions
As part of the Care Act and the Children’s and
Families Act, there are new responsibilities placed
on local authorities in respect of the transition of
young people from children’s to adult services.
Although there is no requirement within the Care
Act that there should be a specific transition
worker or team, the guidance and regulations for
the Act state that local authorities should consider
the use of specialist workers.  The adult and
wellbeing directorate funded a 12 month pilot
project involving the establishment of a transitions
team in 2015-16. The team will constitute a full
time senior practitioner and two full time
assessment and enablement officers. 

The team will work with young people from the
age of 15, their carer’s and families, providing help
with educational reviews, offering advice and
guidance  and making sure assessments and care
plans are in place for transitioning to adult services. 

Bringing staff together to provide joined
up services
During the year mental health assessment and
care management staff and public health staff
were incorporated into the adult and wellbeing
structure in order to boost preventative work
and provide a more joined up service for
clients.

Peer Review
In June 2014, a peer review team from outside
the county came to assess how we were
delivering the changes needed to meet current
challenges.  This team included a number of
senior managers from across the West Midlands
region and two Experts by experience, people
who receive services in other Authorities.

194



11

They said We did

We needed to consider how personalisation is
delivered within Herefordshire, allowing service
users in Herefordshire more choice, control and
creativity over the services they receive.

We appointed an expert by experience to the post of
personalisation lead. 

We needed to develop our commissioning activities
using co-production; involving service users in the
design stage.

Our personalisation lead has worked with the Making
It Real Board to involve them more in the
development of some of our services.  This remains a
continuing priority for us.

We needed to refresh our direct payment policy. A new direct payments policy has been produced
which focusses more on achieving outcomes for
service users.

We needed to review our pathway to explore the
potential of early intervention and reablement.

A new reablement service was launched in July
2014.  

We needed to improve the safeguarding board
arrangements and operational safeguarding
activities.

The board has been strengthened  and a new, more
person-centred process is now in place for
safeguarding adults.

We needed to improve a number of systems,
policies and procedures in order to help staff to
carry out their roles more easily.

Systems are continually being developed, improving
documentation and performance information.  We
have piloted mobile working in teams allowing staff
to work more flexibly.  A review of corporate
governance arrangements is currently underway.

Peer review findings

195



12

Jonathan’s story continues  

After seven years of planning, paperwork, persuading and processes, Jonathan 
Hunt is finally to see his dream of independent living come true.

Jonathan’s story is a unique one: he has learning difficulties and mobility problems.  He also has severe
seizures.  In 2013/14’s Local Account we reported how Jonathan was using his direct payments to employ
personal assistants to support him to enjoy a good quality of life and participate in the activities that he
enjoys.  

Although enjoying life, Jonathan and his family dreamed of him being able to live independently.  Following
a generous donation of land to a housing association from a Charitable Trust, plans for a bungalow were
drawn up designed specifically to meet Jonathan’s needs.  It included an adjoining bungalow for his parents
so that they could be close by to support him when required.  

In 2014/15 this dream became a
reality.  Part funded by housing
association Stonewater and part
funded by Jonathan and his family, the
first brick was laid and his new
custom-designed bungalow began to
emerge.  At the time of writing, he
was choosing colour schemes and
kitchen cabinets.

“Jonathan has been saving up over
the last few years so that he can
furnish his new home – as he spends
most of his time on the carpet, it is
important we get him a good quality,
hard wearing carpet that is comfortable for him to move around on,” said his sister Sarah.  She continued,
“Jonathan always reacts positively to anything sensory like bright colours: colour and texture play a very
important part in the design.”

The bungalow is open plan with overhead tracking so that Jonathan will be able to access every room and
be as independent as he wants to be.

“We can also get different slings and hoists so that he can walk from room to room if he chooses to.
Stonewater’s contractors have brought the bespoke design to life and Jonathan is very excited about it.  He
always knows when he is somewhere different – he makes lots of happy noises and claps.  I think he will
think he’s on holiday when he first enters his new home.”

Jonathan still enjoys music, going to the pub and visiting the local farm.  When he moves into his new
home, the council will increase his support so that he can receive 24 hour care in line with his care package.
Thanks to the housing association, council and his family all working together on his behalf, he will get a
much better quality of life.

An update to Jonathan’s story... 

196



13

How are we doing?

Annual survey
Every year we conduct a survey using a sample
of people who use our services.  This sample is
selected in a way that ensures we get a good
cross section of people who use our services,
covering a range of needs and ages. 

The survey generates an overall social care
related quality of life indicator, ASCOF 1A,
which amalgamates the responses of
individuals to a number of key questions within
the survey. This year, our result has improved
compared to last year, over and above the
average improvement made by English
authorities.

Listening to Herefordshire people
We have listened to what people who use
services have told us.  Working with them and
their personal assistants, we have developed a
bespoke training programme for personal
assistants in Herefordshire. This is an accredited
programme enabling personal assistants who
complete the course to get a diploma in Health
and Social Care.

20.0

19.0

18.0
2013/14

England

2014/15

Herefordshire

ASCOF 1a - Quality of Life Indicator

Listening to people’s concerns
There were 80 complaints received in the adult
and wellbeing directorate during 2014/15.
The majority of these complaints related to
changing care packages and finances, a few
were about the attitude of staff and some
were housing-related, including the provision
of Disabled Facilities Grants, homelessness
services and the housing allocations service for
Herefordshire (Homepoint). All complaints are
taken seriously and responded to; we take a
proactive approach to all complaints, learning
from them and making sure that problems are
not repeated.

Every year the local authority has a statutory
duty to report its performance to the
Department of Health.  This is done against a
set of measures known as the Adult Social
Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF).  You can
see a summary of our performance against the
outcomes on page 23.  The following four
areas provide more detail.

1. Improving the quality
of life for people with
care and support needs

197



14

David’s story   

David and Christine have been married for 28 years.
They live in their own home with support from David’s
personal assistants. Without this support, it would be
virtually impossible for them to manage.

“I have a degenerative genetic condition called
neurofibromatosis. It started about 35 years ago.  At
first I was more mobile and able to move around with
the help of walking sticks, but as the years have gone
on, the increased pressure on my nervous system has
resulted in me becoming paralyzed from the neck
down.  I need help to do most things. My personal
assistants and my wife help me with all my personal
care including feeding me, getting me washed and dressed and hoisting me into my chair.”

However this doesn’t stop David from enjoying life.  He has a wicked sense of humour and a keen interest
in history.  There’s nothing he doesn’t know about Hereford’s past and present, and he loves to visit places
like Ledbury and Bromyard to attend events and enjoy some of the historic architecture.  He particularly
loves the black and white village trail.

“I used to go to a day centre for two afternoons and would join in whatever activities were available,” said
David.  “It wasn’t the same when the centre stopped being run by the council – it seemed to cost more and
I didn’t like the activities as much so I stopped going.

“I’ve now got into the swing of things with my direct payment and I’m thinking of going back to the centre
again – I hope they put on pottery and woodwork as these are things I’d like to do.”

Most of David’s direct payment is used to pay for his two personal assistants. They help him with his
personal care and take him out and about to the places he likes to visit.  He particularly enjoys going on
train journeys, attending music classes and participating in a range of courses put on by the WEA.  

Before direct payments, David received some home help, mainly to get him up and dressed, but it wasn’t
enough and put considerable strain on his wife Christine.

Becoming an employer has presented its own challenges: Christine helps where she can and they have a
payroll company to do the accounts.  The biggest challenge is recruiting the right people for the job.  He’s
been lucky with one appointment: Jackie has been with him for more than 10 years, but others tend to
come and go.  David said:  “Getting the right person who can meet your needs and fit in with your family is
tricky.”  

But overall, it’s a thumbs up for direct payments. “Direct payments have changed my life for the better – it
has given me more control and allows me to do the things I want to do.”

- how direct payments have given him choice and
control

198



15

2. Delaying and reducing the need for support
Reablement
The council commissioned Herefordshire
Housing to deliver a new reablement service in
July 2014.  The aim of the service is to provide
enhanced levels of home care, with the
objective of helping people to increase and
regain their previous levels of independence,
following about of ill-health, or a trip or fall.
This service is often supported by the provision
of equipment or telecare.  In the year, nearly
200 people received the reablement service,
with 71% needing no on-going, or reduced
support, following the short burst of
reablement intervention.  In addition, 77% of
clients aged 65+ remained in their homes for
at least 91 days following completion of the
reablement service (ASCOF 2B) 

Online information
During the year, with the involvement and help
of the Making It Real board, we have refreshed
and relaunched the adult and wellbeing pages
on the council’s website.  The board’s
involvement was key to ensuring that the web
information is more accessible to people with
care and support needs.  This will be further
developed in 2015-16 as we create a new
online information, advice and signposting
service for Herefordshire.

Improving healthy lifestyle choices
The council’s healthy lifestyle trainer service
provides targeted support to help people make
healthy lifestyle choices.  The service gives
people practical support to promote healthy
eating, reduce alcohol consumption, increase
physical activity, and stop smoking. 

In 2014/15, the service worked with 286
individuals, covering a range of needs:

• 45% received support with diet
• 25% received support with physical activity
• 19% received support to stop smoking
• 4% received support to reduce their alcohol

consumption

Overall:
• 53% achieved the objectives set out in their

personal health plans
• 58% reported a rise in self-efficacy levels

after the lifestyle intervention. 

In the majority of cases, clients supported were
from the most deprived areas of Herefordshire
and nearly a third were aged between 18 and
34.

Delaying transfers of care
The number of delayed transfers of care from
hospitals often known as bed-blocking, has
deteriorated a little during the last year,
however this is due to significant pressures on
the health service.  This is a story replicated
across the country, and particularly within the
West Midlands.

Residential care
Despite our best efforts to help people
continue living independently in their own
homes, it is sometimes necessary to place
people in Residential and Nursing care homes
to keep them safe and provide the required
levels of care. In 2014-15, we placed just under
300 people in care homes on a long-term
basis, 13 of which were under the age of 65.
This is more than in the previous year, but the
increased demand within the system and the
increasingly complex needs of individuals
approaching us for help and support.

199



16

3. Ensuring people have a positive experience of care and
support
Results from our annual survey show that we
have a larger proportion of respondents are
extremely satisfied with the care and support
that they received, compared to the previous
year.

Overall satisifaction has risen from 65.1% to
66.9% (ASCOF 3A). In addition there were
small improvements in respondents saying that
they have control over their daily life (ASCOF
1B) and those who use services who feel safe
(ASCOF 4A).

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%
I am extremely
or very satisfied

I am very
satisfied

I am quite
satisfied

I am neither
satisified nor
dissatisfied

I am quite
dissatisfied

I am very
dissatisfied

How satisfied are you with the care and support you have received? � 2013/14
� 2014/15

Care home monitoring
There are 60 homes providing residential care within Herefordshire (1,011 beds) and 28 homes providing
nursing care (1,053 beds).  The Care Quality Commission ensures that all care homes maintain a
registration which regulates standards of care. To support this work, there is a rolling programme of
inspections. At the time of reporting CQC had identified that eight different homes in Herefordshire
required improvement.

During 2014/15, 51 homes were visited by our contracts and compliance team. During this time there
were no contractual breaches, however we did identify three homes for improvement Plans were
developed and implemented to resolve the concerns we had.

As part of the council’s monitoring and review process of homes in the county, surveys are sent out to
both residents and staff.  Across a range of zkey questions, 89% of pre-visit respondents answered
positively about the level of care they received; this included questions such as whether they were treated
with dignity and respect, whether they felt safe and secure and their overall satisfaction. 87% of
residential home staff answered positively across a range of questions within their survey; including
questions asking whether they were able to make suggestions to improve service delivery, whether there
were clear instructions, policies and procedures and whether they believed the service provided good
quality care.

In addition, there are 46 domiciliary care agencies registered within Herefordshire. 48% of these were

200



17

Carers’ Survey
Every two years we survey a sample of carers in
line with government requirements.  Last
December, the council surveyed 540 carers to
learn more about carers’ experiences of life,
support and services in Herefordshire. 58%
(311) responded, which is slightly higher than
those who responded last time we undertook
this survey in 2012.

Carers 
- from the information gathered we know that:
• About half of those who responded told us

they have been caring for someone for
between three and ten years: 7% had been
caring for someone for more than 20 years.

• The majority of carers (70%) provide more
than 20 hours of care a week.

• 38% of carers provide more than 100 hours
of care a week.

People who are being cared for  
- from the information gathered we know that:
• 86% are 65 or over and 70% are aged 75+.

There has been a big increase in the number
of cared for people who have dementia
(from 33% to 54%), a small reduction in
the numbers of those with a physical
disability, and an increase in those who say
they have age-related conditions.

What our carers told us:
• Overall, Herefordshire carers are less

satisfied with the services they received in
2014 than they were in 2012 (see graph
below).

• 66% of respondents said they had used
information and advice to help them as
carers in the last 12 months.  The majority
found the information and advice helpful,
although 36% found it difficult to find.

• When asked how much control they have
over their daily life, 66% said they couldn’t
look after themselves well enough.

• Half of those who responded said they have
some social contact with people, but not
enough.

• Just over half of carers felt that they have
some encouragement and support in their
caring role, but not enough.

We recognise the valuable role of carers within
our society and know that as our aging
population continues to grow, demand for
carer support is set to increase.  We have
already begun to address some of the issues
raised in the survey which you can see on page
xx under our plans and challenges for 2015-16.

35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%

I am
extremely
satisfied

I am very
satisfied

I am quite
satisfied

I am neither
satisified nor
dissatisfied

I am quite
dissatisfied

I am very
dissatisfied

I am
extremely
dissatisfied

Overall satisifaction of carers with suport or services received from social
services in the last 12 months

� 2012
� 2014

201



18

Abuse occurred in own home

Abuse occurred in care home

Abuse occurred in hospital

Abuse occurred in community services

Other location

497

329

67

45

299

Safeguarding enquiries

Place of Abuse

4. Keeping adults safe
Safeguarding vulnerable adults from abuse in
Herefordshire is the aim of the Herefordshire
Safeguarding Adults Board.  In 2014/15 this
board has made several changes to ensure
compliance with the Care Act, including the
appointment of an independent chair.

During the year, 1845 concerns were reported
to the safeguarding team.  A concern is a
notification from the public or from
professionals suggesting that they were
worried about someone, or that there may be
abuse.  Following verification of the
information received, a concern might progress
to an enquiry where thresholds of abuse
appear to be met. There were 1237
safeguarding enquiries completed last year.

This number is significantly higher than in
previous years as we have made real efforts to
complete and close a number of older pieces
of work in order to cleanse our system, prior to
the implementation of our new making
safeguarding personal process.  The graphs
below show the types of abuse recorded in the
year and the places where abuse took place.

1400

1200

1000

800

600

400

200

0
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Enquiries completed

Cases where abuse was substantiated Either fully or partially

40%

27%

24%

5%
4%

Physical Abuse

Sexual Abuse

Physchological/Emotional Abuse

Financial Abuse

Neglect

420

61

302

210

507

Type of Abuse

Discrimatory

Institutional Abuse

14

55

27%

4%

19%13%

32%

1% 4%

202



19

Deprivation of Liberty Standards
Following significant changes to case law
around Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards, we
have seen a large increase in the number of
applications received during the year.  In
2014/15, there was a huge increase to 783
applications, from 83 in the previous year. This is
consistent with our statistical neighbours, who
have seen similar increases. Of the applications
raised, 24% applications have been granted,
however a significant number were awaiting a
decision at the time of reporting because of a
shortage of assessors in the area. These
safeguards are applications to deprive someone
of their liberty in a safe and correct way, in the
best interests of the individual.

Percentage of cases
identified as meeting the
safeguarding threshold

Percentage of cases
where the threshold
decision is made within
2 working days

Percentage of cases
closed within 28 days of
the decision to refer to
safeguarding enquiries

2013/14

50.3%

56.7%

41.4%

2014/15

45.7%

65.0%

33.9%

Quarter 4 
14/15 

39.6%

71.2%

21.3%

Making Safeguarding Personal
One of the big changes that we have achieved
as a result of implementing Making
Safeguarding Personal is to improve the way
concerns are managed: we are now making
decisions on whether a reported incident
meets the threshold of abuse in a more timely
fashion and only referring the most relevant
safeguarding cases to operational teams to
investigate.  Success of our Making
Safeguarding Personal implementation will be
assessed by a peer review group in September
2015.  The results will be published in next
year’s Local Account.

We know that a number of incidents of abuse
take place within residential and nursing
homes; because of this we work very closely
with our care providers in order to keep people
safe.

203



20

In Herefordshire, we commission a range of
services to provide residents with the levels of
support needed to keep them in the safest and
most appropriate placement, based on their
needs.

Herefordshire supports a similar proportion of
clients to statistically similar neighbours, those
who have similar demographics and
deprivation to us.  However as can be seen
from the graph below, based on last year’s
data, Herefordshire spends more per 100,000
client population in client categories where we
support the greatest number of clients, such as
older people and learning disabilities.

The table below shows average weekly spend in Herefordshire compared to the English Average.
Again, in areas of most common spend, such as residential and nursing for older people and home
care, the average weekly costs are higher than the national average.  This places pressures on
Herefordshire and supports our need to change the way that services are to be provided in the future.

The graph below shows the trends on total
adult social care spending over the last five
years. Recent downward trends in spending
reflect the levels of savings required by all local
authorities.

• Financial comparisons based on 2013/14 data due to availability of updated comparator information for 2014/15

2010/
2011

2011/
2012

2012/
2013

2013/
2014

2014/
2015

Spending and service levels

Spend per 100,000 client population

� Herefordshire
� England

Other

Asylum Seekers

Under 65 - Mental Health

Under 65 - Learning Disabilitiy

Under 65 - Physical Disability or Sensory
Impairment

Older People (aged 65+)

0 5000 10000 15000 20000 25000 30000

Residential/Nursing Care – Older People

Residential/Nursing Care – Learning Disabilities

Residential/Nursing Care – Mental Health

Residential/Nursing Care – Physical Disabilities

Home Care

Direct Payments

Day Care

Herefordshire

£ 605

£ 1324

£ 712

£ 914

£ 256

£ 280

£ 199

England Average

£ 537

£ 1336

£ 753

£ 850

£ 219

£ 225

£ 227

£67m
£66m
£65m
£64m
£63m
£62m
£61m
£60m
£59m
£58m

204



21

Our plans and challenges for 2015/16
Reducing the need for long term care by
keeping people healthy for longer

People have better lives when they live
independently.  In addition more people are
living longer and there’s less money around to
pay for care.  This means we will not be able to
provide services in the way we have done in
the past, so we have to work with
communities and residents to change our
approach to care.  We must promote self-help
and boost local community support so that we
can help the most vulnerable and needy
people with the resources we have.

Some of the key activities planned for the next
12 months to meet these challenges are:

Meeting increased demand from carers
We are planning to launch a new health and
wellbeing service for carers in October 2015
that is able to provide support for more people
and is designed to give carers choice and
control. It’s not just about providing respite or
sitting services, although carers may choose to
spend their allocation on these if they wish.
It’s about looking after carers’ health and
wellbeing so that they can enjoy their life, be
happy and stay healthy and continue to
provide support  

It is hoped to have the new service up and
running by the end of the 2015.

Improving access to quality information
We are commissioning a wellbeing,
information and signposting hub, WISH, to
provide comprehensive information on
wellbeing and social care. This will include an
online directory of activities and services
available in local communities.  People will be
able to access this service either by phone, face
to face or online. The new service will be up
and running in the autumn 2015.

Direct payments and pre-paid card
promotion
Pre-paid cards give people more choice and
control over how they choose and pay for their
care and support. They also take away the
monthly monitoring requirements which make
life much easier for everyone. In the autumn of
2015 we will be bringing in a new pre-paid
card system and encourage existing customers
to make the switch.  New customers will
automatically be offered a direct payment card
if they are eligible for help with care and
support.

205



22

Boosting the marketplace  
We will be producing a market position
statement in the autumn 2015 which gives
local organisations and providers valuable
information about the future of the county.  As
well as demographics, this identifies future
needs and demands and forms the foundation
for our relationship with the care and support
market. It sets out our ambitions for working
with providers to encourage the development
of a diverse range of care and support options.

Health and wellbeing strategy
With our partners we will talk to residents,
organisations and health professionals to
further define how we will meet the identified
health and wellbeing priorities.  We will
produce a health and wellbeing strategy action
plan setting out how these priorities will be
addressed.  The aim will be to keep people
healthy and well and out of long term care.

Better Care  
To work collectively to deliver against the three
schemes agreed in our Better Care plans:
• Minimum protection of social care
• Community health and social care services
redesign

• Managing the care home market

Throughout 2015, we will be working with
communities to help them become more
sustainable.  We want them to be able to
support people to remain within their
communities, rather than these individuals
becoming dependent on social care services.
Ideas under development include, but are not
limited to, the set up and running of “pop up”
clinics within the community (e.g. GP’s, village
halls, pubs, etc.), improving the availability of
information on community groups, and
awareness and education of available support
and prevention services.

Online self-assessments 
We are developing online tools as part of the
implementation of the new health and
wellbeing website for Herefordshire (above).
These tools will help people better understand
their needs, direct them to personalised
information and services that might help them
and indicate if they may be eligible for support
from the council.

Keeping people safe 
We will be continuing to embed and fine tune
our new processes throughout the year and in
September 2015, we will be inviting in a Peer
Review to assess our safeguarding
performance. This will bring in a number of
Experts by Experience and senior managers
from other authorities within the West
Midlands to view our processes and
performance and provide us with challenges
and areas for further improvement.

206



23

Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework - The national set of measures that all local
authorities have to report on.
The table below compares the performance of Herefordshire, this year and last year, with the English
average for last year.  

Updated English averages will be available later in the year.

• All Herefordshire results are based on first cut data submissions and are awaiting final validation.
• Carers survey are only calculated bi-annually, therefore three measures were not calculated in 2013/14.

Social care quality of life

Proportion of people who use services who have control over their daily life

Proportion of people using social care services who receive self-directed
support, and those receiving direct payments

Proportion of people using social care services who receive a direct
payment

Carer reported quality of life

Proportion of adults with a learning disability in paid employment

Proportion of adults in contact with secondary mental health services in
paid employment

Proportion of adults with a learning disability who live in their own home
or with their family

Proportion of adults in contact with secondary mental health services living
independently, with or without support

Proportion of people who use services, and their carers, who reported that
they had as much social care contact as they wanted

Permanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000
population, aged 18-64

Permanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes, per 100,000
population, aged 65+

Proportion of older people (65 and over) who were still at home 91 days
after discharge from hospital into reablement/rehabilitation services

Delayed transfers of care from hospital which are attributable to adult
social care

Delayed transfers of care from hospital which are attributable to adult
social care

Overall satisfaction of people who use services with their care and support

Overall satisfaction of carers with social services

The proportion of carers who reported that that have been included or
consulted in discussions about the person they care for

The proportion of people who use services and carers who find it easy to
find information about support

The proportion of people who use services who feel safe

The proportion of people who use services who say that those services
have made them feel safe and secure

19

76.8%

61.9%

19.1%

-

6.7%

7.0%

74.9%

60.8%

44.5%

14.4

650.6

82.5%

9.6

3.1

64.8%

-

-

74.5%

66.0%

79.1%

19.1

77.3%

62.1%

14.9%

-

4.5%

7.1%

77.0%

50.5%

46.0%

20.4

607.5

83.3%

5.7

3.1

65.1%

-

-

73.20%

67.10%

85.5%

19.4

77.8%

87.3%

24.6%

7.6

6.0%

10.4%

52.4%

76.0%

46.2%

14.93

608.7

77.0%

7.8

4.3

66.9%

38.6%

71.1%

74.5%

70.9%

83.9%

2013/14 2014/15
England Hereford Hereford Improvement

�
�

�

�

�
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

207



Further information
Useful information

1. Access to adult social care
Adult social care enquiries: 01432 260101
ASCAdviceandReferralTeam@herefordshire.gcsx.gov.uk

2. WISH
www.WISHerefordshire.org.uk

3. Healthwatch Herefordshire
01432 364481
www.healthwatchherefordshire.co.uk

4. Care Quality Commission
The independent regulator of all health and social care services in England.
03000 616161
www.cqc.org.uk

Further reading

1. Facts and figures about Herefordshire
www.factsandfigures.herefodshire.gov.uk

2. Making it Real
www.thinklocalactpersonal.org.uk/

3. Spotlight on adult and wellbeing
www.herefordshire.gov.uk/subscribe
Sign up to receive an email alert every time we publish a new edition of Spotlight on adult and
wellbeing, our regular newsletter for people interested in adult social care

www.herefordshire.gov.uk
208



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Alexia Heath, senior adviser post 16 learning and skills on Tel (01432) 383416 

 

 

 

Meeting 
 

Cabinet  

Meeting date 15th October 2015 

Title of report: Adult and community learning plan 2015-2018 

Report by: Senior adviser post 16 learning and skills 
 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is a key decision because it is likely to be significant in terms of its effect on 
communities living or working in an area comprising one or more wards in the county. 

NOTICE has been served in accordance with Part 3, Section 9 (Publicity in Connection with 
Key Decisions) of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012  

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 

To approve the adult and community learning plan 2015/18 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:  
(a) the Adult and Community Learning Service’s (ACLS) delivery and outcomes 

for        2013/2014 be noted; 
(b) the Adult and Community Plan for 2015/2018 (at appendix a) be approved; 
(c) the expenditure of the grant allocation for the academic year 2015/16 from the 

Skills Funding Agency (SFA) against priorities identified be approved; and 
(b) the Fees Policy for 2015/2016 academic year (at appendix b) be approved. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6

209



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Alexia Heath, senior adviser post 16 learning and skills on Tel (01432) 383416 

 

Alternative options 
 
1 Herefordshire Council contracts out the delivery of Adult and Community Learning.  

All delivery of learning is done through subcontracts with the council retaining funding 
for its management of the provision.  Alternative delivery options are as follows: 
 

2 Direct Delivery – all delivery is done in house by council staff.  The council would 
have to recruit tutoring staff to deliver the learning programmes. The council would be 
better able to shape and change the provision and direction of the service in order to 
respond to changing priorities and identified needs. It is also widely acknowledged 
that Local Authorities know their communities very well, and are better able to link 
together the identification of gaps and needs with provision and services that can 
respond. 
 

3 The main disadvantage to direct-delivery is the potential redundancy costs if external 
funding is reduced or withdrawn. Additionally there can be niche areas which require 
specialist skills and knowledge in order to create provision to meet this need, if the 
organisation does not have those skills within its team it would be difficult to meet the 
need. In this instance it would be better to contract with an organisation that already 
had those niche skills. 
 

4 Hybrid – a mixture of both direct delivery and subcontracting. This can vary greatly in 
the % split between direct and subcontracted provision. The hybrid model can have 
both the advantages and disadvantages of both direct delivery and sub-contracted 
models. The extent to which they manifest is largely determined by the percentage of 
split between direct delivery and subcontracting. 
 

5 Herefordshire Council could decide not to deliver adult and community learning and 
give notice to the Skills Funding Agency (SFA) and hand back the contract.  There is 
no guarantee that this funding would be reallocated to another provider in 
Herefordshire and could result in a loss of £509k to invest in funding education and 
training provision in our most deprived wards and disadvantaged residents.  It would 
also mean a loss of funding to sub-contractors the majority of whom are local 
voluntary and community organisations which in turn would lead to job losses. 
Furthermore in addition there would be redundancy costs to Herefordshire Council. 
 
 

Reasons for recommendations 
 
6 The recommendations are made to ensure effective spend of the SFA grant against 

relevant government and Herefordshire Council priorities and to set a fair fees policy. 
 
Key considerations 

 
Background 
 

7 The community learning funding allocation which includes family learning 
programmes is historical and goes back to the time when Herefordshire and 
Worcestershire local authority split.  Herefordshire Council was a new unitary 
authority and an allocation was made nationally.   This allocation following a business 
case was increased in 2004. The amount allocated each academic year of £340k has 
not changed for 10 years.  The Department for Business Innovation and Skills (BIS) 

210



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Alexia Heath, senior adviser post 16 learning and skills on Tel (01432) 383416 

 

has invested £210m in community learning nationally every year since 2005. 
Therefore in real terms it has been eaten away by inflation. 

 
8 The adult skills budget (ASB) allocation is based on the previous academic year’s 

performance, national priorities and national funding settlement. 2013/2014 academic 
year was the first year of ASB delivery for the adult and community learning (ACL) 
service and the allocation was based on the Formal First Steps allocation from the 
previous year. Formal first Steps funding became part of the ASB single funding 
stream in 2013/2014. 

 
9 The adult and community learning plan sets out the plans for the delivery of adult and 

community learning by Herefordshire Council in Herefordshire for the period 
2015/2018. The adult and community learning service are funded by the SFA.  In 
2014/2015 academic year a grant allocation of £540,723 of which £340,972 was for 
community learning and £199,751 adult skills budget was available to plan, manage 
and deliver learning.  For 2015/2016 the grant allocation is £509k. National 
government policy has seen the adult skills element of the funding allocation cut by 
24% for the academic year 2015/2016. 
 

10 For 2013/2014 academic year we engaged 1058 learners on community learning 
courses with a success rate of 99.5% above benchmark of 91.4%.  For the ASB 190 
learners were supported with a success rate of 80.45% above the SFA minimum level 
of performance.  2014/2015 verified data is not yet available.  
 

11 There are five recognisable key benefits from participating in adult learning: greater 
likelihood of finding a job or staying in a job, improvements in health, more likely to 
volunteer, social value and improving family life chances. Encouragingly 
unemployment in Herefordshire is falling but we are continuing to work with job 
seekers to help them to develop their skills and employment opportunities impacting 
on Herefordshire economy. We target provision at adults with low level skills to 
support them to increase their Maths, English and ICT skills which have been 
highlighted as key priorities by local employers. The ICT training supports people to 
be able to access on-line services essential to Government and Herefordshire 
Council’s digital agenda. Family learning provision is aimed at supporting parents to 
develop their basic and parenting skills resulting in improving family life chances. 
 

12 We work with communities such as Gypsy Roma Travellers, care leavers, adults with 
low level skills, adults with learning difficulties and or disabilities and others who could 
without adult and community learning provision be at risk of social exclusion.  
 

13 The impact of adult and community learning is irregular and very personal.  There is 
no comparator data as yet.  Our challenge is how we document this impact in a clear 
systematic way.  For 2013/2014 we contacted 893 learners to see how they had used 
the skills that they had gained since leaving their course.  275 (30.9%) responded of 
which  47.6% progressed onto a further course, 55.6% improved physical/mental 
health, 38.9% more active in local community,18% found paid work, 16.3% became a 
volunteer. 
 

14 The skills funding letter (or statement) is published annually by the Department of 
Business Innovation and Skills (BIS) and sets out the government’s funding priorities 
for the adult skills system. It includes information for the Skills Funding Agency to set 
provider allocations. 
 

211



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Alexia Heath, senior adviser post 16 learning and skills on Tel (01432) 383416 

 

15 The 2015 to 2016 letter reflects the reforms in ‘Rigour and Responsiveness in Skills’, 
published in April 2013, and focuses on delivering the skills that employers and 
individuals need. 
 

16 The government is funding high quality provision that delivers good value for money, 
and concentrates on young adults aged 19+, the low skilled and those who are 
unemployed. 
 

17 Funding is focussed on qualifications that are part of a regulated framework approved 
by the Skills Funding Agency. Providers must operate within the terms and conditions 
of the funding agreement, the funding rules, the performance management rules and 
the individual learner specification. The funding rules form part of the terms and 
conditions of funding. The rules set out the requirements that providers must comply 
with to make sure public funding is protected. 
 

18 Herefordshire’s adult and community learning service (ACLS) will focus adult skills 
funding to provide accredited learning, targeted primarily at learners who require up-
skilling to improve their employment opportunities. 
 

19 Where possible, the delivery of the service will target the localities of Herefordshire to 
ensure fair access to all learners who have been identified by the engagement 
process of the contract, or would like to access accredited learning, to improve their 
chances of employment, or further the opportunities of employed learners subject to 
eligibility. 

 
20 The council does not intend to fund provision above Level 3 or duplicate provision 

already available from institutions delivering further or higher education within 
Herefordshire unless a need is clearly identified. 
 

21 The overall purpose and objectives for community learning are set by the Department 
for Business, Innovation and Skills (BIS) in the White Paper ‘New Challenges, New 
Chances’. The SFA requires the community learning allocation of £340,972 to be 
used to: 
 
• Maximise access to community learning for adults, bringing new opportunities 

and improving lives, whatever people’s circumstances 
• Promote social renewal by bringing local communities together to experience 

the joy of learning and pride that comes with achievement 
• Maximise the impact of community learning on the social and economic well-

being of individuals, families and communities.  
 

22 The aim of the Herefordshire ACL Plan is to deploy the SFA funding to ensure that 
local people have access to a range of appropriate learning opportunities that will 
contribute to their personal, social, educational and economic development. The 
strategic aims, objectives and key priorities for 2015-2018 can be found on pages 3 to 
7 of the Adult and Community Learning Plan attached at appendix a. 

 
23 The services described herein will be delivered using the council’s existing multiple 

supplier framework for adult and community learning.  This framework contract was 
awarded in 2013 in accordance with council contract procedure rules. For further 
information on how the service is delivered, please refer to pages 11-14 of the ACL 
plan. 

 

212



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Alexia Heath, senior adviser post 16 learning and skills on Tel (01432) 383416 

 

24 Fees Policy - The community learning curriculum area provides a ‘universal offer’ (as 
part of SFA requirements) for community learning. These courses are open to 
everyone with the exception of courses within the skills for Independent Living (SfIL) 
contract.  In line with SFA and Herefordshire council priorities, learners who can 
afford to pay should be charged a fee which contributes to the Pound Plus elements 
of the Community Learning Plan, with the exception of courses within the SfIL 
contract.  Pound plus is a new term that describes how learning providers can show 
how they are maximising the value of public investment. Pound plus refers to 
additional income (and savings) generated by providers over and above core income 
from Government’s Community learning funding. This includes income generated 
through course fees, financial sponsorship, access to accommodation made available 
at no or reduced cost, the use of volunteer workers, donations of equipment or 
consumable items, and access to other funding sources or grants. It is up to the 
individual provider (in this case Herefordshire Council) to set an appropriate fee for 
these community learning courses.   Herefordshire Council’s Adult and Community 
Learning Plan sets out its priorities and its target groups.  Emerging from this plan it 
has established the fees policy for learners on community learning courses at £4.50 
per hour.  See appendix b for more details of the fees policy.  
 

Community impact 
 
25 The ACLS aim is to engage with local people who are least likely to participate in 

learning and enable them to access a range of high quality learning opportunities, so 
that they can lead more independent lives, support their families, gain a qualification, 
get a job, volunteer and become less socially isolated. 
 

26 The ACLS works with local partners to deliver a programme of high quality learning, 
which clearly contributes to the priorities of: 
 
• Herefordshire Council’s Corporate Plan (to create and maintain a successful 

economy; enable residents to be independent and lead fulfilling lives, keep 
children and young people safe and give them a great start in life, enable 
residents to live safe, healthy and independent lives);  

• the Health and Wellbeing Strategy vision ‘Herefordshire residents are resilient, 
lead fulfilling lives, are emotionally and physically healthy and feel safe and 
secure’; and 

• the Marches Local Enterprise Partnership Skills Plan, European Investment 
Strategy and Strategic Economic Plan.  

 
27 In particular the Family Learning programmes support the priorities of the Children 

and Young People’s Partnership by: 
 
• Targeting resources and supporting vulnerable families into learning 
• Improving the emotional and mental health and wellbeing of parents and 

carers 
• Helping families, parents and carers to help themselves 
• Promoting health and wellbeing e.g. cookery, Nordic walking, coppice crafts 
• Achieving success in life, learning and future employment e.g. English and 

Maths provision 
• For further information please see pages, 6, 7 and 8 of the ACL plan for links 

to key national Government and local drivers.  
• Fees Policy - Generating additional income and revenue is central to the 

objective of driving up participation in community learning within a very 

213



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Alexia Heath, senior adviser post 16 learning and skills on Tel (01432) 383416 

 

constrained public funding environment. Learners who can afford to pay are 
charged a fee for community learning of £4.50 per hour with the exception of 
SfIL courses where ‘A consistent Fees Policy is required to ensure that adults 
within Herefordshire are treated equitably by each delivery partner within the 
Herefordshire Council’s Adult and Community Learning Provider Network. The 
fees policy for 2015/16 is attached at appendix b and remains unchanged form 
2014/2015.  
 

Equality duty 
 
28 This report pays due regard to the Human Rights Act, Equality Act 2010 including 

section 149, the ‘General Duty’ on public authorities. 
 

29 The ACLS seeks to provide high quality learning opportunities that are inclusive and 
free from discrimination. The service aims to make learning opportunities available 
across the county particularly focusing on recruiting learners from the most deprived 
areas of Herefordshire and from key target groups as listed in the adult and 
community learning plan 2015-2018. 
 

30 Equality of opportunity is an important aspect of raising aspirations, self-esteem and 
achievement. The ACLS aims to provide learning that is safe, accessible and 
welcoming. Discriminatory behaviour or harassment will not be tolerated. 
 

31 As a contracted-out service we require all our providers to comply with the Equality 
Act 2010 and actively promote equality and diversity in the delivery of ACLS 
provision, as outlined in the Common Inspection Framework. 
 

32 Staff and providers and tutors are supported and developed through equality and 
diversity mandatory training and through the tutor handbook.  Equality and diversity is 
also embedded within the Observation of Teaching and Learning process. 
 

33 Equality and diversity provider performance is monitored against targets, policies and 
procedures and act on any inequalities highlighted. 
 

34 An equalities impact assessment has been carried out and is attached at appendix c. 
 
 

Financial implications 
 

35 The SFA grant for the academic year 2015/2016 is £509,945 and it is expected that 
this will be fully utilised delivering the services set out in the adult and community 
learning plan 2015/2018. The adult and community learning service team is fully 
funded by the SFA grant. 
 

36 A consistent fees policy is required to ensure that adults within Herefordshire are 
treated equitably by each delivery partner within the ACLS provider network.  The 
proposed Fee Policy is attached at appendix b. 

 
37 It is proposed that the Fees Policy remains unchanged from the 2014/2015 policy. 

 
 
 
 

214



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Alexia Heath, senior adviser post 16 learning and skills on Tel (01432) 383416 

 

 
Legal implications 

 
38 The council is required to comply with all relevant legislation and any statutory 

guidance issued. 
 
Risk management 
 

39 The ACLS manages risk through a risk assessment process.  Risks identified for 
2015/2018 are: 
 
• Provider underperformance or failure – mitigated by robust contract 

management process and procedures 
• Poor Ofsted inspection result – mitigated through the high focus on quality 

improvement within the service.  
 

Consultees 
 
40 The adult and community learning plan has been informed by the network of sub-

contracted learning providers, the Herefordshire Community Learning Partnership, 
learner feedback, performance data, government and local priorities. 

 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A Adult and Community Learning plan 2015 -2018 
Appendix B Fees Policy 2015-2016 
Appendix C Equality Impact Assessment 
 
Background papers 
 
• None identified. 

215



216



APPENDIX A 

Page 1 of 30 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Herefordshire Council 
Adult and Community Learning 

Plan 2015/18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Reviewed June 2015 

Next review due: Jan 2016 
 

217



APPENDIX A 

Page 2 of 30 
 

Index 
 
Section  Page 

Number 

 Introduction 3 
1 An Introduction to Herefordshire 3 
2 An Introduction to Herefordshire Council’s Adult and Community 

Learning Service  
- Aims and Objectives 
- Key Priorities and Target Groups 

3 

3 National Drivers- Requirements of Providers Directly Funded by the 
Skills Funding Agency (in 2013 - 2014) 

6 

4 Purpose of Community Learning (Extract from Department of 
Business Innovation and Skills “New Chances, New Challenges” 
page 14) 

7 

5 Purpose of the Adult Skills Budget 7 
6 Herefordshire Council’s Priorities 7 
7 How the Herefordshire Adult and Community Learning Service is 

Funded 
8 

8 Grants 9 
9 Fee Policy 10 
10 Promotion of Adult and Community Learning 10 
11 Curriculum Areas 10 
12 How the Service is Delivered 11 
13 Herefordshire Community Learning Partnership 15 
14 Delivery and Outcomes 2013/2014 15 

15 Service Action Plan 2015/2018 20 
 Reference  25 

 
 
 
 
 

218



APPENDIX A 

Page 3 of 30 
 

Introduction 
 

 
This plan identifies the key priorities for Herefordshire Council’s Adult and Community Learning 
Service to achieve its strategic and organisational aims for the academic years 2015 to 2018.  The 
plan covers the funding received from the Skills Funding Agency (SFA) annually to deliver 
Community Learning and Adult Skills Learning opportunities to Herefordshire residents aged 19 
and over. This plan is reviewed annually in January and updated again in June in each year. 
 
In particular this plan:- 
 

 gives an introduction to Herefordshire  

 summarises the requirements of the Skills Funding Agency (SFA). The requirements are 
updated annually. 

 identifies the key priorities and aims of the service for next three years 

 includes the fees policy for 2015/2016 

 gives the key results from 2013/2014 academic year (latest full academic year performance 
data). 

 includes the Service action plan 2015/2016 
 

1. An introduction to Herefordshire 
 

For a comprehensive review of Herefordshire please read ‘The Understanding Herefordshire 
report’ https://factsandfigures.herefordshire.gov.uk/ 
 

 
2. An introduction to Herefordshire Council’s Adult and Community Learning 
Service. 
 

Herefordshire Council provides Adult and Community Learning through the Herefordshire 
Council’s Adult and Community Learning Service. The service consists of a small team that sits 
within the Post 16 Learning and Skills team in the Education and Commissioning Directorate, 
Children’s Wellbeing. Please see the team structure chart at Appendix A.  The adult and 
community learning team are fully funded through the SFA contract and are therefore dependent 
on the successful delivery of provision.   
 
We commission and contract out which means we do not employ our own tutors; we work 
with partners to deliver adult learning opportunities and the priorities that we set; encourage 
social, economic, educational and personal progression for individuals and families.  
 
We work with delivery partners to ensure adult education courses are available for local 
residents within priority areas. Delivery partners include voluntary and community 
organisations, FE colleges, private training providers, schools, children’s centres and libraries. 
To deliver non- accredited, entry and level one and two provision. 
 
The service is subject to Ofsted Inspections and was awarded an Overall grade of 2 ‘Good’ in 
the last inspection in May 2012. The Ofsted inspector awarded a Grade 1 in community 
development. 
 
 
 
 

219



APPENDIX A 

Page 4 of 30 
 

Strategic Aims and Objectives 
 
The strategic aims and objectives are as follows: 
 
Aim 
 
To engage with local people who are least likely to participate in learning and enable them to 
access a range of high quality learning opportunities. So that they can lead more independent 
lives, support their families, gain a qualification, get a job, volunteer and become less socially 
isolated.  
 
Objectives 
 

 Focus Adult and Community Learning funding on people who are disadvantaged and 
least likely to participate in learning, including people on low incomes, those with low 
skills and those furthest away from the labour market. 

 Widen participation in learning through locally delivered informal and accredited 
programmes, serving the needs of the diverse communities across Herefordshire. 

 Contribute to a wide range of outcomes for individuals and the wider community 
including personal and social, educational attainment, economic regeneration, and 
improved health and well-being. By supporting adults back into learning, training 
and employment, through community outreach provision delivered at local venues.  

 Develop the capacity of voluntary and community sector organisations to deliver 
effective adult learning that meets the quality requirements of Ofsted through funding 
and supporting niche provision. 

 To work with local partners to deliver a programme of high quality learning, which 
clearly contributes to the priorities of Herefordshire Council (to create and maintain a 
successful economy; enable residents to be independent and lead fulfilling lives; keep 
children and young people safe and give them a great start in life; enable residents to 
live safe, healthy and independent lives) and the Marches Local Enterprise 
Partnership Skills Plan, European Investment Strategy and Strategic Economic Plan. 

 
 
 

Key Priorities 
 
 In order to achieve the above objectives, we will: 

 
 Widen adult participation in learning through a targeted approach, promoting equality 
and diversity and improving access to learning for particular under-represented groups 
and those who have not been engaged in learning for a significant period of time. In 
particular the service will continue to work with those people who are: 

• unemployed. 

• people with a learning difficulties and/or disabilities, including mental health issues. 

• homeless, or in danger of becoming homeless, or living in sheltered accommodation. 

• carers of people with learning difficulties and/or disabilities, including mental health 
issues. 

• care leavers 

• yet to achieve a prior level of attainment at full level 2 qualification. 

220



APPENDIX A 

Page 5 of 30 
 

• yet to achieve level 2 in English and Maths 

• engaged within the troubled families programme (Families First1) 

• wishing to improve their parenting skills. 

• from areas identified as local areas of deprivation2 

• on low income (below £16,000) and/or in receipt of state benefits. 

 Lead on the delivery of Family Learning in partnership with schools and children’s 
centres in deprived areas where attainment levels are low. Programmes will be 
developed to directly contribute to the children centre’s aims and objectives for 
supporting families in their areas with a particular focus on English and Maths. The 
service works with families including grandparents of children aged 0-16.   

 To develop learning opportunities for our young people leaving care aged 19 and over. 

 Continue to increase the number of learners achieving successful outcomes, increase 
the numbers of people gaining first accreditation in community-settings and increase 
the numbers progressing to further learning and work. 

 Continue to develop the Adult Skills ‘offer’ and provision for learners in areas of high 
socio-economic need. 

 Work with partners to continue to develop the Herefordshire Community Learning 
Partnership.  In particular to develop further opportunities for those people with mild to 
moderate mental health issues including impact measures. 

 Ensure learners have access to high quality information advice and guidance, sign-
posting to the National Careers Service. 

 Continue to improve the planning and commissioning of ACL so that we develop an 
improved analysis of needs, to improve further the quality of teaching and learning, 
outcomes for learners and value for money. 

 Replace AQUA MIS system. 

 Attain Matrix Standard. 

 Develop and expand the ‘LearnHerefordshire’ website 

 Embed quality improvement across all provision and address issues identified in the 
self-assessment reports and quality improvement plans 

 To achieve OfSTED Grade 2 or above in next inspection. 

 
 

3. National Drivers - Requirements of Providers Directly Funded by the Skills 
Funding Agency (in 2015-2016) 

 

Adult and Community Learning is funded through a contract with the Skills Funding Agency (SFA) 
for Community Learning and Adult Skills. 

 

The Council is required to: 

 commission, deliver and support a locally determined formal and non- formal learning offer 
that conforms to the objectives set out in New Challenges, New Chances 

                                                 
1 Families First in Herefordshire 
2 Deprivation in Herefordshire 
 

221



APPENDIX A 

Page 6 of 30 
 

 operate in strong local partnerships to ensure their plans and strategies are underpinned 
by engagement with communities, local authorities, LEPs and other key local stakeholders. 

 operate within the terms and conditions of the SFA funding agreement and the SFA 
funding rules which state:- Providers must have in place a strategy that sets out how they 
have identified and will deliver a balance of the objectives set out in New Challenges, New 
Chances. 

 show evidence on how they will operate in strong local partnerships to ensure their 
objectives are underpinned by engagement and consultation with their communities, local 
authorities, local enterprise partnerships and other key local stakeholders. 

 have clear outcomes and appropriate measures capable of evaluation by their community 
and local stakeholders. 

 develop and implement a robust financial strategy that adds to their community learning 
allocation. 

 abide by the funding eligibility (including learner eligibility) as set out in the SFA’s funding 
rules. https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sfa-funding-rules-2015-to-2016 
 
 
 

4. Purpose of Community Learning 
(https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/community-learning-government-
funding) 
 

Community learning includes a range of community-based and outreach learning opportunities. 
These are primarily provided by local authorities and further education colleges (further education 
providers). Community learning is designed to help people of different ages and backgrounds: 

 

 get a new skill 

 reconnect with learning 

 follow an interest 

 prepare to progress to formal courses 

 learn how to support their children better 

 It supports wider government policies on localism, social justice, stronger families, digital 
inclusion and social mobility.  

 
5. Purpose of the Adult Skills Budget 
 

 To support flexible and responsive provision for learners aged 19+ without level 2 
qualifications or without GCSE, English or Maths at grades A*to C 

 Funding is focussed on qualifications that are part of a regulated framework approved by 
the Skills Funding Agency.  

 Providers must operate within the terms and conditions of the funding agreement, the 
funding rules, the performance management rules and the individual learner specification. 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/414797/Fun
ding_Rules_v2_March_2015.pdf 

 

 

 

222



APPENDIX A 

Page 7 of 30 
 

6. Herefordshire Council’s Priorities 
 

The Adult and Community learning provision is lined to the visions and priorities of Herefordshire 
Council’s corporate plan 2013-15. 
 
 
 
Herefordshire Council’s Vision 

Herefordshire - a place where people, organisations and businesses work together within an 
outstanding natural environment, bringing about sustainable prosperity and wellbeing for all. 

The main priorities which directly link to the Adult and Community Learning service are to:-  

 enable residents to be independent and lead fulfilling life 

 create and maintain a successful economy 

 keep children and young people safe and give them a great start in life 

 enable residents to live safe, healthy and independent lives. 

 decrease the % of working age population with no qualifications 

 increase the % of residents who volunteer 

 increase the number of unpaid carers receiving support 

 
The family learning programmes support the priorities of the Children and Young People’s 
Partnership by: 
 

 targeting resources and supporting vulnerable families 

 improving the emotional and mental health and wellbeing of parents and carers 

 supporting outcomes for children 

 helping families, parents and carers to help themselves, particularly in the early years of 
their children's lives 

 promoting health and well-being 

 achieving success in life, learning and future employment 

 
7. How the Herefordshire Adult and Community Learning Service is Funded 
 
The service is predominately funded by the Skills Funding Agency; other funding is raised by 
learner’s fees or external grants.  Plus the service receives a great deal of £plus money, from the 
organisations it works in partnership with e.g. free room hire, support staff etc.  The service for the 
first time in 2013-14 measured the amount of £plus generated this came to in total £67,815.98.  
This is in addition to the fees generated by learners of £17,270.71. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

223



APPENDIX A 

Page 8 of 30 
 

Table 1:  SFA Budget Allocation and Actual Funding Delivery by Academic Years 
 
 2013-14 

Allocation 
2013/2014 
Actual 

Learner / 
Learner 
Starters 
Enrolments 

Cost per 
Learner 

2014/2015 
Allocation 

2015/2016 
Allocation 

Community 
Learning 

£340,972 £340,972 1058 £322 £340,972 £340,972 

Adult Skills 
Budget 

£233,941 
 

£141,844.52 
(-£92,096.48) 

190 This is pre-
set by the 
government 
against the 
individual 
learning aim 

£199,751 £173,046 
as at 
March 2015 
Further 
reduction to 
£168,973 
July 2015 

 
2013/2014 was the first year of Adult Skills Budget funding for our service. Due to needing to 
capacity build the provider network and how the SFA funding model works there was a short fall of 
the funding drawn down in the first year against the allocation.  We are currently on target to 
deliver and fully utilise the Community Learning allocation for 2014/2015 and we forecast to 
outturn the same as we did in 2013/2014 for the adult skills allocation for 2014-15.  We have 
actions in place to increase the delivery for adult skills for 2015/2016 academic year see service 
action plan section and key priorities. 

 
The funding for Community Learning from the SFA has been fixed for the last 10 years (which 
represents an actual decrease, when the cost of living is increasing) Therefore this reduces the 
learner numbers we are able to deliver to. 

 
The SFA has reduced nationally for the second year running the non-apprenticeship (other) adult 
skills budget allocation.  For 2015/2016 the reduction is 24% of the funding that we were allocated 
in 2014/2015. A further reduction after the national elections was implemented in July 2015. 
 
The service contracts out most of its funding to a variety of providers within  Herefordshire to 
deliver the learning and retains some funding to provide contract monitoring, quality assurance 
and management of the service. 
 
8. Grants 
 
In 2013-14, NIACE/Skills funding agency - Equality and Diversity innovation funding awarded 
Herefordshire Council a grant for £15,000 to support an outreach project for the Gypsy, Romany 
and Traveller (GRT) community; to encourage engagement and participation in all kinds of 
learning, from light touch family learning through to accredited education and training.  The Adult 
and Community team provided £40,000.00 to deliver provision. 

 
The project aimed to redress the balance in attainment levels by reintroducing learning in a 
supported way. To undertake research into the best means of engagement with the community 
and potential adult learners, disseminate this information and share examples of best practice.  
 
The project attained the following outcomes against target: 

 
 57 accredited certificates awarded  
 31 non accredited certificates awarded 
 target to engage a minimum of 35 members of the Traveller Community.  84 members 
were engaged. 

 projected 20 participants to engage 

224



APPENDIX A 

Page 9 of 30 
 

 Achieved engagement of 47 participants  (a number of learners completed more than one 
course) 

 target to support the delivery of 10 courses -  22 courses were delivered 
 produced a dissemination video to share information about the project and good practice 

 
This project was run in partnership with the Equalities & GRT Team 
 
The project was so successful that it has been continued after the NIACE/Skills Funding Agency 
grant.   

 
9. Fee Policy 2015-2016  (see appendix B) 

 
A consistent Fees Policy is required to ensure that adults within Herefordshire are treated 
equitably by each delivery partner within the Adult and Community Learning Provider Network. 
The fee Policy for 2015/16 is attached at Appendix B and remains unchanged form 2014/2015.  
 
10. Promotion of Adult and Community Learning 
 
The service has supported the development of the LearnHerefordshire Website, 
www.learnherefordshire.co.uk which is currently hosted by Marches Access Point (Map).  It is 
currently being investigated how this could be continued and expanded. 
 
11. Curriculum Areas 
 
The adult and community learning team develop and commission curricula that respond to the 
need of learners. The curricula take into consideration the courses, times, locations and modes of 
delivery. 
 
Particular curriculum focus for 2014/2015 and 2015/2016 is: 
 

 delivery of English, Maths and ICT 
 development of employability programmes 
 responding to the needs of JCP clients 
 development and delivery of targeted provision for Care leavers 
 development of progression opportunities from non-accredited courses 
 review and delivery of Family Learning activity working in partnership with Children  
Centre’s and schools 

 development of accredited programmes for independent living for learners with learning 
difficulties and or disabilities 

 responding to the needs of Herefordshire Housing Job club clients 
 

12. How the service is delivered 
 
Herefordshire Council does not directly deliver any provision, The Council works in 
partnership and sub-contracts with a range of training providers however, the council remains 
responsible for quality and is inspected by Ofsted. 
 
26 organisations successfully completed the Provider Framework application process and are 
now included in the framework. The providers within the Framework are invited to tender for 
delivery opportunities in the following areas:- 

 
 Adult Skills Budget(ASB)-    English and Maths functional skills qualification – 
Entry 1,2,3, level 1 & level 2) 

225



APPENDIX A 

Page 10 of 30 
 

 Adult Skills Budget(ASB)-     Employment Skills and ICT - Qualifications that 
will increase employment opportunities 

 Community Learning             Learning for enjoyment – Fees policy applies. 
 Family Learning                     Learning to help parents support their children 
better. 

 Skills for Independent living Course to help learners live more independent 
lives 

 
Tender panels review each application and funding/outputs and contracts are awarded annually 
on an academic year basis. 
 
Please see Appendix C for list of current providers. 
 
Accommodation  

 
The council has no learning centre of its own, and delivery is through community facilities. The 
accommodation costs for delivery of courses are paid through subcontracts for provision paid to 
delivery partners.  

The Adult and Community Learning team are based in the Plough Lane council offices.  

ICT Equipment  

 
The service provides three sets of 12 laptops for outreach and a set of 10 IPads. 

Staff ICT equipment is maintained by Herefordshire Council.  

Data Management  

 
The service has a contract with AQUA, a data management provider. The provider supports a web 
accessed database and reporting system which is maintained, supported and updated as a part of 
the contract.  As the SFA data requirements have increased AQUA has become too labour 
intensive producing very limited reports.  We are looking to replace the system in 2015/2016 
academic year. 
 
Equality 
 
We seek to provide high quality learning opportunities that are inclusive and free from 
discrimination. 

Equality of opportunity is an important aspect of raising aspirations, self-esteem and achievement. 
We aim to provide learning that is safe, accessible and welcoming. Discriminatory behaviour or 
harassment will not be tolerated. 

The Equality Act which came into force in October 2010 talks about people with ‘protected 
characteristics’. This law bans discrimination arising from a person’s age, disability, gender, sexual 
orientation, gender re-assignment, religion or belief, race, pregnancy /maternity, marriage/civil 
partnership. These are the protected characteristics.  As a contracted-out service we require all 
our providers to comply with the Equality Act 2010 and actively promote Equality and Diversity in 
the delivery of ACLS provision, as outlined in the Common Inspection Framework. 

We support and develop our staff and provider tutors through equality and diversity mandatory 
training and through the tutor handbook.  Equality and Diversity is also embedded within the 
Observation of Teaching and Learning process. 
 

226



APPENDIX A 

Page 11 of 30 
 

We monitor provider performance against targets, policies and procedures and act on any 
inequalities highlighted. 
 
An Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out.  

 
Contract Management 
 
Each provider is allocated a contract manager.  The contract manager is the first point of contact 
for the provider, if they require any help or support. The contract manager is responsible for 
monitoring the contract and ensuring that the quality standards are being maintained. 

 
They do this by:- 

 
 attending learning sessions 
 undertaking observation of teaching and learning 
 organising provider staff training 
 talking to learners/evaluating learner feedback 
 gathering and evaluating  tutors and provider feedback 
 formal termly contract review meetings (including reviewing MIS data) 

 
If a provider is deemed to be a risk of non-delivery or there are concerns about quality – monthly 
monitoring visits are arranged, until there is an improvement or the contract is withdrawn. 
 
Annual contracts are awarded for Adult Skills Budget contracts and 3 year contracts for all 
Community Learning Contracts – on the condition that they can be amended / withdrawn 
depending on how they have performed. 
 
 
 

Quality and Safeguarding 

 

The Adult and Community Learning manager is responsible for ensuring that all learners achieve 
their best possible learning outcomes, stay safe, received the appropriate support, are treated 
fairly,  learn in a safe environment and received the best advice and guidance to aid progression. 
The manager is also responsible for ensuring that all data is handled and stored in line with 
Herefordshire Council Information, security governance policies and procedures. 

The Adult and Community Learning Manager leads the implementation of all aspects of quality 
improvement. The quality assurance cycle reflects the requirements of Ofsted, awarding bodies 
and Recognising and Recording Progress and Achievement (RARPA) for non-accredited learning.  
The following approaches are used to identify areas of good practice and areas for improvement: 

 

Self-assessment report (SAR)– the annual self-assessment process starts in November and 
involves qualitative analysis of data, consultation with learners, tutors, partners, venues and other 
members of the Marches Peer Review group to arrive at judgments of the provision against 
Ofsted’s Common Inspection Framework.  
 
Self - Assessment Report 2013/2014 -  this is the latest year that the SAR has been carried out 
the service assessed itself as good, with grade 2’s in all areas and was moderated at the January 
2015 Provider meeting.  

 
 

227



APPENDIX A 

Page 12 of 30 
 

The service’s key strengths and areas for improvement were identified as: 
 

Key Strengths 
 

• Learners achieve extremely well across the service 
• Extremely strong partnership work resulting in courses specifically developed to meet 

learners needs 
• Learners develop good confidence communication and interpersonal skills to enable them 

to progress onto further courses within and outside the service; volunteering and 
employment 

• Herefordshire Council’s support of the voluntary sector and training providers to increase 
their capacity and capability to provide high quality education and training provision 

 
Areas for improvement 
 

• Learners do receive on course information and advice and are sign posted to formal IAG 
however need to develop relationship with Prospects new contract holder for National 
Careers Service locally. 

• Attain Matrix accreditation 
• Replace MIS system as current AQUA system is labour intensive producing limited 

electronic data reports.  Making robust contract management impossible.  Reports are 
produced manually at present which makes tracking difficult and monitoring of data 
inefficient. 

 
Observation of teaching and learning (OTL) – every tutor is subject to an OTL and awarded a 
grade. An action plan is developed for any identified training needs and monitored to ensure to 
ensure compliance.  
 

 Learner and tutor evaluations – at the end of each course – learners and tutors actively 
encouraged to complete an evaluation form. The information gathered from these forms is 
recorded and where necessary the appropriate action is taken. The results from these evaluations 
are used in the SAR process.  

 Contractual reviews – where the provision is subcontracted out – a half termly quality review will 
be conducted to ensure that the standards required are being maintained and the learner targets 
met. Including tutor CPD monitoring.  

 Course monitoring – all courses are monitored by a member of the Adult and Community 
Learning team to check that they are being delivered according to contractual arrangements. It 
also gives the team member the opportunity to talk to learners.  

Tutor training - Herefordshire Council provides mandatory training for tutors and has developed 
e-learning modules with HOOPLE. The provider contract states that the tutors must be and remain 
up-to-date with professional training. Mandatory provider & tutor training in Equality and diversity, 
Safeguarding, data protection, activity risk assessment and Information Advice and guidance 
 

Termly provider meetings – are held to share good practice, update providers with SFA 
requirements, any changes to processes and systems, identify areas for improvement, 
dissemination of information, guest speakers, promoting partnership opportunities.  Meetings are 
held at different training venues.  

Peer support programme – Herefordshire Council leads on the Marches Peer Support Group. 
This has proved an excellent forum for sharing good practice and for developing standardisation 
with sub regional local authority adult learning services.  

 

228



APPENDIX A 

Page 13 of 30 
 

13. Partnership Working 
 

A Herefordshire Community Learning Partnership was formed in 2014. The, main purpose of the 
partnership is to develop a strategic approach to the shaping of the learning offer across 
Herefordshire and to ensure we use Adult and Community Learning funding effectively in order to 
have the greatest impact.  Through the Partnership, we aim to develop a joint funding strategy, 
reduce areas of duplication and improve mechanisms to ensure that communities are able to 
shape and deliver elements of the learning offer. This will continue to be a major focus for the work 
of the ACL team manager in 2013/2014 and 2014/2015. 

 
Membership consists of the two partners receiving Skills Funding Agency Community Learning 
funding (Herefordshire Council and Herefordshire and Ludlow College), JobCentre Plus, Voluntary 
Sector, Health, Learning Disability, Leisure and Housing. 
 
 
14. Delivery and Outcomes 2013/14 

 
Adult and Community Learning operates within academic years.  The 2013/14 year is the most 
recent full set of data. 

 
Number of courses, learners & enrolments split between community learning / adult skills 
budget academic year 2013-14 

 
Funding Stream Number of 

courses 
Number of 
learners 

New to learning Number of 
enrolments 

Community 
Learning 

287 1058 660 2000 

Adult Skills 
Budget (ASB) 
Accredited 

40 190 140 257 

 
2013/2014 was the first year Herefordshire Council was given an adult skills budget. 
 
The core recruitment and delivery areas are Hereford City, Leominster, Kington, Ross-on-Wye and 
Bromyard.   
 
For the whole service delivery in 2013/2014 academic year 
58.7% of enrolments were from female learners 
5.1% are from ethnic minority groups. 
53.38% of enrolments were from learners with a learning difficulty and or disability 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

229



APPENDIX A 

Page 14 of 30 
 

Completion and achievement rates split community learning & adult skills academic year 
2013-14 
 
Community Learning 2013/2014 
 

 Learner 
no. 

Learner starts 
(enrolments) 
Learners start 

Withdrawn Retention Achieved Success 
Rate 

Bench- 
mark 

Community 
Learning 

1058 2000 88 (4.4%) 1914 (95.4%) 1892 99.5% 91.4% 

 
 
Adult Skills 2013/2014 first year of delivery for ACL no trend data 
 

Qualification Type Leavers Achieved Success 
rate 

Type A qualifications Level 1 56 49 87.5% 

Type A qualifications  Level 2 9 9 100% 

Type B qualification Award 27 23 85.2% 

Type B qualification functional skills  
level 1 

65 47 72.3% 

Type B qualification functional skills 
level 2 

16 11 68.8% 

QCF unit level 1 1 1 100% 

Total 174 140 80.45% 

 
Both the retention and success rates for Community Learning have remained high in 2013/2014 
and are both above the national benchmarks.  Delivery of Adult Skills was new for the service in 
2013/2014. 
 
The success rate of 80.45% for adult skills is above the Skills Funding Agency minimum level of 
performance. 
 
Please see Appendix D for further Community Learning data for 2013/2014 and Appendix E for 
Adult Skills data for 2013/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

230



APPENDIX A 

Page 15 of 30 
 

Learner Satisfaction – out of 888 learner evaluations 92% of learners enjoyed their course in 
2013/2014, 100% felt safe and welcomed, 99% learned new things. 
 

Provider 

No of 
Learner 

Evaluations 

Has the Course Helped you 

Learn Qualification Job Friends Confident Healthier 

 
888 792 74 36 557 628 246 

 

% based on 
evals 
received 89% 8% 4% 63% 71% 28% 

 
Impact of learning - Learner Feedback  
 
We contacted 893 learners (who had agreed to be contacted) directly by post at the start of 
November 2014, to see how they had used their new skills since leaving the course in 2013/2014 
academic year. 
275 learner responses have been received. (30.79% return) as follows: 
 
Questions asked:- yes % no % 
increase my personal knowledge & 
Skills 244 88.7% 7 0.25% 

help my family, friends and/or 
neighbours 129 46.9% 50 18.1% 

become more active within my local 
community 107 38.9% 71 25.8% 

improve my physical and/or mental 
health 153 55.6% 40 14.5% 

increase my confidence 216 78.5% 19 0.6% 
progress onto another course/s 131 47.6% 76 27.6% 
become a volunteer 45 16.3% 106 38.5% 
Did tutor give you info on 
future/follow on courses? 198 72% 58 2.1% 

change job 17 0.6% 91 33% 
Did you access formal IAG? 10 0.3% 

 
find paid work Full Time 7 Part time 43 
Would like to take part in Learner 
Forum/s? 91 33% 

 
Service Delivery Targets 
 
Community Learning Delivery Targets 
 
Delivery targets 2013/2014 academic year to 2017- 2018 academic year across whole service – 
This is based on current income projections and is subject to delivery and changes to national 
policy and funding. 
 

Year Number of courses Number of learners Number of 
enrolments 

2013-14 290 1120 2000 

2014-15 288 1100 1970 

231



APPENDIX A 

Page 16 of 30 
 

2015-16 286 1080 1950 

2016-17 284 1060 1920 

2017-18 282 1040 1900 

 
Adult Skills Budget – Accredited courses. Delivery Targets 
 
Accredited/non 
accredited 

Number of 
courses 

Number of 
learners 

Achieved 
accreditation 

Success 

2013-14 ASB  35 175 85% 90% 
2014-15 ASB 30 150 86% 91% 
2015-16 ASB 29 145 87% 92% 

 
Success Rates Targets – these may change if the service requirements change  

 
 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

Completion 89.5% 90% 91% 

Achievement 90% 91% 92% 

Success 99% 99.1% 99.2% 

withdrawn 5% 4.9% 4.8% 

Male/ Female 35% male 65% female 36% male 64% female 37% male 63% female 

Non white British 7% 7% 7% 

Learners with no 
qualifications 

40% 41% 42% 

Unemployed learners 45% 45% 45% 

Retired learners 25% 25% 25% 

LLDU learners 45% 45% 45% 

 
 

232



APPENDIX A 

Page 17 of 30 
 

233



 

Adult and Community Learning Development Plan 2013/16 - 18 - 

Service action plan 2015/16 
 

Action Detail Timescale Owner Outcome Review date 

Review and 
Revise provider 
frame work. 

Review the current 3 year provider frame work 
and revise for implementation in 2016. 
 
 
 
A new 3 year framework will need to be 
developed for 2016-2019 

 
Jan – June  
2016 

SC/AL Provider framework in 
place – 2016 
organisations 
successfully complete 
the process and issued 
contracts. 
 

February, 
April, June 
2016. 

Provider contracts 
awarded 

Community Learning – information to go out to 
providers for delivery proposals for 2015/2016 
academic year. – June 2015 
 
Adult skills – tender to go out to providers on 
the framework – June 2015 
 
Adult skills contract award panel July 2015. 

June 2015 – 
September 
2015 

SC Community learning 
and adult skills 
information and tenders 
issued to providers on 
the framework June 
2015. 
 
Contracts awarded and 
in place 
August/September 
2015 
 

July and 
August 2015 

Adult Skills 
Budget. 

Work with providers and partners to develop 
the adult skills offer. 
 
New provision being developed with 
ECHO 
Herefordshire Housing 
Headway 
HVOSS 
 
Roll out and expand provision from September 
2015. 

 

May – July 
2015 

SC/CB/AL Development work 
started May 2015. 
 
Adult skills offer 
increased – numbers of 
learners and breadth of 
curriculum offer. 
 

July 2015 
review 
development 
of curriculum. 
 
First review 
November 
2015 
 
 
 

Implement revised Revised policy for 2015/2016 June 2015 SC Policy in place for March 2016 

2
3
4



 

Adult and Community Learning Development Plan 2013/16 - 19 - 

fees policy September 2015. 
Providers briefed and 
fees policy 
implemented. 
Process to ensure fees 
separately accounted 
for 

Provider contracts Review and amend contract template in line 
with current SFA guidelines. 
Send to legal to check 
Issue Contracts. 
 

July 15-
August 15 

SC/AL Contracts agreed by 
August 2015. 

July and 
August 2015. 

£plus  Monitor the true value of £ plus. 
Produce £plus – accounts for 2014/2015 

August 2015  AL/SC Course proposal now 
included £ plus 
information. 
AL to record £ plus 
information.  

Annual due 
August 
2015/2016 and 
2017 
 
 

Localities Further develop the services approach to 
delivering the provision through a locality 
approach 
Kington –health and well- being centre 
Tudorville – summer project 

June 2015 
 
July – Sept 
2015 

CB/SC 
 

Community Learning 
Craft course being 
piloted in July 2015 in 
Kington. 
 
Engagement courses 
planned for summer 
2015. 

 

Supporting 
delivery partners 
including the 
Voluntary and 
Community sector  

Termly provider meetings to share good 
practice promote partnership working and keep 
providers abreast with the ever changing SFA 
requirements. Guest speakers invite to 
meetings to update providers in Specific areas. 
 
Tutors to be trained to deliver Adult Skills in line 
with SFA and OfSTED requirements. 
 

Termly 
 
 
 
 
 
Autumn 2015 
 
 

SC/CB 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Skilled workforce to 
deliver high quality 
adult learning 
provision. 
 
 
 
 
 

September/No
vember 2015 
 
January/March
/June 2016 
 
 
 
 

2
3
5



 

Adult and Community Learning Development Plan 2013/16 - 20 - 

Develop new mandatory training programme 
for delivery from Autumn 2015. 
 
Support the development of a community 
training provider’s website for sharing of good 
practice.  Reliant on the purchase of new MIS 
system. 
 
Enable voluntary and community sector 
delivery partners and organisations to become 
more self-sufficient in quality and to enable 
them to be potential providers to organisations 
other than Herefordshire council. 
 

 
 
 
 
Spring 2016 
 

  
 
 
Website developed as 
part of the new MIS 
system 

 
 
 
2 months after 
MIS system 
installed 

Quality Maintain and improve quality in-line with Skills 
funding Agency and Ofsted requirements. 
 
Ensure we are on target to achieve an OfSTED 
outcome of grade 2 as outlined in our 
Self- Assessment Report (SAR), Quality 
Improvement plan (QIP) and Adult Learning 
Plan 
 

Monthly from 
August 2015 
– July 2016 

SC/CB/DC Learner Achievement is 
above national 
benchmarks. 
 
Learner Satisfaction 
rates are over 90% 
 
Tutor’s observation of 
teaching and learning 
grades are at least 
good (2). 

Monthly team 
meetings and 
quarterly 
provider 
meetings. 

Community 
Learning 
Partnership 

Continue to develop the Community Learning 
Partnership with Herefordshire and Ludlow 
College. 
 
 
In particular to develop further opportunities for 
those people with mild to moderate mental 
health issues including impact measures. 
 

Termly 
 
 
 
 
September 
2015 – July 
2016 

SC/AHe Community Learning 
Partnership in place. 
 
 
 
Learning opportunities 
in place for this priority 
group 

Termly 
meetings. 

Matrix 
accreditation (IAG) 

Obtain Matrix accreditation in line with Skills 
Funding Agency requirements. 

June 2016 
 

SC/AHe/CB/D
C 

Model of matrix service 
identified. 

July/October/D
ecember 2015 

2
3
6



 

Adult and Community Learning Development Plan 2013/16 - 21 - 

 
CB attended introduction session. 
Consultant employed for specific advise 
 
 
To ensure learners have access to high 
quality information advice and guidance, 
sign-posting to the National Careers 
Service Mandatory IAG tutor training 
programme has been implemented 

 
 
 
 
 
June 2016 

 
CB 

 
Matrix Standard 
Attained. 
 
 
100% of tutors teaching 
on provision have 
attended and achieved. 

Family Learning In addition to our planned activities for 
family learning programmes will be 
developed to directly contribute to the 
children centre’s aims and objectives for 
supporting families in their areas.  

 

June 2015 – 
July 2016 

SC Increase in the number 
of parents/carers 
attending family 
learning provision 
through the children’s 
centre. 
 
Increased use of data 
sharing to capture 
referrals, attendance, 
achievement and 
progression.  This in 
turn will be used to 
inform planning and 
commissioning of 
services and provision. 

January 
/April/July 
2016 

Young People 
leaving Care aged 
19 and over 

Continue to develop learning opportunities to 
re-engage care leavers back into learning. 

September 
2015 – July 
2016 

SC/CB/DC 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Effective 
Management 

Replace current MIS system in the academic 
year 2015/2016  

September 
2015 – March 

AH/SC/AL New MIS system in 
place that meets SFA 

September/No
vember 2015 

2
3
7



 

Adult and Community Learning Development Plan 2013/16 - 22 - 

Information system 
(MIS)  

Business case proposal submitted February 
2015 to the IT Board. 
 

2016 contractual 
requirements and 
enables the Service to 
improve its reporting 
and in turn improve 
development of 
provision, tracking of 
learners and contract 
management. 

 
 

January/March 
2016 

 
In addition and incorporating the above service action plan, a rolling  Quality Improvement Action Plan is maintained and actioned, which 
identifies actions arising from the quality monitoring cycle to support and drive forward continuing improvement to the quality of the Council’s 
provision. 
 
References 
 

• BIS (2011) New Challenges, New Chances FE and Skills System Reform Plan: 
Building a world class system 

 
• SFA (2015) Funding Rules 2015/2016 

2
3
8



 

Adult and Community Learning Development Plan 2013/16 - 23 - 

2
3
9



 

Adult and Community Learning Development Plan 2013/16 

Appendix A 
 
Staff Structure: 
 
 

 

Assistant Director Education 
and Commissioning 

 

Head of Learning and 
Achievement 

Head of Education 
Development 

 

Head of Additional Needs 

Post 16 Senior Adviser 
Learning and Skills 

Post 16 Adviser Learning 
and Skills 

Adult and Community 
Learning Manager 

Head of Children’s 
Commissioning 

Community Learning and 
Development officer 

Community Learning and 
Development Officer 

Programme Support Officer 

240



 

Adult and Community Learning Development Plan 2013/16 

Appendix B 
 
Fees Policy: 
 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL ADULT AND COMMUNITY LEARNING – FEES POLICY 2015-16 
 

Herefordshire Council receives Community Learning (CL) and Adult Skills Budget (ASB) funding from the Skills 
Funding Agency (SFA) to support learning in Herefordshire. 
 

Community Learning (CL) – where the learning is designed to help people gain a new skill, re-connect with learning, 
pursue an interest, prepare for progression to formal courses or learn how to support their children better.  There 
is no requirement for CL learners to progress to other learning or achieve regulated qualifications. 

Adult Skills Budget (ASB) – where courses lead to a qualification and/or accreditation. 

All courses offered by Herefordshire Council’s Adult and Community Learning Service are funded partially or totally 
by government funding allocated to the service via the Skills Funding Agency (SFA) and are therefore subject to SFA 
funding rules. 

Purpose of Government Supported Community Learning (BIS – New Challenges, New Chances Dec 2011) 
 

• Maximise access to community learning for adults, bringing new opportunities and improving lives, 
whatever people’s circumstances. 

• Promote social renewal by bringing local communities together to experience the joy of learning and the 
pride that comes with achievement. 

• Maximise the impact of community learning on the social and economic well-being of individuals, families 
and communities. 

 

Objectives: 
 

• Focus public funding on people who are disadvantaged and least likely to participate, including in rural 
areas and people on low incomes with low skills 

• Collect fee income from people who can afford to pay and use where possible to extend provision to those 
who cannot. 

• Widen participation and transform people’s destinies by supporting progression relevant to personal 
circumstances, e.g. 

• improved confidence and willingness to engage in learning or self-employment 

• improved digital, financial literacy and/or communication skills 
• parents/carers better equipped to support and encourage their children’s learning 

• improved/maintain health and/or social well-being. 
• Develop stronger communities, with more self-sufficient, connected and pro-active citizens, leading to: 

• increased volunteering, civic engagement and social integration 
• reduced costs on welfare, health and anti-social behaviour 

• increased online learning and self organised learning 
• the lives of our most troubled families being turned around. 

• develop skills for improving employability 
 
 

241



 

Adult and Community Learning Development Plan 2013/16 

Who is eligible to participate? 

Most individuals who want to take part in learning will be eligible for funding if:- 

1) they are a citizen of the United Kingdom and Islands, have Right of Abode (the right to live permanently in 
the United Kingdom without any immigration restrictions), or are a citizen of a country that is within the 
European Economic Area (EEA). 

2) they have been ordinarily resident in the United Kingdom and Islands or the European Union (EU) or the 
European Economic Area (EEA); continuously for at least the previous three years on the first day of 
learning; and 

3) the learning is taking place in England. 
 

Other individuals could be eligible who do not meet the above list. 
 

The above information has been taken from the Funding Rules 2015 – 2016 document as issued by the Skills 
Funding Agency  
 

Fee policy and remissions 

Community Learning (CL) courses 

The cost of these courses has been set at £4.50 per learning hour however; learners in receipt of certain state 
benefits can enrol on these courses and pay £1.50 per learning hour. 
 
Eligibility for discounted course fees will be subject to the learner providing proof of means tested benefits. 
 
Refund Procedure 
 

Learners should note that fees should be paid at the time of enrolment and are not normally refundable. 

If a course is cancelled and no suitable alternative is available then a full refund will be given. 

In the event of sickness, a full or partial refund will be given on production of a valid doctor’s certificate, depending 
on the number of sessions attended. Applications for a refund should be made in writing and submitted to the 
provider for approval. 

Non-Payment of Fees 
 
Learners fees (where applicable) are collected at the time of enrolment. No learner can attend without having paid 
their fees. 

Skills for Independent Living courses 
 

These courses are free to the following key target groups, and are specifically aimed at increasing their 
independence: 
 

 Learners who are unemployed. 

 Learners with learning difficulties and/or disabilities, including mental health issues. 

242



 

Adult and Community Learning Development Plan 2013/16 

 Learners who are homeless, or in danger of becoming homeless, or living in sheltered accommodation. 

 Learners aged 19 or over who are leaving care. 

 Learners who are carers or family of people with learning difficulties and/or disabilities, including mental 
health issues. 

 Learners yet to achieve a prior level of attainment at full level 2 or above (i.e. 5 GCSEs grade C or above). 

 Learners with pre-entry level English and Maths skills (only as progression onto an accredited qualification) 

Learners who are engaged within the troubled families programme, known as Families First3 in Herefordshire. 
 

Furthermore, In 2015/16 the following two categories have been identified as key priorities: 
 

 Learners who wish to improve their parenting skills (Wider Family Learning (WFL) learning aims only). 

 Learners from areas identified as local areas of deprivation4, who are on low income (below £16,000) and/or 
in receipt of state benefits. 

All delivery remains within the funding rules dictated by your existing contracts and the Skills Funding Agency 
Funding Rules 2015/165. 

These courses will be clearly identified on any promotional flyers or literature. 
 

Adult Skills Budget (Qualifications/accredited courses) 

Only learners aged 19+ on the 31 August 2015 can access the Adult Skills Budget courses (ASB) 
 
Maths and English 
Maths and English courses for adults are free of charge, and are ideal in helping to increase your 
confidence and skills.  
 
You may take an English and/or Maths qualification up to Level 2 if you do not currently hold a GCSE 
grade C or above in the appropriate subject. If you attained a Maths and/or English qualification but can 
no longer use these skills you will also be eligible to attend these courses 
 
Employment Skills 
Would you like to learn new skills which may improve your chances of finding employment? 
 
If you are currently unemployed and in receipt of Job Seekers Allowance (JSA), Employment Support 
Allowance -work related activity group (ESA WRAG), Universal Credit, or in receipt of any other state 
benefit, and wish to study a course aimed at improving your employment skills, you can study for free 
(subject to producing evidence of your benefit).  
 
If you are currently in paid employment you may still be eligible to attend these courses. To see if you 
qualify please contact To be agreed. 
 
For details of available courses please visit www.learnherefordshire.co.uk  

                                                 
3 Families First in Herefordshire 
4 Deprivation in Herefordshire 
5 SFA Funding Rules 2015/16   
 

243



 

Adult and Community Learning Development Plan 2013/16 

Appendix C 
 
Provider Contract details and courses delivered by area, venue and provider 2013/2014 
academic year: 
 

Provider CL Value ASB Value 
Ant's Help Ltd 18,200.00 0.00 
Aspire Living Ltd 8,400.00 0.00 
Brightstripe 10,360.00 3,270.00 
Business Angel (Hereford) Ltd 13,384.00 0.00 
Deaf Direct 9,100.00 0.00 
ECHO 19,117.00 0.00 
Herefordshire & Ludlow College 27,000.00 0.00 
Herefordshire Headway 18,900.00 0.00 
Hoople 0.00 0.00 
HVOSS 0.00 18,825.00 
Kemble SHYPP 25,662.00 6,975.00 
Marches Access Point 13,300.00 23,240.00 
Nationwide Community Learning 
Partnership 0.00 18,390.00 
Project Link Services CIC 10,500.00 0.00 
Red Spark Learning CIC 19,950.00 37,029.00 
The Cart Shed CIC 32,284.00 6,840.00 
The Hereford Academy 28,000.00 9,675.00 
The HOPE Centre 21,980.00 0.00 
The Houghton Project 12,600.00 0.00 

288,737.00 124,244.00 
 
 

244



 

Adult and Community Learning Development Plan 2013/16 

Appendix D 
 
2013-2014 Community Learning (CL) 

 

1058 learners (of which 660 were new to learning) 

2002 enrolments 

 

The following comparison is based on 
the data returns of 41 contracted 
recipients of Skills Funding Agency 
Community Learning (CL) funding. 

Herefordshire  National 
Average (%) 

Herefordshire’s 
Rank 

Retention & Success -  

Retention rate  1914 (95.5%) 95.5% 19 

Success Rate (99.0%) 92.9 3 

Male Learners 

Male Enrolments  938 (42.2%) 27.6 2 

Unemployed 

Unemployed Enrolments  1229 (80.2%) 31.3 3 

Learners with Learning Difficulty and/or Disability (LLDD) 

LLDD Enrolments 1120 (55.8%) 22.5 1 

Black and Ethnic Minority (BEM) - All 

BEM – All Enrolments 118 (3.9%) 14.5 32 

245



 

Adult and Community Learning Development Plan 2013/16 

Appendix D 
 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL’S Adult and Community Learning – Adult Skills Budget Data 2013-
14 DATA REPORT 2013-14 

 
Funding Stream Number of 

courses 
Number 
of 
learners 

New to 
learning 

Number of 
enrolments 

Adult Skills Budget 
(ASB) Accredited 

40 190 140 257 

 
Adult Skills Budget – Qualifications 2013-14  
 
Qualification name and level Awarding 

Body 
No. of learners 
entered for the 

exam 

No. of 
Learners 
Achieved 
qualification 

Success 
rate 

SFA 
Threshold% 

Functional Skills English Entry 1 
5008835X 

NOCN 2 2 100%  63% 

Functional Skills English Entry 2 
50093344 

NOCN 4 3 75% 63% 

Functional Skills English Entry 3 
50093204 

NOCN 6 3 50% 63% 

Functional Skills English Level 1 
50084999 

NOCN 16 12 75% 63% 

Functional Skills English Level 2 
50094695 

NOCN 6 5 83.3% 63% 

Delivered by Business Angels, Red Spark Learning and Herefordshire and Ludlow College 
Functional Skills English Entry 2 
50090860 

OCR 5 5 100% 63% 

Functional Skills English Entry 3 
50091979 

OCR 9 9 100% 63% 

Functional Skills English Level 1 
5Delivered  

OCR 1 1 100% 63% 

Delivered by Marches Access point 
Total number of Functional 
Skills English qualifications 
achieved. 

 49 40 81.63% 63% 

 
 

246



   APPENDIX B 

Herefordshire Council Adult and Community Learning Fees Policy v1 (June 2015) 

 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL ADULT AND COMMUNITY LEARNING – FEES POLICY 2015-16 
 

Herefordshire Council receives Community Learning (CL) and Adult Skills Budget (ASB) funding from the Skills Funding 
Agency (SFA) to support learning in Herefordshire. 
 

Community Learning (CL) – where the learning is designed to help people gain a new skill, re-connect with learning, 
pursue an interest, prepare for progression to formal courses or learn how to support their children better.  There is no 
requirement for CL learners to progress to other learning or achieve regulated qualifications. 

Adult Skills Budget (ASB) – where courses lead to a qualification and/or accreditation. 

All courses offered by Herefordshire Council’s Adult and Community Learning Service are funded partially or totally by 
government funding allocated to the service via the Skills Funding Agency (SFA) and are therefore subject to SFA funding 
rules. 

Purpose of Government Supported Community Learning (BIS – New Challenges, New Chances Dec 2011) 
 

• Maximise access to community learning for adults, bringing new opportunities and improving lives, whatever 
people’s circumstances. 

• Promote social renewal by bringing local communities together to experience the joy of learning and the pride 
that comes with achievement. 

• Maximise the impact of community learning on the social and economic well-being of individuals, families and 
communities. 

 

Objectives: 
 

• Focus public funding on people who are disadvantaged and least likely to participate, including in rural areas 
and people on low incomes with low skills 

• Collect fee income from people who can afford to pay and use where possible to extend provision to those who 
cannot. 

• Widen participation and transform people’s destinies by supporting progression relevant to personal 
circumstances, e.g. 

• improved confidence and willingness to engage in learning or self-employment 
• improved digital, financial literacy and/or communication skills 

• parents/carers better equipped to support and encourage their children’s learning 
• improved/maintain health and/or social well-being. 

• Develop stronger communities, with more self-sufficient, connected and pro-active citizens, leading to: 

• increased volunteering, civic engagement and social integration 

• reduced costs on welfare, health and anti-social behaviour 
• increased online learning and self organised learning 

• the lives of our most troubled families being turned around. 
• develop skills for improving employability 

 
 
Who is eligible to participate? 

Most individuals who want to take part in learning will be eligible for funding if:- 

1) they are a citizen of the United Kingdom and Islands, have Right of Abode (the right to live permanently in the 
United Kingdom without any immigration restrictions), or are a citizen of a country that is within the European 
Economic Area (EEA). 

247



   APPENDIX B 

Herefordshire Council Adult and Community Learning Fees Policy v1 (June 2015) 

 

2) they have been ordinarily resident in the United Kingdom and Islands or the European Union (EU) or the 
European Economic Area (EEA); continuously for at least the previous three years on the first day of learning; 
and 

3) the learning is taking place in England. 
 

Other individuals could be eligible who do not meet the above list. 
 

The above information has been taken from the Funding Rules 2015 – 2016 document as issued by the Skills Funding 
Agency  
 
 

Fee policy and remissions 

Community Learning (CL) courses 

The cost of these courses has been set at £4.50 per learning hour however; learners in receipt of certain state benefits 
can enrol on these courses and pay £1.50 per learning hour. 
 
Eligibility for discounted course fees will be subject to the learner providing proof of means tested benefits. 
 
Refund Procedure 
 
Learners should note that fees should be paid at the time of enrolment and are not normally refundable. 

If a course is cancelled and no suitable alternative is available then a full refund will be given. 

In the event of sickness, a full or partial refund will be given on production of a valid doctor’s certificate, depending on 
the number of sessions attended. Applications for a refund should be made in writing and submitted to the provider for 
approval. 

Non-Payment of Fees 
 
Learners fees (where applicable) are collected at the time of enrolment. No learner can attend without having paid their 
fees. 

Skills for Independent Living courses 
 
These courses are free to the following key target groups, and are specifically aimed at increasing their independence: 
 

 Learners who are unemployed. 

 Learners with learning difficulties and/or disabilities, including mental health issues. 

 Learners who are homeless, or in danger of becoming homeless, or living in sheltered accommodation. 

 Learners aged 19 or over who are leaving care. 

 Learners who are carers or family of people with learning difficulties and/or disabilities, including mental health 
issues. 

 Learners yet to achieve a prior level of attainment at full level 2 or above (i.e. 5 GCSEs grade C or above). 

 Learners with pre-entry level English and Maths skills (only as progression onto an accredited qualification) 

248



   APPENDIX B 

Herefordshire Council Adult and Community Learning Fees Policy v1 (June 2015) 

 

 Learners who are engaged within the troubled families programme, known as Families First1 in Herefordshire. 
 

Furthermore, In 2015/16 the following two categories have been identified as key priorities: 
 

 Learners who wish to improve their parenting skills (Wider Family Learning (WFL) learning aims only). 

 Learners from areas identified as local areas of deprivation2, who are on low income (below £16,000) and/or in 
receipt of state benefits. 

All delivery remains within the funding rules dictated by your existing contracts and the Skills Funding Agency Funding 
Rules 2015/163. 

These courses will be clearly identified on any promotional flyers or literature. 

 

Adult Skills Budget (Qualifications/accredited courses) 

Only learners aged 19+ on the 31 August 2015 can access the Adult Skills Budget courses (ASB) 
 
Maths and English 
  
Maths and English courses for adults are free of charge, and are ideal in helping to increase your confidence 
and skills.  
 
You may take an English and/or Maths qualification up to Level 2 if you do not currently hold a GCSE grade C 
or above in the appropriate subject. If you attained a Maths and/or English qualification but can no longer use 
these skills you will also be eligible to attend these courses 
 
Employment Skills 
 
Would you like to learn new skills which may improve your chances of finding employment? 
 
If you are currently unemployed and in receipt of Job Seekers Allowance (JSA), Employment Support 
Allowance -work related activity group (ESA WRAG), Universal Credit, or in receipt of any other state benefit, 
and wish to study a course aimed at improving your employment skills, you can study for free (subject to 
producing evidence of your benefit).  
 
If you are currently in paid employment you may still be eligible to attend these courses. To see if you qualify 
please contact To be agreed. 
 
For details of available courses please visit www.learnherefordshire.co.uk  
 
 

                                                 
1 Families First in Herefordshire 
2 Deprivation in Herefordshire 
3 SFA Funding Rules 2015/16   
 

249



250



  Appendix C   

 

 Equality Analysis (EIA) Form 
 
A)  Description 
 
 Name of service, function, policy (or other) being assessed 
 

Adult and Community Learning 

 Directorate or organisation responsible (and service, if it is a policy) 
 

Children’s Wellbeing 

 Date of assessment 
 

19th June 2015 

 Names and job titles of people carrying out the assessment 

 Sue Cobourne – Adult and Community Learning Manager 

 Accountable person  
 

Sue Cobourne 

 
 
 
 What are the aims or main purpose of the service, function or policy?  What 

does it provide and how does it provide it?  
 Herefordshire Council provides Adult and Community Learning through the Herefordshire 

Council’s Adult and Community Learning Service. The service consists of a small team that 
sits within the Post 16 Learning and Skills team in the Education and Commissioning 
Directorate, Children’s Wellbeing.  The adult and community learning team are fully funded 
through the SFA contract and are therefore dependent on the successful delivery of 
provision.   
 
We commission and contract out which means we do not employ our own tutors; we work 
with partners to deliver adult learning opportunities and the priorities that we set; encourage 
social, economic, educational and personal progression for individuals and families.  
 
We work with delivery partners to ensure adult education courses are available for local 
residents within priority areas. Delivery partners include voluntary and community 
organisations, FE colleges, private training providers, schools, children’s centres and 
libraries. To deliver non- accredited, entry and level one and two provision. 

 
 

 Location or any other relevant information 
 The team is based in Plough Lane.  The service is delivered in training/community venues 

across Herefordshire. 
 List any key policies or procedures to be reviewed as part of this assessment. 
 Equality and Diversity policy 

E& D MIS data 
Observation of Teaching and Learning 
Course monitoring 

251



  Appendix C   

 Who is intended to benefit from the service, function or policy? 
 To engage with local people who are least likely to participate in learning and enable them 

to access a range of high quality learning opportunities. So that they can lead more 
independent lives, support their families, gain a qualification, get a job, volunteer and 
become less socially isolated.  
To Widen adult participation in learning through a targeted approach, promoting 
equality and diversity and improving access to learning for particular under-
represented groups and those who have not been engaged in learning for a significant 
period of time. In particular the service work with those people who are: 

• unemployed. 

• people with a learning difficulties and/or disabilities, including mental 
health issues. 

• homeless, or in danger of becoming homeless, or living in sheltered 
accommodation. 

• carers of people with learning difficulties and/or disabilities, including 
mental health issues. 

• care leavers 

• yet to achieve a prior level of attainment at full level 2 qualification. 

• yet to achieve level 2 in English and Maths 

• engaged within the troubled families programme (Families First1) 

• wishing to improve their parenting skills. 

• from areas identified as local areas of deprivation2 

• on low income (below £16,000) and/or in receipt of state benefits 
 

 Who are the stakeholders?  What is their interest? 
 Job Centre plus – referring unemployed clients for up skilling 

HVOSS – referring Talent match clients & volunteers 
The libraries – delivering training in their venues 
Voluntary and Community organisations that support people with specific needs – we offer 
courses in their premises and some are delivery partners. 
Children leaving care – we run specific courses to meet their needs 
Childrens centres – we offer a family learning programme. 
Herefordshire housing – courses run to meet their Job club clients. 

 
 
B)  Partnerships and Procurement 
 
 If you contract out services or work in partnership with other organisations, 

Herefordshire Council remains responsible for ensuring that the quality of provision/ 
delivery meets the requirements of the Equality Act 2010, ie. 
• Eliminates unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation 
• Advances equality of opportunity between different groups 
• Fosters good relations between different groups 
 
What information do you give to the partner/contractor in order to ensure that they 
meet the requirements of the Act?  What information do you monitor from the 
partner/contractor in order to ensure that they meet the requirements of the Act? 

                                            
1 Families First in Herefordshire 
2 Deprivation in Herefordshire 
 

252



  Appendix C   
 

 

100%of tutors must attend the mandatory E&D training – every three years. 
E&D is one of the key elements of Observation of Teaching and Learning quality process. 
E&D data is collected and analysed termly with each provider. 
E&D is review annually within our self-assessment process. 
Providers E&D policies are a contractual requirement. 
Grade 2 – in E&D at last Ofsted Inspection 

 
 Are there any concerns at this stage that indicate the possibility of 

inequalities/negative impacts? For example: complaints, comments, research, 
and outcomes of a scrutiny review.  Please describe: 

 None 

 
 
C)  Information 
 
 What information (monitoring or consultation data) have you got and what is 

it telling you?   
 E& D Information is collected upon recruitment.  

Learner end of course evaluation forms, 
Data is collected regarding completion and achievement  
 
For the whole service delivery in 2013/2014 academic year 
58.7% of enrolments were from female learners 
5.1% are from ethnic minority group – although slightly below the demographic profile the 
service is targeting and delivering to the unemployed population cohort. We do not have an 
ethnicity profile for claimants but anecdotally it is very low. 
53.38% of enrolments were from learners with a learning difficulty and or disability 
 
The data for 2013-14 shows that learners from different groups are achieving equally.   
 

 
 
D)  Assessment/Analysis 
 
 Describe your key findings (eg. negative, positive or neutral impacts - actual 

or potential).  Also your assessment of risk. 
 Strand/community Impact  
 

 
Community – 
Learners are achieving 
equally across the 
provision regardless of their 
Age, race, sexual 
orientation, belief, disability 

Increased number of residents with level 2 English and 
maths qualifications. 

Increased ICT skills  to enable residents  to use 
computers to access on-line services 

Communicate with friends and families – which in turn 
reduces social isolation. 

Increase employability opportunities 

 
 

  

253



  Appendix C   

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 
E)  Consultation 
 
 Did you carry out any consultation?                      No  
 
 Who was consulted?   
 

n/a 

 
 Describe other research, studies or information used to assist with the 

assessment and your key findings. 
 

n/a 

 Do you use diversity monitoring categories?  Yes   
(if No you should use this as an action as we are required by law to monitor 
diversity categories) 

 If yes, which categories? 
 
yes  Age  
yes  Disability  
yes  Gender Reassignment 
no  Marriage & Civil Partnership  
no  Pregnancy & Maternity  
yes  Race 
no  Religion & Belief  
no  Sex  
no  Sexual Orientation 
 
What do you do with the diversity monitoring data you gather?  Is this 
information published?  And if so, where? 

 We use it to check that learners regardless of their diversity are achieving equally. 
The information is included in our Self-assessment report. 

 
 
F)  Conclusions 
 
 Action/objective/target OR  

justification 
Resources required Timescale I/R/S/J 

a) 
Review E&D policy  E&D policy July 2015  

b) 
    

c) 
    

254



  Appendix C   

d) 
    

 
(I)  Taking immediate effect. 
(R) Recommended to Council/Directors through a Committee or other Report*. 
(S) Added to the Service Plan. 
(J) To be brought to the attention of the Equality Manager. 
 
*Summarise your findings in the report.  Make the full assessment available for further 
information.   
 
NB:  Make sure your final document is suitable for publishing in the public domain. 

255



256



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Karen Knight - Sufficiency, Planning & Capital Investment Manager on Tel (01432) 383042 

 

 

DECISION MAKER: 
 

Cabinet 

DECISION DATE: 15 October 2015 
TITLE OF REPORT: PLANNED CAPITAL PROGRAMME FOR 

SCHOOLS 2015/16 
REPORT BY: SUFFICIENCY, PLANNING & CAPITAL 

INVESTMENT MANAGER 
 

 

Alternative Options 

1 That the maintenance grants supporting building work in schools are profiled 
differently or spent on different schemes. 
 

2 The schemes have been determined from the latest condition survey reports for each 
school and information returned by schools in their ‘duties associated with running a 
school’ document.  It has also been considered by the council’s property services 
section, the capital strategy consultative group, involving head teachers and the 

Classification  
Open 
 
Key Decision 

This is a Key Decision because it is likely to result in the Council incurring expenditure 
which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the Council’s 
budget for the service or function to which the decision relates. 

NOTICE has been served in accordance with Part 3, Section 9 (Publicity in connection with 
key decisions) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012  

Wards Affected 
County-wide 

Purpose 
To approve the proposed expenditure of capital grants for school building and maintenance 
work allocated to the council for the year 2015/16  
 
Recommendation(s) 
 
a) that £1.9m of school building improvements and maintenance works, be 

approved; and  
b) adjustments to the programme of works and budget allocation based on 

detailed quotations are delegated to the Head of Education Development. 

AGENDA ITEM 7

257



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Karen Knight - Sufficiency, Planning & Capital Investment Manager on Tel (01432) 383042 

 

LCVAP (local authority co-ordinated voluntary aided programme) group, involving 
diocesan and arch-diocesan representatives. The proposed works are addressing 
known priorities. 
 

Reasons for Recommendations 

3 Local authorities receive three separate funding streams from government for capital 
works: maintenance, basic need and LCVAP. Maintenance grants can only be spent 
on local authority maintained and voluntary controlled schools; LCVAP can only be 
applied to voluntary aided schools; and basic need grant is accessible by all schools. 
There is an open and transparent approach to the amounts of funding received and 
its expenditure, which this report provides. Academy and free schools have access to 
the education funding agencies condition improvement fund for building works, both 
maintenance and improvements. 
 

4 There is a backlog of urgent and essential maintenance works at local authority 
maintained, voluntary controlled and voluntary aided schools. Based on the best 
information available these have been prioritised for action within available resources. 
 

5 The schools capital investment strategy, due to be presented to council in December 
2015 will inform where it is most appropriate to spend future grants. 

 

Key Considerations 

6 The council was informed of the grant allocation within this financial year and has 
worked through the prioritisation of schemes with the schools consultative group and 
the Diocese of Hereford. 

 
7 There are a variety of funding streams to support capital works at schools. The 

national schools funding formula means all schools receive a relatively small 
devolved capital allocation to support minor maintenance or improvement works. 
Schools may convert revenue budgets to capital to assist with these works. Bigger 
maintenance schemes like the replacement of a roof, a new heating system or 
windows are funded through a central maintenance grant awarded to the council or 
via the academy/free school condition improvement fund. Denominational schools are 
given a separate LCVAP grant to support these larger schemes. 
 

8 The council’s wider duties and responsibilities associated with the wellbeing of 
children and the oversight of its estate are such that it maintains assurances that 
schools are undertaking their maintenance duties. The council annually asks 
governors of all schools to complete a document entitled ‘duties associated with 
running a school’. The document sets out necessary health and safety checks and 
other maintenance work that should be routinely undertaken. 

 
9 The planned maintenance 2015/16 is the known essential work that needs to be 

undertaken. An outline of scope and  the forecast cost is set out below: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

258



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Karen Knight - Sufficiency, Planning & Capital Investment Manager on Tel (01432) 383042 

 

10 The proposed expenditure profile is: 
 
Maintenance Expenditure 2015/16 
 £k  
LA Planned Maintenance 497 See school detail in appendix a  
Maintenance Fees 50  
Safeguarding Work including Fees 200  
Contingency Emergency Works 94  
Condition Reports 20  
DDA Adaptations 150  

Broadlands / Aylestone Scheme 120 Maintenance avoidance 
contribution to scheme 

Contribution to Colwall 84  
Total 1.215  
Government grant to LA school  1.215  
LCVAP Expenditure 2015/16  
LCVAP Planned Maintenance Works 
2015/16 645 See school detail in appendix b 

Works Carried Forward from 2014/15 20  

Sub Total 665  

LCVAP Grant 2015/16 (100% figure) 665  

 
11 The expenditure per school is set out in appendices a and b.  The fees required for 

this work are estimated to average 10%.  These works can stretch over more than 
one financial year and capital funding is used across a number of years to support 
such schemes.  The Department for Education informs the council of its allocation at 
different times in the year. 

 
12 The council is constantly reviewing the safeguarding arrangements at all its schools 

to ensure they meet current expectations. In 2013/14 the council was expected to 
rectify fencing that was considered a potential safeguarding risk. Since then, each 
year an allocation has been set aside to address any unplanned safeguarding issues 
that arise during the year.  

 
13 It is not always possible to foresee all schemes that need to be undertaken in any one 

year. An element of funding therefore is set aside to cover such events that cannot 
wait to be included in a future years funding. 

 
14 In order to ensure the works at schools are properly targeted it is important that 

accurate and up to date condition surveys are undertaken All schools, excluding 
academies and free schools are therefore included in a five year rolling programme of 
condition surveys. 

 
15 The council has a duty to ensure that any child with special needs attending a 

mainstream school can be reasonably accommodated. This may result in a 
requirement for provide additional facilities either in terms of equipment or buildings. 
An element of funding, has been set aside to meet this duty.  

 
16 There are proposals to support the newly federated Aylestone Business and 

Enterprise College and Broadlands primary schools. As part of the funding package 
for the scheme an additional funding allowance from 2015/16 has been made in 
accordance with cabinet and council decisions. 

259



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Karen Knight - Sufficiency, Planning & Capital Investment Manager on Tel (01432) 383042 

 

 
17 There was a unique situation at Colwall CE primary with water ingress. It was agreed 

that the school would decant into temporary buildings.  A significant portion of the 
council maintenance grant needed to be allocated to support the temporary 
relocation. 

Community Impact 

18 Schools are a key part of communities and as such it is important they are well 
maintained. 

Equality and Human Rights 

19 The proposed schemes have given due consideration to equality issues particularly in 
relation to disability. The council maintains a disability access scheme and caries out 
works to support this. 

Financial Implications 

20 The £1.9m of expenditure in the report will be funded by a maintenance grant of 
£1.2m and a £0.7m local authority co-ordinated voluntary aided grant from 
government. 

Legal Implications 

21 Herefordshire council has a duty to provide and support places of education that are 
both fit for purpose and health and safety compliant. The proposals set out in this 
report support the council in meeting these legal duties. 
 

22 Failure to make repairs to known defects, such as those set out in this report, 
increases the risk to the council of litigation from matters arising from these defects. 

 

Risk Management 

23 Without undertaking the maintenance programme more children will be attending 
schools with defects including those that are considered significant health and safety 
concerns. This programme will address the highest known risks within the funding 
available. 
 

24 The council needs to gain a more comprehensive understanding of the condition of its 
schools to mitigate the need for emergency maintenance work. This is being 
addressed through the creation of a schools capital investment strategy and 
monitoring of schools completion of their ‘duties associated with running a school’ 
document. 

 
25 The risk is that final scheme costs could be significantly above or below the forecast.  

All schemes will be monitored by the capital strategy consultative group and a capital 
project board with officers from education, commissioning and property services. The 
board will meet monthly to review schemes. Any required adjustments to the 
programme and budget allocation will be agreed through the contract governance 
arrangements with the decision delegated to the Head of Education Development, to 
approve the amendments while remaining within the overall forecast. 

260



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Karen Knight - Sufficiency, Planning & Capital Investment Manager on Tel (01432) 383042 

 

Consultees 

26 A LCVAP group with diocesan and arch-diocesan representation meet at least termly 
and have considered the prioritisation of schemes.  The capital strategy consultative 
group, with a number of head teachers, diocesan representation and property 
services officers meet at least termly and have agreed the outline proposals as a 
constructive way forward for use of the grants. 

 

Appendices 

Appendix A – 2015/16 Individual School Projects - LA Planned Maintenance 
Appendix B - 2015/16 Individual School Projects - LCVAP Planned Maintenance Works 
2015/16 
 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

 

261



262



  Appendix A 

2015/16 Individual School Projects – Maintenance budget forecast 2015/16 

DFE School School Type Date of 
condition 
survey 

Proposed Scheme 2015/2016 Maintenance 
budget 
forecast 
2015/2016 
£000s 

2138 Ashfield Park Primary School Community 19/09/2014 Fire alarm and emergency 
lighting; Fire doors 

40 

3006 Bosbury CE Primary School Voluntary 
Controlled 

30/01/2014 Fire doors  3 

2011 Bredenbury Primary School Community 19/09/2014 Damp-proofing 45 

3010 Burley Gate CE Primary School Voluntary 
Controlled 

30/06/2014 Asbestos boarding removal; 
Ceiling and lighting works 

40 

2031 Clifford Primary School Community 13/01/2014 Window refurbishment  13 

3035 Eardisley CE Primary School Voluntary 
Controlled 

11/12/2012 Windows; Boiler and pump 
renewal 

13 

2046 Ewyas Harold Primary School Community 30/06/2014 Fire precaution work including 
doors 

7 

2098 Ledbury Primary School Community 30/06/2014 Boilers 30 

3079 Much Birch CE Primary School Voluntary 
Controlled 

14/01/2014 WC cubicle replacement; 
Sanitary fitting replacement 

40 

3083 Orleton CE Primary School Voluntary 
Controlled 

19/09/2014 Emergency lighting 5 

2152 St Weonard's Primary School Community 07/11/2011 Fire precaution; Roof 38 

2024 St. Peter's Primary School Community 24/11/2011 Fire doors  7 

7004 Blackmarston Community 08/07/2014 Ventilation; Shading, gully, 
radiator change and air handling 
control 

150 

7007 Westfield School, Leominster Community 16/06/2014 Retaining wall  65 

       

    Total  496.8 

 

263



264



  Appendix B 

2015/16 Individual School Projects - LCVAP budget forecast 2015/2016 
 

DFE School School Type Date of 
condition 
survey 

Proposed Scheme 2015/2016 LCVAP budget 
forecast 
2015/2016 
£000s 

3305 Brampton Abbotts CE Primary 
School 

Voluntary 
Aided 

23/01/2012 Skylights  26 

3307 Bridstow CE Primary School Voluntary 
Aided 

24/01/2012 Wall rendering; Skylights; 
Fencing 

26 

3349 Ivington CE Primary School Voluntary 
Aided 

19/12/2012 Oil tank replacement; Fire alarm 30 

3348 Leintwardine Endowed Primary 
School 

Voluntary 
Aided 

17/11/2011 Roof work  40 

3330 Our Lady's RC Primary School Voluntary 
Aided 

24/11/2012 Windows; Porch 52 

3366 Pembridge CE Primary School Voluntary 
Aided 

10/11/2011 Retaining wall 15 

3367 Pencombe CE Primary School Voluntary 
Aided 

13/12/2012 Mobile replacement; 
Safeguarding arrangements 

56 

3331 St Francis Xavier's RC Primary 
School 

Voluntary 
Aided 

12/11/2012 Fire doors; Electrical services; 
Water tank replacement 

15 

3332 St James' CE Primary School 
(Hereford) 

Voluntary 
Aided 

01/05/2012 Roof work; Fencing 33 

3372 St Joseph's RC Primary School Voluntary 
Aided 

30/06/2014 Windows; Fire alarm 43 

3325 St Mary's CE Primary School 
(Fownhope) 

Voluntary 
Aided 

01/01/2013 Fire precaution works 30 

3304 St. Michaels CE Primary School Voluntary 
Aided 

04/08/2011 Roofing 17 

3384 Weston-under-Penyard CE 
Primary School 

Voluntary 
Aided 

23/01/2012 Windows and decking 32 

3385 Whitchurch CE Primary School Voluntary 
Aided 

30/06/2014 Guttering 20 

4600 Bishop of Hereford's Bluecoat 
School 

Voluntary 
Aided 

15/02/2012 Heating  100 

4601 St Mary’s R C High School Voluntary 
Aided 

31/02/2013 Fire doors and heating 110 

       

    Total  645 

 

265



266



 
 

 

MEETING: Cabinet 

MEETING DATE: 15 October 2015 

TITLE OF REPORT: Future delivery arrangements for West Mercia 
Youth Offending Service (WMYOS) 

REPORT BY: Director for children’s wellbeing 
 

Classification  
Open 

Key Decision  
This is not a key decision 

Wards Affected 

Countywide  

Purpose 
To secure approval for proposed new delivery arrangements for West Mercia Youth 
Offending Service (WMYOS).  

 
Recommendation(s) 
THAT: 

(a) the Office of the West Mercia Police and Crime Commissioner acts as the 
host organisation for West Mercia Youth Offending Service from April 2016. 

Alternative Options 
1. The proposed arrangement is the outcome of a comprehensive options appraisal 

undertaken by the WMYOS management board during 2014/15. This included 
detailed consideration of a broad range of alternative delivery models. These 
included: 
 
- Outsourcing delivery to a third sector organisation. This was discounted 

following a comprehensive market engagement exercise which identified a limited 
range of suitably experienced potential providers; 
 

- Establishing a Local Authority Trading Company (LATC) for WMYOS 
delivery. A full business case was undertaken for a LATC. Concerns around 
financial viability and the lack of engagement of all WMYOS partners led to this 
option being discounted; 

 
- Hosting by a Local Authority. After careful consideration this option was not 

considered viable for reasons specific to the four individual local authorities. It was 
also felt that this was the option least likely to achieve the desired outcomes for 
longer-term WMYOS delivery. 

AGENDA ITEM 8

267



 
 

 
2. Each of these alternative options was assessed using clear and transparent criteria 

agreed by the WMYOS management board. This included consideration of financial 
viability, performance impact, quality and sustainability. The options appraisal forms a 
strong evidence base for the proposed hosting arrangement by the Office of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner which is supported in-principle by all WMYOS 
partners. 

Reasons for Recommendations 
3. West Mercia Youth Offending Service (WMYOS) is a partnership between four local 

authorities (Worcestershire, Herefordshire, Shropshire and Telford & Wrekin), West 
Mercia Police, National Probation Service, Health partners (represented by NHS 
England), and the West Mercia Police & Crime Commissioner. The service delivers 
the full range of youth justice provision for children, young people, their families and 
the victims of youth crime.  

 
4. WMYOS has undergone a phased programme of transition commencing in 2012 with 

the establishment of a single West Mercia-wide service. This was the first step in a 
move towards a more integrated single organisation for WMYOS delivery. As 
previously agreed by cabinet, hosting was initially provided by the Probation Trust. 
Following subsequent national changes to probation services, Worcestershire County 
Council took on the role of host agency for WMYOS on an interim basis pending a 
formal decision on the most suitable longer-term delivery arrangements. 

 
5. The main reasons for considering a change to WMYOS delivery arrangements 

include: 
 

- Recognition of the need for a more sustainable service model that is best 
positioned to respond with flexibility and innovation to the rapidly changing policy 
context for both criminal justice and children’s services;  

 
- The opportunity to create a more business-oriented delivery model which drives 

up performance and quality. Whilst WMYOS performance is mostly good, the 
WMYOS management board is focused on how this can be progressively 
improved across all areas; 

 
- Maximising the impact of the combined resources of the WMYOS partner 

organisations to improve economies of scale and resilience, reflecting the 
increasing pressures on national and local resources;  

 
- Increasing flexibility for deployment of staff and resources across the West Mercia 

area;  
 
- Strengthening alignment and integration with the full range of children and young 

people’s and adult services at a local level;  
 
- Strengthening links with the police and other regional and national criminal justice 

partners.  
 
6. Throughout the extended options appraisal process, the overriding consideration of 

the WMYOS partners has been on which model will offer the best impact on reducing 
offending and re-offending, whilst securing the best possible outcomes for children, 
young people, the victims of crime and the wider community. 
 

268



 
 

Key Considerations 
7. The potential benefits of the proposed hosting arrangement with the Office of the 

Police and Crime Commissioner include: 
 

- The arrangement will enable the West Mercia YOS partnership to be maintained 
on a co-terminus basis with related criminal justice and public services. This 
maximises the impact of combined resources and presents opportunities for 
shared systems and processes; 

 
- There is a strong strategic fit, with the Office of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner sharing responsibility with the WMYOS for reducing re-offending, 
preventing crime and disorder and supporting victims. This is reflected in the 
Police and Crime Plan and Local Youth Justice Plan; 

 
- The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner shares wider linkage with local 

safeguarding and community safety arrangements; 
 
- The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner and West Mercia Police can 

offer business support capacity with the economies of scale presented by a large 
organisation. This will include HR and finance input and will build on recent 
implementation of a single ICT systems framework for WMYOS, hosted by the 
police. 

 
8. The following main elements of the proposed hosting arrangement will form the basis 

of a formal joint agreement between the WMYOS management board and the Office 
of the Police and Crime Commissioner: 
 
- The four Local Authority partners will retain full statutory responsibility for the 

provision of Youth Justice services, with the associated duty to cooperate placed 
on all partners as set out in the Crime & Disorder Act 1998 and related legislation. 
Within this context there will be no delegation or diluting of statutory 
responsibilities; 

 
- The WMYOS management board, incorporating the local authority partners, and 

with representation from the Youth Justice Board, will maintain robust governance 
and oversight of WMYOS delivery;  

 
- The WMYOS Management Board will retain responsibility for producing the Local 

Annual Youth Justice Plan and for securing the resources required for delivery; 
 
- The main body of WMYOS staff who are currently employed by the local authority 

partners will transfer under TUPE into the employment of the Office of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner. This includes the 2 WMYOS staff currently employed 
by Herefordshire Council; 

 
- Police, probation and other specialist staff will continue to be deployed in 

WMYOS on a secondment basis, ensuring strong operational links are 
maintained with these critical partner organisations; 

 
- An integrated WMYOS ICT and email framework hosted by West Mercia Police is 

already in place and will minimise disruption to service delivery at point of 
transition. Other business support functions will transfer to the Office of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner and West Mercia Police.  

 

269



 
 

9. It is proposed that on 1st April 2016 the service will transfer to the Office of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner on the basis of the existing WMYOS organisational 
structure and operating model. A detailed analysis of demand and workflow with a 
focus on improving efficiency, quality and impact will be undertaken during the 
implementation phase (October 2015 to March 2016). This will form the basis of 
proposals for consultation with staff following implementation of the hosting 
arrangement in April 2016. It is anticipated that proposals for reshaping WMYOS will 
ensure that the service is able to deliver the best possible performance and quality 
within a climate of reducing resources for all partners. 

Community Impact 
10. The principal function of WMYOS and the wider youth justice system is the prevention 

of offending and re-offending by children and young people. 
 

11. The principal strategic and operational framework for WMYOS is the West Mercia 
Youth Justice Plan. This supports both the Herefordshire Council Corporate plan and 
the Children and Young Peoples plan by planning actions to improve the outcomes for 
children and young people who are in the youth justice system and working to 
minimise that risks associated with any harm they may pose to others and any harm 
posed to them. 

 
12. The Youth Justice Plan directly contributes to the reducing re-offending priority in the 

Herefordshire Community Safety Strategic Plan 2014/17, in particular in relation to 
identified joint work with the WMYOS management board to reduce the rate of first 
time entrants to the youth justice system. 

Equality and Human Rights 
13. The Equality Duty 2010 has three aims (general duty): 

• Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the act 

• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not 

• Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those that who do not 

14. The Public Sector Equality duty (specific duty) requires us to consider how we can 
positively contribute to the advancement of equality and good relations, and 
demonstrate that we are paying “due regard” in our decision making in the design of 
polices and in the delivery of services. The WMYOS is fully aware and committed 
through its delivery plan of their contractual requirements in regards to Equality 
legislation.   

Financial Implications 
15. The service is currently funded through a multi-agency budget of c. 3.9m (2015/16). 

This is sourced through a mix of funding and ‘in-kind’ contributions from the WMYOS 
partner agencies, augmented by direct grant funding (around 38% of total WMYOS 
budget) from the Youth Justice Board for England and Wales.  As seen in the 
business case there is clear indication that the arrangements proposed will lead to 
greater efficiencies which will enable the organisation to be resilient in light of further 
national and local funding reductions. 
 

16. Around 80 (FTE) staff work within the service. These include 14.5 staff deployed from 
WMYOS partner agencies and 68 staff directly employed by three of the local 

270



 
 

 

authority partners. 
 
17. The 2015/16 financial contribution to WMYOS by Herefordshire Council is £232,324. 

This equates to around 15% of the total local authority contributions to the WMYOS. 
Herefordshire Council directly employ 2 operational staff within the WMYOS. 
 

18. Transition costs associated with moving into the new arrangements will be met from 
existing WMYOS limited reserves. There will be no additional costs to Herefordshire 
associated with the move to the new arrangements. There is potential for savings and 
efficiencies to be realised on a phased basis from 2016/17. 

Legal Implications 
19. A PCC hosting arrangement for WMYOS will be an innovative development and the 

first time that an Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner has taken this lead role 
within a YOT environment. Local arrangements will be required to clearly demonstrate 
compliance with the key legal and statutory requirements relating to the Office of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner and to the provision of Youth Justice Services. 
 

20. The PCC hosting arrangement proposed in this report can be achieved subject to all 
statutory requirements being fully addressed within the joint agreement. 

Risk Management 
21. A risk register is included in the attached business case. 

22. The council will maintain responsibilities for oversight of performance, impact and risk 
through the general overview and scrutiny committee and as part of the local 
community safety partnership. 

23. Whilst it is the statutory responsibility of the council to secure the delivery of a youth 
offending service, the risks are shared with the three other local authorities within 
West Mercia, the Police, the National Probation Service, the Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner and NHS England. 

Consultees 
24. All WMYOS partner agencies, WMYOS staff and Trade Union representatives have 

been consulted extensively throughout the options appraisal process. 

Appendices 
Appendix A Executive summary of business case (edit of WMYOS Management Board 

paper) 

Background Papers 
None identified.   

271



272



 
 
 
 
 
 

WEST MERCIA 
 YOUTH OFFENDING SERVICE 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

BUSINESS CASE 
 FOR WMYOS HOSTING BY THE 

OFFICE OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (Edit) 
 

 
July 2015 

 
 

 
 
 

273



 
 

 
 

2 

 
1. Purpose of report 

 
1.1 The purpose of this document is to provide the WMYOS Board with a business case and 

implementation plan for the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner acting as the ‘host’ partner 
for WMYOS from April 2016. 
 

1.2 If the Board are minded to proceed towards this arrangement, formal agreement will be subject to 
Local Authority Cabinet approvals in the autumn of 2015, and the equivalent formal decision-making 
process of Police, PCC, Probation and Health partners. 

 
1.3 A formal decision to proceed will be followed by preparation of a detailed Joint agreement between 

the WMYOS Management Board and the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner. This will 
address important details relating to governance, oversight, HR, finance and legal requirements. 

 
1.4 The Board have specified that the business case should address: 

 
(i) How the legislative and statutory requirements placed on all partners for the provision of youth 

justice services will be fully addressed. 
 

(ii) How the hosting arrangement will secure the organisational culture change and business 
transformation required by partners. 
 

(iii) Implications for employment arrangements for WMYOS staff. 
 

1.5 Sources of information for this report include: 
 

• Liaison with the Chief Executive and Head of Business Area (Midlands) of the Youth Justice 
Board for England and Wales 

• Liaison with senior technical leads representing the Police and Office of the PCC (Legal; Finance; 
ICT; HR; Commissioning; Pensions) 

• Liaison with HR and Legal representatives from the Local Authorities 
• Liaison with WMYOS Management Board 
• Engagement sessions with WMYOS staff 
• Where relevant, work previously undertaken on the WMYOS options appraisal. This includes 

liaison with the pension fund actuary Mercers 
 

2. Rationale 
 

2.1 The proposed hosting arrangement with the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner has strong 
potential to create optimum conditions for achieving the drivers for change set out in the initial options 
appraisal. Potential benefits include: 

 
• The model will enable the West Mercia YOS partnership to be maintained on a co-terminus basis 

with related criminal justice and public services. This maximises the impact of combined 
resources and presents opportunities for shared systems and processes.  

 
• There is a strong strategic fit, with the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner sharing 

responsibility with the WMYOS for reducing re-offending, preventing crime and disorder and 
supporting victims. This is reflected in the Police and Crime Plan and Local Youth Justice Plan. 

 
• The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner shares wider linkage with local safeguarding 

and community safety arrangements 
 

274



 
 

 
 

3 

• The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner and West Mercia Police can offer business 
support capacity with the economies of scale presented by a large organisation. This will include 
HR and finance input and will build on recent implementation of a single ICT systems framework 
for WMYOS, hosted by the Police.  

 
2.2 Key areas addressed within the full report include: 

 
• How the full statutory requirements placed on all partners will be fully addressed within this 

arrangement. 
 

• How a formal joint agreement coupled with a clear service specification, will enable strong 
governance and oversight of WMYOS delivery. 

 
• How this model will secure the required cultural and organisational transformation required by the 

Board. 
 

• What the proposed employment arrangements would be in the event of a transfer of staff under 
TUPE arrangements. 

 
• How potentially reducing local and national resources will be maximised through this 

arrangement. 
 

• How the culture and ethos of WMYOS, including a clear focus on wider outcomes for children and 
young people will be supported within a hosting arrangement 

 
3. Key Features of A Hosting Arrangement 

 
3.1 The main elements of the proposed hosting arrangement are summarised below. These points will 

form the basis of a joint agreement between the WMYOS Management Board and the Office of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner: 

 
- The four Local Authority partners will retain full statutory responsibility for the provision of Youth 

Justice services, with the associated duty to cooperate placed on all partners as set out in the Crime 
& Disorder Act 1998 and related legislation. Within this context there will be no delegation or diluting 
of statutory responsibilities. 
 

- The WMYOS Management Board will enter into a formal joint agreement with the Office of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner. Delivery and service transformation, with a clear emphasis on 
securing the best possible outcomes for children, young people and the victims of crime will be 
performance managed against an outcomes-based service specification. This will fully reflect all 
statutory requirements, Youth Justice Board national standards and case management guidance.  

 
- The WMYOS Management Board, incorporating the Local Authority partners, and with representation 

from the Youth Justice Board, will maintain robust governance and oversight of WMYOS delivery.  
- The WMYOS Management Board will retain responsibility for producing the Local Annual Youth 

Justice Plan and for securing the resources required for delivery. This will include partnership 
negotiations on contribution levels and agreement on how to respond to changes in local and national 
funding arrangements. 
 

- WMYOS staff who are currently employed by the Local Authority partners will transfer under TUPE 
into the employment of the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner. Following TUPE transfer, 
the outcomes of a review of the operational delivery model for WMYOS may form the basis of an 
economic, technical or organisational case entailing changes to the workforce which may give rise to 
changes to terms and conditions.  

275



 
 

 
 

4 

 
- The deployment of other partner agency staff will continue to be applied as in the current model. This 

will include the secondment and funding arrangements for Police, Probation and other 
specialist staff. 

 
- An integrated WMYOS ICT and email framework hosted by West Mercia Police is already in place 

and will minimise disruption to service delivery at point of transition. 
 

- Other business support functions will transfer to the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
and West Mercia Police.  

 
- In the first instance the service will transfer to the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner on the 

basis of the existing WMYOS organisational structure and operating model. A detailed analysis of 
demand and workflow with a focus on improving efficiency, quality and impact will be undertaken 
during the implementation phase (Oct 15 to March 16). This will form the basis of proposals for 
consultation with staff following implementation of the hosting arrangement in April 2016. It is 
anticipated that proposals for reshaping WMYOS will reflect significant resource and funding 
pressures going forward from 2016/17. 

 
4. Joint Agreement 

 
4.1 The details of the hosting arrangement will be set out in a formal joint agreement between the 

WMYOS Management Board and the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner. 
 

4.2 This will form the basis of a contract between the two parties with the principal aim of securing an 
effective and sustainable Youth Offending Service in West Mercia. The main outcomes specified in 
the joint agreement will be: 

 
• Preventing offending by children and young people 
• Reducing youth crime and the fear of crime 
• Reducing the impact of crime on victims and local communities 

 
4.3 An outcomes-based service specification for the full range of WMYOS provision will be included 

within the joint agreement. This will emphasise the values and ethos of the service, with an emphasis 
on prevention and securing strong links with children and young people’s services at a local level. 
 

4.4 The joint agreement will reflect Procurement Contract Regulations 2015 (sec 12) which allow for 
exemption from open procurement where it can be shown that public bodies are working together to 
deliver public services on a non profit-making basis. 

 
4.5 Some key responsibilities of the WMYOS Management Board within this arrangement will include: 

 
(i) Securing the Annual Youth Justice Plan and ensuring that multi-agency resources are in place to 

deliver agreed priorities. This will include ensuring a collaborative approach to the management of 
resources and resource pressures, and brokering agreement on how changes or reductions in 
funding are managed on a shared basis by the WMYOS partnership. 
 

(ii) Securing a robust delivery model for YOS provision (through the proposed hosting arrangement) 
as set out in a formal agreement with the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner against an 
agreed outcomes-based service specification. 

 
(iii) Performance oversight of WMYOS service delivery outcomes. This will include individual Board 

members taking a ‘champion’ role in relation to specific areas of WMYOS delivery, organisational 
and culture change.  

 

276



 
 

 
 

5 

4.6 Key responsibilities for the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner within this arrangement will 
include: 

 
(i) Day to day oversight of the delivery, culture change and business transformation of WMYOS 

provision on behalf of the WMYOS Management Board. This will include significant organisational 
change during year 1 (2016/17). 
 

(ii) Provision of employment arrangements and business support functions for WMYOS, in-line with 
funding arrangements to be agreed with the WMYOS Management Board. 

 
(iii) Securing robust performance management and quality arrangements for WMYOS with a clear line 

of accountability and reporting to the WMYOS Management Board. 
 

5. Legal basis 
 

5.1 A PCC hosting arrangement for WMYOS will be an innovative development and the first time that an 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner has taken this lead role within a YOT environment. 
Local arrangements will be required to clearly demonstrate compliance with the key legal and 
statutory requirements relating to the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner and to the 
provision of Youth Justice services. 
 

5.2 Legal representatives of the Local Authorities, Police and Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner, in discussion with the Youth Justice Board for England and Wales have reviewed 
compliance of the proposed hosting arrangement with the relevant legislative framework and are of 
the view that all statutory requirements can be fully met. Furthermore, it is believed that the synergies 
created by this approach will strengthen the capacity of the WMYOS partnership and the Office of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner to achieve their respective strategic priorities and to secure better 
value and improved outcomes for local communities. 

 
6. Staffing 

 
6.1 It is proposed that the 68 Local Authority employees will transfer into the employment of the Office of 

the Police and Crime Commissioner on the agreed implementation date. All staff will transfer over in 
the first instance with their current terms and conditions. These will include qualified social workers 
registered with the Health and Care Professions Council. 

 
6.2 The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner is an admitted body of the Local Government 

Pension Scheme (LGPS) and a member of the Worcestershire Pension Fund. As such, WMYOS 
employees of Worcestershire and Herefordshire Councils will experience minimal change in pension 
arrangements. Telford and Wrekin employees will be given the option to transfer in from the 
Shropshire Pension Fund.  

 
6.3 It is anticipated that staff working within WMYOS on a secondment basis from WMYOS partner 

agencies will continue to be deployed in the WMYOS on a similar basis within the proposed hosting 
arrangement. 

 
7. Resources 

 
7.1 An indicative three-year financial forecast has been prepared for this business case. This is included 

overleaf – with a fuller analysis included within the main report. This is an indicative forecast for 
illustrative purposes only and will need to be agreed in detail as part of the preparation of the joint 
agreement prior to implementation. The indicative forecast includes analysis of current funding 
contributions from partners (including consideration of ‘hidden costs’) and of how available resources 
are currently utilised within the service. Forecasting has taken account of data on workflow and 

277



 
 

 
 

6 

demand for WMYOS provision, to identify trends as an indicator of anticipated future levels of 
demand. 
 

7.2 The indicative forecast anticipates significant resource and funding pressures progressively impacting 
on WMYOS over the three year period from 2016/17. There is potential for a sustainable model 
subject to efficiencies being achieved year on year through service redesign and the introduction of 
more efficient working practices. 

 
7.3 The joint agreement will set out how the WMYOS Management Board will collaborate on key 

decisions in the event of a shortfall in resources or reductions in partner contributions.  
 

7.4 Resources to support organisational change are identified as a separate transition cost area to be 
met from WMYOS partnership reserves. 

 
Indicative Financial Forecast 

 

Budget Description 

Transition 
Costs:  

Oct '15 - March 
'16 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

  £ £ £ £ 
INCOME   
Total Partner income 2,231,234 2,231,234 2,231,234 
Total YJB income 1,495,153 1,493,153 1,493,153 
Total PCC Income 180,293 180,293 180,293 
Reserves funding: transition costs 57,000   
TOTAL INCOME 57,000 3,906,680 3,904,680 3,904,680 

    
EXPENDITURE   
Core Service Delivery 0 2,953,921 2,772,162 2,772,162 
Leadership & Management 0 322,830 299,422 299,422 
Back office/Support Functions 57,000 208,086 197,682 197,682 
Overheads/Infrastructure 0 463,842 440,650 440,650 
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 57,000 3,948,679 3,709,915 3,709,915 
    
SAVINGS   
Pay savings (120,621) 0 0 
Non-Pay savings 50,000 0 0 
TOTAL SAVINGS 0 (70,621) 0 0 
Savings as % of total expenditure -3.1% 0.0% 0.0% 
    
Annual Surplus / (Deficit) 0 28,622 194,765 194,765 
    
Retained Profit or (Loss) 0 28,622 223,386 418,151 

 
 

8. Implementation 
 

8.1 The proposed timeline for implementation is predicated on formal approval being secured from 
Council Cabinets by end October 2015. This approval will initiate implementation activity with a view 
to the new arrangements being in place and fully functioning from April 2016. Experience suggests 
that this is an achievable timeframe, subject to sufficient preparatory work having been undertaken in 
the period up to end September 2015. This will include: 

 

278



 
 

 
 

7 

• Progressing the Business Case through each Local Authority to ensure thorough legal, financial and 
technical scrutiny has been applied prior to formal consideration by Council Cabinets 
 

• Engagement of Lead Members and Chief Executives / MD 
 

• Preparation and submission of reports to Council Cabinets 
 

• Agreement on programme management arrangements, what capacity is required and how this will be 
funded from September 2016. 

 
• Continuing engagement with WMYOS staff and Trade Unions 

 
8.2 The table below provides an overview of the pathway towards full implementation following Cabinet 

approval. 
 

 
 
 

8.3 Project management of implementation will comprise of the following inter-dependent workstreams: 
 

Delivery 
– Review of WMYOS operational model and proposals for reshaping 
– Business support arrangements 
 
Legal & Commercial 
– Completion of joint agreement (including governance arrangements) 
– Finalise service specification 

 
Staff & Stakeholders 
– Engagement and consultation with staff and Trade Unions 
– Stakeholder and partnership engagement 
 
Resources 
– Robust financial planning and budget-setting 
– Pension fund arrangements 

 
8.4 An early decision will be required from the Board on how capacity and leadership arrangements will 

be secured for programme management. Indicative costs have been included in the budget forecast. 
 
 
 
Bill Robinson 
BR Management Ltd 
July 2015

 Key Milestones 2015/16 Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr 
1 Formal Cabinet approval secured 

 
        

2 Programme management 
arrangements in place 

        

3 Joint agreement established between 
WMYOS Management Board & PCC 

        

4 Review of WMYOS operational model 
to inform forward planning 

        

5 SLA’s agreed for business support 
services  

        

6 Complete TUPE transfer of staff by 
31.3.15 

        

7 Commencement of hosting 
arrangement 

        

279



 
 

WMYOS Hosting by the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner - Risk Register – (Updated July 2015) 
 

 
Current Assessment of Overall Risk 

1 Remains High risk – taking account of all mitigating action taken 
2 Medium risk – assuming mitigating action is implemented 
3 Low risk – assuming mitigating action is implemented 

Risk 
Area 

Key Risks Impact 
 

Likelihood Current Mitigation  Risk Level 
& Owner 

 
G
ov
er
na
nc
e 
&
 

O
ve
rs
ig
ht
 

1.1 Governance arrangements are not fit for purpose – 
adverse impact on oversight and accountability 

High Medium Governance and oversight arrangements to be set out in formal joint 
agreement followed by regular review 

Initials 

1.2 Board oversight of performance and quality is weak 
 

High Medium Performance scorecard model for each level of governance and oversight 
to be agreed for high level overview & challenge (set out in Service Spec) 

 

1.3 Communication between Board and staff is poor, 
impacting on culture and effectiveness 

High Medium Priority for implementation plan – building on high level of staff engagement 
throughout the development process 

 

1.4 
 

Management oversight of frontline practice is weak High Medium Performance management, quality framework and supervision models to 
be agreed prior to implementation (Ref: Joint Agreement and Service Spec) 

 

  

 
F
in
an
ce
 &
 

 R
es
ou

rc
es
 

2.1 Insufficient resources secured to deliver priorities 
 

High Medium WMYOS Management Board will work closely with Office of the PCC to 
anticipate and manage demand on a collaborative basis 

 

2.2 Demand for services exceeds capacity to deliver 
 

High Medium As in 2.1 above  

2.3 Expenditure exceeds income for sustained period 
 

High Medium Financial reporting to be incorporated in joint agreement to ensure 
consistent reporting and collaboration on cost pressures 

 

2.4 
 

TUPE transfer arrangements lead to employee 
challenges 

High Medium Clear ETO reasons will be evidenced for any changes to terms and 
conditions following service review post-TUPE 

 

  

 
S
er
vi
ce
  

D
el
iv
er
y 

3.1 
 

Quality of service delivery is poor, with adverse 
reputational impact 

High Low Quality framework and reporting arrangements to be agreed pre-
implementation (Ref: Joint Agreement and Service Spec) 

 

3.2 Staff turnover has adverse impact on quality and 
capacity of delivery to clients 

Medium High Reporting arrangements to include workforce monitoring   

3.3 Deterioration in performance against terms set out in 
the joint agreement 

High Medium Oversight as in 1.2 above. Any deterioration in performance will be swiftly 
picked up and addressed with WMYOS Management Board 

 

3.4 
 

Alignment and integration with local partner agency 
services is weak 

High Medium Contract arrangements with each WMYOS partner to identify how 
alignment will be differentiated to meet local requirements 

 

2
8
0



 

 
   

 
 

281



282


	Agenda
	PublicInformationfireinfo oct 14
	3 MINUTES
	4 Adoption of the Herefordshire Local Plan -  Core Strategy 2011-2031
	Appendix 1 - Inspectors_Report_Sept_2015
	Appendix 2 - Inspectors Report
	Appendix 3 - Minor modifications - post inspector report
	Appendix 4 - Equality imapct and needs assessment

	5 Local Account 2014/15
	APPENDIX A - Local Account

	6 Adult and community learning plan 2015-18
	Appendix A Adult and Community Learning Plan
	Appendix B Fees Policy
	Appendix C Equality Impact Assessment

	7 Planned Capital Programme for Schools 2015/16
	Appendix A - 201516 Individual School Projects
	Appendix B - 201516 Individual School Projects - LVCAP

	8 Future delivery arrangements for West Mercia Youth Offending Service (WMYOS)
	Appendix A Executive summary of business case


